
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 06, 2021 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
The City is providing in-person and electronic options for this meeting.  The City encourages in-person attendees 
to follow the latest CDC guidelines to reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. 

The meeting will be accessible via video conference and the public may access/participate in the meeting in the 
following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of November 15, 2021. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing December 7, 2021 as Pearl Harbor Remembrance Day. 

3. Proclamation recognizing December 10, 2021 as International Human Rights Day. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 
business.) 

Special Order of Business 

4. Public hearing to consider taking action on a petition relative to the reestablishment of the Downtown 
Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID). 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published November 19, 2021) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

 
e) Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 2, Administration of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
reestablishing the Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID), 
upon its first consideration. 

Old Business 

5. Pass Ordinance #3000, granting a partial property tax exemption to The Vault, LLC for construction 
of a storage/office facility at 6100 Production Drive, upon its second consideration. 

6. Pass Ordinance #3001, amending Chapter 24, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to 
sanitary sewer rates, upon its second consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Russell Curtis, Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees, term expiring 12/31/2026. 

8. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of November 15, 2021 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Main Street Reconstruction and Right of Way. 
b) FY2021 Audit Report. 

9. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of October 2021. 

10. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
b) Moonshine Mob Bar, 419 Main Street, Class C liquor – renewal. 
c) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) The Brown Bottle, 1111 Center Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) Cedar Falls Family Restaurant, 2627 Center Street, Class B beer - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

11. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a 2022 Most Endangered Properties nomination 
by the Historical Preservation Commission to Preservation Iowa relative to the Honors Cottage at the 
University of Northern Iowa. 

12. Resolution approving and adopting a revised job classification for the position of Public Safety 
Supervisor - Captain in the Public Safety Services Department. 

13. Resolution approving and adopting a revised job classification for the position of Public Safety 
Supervisor - Lieutenant in the Public Safety Services Department. 

14. Resolution supporting Community Main Street, Inc., and approving and authorizing execution of a 
Main Street Iowa Program Continuation Agreement with Community Main Street, Inc. and the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority for the purpose of continuing the Main Street Program in Cedar 
Falls. 

15. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the Housing Choice Voucher Program 
Administrative Plan relative to the Section-8 Housing Program. 

16. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peters Construction Corporation for the 
City Hall Remodel Project. 

2



Page 3 of 3 

17. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located 
at 610 West 28th Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

18. Resolution approving a Shopping Center (S-1) Zoning District site plan for patio improvements at 
6607 University Avenue. 

19. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Creekside Luxury Condos. 

20. Resolution approving the final plat of Creekside Luxury Condos. 

21. Resolution approving a Planned Residence (R-P) Zoning District site plan for construction of a multi-
unit residential development in the vicinity of Cedar Heights Drive and Valley High Drive. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Extension of a Yard Waste Management 
Service Agreement with T&W Grinding relative to management of the City’s compost facility. 

23. Resolution approving and accepting completion of public improvements in Greenhill Village Estates.  

24. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Petersen 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $3,329,289.25, for the Greenhill Road and South Main Street 
Intersection Improvement Project.  

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of three Owner Purchase Agreements, and 
approving and accepting three Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the Greenhill 
Road & South Main Street Intersection Improvements Project. 

26. Resolution setting December 20, 2021 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance 
establishing new boundaries for wards and precincts. 

27. Resolution setting December 20, 2021 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to undertake a 
public improvement project for the Main Street Reconstruction Project, and to authorize acquisition of 
private property for said project. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

28. Allow Bills and Claims for December 6, 2021. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Executive Session 

29. Executive Session to discuss Collective Bargaining per Iowa Code Section 20.17(3) as negotiating 
sessions, strategy meetings of public employers, mediation, and the deliberative process of 
arbitrators; and Property Acquisition per Iowa Code § 21.5(1)(j) to discuss the purchase or sale of 
particular real estate only where disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the 
governmental body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental body 
would receive for that property. 

Open Session 

30. Resolution approving a tentative agreement with Teamsters Union Local No. 238, Parks & Public 
Works, and authorizing execution of a Contract. 

31. Resolution approving a tentative agreement with Teamsters Union Local No. 238, Public Safety, and 
authorizing execution of a Contract. 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, NOVEMBER 15, 2021 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse 
(via video conference), Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.  
 

53547 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of November 1, 2021 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

   
53548 - Mayor Green read the following proclamations: 
 

Proclamation recognizing November 26, 2021 as Holiday Hoopla Day and 
November 27, 2021 as Small Business Saturday. Community Main Street 
Executive Director Kim Bear commented. 
 
Proclamation recognizing December 1, 2021 as Civil Air Patrol Day. 
 

53549-     Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, expressed concerns with a proposal by UNI 
to demolish historical buildings on campus. 

 James Geiger, 5308 Arbors Drive, expressed appreciation for citizens supporting 
striking John Deere union employees. 

 Public Safety Director Olson, Mayor Green and City Attorney Rogers responded 
to concerns expressed by Larry Wyckoff, 4241 Eastpark Road, regarding people 
walking in the streets.   

53550 - Mayor announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on the proposed 
condemnation of property located at 1227 West 22nd Street. Building Official 
Castle provided a brief summary. Following comments by Corbin Hoffman, 1009 
West 22nd Street, Apt. 44, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

53551- It was moved by Harding and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #22,579, 
declaring the property located at 1227 West 22nd Street to be a nuisance due to 
being structurally unsafe, a fire hazard, or otherwise dangerous to human life and 
health, and ordering abatement of said nuisance by removal, repair or demolition 
of said property and requiring the owner of said property to abate said nuisance 
or submit a viable plan by December 2, 2021, be adopted. Following comments 
and questions by Councilmembers Sires and deBuhr, and response by Building 
Official Castle, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah, Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,579 duly passed and adopted. 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

   
53552 - Mayor announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on the proposed 

condemnation of property located at 315 East Dunkerton Road. Building Official 
Castle provided a brief summary. Following comments by Diana Flett, 315 East 
Dunkerton Road, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

53553- It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,580, 
declaring the property located at 315 East Dunkerton Road to be a nuisance due 
to being structurally unsafe, a fire hazard, or otherwise dangerous to human life 
and health, and ordering abatement of said nuisance by removal, repair or 
demolition of said property and requiring the owner of said property to abate said 
nuisance or submit a viable plan by December 2, 2021, be adopted. Following 
questions and comments by Mayor Green, Councilmembers Harding, deBuhr, 
Sires and Darrah, and responses by Building Official Castle, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Harding, Darrah, Dunn.  Nay: Kruse, 
Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,580 duly passed 
and adopted. 

 
53554 - Mayor announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on the proposed 

condemnation of property located at 710 West 13th Street. Building Official Castle 
provided a brief summary. Following comments by the Administrator of the 
Estate Debra Kock, Greene, Iowa, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

53555- It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #22,581, 
declaring the property located at 710 West 13th Street to be a nuisance due to 
being structurally unsafe, a fire hazard, or otherwise dangerous to human life and 
health, and ordering abatement of said nuisance by removal, repair or demolition 
of said property and requiring the owner of said property to abate said nuisance 
or submit a viable plan by December 2, 2021, be adopted. Following comments 
and questions by Councilmember Sires, Harding and Kruse, it was moved by 
Kruse and seconded by Sires to amend the motion to extend the date to submit 
the viable plan to 60 days. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers deBuhr and Darrah, and responses by Building Official Castle, 
the motion to amend failed 2-5, with Miller, deBuhr, Harding, Darrah and Dunn 
voting Nay. The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Harding, Darrah, Dunn.  Nay: Kruse, Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,581 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53556 - Mayor announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on the proposed 

condemnation of property located at 1303 Walnut Street. Building Official Castle 
provided a brief summary. There being no one else present wishing to speak 
about the proposed condemnation, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

53557- It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #22,582, 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

declaring the property located at 1303 Walnut Street to be a nuisance due to 
being structurally unsafe, a fire hazard, or otherwise dangerous to human life and 
health, and ordering abatement of said nuisance by removal, repair or demolition 
of said property and requiring the owner of said property to abate said nuisance 
or submit a viable plan by December 2, 2021, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Harding, Darrah, Dunn.  Nay: Kruse, Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,582 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53558 - Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of October 27, 2021, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the City's FFY20 Consolidated 
Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME programs. It was then moved by 
Darrah and seconded by Miller that the proof of publication of notice of hearing 
be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.  

53559 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed proposal. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Community 
Development Director Sheetz provided a brief summary of the proposal. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposal, the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53560 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,583, 

approving and authorizing submission of the FFY20 Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME programs, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,583 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53561 - Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of November 05, 

2021, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption for The Vault, LLC for construction of a 
storage/office facility at 6100 Production Drive. It was then moved by Darrah and 
seconded by deBuhr that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received 
and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.  

53562 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed ordinance. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham provided a brief summary of the proposal. 
There being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposal, the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53563 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3000, granting 

a partial property tax exemption to The Vault, LLC for construction of a 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

storage/office facility at 6100 Production Drive, be passed upon its first 
consideration.  Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53564 - Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of November 5, 2021, 

this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Greenhill Road and 
South Main Street Intersection Improvement Project. It was then moved by Miller 
and seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously.  

53565 -  The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 
proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer Claypool 
provided a brief summary and presented a video of the proposed project. 
Following questions and comments by Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street, 
Larry Wyckoff, 4241 Eastpark Road, and James Geiger, 5308 Arbors Drive, and 
responses by Public Works Director Schrage and Public Safety Director Olson, 
the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53566 -     It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,584, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the Greenhill Road and South Main Street Intersection Improvement 
Project, be adopted. Following questions and comments by Mayor Green and 
Councilmember Sires, and responses by Public Safety Director Olson and Public 
Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Dunn. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,584 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53567 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2997, adopting 

by reference the 2021 International Building Code, 2021 International Residential 
Code, 2021 International Mechanical Code, 2021 Uniform Plumbing Code, 2021 
National Fuel Gas Code and 2020 National Electrical Code, and associated 
revisions to Chapter 7, Buildings and Building Regulations of the Code of 
Ordinances, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Ordinance #2997 duly passed and adopted 

 
53568 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2998, 

adopting by reference the 2021 International Fire Code, and associated revisions 
to Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection of the Code of Ordinances, be 
passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Ordinance #2998 duly passed and adopted 

 
53569 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Sonja Bock, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2022. 

Receive and file a communication for the Civil Service Commission relative to the 
certified list for the position of Public Safety Officer. 

Receive and file the FY2021 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Hansen's Dairy, 123 East 18th Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - 
renewal. 
b) Lifestyle Inn, 5826 University Avenue, Class B liquor - renewal. 
c) Five Corners Liquor & Wine, 809 East 18th Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
d) Aldi Inc., 315 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer & Class B wine – permanent 
transfer. 
e) Alist Nails, 6015 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor – new. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

53570 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #22,585, authorizing certification of eligible expenses for 

reimbursement from the College Hill, Downtown, Pinnacle Prairie, South Cedar 
Falls, and Unified Tax Increment Financing Revenues. 

 Resolution #22,586, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund 
relative to funding for parking lot signage in the College Hill Urban Renewal Area. 

 Resolution #22,587, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund 
relative to funding for legal fees, construction costs, design costs, brick costs, 
utility costs, reimbursement payments, landscaping costs, easement costs and 
other project costs related to Peter Melendy Park, Downtown Alley, Downtown 
Parking Lot, and Downtown Streetscape, all in the Downtown Urban Renewal 
Area. 

 Resolution #22,588, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund 
relative to funding design, construction and administrative fees related to the 
Cyber Lane and Cyber Lane Extension projects in the South Cedar Falls Urban 
Renewal Area. 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

 Resolution #22,589, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) Bond Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund 
relative to funding for the West Viking Road, Industrial Park Street Expansion, 
and other administrative and legal fees in the Unified Urban Renewal Area. 

 Resolution #22,590, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the 
Capital Improvements Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to 
funding for camera costs in the Downtown Urban Renewal Area. 

 Resolution #22,591, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the 
Economic Development Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative 
to funding for the purchase of land and related expenses in the South Cedar 
Falls Urban Renewal Area. 

 Resolution #22,592, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the 
Economic Development Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative 
to funding for the purchase of land and water rights in the Unified Urban Renewal 
Area. 

 Resolution #22,593, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the Local 
Option Sales Tax (LOST) Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund 
relative to funding for legal, engineering, construction, and administrative fees 
related to the Ridgeway Avenue Project in the South Cedar Falls Urban Renewal 
Area. 

 Resolution #22,594, approving and authorizing an inter-fund loan from the 
Visitors & Tourism Fund to the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund relative to 
funding for the landscaping design project in the Pinnacle Prairie Urban Renewal 
Area. 

 Resolution #22,595, approving and authorizing the transfer of funds relative 
to Tax Increment Financing (TIF) revenues to be received for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2022. 

 Resolution #22,596, approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY21 
Annual Urban Renewal Report. 

 Resolution #22,597, approving a Cedar Falls Utilities Electric, Gas, Water, and 
Communications Utility Installation or Relocation Project within the Cedar Falls 
Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area. 

 Resolution #22,598, approving and accepting an Iowa Arts & Culture Marketing 
Grant from the Iowa Department of Cultural Affairs for marketing initiatives of the 
Hearst Center for the Arts. 

 Resolution #22,599, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
Professional Services with Exceptional Persons, Inc. relative to Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for service agencies.  

 Resolution #22,600, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
Professional Services with Northeast Iowa Food Bank relative to Community 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for service agencies.  

 Resolution #22,601, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
Professional Services with Pathways Behavioral Services, Inc. relative to 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for service agencies.  

 Resolution #22,602, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
Professional Services with Salvation Army relative to Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) funding for service agencies.  

 Resolution #22,603, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Peters Construction Corporation, in the amount of $3,851,456.00 
for the City Hall Remodel Project. 

 Resolution #22,604, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product 
Agreement with Routewear, Inc. for replacement of the automated refuse cart 
management system. 

 Resolution #22,605, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for design services 
relative to the Cedar Heights Area Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #22,606, receiving and filing the Evaluative Report of the Planning & 
Zoning Commission, and setting December 6, 2021 as the date of public hearing 
to consider taking action on a petition requesting the reestablishment of the 
Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID). 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,585 through #22,606 duly 
passed and adopted. 

53571 -    It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #22,607, 
approving the preliminary plat of West Fork Crossing, be adopted. Following 
questions by Councilmembers Miller and deBuhr, and responses by Planning & 
Community Services Manager Howard, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #22,607 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53572 -     It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #3001, 

amending Chapter 24, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances, relative to sanitary 
sewer rates, be passed upon its first consideration.  Following due consideration 
by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53573 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 

November 15, 2021 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 

10

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 8 - 

 

Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53574 - It was moved by Sires and seconded by Harding to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole a presentation by Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic 
Representative Jen Stevenson regarding services available to the Public Safety 
Department. Following comments by Councilmember Dunn and Police Chief 
Berte, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
  It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to refer to goal setting a 

discussion regarding installing crosswalks on Union Road at Paddington Drive, 
Thresher Court and Autumn Ridge Road. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Sires and Harding, and responses by Public Works Director 
Schrage, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
53575 -   Public Safety Director Olson provided clarification to an earlier question 

regarding pedestrians in the streets. City ordinance states walking in the street is 
prohibited if there are sidewalks available. 

 
     Mayor Green announced the successful space launch of Cedar Falls Astronaut 

Raja Chari to the International Space Station. 
 
53576 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:52 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
  

11

Item 1.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

 
 

 

 
 

PEARL HARBOR REMEMBRANCE DAY 
DECEMBER 7, 2021 

 
WHEREAS, at dawn on Sunday, December 7th, 1941, the U.S.  Pacific Fleet was attacked at 
Pearl Harbor, Hawaii by the Empire of Japan suddenly and without warning; and 

WHEREAS, 2,334 American sailors, soldiers, airmen and civilians were killed, and 
another 1,143 wounded, in this surprise attack; and 

WHEREAS, following the attack, thousands of young men and women bid their families 
farewell and entered the U.S. Armed Forces to protect their homeland; and 

WHEREAS, the city of Cedar Falls and the University of Northern Iowa (known then as 
the Iowa State Teachers College) saw an influx of tens of thousands of Americans, and 
especially women, as they trained on the college campus to become Army Air Force 
yeomen, Navy WAVES (Women Accepted for Volunteer Service) and Coast Guard SPARS 
(Semper Paratus, Always Ready); and  

WHEREAS, December 7, 2021 marks the 80th anniversary of the attack on Pearl Harbor 
and the entry of the United States into World War II; and 

WHEREAS, annual commemorations of the attack on Pearl Harbor are important for 
ensuring that the citizens of Cedar Falls appreciate the selfless acts of those Americans 
who served in the U.S. Armed Forces during World War II; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim 
December 7, 2021, as Pearl Harbor Remembrance Day throughout the city and I 
encourage all citizens to remember and reflect on tremendous sacrifices made by men 
and women during World War II to liberate our brothers and sisters abroad from the 
forces of tyranny and oppression.  

Signed this 24th day of November, 2021.  

 

______________________________________                                                                                  

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 
12

Item 2.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

  

 

 
 

INTERNATIONAL HUMAN RIGHTS DAY 
DECEMBER 10, 2021 

 
WHEREAS, on December 10, 1948, the United Nations General Assembly adopted 

the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, a highly influential document which is 

credited with reducing human suffering and improving the daily lives of millions by 

affirming the enduring universality of its values of equality, justice, and human 

dignity; and 

WHEREAS, the Universal Declaration is based on the proposition that each person is 

entitled to a full range of human rights and that it is each person's responsibility to 

uphold them; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, located on land of Indigenous people, has been 

built by generations of settlers and inhabitants, including visitors, immigrants, 

refugees and asylees who have worked together to create a community where, 

ultimately people can live and work in harmony without fear of discrimination; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls has committed itself to these values by adopting 

policies to provide equal opportunity for its residents and visitors for participation in 

local governance, employment, housing, and public accommodation without regard 

to race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, disability, sex, gender identity, 

sexual orientation, familial status or veteran status;  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim 

December 10, 2021, as International Human Rights Day throughout the city and 

encourage all residents to work together in the coming year to continue advancing 

the noble goal of respecting and fulfilling the protections contained in the Universal 

Declaration of Human Rights for all members of our local community. 

 

Signed this 24th day of November, 2021.  

 

______________________________________                                                                                  

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 

13

Item 3.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone:  319-273-8600 
Fax:  319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: November 3, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Renewal of the Downtown Self-Supported Municipal Improvement 
  District (SSMID) 
____________________________________________________________________ 

REQUEST:  Renewal of the Downtown Self-Supported Municipal Improvement 
District (SSMID) for a new 5-Year Term (July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2027) 

 

PETITIONER:  Community Main Street (Lead Agency) 
 

LOCATION:    Downtown Cedar Falls 
______________________________________________________________________ 

Evaluative Report for the Cedar Falls City Council on the Merit and Feasibility of 
Renewing the Downtown Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District 

 
PROPOSAL 
 
In accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 386, Community Main Street has submitted a 
petition to the City of Cedar Falls for the renewal of the Downtown Self-Supported 
Municipal Improvement District (SSMID). The purpose for the creation of the Downtown 
SSMID is to provide funding to pay the ongoing administrative and support costs for the 
services and functioning of Community Main Street, which develops and encourages 
retail businesses by way of promotion and support for existing businesses, area 
improvements, and for healthy growth and development consistent with the long term 
goals for the Downtown business district.  
 
Attached is the memo and petition submitted by Community Main Street. The 
requirement for approval of a SSMID is support by petition from a minimum of 25% of 
the unique property owners representing 25% of the total valuation of the District. 
Community Main Street submitted signatures from 47% of the total number of unique 
property owners, which represent 61% of the total valuation within the area covered by 
the SSMID, so their petition meets the threshold for renewal of the SSMID. 
 
The self-imposed tax upon property within the SSMID area will be set at $3.89 per 
$1,000 of net taxable valuation for fiscal year 2023, with a maximum allowable levy rate 

14

Item 4.



of $5.83. All tax revenue collected from properties subject to the additional tax will be 
deposited into the Downtown Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District Fund for 
the operational purposes of Community Main Street as stated above. It should be noted 
that residential property within the District is not subject to the additional tax.   
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 
 
This memorandum serves as the Evaluative Report for City Council the Merit and 
Feasibility of the Downtown Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District. The 
following attachments are supporting documentation used in the development of this 
Evaluative Report:  
 

 A letter from Community Main Street requesting renewal of the SSMID with a 
summary of the necessary signatures of support received to meet the State 
requirements for renewal of the SSMID;  

 

 A spreadsheet that includes all commercial property owners that are located 
within the boundaries of the SSMID and subject to the additional tax.  Those 
deedholders highlighted in the spreadsheet are those who have signed the 
petition of support. The spreadsheet indicates both the percentage of unique 
property owners who have signed the petition and the percentage of valuation 
those properties represent within the SSMID; 

  

 Copies of the signed petitions; 
 

 Map illustrating the location and boundaries of the SSMID.  
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this request at their October 27, 2021 
meeting, and approved and endorsed the Evaluative Report on the Merit and Feasibility 
of the Renewal of the Downtown Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District, and 
recommends that the City Council proceeds to set a public hearing for consideration of 
the same. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMMISSION ACTIONS 
 
10/27/21 Meeting - Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided 

background information. She discussed the minimum requirements for the 
five-year renewal and stated that staff recommends approval, and for the 
Commission to make a recommendation to City Council. 

 
 Mr. Schrad made a motion to approve staff recommendations. Ms. Lynch 

seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes 
(Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Saul and Schrad), and 0 nays. 

 
 

15

Item 4.



310 East 4th Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Phone: 319-277-0213
www.communitymainstreet.org

October 1, 2021

Ms. Jacque Danielsen
City Clerk
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Re: Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District 

Dear Ms. Danielsen: 

Enclosed, please find information pertaining to the creation of the Self-
Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) in the downtown area. 
The downtown SSMID was originally established in 1987 and its purpose is to 
provide funding for the continuation of the Community Main Street, Inc. (CMS). 
The proposed district is to be established for the period commencing July 1, 
2022, and ending June 30, 2027. The provisions for enabling the enactment 
of the SSMID are addressed in the Code of Iowa, Chapter 386. Specifics are 
outlined as follows.

The CMS Board of Directors has collected property owners’ signatures on the 
SSMID petition. Renewal requires supporting documents and signed petitions 
representing at least 25% of the taxable valuation and 25% of the downtown 
property owners. Included in this packet are signed petition forms representing 
61% of the taxable valuation and 47% of the downtown property owners, 
exceeding the minimum requirements for renewal.

CMS would propose that these petitions and other documentation be 
submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission for consideration 
and recommendation at their October 27, 2021, meeting. Based on the 
recommendation from the Planning and Zoning, the request would then 
follow the standard procedure of conducting a Public Hearing and adopting an 
Ordinance to establish said district. An updated copy of the 2016 ordinance is 
included with this letter. 

The provisions of the Ordinance do comply with the necessary guidelines or 
establishing a district as addressed in Chapter 386 of the Code, herein referred 
to as the Act.

2021-2022
Board of Directors:

Lexie Heath - President 
Darin Beck
Natalie Brown
Ann Eastman
Crystal Ford
Brent Johnson
Audrey Kittrell
Jenny Leeper
Helen Pearce
Clark Rickard
Mark Showalter
Brad Strouse

Ex-officio
Wynette Froehner
Stephanie Houk-Sheetz

16

Item 4.



386.3 Establishment

1a. Be comprised of contiguous property wholly within the boundaries of the  
 City. The area designed is contiguous and is defined on the attached  
 map and legally described to include said property.
 b. Be given a descriptive name. The name of the district shall be “Downtown  
 Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District.”
c. Be comprised of property related in some manner. The property described is 
physically located in the downtown district and participates in the Community 
Main Street, Inc. program to enable downtown revitalization. Zoning is 
currently C-1, C-2 and C-3, appropriate for said District.

2a. The signatures of at least 25% of all owners of property within the proposed 
district. These signatures must together represent ownership of property with 
an assessed value of 25% or more of the assessed value of all of the property in 
the proposed district. 

Sections 2b, c, d, e, and f of 386.3 are included in the ordinance that is included 
with this letter.

Please feel free to contact me at 319-277-0213 if you have any questions. Thank 
you.

Kind regards, 

Kim Bear
Executive Director    
Community Main Street

17

Item 4.



Deed Holder Property Address Taxable Value
305 MAIN STREET LLC 305 MAIN ST 229,992
323 PROPERTIES LLC 517 WASHINGTON ST 340,398
ADW LLC 102 MAIN ST 175,001
ARABELLA LLC 102 CLAY ST 1,615,653
ARABELLA LLC 200 W 1ST ST 1,975,566
ARABELLA LLC 102,636
AVAN PROPERTIES LLC 108 MAIN ST 147,821
B J S HOLDINGS LLC 311 MAIN ST 294,741
BLACK HAWK HOTEL MOTOR LODGE LLC 122 WASHINGTON ST 340,911
BLACKHAWK HOTEL LLC 53,541
BT HOLDINGS LLC 122 MAIN ST 310,968
CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY CR UNION 123 W 4TH ST 1,048,806
COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK 312 W 1ST ST 658,890
D SQUARED II LLC 109 E 4TH ST 108,387
D SQUARED II LLC 402 MAIN ST 459,387
D SQUARED II LLC 406 MAIN ST 227,423
DOLLYS RENTALS LLC 604 CLAY ST 1,325,826
EQUITY REAL ESTATES INVESTMENTS 111 MAIN ST 227,157
FARMERS STATE BANK 515 MAIN ST 2,537,982
FARRIS, DAVID 116 MAIN ST 201,978
FARRIS, DAVID 118 MAIN ST 228,426
FARRIS, DAVID A 209 STATE ST 294,975
FENCL,DANIEL D TRUST 422 MAIN ST 456,111
FENCL,DANIEL D TRUST 163,152
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF 602 MAIN ST 1,842,795
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF 112,518
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF 90,414
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF 45,486
FRANKLIN STREET PROPERTY L C 415 CLAY ST 715,113
FRANKLIN STREET PROPERTY L C 41,463
FRANKLIN STREET PROPERTY L C 31,752
FRANKLIN STREET PROPERTY L C 6,057
GREAT WESTERN BANK 205 W 2ND ST 904,590
HI YIELD LLC 123 W 7TH ST 509,481
HI YIELD LLC 50,742
HI YIELD LLC 31,851
IEHL, CALVIN R 874,917
JJ LAND L C 110 E 3RD ST 199,089
JJ LAND L C 222 MAIN ST 265,113
JJ LAND L C 224 MAIN ST 212,742
K GROUP L C 226 MAIN ST 232,902
KEL MAR LC 600 STATE ST 380,781
KEL MAR LC 521 CLAY ST 104,160
KNUTSON, AARON M 622 MAIN ST 294,705
LINDERBAUM REAL ESTATE LLC 115 E 2ND ST 295,749
MAIN STREET HOTELS LC 115 MAIN ST 1,027,413
MAIN STREET HOTELS LC 119 MAIN ST 305,757

18

Item 4.



MARSH, JEFFREY J 412 MAIN ST 167,148
NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 315 MAIN ST 622,883
NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 317 MAIN ST 257,345
NELSON FUNERAL HOME INC 613 MAIN ST 417,632
OVERMAN NORTH PARTNERS LC 323 W 2ND ST 132,966
PANTHER BUILDERS LLC 616 CLAY ST 498,942
PARK PLACE PROPERTIES 324 W 3RD ST 131,697
PC REAL ESTATE LLC 310 MAIN ST 230,760
PC REAL ESTATE LLC 312 MAIN ST 298,134
PC REAL ESTATE LLC 316 MAIN ST 495,864
PRESTIGE WW LLC 205 MAIN ST 443,547
RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC 616 WASHINGTON ST 49,684
RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC 48,456
RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES II LC 123 E 3RD ST 62,982
RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES II LC 302 MAIN ST 184,338
RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES LC 149,454
SC AND B PROPERTIES LLC 318 MAIN ST 284,691
SHIMEK, ANDREW 109 MAIN ST 119,511
SHIMEK, ANDREW D 104 MAIN ST 230,735
SHIMEK, ROBERTA M 107 MAIN ST 239,083
SIMPLE AS 128 LLC 128 MAIN ST 320,225
SRE HOLDINGS LLC 57,033
SRE HOLDINGS LLC 201 WASHINGTON ST 587,376
SRE HOLDINGS LLC 403 WASHINGTON ST 195,651
STATE STREET MIXED USE II LC 100 E 2ND ST 5,915,120
STATE STREET MIXED USE LC 200 STATE ST 5,558,276
STATE STREET RESIDENCES LC 417,915
STONE AND TERRACE LLC 108 E 4TH ST 250,110
STONE AND TERRACE LLC 87,471
VIKING PUMP INC 222 E 7TH ST 220,230
VIKING PUMP INC 406 STATE ST 1,094,040
VIKING PUMP INC 48,303
VIKING PUMP INC 540

19

Item 4.



20

Item 4.



21

Item 4.



22

Item 4.



23

Item 4.



24

Item 4.



25

Item 4.



26

Item 4.



27

Item 4.



28

Item 4.



29

Item 4.



30

Item 4.



31

Item 4.



32

Item 4.



33

Item 4.



34

Item 4.



35

Item 4.



36

Item 4.



37

Item 4.



Parcel Number Primary Owner Situs Assessed Value Name Attention Address City State Zip
891412188004 305 MAIN STREET LLC 305  MAIN ST    113,576 305 MAIN STREET LLC 827 WESTWOOD DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188004 305 MAIN STREET LLC 305  MAIN ST    170,364 305 MAIN STREET LLC 827 WESTWOOD DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188006 309 MAIN LLC 309  MAIN ST    106,820 309 MAIN LLC 309 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188006 309 MAIN LLC 309  MAIN ST    198,380 309 MAIN LLC 309 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412333005 323 PROPERTIES LLC 517  WASHINGTON ST    378,220 323 PROPERTIES LLC 1628 W 6TH ST STORM LAKE IA 50588
891412251003 ADW LLC 102  MAIN ST    65,341 ADW LLC 3620 ROWND ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251003 ADW LLC 102  MAIN ST    145,439 ADW LLC 3620 ROWND ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188003 AKER, BARBARA DAVIS 303  MAIN ST    203,729 AKER, BARBARA DAVIS 2350 EWING ST LOS ANGELES CA 90039
891412188003 AKER, BARBARA DAVIS 303  MAIN ST    259,291 AKER, BARBARA DAVIS 2350 EWING ST LOS ANGELES CA 90039
891412406010 ALLTELL 504  BLUFF ST    118,580 DUFF AND PHELPS LLC PO BOX 2549 ADDISON TX 75001
891412179001 ARABELLA LLC 102  CLAY ST    2,393,560 ARABELLA LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412179011 ARABELLA LLC 200 W 1ST ST    893,802 ARABELLA LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412179011 ARABELLA LLC 200 W 1ST ST    1,735,028 ARABELLA LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412179014 ARABELLA LLC 114,040 ARABELLA LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252020 AREA ELECTRIC INC 204  MAIN ST    19,088 AREA ELECTRIC INC 510 STATE ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252020 AREA ELECTRIC INC 204  MAIN ST    253,602 AREA ELECTRIC INC 510 STATE ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412405003 AREA ELECTRIC INC 510  STATE ST    335,470 AREA ELECTRIC INC 510 STATE ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251006 AVAN PROPERTIES LLC 108  MAIN ST    70,976 AVAN PROPERTIES LLC 1746 DAKOTA DR WATERLOO IA 50701
891412251006 AVAN PROPERTIES LLC 108  MAIN ST    111,014 AVAN PROPERTIES LLC 1746 DAKOTA DR WATERLOO IA 50701
891412188007 B J S HOLDINGS LLC 311  MAIN ST    327,490 PETERSEN, BRUCE 311 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329001 BATH PROPERTIES LLC 404  WASHINGTON ST    569,540 BATH PROPERTIES LLC 1015 ORCHARD DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412178005 BENDABLE EQUITIES LLC 77,620 BENDABLE EQUITIES LLC 1816 VALLEY HIGH DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412180013 BLACK HAWK HOTEL LLC 59,490 TINDALL HOTEL INC 3700 RIVER OAKS DR DES MOINES IA 50612
891412180012 BLACK HAWK HOTEL MOTOR LODGE LLC 122  WASHINGTON ST    378,790 TINDALL HOTEL INC 3700 RIVER OAKS DR DES MOINES IA 50612
891412252013 BLACK HAWK LODGE NO 65 AF AND AM 216  MAIN ST    386,930 BLACK HAWK LODGE NO 65 AF AND AM PO BOX 493 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252015 BLACK HAWK LODGE NO 65 AF AND AM 214  MAIN ST    294,380 BLACK HAWK LODGE NO 65 AF AND AM PO BOX 493 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184003 BRB REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC 201  MAIN ST    91,342 BRB REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC PO BOX 622 201 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184003 BRB REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC 201  MAIN ST    162,388 BRB REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC PO BOX 622 201 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412126040 BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 101 W 1ST ST    5,511,220 BROOMSTICK LODGING LLC 2706 JAMES ST CORALVILLE IA 52241
891412328006 BRYAN, RANDOLPH 419  WASHINGTON ST    44,493 BRYAN, RANDOLPH 3121 JEPSEN RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412328006 BRYAN, RANDOLPH 419  WASHINGTON ST    120,297 BRYAN, RANDOLPH 3121 JEPSEN RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251013 BT HOLDINGS LLC 122  MAIN ST    157,842 BT HOLDINGS LLC 217 WASHINGTON ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251013 BT HOLDINGS LLC 122  MAIN ST    227,138 BT HOLDINGS LLC 217 WASHINGTON ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412328004 BUILT BY BRADY LLC 409  WASHINGTON ST    459,820 BUILT BY BRADY LLC 1026 CARRIAGE LN CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412338010 CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY 21,190 CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY PO Box 54288 LEXINGTON KY 40555
891412338011 CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY 601  MAIN ST    613,070 CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY PO Box 54288 LEXINGTON KY 40555
891412188013 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY CR UNION 123 W 4TH ST    1,165,340 CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY CR UNION PO Box 1009 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184013 CEDAR FALLS TRUST & SAVINGS BANK 19,490 US BANK CORPORATE REAL ESTATE C/O RYAN PTS DEPT. 908 PO Box 460169 HOUSTON TX 77056
891412184014 CEDAR FALLS TRUST & SAVINGS BANK 117 W 3RD ST    106,560 US BANK CORPORATE REAL ESTATE C/O RYAN PTS DEPT. 908 PO Box 460169 HOUSTON TX 77056
891412184015 CEDAR FALLS TRUST & SAVINGS BANK 222  WASHINGTON ST    1,149,500 US BANK CORPORATE REAL ESTATE C/O RYAN PTS DEPT. 908 PO Box 460169 HOUSTON TX 77056
891412327004 CHEROKEE PROPERTIES LLC 17,820 CHEROKEE PROPERTIES LLC PO BOX 1106 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412327005 CHEROKEE PROPERTIES LLC 411  CLAY ST    195,390 CHEROKEE PROPERTIES LLC PO BOX 1106 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412183005 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 217  WASHINGTON ST    562,980 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 220 CLAY ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254015 CJS VENTURES LLC 315  STATE ST    11,189 CJS VENTURES LLC 4220 W MT VERNON RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254015 CJS VENTURES LLC 315  STATE ST    548,241 CJS VENTURES LLC 4220 W MT VERNON RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412178006 COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK 312 W 1ST ST    732,100 COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK PO Box 1288 WATERLOO IA 50704
891412401001 D SQUARED II LLC 402  MAIN ST    510,430 D SQUARED II LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412401002 D SQUARED II LLC 109 E 4TH ST    120,430 D SQUARED II LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412401011 D SQUARED II LLC 406  MAIN ST    84,915 D SQUARED II LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412401011 D SQUARED II LLC 406  MAIN ST    189,005 D SQUARED II LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412337015 DOLLYS RENTALS LLC 604  CLAY ST    1,473,140 DOLLYS RENTALS LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412408014 ELEMENT PROPERT, IES LLC 616  STATE ST    98,711 ELEMENT PROPERT, IES LLC C/O BETH BURRELL 32257 BEAVER VALLEY ST NEW HARTFORD IA 50660
891412408014 ELEMENT PROPERT, IES LLC 616  STATE ST    91,119 ELEMENT PROPERT, IES LLC C/O BETH BURRELL 32257 BEAVER VALLEY ST NEW HARTFORD IA 50660
891412180005 EQUITY REAL ESTATES INVESTMENTS 111  MAIN ST  APT A 112,176 EQUITY REAL ESTATES INVESTMENTS PO Box 805 WATERLOO IA 50704
891412180005 EQUITY REAL ESTATES INVESTMENTS 111  MAIN ST  APT A 168,264 EQUITY REAL ESTATES INVESTMENTS PO Box 805 WATERLOO IA 50704
891412334009 FARMERS STATE BANK 515  MAIN ST    2,819,980 FARMERS STATE BANK 131 TOWER PARK DR APT 100 WATERLOO IA 50701
891412251010 FARRIS, DAVID 116  MAIN ST    224,420 FARRIS, DAVID 215 COLORADO RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251011 FARRIS, DAVID 118  MAIN ST    91,288 FARRIS, DAVID 215 COLORADO RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251011 FARRIS, DAVID 118  MAIN ST    185,342 FARRIS, DAVID 215 COLORADO RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252022 FARRIS, DAVID A 209  STATE ST    327,750 FARRIS, DAVID A 215 COLORADO RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412401018 FENCL,DANIEL D TRUST 422  MAIN ST    506,790 FENCL,DANIEL D TRUST 422 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613

 FOR REESTABLISHMENT OF CEDAR FALLS DOWNTOWN SELF-SUPPORTED MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (SSMID) 2022 

38

Item 4.



891412401019 FENCL,DANIEL D TRUST 181,280 FENCL,DANIEL D TRUST 422 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412407001 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF 602  MAIN ST    2,047,550 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF PO Box 189 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412407004 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF 125,020 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF PO Box 189 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412407005 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF 50,540 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF PO Box 189 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412407006 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF 100,460 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF PO Box 189 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412178001 FN AND R RENTAL LLC 320 W 1ST ST    296,880 F N & R RENTAL LLC C/O DANIEL L RUBENDALL 765 PROSPECT BLVD WATERLOO IA 50701
891412251007 FORE INVESTORS LLC 110  MAIN ST    106,481 FORE INVESTORS LLC 201 WASHINGTON ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251007 FORE INVESTORS LLC 110  MAIN ST    153,229 FORE INVESTORS LLC 201 WASHINGTON ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329009 FOUR HUNDRED ELEVEN MAIN L C 415  MAIN ST    190,410 FOUR HUNDRED ELEVEN MAIN L C 411 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329016 FOUR HUNDRED ELEVEN MAIN L C 411  MAIN ST    281,000 FOUR HUNDRED ELEVEN MAIN L C 411 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412327006 FRANKLIN STREET PROPERTY L C 415  CLAY ST    794,570 REDFERN, DONALD B PO Box 627 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412327007 FRANKLIN STREET PROPERTY L C 46,070 REDFERN, DONALD B PO Box 627 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412327011 FRANKLIN STREET PROPERTY L C 35,280 REDFERN, DONALD B PO Box 627 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412327013 FRANKLIN STREET PROPERTY L C 6,730 REDFERN, DONALD B PO Box 627 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329002 FREESE FRAME LLC 116 W 4TH ST    160,500 FREESE FRAME LLC 1613 GREEN CREEK RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412179012 GREAT WESTERN BANK 205 W 2ND ST    1,005,100 GREAT WESTERN BANK 225 S MAIN AVE SIOUX FALLS SD 57104
891412408003 H & H ENTERPRISES LLC 602  STATE ST    255,480 H & H ENTERPRISES LLC 602 STATE ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412406003 HARTING,KENNETH & DEBRA TRUST 516  BLUFF ST    6,144 HARTING,KENNETH & DEBRA TRUST 900 ROYAL DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412406003 HARTING,KENNETH & DEBRA TRUST 516  BLUFF ST    116,746 HARTING,KENNETH & DEBRA TRUST 900 ROYAL DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412406006 HARTING,KENNETH & DEBRA TRUST 34,920 HARTING,KENNETH & DEBRA TRUST 900 ROYAL DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412338001 HI YIELD LLC 35,390 HI YIELD LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412338006 HI YIELD LLC 56,380 HI YIELD LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412338007 HI YIELD LLC 123 W 7TH ST    566,090 HI YIELD LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412180010 HUMBLE PROPERTIES LLC 125  MAIN ST    106,494 HUMBLE PROPERTIES LLC 125 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412180010 HUMBLE PROPERTIES LLC 125  MAIN ST    197,776 HUMBLE PROPERTIES LLC 125 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251012 IBL DDT LLC 120  MAIN ST    118,537 IBL DDT LLC PO Box 673 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251012 IBL DDT LLC 120  MAIN ST    201,833 IBL DDT LLC PO Box 673 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412333006 IEHL, CALVIN R 211 W 6TH ST 972,130 IEHL, CALVIN R 4219 EASTPARK RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252002 JACOBS, JOHN L 109 E 2ND ST    20,459 JACOBS, JOHN L 109 E 2ND ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252002 JACOBS, JOHN L 109 E 2ND ST    33,381 JACOBS, JOHN L 109 E 2ND ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252009 JJ LAND L C 112 E 3RD ST    221,210 JJ LAND L C 7728 N UNION RD JANESVILLE IA 50647
891412252011 JJ LAND L C 224  MAIN ST    236,380 JJ LAND L C 7728 N UNION RD JANESVILLE IA 50647
891412252012 JJ LAND L C 222  MAIN ST    294,570 JJ LAND L C 7728 N UNION RD JANESVILLE IA 50647
891412252010 K GROUP L C 226  MAIN ST    258,780 K GROUP L C 2204 VALLEY PARK DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412332007 KEL MAR LC 521  CLAY ST    154,310 KEL MAR LC 619 E 19TH ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412408019 KEL MAR LC 600  STATE ST    423,090 KEL MAR LC 619 E 19TH ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412407003 KNUTSON, AARON M 622  MAIN ST    327,450 KNUTSON, AARON M 622 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254007 KOEPPEL, ALLEN D 116 E 4TH ST    105,080 KOEPPEL, ALLEN D 2501 TIMBER DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188002 LAUBER, MERLYN D 301  MAIN ST    278,090 LAUBER, MERLYN D 1815 WINTER RIDGE RD CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412187002 LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK 301  WASHINGTON ST    685,000 LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK PO Box E REINBECK IA 50669
891412252003 LINDERBAUM REAL ESTATE LLC 115 E 2ND ST    328,610 LINDERBAUM REAL ESTATE LLC 2725 GLEN OAKS DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412180001 M AND D REAL ESTATE 2 L L C 122 W 1ST ST    439,530 M AND D REAL ESTATE 2 L L C 3058 HUNTINGTON DR DUBUQUE IA 52001
891412180007 MAIN STREET HOTELS LC 115  MAIN ST    1,141,570 MAIN STREET HOTELS LC 200 STATE ST APT 202-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412180008 MAIN STREET HOTELS LC 119  MAIN ST    339,730 MAIN STREET HOTELS LC 200 STATE ST APT 202-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184006 MAK INC 207  MAIN ST    214,730 MAK INC 20995 487TH LN MC GREGOR MN 55760
891412401010 MARSH, JEFFREY J 412  MAIN ST    185,720 MARSH, JEFFREY J 116 SUMMIT DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412187005 MERSHON RENTALS LLC 320  CLAY ST    161,980 MERSHON RENTALS LLC 3012 ROWND ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412333003 MJ THOMPSON RENTALS LLC 503  WASHINGTON ST    162,670 MJ THOMPSON RENTALS LLC 503 WASHINGTON ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184008 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 213  MAIN ST    311,550 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184009 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 215  MAIN ST    375,540 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184010 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 217  MAIN ST    407,320 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184011 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 219  MAIN ST    188,681 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184011 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 219  MAIN ST    307,849 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184012 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 223  MAIN ST    153,303 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184012 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 223  MAIN ST    250,127 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251005 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 106  MAIN ST    85,305 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251005 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 106  MAIN ST    151,655 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251008 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 112  MAIN ST    85,113 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251008 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 112  MAIN ST    158,067 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251009 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 114  MAIN ST    110,530 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251009 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 114  MAIN ST    205,270 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252019 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 206  MAIN ST    305,770 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252023 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 210  MAIN ST    996,670 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613

39

Item 4.



891412401003 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 115 E 4TH ST    773,490 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412401005 MMC PROPERTIES LLC 109,900 MMC PROPERTIES LLC PO Box 188 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188008 NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 315  MAIN ST    200,391 NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 315 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188008 NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 315  MAIN ST    541,799 NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 315 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188009 NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 317  MAIN ST    102,844 NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 315 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188009 NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 317  MAIN ST    208,806 NAB INVESTMENTS LLC 315 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412405002 NATVIG, CHRISTINA M 506  STATE ST    68,580 NATVIG, CHRISTINA M 5043 NORDIC RIDGE DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412338005 NELSON FUNERAL HOME INC 613  MAIN ST    77,339 RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC PO Box 542 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412338005 NELSON FUNERAL HOME INC 613  MAIN ST    406,031 RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC PO Box 542 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252021 NLN INVESTMENTS LLC 203  STATE ST    387,000 NLN INVESTMENTS LLC 3903 PHEASANT DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412178004 OVERMAN NORTH PARTNERS LC 323 W 2ND ST    147,740 OVERMAN NORTH PARTNERS LC 200 STATE ST APT 202-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412337014 PANTHER BUILDERS LLC 616  CLAY ST    554,380 PANTHER BUILDERS LLC PO Box 128 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412186001 PARK PLACE PROPERTIES 324 W 3RD ST    146,330 PARK PLACE PROPERTIES 324 W 3RD ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254010 PC REAL ESTATE LLC 314  MAIN ST    550,960 PC REAL ESTATE LLC 1501 TECHNOLOGY PW APT 300 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254011 PC REAL ESTATE LLC 312  MAIN ST    331,260 PC REAL ESTATE LLC 1501 TECHNOLOGY PW APT 300 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254012 PC REAL ESTATE LLC 310  MAIN ST    256,400 PC REAL ESTATE LLC 1501 TECHNOLOGY PW APT 300 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329003 PJ 42 LLC 114 W 4TH ST    70,098 PJ 42 LLC 103 E STATE ST APT 300 MASON CITY IA 50401
891412329003 PJ 42 LLC 114 W 4TH ST    163,562 PJ 42 LLC 103 E STATE ST APT 300 MASON CITY IA 50401
891412184016 PRESTIGE WW LLC 205  MAIN ST    492,830 PRESTIGE WW LLC 1304 WASHINGTON ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412334006 RASMUSSON CHEVROLET CO INC 30,550 RASMUSSON CHEVROLET CO INC 9716 UNIVERSITY AVE CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412334007 RASMUSSON CHEVROLET CO INC 36,310 RASMUSSON CHEVROLET CO INC 9716 UNIVERSITY AVE CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412334010 RASMUSSON CHEVROLET CO INC 508  WASHINGTON ST    522,920 RASMUSSON CHEVROLET CO INC 9716 UNIVERSITY AVE CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412338008 RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC 616  WASHINGTON ST    25,219 RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC PO Box 542 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412338008 RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC 616  WASHINGTON ST    36,291 RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC PO Box 542 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412338009 RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC 53,840 RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC PO Box 542 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412401015 RICKARD, CLARK J 415  STATE ST    457,860 RICKARD, CLARK J 903 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412401016 RICKARD, CLARK J 25,730 RICKARD, CLARK J 903 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412179013 RICKARD, KURT D 110  CLAY ST    185,410 RICKARD, KURT D 223 W 2ND ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254001 RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES II LC 302  MAIN ST    204,820 RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES II LC 200 STATE ST APT 202-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254002 RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES II LC 123 E 3RD ST    69,980 RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES II LC 200 STATE ST APT 202-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412253046 RIVER PLACE PROPERTIES LC 166,060 STATE STREET MIXED USE LC 200 STATE ST APT 202-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254009 SC AND B PROPERTIES LLC 318  MAIN ST    110,026 SC AND B PROPERTIES LLC 318 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254009 SC AND B PROPERTIES LLC 318  MAIN ST    233,804 SC AND B PROPERTIES LLC 318 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188010 SCHILLING, TIMOTHY 319  MAIN ST    217,040 SCHILLING, TIMOTHY 319 1/2 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188011 SCHILLING, TIMOTHY 321  MAIN ST    251,080 SCHILLING, TIMOTHY 319 1/2 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188012 SCHILLING, TIMOTHY 323  MAIN ST    311,090 SCHILLING, TIMOTHY 319 1/2 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412180004 SHIMEK, ANDREW 109  MAIN ST    132,790 SHIMEK, ANDREW 827 COMMERCIAL ST WATERLOO IA 50702
891412251004 SHIMEK, ANDREW D 104  MAIN ST    120,309 SHIMEK, ANDREW D 827 COMMERCIAL ST WATERLOO IA 50702
891412251004 SHIMEK, ANDREW D 104  MAIN ST    166,141 SHIMEK, ANDREW D 827 COMMERCIAL ST WATERLOO IA 50702
891412180003 SHIMEK, ROBERTA M 107  MAIN ST    101,892 SHIMEK, ROBERTA M 1504 HAMMOND AVE WATERLOO IA 50702
891412180003 SHIMEK, ROBERTA M 107  MAIN ST    189,228 SHIMEK, ROBERTA M 1504 HAMMOND AVE WATERLOO IA 50702
891412251014 SIMPLE AS 128 LLC 128  MAIN ST    98,940 SIMPLE AS 128 LLC 205 E 18TH ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412251014 SIMPLE AS 128 LLC 128  MAIN ST    281,600 SIMPLE AS 128 LLC 205 E 18TH ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329004 SKYVIEW LC 401  MAIN ST    1,425,000 SKYVIEW LC 808 DEARBORN AVE WATERLOO IA 50703
891412183003 SPINVESTMENTS LLC 201  WASHINGTON ST    652,640 SPINVESTMENTS LLC 201 WASHINGTON ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184001 SPINVESTMENTS LLC 63,370 SPINVESTMENTS LLC 201 WASHINGTON ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412328003 SRE HOLDINGS LLC 403  WASHINGTON ST    217,390 SRE HOLDINGS LLC 2110 FLYNN DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412253099 STATE STREET MIXED USE II LC 100 E 2ND ST    3,416,139 STATE STREET MIXED USE II LC 200 STATE ST 200-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412253099 STATE STREET MIXED USE II LC 100 E 2ND ST    4,010,251 STATE STREET MIXED USE II LC 200 STATE ST 200-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412253047 STATE STREET MIXED USE LC 200  STATE ST    3,053,235 STATE STREET MIXED USE LC 200 STATE ST 200-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412253047 STATE STREET MIXED USE LC 200  STATE ST    3,885,935 STATE STREET MIXED USE LC 200 STATE ST 200-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412253092 STATE STREET RESIDENCES LC 464,350 STATE STREET RESIDENCES LC 200 STATE ST APT 202-Z CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254013 STONE AND TERRACE LLC 97,190 STONE AND TERRACE LLC 2110 FLYNN DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412254014 STONE AND TERRACE LLC 108 E 4TH ST    277,900 STONE AND TERRACE LLC 2110 FLYNN DR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412184007 STRICKLER PROPERTIES LC 209  MAIN ST    389,230 STRICKLER PROPERTIES LC ATTN: DAVID STRICKLER 209 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329005 T AND T RENTALS L C 407  MAIN ST    488,640 T AND T RENTAL L C 409 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329006 T AND T RENTALS L C 409  MAIN ST    382,140 T AND T RENTALS L C 409 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329012 T AND T RENTALS L C 421  MAIN ST    590,640 T AND T RENTALS L C 409 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412329017 T AND T RENTALS L C 419  MAIN ST    1,145,600 T AND T RENTALS L C 409 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252001 THODES INC 202  MAIN ST    26,239 THODES INC 202 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412252001 THODES INC 202  MAIN ST    212,301 THODES INC 202 MAIN ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412188005 TTDAVIS HOLDINGS LLC 307  MAIN ST    305,320 TTDAVIS HOLDINGS LLC 5421 HEDGEWOOD CIR CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412327002 TURCOTTE INSURANCE & INVESTMENTS 12,880 TURCOTTE INSURANCE & INVESTMENTS 302 W 4TH ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613

40

Item 4.



891412327003 TURCOTTE INSURANCE & INVESTMENTS 302 W 4TH ST    133,300 TURCOTTE INSURANCE & INVESTMENTS 302 W 4TH ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412406011 U S CELLULAR OPER CO OF WATERLOO 92,780 DUFF AND PHELPS PO BOX 2549 ADDISON TX 75001
891412187004 VAR MIL INC 323  WASHINGTON ST    272,290 VAR MIL INC 216 W 11TH ST WATERLOO IA 50702
891412180009 VERA JAMES LLC 123  MAIN ST    138,115 VERA JAMES LLC 1819 PINEHURST LN WATERLOO IA 50701
891412180009 VERA JAMES LLC 123  MAIN ST    225,345 VERA JAMES LLC 1819 PINEHURST LN WATERLOO IA 50701
891412253015 VIKING PUMP INC 53,670 VIKING PUMP INC 406 STATE ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412402006 VIKING PUMP INC 406  STATE ST    1,215,600 VIKING PUMP INC 406 STATE ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412408017 VIKING PUMP INC 600 VIKING PUMP INC 406 STATE ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412408020 VIKING PUMP INC 222 E 7TH ST    244,700 VIKING PUMP INC 406 STATE ST CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412406004 WILLHITE,BECKY J TRUST 620 WILLHITE,BECKY J TRUST 2022 W 18TH ST APT 2 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613
891412406009 WILLHITE,BECKY J TRUST 508  BLUFF ST    113,370 WILLHITE,BECKY J TRUST 2022 W 18TH ST APT 2 CEDAR FALLS IA 50613

99 TOTAL PROPERTY OWNERS 80,281,290 TOTAL ASSESSED VALUE
47 SIGNATURES 49,173,570

47.47% REPRESENTS 61.25%
OF TOTAL NUMBER OF OWNERS OF TOTAL ASSESSED VALUE

41

Item 4.



Cedar

River

Snag
Creek

Sna
g

Cre
ek

Lincoln
Elementary

School

Overman
Park

Washington
Park

Tourist Park

Sturgis Park
Gateway Park

E M
ain

 St

Grant St

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Cla
y S

t

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

Sta
te 

St

Blu
ff S

t

Grove St

W 6th St

E 9th St

Riverside Dr

E 7th St

E 3rd St

B S
t

Lo
ga

n S
t

A S
t

Gr
ee

ley
 St

W 4th St

E 5th St

E 10th St

W 8th St

W 9th St

W 2nd St

W 7th St

W 3rd St

W 10th St

E 6th St

E 8th St

W 5th St

E 4th St

E 2nd St

Lincoln St

Main St

Center St

Fra
nk

lin
 S

t

W 1st St

W 6th St

E 1st St C-2

R-2

R-4

R-3

C-1

C-3

R-4R-3
R-2

M-1

C-2C-2

R-3

M-2

A-1

®¬57

Downtown Self Supporting Municipal Improvement District
(SSMID)

Downtown SSMID Boundary
42

Item 4.



43

Item 4.



 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   (319) 273-8600 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING DIVISION 2, DOWNTOWN CEDAR FALLS SELF-

SUPPORTED MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, OF ARTICLE X, 

MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS, OF CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND 

ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISON 2, DOWNTOWN CEDAR 

FALLS SELF-SUPPORTED MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT WITHIN 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA; 

 

 Section 1.  Division 2, Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District, 

of Article X, Municipal Improvement Districts, of Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety and the following new Division 2, 

Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District, is enacted in lieu thereof: 

 

 DIVISION 2. DOWNTOWN CEDAR FALLS SELF-SUPPORTED MUNICIPAL 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

 Section 2-1053.  Created; purpose. 

 

 There is hereby created in the city a self-supported municipal improvement district as defined in 

Chapter 386 of the 2021 Code of Iowa (referred to in this Article as "the Act"), the name of which district 

shall be the "Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District" (sometimes 

referred to in this article as the "district"), the purposes of which district are the undertaking of actions 

and the design and construction of any and all improvements authorized by the Act, and the performance 

of administration, redevelopment and revitalization of the district, as authorized by the Act. 

 

 Section 2-1054.  Boundaries. 

 

 The district shall include all property within the following described boundaries: 

 

That part of Section 12, Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth P.M. in the City of 

Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County Iowa described as beginning on the centerline of Franklin Street 

at its intersection with the southerly bank of the Cedar River; thence southerly along said 

centerline of Franklin Street to the centerline of 6th Street; thence easterly along said centerline of 

6th Street to the centerline of Clay Street; thence southerly along said centerline of Clay Street to 

the centerline of 7th Street; thence easterly along said centerline of 7th Street to the former 

44

Item 4.



 2 

westerly right of way line of the former Chicago and North Western Transportation Company; 

thence northerly along said former westerly right of way line to the centerline of 4th Street; 

thence easterly along said centerline of 4th Street to the westerly bank of the Cedar River; thence 

northerly and westerly along the westerly and southerly bank of the Cedar River to the point of 

beginning. 

 

 Section 2-1055.  Benefit determined. 

 

 It is found and determined that the owners of all of the property within the district have a present 

and potential benefit from the condition, development and maintenance of the district and that all of the 

property within the district is related by virtue of its location within the district. 

 

 Section 2-1056.  Operation fund created; purpose. 

 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Iowa Code 386.8, there is established and created a self-supported 

improvement district operation fund, which shall be known as the "Downtown Cedar Falls Self-Supported 

Municipal Improvement District Operation Fund" (and which is referred to in this Article as the 

"operation fund"), for which operation fund the city may certify taxes (the "operation tax") each year 

commencing with the levy of taxes for collection in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, and continuing 

through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2027, for the purpose of paying such expenses of the district as are 

authorized by the Act, including, but not limited to, the administrative expenses of the district and part or 

all of the maintenance expenses of improvements or self-liquidating improvements, as defined by the Act, 

for a period of five years. 

 

 Section 2-1057.  Operation Tax. 

 

 The operation tax levied in any one year, as provided in section 2-1056, shall be at a rate not to 

exceed five dollars and eighty-three cents ($5.83) per one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) of taxable value of 

the property within the district. 

 

 Section 2-1058.  Copies on file. 

 

 The City Clerk shall cause a copy of the ordinance codified in this article to be filed in the Office 

of the Black Hawk County Recorder and in the Office of the Black Hawk County Treasurer. 

 

 

INTRODUCED:    December 6, 2021    

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

45

Item 4.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: November 3, 2021 

 SUBJECT: The Vault, LLC - Partial Property Tax Exemption 
  6100 Production Drive in Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
 
On December 16, 2019, City Council approved a Development Agreement with The 
Vault, LLC for a new 27,500 square foot storage and office facility located within the 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park.  Work on the $1,250,000 new building at 6100 Production 
Drive began last year and has recently been completed. 
 
As part of the executed Development Agreement approved by City Council in December 
of 2019, the City of Cedar Falls committed to the following actions: 
 

1. Transfer of Lot 1 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I to The Vault, LLC 
(Completed).   

 

2. Adoption of an Ordinance granting a partial exemption from taxation of industrial 
property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, and by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to the 
Development Property. 
 

Item #1 noted above was completed in December 2019.  The remaining item to be 
completed by the City of Cedar Falls as part of the Development Agreement is formal 
adoption of a Partial Property Tax Exemption Ordinance. Since construction of the new 
building has been completed, it is now necessary to move forward with Ordinance 
adoption. 
 
The applicable 5-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption schedule is estimated as follows 
based upon the $1,250,000 valuation of The Vault, LLC building, 10% 
commercial/industrial valuation rollback, and the FY22 tax rate of $33.01/$1,000 
valuation ($37,132 annually): 
 
 

46

Item 5.



 
 
  Exemption % Exempt $ Amount Paid $ Amount 
 
Year 1  75%   $27,849  $9,283 
Year 2  60%   $22,279  $14,853 
Year 3  45%   $16,709  $20,422 
Year 4  30%   $11,139  $25,992 
Year 5  15%   $5,570  $31,562 
     $83,546  $102,112 
 
Staff recommends that in accordance with our executed Development Agreement, City 
Council approve and adopt the following ordinance through the normal three reading 
process: 
 

1. Ordinance establishing a partial property tax exemption on the actual value 
added to real estate by new construction consisting of a 27,500 square foot 
storage and office facility constructed on property owned by The Vault, LLC, 
located at 6100 Production Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

If you have any questions pertaining to this memorandum or project, please feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Rob Schuerman, The Vault, LLC 
 

 
 
 

47

Item 5.



Poplar
Hollow Ln

Capital Way

ArborsDrTimber Cove Dr

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

W Viking Rd

Production Dr

Venture Way

I

Hawkeye Corrugated Box

Ashley Furniture
Distribution Center

Project Location

The Vault, LLC
27,500 sq. ft.
Storage/Office Facility

Bossard

Target
Distribution

Center

48

Item 5.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3000 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OF THE 

ACTUAL VALUE ADDED TO REAL ESTATE BY NEW CONSTRUCTION 
CONSISTING OF A 27,500 SQUARE FOOT INDUSTRIAL USE STORAGE/OFFICE 

FACILITY CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY OWNED BY THE VAULT, LLC, 
LOCATED AT 6100 PRODUCTION DRIVE, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has by ordinance 
provided a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to real 
estate by certain new construction, as authorized in Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, with 
said exemption being provided for in Division 2, Partial Exemptions for Industrial 
Property, of Article II, Tax Exemptions, of Chapter 21, Taxation, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Vault, LLC, will complete and own an approximate 27,500 
square foot industrial use storage/office facility by December 31, 2021, constructed on 
property owned by The Vault, LLC, located at 6100 Production Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and has requested a partial property tax exemption as provided in the Iowa Code and 
the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposal for said 
exemption on the 15th day of November, 2021, and more than thirty (30) days have 
elapsed since the date of public hearing, as required by Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it appropriate pursuant to state law and city 
ordinance to grant said exemption. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by this Ordinance 
hereby grants a partial exemption from property taxation of the actual value added to 
real estate by new construction of an approximate 27,500 square foot industrial use 

49

Item 5.



storage/office facility to be constructed by The Vault, LLC, on property owned by The 
Vault, LLC, located at 6100 Production Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as: 
 

Lot 1, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa. (Contains 2.70 acres more or less), 
 
by December 31, 2021, to the extent and upon the terms and conditions provided for in 
Sections 427B.1 through 427B.7 of the Code of Iowa, and Sections 21-48 through 21-
57 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Responsibility for the 
proper and timely filing of an application for exemption with the Black Hawk County 
Assessor is that of the property owner. The amount of actual value added which is 
eligible to be exempt from taxation shall be as follows: 
 

1. For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

2. For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are 
fully assessed, 60% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

3. For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 45% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

4. For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 30% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

5. For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 
assessed, 15% exemption of the actual value added. 

 
 
INTRODUCED: November 15, 2021 

1ST CONSIDERATION: November 15, 2021 

2ND CONSIDERATION:  

3RD CONSIDERATION:  

ADOPTED:  

 
 

 
                                                                                     ___________________________ 
                                                                                     Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

 
 

50

Item 5.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

 
    I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: November 16, 2021 

 SUBJECT:  Sewer Rate Increases 

 
On September 20th a presentation was made at the Committee of the Whole Meeting 
that outlined the use of ARPA funding, the nutrient reduction treatment facility upgrades, 
and the proposed sewer rate increase study.  Staff outlined the proposed increase of 
7% each year for the next 5 years and the impacts of those increases on the average 
home.  The Council voted unanimously to direct staff to draft an ordinance to establish 
the sewer rate increases as presented. The attached ordinance implements the 
proposed rate increases.  
 
If you have any questions regarding the ordinance, please feel free to contact me.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

51

Item 6.



 
 

 

 

Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, SEWERS AND 
SEWAGE DISPOSAL, OF CHAPTER 24, UTILITIES OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 1, 
GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL, PROVIDING FOR AN 
INCREASE IN SEWER RENTAL FEE RATES, AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Sec. 1. Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, of Chapter 24, Utilities, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new Division 
1, Generally, of Article II, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, providing for an increase in sewer rental fee 
rates, and other miscellaneous changes, is enacted in lieu therefore, as follows: 

 

ARTICLE II. SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL 

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 

Sec. 24-37. Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Contributor means any person responsible for the production of domestic, commercial or industrial 
waste which is directly or indirectly discharged into the city's sanitary sewer system.  

Sewage disposal plant means any and all units of the municipal disposal plant owned and operated 
by the city, including any and all intercepting and outlet sewers delivering or discharging sewage to or 
from the plant.  

Sewer rental means any and all rates, charges, fees or rentals levied against and payable by 
contributors.  

Water reclamation manager means the person delegated with the responsibility of the management 
and operation of the sewage disposal plant subject to such rules and regulations as the council may from 
time to time by resolution prescribe.  

(Ord. No. 2924, § 27-26, 6-4-2018) 

Sec. 24-38. Water reclamation division. 

The water reclamation division of the department of public works is hereby created. The water 
reclamation division shall be under the control of the water reclamation manager, who shall be appointed 
by and be directly responsible to the director of public works.  

(Ord. No. 2924, § 27-27, 6-4-2018; Ord. No. 2943, § 6, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 24-39. Supervision of sewage disposal plant. 

The water reclamation manager shall have complete charge of the operation of the sewage disposal 
plant. The water reclamation manager shall employ and have direct charge of all employees of the 
sewage disposal plant.  

52

Item 6.



 

 

 

 
Page 2 of 5 

(Ord. No. 2924, § 27-28, 6-4-2018) 

Sec. 24-40. Sewage rental fund. 

All moneys received by the controller/city treasurer from any source on account of the sewage 
disposal plant shall be kept in a separate and distinct fund, to be known as the "Sewer Rental Fund," and 
shall be paid out by the controller/city treasurerhim.  

(Ord. No. 2924, § 27-29, 6-4-2018) 

Sec. 24-41. General rental fees. 

(a) Monthly rental fee: determination. 

(1) Subject to the exceptions hereinafter provided, each metered dwelling which uses city water, 
shall pay to the city a monthly sewer rental fee, the same to be determined by the amount of 
city water used, as follows: For up to and including the first 200 cubic feet of water used, 
hereinafter referred to as the "base rate," the monthly sewer rental fee shall be as shown in the 
column of the chart set forth below, entitled, "Base Rate," commencing on the date set forth in 
the corresponding row of the column entitled, "Date of Rate Change."  

(2) For water uses over 200 cubic feet, hereinafter referred to as the "incremental rate," the 
monthly sewer rental fee shall be as shown in the column of the chart set forth below, entitled, 
"Incremental Rate," commencing on the date set forth in the corresponding row of the column 
entitled, "Date of Rate Change."  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  
SEWER RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE  
 

Date of  
Rate  

Change  

Base Rate  Incremental  
Rate  

July 1, 2018  $18.52 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.32 per 100 cubic feet of water used 
July 1, 2019  $19.45 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.49 per 100 cubic feet of water used 
July 1, 2020  $20.42 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.66 per 100 cubic feet of water used 
July 1, 2021  $21.44 per 200 cubic feet of water used $3.84 per 100 cubic feet of water used 
July 1, 2022 $22.94 per 200 cubic feet of water used $4.11 per 100 cubic feet of water used
July 1, 2023 $24.55 per 200 cubic feet of water used $4.40 per 100 cubic feet of water used
July 1, 2024 $26.26 per 200 cubic feet of water used $4.70 per 100 cubic feet of water used
July 1, 2025 $28.10 per 200 cubic feet of water used $5.03 per 100 cubic feet of water used
July 1, 2026 $30.07 per 200 cubic feet of water used $5.39 per 100 cubic feet of water used

 

(b) Maximum fees for residential use. Residential sewer rental fees during the months of May through 
November shall not exceed the average amount charged for usage during the previous January 
through March period.  

(c) Reduction for low-income households. Each payer of the monthly sewer rental fee who meets the 
low-income requirement, as set by the U.S. Government, contained in the Section 8 Housing 
Assistance Program of the city, may apply annually to the director of public works for, and be 
granted, a $43.00 per month reduction in the monthly sewer rental fee for the first 200 cubic feet of 
water used.  

53

Item 6.



 

 

 

   

 
Page 3 of 5 

(d) Users without city water service. Each user of city sanitary sewer which does not have water 
provided and metered by the city utilities shall be charged a monthly sewer rental fee which is two 
times the base rate which is provided for in subsection (a) of this section. That user may, however, 
through certified metering of well water for residential use or provision of receipts from a recognized 
adjoining public water jurisdiction, provide to the director of community development documentation 
of actual water usage. If water usage can be verified, that user will be charged the monthly sewer 
rental fee as provided in subsections (a) and (b) of this section.  

(e) Mobile home parks. Mobile home parks utilizing a central water metering system shall be charged 
the same monthly sewer rental fees for each dwelling unit connected to the public sewage disposal 
system as are provided for in subsection (a) of this section.  

(f) Determination of multiple dwelling rental fees. Multiple dwellings using a single water meter shall 
pay at the same rates listed in subsection (a) of this section, with the usage for each individual 
dwelling unit determined by dividing the amount of water metered by the number of dwelling units, 
regardless of occupancy of said units. For example, a structure with twelve (12) individual dwelling 
units on one meter would be billed twelve (12) base rates that would include up to 24 CCF of 
water (allocating 2 CCF per dwelling unit). Any usage over 24 CCF of water would be divided by 
the number of dwelling units (12, in this case) and billed at the same incremental rates listed in 
subsection (a) of this section. 

 

(g) Determination of commercial, industrial rental fees. Commercial and industrial sewer rental fees 
shall be based on actual water usage, metered or unmetered, including water added to the sewage 
disposal system by the commercial or industrial users, at the same rates described in subsection (a) 
of this section. However, the director of community development may establish reduced sewer rental 
fees, to be reviewed on an annual basis, for commercial and industrial users which have unique 
discharges requiring very little actual treatment, such as the discharge of cooling water or boiler 
blowdown.  

(h) Residential monthly fee for certain commercial, industrial users. Commercial and industrial users 
that use higher volumes of water in the months May through November each year exclusively for 
purposes such as watering lawns, and can demonstrate to the director of public works that said 
water does not enter the sanitary sewer system may have their sewer bills adjusted such that sewer 
user fees billed for usage May through November each year will not exceed the average bills for 
usage in the months December through April each year.  

(i) Industrial surcharge. An industrial user, as defined in article II, division 2 of this chapter, shall be 
surcharged at the rate of $0.10 for each pound of both biochemical oxygen demand and total 
suspended solids, as defined in article II, division 2 of this chapter, for all discharges to the sanitary 
sewer system which exceed a concentration of 300 milligrams per liter.  

(j) Inclusion of state sales tax. State sales tax is computed and included in the rates included in this 
section.  

(k) Billing adjustments. Billing adjustments may be made for any residential, commercial or industrial 
users that can demonstrate to the director of public works that water used does not enter the 
sanitary sewer system.  

(l) Payment. All fees required to be paid by this section shall be paid at the same time the payment for 
city water service is made or on the first day of the month for those users of sewer service who do 
not use city water service. All required payments are to be made at the office of the municipal 
utilities.  

(m) Sanitary sewer surcharge for discharge of stormwater to city sanitary sewer system. The owner of 
any property in the city who fails to comply with the provisions of section 7-201 or 7-202, relating to 
discharge of stormwater or groundwater into the city sanitary sewer system, shall be assessed a 

54

Item 6.



 

 

 

   

 
Page 4 of 5 

surcharge fee, to be added to the property owner's city sewer bill, in the amount of $100.00 per 
month, as provided in section 7-203.  

(Ord. No. 2924, § 27-30, 6-4-2018; Ord. No. 2943, § 6, 6-3-2019) 

Sec. 24-42. Failure to pay rental fees; authority to terminate service. 

(a) Where a consumer is a contributor of city water, or is a user of city sanitary sewer service who does 
not use city water service, the sewer rentals, rates or charges shall be subject to the following rules 
of delinquency and suspension of service:  

(1) Whenever any of the rules and regulations of this article are violated, the sewer service shall 
be cut off and shall not be turned on again except by order of the council and water 
reclamation manager and upon payment of the expense of shutting it off and turning it on, and 
on such other terms as the council may determine upon and a satisfactory understanding with 
the account holder that no further complaint shall arise. Such sewer service shall not be 
discontinued unless prior written notice is sent to the account holder by ordinary mail, informing 
the account holder of the nature of the delinquency and affording the account holder the 
opportunity for a hearing prior to discontinuance of service. If the account holder is a tenant, 
and if the owner or landlord of the property has made a written request for notice, the notice 
shall also be given to the owner or landlord.  

(2) In case of violation of this article, the council shall have the right to declare any payment made 
for the sewer service by the person committing such violation to be forfeited, and the service 
shall thereupon be forfeited.  

(b) Liens.  

(1) In addition to the rules of delinquency and suspension of service mentioned in subsection (a) 
of this section, the city shall have a lien upon the property served by such sanitary utility for all 
delinquent rate or rental payments  

(2) A lien shall not be placed upon a mobile home, modular home, or manufactured home served 
by any of the services described in this article if the mobile home, modular home, or 
manufactured home is owned by a tenant of and is located in a mobile home park or 
manufactured home community and the mobile home park or manufactured home community 
owner or manager is the account holder, unless the lease agreement specifies that the tenant 
is responsible for payment of a portion of the rates or charges billed to the account holder.  

(3) Notwithstanding subsection (b)(2) of this section, except for mobile home parks or 
manufactured home communities where the mobile home park or manufactured home 
community owner or manager is responsible for paying the rates or charges for services 
described in this article, a lien shall not be filed against the land if the premises receiving any of 
the services described in this article are located on leased land. If the premises are located on 
leased land, a lien may be filed against the premises only. For the purposes of this article, the 
term "premises" includes a mobile home, modular home, or manufactured home as defined in 
Iowa Code § 435.1.  

(4) Prior to written notice of intent to certify, a lien shall be given to the account holder of the 
delinquent account at least 30 days prior to certification. If the account holder is a tenant, and if 
the owner or landlord of the property has made a written request for notice, the notice shall 
also be given to the owner or landlord. The notice shall be sent to the appropriate persons by 
ordinary mail not less than 30 days prior to the certification of the lien to the county treasurer. 
After compliance with the foregoing provisions, the city clerk shall certify for taxation purposes 
and the establishing of the property lien to the county treasurer all delinquent rent, rate or 
rental payments, together with an administrative expense of $5.00. The lien shall not be 
certified to the county treasurer for a delinquent charge of less than $5.00. For the purpose of 
the certification and for no other purpose whatsoever, rent, rate or rental payments shall be 

55

Item 6.



 

 

 

      

 
Page 5 of 5 

designated as delinquent when the payments are shown and appear on the books carrying 
rent, rate or rental payments to have been unpaid for a period of six months following their due 
date.  

(c) Where the contributor is an operator of a private water supply, failure to pay rentals shall be subject 
to similar rules as to delinquency and suspension of service, property lien, certification of 
delinquency and definition of delinquency as set out in this section.  

(Ord. No. 2924, § 27-31, 6-4-2018) 

Secs. 24-43—24-72. Reserved. 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________ 

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION: __________________________ 

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION: _________________________ 

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION: _________________________ 

ADOPTED: __________________________________________ 

 

 

         _________________________ 

         Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 
 

 

56

Item 6.



ORDINANCE NO. 3001 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, SEWERS 
AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL, OF CHAPTER 24, UTILITIES OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA AND ENACTING IN LIEU 
THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, SEWERS AND 
SEWAGE DISPOSAL, PROVIDING FOR AN INCREASE IN SEWER RENTAL FEE 
RATES, AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS CHANGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

Section 1. Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, of Chapter 24, 
Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in its 
entirety, and a new Division 1, Generally, of Article II, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, providing 
for an increase in sewer rental fee rates, and other miscellaneous changes, is enacted in lieu 
therefore, as follows: 

 

ARTICLE II. SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL 

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 

Sec. 24-37. Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Contributor means any person responsible for the production of domestic, commercial or 
industrial waste which is directly or indirectly discharged into the city's sanitary sewer system.  

Sewage disposal plant means any and all units of the municipal disposal plant owned and 
operated by the city, including any and all intercepting and outlet sewers delivering or 
discharging sewage to or from the plant.  

Sewer rental means any and all rates, charges, fees or rentals levied against and payable 
by contributors.  

Water reclamation manager means the person delegated with the responsibility of the 
management and operation of the sewage disposal plant subject to such rules and regulations 
as the council may from time to time by resolution prescribe.  

Sec. 24-38. Water reclamation division. 

The water reclamation division of the department of public works is hereby created. The 
water reclamation division shall be under the control of the water reclamation manager, who 
shall be appointed by and be directly responsible to the director of public works.  

Sec. 24-39. Supervision of sewage disposal plant. 

The water reclamation manager shall have complete charge of the operation of the sewage 
disposal plant. The water reclamation manager shall employ and have direct charge of all 
employees of the sewage disposal plant.  

57

Item 6.



 

 

Sec. 24-40. Sewage rental fund. 

All moneys received by the controller/city treasurer from any source on account of the 
sewage disposal plant shall be kept in a separate and distinct fund, to be known as the "Sewer 
Rental Fund," and shall be paid out by the controller/city treasurer.  

Sec. 24-41. General rental fees. 

(a) Monthly rental fee: determination. 

(1) Subject to the exceptions hereinafter provided, each metered dwelling which uses city 
water, shall pay to the city a monthly sewer rental fee, the same to be determined by 
the amount of city water used, as follows: For up to and including the first 200 cubic 
feet of water used, hereinafter referred to as the "base rate," the monthly sewer rental 
fee shall be as shown in the column of the chart set forth below, entitled, "Base Rate," 
commencing on the date set forth in the corresponding row of the column entitled, 
"Date of Rate Change."  

(2) For water uses over 200 cubic feet, hereinafter referred to as the "incremental rate," 
the monthly sewer rental fee shall be as shown in the column of the chart set forth 
below, entitled, "Incremental Rate," commencing on the date set forth in the 
corresponding row of the column entitled, "Date of Rate Change."  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  
SEWER RENTAL FEE SCHEDULE  
 

Date of  
Rate  

Change  

Base Rate  Incremental  
Rate  

July 1, 2021  $21.44 per 200 cubic feet of water used  $3.84 per 100 cubic feet of water used  

July 1, 2022 $22.94 per 200 cubic feet of water used $4.11 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

July 1, 2023 $24.55 per 200 cubic feet of water used $4.40 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

July 1, 2024 $26.26 per 200 cubic feet of water used $4.70 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

July 1, 2025 $28.10 per 200 cubic feet of water used $5.03 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

July 1, 2026 $30.07 per 200 cubic feet of water used $5.39 per 100 cubic feet of water used 

 

(b) Maximum fees for residential use. Residential sewer rental fees during the months of May 
through November shall not exceed the average amount charged for usage during the 
previous January through March period.  

(c) Reduction for low-income households. Each payer of the monthly sewer rental fee who 
meets the low-income requirement, as set by the U.S. Government, contained in the 
Section 8 Housing Assistance Program of the city, may apply annually to the director of 
public works for, and be granted, a $4.00 per month reduction in the monthly sewer rental 
fee for the first 200 cubic feet of water used.  

(d) Users without city water service. Each user of city sanitary sewer which does not have 
water provided and metered by the city utilities shall be charged a monthly sewer rental fee 
which is two times the base rate which is provided for in subsection (a) of this section. That 
user may, however, through certified metering of well water for residential use or provision 
of receipts from a recognized adjoining public water jurisdiction, provide to the director of 
community development documentation of actual water usage. If water usage can be 

58

Item 6.



 

 

verified, that user will be charged the monthly sewer rental fee as provided in subsections 
(a) and (b) of this section.  

(e) Mobile home parks. Mobile home parks utilizing a central water metering system shall be 
charged the same monthly sewer rental fees for each dwelling unit connected to the public 
sewage disposal system as are provided for in subsection (a) of this section.  

(f) Determination of multiple dwelling rental fees. Multiple dwellings using a single water meter 
shall pay at the same rates listed in subsection (a) of this section, with the usage for each 
individual dwelling unit determined by dividing the amount of water metered by the number 
of dwelling units, regardless of occupancy of said units. For example, a structure with 
twelve (12) individual dwelling units on one meter would be billed twelve (12) base rates 
that would include up to 24 CCF of water (allocating 2 CCF per dwelling unit). Any usage 
over 24 CCF of water would be divided by the number of dwelling units (12, in this case) 
and billed at the same incremental rates listed in subsection (a) of this section. 

(g) Determination of commercial, industrial rental fees. Commercial and industrial sewer rental 
fees shall be based on actual water usage, metered or unmetered, including water added 
to the sewage disposal system by the commercial or industrial users, at the same rates 
described in subsection (a) of this section. However, the director of community 
development may establish reduced sewer rental fees, to be reviewed on an annual basis, 
for commercial and industrial users which have unique discharges requiring very little 
actual treatment, such as the discharge of cooling water or boiler blowdown.  

(h) Residential monthly fee for certain commercial, industrial users. Commercial and industrial 
users that use higher volumes of water in the months May through November each year 
exclusively for purposes such as watering lawns, and can demonstrate to the director of 
public works that said water does not enter the sanitary sewer system may have their 
sewer bills adjusted such that sewer user fees billed for usage May through November 
each year will not exceed the average bills for usage in the months December through April 
each year.  

(i) Industrial surcharge. An industrial user, as defined in article II, division 2 of this chapter, 
shall be surcharged at the rate of $0.10 for each pound of both biochemical oxygen 
demand and total suspended solids, as defined in article II, division 2 of this chapter, for all 
discharges to the sanitary sewer system which exceed a concentration of 300 milligrams 
per liter.  

(j) Inclusion of state sales tax. State sales tax is computed and included in the rates included 
in this section.  

(k) Billing adjustments. Billing adjustments may be made for any residential, commercial or 
industrial users that can demonstrate to the director of public works that water used does 
not enter the sanitary sewer system.  

(l) Payment. All fees required to be paid by this section shall be paid at the same time the 
payment for city water service is made or on the first day of the month for those users of 
sewer service who do not use city water service. All required payments are to be made at 
the office of the municipal utilities.  

(m) Sanitary sewer surcharge for discharge of stormwater to city sanitary sewer system. The 
owner of any property in the city who fails to comply with the provisions of section 7-201 or 
7-202, relating to discharge of stormwater or groundwater into the city sanitary sewer 
system, shall be assessed a surcharge fee, to be added to the property owner's city sewer 
bill, in the amount of $100.00 per month, as provided in section 7-203.  

59

Item 6.



 

 

Sec. 24-42. Failure to pay rental fees; authority to terminate service. 

(a) Where a consumer is a contributor of city water, or is a user of city sanitary sewer service 
who does not use city water service, the sewer rentals, rates or charges shall be subject to 
the following rules of delinquency and suspension of service:  

(1) Whenever any of the rules and regulations of this article are violated, the sewer 
service shall be cut off and shall not be turned on again except by order of the council 
and water reclamation manager and upon payment of the expense of shutting it off 
and turning it on, and on such other terms as the council may determine upon and a 
satisfactory understanding with the account holder that no further complaint shall 
arise. Such sewer service shall not be discontinued unless prior written notice is sent 
to the account holder by ordinary mail, informing the account holder of the nature of 
the delinquency and affording the account holder the opportunity for a hearing prior to 
discontinuance of service. If the account holder is a tenant, and if the owner or 
landlord of the property has made a written request for notice, the notice shall also be 
given to the owner or landlord.  

(2) In case of violation of this article, the council shall have the right to declare any 
payment made for the sewer service by the person committing such violation to be 
forfeited, and the service shall thereupon be forfeited.  

(b) Liens.  

(1) In addition to the rules of delinquency and suspension of service mentioned in 
subsection (a) of this section, the city shall have a lien upon the property served by 
such sanitary utility for all delinquent rate or rental payments  

(2) A lien shall not be placed upon a mobile home, modular home, or manufactured home 
served by any of the services described in this article if the mobile home, modular 
home, or manufactured home is owned by a tenant of and is located in a mobile home 
park or manufactured home community and the mobile home park or manufactured 
home community owner or manager is the account holder, unless the lease 
agreement specifies that the tenant is responsible for payment of a portion of the rates 
or charges billed to the account holder.  

(3) Notwithstanding subsection (b)(2) of this section, except for mobile home parks or 
manufactured home communities where the mobile home park or manufactured home 
community owner or manager is responsible for paying the rates or charges for 
services described in this article, a lien shall not be filed against the land if the 
premises receiving any of the services described in this article are located on leased 
land. If the premises are located on leased land, a lien may be filed against the 
premises only. For the purposes of this article, the term "premises" includes a mobile 
home, modular home, or manufactured home as defined in Iowa Code § 435.1.  

(4) Prior to written notice of intent to certify, a lien shall be given to the account holder of 
the delinquent account at least 30 days prior to certification. If the account holder is a 
tenant, and if the owner or landlord of the property has made a written request for 
notice, the notice shall also be given to the owner or landlord. The notice shall be sent 
to the appropriate persons by ordinary mail not less than 30 days prior to the 
certification of the lien to the county treasurer. After compliance with the foregoing 
provisions, the city clerk shall certify for taxation purposes and the establishing of the 
property lien to the county treasurer all delinquent rent, rate or rental payments, 
together with an administrative expense of $5.00. The lien shall not be certified to the 
county treasurer for a delinquent charge of less than $5.00. For the purpose of the 

60

Item 6.



 

 

certification and for no other purpose whatsoever, rent, rate or rental payments shall 
be designated as delinquent when the payments are shown and appear on the books 
carrying rent, rate or rental payments to have been unpaid for a period of six months 
following their due date.  

(c) Where the contributor is an operator of a private water supply, failure to pay rentals shall 
be subject to similar rules as to delinquency and suspension of service, property lien, 
certification of delinquency and definition of delinquency as set out in this section.  

Secs. 24-43—24-72. Reserved. 

 

INTRODUCED:     November 15, 2021   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   November 15, 2021   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 
                                                                                             ___________________________ 
                                                                                              Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

 

 

61

Item 6.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: November 18, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Appointment to the Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-364 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate Mr. Russell Curtis for appointment to the Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund Board of 

Trustees to fill a vacancy of a six-year term ending on 12/31/2026.  

 

2. Mr. Curtis brings a lifetime of public service to the Health Trust Fund Board, including 

significant service in similar medical foundations. His application shows him to be 

exceptionally well qualified for this important board role. 

 

3. I also wish to thank Council Member Kelly Dunn, Board Chair Shirley Merner, Past Chair 

Roger White, and Staff Liaison Jennifer Rodenbeck for their excellent service as the 

Selection Committee for this board appointment.  

 

4. Please contact me if you have any questions about the above nomination. 

 

Encl: (1) Mr. Russell Curtis - General Application and Candidate Questionnaire 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

62

Item 7.



63

Item 7.



64

Item 7.



Committee of the Whole 
Cedar Falls Council Chambers 

November 15, 2021 

 
The Committee of the Whole met at City Hall at 5:45 p.m. on November 15, 2021, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert Green and Councilmembers Frank 
Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller and Dave Sires.  
Staff members from all City Departments and members of the community attended in person 
and teleconferenced in. 
 
Mayor Green called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, Main 
Street Reconstruction and Right of Way, and introduced Chase Schrage, Director of Public 
Works.  Mr. Schrage gave a brief overview of the 2017 Main Street traffic study and then 
introduced Aaron Moniza, Foth Senior Client Manger.  Mr. Moniza gave an overview of design 
alternatives for 6th Street that included a traffic signal versus a roundabout and the pros and 
cons of each alternative, level of safety, and a life cycle cost comparison.  Mr. Moniza asked for 
questions from Council.  Mayor Green asked the difference between a traditional roundabout 
and a compact one; Mr. Moniza stated a compact roundabout is 90’ diameter and a traditional 
one is 100’ in diameter and the 6th Street intersection is an ideal location for a compact one due 
to minimal speeds.  Councilmember deBuhr inquired about the accidents at 6th and Main Street; 
Mr. Moniza stated within the Main Street corridor the 6th and Main intersection has the largest 
number of injury accidents and has had an average of 1 accident per year for the last decade.    
Councilmembers voiced concerns about the loss of 10-13 parking stalls at the Library.  
Councilmember Miller asked the value of the parking stalls; Mr. Moniza stated $2,000 per 
parking stall.  Councilmember Sires wants to keep the parking stalls at the Library.  
Councilmember deBuhr asked about the impact to the gas station at 6th and Main; Mr. Moniza 
stated it would be a small impact and alternative solutions for customers would be given, similar 
to University Avenue construction.  Councilmember Miller asked about cost of parking stalls 
within a parking ramp; Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations, 
stated quotes for parking ramp stalls are estimated to be between $40,000-$50,000 per stall.  
Councilmember Kruse suggested angled or parallel parking options at the Library.  Mr. Moniza 
reviewed the potential right-of-way impacts at 6th & Main Street, 12th Street, 18th Street, 20th & 
21st Streets and Seerley Boulevard.  Mr. Moniza gave an overview of the schedule:  design 
Contract – July 2021, design work has begun; December 6, 2021 – set public hearing to 
undertake a public improvement project and to authorize acquisition of private property; 
December 20, 2021 – public hearing on right-of-way; bid letting – December 2022; construction 
begins – Spring 2023.  Mr. Schrage asked for questions from Council and stated that staff is 
looking for direction from Council; motion to proceed into final design for a roundabout at 6th 
Street (consultant recommendation).  Mr. Schrage stated that right-of-way acquisitions can take 
up to 12 months.  Councilmember Miller asked about shared parking at First National Bank; Mr. 
Schrage stated we can look at options like downsizing the medians to have additional angled 
parking and potential reduce the loss of parking stalls to 5 or 6, but will not know until the final 
design process is started.  Councilmember Miller motioned to move forward with final design; 
Councilmember Darrah seconded.  Motion carried.  Councilmembers Dunn, Sires and Harding 
expressed concerns with loss of Library parking; Mr. Moniza stated they will try to minimize loss 
of parking in final design stages.  Mr. Schrage stated that more communities are moving 
towards the compact roundabouts.  Councilmember deBuhr asked about truck traffic being 
restricted; Mr. Moniza stated the center of the roundabout will be raised and conducive for truck 
traffic, no green space will be in the middle of the roundabout.   
 
Mayor Green introduced the second item of the agenda, FY2021 Audit Report, and introduced 
Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer.  Ms. Roeding thanked the Finance Department and 
stated it took 780 staff hours to complete this process.  Ms. Roeding reviewed the FY2021 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and stated the City is required to publish a complete 
set of audited financial statements presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Ms. Roeding stated the auditors reviewed and tested various things and gave an 

65

Item 8.



unmodified or clean opinion; the unmodified opinion is the highest audit assurance that you can 
receive on your financial statements.  She explained the Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis section provides a narrative from the management prospective and analytical overview 
of the City’s financial statements.  Ms. Roeding reviewed the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards, stating the City had 11 federally funded grants totaling about $3 million in 
expenditures.  Ms. Roeding stated that for FY2020 the City of Cedar Falls received a Certificate 
of Achievement of Excellence for financial reporting from the Governmental Finance Officers 
Association.  Ms. Roeding explained the FY2021 report will be filed with the State Auditor’s 
office as required by Iowa Code and it will be posted on the City’s website.  Councilmember 
deBuhr stated the City has received the Certificate of Achievement of Excellence for the last 31 
consecutive years; outstanding work and we thank you.   
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:46 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

66

Item 8.



67

Item 9.



68

Item 9.



69

Item 9.



70

Item 9.



71

Item 9.



72

Item 9.



73

Item 9.



74

Item 9.



75

Item 9.



76

Item 9.



77

Item 9.



78

Item 9.



79

Item 9.



80

Item 9.



81

Item 9.



82

Item 9.



83

Item 9.



84

Item 9.



85

Item 9.



86

Item 9.



87

Item 9.



88

Item 9.



89

Item 9.



90

Item 9.



91

Item 9.



92

Item 9.



93

Item 9.



94

Item 9.



95

Item 9.



96

Item 9.



97

Item 9.



98

Item 9.



99

Item 9.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Police Chief 

Date:  November 29, 2021 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Cedar Falls Woman's Club, 304 Clay Street, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 

b) Moonshine Mob Bar, 419 Main Street, Class C liquor – renewal. 

c)  Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

d)  The Brown Bottle, 1111 Center Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
 
e)  Cedar Falls Family Restaurant, 2627 Center Street, Class B beer - new. 

100

Item 10.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor  
 

  

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: November 30, 2021 

 SUBJECT: “2022 Most Endangered Properties” Application for UNI Honors Cottage 

 REF:  (a) Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Sec. 2-344 (f)(6) 

  (b) https://www.preservationiowa.org/programs/iowas-most-endangered-properties 

1. The Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission has recently drafted an application for 

the Honors Cottage at the University of Northern Iowa to be included on Preservation 

Iowa’s 2022 list of Most Endangered Properties. 

2. The Historic Preservation Commission’s authority includes, in reference (a), cooperating 

with “the federal, state and local governments in the pursuance of the objectives of 

historic preservation”.  I believe that the commission’s advocacy for preserving this 

state-owned property in Cedar Falls is in keeping with the commission’s authority, and I 

therefore support the application’s submission. 

3. As stated in reference (b), “Iowa’s Most Endangered Properties began in 1995 to show 

Iowans the special buildings and historic sites that are slowly and gradually slipping 

away from us. The program provides an excellent resource for media coverage and 

introduces endangered property owners to preservation advocates and resources that can 

help preserve their historic property.” 

4. Designation as a Most Endangered Property would not commit the Board of Regents or 

University of Northern Iowa to any course of action, but instead would express the 

community’s desire to preserve this historical building as part of Cedar Falls’ heritage.  

5. I have notified the University of Northern Iowa of the Cedar Falls Historic Preservation 

Commission’s efforts, and will advise the City Council when I receive a response.  UNI 

approval is not required for the submission of this application, for which the deadline is 

December 7, 2021.  

6. If the City Council approves, the HPC will submit the application on December 7, 2021. 

     XC: City Administrator 

   Encl: (1) Endangered Properties Application dated November 30, 2021 and three photographs 

 

### 
101

Item 11.



Page 1 of 

PRESERVATION IOWA 
20  MOST ENDANGERED PROPERTIES

 

Completed Nomination Packets must be received by day, December , 20

*Please carefully review the  before completing this form.*

PART I 

1. General Information

Name of Building, Site, or Structure: 

:

State: 

Zip: 

State Representative: 

2. Nominator Information

Mrs./Ms./Mr./Dr. 

Name: 

Institution/Organization: 

 

Nominator Title: 
Email Address: 

Phone Number: Fax Number: 

Mailing Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

102

Item 11.



Page 2 of 

3. Owner Information

The owner's approval is desirable, but not required to nominate a site. The owner should be listed 
regardless of whether he/she endorses the application. 

20  Most Endangered
Properties?       YES        NO 

If yes, does the owner of the property endorse the nomination to 20  Most
Endangered Properties?        YES       NO 

Name: 

Institution/Organization: 

 

Owner Title: 

Email Address: 

Phone Number: 

Fax Number: 

Mailing Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

4. Media Contact Person

The contact person for the media should be knowledgeable about the site and available to answer 
questions. If the site is included on the list of Preserva 20  Most Endangered Properties,
Preservation Iowa may give this name to members of the press. Note: The contact person may be the 
same as the nominator. You do not need to re-enter the information if the nominator and media contact 
person are the same. 

Is the Nominator Contact also the Media Contact?       YES        NO 

If No, please fill out the contact information below: 

Name: 

Institution/Organization: 

 

Title: 

Email Address: 

Phone Number: 

Fax Number: 

Mailing Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

103

Item 11.



Page 3 of 

5. Stakeholder Information

a. What individuals or organizations can be counted on to support this listing?

b. What individuals or organizations may oppose this listing?

PART II

1. Additional Site Information

a. Date(s) of Construction:

b. Type of Building/Site/Structure (Choose the one that best applies):

Archaeological Site Engineering Work        Religious Site

Dwelling Public Art/Space  Cultural Landscape     

Military/Presidential   Commercial Building  Industrial Site 

 Architecture Garden/Park Townscape 

Civic Building Other: 

c. National, State and/or Local Landmark Designations/Significance (Choose all that apply):

National Historic Landmark        State/Local Designation 

National Register National Register Eligible 

Other: 

104

Item 11.



Page 4 of 

d. Who is responsible for the site financially?

e. Who has legal control and/or authority to approve projects related to the site?

f. YES  NO

If yes, in what year(s)?

2. Advocacy & Engagement

Describe any previous measures that government officials, community activists, and other groups have 
taken to protect the site. Note to what degree these measures have or have not been successful. 

Identify key decision-makers in determining the future of the site and provide any information related to 
timing in the decision process. 

3. What are the barriers to preserving your building? (Choose all that apply)

Lack of private funds Lack of grant assistance  Lack of construction estimates         

Lack of preservation plan    Lack of treatment scope to meet Secretary of Interior Standards       

Lack of technical assistance  Lack of adaptive reuse ideas  

Other (Please describe) 

4.

105

Item 11.



Page 5 of 

5. Are you familiar with the preservation tax credit process? YES NO   

Are you willing to apply for them? YES        NO

describe the building, site, or structure, clearly
addressing each of the following

The (historic) significance of the building, site, or structure:
Why is your site historic and significant?  Describe the site's significance including its historic,
cultural, artistic, social, and/or architectural value. Specify if the property is unique, but
representative of many similar types of sites. If applicable, to what other sites could it be easily
compared?

Present condition

The urgency & nature of the threat:
Describe the major threats to the site. Threats can be divided into two categories: Natural and
Human. Natural threats may include flood, fire, or erosion. Human threats include sprawl,
inadequate maintenance, neglect, and lack of financial resources, lack of knowledge/familiarity on
preservation grants and procedures. Your site may have other threats beyond those listed here
which can also be described in your response. Describe the current physical condition of the
property, threats to the property, and the rate of deterioration.

The possible solutions that would remove threats to the place.

Any other supporting information

Hand written ominations/information will be returned and you will be asked to re-submit them in
typed format. This will aid in quickly publishing press releases. 

PART IV 

Disclaimer 
The undersigned herby gives Preservation Iowa a non-exclusive license to use, and allow others to use, in whole 
or in part, in whatever manner Preservation Iowa may desire, including (but not limited to) use for publicity, audio 
visual presentation, and/or promotion, all photographs, videos, and other materials submitted to Preservation 

. Preservation Iowa is hereby 
given permission to make any editorial changes and/or additions to the materials referred to herein as it may 
deem necessary or desirable for production purposes. The undersigned herby agrees that it has the authority to 
grant these rights, that it has obtained any such rights necessary from third parties, including, without limitation, 
models, creators, photographers, writers, and producers, and that it will hold harmless and indemnify Preservation 
Iowa from and against any claim brought against Preservation Iowa from third parties that may arise out of 
violation of this paragraph. 

Type your name here to approve the disclaimer:  

106

Item 11.



Page 6 of 

Photography Release
All images submitted with this nomination must be free of copyright restrictions. Securing reproduction rights and 
permissions is the responsibility of the nominator. Preservation Iowa reserves the right to reproduce and make 
available to the press all images submitted. Images will not be used for commercial purposes. 

This nomination requires at least two (2) and no more than four (4) high resolution (minimum 300 dpi, 2MB in 
size) images with captions and credits where necessary. Please review the Nomination Guidelines for more 
information about submitting images. 

I hereby give my permission for the submitted images to be reproduced to publicize Most 
Endangered Properties Program. A typed name will serve as a signature.  If photographer(s) is unknown or 
cannot be contacted, nominator takes full responsibility. If more than one photographer's work is submitted, 
please label each image individually.  

Preservation Iowa expects the owner to be notified of the nomination.  The typed name of the nominator 
indicates that such notification has been given. 

Nominator's Name:     Date: 

Photographer 1 Name:  Date: 

Photographer 2 Name:  Date: 

Photographer 3 Name:  Date: 

Deadline & Submitting 
Complete nomination packages must be received by December 
Please e-mail Nomination Forms, digital images, letters of support, footage, etc. to lajjchs@juno.com.  

-mail subject line. 

Questions may be directed to Leigh Ann Randak at lajjchs@juno.com or 319-337-9581. 

107

Item 11.



Page 7 of 8 

Part II, Question 6 Continuation Sheets 

108

Item 11.



Page  of 8

Part II, Question 6 Continuation Sheets 

109

Item 11.



110

Item 11.



111

Item 11.



112

Item 11.



   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director 

Date:  November 29, 2021  

Re:  Job Classifications 

Attached you will find revised job classifications for Public Safety Supervisor Captain and 
Public Safety Supervisor Lieutenant for your consideration. As you recall, the IAFF 1366 vs 
City of Cedar Falls court case concluded this summer after 6 days of trial. The only relief 
granted by the court is that the City was ordered to revise these two job classifications within 
45 days of the decision (October 22, 2021) which is December 6, 2021. All other requests 
by the IAFF 1366 were denied by the judge’s ruling. The trial attorney for the City, Andrew 
Tice, has reviewed the court’s decision and job classes and states that the revisions comply 
with the court order. City Attorney Kevin Rogers also agrees that revised job classes comply 
with the court order. A letter from Attorney Andrew Tice also attached.  

113

Item 12.



Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 
100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 
Andrew T. Tice 
515.246.0317 
atice@ahlerslaw.com 

 

 
WISHARD & BAILY - 1888; GUERNSEY & BAILY - 1893; BAILY & STIPP - 1901; STIPP, PERRY, BANNISTER & STARZINGER - 1914; BANNISTER, CARPENTER, 

 AHLERS & COONEY - 1950; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, ALLBEE, HAYNIE & SMITH - 1974; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, HAYNIE, SMITH & ALLBEE, P.C. - 1990 

November 29, 2021 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Jeff Olson 
Public Safety Director 
City of Cedar Falls 
4600 S. Main Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
 
 Re:  Public Safety Supervisor Job Classifications 
 
Dear Jeff: 
 

This letter is to address the City’s contemplated job classifications for the Public Safety 
Supervisor – Captain (“PSS-Captain”) and Public Safety Supervisor – Lieutenant (“PSS-
Lieutenant”) positions. 

 
In the case of International Association of Fire Fighters, #1366, Cedar Falls (“Firefighter 

Union”) v. City of Cedar Falls, the FireFighter Union requested declaratory and injunctive relief 
to declare nine (9) promotions unlawful and to enjoin/rescind said promotions and to award 
attorneys’ fees and costs.  The case proceeded to trial on June 22-29, 2021.  Following trial, the 
Court issued an Order on October 22, 2021 that denied these requests.  The Court did, however, 
enter an order that the City “prepare and approve new job classifications for the positions of 
PSS-captain and PSS-lieutenant.”  The Court ordered “[t]hese job [classifications] shall provide 
for specified experience in both police and firefighting and provide adequate training as is in the 
best interest of public safety.” 

 
This letter is intended to address only whether the newly drafted PSS-Captain and PSS-

Lieutenant job classifications would, if approved by the City Council, comply with the Court’s 
Order.  For guidance in doing so, the Court’s Order states: 
 

The court does not have the authority to specifically state the experience and 
training necessary for each of these job classifications.  That decision must be 
made by the city but it must provide experience and training in both police 
and firefighting in a specific amount to reasonably assure that the individuals 
appointed are adequately qualified in both police and firefighting for the 
good of public service. 
 

The Court ordered the City to prepare and approve new job classifications within 45 days of the 
October 22, 2021 Order (i.e., by December 6, 2021).  Failure to do so could result in the 
imposition of sanctions against the City. 

114

Item 12.



November 29, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

We are in receipt of newly drafted job classifications described below for the PSS-
Captain and PSS-Lieutenant positions each identifying a forward-looking amended date of 
December 6, 2021. 

 
PSS-Lieutenant.  The amended PSS-Lieutenant job classification includes revision to 

the minimum experience requirements to specify a minimum of four (4) years of public safety 
experience (including both firefighter and as police officer) as well as at least two (2) years of 
experience in the City’s Fire Division for officers assigned to the Fire Division or two (2) years 
of experience in the City’s Police Division for officers assigned to the Police Division.  These 
experience requirements now include minimums for both overall public safety experience as well 
as specific experience within the applicant’s assigned police and fire divisions, respectively.  It is 
further our understanding the PSS-Lieutenant position is a promotional grade position that would 
require all applicants have prior experience in both police and firefighting skills within the City’s 
Police and Fire Divisions.   

 
The amended job classification also requires that applicants have specific educational and 

training backgrounds.  These requirements include possession of a Bachelor’s degree from an 
accredited college or university, possession of an appropriate valid driver’s license, possession of 
certification as a police officer from the State of Iowa, and possession of an appropriate Fire 
Fighter I Certification in the State of Iowa.  The amended job classification further requires that 
an applicant obtain possession of Firefighter II certification within two (2) years of appointment.  
Additional certifications are required for specific assignments within the Fire (i.e., Fire Service 
Instructor I; Fire Officer I) and Police (e.g., police instructor certification or certification to 
administer specialty tasks, test or assignment; Field Training Supervisor) Divisions. 

 
The Court’s October 22, 2021 Order requires that the City job classifications state the 

experience and training necessary “in a specific amount”.  Because the City’s amended PSS-
Lieutenant job classification specifically requires all applicants have a minimum of two (2) years 
of experience within the City’s Police or Fire Divisions, all applicants will necessarily possess 
greater than two (2) years of experience in police or firefighting within their assigned Police or 
Fire Divisions.  The additional requirement of a minimum of four (4) years of public safety 
experience, including both police and firefighting work, serves to require additional experience 
outside the applicant’s assigned division.  The amended job classification further elaborates upon 
minimum educational and training requirements mandating the possession of a Bachelor’s 
degree as well as various identified training certifications dependent upon the applicant’s 
assignment.   

 
As was recognized by the Court, the City has discretion to identify the scope and 

parameters of its specified minimum job requirements.  The October 22, 2021 Order did not 
establish or set forth any minimum experience or training requirements under Iowa law for the 
PSS-Lieutenant position.  It required only that the City set forth specific amounts.  By setting 
forth the minimum experience, education, training, and certification requirements above, 
we believe the newly drafted PSS-Lieutenant job classification would comply with the 
Court’s October 22, 2021 Order.   

 

115

Item 12.



November 29, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

PSS-Captain.  The PSS-Captain job classification includes revision to the minimum 
experience requirements to specify a minimum of six (6) years of public safety experience 
(including both firefighter and as police officer) as well as two (2) years of supervisory 
experience within the City’s Police or Fire Divisions depending upon the assignment.  
Supervisory experience in both police and fire is preferred.  Again, it is our understanding the 
PSS-Captain position is a promotional grade position that would require all applicants have prior 
experience in both police and firefighting skills within the City’s Police and Fire Divisions.   

 
The amended job classification also requires that applicants have specific educational and 

training backgrounds.  These requirements include possession of a Bachelor’s degree from an 
accredited college or university, an appropriate valid driver’s license, possession of certification 
as a police officer from the State of Iowa, possession of an appropriate Fire Fighter I 
Certification in the State of Iowa, and possession of Firefighter II certification within two (2) 
years of appointment.  Additional certifications are required for specific assignments within the 
Fire (i.e., Fire Service Instructor I; Fire Officer I) and Police (e.g., police instructor certification 
or certification to administer specialty tasks, test or assignment; Field Training Supervisor) 
Divisions. 

 
The Court’s October 22, 2021 Order requires that the City job classifications state the 

experience and training necessary “in a specific amount”.  Because the City’s amended PSS-
Captain job classification specifically requires all applicants have a minimum of two (2) years of 
supervisory experience within the City’s Police or Fire Divisions, all applicants will necessarily 
possess greater than two (2) years of experience in police or firefighting within their assigned 
Police or Fire Divisions.  The additional requirement of a minimum of six (6) years of public 
safety experience, including both police and firefighting work, serves to require additional 
expertise outside the applicant’s assigned division.  The amended job classification further 
elaborates upon minimum educational and training requirements mandating the possession of a 
Bachelor’s degree as well as various identified training certifications dependent upon the 
applicant’s assignment.  

 
As was recognized by the Court, the City has discretion to identify the scope and 

parameters of its specified minimum job requirements.  The October 22, 2021 Order did not 
establish or set forth any minimum experience or training requirements under Iowa law for the 
PSS-Captain position.  It required only that the City set forth specific amounts.  By setting forth 
the minimum experience, education, training, and certification requirements above, we 
believe the newly drafted PSS-Captain job classification would comply with the Court’s 
October 22, 2021 Order.   
 

             Very truly yours, 
 
         AHLERS & COONEY, P.C. 
By 
        Andrew T. Tice         
 
             Andrew T. Tice 

01970347-1\10283-171 

116

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   1 

 

Job Title Public Safety Supervisor - Captain  Job Code 928 

Department Public Safety Services  Pay Band 14 

FLSA Status Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 10/10/2018  Adopted   12/17/18 

Amended 12-06-21 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
To manage, supervise, plan, and coordinate the activities and operations of an assigned unit within the 
public safety department including patrol, fire, investigations, or support services; to coordinate assigned 
activities with other departments, divisions, outside agencies and the general public; to provide high 
responsible coordination at emergency incidents; to provide highly responsible and complex staff 
assistance to the Director, Police Chief, and Fire Chief and to apply independent judgment and law 
enforcement/fire science skills in resolving problems, appraising effectiveness of police/fire techniques 
used and interpreting departmental policies, regulations and City police/fire ordinances, state laws, and 
federal laws. 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives general direction from the Director, Chiefs, or Assistant Chiefs.  
 
Exercises direct supervision over Police Captains, Fire Battalion Chiefs, Police Lieutenants, Public Safety 
Supervisor – Lieutenants, Fire Captains, Firefighters, Police Officers, Public Safety Officers, Reserve 
Police Officers, and non-sworn civilian, technical, and clerical staff. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Manage, supervise and coordinate the staffing and operational activities for an assigned 
patrol/fire shift, investigative unit, or support services; provide highly complex and responsible 
staff assistance to the Director, Police Chief and Fire Chief. Manage the day-to-day operations of 
the public safety division. 
 

117

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   2 

 Assist in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and priorities for an 
assigned unit; identify resource needs; recommend and implement policies and procedures. 
 

 Recommend, train, motivate and evaluate assigned personnel; provide or coordinate staff 
training; work with employees to correct deficiencies; provide counseling when needed, 
recommend discipline and termination procedures to the Director, Police Chief and Fire Chief.   
 

 Direct, coordinate and review the work plan for the assigned unit; meet with staff to identify and 
resolve problems; assign work activities and projects; monitor work flow; review and evaluate 
work products, methods and procedures. 

 

 Identify opportunities for improving service delivery and administrative support methods and 
procedures; review with appropriate management staff; implement improvements. 
 

 Coordinate assigned activities with those of other departments, divisions and outside agencies 
and organizations; provide staff assistance to the Director, Police Chief, and Fire Chief; prepare, 
maintain and present staff reports and other necessary correspondence.   

 

 Oversee, review and participate in the preparation of public safety department reports and 
records for an assigned unit; compile shift statistics; ensure accuracy and compliance with the 
public safety department and City regulations. 
 

 Attend and participate in various meetings of the public safety department; provide information 
and advice regarding law enforcement/fire activities. 
 

 Manage, plan and coordinate training programs on the various phases of police/fire activities. 
 

 Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 
 

 May serve in the absence of the Police Chief or Fire Chief, as assigned. 

 
 Assist in the preparation needed for parades and other special events. 

 

 Manage the investigative unit, as assigned; approve all case work prepared by shift and 
investigative unit personnel; delegate and monitor daily case assignments; monitor and supervise 
activities of investigative unit personnel; compile investigator case load statistics; review all 
intelligence reports generated within the police division; manage investigative unit in homicide 
investigations.  
 

 Coordinate all activities with the Department of Public Safety at University of Northern Iowa. 
 

 Conduct and oversee all internal affairs investigations. 
 

 Manage a patrol unit as assigned; monitor and supervise patrol personnel; manage activities of a 
unit with subordinate staff; coordinate major crime and accident scenes; assign and monitor case 
follow-up activities; review accident cases and notarize traffic tickets; monitor criminal 
investigations; coordinate and participate in internal investigations. 
 

118

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   3 

 Participate in the investigation and apprehension of offenders; monitor and oversee book-in 
procedures of prisoners; establish areas within the city for select enforcement; prepare briefing 
materials and press releases when appropriate. 

 

 Functions as the Department’s Safety Officer and oversees the Department’s safety program. 
 

 Assigns and supervises major maintenance tasks related to equipment, stations, and grounds.  
Ensures station, apparatus, and equipment are in proper working order. 

 

 Assists in the preparation of the Department’s annual budget. 
 

 Assists in emergency preparedness plans for the City, working with City and County local 
emergency planning committees. 
 

 Assists with the development and implementation of and assures adherence to departmental 
policies, procedures, and goals. 
 

 Establishes and maintains good working relationships with other City departments, community 
groups and agencies. 
 

 Serve as incident commander at fire scenes and other emergency situations; direct fire personnel 
at the scene of an emergency unless relieved by the Fire Chief or Administrative Division 
Battalion Chief. Utilize appropriate emergency management and incident command system. 

 

 Approves time off request for public safety staff. 
 

 Manage and oversee activities related to training, code enforcement, citizen liaison groups, 
research, school resource, planning and reserve officer programs, as assigned. 

 
 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations 
in the field of law enforcement/fire science. 

 

 Conduct minor repairs on police equipment/fire equipment; maintain equipment inventory within 
the public safety department. 

 

 Assist in public safety dispatching duties as needed. 
 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 

 May be assigned to a shift, or other work schedule as needed to complete work tasks as 
assigned.  

  

119

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   4 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Operational characteristics, services and activities of a comprehensive law enforcement program. 
 

 Modern and complex principles and management practices of public safety. 
 

 Use of Incident Management and Personnel Accountability System. 
 

 Use of firearms and other modern police equipment. 
 

 Pertinent Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, particularly with reference to 
apprehension, arrest, search and seizure, evidence and records management, and traffic control. 
 

 Technical and administrative phases of crime prevention and law enforcement including 
investigation and identification, patrol, traffic control, records management, and care and custody 
of property. 
 

 Police/fire collective bargaining contracts. 
 

 Modern investigative methods including interviewing and interrogation techniques as assigned. 
 

 Functions and objectives of Federal, State, and other local law enforcement/fire agencies. 
 

 Operation, maintenance and uses of modern firefighting apparatus and equipment. 
 

 Operational characteristics, services and activities of comprehensive fire suppression and 
prevention programs and emergency services. 
 

 Various building construction techniques and the consequence of each type on fire suppression 
and prevention activities. 
 

 Approved procedures and policies for hazardous or toxic materials storage, transport and clean-
up. 
 

 Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment. 
 

 Principles of supervision, training and performance evaluation. 
 

 Research techniques, methods and procedures, principles and practices of municipal budgeting, 
preparation and administration. 
 

 Organizational and management practices as applied to the analysis and evaluation of programs, 
policies, and operational needs. 
 
 

 

120

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   5 

ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Develop, implement and administer goals, objectives and procedures for providing effective and 
efficient fire prevention and protection measures.  

 

 Utilize independent judgment within scope of duties to provide effective daily management of 
police/fire operations.   

 

 Operate under an Incident Command System. 
 

 Interpret and explain city and Police Division policies and procedures. 
 

 Prepare clear and concise reports. 
 

 Safely operate department vehicles, apparatus and other emergency equipment. 
 

 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, and project consequences of proposed actions 
and implement recommendations in support of goals. 

 

 Properly interpret and make decisions in accordance with laws, regulations and policies. 
 

 Recommend improvements in operations and in the rules, regulations, and policies governing 
assigned area of responsibility. 

 

 Analyze situations quickly and objectively, and determine proper course of action. 
 

 Develop and implement various programs as assigned. 
 

 Obtain information through interviews and interrogation. 
 

 Meet and deal with the public tactfully and effectively. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Demonstrate and use CPR and first aid when necessary. 
 

 Use and care for firearms. 
 

 Research, analyze and evaluate new service delivery methods, procedures and techniques. 
 

 Demonstrate keen powers of observation and memory. 
 

 Follow all safety rules and regulations of the City and the Public Safety Services Department. 
 

 Work irregular hours including weekends, holidays and extended hours in emergency, disaster or 
other situations influenced by workload or staffing difficulties. 
 

 Give credible testimony. 
  

121

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   6 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
A minimum of sSix years of public safety experience, including experience as a firefighter and a police 
officer or police reserve officer with two years supervisory experience with the City of Cedar Falls. If 
assigned to the Police Division, at least two years of supervisory experience with the City of Cedar Falls 
Police Division is required. If assigned to the Fire Division, at least two years of supervisory experience 
with the City of Cedar Falls Fire Division is required. Supervisory experience in both police and fire is 
preferred.    
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university.  
 
LICENCES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 
Possession of certification as a police officer or reserve officer from the State of Iowa. 
 
Possession of an appropriate Fire Fighter I Certification in the State of Iowa. 
 
Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate Fire Fighter II Certification in the State of Iowa and 
specialized training certifications within 2 years of appointment. 
 
If assigned to the Fire Division, pPossession of, or ability to obtain,  an appropriate Fire Instructor I 
Certification in the State of Iowa.. 
 
If assigned to the Fire Division, pPossession of, or ability to obtain,  an appropriate Fire Officer I 
Certification in the State of Iowa.. 
 
If assigned to the Police Division, possession of a police instructor certification or certification to 
administer specialty tasks, tests or assignments (such as MMPI, POST test, Cooper Fitness test for the 
State of Iowa, Field Training Supervisor certification, etc.).  
 
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Work in an office or emergency peace control environment; may work in intense life-threatening 
conditions; exposure to dangerous persons, animals, firearms, bodily fluids, hazardous materials and 
chemicals, and noise; exposure to emergency and disaster situations; working alongside moving traffic; 
extreme temperatures and outdoor weather conditions. 
 

122

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   7 

PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, running, 
walking, crawling, climbing, stooping and lifting for prolonged periods of time; carrying and lifting items 
over 40 pounds; operating a motorized vehicle. 
 
 
 
ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
 

The physical demands described here are representative of those (but not limited to) that must be met by 
an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is exposed to a minimal amount of repeated 
bending, stooping or crouching; and/or moving more than 100 pounds.  The employee is moderately 
required to: operate motorized vehicle/equipment; perform heavy lifting and carrying, 45 lbs & over; 
perform straight, and hand-over-hand, pulling; use hearing and speech; utilize both hands, legs, and 
arms; kneel, crawl, push, climb and or balance using arms & legs and using legs only; reach above the 
shoulders; and use hands to finger, handle, or feel. The employee is exposed to excessive: light lifting 
and carrying, under 15 lbs; moderate lifting and carrying, 15-45 lbs; use of fingers, both hands, arms, and 
legs; walking, standing, sitting, and use of both eyes.  Specific vision abilities required by this job include 
ability to use both eyes for: close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception 
and ability to adjust focus. 
 

123

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   1 

 

Job Title Public Safety Supervisor - Captain  Job Code 928 

Department Public Safety Services  Pay Band 14 

FLSA Status Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 10/10/2018  Adopted   12/17/18 

Amended 12-06-21 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
To manage, supervise, plan, and coordinate the activities and operations of an assigned unit within the 
public safety department including patrol, fire, investigations, or support services; to coordinate assigned 
activities with other departments, divisions, outside agencies and the general public; to provide high 
responsible coordination at emergency incidents; to provide highly responsible and complex staff 
assistance to the Director, Police Chief, and Fire Chief and to apply independent judgment and law 
enforcement/fire science skills in resolving problems, appraising effectiveness of police/fire techniques 
used and interpreting departmental policies, regulations and City police/fire ordinances, state laws, and 
federal laws. 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives general direction from the Director, Chiefs, or Assistant Chiefs.  
 
Exercises direct supervision over Police Captains, Fire Battalion Chiefs, Police Lieutenants, Public Safety 
Supervisor – Lieutenants, Fire Captains, Firefighters, Police Officers, Public Safety Officers, Reserve 
Police Officers, and non-sworn civilian, technical, and clerical staff. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Manage, supervise and coordinate the staffing and operational activities for an assigned 
patrol/fire shift, investigative unit, or support services; provide highly complex and responsible 
staff assistance to the Director, Police Chief and Fire Chief. Manage the day-to-day operations of 
the public safety division. 
 

124

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   2 

 Assist in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and priorities for an 
assigned unit; identify resource needs; recommend and implement policies and procedures. 
 

 Recommend, train, motivate and evaluate assigned personnel; provide or coordinate staff 
training; work with employees to correct deficiencies; provide counseling when needed, 
recommend discipline and termination procedures to the Director, Police Chief and Fire Chief.   
 

 Direct, coordinate and review the work plan for the assigned unit; meet with staff to identify and 
resolve problems; assign work activities and projects; monitor work flow; review and evaluate 
work products, methods and procedures. 

 

 Identify opportunities for improving service delivery and administrative support methods and 
procedures; review with appropriate management staff; implement improvements. 
 

 Coordinate assigned activities with those of other departments, divisions and outside agencies 
and organizations; provide staff assistance to the Director, Police Chief, and Fire Chief; prepare, 
maintain and present staff reports and other necessary correspondence.   

 

 Oversee, review and participate in the preparation of public safety department reports and 
records for an assigned unit; compile shift statistics; ensure accuracy and compliance with the 
public safety department and City regulations. 
 

 Attend and participate in various meetings of the public safety department; provide information 
and advice regarding law enforcement/fire activities. 
 

 Manage, plan and coordinate training programs on the various phases of police/fire activities. 
 

 Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 
 

 May serve in the absence of the Police Chief or Fire Chief, as assigned. 

 
 Assist in the preparation needed for parades and other special events. 

 

 Manage the investigative unit, as assigned; approve all case work prepared by shift and 
investigative unit personnel; delegate and monitor daily case assignments; monitor and supervise 
activities of investigative unit personnel; compile investigator case load statistics; review all 
intelligence reports generated within the police division; manage investigative unit in homicide 
investigations.  
 

 Coordinate all activities with the Department of Public Safety at University of Northern Iowa. 
 

 Conduct and oversee all internal affairs investigations. 
 

 Manage a patrol unit as assigned; monitor and supervise patrol personnel; manage activities of a 
unit with subordinate staff; coordinate major crime and accident scenes; assign and monitor case 
follow-up activities; review accident cases and notarize traffic tickets; monitor criminal 
investigations; coordinate and participate in internal investigations. 
 

125

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   3 

 Participate in the investigation and apprehension of offenders; monitor and oversee book-in 
procedures of prisoners; establish areas within the city for select enforcement; prepare briefing 
materials and press releases when appropriate. 

 

 Functions as the Department’s Safety Officer and oversees the Department’s safety program. 
 

 Assigns and supervises major maintenance tasks related to equipment, stations, and grounds.  
Ensures station, apparatus, and equipment are in proper working order. 

 

 Assists in the preparation of the Department’s annual budget. 
 

 Assists in emergency preparedness plans for the City, working with City and County local 
emergency planning committees. 
 

 Assists with the development and implementation of and assures adherence to departmental 
policies, procedures, and goals. 
 

 Establishes and maintains good working relationships with other City departments, community 
groups and agencies. 
 

 Serve as incident commander at fire scenes and other emergency situations; direct fire personnel 
at the scene of an emergency unless relieved by the Fire Chief or Administrative Division 
Battalion Chief. Utilize appropriate emergency management and incident command system. 

 

 Approves time off request for public safety staff. 
 

 Manage and oversee activities related to training, code enforcement, citizen liaison groups, 
research, school resource, planning and reserve officer programs, as assigned. 

 
 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations 
in the field of law enforcement/fire science. 

 

 Conduct minor repairs on police equipment/fire equipment; maintain equipment inventory within 
the public safety department. 

 

 Assist in public safety dispatching duties as needed. 
 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 

 May be assigned to a shift, or other work schedule as needed to complete work tasks as 
assigned.  

  

126

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   4 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Operational characteristics, services and activities of a comprehensive law enforcement program. 
 

 Modern and complex principles and management practices of public safety. 
 

 Use of Incident Management and Personnel Accountability System. 
 

 Use of firearms and other modern police equipment. 
 

 Pertinent Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, particularly with reference to 
apprehension, arrest, search and seizure, evidence and records management, and traffic control. 
 

 Technical and administrative phases of crime prevention and law enforcement including 
investigation and identification, patrol, traffic control, records management, and care and custody 
of property. 
 

 Police/fire collective bargaining contracts. 
 

 Modern investigative methods including interviewing and interrogation techniques as assigned. 
 

 Functions and objectives of Federal, State, and other local law enforcement/fire agencies. 
 

 Operation, maintenance and uses of modern firefighting apparatus and equipment. 
 

 Operational characteristics, services and activities of comprehensive fire suppression and 
prevention programs and emergency services. 
 

 Various building construction techniques and the consequence of each type on fire suppression 
and prevention activities. 
 

 Approved procedures and policies for hazardous or toxic materials storage, transport and clean-
up. 
 

 Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment. 
 

 Principles of supervision, training and performance evaluation. 
 

 Research techniques, methods and procedures, principles and practices of municipal budgeting, 
preparation and administration. 
 

 Organizational and management practices as applied to the analysis and evaluation of programs, 
policies, and operational needs. 
 
 

 

127

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   5 

ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Develop, implement and administer goals, objectives and procedures for providing effective and 
efficient fire prevention and protection measures.  

 

 Utilize independent judgment within scope of duties to provide effective daily management of 
police/fire operations.   

 

 Operate under an Incident Command System. 
 

 Interpret and explain city and Police Division policies and procedures. 
 

 Prepare clear and concise reports. 
 

 Safely operate department vehicles, apparatus and other emergency equipment. 
 

 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, and project consequences of proposed actions 
and implement recommendations in support of goals. 

 

 Properly interpret and make decisions in accordance with laws, regulations and policies. 
 

 Recommend improvements in operations and in the rules, regulations, and policies governing 
assigned area of responsibility. 

 

 Analyze situations quickly and objectively, and determine proper course of action. 
 

 Develop and implement various programs as assigned. 
 

 Obtain information through interviews and interrogation. 
 

 Meet and deal with the public tactfully and effectively. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Demonstrate and use CPR and first aid when necessary. 
 

 Use and care for firearms. 
 

 Research, analyze and evaluate new service delivery methods, procedures and techniques. 
 

 Demonstrate keen powers of observation and memory. 
 

 Follow all safety rules and regulations of the City and the Public Safety Services Department. 
 

 Work irregular hours including weekends, holidays and extended hours in emergency, disaster or 
other situations influenced by workload or staffing difficulties. 
 

 Give credible testimony. 
  

128

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   6 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
A minimum of six years of public safety experience, including experience as a firefighter and a police 
officer . If assigned to the Police Division, at least two years of supervisory experience with the City of 
Cedar Falls Police Division is required. If assigned to the Fire Division, at least two years of supervisory 
experience with the City of Cedar Falls Fire Division is required. Supervisory experience in both police 
and fire is preferred.    
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university.  
 
LICENCES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 
Possession of certification as a police officer from the State of Iowa. 
 
Possession of an appropriate Fire Fighter I Certification in the State of Iowa. 
 
Possession of an appropriate Fire Fighter II Certification in the State of Iowa within 2 years of 
appointment 
 
If assigned to the Fire Division, possession of an appropriate Fire Instructor I Certification in the State of 
Iowa. 
 
If assigned to the Fire Division, possession of an appropriate Fire Officer I Certification in the State of 
Iowa. 
 
If assigned to the Police Division, possession of a police instructor certification or certification to 
administer specialty tasks, tests or assignments (such as MMPI, POST test, Cooper Fitness test for the 
State of Iowa, Field Training Supervisor certification, etc.).  
 
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Work in an office or emergency peace control environment; may work in intense life-threatening 
conditions; exposure to dangerous persons, animals, firearms, bodily fluids, hazardous materials and 
chemicals, and noise; exposure to emergency and disaster situations; working alongside moving traffic; 
extreme temperatures and outdoor weather conditions. 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 

129

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Captain   7 

 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, running, 
walking, crawling, climbing, stooping and lifting for prolonged periods of time; carrying and lifting items 
over 40 pounds; operating a motorized vehicle. 
 
 
 
ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
 

The physical demands described here are representative of those (but not limited to) that must be met by 
an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is exposed to a minimal amount of repeated 
bending, stooping or crouching; and/or moving more than 100 pounds.  The employee is moderately 
required to: operate motorized vehicle/equipment; perform heavy lifting and carrying, 45 lbs & over; 
perform straight, and hand-over-hand, pulling; use hearing and speech; utilize both hands, legs, and 
arms; kneel, crawl, push, climb and or balance using arms & legs and using legs only; reach above the 
shoulders; and use hands to finger, handle, or feel. The employee is exposed to excessive: light lifting 
and carrying, under 15 lbs; moderate lifting and carrying, 15-45 lbs; use of fingers, both hands, arms, and 
legs; walking, standing, sitting, and use of both eyes.  Specific vision abilities required by this job include 
ability to use both eyes for: close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception 
and ability to adjust focus. 
 

130

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   1 

 

Job Title Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant  Job Code 927 

Department Public Safety Services  Pay Band 12 

FLSA Status Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 10/10/18  Adopted 12/17/18 

Amended 12-06-21 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
To supervise, plan and coordinate the activities and operations of an assigned unit within the public safety 
department including patrol, fire scenes, investigations or support services; to coordinate assigned 
activities with other departments, divisions, outside agencies and the general public; to provide highly 
complex staff assistance to the Public Safety Service Captain, Police Captain and/or Battalion Chief; and 
to apply independent judgment, discretion and law enforcement/fire skills in resolving problems, 
appraising effectiveness of police/fire techniques used and interpreting departmental policies, regulations 
and City police/fire ordinances, state laws, and federal laws. 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives general direction from the Director, Chiefs, Assistant Chiefs, Public Safety Supervisor Captain, 
Battalion Chief, or Police Captain. 
 
Exercises direct supervision over Police Lieutenants, Fire Captains, Firefighters, Police Officers, Public 
Safety Officers, Reserve Police Officers, and non-sworn civilian, technical, and clerical staff. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 
Essential duties and responsibilities when functioning as a Shift Lieutenant  
 

 Supervise and coordinate the staffing and operational activities for an assigned patrol/fire shift, 
the investigative unit, or the support services unit; provide highly responsible staff assistance to 

131

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   2 

the Director, Police Chief, Fire Chief, Public Safety Service Captain, Battalion Chief, and Police 
Captain. 
 

 Assigned as a Special Programs Coordinator for the Department. Special Programs include, but 
are not limited to, Training and Safety, Quality Assurance, Safety and Risk Management, Field 
Training Coordination, Professional Development Planning, Pre-Fire Plans, Knox Box 
Coordination, Uniform and Personal Gear Coordination, Standard Operating Guidelines Updates, 
EMS. 

 

 Respond to fire alarms and direct firefighting and rescue operations of a fire company or multiple 
fire companies, take command of emergency incidents until and if relieved of command by a 
superior officer; participate in fire-fighting and rescue work. 
 

 Order initial evacuation, order entry by fire fighters, call for mutual aid and calls for additional 
equipment upon arrival at a fire unless superior officer is already present. 
 

 Participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and priorities for 
an assigned unit; identify resource needs; recommend and implement policies and procedures. 
 

 Assist in planning, organizing, and directing activities of the police/fire shift; direct the shift in the 
absence of the Public Safety Service-Captain, Battalion Chief or Fire Chief. 
 

 Train, motivate and evaluate assigned personnel; provide or coordinate staff training; work with 
employees to correct deficiencies; determine and implement discipline, specifically verbal and 
written warnings; effectively recommend discipline, specifically suspension and termination 
procedures, to the Director, Police Chief, Fire Chief.  With respect to the Community Service 
Officer (CSO) program, must hire, train, motivate, coordinate, supervise, and discipline, up to and 
including termination, the CSOs. 
 

 Inspect commercial, industrial, and residential apartment buildings for compliance with the 
recommendations of the Fire Prevention Code, Minimum Housing Code and all other standards 
for fire safety. 
 

 Respond to grievances in accordance with the police/fire Collective Bargaining Agreement.  
 

 Coordinate and review the work plan for the assigned unit; meet with staff to identify and resolve 
problems; assign work activities and projects; monitor work flow; review and evaluate work 
products, methods and procedures. 
 

 Identify opportunities for improving service delivery and administrative support methods and 
procedures; review with appropriate management staff. 

 

 Implement assigned activities with those of other departments, divisions and outside agencies 
and organizations; provide staff assistance to the Public Safety Service Captain, Police Captain 
or Battalion Chief; prepare and present staff reports and other necessary correspondence. 

 

 Oversee, review and participate in the preparation of police/fire reports and records for an 
assigned unit; compile shift statistics; ensure accuracy and compliance with the police/fire and 
City regulations. 

132

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   3 

 

 Attend and participate in various meetings of the public safety department; provide information 
and advice regarding public safety activities. 

 

 Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 
 

 May serve in the absence of the Public Safety Service Captain, Battalion Chief or Police Captain 
as assigned. 

 

 Act as incident commander during major public safety incidents. 
 

 Coordinate the actions needed for parades and other special events. 
 

 Oversee the investigative unit, as assigned; review all case work prepared by shift and 
investigative unit personnel; delegate and monitor daily case assignments; monitor and supervise 
activities of investigative unit personnel; compile investigator case load statistics; review all 
intelligence reports generated within the Police Division; lead investigative unit in homicide 
investigations.  

 

 Coordinate all activities with the University of Northern Iowa Department of Public Safety. 
 

 Assist in the completion of all internal affairs investigations. 
 

 Oversee a patrol/fire shift as assigned; monitor and supervise personnel; supervise the activities 
of a shift with subordinate staff; coordinate major crime and accident scenes; assign and monitor 
case follow-up activities; review accident cases and notarize traffic tickets; monitor criminal 
investigations; coordinate and participate in internal investigations. 

 

 Participate in the investigation and apprehension of offenders; monitor and oversee book-in 
procedures of prisoners; establish areas within the city for select enforcement; prepare briefing 
materials and press releases when appropriate. 

 

 Coordinate and oversee activities related to training, code enforcement, neighborhood liaisons, 
research, school resource, planning, reserve officer and alternative staff program, as assigned. 

 

 Oversee and ensure shift personnel clean and maintain station facilities, grounds, equipment and 
apparatus; ensure that appropriate conditions are maintained at assigned fire station; ensure that 
all equipment and apparatus is in a constant state of readiness for emergency calls through daily 
equipment check and the regular exercising of vehicles and equipment; maintain equipment 
inventory within the fire division. 

 
 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations 
in the field of law enforcement/fire science. 

 

 Conduct minor repairs on police/fire equipment; maintain equipment inventory within the public 
safety department. 

133

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   4 

 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 
 
Essential duties and responsibilities when functioning as a Public Safety Training/Staffing 
Coordinator: 

 
The primary purpose of the training coordinator position is to provide quality training for the public safety 
department, to assist in assuring adequate staffing levels are maintained and coordinated alternative 
staff. The position will work under the direction of the Director, Police Chief and Fire Chief. 
 

 Respond to emergencies as assigned and be available to respond to emergencies while off duty 
as needed. (Typically structure fires or other large incidents requiring additional staffing).  

 

 Develop and implement an annual training plan for public safety based on strategic plan, actual 
needs, and various standards. 
 

 From time to time may be asked to provide staffing help during a normal work day on a limited  
basis if assigned to a 40 hour week schedule. 

 

 Provide information for monthly and annual reports.  
 

 Develop and implement a yearly training plan.   
 

 Coordinate and track all training and development. 
 

 Work closely with function leaders on development of the training plan.  
 

 Seek outside training and development for function leaders.  
 

 Evaluate, review, and revise training program as needed. 
 

 Assist in the recruitment, testing, and training of all public safety staff.    
 

 Assist in the scheduling and staffing of shifts. 
 

 Provide support to other projects as assigned by the Public Safety Service Supervisor. 
 
 

 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Operational characteristics, services and activities of a comprehensive law enforcement and fire 
programs. 

 

134

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   5 

 Modern and complex principles and practices of law enforcement/fire science. 
 

 Mechanical, chemical, and related characteristics of a wide variety of flammable, explosive, and 
similar materials. 

 

 Police/fire prevention laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations; public safety policies, rules and 
regulations. 

 

 Principles of supervision, training and performance evaluation. 
 

 Modern investigative methods including interviewing and interrogation techniques as assigned. 
 

 Functions and objectives of Federal, State, and other local law enforcement/fire agencies. 
 

 Technical and administrative phases of crime prevention and law enforcement including 
investigation and identification, patrol, traffic control, records management, and care and custody 
of property. 

 

 Criminal behavior. 
 

 Police/fire collective bargaining contracts. 
 

 The geography of the City including principal buildings, hydrants, and the location of special fire 
hazards. 

 

 Use of firearms and other modern police equipment. 
 

 Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment. 
 

 First Aid and rescue methods and techniques. 
 

 Pertinent Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, particularly with reference to 
apprehension, arrest, search and seizure, evidence and records management, and traffic control. 

 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Apply independent judgment and law enforcement/fire science skills in resolving work problems. 
 

 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and 
implement recommendations in support of goals. 

 

 Manage case work and monitor case work assigned to officers. 
 

 Interpret and explain city and Police Division policies and procedures. 
 

 Prepare clear and concise reports. 
 

 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and 
implement recommendations in support of goals. 

135

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   6 

 

 Properly interpret, enforce and make decisions in accordance with laws, regulations and policies 
with firmness, tact and impartiality 

 

 Work independently without direct supervision. 
 

 Analyze situations quickly and objectively, and utilize discretion and independent judgment within 
general departmental guidelines to determine proper course of action. 

 

 Develop and implement various programs as assigned. 
 

 Obtain information through interviews and interrogation. 
 

 Meet and deal with the public tactfully and effectively. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Demonstrate and use CPR and first aid when necessary. 
 

 Use and care for firearms. 
 

 Recognize and define fire hazards and to recommend effective corrective measures. 
 

 Demonstrate keen powers of observation and memory. 
 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 
 

 Follow all safety rules and regulations of the Public Safety Services Department and the City. 
 

 Give credible testimony. 
 

 Work irregular hours, including weekends, holidays, and extended hours in emergency, disaster 
or other situations influenced by workload or staffing difficulties. 

 
 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
A minimum of fFour years of public safety experience, including experience as a firefighter and a police 
officer or police reserve officer.. An assignment to the Fire Division will require at least two years of 
experience in the Fire Division with the cCity of Cedar Falls. An assignment to the Police Division will 
require at least two years of experience in the Police Division with the cCity of Cedar Falls.  
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university.  
 

136

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   7 

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of, or ability to obtain,  an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 
Possession of certification as a police officer or reserve police officer from the State of Iowa. 
 
Possession of an appropriate Fire Fighter I Certification in the State of Iowa. 
 
Possession of, or ability to obtain Firefighter II Certification within two years of appointment.  
 
If assigned to the Fire Division, pPossession of, or ability to obtain Fire Service Instructor I Certification 
within two years of appointment. 
 
If assigned to the Fire Division, Ppossession of, or ability to obtain Fire Officer I Certification within two 
years of appointment.  
 
If assigned to the Police Division, possession of a police instructor certification or certification to 
administer specialty tasks, test or assignment (such as MMPI, POST test, Cooper Fitness test for State of 
Iowa, Field Training Supervisor certification, etc.) within two years of appointment.  
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Work in an office or emergency peace control environment; may work in intense life-threatening 
conditions; exposure to dangerous persons, firearms, bodily fluids, and noise; may be exposed to 
emergency and disaster situations; may work in stressful situations. 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Essential and other important functions require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, 
standing, running, walking, crawling, climbing, stooping and lifting for prolonged periods of time; and in 
operating a motorized vehicle. 
 
ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those (but not limited to) that must be met by 
an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this Job the employee is exposed to a minimal amount of repeated 
bending, stooping or crouching; and/or moving more than 100 pounds.  The employee is moderately 
required to: operate motorized vehicle/equipment; perform heavy lifting and carrying, 45 lbs & over; 
perform straight, and hand-over-hand, pulling; use hearing and speech; utilize both hands, legs, and 
arms; kneel, crawl, push, climb and or balance using arms & legs and using legs only; reach above the 
shoulders; and use hands to finger, handle, or feel. The employee is exposed to excessive: light lifting 
and carrying, under 15 lbs; moderate lifting and carrying, 15-45 lbs; use of fingers, both hands, arms, and 
legs; walking, standing, sitting, and use of both eyes.  Specific vision abilities required by this job include 

137

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   8 

ability to use both eyes for: close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception 
and ability to adjust focus. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF WORK ENVIRONMENT 
 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those (but not limited to) an 
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this Job, the employee is minimally exposed to: poison oak, explosives, 
working alone, and working below ground.   The employee is moderately exposed to: inside and outside 
work; outside weather conditions; wet and/or humid conditions; extreme cold, dampness or chilling; dry 
atmosphere conditions, and/or humidity; working in confined spaces; and irregular work hours; working 
with moving mechanical parts, machinery, objects and vehicles; working with or in: water, fire, smoke, and 
extreme heat; working on ladders/scaffolds and in high, precarious places; vibrations, noise, 
slippery/uneven surfaces; grease and oils, silica, asbestos, dust, airborne particles, etc.; toxic or caustic 
chemicals, and solvents (cleaning equipment); radiant and electrical energy.  The employee is moderate 
to excessively exposed to: fumes, smoke, gases; unusual fatigue factors working major fires; emergency, 
EMS, fire and major trauma stress.  The employee is excessively exposed to heat and working closely 
with others.  The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate to loud. 
 

138

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   1 

 

Job Title Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant  Job Code 927 

Department Public Safety Services  Pay Band 12 

FLSA Status Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 10/10/18  Adopted 12/17/18 

Amended 12-06-21 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
To supervise, plan and coordinate the activities and operations of an assigned unit within the public safety 
department including patrol, fire scenes, investigations or support services; to coordinate assigned 
activities with other departments, divisions, outside agencies and the general public; to provide highly 
complex staff assistance to the Public Safety Service Captain, Police Captain and/or Battalion Chief; and 
to apply independent judgment, discretion and law enforcement/fire skills in resolving problems, 
appraising effectiveness of police/fire techniques used and interpreting departmental policies, regulations 
and City police/fire ordinances, state laws, and federal laws. 
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives general direction from the Director, Chiefs, Assistant Chiefs, Public Safety Supervisor Captain, 
Battalion Chief, or Police Captain. 
 
Exercises direct supervision over Police Lieutenants, Fire Captains, Firefighters, Police Officers, Public 
Safety Officers, Reserve Police Officers, and non-sworn civilian, technical, and clerical staff. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 
Essential duties and responsibilities when functioning as a Shift Lieutenant  
 

 Supervise and coordinate the staffing and operational activities for an assigned patrol/fire shift, 
the investigative unit, or the support services unit; provide highly responsible staff assistance to 

139

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   2 

the Director, Police Chief, Fire Chief, Public Safety Service Captain, Battalion Chief, and Police 
Captain. 
 

 Assigned as a Special Programs Coordinator for the Department. Special Programs include, but 
are not limited to, Training and Safety, Quality Assurance, Safety and Risk Management, Field 
Training Coordination, Professional Development Planning, Pre-Fire Plans, Knox Box 
Coordination, Uniform and Personal Gear Coordination, Standard Operating Guidelines Updates, 
EMS. 

 

 Respond to fire alarms and direct firefighting and rescue operations of a fire company or multiple 
fire companies, take command of emergency incidents until and if relieved of command by a 
superior officer; participate in fire-fighting and rescue work. 
 

 Order initial evacuation, order entry by fire fighters, call for mutual aid and calls for additional 
equipment upon arrival at a fire unless superior officer is already present. 
 

 Participate in the development and implementation of goals, objectives, policies, and priorities for 
an assigned unit; identify resource needs; recommend and implement policies and procedures. 
 

 Assist in planning, organizing, and directing activities of the police/fire shift; direct the shift in the 
absence of the Public Safety Service-Captain, Battalion Chief or Fire Chief. 
 

 Train, motivate and evaluate assigned personnel; provide or coordinate staff training; work with 
employees to correct deficiencies; determine and implement discipline, specifically verbal and 
written warnings; effectively recommend discipline, specifically suspension and termination 
procedures, to the Director, Police Chief, Fire Chief.  With respect to the Community Service 
Officer (CSO) program, must hire, train, motivate, coordinate, supervise, and discipline, up to and 
including termination, the CSOs. 
 

 Inspect commercial, industrial, and residential apartment buildings for compliance with the 
recommendations of the Fire Prevention Code, Minimum Housing Code and all other standards 
for fire safety. 
 

 Respond to grievances in accordance with the police/fire Collective Bargaining Agreement.  
 

 Coordinate and review the work plan for the assigned unit; meet with staff to identify and resolve 
problems; assign work activities and projects; monitor work flow; review and evaluate work 
products, methods and procedures. 
 

 Identify opportunities for improving service delivery and administrative support methods and 
procedures; review with appropriate management staff. 

 

 Implement assigned activities with those of other departments, divisions and outside agencies 
and organizations; provide staff assistance to the Public Safety Service Captain, Police Captain 
or Battalion Chief; prepare and present staff reports and other necessary correspondence. 

 

 Oversee, review and participate in the preparation of police/fire reports and records for an 
assigned unit; compile shift statistics; ensure accuracy and compliance with the police/fire and 
City regulations. 

140

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   3 

 

 Attend and participate in various meetings of the public safety department; provide information 
and advice regarding public safety activities. 

 

 Respond to and resolve difficult and sensitive citizen inquiries and complaints. 
 

 May serve in the absence of the Public Safety Service Captain, Battalion Chief or Police Captain 
as assigned. 

 

 Act as incident commander during major public safety incidents. 
 

 Coordinate the actions needed for parades and other special events. 
 

 Oversee the investigative unit, as assigned; review all case work prepared by shift and 
investigative unit personnel; delegate and monitor daily case assignments; monitor and supervise 
activities of investigative unit personnel; compile investigator case load statistics; review all 
intelligence reports generated within the Police Division; lead investigative unit in homicide 
investigations.  

 

 Coordinate all activities with the University of Northern Iowa Department of Public Safety. 
 

 Assist in the completion of all internal affairs investigations. 
 

 Oversee a patrol/fire shift as assigned; monitor and supervise personnel; supervise the activities 
of a shift with subordinate staff; coordinate major crime and accident scenes; assign and monitor 
case follow-up activities; review accident cases and notarize traffic tickets; monitor criminal 
investigations; coordinate and participate in internal investigations. 

 

 Participate in the investigation and apprehension of offenders; monitor and oversee book-in 
procedures of prisoners; establish areas within the city for select enforcement; prepare briefing 
materials and press releases when appropriate. 

 

 Coordinate and oversee activities related to training, code enforcement, neighborhood liaisons, 
research, school resource, planning, reserve officer and alternative staff program, as assigned. 

 

 Oversee and ensure shift personnel clean and maintain station facilities, grounds, equipment and 
apparatus; ensure that appropriate conditions are maintained at assigned fire station; ensure that 
all equipment and apparatus is in a constant state of readiness for emergency calls through daily 
equipment check and the regular exercising of vehicles and equipment; maintain equipment 
inventory within the fire division. 

 
 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations 
in the field of law enforcement/fire science. 

 

 Conduct minor repairs on police/fire equipment; maintain equipment inventory within the public 
safety department. 

141

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   4 

 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 
 
Essential duties and responsibilities when functioning as a Public Safety Training/Staffing 
Coordinator: 

 
The primary purpose of the training coordinator position is to provide quality training for the public safety 
department, to assist in assuring adequate staffing levels are maintained and coordinated alternative 
staff. The position will work under the direction of the Director, Police Chief and Fire Chief. 
 

 Respond to emergencies as assigned and be available to respond to emergencies while off duty 
as needed. (Typically structure fires or other large incidents requiring additional staffing).  

 

 Develop and implement an annual training plan for public safety based on strategic plan, actual 
needs, and various standards. 
 

 From time to time may be asked to provide staffing help during a normal work day on a limited  
basis if assigned to a 40 hour week schedule. 

 

 Provide information for monthly and annual reports.  
 

 Develop and implement a yearly training plan.   
 

 Coordinate and track all training and development. 
 

 Work closely with function leaders on development of the training plan.  
 

 Seek outside training and development for function leaders.  
 

 Evaluate, review, and revise training program as needed. 
 

 Assist in the recruitment, testing, and training of all public safety staff.    
 

 Assist in the scheduling and staffing of shifts. 
 

 Provide support to other projects as assigned by the Public Safety Service Supervisor. 
 
 

 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 
 

 Operational characteristics, services and activities of a comprehensive law enforcement and fire 
programs. 

 

142

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   5 

 Modern and complex principles and practices of law enforcement/fire science. 
 

 Mechanical, chemical, and related characteristics of a wide variety of flammable, explosive, and 
similar materials. 

 

 Police/fire prevention laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations; public safety policies, rules and 
regulations. 

 

 Principles of supervision, training and performance evaluation. 
 

 Modern investigative methods including interviewing and interrogation techniques as assigned. 
 

 Functions and objectives of Federal, State, and other local law enforcement/fire agencies. 
 

 Technical and administrative phases of crime prevention and law enforcement including 
investigation and identification, patrol, traffic control, records management, and care and custody 
of property. 

 

 Criminal behavior. 
 

 Police/fire collective bargaining contracts. 
 

 The geography of the City including principal buildings, hydrants, and the location of special fire 
hazards. 

 

 Use of firearms and other modern police equipment. 
 

 Modern office procedures, methods and computer equipment. 
 

 First Aid and rescue methods and techniques. 
 

 Pertinent Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, particularly with reference to 
apprehension, arrest, search and seizure, evidence and records management, and traffic control. 

 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Apply independent judgment and law enforcement/fire science skills in resolving work problems. 
 

 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and 
implement recommendations in support of goals. 

 

 Manage case work and monitor case work assigned to officers. 
 

 Interpret and explain city and Police Division policies and procedures. 
 

 Prepare clear and concise reports. 
 

 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and 
implement recommendations in support of goals. 

143

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   6 

 

 Properly interpret, enforce and make decisions in accordance with laws, regulations and policies 
with firmness, tact and impartiality 

 

 Work independently without direct supervision. 
 

 Analyze situations quickly and objectively, and utilize discretion and independent judgment within 
general departmental guidelines to determine proper course of action. 

 

 Develop and implement various programs as assigned. 
 

 Obtain information through interviews and interrogation. 
 

 Meet and deal with the public tactfully and effectively. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Demonstrate and use CPR and first aid when necessary. 
 

 Use and care for firearms. 
 

 Recognize and define fire hazards and to recommend effective corrective measures. 
 

 Demonstrate keen powers of observation and memory. 
 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 
 

 Follow all safety rules and regulations of the Public Safety Services Department and the City. 
 

 Give credible testimony. 
 

 Work irregular hours, including weekends, holidays, and extended hours in emergency, disaster 
or other situations influenced by workload or staffing difficulties. 

 
 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
A minimum of four years of public safety experience, including experience as a firefighter and a police 
officer. An assignment to the Fire Division will require at least two years of experience in the Fire Division 
with the City of Cedar Falls. An assignment to the Police Division will require at least two years of 
experience in the Police Division with the City of Cedar Falls.  
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university.  
 

144

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   7 

LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 
Possession of certification as a police officer from the State of Iowa. 
 
Possession of an appropriate Fire Fighter I Certification in the State of Iowa. 
 
Possession of Firefighter II Certification within two years of appointment.  
 
If assigned to the Fire Division, possession of Fire Service Instructor I Certification within two years of 
appointment. 
 
If assigned to the Fire Division, possession of Fire Officer I Certification within two years of appointment.  
 
If assigned to the Police Division, possession of a police instructor certification or certification to 
administer specialty tasks, test or assignment (such as MMPI, POST test, Cooper Fitness test for State of 
Iowa, Field Training Supervisor certification, etc.) within two years of appointment.  
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Work in an office or emergency peace control environment; may work in intense life-threatening 
conditions; exposure to dangerous persons, firearms, bodily fluids, and noise; may be exposed to 
emergency and disaster situations; may work in stressful situations. 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Essential and other important functions require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, 
standing, running, walking, crawling, climbing, stooping and lifting for prolonged periods of time; and in 
operating a motorized vehicle. 
 
ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF PHYSICAL DEMANDS 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those (but not limited to) that must be met by 
an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this Job the employee is exposed to a minimal amount of repeated 
bending, stooping or crouching; and/or moving more than 100 pounds.  The employee is moderately 
required to: operate motorized vehicle/equipment; perform heavy lifting and carrying, 45 lbs & over; 
perform straight, and hand-over-hand, pulling; use hearing and speech; utilize both hands, legs, and 
arms; kneel, crawl, push, climb and or balance using arms & legs and using legs only; reach above the 
shoulders; and use hands to finger, handle, or feel. The employee is exposed to excessive: light lifting 
and carrying, under 15 lbs; moderate lifting and carrying, 15-45 lbs; use of fingers, both hands, arms, and 
legs; walking, standing, sitting, and use of both eyes.  Specific vision abilities required by this job include 

145

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Public Safety Supervisor - Lieutenant   8 

ability to use both eyes for: close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception 
and ability to adjust focus. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF WORK ENVIRONMENT 
 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those (but not limited to) an 
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this Job, the employee is minimally exposed to: poison oak, explosives, 
working alone, and working below ground.   The employee is moderately exposed to: inside and outside 
work; outside weather conditions; wet and/or humid conditions; extreme cold, dampness or chilling; dry 
atmosphere conditions, and/or humidity; working in confined spaces; and irregular work hours; working 
with moving mechanical parts, machinery, objects and vehicles; working with or in: water, fire, smoke, and 
extreme heat; working on ladders/scaffolds and in high, precarious places; vibrations, noise, 
slippery/uneven surfaces; grease and oils, silica, asbestos, dust, airborne particles, etc.; toxic or caustic 
chemicals, and solvents (cleaning equipment); radiant and electrical energy.  The employee is moderate 
to excessively exposed to: fumes, smoke, gases; unusual fatigue factors working major fires; emergency, 
EMS, fire and major trauma stress.  The employee is excessively exposed to heat and working closely 
with others.  The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate to loud. 
 

146

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: November 29, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Main Street Iowa Program Agreement 

 

Every two years, Community Main Street, the Iowa Economic Development Authority 
and the City of Cedar Falls consider an agreement to continue their partnership.  The 
last agreement was completed in October 2019.  Attached is an agreement for the next 
two-year period, covering January 1, 2022 – December 31, 2023.  The agreement is the 
same as the previous agreement, with dates updated. 
 
The Community Main Street Board has adopted a resolution of support.  Staff 
recommends approving the attached agreement and City resolution of support. 
 
 
 
CC:  Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 
 Kim Bear, Executive Director, Cedar Falls Community Main Street 

 
 

147

Item 14.



Agreement # G300-MSI-06 

Page 1 of 5 

MAIN STREET IOWA PROGRAM CONTINUATION AGREEMENT 

THIS MAIN STREET IOWA PROGRAM CONTINUATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into 
and executed by the Iowa Economic Development Authority (the “IEDA”), the City of Cedar Falls  (the 
“City”), and Community Main Street Inc. (the “Local Main Street Program”) (Individually “Party” and 
Jointly, the “Parties”). 

WHEREAS, the IEDA administers the Main Street Iowa Program (the “MSI Program”); and 

WHEREAS, the City was selected to participate in the MSI Program in 1987 and entered into a 
Program Agreement with the IEDA pursuant to which the City and the Local Main Street 
Program established a partnership with IEDA; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Local Main Street Program desire to continue to participate in the MSI 
Program; and 

WHEREAS, the IEDA desires to continue the relationship which has been established with the City and 
the Local Main Street Program; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and mutual covenants and agreements 
contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION I.  The Local Main Street Program agrees to: 

1. Main Street Revitalization Focus:
a. Maintain the Local Main Street Program’s focus on the revitalization of the designated

Main Street district utilizing the Main Street Approach®. This focus should be reflected in
the programs annual plan of action, goals and objectives, vision, and mission statement.

b. Promote the revitalization of the Main Street district through advocacy of tools and
resources that support district investment, for example: development incentives,
ordinances and policy that promote the revitalization of the district, design guidelines or
standards that promote the protection of the traditional character of the district, district
development planning, etc.

2. Main Street Paid Executive Director:
a. Employ a paid full-time Executive Director for the Local Main Street Program who will be

responsible for the day-to-day administration of the Local Main Street Program in
the City. Full-time employment is defined as 40 hours per week dedicated to the Local
Main Street Program. Part time employment is 25 hours per week dedicated to the Local
Main Street Program. The Local Main Street Program and the City will work to the best
of their ability to provide professional support, competitive compensation, and benefits
for the Executive Director position.

b. In the event this position is vacated during the time of this agreement, the Local Main
Street Program shall fill this position in a reasonable time and provide a written timeline
to fill this position to the IEDA’s Main Street Iowa State Coordinator (“the Coordinator”).

c. If the Executive Director for the Local Main Street Program also serves as the director,
executive director, chief executive officer, president, or other leadership role for another
organization or program (e.g., chamber, tourism, community/county economic
development, City, etc.) the Executive Director shall dedicate at least twenty-five hours
per week to their duties as Executive Director of the Local Main Street Program.

d. Develop and maintain an accurate position description for the Executive Director, a copy
of which shall be provided to the Coordinator, which includes the rate of compensation
and describes the professional activities for which the Executive Director is responsible.

e. Maintain worker's compensation insurance for the Executive Director and staff.

148

Item 14.



Agreement # G300-MSI-06 

Page 2 of 5 

3. Designated Main Street District: Submit to the Coordinator a current map of the approved
designated Main Street district contemporaneously with execution of this Agreement.

4. Main Street Program Office: Maintain an office within the designated boundaries of the local
Main Street district. 

5. Main Street Economic Impact Reporting:
a. Submit economic impact reports to the Coordinator on or before established due date 

documenting the progress of the Local Main Street Program's activities.
b. If the Local Main Street Program is 30 or more days late submitting any economic impact 

report, Main Street Iowa design services, business support services, eligibility for grant 
applications, and targeted technical assistance visits available through Main Street Iowa 
may be suspended until the Local Main Street Program has submitted all required 
reports.

6. National Main Street Accreditation:
a. Maintain Main Street America National Accreditation.
b. Maintain a “Main Street America Member Community” membership with Main Street 

America.
c. Use the words “Main Street” when referring to and marketing the Local Main Street 

Program, either as an official part of the organization’s name or as a tagline such as “A 
Main Street Iowa Program”. As a designated Main Street Iowa community, the Local 
Main Street Program shall include the Main Street America and Main Street Iowa logos 
on all communication materials.

7. Training Requirements:
a. Participate, as required by the IEDA, in training sessions as scheduled throughout the 

year. To remain in compliance and to be eligible for Main Street America National 
Accreditation, the Local Main Street Program shall be represented at both days, in their 
entirety, of the three (3) annual training sessions that have been designated as 
mandatory on the MSI Program calendar.

b. Any newly hired Executive Director will be required to participate in Main Street 
Orientation as soon after the hire date as feasible. Registration and all related travel 
expenses for training will be paid by the Local Main Street Program.

8. Demonstrated Support:
a. Obtain from the City’s governing body a Resolution of Support of the Local Main Street 

Program. This resolution must describe sources and amounts of funding for the program, 
a commitment to appoint a City official to represent the City on the Local Main Street 
Program governing board of directors, and that the City will continue to follow the Main 
Street Approach® as developed by Main Street America and espoused by Main Street 
Iowa for Main Street district revitalization.

b. Obtain a Resolution of Support from the Local Main Street Program governing board in 
which the board commits to continuing Main Street district revitalization following the 
Main Street Approach® as developed by the Main Street America and espoused by the 
MSI Program.

9. Compliance:
a. Not assign this agreement to another organization without obtaining prior written 

approval of the IEDA.
b. Remain in compliance with the requirements of the MSI Program as outlined in this 

agreement and the administrative rules for the MSI Program, 261 IAC Chapter 39.  If the

149

Item 14.



 
Agreement # G300-MSI-06 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

IEDA finds that the Local Main Street Program is not in compliance with the 
requirements of this program agreement:  

i. IEDA shall issue an “Initial Warning” describing how the Local Main Street 
Program is out of compliance and provide guidance on how to resolve the 
issues.  The Local Main Street Program will have 90 days to resolve non-
compliance issues.  During this 90-day period, all Main Street Iowa services, with 
the exception of targeted technical assistance to help the Local Main Street 
Program mitigate non-compliant items, will be suspended. At the end of the 90-
day period, the IEDA will evaluate whether The Local Main Street Program has 
resolved the non-compliant issues.   

ii. If the Local Main Street Program is not in compliance at the end of the 90-day 
Initial Warning period, the IEDA may issue a Final Warning notifying the Local 
Main Street Program that, if the Local Main Street Program is not in compliance 
within 90 days after issuance of the Final Warning, Main Street Iowa may 
terminate this Agreement.   

iii. The IEDA will send Notice of Termination via overnight delivery service to the 
Local Main Street Program, the City, and Main Street America.  Termination of 
this Agreement will result in the loss of recognition as a participant in the MSI 
Program and discontinuation all services provided by IEDA. 

iv. Within 30 days after issuance of the Notice of Termination, the Local Main Street 
Program shall cease using the trademarked brand “Main Street” and/or “Main 
Street Program” in its name or as part of its organization’s identity. 

v. The City may reapply for Main Street Iowa designation.  
 

10. Main Street Re-Designation: 
a. Continued participation in the MSI Program after the term of this Agreement shall be 

contingent upon re-designation as a participant in the MSI Program. Submission of a 
request for re-designation shall be submitted at least 90 days prior to the end of the term 
of this Agreement.   

b. The IEDA will provide information and guidance regarding re-designation to the Local 
Main Street Program at least 6 months prior to the re-designation request submission 
deadline. 

c. To be re-designated as a participant in the MSI Program, at a minimum, the Local Main 
Street Program shall: 

i. Document local revitalization impacts through its partnership with Main Street 
Iowa; 

ii. Demonstrate the Local Main Street Program’s active utilization of MSI Program 
services and benefits; 

iii. Identify specific plans for future downtown/Main Street district revitalization; 
iv. Set out future Main Street Iowa technical assistance needs; and 
v. Demonstrate continued broad-based commitment and support of the Local Main 

Street Program and its revitalization efforts.    
 

SECTION II.  The CITY agrees to:  
  

1. Main Street Revitalization Support:  
a. Support and partner with the Local Main Street Program’s focus on the revitalization of 

the designated Main Street district utilizing the Main Street Approach®.    
b. Support the revitalization of the Main Street district by utilizing tools and resources that 

support Main Street district investment, for example: development incentives, ordinances 
and policy that promote the revitalization of the district, design guidelines or standards 
that promote the protection of the traditional character of the district, district development 
planning, etc.   

 

150

Item 14.



 
Agreement # G300-MSI-06 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

2. Main Street Financial Support: Invest financially into the operation of the Local Main Street 
Program.  

 
3. National Main Street Accreditation: Support the Local Main Street Program in compliance with 

this Agreement and with the completion of the annual Main Street America Accreditation and 
the re-designation process described above. 

 
4. Demonstrated Support: Pass a Resolution to demonstrate the City’s support of the Local Main 

Street Program and revitalization of the downtown/designated Main Street district as an 
important element of the City's economic development strategy. In the resolution, the City must 
commit to providing funding for the Local Main Street Program, appoint a City official to 
represent the City on the Local Main Street Program governing board, and commit to continuing 
to follow the Main Street Approach® as developed by the Main Street America and espoused by 
the MSI Program for local Main Street district revitalization efforts.   

 
SECTION III.  The IEDA agrees to:  
  

1. National Main Street Accreditation: Administer the Main Street America Accreditation process in 
Iowa on behalf of Main Street America and recognize Local Main Street Programs and Cities 
who successfully meet the Main Street America Accreditation Standards.    
 

2. Main Street Technical Assistance:  
a. Maintain a team of downtown revitalization specialists, including a Main Street Iowa 

State Coordinator, to manage communication between the Local Main Street Program, 
City, the Main Street Iowa Program, and state government agencies.  

b. Provide, as requested and as can be scheduled, on-site technical assistance to the 
Local Main Street Program and City by one or more downtown revitalization specialists.  
Technical assistance may include design, economic vitality, promotion, organization, 
committee training, board planning retreat facilitation, and action planning.    

c. Conduct an on-site partnership visit at least once every two years.  
d. Provide continuing advice and information to the Local Main Street Program and City.  

 
3. Main Street Training:  

a. Coordinate at least three (3) statewide training sessions annually for Local Main Street 
Programs and Cities.  The nature of training to be provided at each session shall be 
based on the combined needs of all Iowa Main Street Communities.  

b. Conduct at least three MSI Program orientations for all new Executive Directors and 
Local Main Street Program board members and volunteers.  The Orientation will 
introduce the Executive Director and Local Main Street Program volunteers and board 
members to the Main Street Program and to their immediate responsibilities. 

c. Offer optional regional training sessions. 
d. Statewide training sessions, orientations, and optional regional training sessions may be 

virtual, as determined by IEDA. 
 

4. Main Street Network: Include the Local Main Street Program and City in the Main Street Iowa 
network.  

 
5. Main Street Designation:  Create and implement a re-designation process to be completed by 

all Local Main Street Programs every five (5) years.  
  

151

Item 14.



152

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: November 29, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Housing Choice Voucher Program – Administrative Plan update  

 
Background 

The Housing Choice Voucher Program, commonly known as Section 8, is guided by an 

Administrative Plan. The purpose of the Administrative Plan is to establish guidelines for the 

Public Housing Agency (PHA) to manage the voucher program.  The basic guidelines for this 

plan are governed by requirements of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD), with latitude for local policies and procedures. The policies and 

procedures governing admissions and continued occupancy are outlined in this plan and these 

requirements are binding upon applicants, tenants, landlords, and to the Public Housing 

Agency alike. Notwithstanding the above, changes in applicable federal law or regulations 

supersede any provisions in conflict with this policy. 

 

Analysis  

The PHA last updated its Administrative Plan in 2015. The issue with our current format is that 

while it references HUD policies and procedures, it does not include detailed guidance on 

these policies and procedures, requiring staff to search through HUD online resources to find 

guidance when more complex issues arise.  

 

To provide for more efficient and up-to-date management of the program, staff obtained a 

model plan from Nan McKay & Associates, a leading firm that provides training and guidance 

on best practices for public housing agencies. The model Administrative Plan provides detailed 

guidance on HUD policies and procedures regarding management of the Housing Choice 

Voucher Program.  In addition, subscribing to the Nan McKay revision service will ensure that 

policies remain up-to-date as HUD makes regulatory changes and provides the tools to help 

ensure a thorough and accurate administrative plan is in place over time.   

 

The amended plan includes recommended language for each area in which we have the 

discretion or the flexibility to adopt our own policies. In areas where we currently do not have a 

153

Item 15.



policy, staff recommends using the model policies from Nan McKay. In this plan, HUD 

regulations and other requirements are described in detail with the appropriate citations to the 

applicable federal rules for reference as needed. 

 

While the updated plan includes significantly more language than the 2015 plan, much is not 

new policy or procedure, but merely provides more detail on how we already conduct our 

operations.  Language in all areas has been updated to reflect the current HUD procedures 

and practices by PHA’s throughout the nation, including updates to reflect new ways to 

conduct business using technology, which has been particularly helpful in preventing the 

spread of COVID-19.   

 

There are a just a couple areas where staff is recommending changes to our current policies. 

These substantive changes are described below:  

 

1) Chapter 3:  Eligibility  

While the regulations state that the PHA must prohibit admission for certain types of 

criminal activity (violent crimes and serious drug-related offenses), in recent years HUD has 

allowed and even encouraged PHA’s to use more discretion to consider mitigating 

circumstances for past criminal activity when making a decision to either approve or deny 

admission to the program or to terminate assistance. It is our understanding that HUD has 

moved toward a more discretionary and flexible policy in light of evidence that there has 

been disparate treatment in arrests and conviction rates for persons of color. The proposed 

policy provides better guidance to allow for a case-by-case review.  

 

2) Chapter 5: Briefings 

Within this section, we recommend changing the requirement for same sex children to 

share a bedroom. Currently children of the same gender who are up to seven years apart in 

age are required to share a bedroom. Reducing this requirement to five years apart will 

allow families more flexibility for children who vary significantly in developmental stage to 

be in separate bedrooms.  

 

Recommendation 

The attached, updated Administrative Plan was reviewed by the Housing Commission at their 

November 9th meeting and on a unanimous vote they recommended approval.  

 

The Planning & Community Services Division recommends that the Council adopt a resolution 
approving the attached, updated Administrative Plan for the Cedar Falls Housing Choice 
Voucher Program.  
 
 
Attachment: 2021 HCV Administrative Plan for the City of Cedar Falls Housing Authority 

154

Item 15.



 

 

 

HCV ADMINISTRATIVE 
PLAN 

  

EFFECTIVE  
The City of Cedar Falls Housing 
Authority 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

155

Item 15.



HCV Administrative Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

HCV Administrative Plan 
T H E  C I T Y  O F  C E D A R  F A L L S  H O U S I N G  A U T H O R I T Y  

 

 

 

 

Approved by the HA Board of Commissioners:  

 

Submitted to HUD:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Copyright 2020 by Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. 

All rights reserved 

Permission to reprint granted only to the Public Housing Authority or Housing Agency that has 
purchased this plan from Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. This document may not be reprinted or 
distributed to any other person or entity other than the purchasing agency without the express written 
permission of Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. 

156

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-1

Introduction 
ABOUT THE REFERENCES CITED IN THE MODEL ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN 

Chapter 1 
OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAM AND PLAN 

PART I: THE PHA ................................................................................................................ 1-1 
1-I.A. Overview ................................................................................................. 1-1 
1-I.B. Organization and Structure of the PHA .................................................. 1-2 
1-I.C. PHA Mission .......................................................................................... 1-2 
1-I.D. The PHA’s Programs .............................................................................. 1-3 
1-I.E. The PHA’s Commitment to Ethics and Service ..................................... 1-3 

PART II: THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER (HCV) PROGRAM ................................. 1-5 
1-II.A. Overview and History of the Program .................................................... 1-5 
1-II.B. HCV Program Basics .............................................................................. 1-7 
1-II.C. The HCV Partnerships ............................................................................ 1-7 

The HCV Relationships: ................................................................... 1-8 
What Does HUD Do? ....................................................................... 1-9 
What Does the PHA Do? .................................................................. 1-9 
What Does the Owner Do? ............................................................. 1-10 
What Does the Family Do? ............................................................. 1-11 

1-II.D. Applicable Regulations ......................................................................... 1-12 

PART III: THE HCV ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN ............................................................... 1-13 
1-III.A. Overview and Purpose of the Plan ........................................................ 1-13 
1-III.B. Contents of the Plan (24CFR 982.54) ................................................... 1-13 

Mandatory vs. Discretionary Policy ............................................... 1-15 
1-III.C. Organization of the Plan ....................................................................... 1-15 
1-III.D. Updating and Revising the Plan ........................................................... 1-15 

157

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-2

Chapter 2 
FAIR HOUSING AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

PART I: NONDISCRIMINATION ....................................................................................... 2-3 
2-I.A. Overview ................................................................................................. 2-3 
2-I.B. Nondiscrimination .................................................................................. 2-4 

Providing Information to Families and Owners ............................... 2-5 
Discrimination Complaints ............................................................... 2-5 

PART II: POLICIES RELATED TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES ............................. 2-7 
2-II.A. Overview ................................................................................................. 2-7 
2-II.B. Definition of Reasonable Accommodation ............................................ 2-8 

Types of Reasonable Accommodations ............................................ 2-8 
2-II.C. Request for an Accommodation ............................................................. 2-9 
2-II.D. Verification of Disability ...................................................................... 2-10 
2-II.E. Approval/Denial of a Requested Accommodation  

[Joint Statement of the Departments of HUD and Justice:  
Reasonable Accommodations under the Fair Housing Act,  
Notice PIH 2010-26]. ............................................................................ 2-11 

2-II.F. Program Accessibility for Persons with Hearing  
or Vision Impairments  ......................................................................... 2-12 

2-II.G. Physical Accessibility ........................................................................... 2-13 
2-II.H. Denial or Termination of Assistance .................................................... 2-14 

PART III: IMPROVING ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED 
ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP) ....................................................................... 2-15 
2-III.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 2-15 
2-III.B. Oral Interpretation ................................................................................ 2-16 
2-III.C. Written Translation ............................................................................... 2-16 
2-III.D. Implementation Plan ............................................................................. 2-17 

Exhibit 2-1: Definition of a Person with a Disability Under  
Federal Civil Rights Laws [24 CFR Parts 8.3, and 100.201] ............................... 2-19 

158

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-3

Chapter 3 
ELIGIBILITY 

PART I: DEFINITIONS OF FAMILY AND HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS ......................... 3-3 
3-I.A. Overview ................................................................................................. 3-3 
3-I.B. Family and Household [24 CFR 982.201(c); FR Notice 02/03/12;  

Notice PIH 2014-20] ............................................................................... 3-3 
Family ............................................................................................... 3-3 
Household ......................................................................................... 3-3 

3-I.C. Family Breakup and Remaining Member of Tenant Family .................. 3-4 
Family Breakup [24 CFR 982.315; Notice PIH 2017-08] ................ 3-4 
Remaining Member of a Tenant Family [24 CFR 5.403] ................ 3-5 

3-I.D. Head of Household [24 CFR 5.504(b)] .................................................. 3-5 
3-I.E. Spouse, Cohead, and Other Adult  .......................................................... 3-5 
3-I.F. Dependent [24 CFR 5.603] ..................................................................... 3-6 

Joint Custody of Dependents ............................................................ 3-6 
3-I.G. Full-Time Student [24 CFR 5.603, HVC GB, p. 5-29] .......................... 3-6 
3-I.H. Elderly and Near-Elderly Persons, and Elderly Family  

[24 CFR 5.100 and 5.403, FR Notice 02/03/12] ..................................... 3-6 
Elderly Persons  ................................................................................ 3-6 
Near-Elderly Persons ........................................................................ 3-6 
Elderly Family .................................................................................. 3-6 

3-I.I. Persons with Disabilities and Disabled Family [24 CFR 5.403,  
FR Notice 02/03/12] ............................................................................... 3-7 

Persons with Disabilities ................................................................... 3-7 
Disabled Family ................................................................................ 3-7 

3-I.J. Guests [24 CFR 5.100] ........................................................................... 3-7 
3.I.K. Foster Children and Foster Adults .......................................................... 3-8 
3-I.L. Absent Family Members ......................................................................... 3-8 

Definitions of Temporarily and Permanently Absent ....................... 3-8 
Absent Students ................................................................................ 3-8 
Absences Due to Placement in Foster Care [24 CFR 5.403] ............ 3-9 
Absent Head, Spouse, or Cohead ..................................................... 3-9 
Family Members Permanently Confined for Medical Reasons  
[HCV GB, p. 5-22] ........................................................................... 3-9 
Return of Permanently Absent Family Members ............................. 3-9 

3-I.M. Live-In Aide .......................................................................................... 3-10 

159

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-4

PART II: BASIC ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA ....................................................................... 3-11 
3-II.A. Income Eligibility and Targeting .......................................................... 3-11 

Income Limits ................................................................................. 3-11 
Definitions of the Income Limits [24 CFR 5.603(b)] ..................... 3-11 
Using Income Limits for Eligibility [24 CFR 982.201] ................. 3-11 
Using Income Limits for Targeting [24 CFR 982.201] .................. 3-12 

3-II.B. Citizenship or Eligible Immigration Status [24 CFR 5, Subpart E] ..... 3-13 
Declaration [24 CFR 5.508] ........................................................... 3-13 
Mixed Families ............................................................................... 3-14 
Ineligible Families [24 CFR 5.514(d), (e), and (f)] ........................ 3-14 
Timeframe for Determination of Citizenship Status  
[24 CFR 5.508(g)] .......................................................................... 3-15 

3-II.C. Social Security Numbers [24 CFR 5.216 and 5.218,  
Notice PIH 2018-24] ............................................................................. 3-15 

3-II.D. Family Consent to Release of Information [24 CFR 5.230;  
HCV GB, p. 5-13] ................................................................................. 3-16 

3-II.E. Students Enrolled In Institutions of Higher Education  
[24 CFR 5.612, FR Notice 4/10/06, FR Notice 9/21/16]...................... 3-17 

Definitions ...................................................................................... 3-17 
Determining Student Eligibility ...................................................... 3-21 

PART III: DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE ................................................................................ 3-24 
3-III.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 3-24 

Forms of Denial [24 CFR 982.552(a)(2); HCV GB, p. 5-35] ........ 3-25 
Prohibited Reasons for Denial of Program Assistance  
[24 CFR 982.202(b), 24 CFR 5.2005(b)] ....................................... 3-25 

3-III.B. Mandatory Denial of Assistance [24 CFR 982.553(a)] ........................ 3-26 
3-III.C. Other Permitted Reasons for Denial of Assistance ............................... 3-27 

Criminal Activity [24 CFR 982.553] .............................................. 3-27 
Previous Behavior in Assisted Housing [24 CFR 982.552(c)] ....... 3-28 

3-III.D. Screening .............................................................................................. 3-29 
Screening for Eligibility ................................................................. 3-29 
Screening for Suitability as a Tenant [24 CFR 982.307] ................ 3-30 

3-III.E. Criteria for Deciding to Deny Assistance ............................................. 3-31 
Evidence [24 CFR 982.553(c)] ....................................................... 3-31 
Consideration of Circumstances [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)] .............. 3-31 
Removal of a Family Member's Name from the Application ........ 3-33 
Reasonable Accommodation [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)(iv)] ............. 3-33 

3-III.F. Notice of Eligibility or Denial .............................................................. 3-34 

160

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-5

3-III.G. Prohibition Against Denial of Assistance to Victims of Domestic 
Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, and Stalking .................... 3-35 

Notification ..................................................................................... 3-35 
Documentation ................................................................................ 3-36 

Exhibit 3-1: Detailed Definitions Related to Disabilities ......................................................... 3-37 
Person with Disabilities [24 CFR 5.403] ........................................ 3-37 
Individual with Handicaps [24 CFR 8.3] ........................................ 3-39 

Exhibit 3-2: Definition of Institution of Higher Education [20 U.S.C 1001 and 1002] ............ 3-41 
Eligibility of Students for Assisted Housing Under Section 8  
of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937; Supplementary Guidance;  
Notice [Federal Register, April 10, 2006] ...................................... 3-41 

161

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-6

Chapter 4 
APPLICATIONS, WAITING LIST AND TENANT SELECTION 

PART I: THE APPLICATION PROCESS ........................................................................... 4-3 
4-I.A. Overview ................................................................................................. 4-3 
4-I.B. Applying for Assistance  

[HCV GB, pp. 4-11 – 4-16, Notice PIH 2009-36] .................................. 4-3 
4-I.C. Accessibility of the Application Process ................................................ 4-4 

Elderly and Disabled Populations [24 CFR 8 and HCV GB,  
pp. 4-11 – 4-13] ................................................................................ 4-4 
Limited English Proficiency ............................................................. 4-4 

4-I.D. Placement on the Waiting List ................................................................ 4-5 
Ineligible for Placement on the Waiting List .................................... 4-5 
Eligible for Placement on the Waiting List ...................................... 4-5 

PART II: MANAGING THE WAITING LIST ...................................................................... 4-7 
4-II.A. Overview ................................................................................................. 4-7 
4-II.B. Organization of the Waiting List [24 CFR 982.204 and 205] ................ 4-7 
4-II.C. Opening and Closing the Waiting List [24 CFR 982.206] ..................... 4-8 

Closing the Waiting List ................................................................... 4-8 
Reopening the Waiting List .............................................................. 4-8 

4-II.D. Family Outreach [HCV GB, pp. 4-2 to 4-4] ........................................... 4-9 
4-II.E. Reporting Changes in Family Circumstances ....................................... 4-10 
4-II.F. Updating the Waiting List [24 CFR 982.204] ...................................... 4-10 

Purging the Waiting List ................................................................. 4-10 
Removal from the Waiting List ...................................................... 4-11 

PART III: SELECTION FOR HCV ASSISTANCE ............................................................. 4-13 
4-III.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 4-13 
4-III.B. Selection and HCV Funding Sources ................................................... 4-13 

Special Admissions [24 CFR 982.203] .......................................... 4-13 
Targeted Funding [24 CFR 982.204(e)] ......................................... 4-13 
Regular HCV Funding .................................................................... 4-13 

4-III.C. Selection Method .................................................................................. 4-14 
Local Preferences [24 CFR 982.207; HCV p. 4-16] ...................... 4-14 
Income Targeting Requirement [24 CFR 982.201(b)(2)] ............... 4-15 
Order of Selection ........................................................................... 4-15 

4-III.D. Notification of Selection ....................................................................... 4-16 
4-III.E. The Application Interview .................................................................... 4-16 
4-III.F. Completing the Application Process .................................................... 4-18 

162

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-7

Chapter 5 
BRIEFINGS AND VOUCHER ISSUANCE 

PART I: BRIEFINGS AND FAMILY OBLIGATIONS ...................................................... 5-1 
5-I.A. Overview ................................................................................................. 5-1 
5-I.B. Briefing [24 CFR 982.301] ..................................................................... 5-2 

Notification and Attendance ............................................................. 5-2 
Oral Briefing [24 CFR 982.301(a)] .................................................. 5-3 
Briefing Packet [24 CFR 982.301(b)] .............................................. 5-4 
Additional Items to be Included in the Briefing Packet ................... 5-5 

5-I.C. Family Obligations  ................................................................................ 5-6 
Time Frames for Reporting Changes Required by Family  
Obligations ........................................................................................ 5-6 
Family Obligations [24 CFR 982.551] ............................................. 5-6 

PART II: SUBSIDY STANDARDS AND VOUCHER ISSUANCE .................................. 5-11 
5-II.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 5-11 
5-II.B. Determining Family Unit (Voucher) Size [24 CFR 982.402] .............. 5-11 
5-II.C. Exceptions to Subsidy Standards .......................................................... 5-13 
5-II.D. Voucher Issuance [24 CFR 982.302] .................................................... 5-14 
5-II.E. Voucher Term and Extensions .............................................................. 5-15 

Voucher Term [24 CFR 982.303] ................................................... 5-15 
Extensions of Voucher Term [24 CFR 982.303(b)] ....................... 5-15 
Suspensions of Voucher Term [24 CFR 982.303(c)] ..................... 5-17 
Expiration of Voucher Term ........................................................... 5-17 

163

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-8

Chapter 6 
INCOME AND SUBSIDY DETERMINATIONS 

[24 CFR Part 5, Subparts E and F; 24 CFR 982] 

PART I: ANNUAL INCOME ............................................................................................... 6-2 
6-I.A. Overview ................................................................................................. 6-2 
6-I.B. Household Composition and Income ...................................................... 6-3 

Summary of Income Included and Excluded by Person ................... 6-3 
Temporarily Absent Family Members .............................................. 6-4 
Family Members Permanently Confined for Medical Reasons ........ 6-5 
Joint Custody of Dependents ............................................................ 6-5 
Caretakers for a Child ....................................................................... 6-6 

6-I.C. Anticipating Annual Income  .................................................................. 6-7 
Basis of Annual Income Projection .................................................. 6-7 
Projecting Income ............................................................................. 6-8 

6-I.D. Earned Income ........................................................................................ 6-9 
Types of Earned Income Included in Annual Income ...................... 6-9 
Types of Earned Income Not Counted in Annual Income ............... 6-9 

6-I.E. Earned Income Disallowance for Persons with Disabilities  
[24 CFR 5.617; Streamlining Final Rule (SFR)  
Federal Register 3/8/16] ....................................................................... 6-13 

Eligibility ........................................................................................ 6-13 
Calculation of the Disallowance ..................................................... 6-14 
Calculation Method ........................................................................ 6-14 

6-I.F. Business Income [24 CFR 5.609(b)(2)] ................................................ 6-15 
Business Expenses .......................................................................... 6-15 
Business Expansion ........................................................................ 6-15 
Capital Indebtedness ....................................................................... 6-15 
Negative Business Income .............................................................. 6-16 
Withdrawal of Cash or Assets from a Business .............................. 6-16 
Co-owned Businesses ..................................................................... 6-16 

6-I.G. Assets [24 CFR 5.609(b)(3); 24 CFR 5.603(b)] ................................... 6-17 
Overview ......................................................................................... 6-17 
General Policies .............................................................................. 6-17 
Types of Assets ............................................................................... 6-21 

6-I.H. Periodic Payments ................................................................................ 6-25 
Periodic Payments Included in Annual Income .............................. 6-25 
Lump-Sum Payments for the Delayed Start of a  
Periodic Payment ............................................................................ 6-25 
Treatment of Overpayment Deductions from  
Social Security Benefits .................................................................. 6-25 
Periodic Payments Excluded from Annual Income ........................ 6-26 

6-I.I. Payments In Lieu of Earnings ............................................................... 6-27 

164

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-9

6-I.J. Welfare Assistance ............................................................................... 6-28 
Overview ......................................................................................... 6-28 
Sanctions Resulting in the Reduction of Welfare Benefits  
[24 CFR 5.615] ............................................................................... 6-28 

6-I.K. Periodic and Determinable Allowances [24 CFR 5.609(b)(7)] ............ 6-29 
Alimony and Child Support ............................................................ 6-29 
Regular Contributions or Gifts ....................................................... 6-29 

6-I.L. Student Financial Assistance [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9);  
Notice PIH 2015-21] ............................................................................. 6-30 

Student Financial Assistance Included in Annual Income  
[24 CFR 5.609(b)(9) ); FR 4/10/06; Notice PIH 2015-21] ............. 6-30 
Student Financial Assistance Excluded from Annual Income  
[24 CFR 5.609(c)(6)] ...................................................................... 6-31 

6-I.M. Additional Exclusions From Annual Income ....................................... 6-32 

PART II: ADJUSTED INCOME.......................................................................................... 6-35 
6-II.A. Introduction ........................................................................................... 6-35 

Overview ......................................................................................... 6-35 
Anticipating Expenses .................................................................... 6-35 

6-II.B. Dependent Deduction ........................................................................... 6-36 
6-II.C.  Elderly or Disabled Family Deduction ................................................. 6-36 
6-II.D. Medical Expenses Deduction [24 CFR 5.611(a)(3)(i)] ........................ 6-37 

Definition of Medical Expenses ...................................................... 6-37 
Summary of Allowable Medical Expenses from IRS  
Publication 502 ............................................................................... 6-37 
Families That Qualify for Both Medical and Disability  
Assistance Expenses ....................................................................... 6-38 

6-II.E. Disability Assistance Expenses Deduction [24 CFR 5.603(b) and  
24 CFR 5.611(a)(3)(ii)] ........................................................................ 6-39 

Earned Income Limit on the Disability Assistance  
Expense Deduction ......................................................................... 6-39 
Eligible Disability Expenses ........................................................... 6-40 
Necessary and Reasonable Expenses .............................................. 6-41 
Families That Qualify for Both Medical and Disability  
Assistance Expenses ....................................................................... 6-41 

6-II.F. Child Care Expense Deduction ............................................................. 6-42 
Clarifying the Meaning of Child for This Deduction ..................... 6-42 
Qualifying for the Deduction .......................................................... 6-42 
Earned Income Limit on Child Care Expense Deduction .............. 6-43 
Eligible Child Care Expenses ......................................................... 6-44 

165

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-10

PART III: CALCULATING FAMILY SHARE AND PHA SUBSIDY ............................... 6-45 
6-III.A. Overview of Rent and Subsidy Calculations ........................................ 6-45 

TTP Formula [24 CFR 5.628] ........................................................ 6-45 
Family Share [24 CFR 982.305(a)(5)] ............................................ 6-45 
PHA Subsidy [24 CFR 982.505(b)]................................................ 6-46 
Utility Reimbursement [24 CFR 982.514(b); 982.514(c)] ............. 6-50 

6-III.B. Financial Hardships Affecting Minimum Rent [24 CFR 5.630] .......... 6-47 
Overview ......................................................................................... 6-47 
HUD-Defined Financial Hardship .................................................. 6-47 
Implementation of Hardship Exemption ........................................ 6-48 

6-III.C. Applying Payment Standards [24 CFR 982.505; 982.503(b)] ............. 6-50 
Overview ......................................................................................... 6-50 
Changes in Payment Standards ....................................................... 6-50 
Reasonable Accommodation .......................................................... 6-51 

6-III.D. Applying Utility Allowances [24 CFR 982.517] .................................. 6-52 
Overview ......................................................................................... 6-52 
Reasonable Accommodation .......................................................... 6-52 
Utility Allowance Revisions ........................................................... 6-52 

6-III.E. Prorated Assistance for Mixed Families [24 CFR 5.520] ..................... 6-53 

Exhibit 6-1: Annual Income Inclusions .................................................................................... 6-55 
HHS Definition of "Assistance" ........................................................................... 6-56 

Exhibit 6-2: Annual Income Exclusions ................................................................................... 6-58 

Exhibit 6-3: Treatment of Family Assets .................................................................................. 6-60 

Exhibit 6-4: Earned Income Disallowance for Persons with Disabilities ................................. 6-61 

Exhibit 6-5: The Effect of Welfare Benefit Reduction ............................................................. 6-63 

166

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-11

Chapter 7 
VERIFICATION 

[24 CFR 982.516, 24 CFR 982.551, 24 CFR 5.230, Notice PIH 2018-18] 

PART I: GENERAL VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS ................................................. 7-1 
7-I.A. Family Consent to Release of Information [24 CFR 982.516  

and 982.551, 24 CFR 5.230] ................................................................... 7-1 
Consent Forms .................................................................................. 7-1 
Penalties for Failing to Consent [24 CFR 5.232] ............................. 7-1 

7-I.B. Overview of Verification Requirements ................................................. 7-2 
HUD’s Verification Hierarchy [Notice PIH 2018-18] ..................... 7-2 
Requirements for Acceptable Documents ........................................ 7-2 
File Documentation .......................................................................... 7-3 

7-I.C. Up-Front Income Verification (UIV) ..................................................... 7-3 
Upfront Income Verification Using HUD’s Enterprise Income 
Verification (EIV) System (Mandatory) ........................................... 7-4 
Upfront Income Verification Using Non-HUD  
Systems (Optional) ........................................................................... 7-5 

7-I.D. Third-Party Written and Oral Verification ............................................. 7-6 
Written Third-Party Verification [Notice PIH 2018-18] .................. 7-6 
Written Third-Party Verification Form ............................................ 7-7 
Oral Third-Party Verification [Notice PIH 2018-18] ....................... 7-7 
When Third-Party Verification is Not Required  
[Notice PIH 2018-18] ....................................................................... 7-8 

7-I.E. Self-Certification .................................................................................... 7-9 

PART II: VERIFYING FAMILY INFORMATION ............................................................ 7-11 
7-II.A. Verification of Legal Identity ............................................................... 7-11 
7-II.B. Social Security Numbers [24 CFR 5.216, Notice PIH 2018-24] .......... 7-12 
7-II.C. Documentation of Age .......................................................................... 7-14 
7-II.D. Family Relationships ............................................................................ 7-14 

Marriage .......................................................................................... 7-14 
Separation or Divorce ..................................................................... 7-15 
Absence of Adult Member .............................................................. 7-15 
Foster Children and Foster Adults .................................................. 7-15 

7-II.E. Verification of Student Status ............................................................... 7-16 
General Requirements .................................................................... 7-16 
Restrictions on Assistance to Students Enrolled in  
Institutions of Higher Education ..................................................... 7-16 

7-II.F. Documentation of Disability ................................................................. 7-17 
Family Members Receiving SSA Disability Benefits .................... 7-18 
Family Members Not Receiving SSA Disability Benefits ............. 7-18 

7-II.G. Citizenship or Eligible Immigration Status [24 CFR 5.508] ................ 7-19 
Overview ......................................................................................... 7-19 
U.S. Citizens and Nationals ............................................................ 7-19 
Eligible Immigrants ........................................................................ 7-20 

7-II.H. Verification of Preference Status .......................................................... 7-20 

167

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-12

PART III: VERIFYING INCOME AND ASSETS ............................................................... 7-21 
7-III.A. Earned Income ...................................................................................... 7-21 

Tips ................................................................................................. 7-21 
7-III.B. Business and Self Employment Income ............................................... 7-21 
7-III.C. Periodic Payments and Payments In Lieu of Earnings ......................... 7-22 

Social Security/SSI Benefits ........................................................... 7-22 
7-III.D. Alimony or Child Support .................................................................... 7-23 
7-III.E. Assets and Income From Assets ........................................................... 7-24 

Assets Disposed of for Less than Fair Market Value ..................... 7-24 
7-III.F. Net Income From Rental Property ........................................................ 7-22 
7-III.G. Retirement Accounts ............................................................................ 7-25 
7-III.H. Income From Excluded Sources ........................................................... 7-26 
7-III.I. Zero Annual Income Status .................................................................. 7-26 
7-III.J. Student Financial Assistance [Notice PIH 2015-21] ............................ 7-27 
7-III.K. Parental Income of Students Subject to Eligibility Restrictions ........... 7-28 

PART IV: VERIFYING MANDATORY DEDUCTIONS ................................................... 7-29 
7-IV.A. Dependent and Elderly/Disabled Household Deductions ..................... 7-29 

Dependent Deduction ..................................................................... 7-29 
Elderly/Disabled Family Deduction ............................................... 7-27 

7-IV.B. Medical Expense Deduction ................................................................. 7-30 
Amount of Expense ........................................................................ 7-30 
Eligible Household ......................................................................... 7-31 
Qualified Expenses ......................................................................... 7-31 
Unreimbursed Expenses ................................................................. 7-31 
Expenses Incurred in Past Years ..................................................... 7-31 

7-IV.C. Disability Assistance Expenses ............................................................ 7-32 
Amount of Expense ........................................................................ 7-32 
Family Member is a Person with Disabilities ................................. 7-33 
Family Member(s) Permitted to Work ........................................... 7-33 
Unreimbursed Expenses ................................................................. 7-33 

7-IV.D. Child Care Expenses ............................................................................. 7-34 
Eligible Child .................................................................................. 7-34 
Unreimbursed Expense ................................................................... 7-34 
Pursuing an Eligible Activity  ......................................................... 7-35 
Allowable Type of Child Care ........................................................ 7-36 
Reasonableness of Expenses ........................................................... 7-36 

Exhibit 7-1: Summary of Documentation Requirements for Noncitizens  
[HCV GB, pp. 5-9 and 5-10] ................................................................................ 7-37 

168

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-13

Chapter 8 
HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS AND RENT REASONABLENESS 

DETERMINATIONS 
[24 CFR 982 Subpart I and 24 CFR 982.507] 

PART I: PHYSICAL STANDARDS .................................................................................... 8-2 
8-I.A. General HUD Requirements ................................................................... 8-2 

HUD Performance and Acceptability Standards .............................. 8-2 
Tenant Preference Items ................................................................... 8-2 
Modifications to Provide Accessibility ............................................ 8-3 

8-I.B. This section is removed-does not pertain to this program  
8-I.C. Life-Threatening Conditions [24 CFR 982.404(a);  

FR Notice 1/18/17] ................................................................................. 8-6 
8-I.D. Owner and Family Responsibilities [24 CFR 982.404] .......................... 8-9 

Family Responsibilities .................................................................... 8-9 
Owner Responsibilities ..................................................................... 8-7 

8-I-E. Special Requirements for Children with Elevated Blood  
Lead Level [24 CFR 35.1225; FR Notice 1/13/17;  
Notice PIH 2017-13] ............................................................................. 8-10 

8-I-F. Violation of HQS Space Standards  
[24 CFR 982.401, 24 CFR 982.403] ..................................................... 8-10 

PART II: THE INSPECTION PROCESS ............................................................................ 8-11 
8-II.A. Overview [24 CFR 982.405] ................................................................ 8-11 

Types of Inspections ....................................................................... 8-11 
Inspection of PHA-Owned Units [24 CFR 982.352(b)] ................. 8-11 
Inspection Costs [Notice PIH 2016-05] .......................................... 8-12 
Notice and Scheduling .................................................................... 8-12 
Owner and Family Inspection Attendance ..................................... 8-12 

8-II.B. Initial HQS Inspection [24 CFR 982.401(a)] ....................................... 8-13 
Initial Inspections [FR Notice 1/18/17] .......................................... 8-13 
Timing of Initial Inspections .......................................................... 8-13 
Inspection Results and Reinspections ............................................. 8-13 
Utilities ........................................................................................... 8-14 
Appliances [Form HUD-52580] ..................................................... 8-14 

8-II.C. Annual/Biennial HQS Inspections [24 CFR 982.405 and 982.406;  
Notice PIH 2016-05] ............................................................................. 8-15 

Scheduling the Inspection ............................................................... 8-15 
8-II.D. Special Inspections [24 CFR 982.405(g)] ............................................ 8-15 
8-II.E. Quality Control Inspections [24 CFR 982.405(b),  

HCV GB p. 10-32] ................................................................................ 8-16 

169

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-14

8-II.F. Inspection Results and Reinspections for Units Under  
HAP Contract ........................................................................................ 8-16 

Notification of Corrective Actions ................................................. 8-16 
Extensions ....................................................................................... 8-17 
Reinspections .................................................................................. 8-17 

8-II.G. Enforcing Owner Compliance .............................................................. 8-18 
HAP Abatement .............................................................................. 8-18 
HAP Contract Termination ............................................................. 8-18 

8-II.H. Enforcing Family Compliance with HQS [24 CFR 982.404(b)] .......... 8-18 

PART III: RENT REASONABLENESS [24 CFR 982.507] ................................................. 8-19 
8-III.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 8-19 

PHA-Owned Units [24 CFR 982.352(b)] ....................................... 8-19 
8-III.B. When Rent Reasonableness Determinations Are Required .................. 8-20 

Owner-Initiated Rent Determinations ............................................. 8-20 
PHA- and HUD-Initiated Rent Reasonableness Determinations ... 8-20 
LIHTC- and HOME-Assisted Units [24 CFR 982.507(c)  ............. 8-21 

8-III.C. How Comparability Is Established ....................................................... 8-21 
Factors to Consider ......................................................................... 8-21 
Units that Must Not be Used as Comparables ................................ 8-21 
Rents Charged for Other Units on the Premises ............................. 8-22 

8-III.D. PHA Rent Reasonableness Methodology ............................................. 8-23 
How Market Data Is Collected ....................................................... 8-23 
How Rents Are Determined ............................................................ 8-23 

Exhibit 8-1: Overview of HUD Housing Quality Standards .................................................... 8-25 

Exhibit 8-2: Summary of Tenant Preference Areas Related to Housing Quality ..................... 8-29 

170

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-15

Chapter 9 
GENERAL LEASING POLICIES 

9-I.A. Tenant Screening .................................................................................... 9-2 
9-I.B. Requesting Tenancy Approval [Form HUD-52517] .............................. 9-3 
9-I.C. Owner Participation ................................................................................ 9-4 
9-I.D. Eligible Units .......................................................................................... 9-5 

Ineligible Units [24 CFR 982.352(a)] ............................................... 9-5 
PHA-Owned Units [24 CFR 982.352(b)] ......................................... 9-5 
Special Housing Types [24 CFR 982 Subpart M] ............................ 9-5 
Duplicative Assistance [24 CFR 982.352(c)] ................................... 9-6 
Housing Quality Standards (HQS) [24 CFR 982.305 and  
24 CFR 982.401] .............................................................................. 9-6 
Unit Size ........................................................................................... 9-7 
Rent Reasonableness [24 CFR 982.305 and 24 CFR 982.507] ........ 9-7 
Rent Burden [24 CFR 982.508] ........................................................ 9-7 

9-I.E. Lease and Tenancy Addendum ............................................................... 9-8 
Lease Form and Tenancy Addendum [24 CFR 982.308] ................. 9-8 
Lease Information [24 CFR 982.308(d)] .......................................... 9-8 
Term of Assisted Tenancy ................................................................ 9-9 
Security Deposit [24 CFR 982.313 (a) and (b)] ............................... 9-9 
Separate Non-Lease Agreements between Owner and Tenant ....... 9-10 
PHA Review of Lease .................................................................... 9-11 

9-I.F. Tenancy Approval [24 CFR 982.305] .................................................. 9-12 
9-I.G. HAP Contract Execution [24 CFR 982.305] ........................................ 9-13 
9-I.H. Changes in Lease or Rent [24 CFR 982.308] ....................................... 9-14 

171

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-16

Chapter 10 
MOVING WITH CONTINUED ASSISTANCE AND PORTABILITY 

PART I: MOVING WITH CONTINUED ASSISTANCE ................................................. 10-1 
10-I.A. Allowable Moves .................................................................................. 10-1 
10-I.B. Restrictions On Moves ......................................................................... 10-3 

Denial of Moves ............................................................................. 10-3 
Restrictions on Elective Moves [24 CFR 982.354(c)] .................... 10-4 

10-I.C. Moving Process .................................................................................... 10-5 
Notification ..................................................................................... 10-5 
Approval ......................................................................................... 10-5 
Reexamination of Family Income and Composition ...................... 10-5 
Voucher Issuance and Briefing ....................................................... 10-5 
Housing Assistance Payments [24 CFR 982.311(d)] ..................... 10-6 
Zero HAP Families Who Wish to Move [24 CFR 982.455] .......... 10-6 

PART II: PORTABILITY .................................................................................................... 10-7 
10-II.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 10-7 
10-II.B. Initial PHA Role ................................................................................... 10-8 

Allowable Moves under Portability ................................................ 10-8 
Determining Income Eligibility ...................................................... 10-9 
Reexamination of Family Income and Composition ...................... 10-9 
Briefing ......................................................................................... 10-10 
Voucher Issuance and Term ......................................................... 10-10 
Voucher Extensions and Expiration ............................................. 10-10 
Preapproval Contact with the Receiving PHA ............................. 10-11 
Initial Notification to the Receiving PHA .................................... 10-11 
Sending Documentation to the Receiving PHA ........................... 10-12 
Initial Billing Deadline [Notice PIH 2016-09] ............................. 10-13 
Monthly Billing Payments [Notice PIH 2016-09] ........................ 10-14 
Annual Updates of Form HUD-50058 ......................................... 10-14 
Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 982.355(c)(17)] ... 10-14 

10-II.C. Receiving PHA Role ........................................................................... 10-15 
Responding to Initial PHA’s Request [24 CFR 982.355(c)] ........ 10-15 
Initial Contact with Family ........................................................... 10-15 
Briefing ......................................................................................... 10-16 
Income Eligibility and Reexamination ......................................... 10-16 
Voucher Issuance .......................................................................... 10-17 
Notifying the Initial PHA ............................................................. 10-18 
Administering a Portable Family’s Voucher ................................ 10-18 
Absorbing a Portable Family ........................................................ 10-22 

172

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-17

Chapter 11 
REEXAMINATIONS 

PART I: ANNUAL REEXAMINATIONS [24 CFR 982.516] ........................................... 11-1 
11-I.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 11-1 
11-I.B Streamlined Annual Reexaminations [24 CFR 982.516(b)] ................. 11-2 
11-I.C. Scheduling Annual Reexaminations ..................................................... 11-3 

Notification of and Participation in the Annual  
Reexamination Process ................................................................... 11-3 

11-I.D. Conducting Annual Reexaminations .................................................... 11-4 
11-I.E. Determining Ongoing Eligibility of Certain Students  

[24 CFR 982.552(b)(5)] ........................................................................ 11-6 
11-I.F. Effective Dates ...................................................................................... 11-7 

PART II: INTERIM REEXAMINATIONS [24 CFR 982.516] ........................................... 11-9 
11-II.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 11-9 
11-II.B. Changes In Family and Household Composition ................................. 11-9 

New Family Members Not Requiring PHA Approval ................... 11-9 
New Family and Household Members Requiring Approval ........ 11-10 
Departure of a Family or Household Member .............................. 11-11 

11-II.C. Changes Affecting Income or Expenses ............................................. 11-12 
PHA-Initiated Interim Reexaminations ........................................ 11-12 
Family-Initiated Interim Reexaminations ..................................... 11-13 

11-II.D. Processing the Interim Reexamination ............................................... 11-14 
Method of Reporting ..................................................................... 11-14 
Effective Dates .............................................................................. 11-14 

PART III: RECALCULATING FAMILY SHARE AND SUBSIDY AMOUNT .............. 11-15 
11-III.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 11-15 
11-III.B. Changes In Payment Standards and Utility Allowances .................... 11-15 

Payment Standards [24 CFR 982.505] ......................................... 11-15 
Subsidy Standards [24 CFR 982.505(c)(4)] ................................. 11-16 
Utility Allowances [24 CFR 982.517(d)] ..................................... 11-16 

11-III.C. Notification of New Family Share and HAP Amount ........................ 11-16 
11-III.D. Discrepancies ...................................................................................... 11-17 

173

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-18

Chapter 12 
TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE AND TENANCY 

PART I: GROUNDS FOR TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE ...................................... 12-1 
12-I.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 12-1 
12-I.B. Family No Longer Requires Assistance [24 CFR 982.455] ................. 12-1 
12-I.C. Family Chooses to Terminate Assistance ............................................. 12-2 
12-I.D. Mandatory Termination of Assistance .................................................. 12-2 

Eviction [24 CFR 982.552(b)(2), 24 CFR 5.2005(c)(1)] ................ 12-2 
Failure to Provide Consent [24 CFR 982.552(b)(3)] ...................... 12-2 
Failure to Document Citizenship [24 CFR 982.552(b)(4)  
and 24 CFR 5.514(c)] ..................................................................... 12-3 
Failure to Disclose and Document Social Security Numbers 
[24 CFR 5.218(c), Notice PIH 2018-24] ........................................ 12-3 
Methamphetamine Manufacture or Production  
[24 CFR 983.553(b)(1)(ii)] ............................................................. 12-3 
Failure of Students to Meet Ongoing Eligibility  
Requirements [24 CFR 982.552(b)(5) and FR 4/10/06] ................. 12-3 
Death of the Sole Family Member [24 CFR 982.311(d) and 
Notice PIH 2010-9] ......................................................................... 12-4 

12-I.E. Mandatory Policies and Other Authorized Terminations ..................... 12-4 
Mandatory Policies [24 CFR 982.553(b) and 982.551(l)] .............. 12-4 
Other Authorized Reasons for Termination of Assistance  
[24 CFR 982.552(c), 24 CFR 5.2005(c)] ........................................ 12-7 

PART II: APPROACH TO TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE ..................................... 12-11 
12-II.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 12-11 
12-II.B. Method of Termination [24 CFR 982.552(a)(3)] ............................... 12-11 
12-II.C. Alternatives to Termination of Assistance ......................................... 12-11 

Change in Household Composition .............................................. 12-11 
Repayment of Family Debts ......................................................... 12-11 

12-II.D. Criteria for Deciding to Terminate Assistance ................................... 12-12 
Evidence ....................................................................................... 12-12 
Use of Criminal Conviction Records  
after Admission [24 CFR 5.903] .................................................. 12-12 
Consideration of Circumstances [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)(i)] ........ 12-12 
Reasonable Accommodation [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)(iv)] ........... 12-13 

12-II.E. Terminations Related to Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, 
Sexual Assault or Stalking .................................................................. 12-14 

VAWA Protections against Terminations .................................... 12-14 
Limitations on VAWA Protections  
[24 CFR 5.2005(d) and (e)] .......................................................... 12-15 
Documentation of Abuse [24 CFR 5.2007] .................................. 12-16 
Terminating the Assistance of a Domestic  
Violence Perpetrator ..................................................................... 12-16 

12-II.F. Termination Notice ............................................................................. 12-18 

174

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-19

PART III: TERMINATION OF TENANCY BY THE OWNER ........................................ 12-19 
12-III.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 12-19 
12-III.B. Grounds for Owner Termination of Tenancy  

[24 CFR 982.310, 24 CFR 5.2005(c), and  
Form HUD-52641-A, Tenancy Addendum] ....................................... 12-19 

Serious or Repeated Lease Violations .......................................... 12-19 
Violation of Federal, State, or Local Law .................................... 12-19 
Criminal Activity or Alcohol Abuse ............................................. 12-19 
Other Good Cause ......................................................................... 12-20 

12-III.C. Eviction [24 CFR 982.310(e) and (f) and Form HUD-52641-A,  
Tenancy Addendum] .......................................................................... 12-21 

12-III.D. Deciding Whether to Terminate Tenancy  
[24 CFR 982.310(h), 24 CFR 982.310(h)(4)] ..................................... 12-20 

12-III.E. Effect of Tenancy Termination on the Family’s Assistance .............. 12-22 

Exhibit 12-1: Statement of Family Obligations ........................................................................ 12-23 

175

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-20

Chapter 13 
OWNERS 

PART I: OWNERS IN THE HCV PROGRAM ................................................................. 13-3 
13-I.A. Owner Recruitment and Retention [HCV GB, pp. 2-4 to 2-6;  

HCV Landlord Strategy Guidebook for PHAs] .................................... 13-3 
Recruitment ..................................................................................... 13-3 
Retention ......................................................................................... 13-4 

13-I.B. Basic HCV Program Requirements ...................................................... 13-5 
13-I.C. Owner Responsibilities [24 CFR 982.452] ........................................... 13-7 
13-I.D. Owner Qualifications ............................................................................ 13-8 

Owners Barred from Participation [24 CFR 982.306(a) and (b)] ... 13-8 
Leasing to Relatives [24 CFR 982.306(d), HCV GB p. 11-2] ....... 13-8 
Conflict of Interest [24 CFR 982.161; HCV GB p. 8-19] .............. 13-8 
Owner Actions That May Result in Disapproval of a  
Tenancy Request [24 CFR 982.306(c)] ........................................ 13-10 
Legal Ownership of Unit .............................................................. 13-11 

13-I.E. Non-Discrimination [HAP Contract – Form HUD-52641] ................ 13-11 

PART II: HAP CONTRACTS ............................................................................................ 13-13 
13-II.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 13-13 
13-II.B. HAP Contract Contents ...................................................................... 13-14 
13-II.C. HAP Contract Payments ..................................................................... 13-16 

General .......................................................................................... 13-16 
Owner Certification of Compliance .............................................. 13-16 
Late HAP Payments [24 CFR 982.451(a)(5)] .............................. 13-17 
Termination of HAP Payments [24 CFR 982.311(b)] .................. 13-17 

13-II.D. Breach of HAP Contract [24 CFR 982.453] ....................................... 13-18 
13-II.E. HAP Contract Term and Terminations ............................................... 13-19 
13-II.F. Change In Ownership / Assignment of the HAP Contract  

[HUD-52641] ...................................................................................... 13-21 
13-II.G. Foreclosure [Notice PIH 2010-49] ..................................................... 13-22 

176

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-21

Chapter 14 
PROGRAM INTEGRITY 

PART I: PREVENTING, DETECTING, AND INVESTIGATING ERRORS AND 
PROGRAM ABUSE ............................................................................................ 14-3 
14-I.A. Preventing Errors and Program Abuse ................................................. 14-3 
14-I.B. Detecting Errors and Program Abuse ................................................... 14-4 

Quality Control and Analysis of Data ............................................ 14-4 
Independent Audits and HUD Monitoring ..................................... 14-4 
Individual Reporting of Possible Errors and Program Abuse ........ 14-4 

14-I.C. Investigating Errors and Program Abuse .............................................. 14-5 
When the PHA Will Investigate ..................................................... 14-5 
Consent to Release of Information [24 CFR 982.516] ................... 14-5 
Analysis and Findings ..................................................................... 14-5 
Consideration of Remedies ............................................................. 14-6 
Notice and Appeals ......................................................................... 14-6 

PART II: CORRECTIVE MEASURES AND PENALTIES ............................................... 14-7 
14-II.A. Subsidy Under- or Overpayments ........................................................ 14-7 

Corrections ...................................................................................... 14-7 
Reimbursement ............................................................................... 14-7 

14-II.B. Family-Caused Errors and Program Abuse .......................................... 14-8 
Family Reimbursement to PHA [HCV GB pp. 22-12 to 22-13] .... 14-8 
PHA Reimbursement to Family [HCV GB p. 22-12] ..................... 14-8 
Prohibited Actions .......................................................................... 14-9 
Penalties for Program Abuse .......................................................... 14-9 

14-II.C. Owner-Caused Error or Program Abuse ............................................. 14-10 
Owner Reimbursement to the PHA .............................................. 14-10 
Prohibited Owner Actions ............................................................ 14-10 
Remedies and Penalties ................................................................ 14-11 

14-II.D. PHA-Caused Errors or Program Abuse .............................................. 14-12 
Repayment to the PHA ................................................................. 14-12 
PHA Reimbursement to Family or Owner ................................... 14-12 
Prohibited Activities ..................................................................... 14-12 

14-II.E. Criminal Prosecution .......................................................................... 14-13 
14-II.F. Fraud and Program Abuse Recoveries ............................................... 14-14 

177

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-22

Chapter 15 
SPECIAL HOUSING TYPES 

[24 CFR 982 Subpart M] 

PART I: SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY [24 CFR 982.602 through 982.605] ................ 15-3 
15-I.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 15-3 
15-I.B. Payment Standard, Utility Allowance, and HAP Calculation .............. 15-3 
15-I.C. Housing Quality Standards (HQS) ....................................................... 15-3 

PART II: CONGREGATE HOUSING [24 CFR 982.606 through 982.609] ....................... 15-5 
15-II.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 15-5 
15-II.B. Payment Standard, Utility Allowance, and HAP Calculation .............. 15-6 
15-II.C. Housing Quality Standards ................................................................... 15-6 

PART III: GROUP HOME [24 CFR 982.610 through 982.614 and HCV GB p. 7-4] ......... 15-7 
15-III.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 15-7 
15-III.B. Payment Standard, Utility Allowance, and HAP Calculation .............. 15-7 
15-III.C. Housing Quality Standards ................................................................... 15-8 

PART IV: SHARED HOUSING [24 CFR 982.615 through 982.618] .................................. 15-9 
15-IV.I. Overview ............................................................................................... 15-9 
15-IV.B. Payment Standard, Utility Allowance and HAP Calculation ............... 15-9 
15-IV.C. Housing Quality Standards ................................................................. 15-10 

PART V: COOPERATIVE HOUSING [24 CFR 982.619]................................................ 15-11 
15-V.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 15-11 
15-V.B. Payment Standard, Utility Allowance and HAP Calculation ............. 15-11 
15-V.C. Housing Quality Standards ................................................................. 15-11 

PART VI: MANUFACTURED HOMES [24 CFR 982.620 through 982.624;  
FR Notice 1/18/17] ............................................................................................. 15-13 
15-VI.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 15-13 
15-VI.B. Special Policies for Manufactured Home Owners  

Who Lease A Space ............................................................................ 15-13 
Family Income .............................................................................. 15-13 
Lease and HAP Contract .............................................................. 15-13 

15-VI.C. Payment Standard, Utility Allowance and HAP Calculation  
[FR Notice 1/18/17] ............................................................................ 15-14 

Payment Standards ........................................................................ 15-14 
Utility Allowance .......................................................................... 15-14 
Space Rent .................................................................................... 15-14 
Amortization Costs ....................................................................... 15-15 
Housing Assistance Payment ........................................................ 15-15 
Rent Reasonableness .................................................................... 15-15 

15-VI.D. Housing Quality Standards ................................................................. 15-16 

178

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-23

  

Chapter 16 
PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 

PART I: ADMINISTRATIVE FEE RESERVE [24 CFR 982.155] ................................... 16-3 

PART II: SETTING PROGRAM STANDARDS AND SCHEDULES .............................. 16-5 
16-II.A. Overview ............................................................................................... 16-5 
16-II.B. Payment Standards [24 CFR 982.503; HCV GB, Chapter 7] ............... 16-5 

Updating Payment Standards .......................................................... 16-6 
Exception Payment Standards [24 CFR 982.503(c)(5),  
Notice PIH 2018-01] ....................................................................... 16-7 
Voluntary Use of Small Area FMRs  
[24 CFR 982.503, Notice PIH 2018-01] ......................................... 16-7 
Unit-by-Unit Exceptions [24 CFR 982.503(b),  
24 CFR 982.505(d), Notice PIH 2010-26] ..................................... 16-7 
"Success Rate" Payment Standard Amounts  
[24 CFR 982.503(e)] ....................................................................... 16-8 
Decreases in the Payment Standard below  
the Basic Range [24 CFR 982.503(d)] ........................................... 16-8 

16-II.C. Utility Allowances [24 CFR 982.517] .................................................. 16-9 
Air Conditioning ............................................................................. 16-9 
Reasonable Accommodation .......................................................... 16-9 
Utility Allowance Revisions ........................................................... 16-9 

PART III: INFORMAL REVIEWS AND HEARINGS ...................................................... 16-11 
16-III.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 16-11 
16-III.B. Informal Reviews ................................................................................ 16-11 

Decisions Subject to Informal Review  
[24 CFR 982.554(a) and (c)] ........................................................ 16-11 
Notice to the Applicant [24 CFR 982.554(a)] .............................. 16-12 
Scheduling an Informal Review ................................................... 16-12 
Informal Review Procedures [24 CFR 982.554(b)] ..................... 16-12 
Remote Informal Reviews ............................................................ 16-13 
Conducting Remote Informal Reviews ........................................ 16-13 
Informal Review Decision [24 CFR 982.554(b)] ......................... 16-14 

16-III.C. Informal Hearings for Participants [24 CFR 982.555] ....................... 16-15 
Decisions Subject to Informal Hearing ......................................... 16-15 
Remote Informal Hearings ........................................................... 16-16 
Conducting Informal Hearings Remotely ..................................... 16-17 
Informal Hearing Procedures ........................................................ 16-18 

179

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-24

16-III.D. Hearing and Appeal Provisions for Noncitizens  
[24 CFR 5.514] ................................................................................... 16-25 

Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance  
[24 CFR 5.514(d)] ........................................................................ 16-25 
USCIS Appeal Process [24 CFR 5.514(e)] ................................... 16-26 
Informal Hearing Procedures for Applicants  
[24 CFR 5.514(f)] ......................................................................... 16-26 
Informal Hearing Procedures for Residents  
[24 CFR 5.514(f)] ......................................................................... 16-28 
Retention of Documents [24 CFR 5.514(h)] ................................ 16-28 

PART IV: OWNER OR FAMILY DEBTS TO THE PHA ................................................. 16-29 
16-IV.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 16-29 
16-IV.B. Repayment Policy ............................................................................... 16-30 

Owner Debts to the PHA .............................................................. 16-30 
Family Debts to the PHA .............................................................. 16-30 
Repayment Agreement [24 CFR 792.103] ................................... 16-30 
General Repayment Agreement Guidelines for Families ............. 16-30 
Repayment Agreements Involving Improper Payments ............... 16-32 

PART V: SECTION 8 MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM (SEMAP) .......... 16-33 
16-V.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 16-33 
16-V.B. SEMAP Certification [24 CFR 985.101]............................................ 16-34 

HUD Verification Method ............................................................ 16-34 
16-V.C. SEMAP Indicators [24 CFR 985.3 and form HUD-52648] ............... 16-35 

SEMAP Indicators Chart .............................................................. 16-35 

PART VI: RECORD KEEPING  ......................................................................................... 16-39 
16-VI.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 16-39 
16-VI.B. Record Retention [24 CFR 982.158] .................................................. 16-39 
16-VI.C. Records Management ......................................................................... 16-40 

Privacy Act Requirements [24 CFR 5.212 and Form-9886] ........ 16-40 
Upfront Income Verification (UIV) Records ............................... 16-40 
Criminal Records .......................................................................... 16-41 
Medical/Disability Records .......................................................... 16-41 
Documentation of Domestic Violence,  
Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking .............................. 16-41 

PART VII: REPORTING AND RECORD KEEPING FOR CHILDREN 
WITH ELEVATED BLOOD LEAD LEVEL.................................................... 16-43 
16-VII.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 16-43 
16-VII.B. Reporting Requirement [24 CFR 35.1225(e) );  

Notice PIH 2017-13] ........................................................................... 16-43 
16-VII.C. Data Collection and Record Keeping [24 CFR 35.1225(f)] ............... 16-43 

PART VIII: DETERMINATION OF INSUFFICIENT FUNDING ...................................... 16-45 
16-VIII.A. Overview ........................................................................................... 16-45 
16-VIII.B. Methodology ..................................................................................... 16-45 

180

Item 15.



Administrative Plan -Table of Contents 

© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

TOC-25

PART IX: VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT (VAWA): NOTIFICATION, 
DOCUMENTATION, CONFIDENTIALITY ................................................... 16-47 
16-IX.A. Overview ............................................................................................. 16-47 
16-IX.B. Definitions [24 CFR 5.2003] ............................................................... 16-47 
16-IX.C. Notification [24 CFR 5.2005(a), 42 USC 13925] ............................... 16-49 

Notification to Public .................................................................... 16-49 
Notification to Program Applicants and Participants  
[24 CFR 5.2005(a)(1)] .................................................................. 16-50 
Notification to Owners and Managers .......................................... 16-50 

16-IX.D. Documentation [24 CFR 5.2007] ........................................................ 16-52 
Conflicting Documentation [24 CFR 5.2007(e)] .......................... 16-53 
Discretion to Require No Formal Documentation  
[24 CFR 5.2007(d)] ...................................................................... 16-53 
Failure to Provide Documentation [24 CFR 5.2007(c)] ............... 16-54 

16-IX.E. CONFIDENTIALITY [24 CFR 5.2007(b)(4)] .................................... 16-54 

Exhibit 16-1: Sample Notice of Occupancy Rights Under the Violence  
Against Women Act, Form HUD-5380 ............................................................. 16-55 

Exhibit 16-2: Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault,  
or Stalking and Alternate Documentation, Form HUD-5382 ............................ 16-61 

Exhibit 16-3: Emergency Transfer Plan for Victims of Domestic Violence,  
Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking (HCV Version) .......................... 16-63 

Exhibit 16-4: Emergency Transfer Request for Certain Victims of Domestic Violence,  
Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking, Form HUD-5383 ...................... 16-67 

Exhibit 16-5: Model Owner Notification of Rights and Obligations ...................................... 16-71 

 

 

181

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Intro-i

Introduction 

ABOUT THE REFERENCES CITED IN THE MODEL ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN 

AUTHORITIES FOR POLICIES IN THE MODEL ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN 

The authority for PHA policies is derived from many sources. Primary among these sources are 
federal statutes, federal regulations, and guidance issued by HUD. State law also directs PHA 
policy. State law must be followed where such law exists and does not conflict with federal 
regulations. Industry practice may also be used to develop policy as long as it does not conflict 
with federal requirements or prohibitions. 

HUD 

HUD provides the primary source of PHA policy through federal regulations, HUD notices, and 
handbooks. Compliance with federal regulations, current HUD notices, and current HUD 
handbooks is mandatory. 

HUD also provides guidance to PHAs through other means such as HUD-published guidebooks, 
expired HUD notices, and expired handbooks. Basing PHA policy on HUD guidance is optional, 
as long as PHA policies comply with federal law, federal regulations and mandatory policy. 
Because HUD has already determined that the guidance it provides is consistent with mandatory 
policies, PHA reliance on HUD guidance provides the PHA with a “safe harbor.” 

Material posted on the HUD website can provide further clarification of HUD policies. For 
example, FAQs on the HUD website can provide direction on the application of federal 
regulations in various aspects of the program. 

State Law 

Where there is no mandatory federal guidance, PHAs must comply with state law, if it exists. 
Where state law is more restrictive than federal law, but does not conflict with it, the PHA 
should follow the state law. 

Industry Practice 

Where no law or HUD authority exists on a particular subject, industry practice may support 
PHA policy. Industry practice refers to a way of doing things or a policy that has been adopted 
by a majority of PHAs. 

RESOURCES CITED IN THE MODEL ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN 

The model administrative plan cites several documents. Where a document or resource is cited 
frequently, it may be abbreviated. Where it is cited only once or twice, the model administrative 
plan may contain the entire name of the document or resource.  Following is a key to 
abbreviations used for various sources that are frequently cited in the administrative plan and a 
list of references and document locations that are referenced in the model administrative plan or 
that may be helpful to you. 

182

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Intro-ii

Abbreviations 

Throughout the model administrative plan, abbreviations are used to designate certain documents 
in citations.  The following is a table of abbreviations of documents cited in the model 
administrative plan. 

Abbreviation Document 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 

HCV GB Housing Choice Voucher Program Guidebook (7420.10G), April 2001. 

HUD-50058 IB HUD-50058 Instruction Booklet 

RHIIP FAQs Rental Housing Integrity Improvement Program (RHIIP) Frequently 
Asked Questions. 

VG PIH Notice 2004-01 Verification Guidance, March 9, 2004. 

HB 4350.3 Occupancy Requirements of Subsidized Multifamily Housing 
Programs 

Resources and Where to Find Them 

Following is a list of resources helpful to the PHA or referenced in the model administrative 
plan, and the online location of each. 

Document and Location 

Code of Federal Regulations 
https://www.ecfr.gov/ 

Earned Income Disregard FAQ 
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/phr/about/ao_faq_eid 

Eligibility of Students for Assisted Housing Under Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937; 
Final Rule 
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2008/pdf/E8-19435.pdf  

Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) System, Security Procedures for Upfront Income 
Verification data 
https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/EIVSECGUIDEPHA.PDF 

Executive Order 11063 
https://www.archives.gov/federal-register/codification/executive-order/11063.html 

183

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Intro-iii

Federal Register 
https://www.federalregister.gov/ 

Housing Choice Voucher Program Guidebook (7420.10G), Updated Chapters 
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/public_indian_housing/programs/hcv/guidebook 

HUD-50058 Instruction Booklet 
https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/FORM50058INSTRUCTBOOKLET.PDF 

Joint Statement of the Department of Housing and Urban Development and the Department of 
Justice, issued May 17, 2004 
https://www.justice.gov/sites/default/files/crt/legacy/2010/12/14/joint_statement_ra.pdf 

Final Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition 
Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, published 
January 22, 2007 
https://www.lep.gov/guidance/HUD_guidance_Jan07.pdf 

Notice PIH 2010-26 (HA), Nondiscrimination and Accessibility Notice 
https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/DOC_8993.PDF 

Notice PIH 2017-12, Administrative Guidance for Effective and Mandated Use of the Enterprise 
Income Verification (EIV) System 
https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/PIH2017-12EIVNOTICE.PDF 

Notice PIH 2018-24, Verification of Social Security Numbers (SSNs) and Social Security (SS) 
and Supplemental Security Income (SSI) Benefits; and Effective Use of the Enterprise Income 
Verification (EIV) System’s Identity Verification Report 
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/PIH/documents/PIH-2018-24_EIV_SSN_Notice_FINAL.pdf 

OMB Circular A-133 
https://www.whitehouse.gov/sites/whitehouse.gov/files/omb/circulars/A133/a133.pdf 

Project-Based Voucher Program; Final Rule 
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2005-10-13/pdf/05-20035.pdf 

VAWA Final Rule 
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2010-10-27/pdf/2010-26914.pdf  

The HUD website is https://www.hud.gov/. 

Guidebooks, handbooks and other HUD resources may be found at the HUDClips website:  
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/administration/hudclips. 

184

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Intro-iv

 

185

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-1

Chapter 1 

OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAM AND PLAN 

INTRODUCTION 

The PHA receives its funding for the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program from the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The PHA is not a federal department or 
agency. A public housing agency (PHA) is a governmental or public body, created and 
authorized by state law to develop and operate housing and housing programs for low-income 
families. The PHA enters into an Annual Contributions Contract with HUD to administer the 
program requirements on behalf of HUD. The PHA must ensure compliance with federal laws, 
regulations and notices and must establish policy and procedures to clarify federal requirements 
and to ensure consistency in program operation. 

This chapter contains information about the PHA and its programs with emphasis on the HCV 
program. It also contains information about the purpose, intent and use of the plan and guide. 

There are three parts to this chapter: 

Part I: The Public Housing Agency (PHA). This part includes a description of the PHA, 
its jurisdiction, its programs, and its mission and intent.  

Part II: The HCV Program. This part contains information about the Housing Choice 
Voucher program operation, roles and responsibilities, and partnerships.  

Part III: The HCV Administrative Plan. This part discusses the purpose and organization 
of the plan and its revision requirements. 

PART I: THE PHA 

1-I.A. OVERVIEW 

This part explains the origin of the PHA’s creation and authorization, the general structure of the 
organization, and the relationship between the PHA Board and staff.  

186

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-2

1-I.B. ORGANIZATION AND STRUCTURE OF THE PHA 

The Section 8 tenant-based Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) assistance program is funded by the 
federal government and administered by the City of Cedar Falls Housing Authority for the 
jurisdiction of City of Cedar Falls. 

The officials of a PHA are known as commissioners or, collectively, as the board of 
commissioners. Commissioners are appointed in accordance with state housing law and 
generally serve in the same capacity as the directors of a corporation, establishing policies under 
which the PHA conducts business, ensuring that policies are followed by PHA staff and ensuring 
that the PHA is successful in its mission. The board is responsible for preserving and expanding 
the agency’s resources and assuring the agency’s continued viability. 

Formal actions of the PHA are taken through written resolutions, adopted by the board of 
commissioners and entered into the official records of the PHA. 

The principal staff member of the PHA is the executive director (ED), hired and appointed by the 
board of commissioners. The executive director is directly responsible for carrying out the 
policies established by the board and is delegated the responsibility for hiring, training and 
supervising the PHA staff in order to manage the day-to-day operations of the PHA. The 
executive director is responsible for ensuring compliance with federal and state laws and 
directives for the programs managed. In addition, the executive director’s duties include 
budgeting and financial planning for the agency. 

1-I.C. PHA MISSION 

The purpose of a mission statement is to communicate the purpose of the agency to people inside 
and outside of the agency. It provides guiding direction for developing strategy, defining critical 
success factors, searching out key opportunities, making resource allocation choices, satisfying 
clients and stakeholders, and making decisions.  

PHA Mission Statement 

 
The Mission statement of the City of Cedar Falls Housing Authority, (HA) is to assist 
low-income families in obtaining decent, safe, affordable housing opportunities as they 
strive to achieve self-sufficiency and improve the quality of their lives. This HA is 
committed to operating in an efficient, ethical, and professional manner. Partnerships will 
be created and maintained with its clients and appropriate community agencies in order to 
accomplish this mission. 

 

187

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-3

1-I.D. THE PHA’S PROGRAMS 

The following programs are included under this administrative plan: 

PHA Policy 

The PHA’s administrative plan is applicable to the operation of the Housing Choice 
Voucher program. 

1-I.E. THE PHA’S COMMITMENT TO ETHICS AND SERVICE 

As a public service agency, the PHA is committed to providing excellent service to HCV 
program participants, owners, and to the community. The PHA’s standards include: 

 Administer applicable federal and state laws and regulations to achieve high ratings in 
performance measurement indicators while maintaining efficiency in program operation to 
ensure fair and consistent treatment of clients served. 

 Provide decent, safe, and sanitary housing – in compliance with program housing quality 
standards – for very low income families while ensuring that family rents are fair, reasonable, 
and affordable. 

 Encourage self sufficiency of participant families and assist in the expansion of family 
opportunities which address educational, socio-economic, recreational and other human 
services needs. 

 Promote fair housing and the equal opportunity for very low-income families of all ethnic 
backgrounds to experience freedom of housing choice. 

 Promote a housing program which maintains quality service and integrity while providing an 
incentive to private property owners to rent to very low-income families. 

 Promote a market-driven housing program that will help qualified low-income families be 
successful in obtaining affordable housing and increase the supply of housing choices for 
such families. 

 Create positive public awareness and expand the level of family, owner, and community 
support in accomplishing the PHA’s mission. 

 Attain and maintain a high level of standards and professionalism in day-to-day management 
of all program components.  

 Administer an efficient, high-performing agency through continuous improvement of the 
PHA’s support systems and a high level of commitment to our employees and their 
development.  

The PHA will make every effort to keep program participants informed of HCV program rules 
and regulations, and to advise participants of how the program rules affect them.  

188

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-4
189

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-5

PART II: THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER (HCV) PROGRAM 

1-II.A. OVERVIEW AND HISTORY OF THE PROGRAM 

The intent of this section is to provide the public and staff with information related to the overall 
operation of the program. There have been many changes to the program since its inception in 
1974 and a brief history of the program will assist the reader to better understand the program. 

The United States Housing Act of 1937 (the “Act”) is responsible for the birth of federal housing 
program initiatives. The Act was intended to provide financial assistance to states and cities for 
public works projects, slum clearance and the development of affordable housing developments 
for low-income residents. 

The Housing and Community Development (HCD) Act of 1974 created a new federally assisted 
housing program – the Section 8 Existing program (also known as the Section 8 Certificate 
program). The HCD Act represented a significant shift in federal housing strategy from locally 
owned public housing to privately owned rental housing. 

Under the Certificate program, federal housing assistance payments were made directly to 
private owners of rental housing, where this housing was made available to lower-income 
families. Eligible families were able to select housing in the private rental market. Assuming that 
the housing met certain basic physical standards of quality (“housing quality standards”) and was 
within certain HUD-established rent limitations (“fair market rents”), the family would be able to 
receive rental assistance in the housing unit. Family contribution to rent was generally set at 30 
percent of the family’s adjusted income, with the remainder of the rent paid by the program. 

Another unique feature of the Certificate program was that the rental assistance remained with 
the eligible family, if the family chose to move to another privately-owned rental unit that met 
program requirements (in contrast to the public housing program where the rental assistance 
remains with the unit, should the family decide to move). Consequently, the Certificate program 
was characterized as tenant-based assistance, rather than unit-based assistance. 

The Housing and Community Development (HCD) Act of 1987 authorized a new version of 
tenant-based assistance – the Section 8 Voucher program. The Voucher program was very 
similar to the Certificate program in that eligible families were able to select housing in the 
private rental market and receive assistance in that housing unit. 

However, the Voucher program permitted families more options in housing selection. Rental 
housing still had to meet the basic housing quality standards, but there was no fair market rent 
limitation on rent. In addition, family contribution to rent was not set at a limit of 30 percent of 
adjusted income. Consequently, depending on the actual rental cost of the unit selected, a family 
might pay more or less than 30 percent of their adjusted income for rent. 

190

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-6

From 1987 through 1999, public housing agencies managed both the Certificate and Voucher 
tenant-based assistance programs, with separate rules and requirements for each. From 1994 
through 1998, HUD published a series of new rules, known as “conforming” rules, to more 
closely combine and align the two similar housing programs, to the extent permitted by the law. 

In 1998, the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act (QHWRA) – also known as the 
Public Housing Reform Act – was signed into law. QHWRA eliminated all statutory differences 
between the Certificate and Voucher tenant-based programs and required that the two programs 
be merged into a single tenant-based assistance program, now known as the Housing Choice 
Voucher (HCV) program. 

The HCV program was modeled closely on the pre-merger Voucher program. However, unlike 
the pre-merger Voucher program, the HCV program requires an assisted family to pay at least 30 
percent of adjusted income for rent. 

The transition of assistance from the Certificate and Voucher programs to the new HCV program 
began in October 1999. By October 2001, all families receiving tenant-based assistance were 
converted to the HCV program. 

191

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-7

1-II.B. HCV PROGRAM BASICS 

The purpose of the HCV program is to provide rental assistance to eligible families. The rules 
and regulations of the HCV program are determined by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development. The PHA is afforded choices in the operation of the program which are 
included in the PHA’s administrative plan, a document approved by the board of commissioners 
of the PHA. 

The HCV program offers mobility to eligible families because they may search for suitable 
housing anywhere in the PHA’s jurisdiction and may also be eligible to move under portability 
to other PHAs’ jurisdictions. 

When a family is determined to be eligible for the program and funding is available, the PHA 
issues the family a housing voucher. When the family finds a suitable housing unit and funding 
is available, the PHA will enter into a contract with the owner and the family will enter into a 
lease with the owner. Each party makes their respective payment to the owner so that the owner 
receives full rent. 

Even though the family is determined to be eligible for the program, the owner has the 
responsibility of approving the family as a suitable renter. The PHA continues to make payments 
to the owner as long as the family is eligible and the housing unit continues to qualify under the 
program. 

1-II.C. THE HCV PARTNERSHIPS 

To administer the HCV program, the PHA enters into a contractual relationship with HUD 
(Consolidated Annual Contributions Contract). The PHA also enters into contractual 
relationships with the assisted family and the owner or landlord of the housing unit. 

For the HCV program to work and be successful, all parties involved – HUD, the PHA, the 
owner, and the family – have important roles to play. The roles and responsibilities of all parties 
are defined in federal regulations and in legal documents that parties execute to participate in the 
program. 

The chart on the following page illustrates key aspects of these relationships. 

192

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-8

The HCV Relationships: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Congress 
Appropriates 

Funding 

HUD 
Provides Funding 

To PHA 

PHA 
Administers 

Program  

Owner / 
Landlord  

Family 
(Program 

Participant)  

Voucher specifies 
Family Obligations 

Housing Assistance Payments 
(HAP) Contract specifies Owner 

and PHA Obligations 

Lease specifies Tenant 
and Landlord 
Obligations 

Program Regulations and ACC 
specifies PHA Obligations and 

Voucher Funding 

193

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-9

What Does HUD Do? 

HUD has the following major responsibilities: 

 Develop regulations, requirements, handbooks, notices and other guidance to implement 
HCV housing program legislation passed by Congress; 

 Allocate HCV program funds to PHAs; 

 Provide technical assistance to PHAs on interpreting and applying HCV program 
requirements; 

 Monitor PHA compliance with HCV program requirements and PHA performance in 
program administration. 

What Does the PHA Do? 

The PHA administers the HCV program under contract with HUD and has the following major 
responsibilities: 

 Establish local policies to administer the program; 

 Review applications from interested applicants to determine whether they are eligible for 
the program; 

 Maintain a waiting list and select families for admission; 

 Issue vouchers to eligible families and provide information on how to lease a unit; 

 Conduct outreach to owners, with special attention to owners outside areas of poverty or 
minority concentration; 

 Approve the rental unit (including assuring compliance with housing quality standards and 
rent reasonableness), the owner, and the tenancy; 

 Make housing assistance payments to the owner in a timely manner; 

 Recertify families for continued eligibility under the program; 

 Ensure that owners and families comply with their contractual obligations; 

 Provide families and owners with prompt, professional service; 

 Comply with all fair housing and equal opportunity requirements, HUD regulations and 
requirements, the Annual Contributions Contract, HUD-approved applications for funding, 
the PHA’s administrative plan, and other applicable federal, state and local laws. 

194

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-10

What Does the Owner Do? 

The owner has the following major responsibilities: 

 Screen families who apply for tenancy, to determine suitability as renters. 

- The PHA can provide some information to the owner, but the primary responsibility for 
tenant screening rests with the owner. 

- The owner should consider family background factors such as rent and bill-paying 
history, history of caring for property, respecting the rights of others to peaceful 
enjoyment of the property, compliance with essential conditions of tenancy, whether the 
family is engaging in drug-related criminal activity or other criminal activity that might 
threaten others. 

 Comply with the terms of the Housing Assistance Payments contract executed with the PHA; 

 Comply with all applicable fair housing laws and do not discriminate against anyone; 

 Maintain the housing unit in accordance with Housing Quality Standards (HQS) and make 
necessary repairs in a timely manner; 

 Collect rent due from the assisted family and otherwise comply with and enforce provisions 
of the dwelling lease. 

195

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-11

What Does the Family Do? 

The family has the following responsibilities: 

 Provide the PHA with complete and accurate information as determined by the PHA to be 
necessary for administration of the program; 

 Make their best and most timely efforts to locate qualified and suitable housing; 

 Attend all appointments scheduled by the PHA; 

 Allow the PHA to inspect the unit at reasonable times and after reasonable notice; 

 Take responsibility for care of the housing unit, including any violations of housing quality 
standards caused by the family; 

 Comply with the terms of the lease with the owner; 

 Comply with the family obligations of the voucher; 

 Not commit serious or repeated violations of the lease; 

 Not engage in drug-related or violent criminal activity; 

 Notify the PHA and the owner before moving or terminating the lease; 

 Use the assisted unit only for residence and as the sole residence of the family. Not sublet the 
unit, assign the lease, or have any interest in the unit; 

 Promptly notify the PHA of any changes in family composition; 

 Not commit fraud, bribery, or any other corrupt or criminal act in connection with any 
housing programs. 

196

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-12

1-II.D. APPLICABLE REGULATIONS 

Applicable regulations include: 

 24 CFR Part 5: General Program Requirements 

 24 CFR Part 8: Nondiscrimination 

 24 CFR Part 35: Lead-Based Paint 

 24 CFR Part 100: The Fair Housing Act 

 24 CFR Part 982: Section 8 Tenant-Based Assistance: Housing Choice Voucher Program 

 24 CFR Part 983: Project-Based Vouchers 

 24 CFR Part 985: The Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) 

197

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-13

PART III: THE HCV ADMINISTRATIVE PLAN 

1-III.A. OVERVIEW AND PURPOSE OF THE PLAN 

The administrative plan is required by HUD. The purpose of the administrative plan is to 
establish policies for carrying out the programs in a manner consistent with HUD requirements 
and local goals and objectives contained in the PHA’s agency plan. This administrative plan is a 
supporting document to the PHA agency plan, and is available for public review as required by 
CFR 24 Part 903. 

This administrative plan is set forth to define the PHA's local policies for operation of the 
housing programs in accordance with federal laws and regulations. All issues related to the HCV 
program not addressed in this document are governed by such federal regulations, HUD 
handbooks and guidebooks, notices, and other applicable law. The policies in this administrative 
plan have been designed to ensure compliance with the consolidated ACC and all HUD-
approved applications for program funding. 

The PHA is responsible for complying with all changes in HUD regulations pertaining to the 
HCV program. If such changes conflict with this plan, HUD regulations will have precedence. 

Administration of the HCV program and the functions and responsibilities of PHA staff shall be 
in compliance with the PHA's personnel policy and HUD regulations as well as all federal, state 
and local fair housing laws and regulations. 

1-III.B. CONTENTS OF THE PLAN [24 CFR 982.54] 

The HUD regulations at 24 CFR 982.54 define the policies that must be included in the 
administrative plan. They are as follow: 

 Selection and admission of applicants from the PHA waiting list, including any PHA 
admission preferences, procedures for removing applicant names from the waiting list, and 
procedures for closing and reopening the PHA waiting list (Chapter 4); 

 Issuing or denying vouchers, including PHA policy governing the voucher term and any 
extensions of the voucher term. If the PHA decides to allow extensions of the voucher term, 
the PHA administrative plan must describe how the PHA determines whether to grant 
extensions, and how the PHA determines the length of any extension (Chapter 5); 

 Any special rules for use of available funds when HUD provides funding to the PHA for a 
special purpose (e.g., desegregation), including funding for specified families or a specified 
category of families (Chapter 4); 

198

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-14

 Occupancy policies, including definition of what group of persons may qualify as a 'family', 
definition of when a family is considered to be 'continuously assisted'; standards for denying 
admission or terminating assistance based on criminal activity or alcohol abuse in accordance 
with 982.553 (Chapters 3 and 12); 

 Encouraging participation by owners of suitable units located outside areas of low income or 
minority concentration (Chapter 13); 

 Assisting a family that claims that illegal discrimination has prevented the family from 
leasing a suitable unit (Chapter 2); 

 Providing information about a family to prospective owners (Chapters 3 and 9); 

 Disapproval of owners (Chapter 13); 

 Subsidy standards (Chapter 5);  

 Family absence from the dwelling unit (Chapter 12); 

 How to determine who remains in the program if a family breaks up (Chapter 3); 

 Informal review procedures for applicants (Chapter 16); 

 Informal hearing procedures for participants (Chapter 16); 

 The process for establishing and revising voucher payment standards, including policies on 
administering decreases in the payment standard during the HAP contract term (Chapter 16); 

 The method of determining that rent to owner is a reasonable rent (initially and during the 
term of a HAP contract) (Chapter 8); 

 Special policies concerning special housing types in the program (e.g., use of shared housing) 
(Chapter 15); 

 Policies concerning payment by a family to the PHA of amounts the family owes the PHA 
(Chapter 16); 

 Interim redeterminations of family income and composition (Chapter 11); 

 Restrictions, if any, on the number of moves by a participant family (Chapter 10); 

 Approval by the board of commissioners or other authorized officials to charge the 
administrative fee reserve (Chapter 16); 

 Procedural guidelines and performance standards for conducting required housing quality 
standards inspections (Chapter 8); and 

 PHA screening of applicants for family behavior or suitability for tenancy (Chapter 3). 

199

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-15

Mandatory vs. Discretionary Policy 

HUD makes a distinction between: 

 Mandatory policies: those driven by legislation, regulations, current handbooks, 
notices, and legal opinions, and  

 Optional, non-binding guidance, including guidebooks, notices that have expired and 
recommendations from individual HUD staff.  

HUD expects PHAs to adopt local policies and procedures that are consistent with mandatory 
policies in areas where HUD gives the PHA discretion. The PHA's administrative plan is the 
foundation of those policies and procedures. HUD’s directions require PHAs to make policy 
choices that provide sufficient guidance to staff and ensure consistency to program applicants 
and participants. 

Creating policies based upon HUD guidance is not mandatory, but provides a PHA with a “safe 
harbor.” HUD has already determined that the recommendations and suggestions it makes are 
consistent with mandatory policies. If a PHA adopts an alternative strategy, it must make its own 
determination that the alternative approach is consistent with legislation, regulations, and other 
mandatory requirements. There may be very good reasons for adopting a policy or procedure that 
is different than HUD’s safe harbor, but PHAs should carefully think through those decisions. 

1-III.C. ORGANIZATION OF THE PLAN 

The plan is organized to provide information to users in particular areas of operation.  

1-III.D. UPDATING AND REVISING THE PLAN 

The PHA will revise this administrative plan as needed to comply with changes in HUD 
regulations. The original plan and any changes must be approved by the board of commissioners 
of the agency, the pertinent sections included in the Agency Plan, and a copy provided to HUD. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will review and update the plan as needed, to reflect changes in regulations, 
PHA operations, or when needed to ensure staff consistency in operation. 

200

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates  Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use 

Page 1-16

 

201

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-1

Chapter 2 

FAIR HOUSING AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

INTRODUCTION 

This chapter explains the laws and HUD regulations requiring PHAs to affirmatively further 
civil rights and fair housing in all federally-assisted housing programs. The letter and spirit of 
these laws are implemented through consistent policy and processes. The responsibility to 
further nondiscrimination pertains to all areas of the PHA’s housing choice voucher (HCV) 
operations.  

This chapter describes HUD regulations and PHA policies related to these topics in three parts: 

Part I: Nondiscrimination. This part presents the body of laws and regulations governing 
the responsibilities of the PHA regarding nondiscrimination. 

Part II: Policies Related to Persons with Disabilities. This part discusses the rules and 
policies of the housing choice voucher program related to reasonable accommodation for 
persons with disabilities. These rules and policies are based on the Fair Housing Act 
(42.U.S.C.) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and incorporate guidance 
from the Joint Statement of The Department of Housing and Urban Development and the 
Department of Justice (DOJ), issued May 17, 2004. 

Part III: Prohibition of Discrimination Against Limited English Proficiency Persons. This 
part details the obligations of the PHA to ensure meaningful access to the HCV program 
and its activities by persons with limited English proficiency (LEP). This part 
incorporates the Final Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding 
Title VI Prohibition against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English 
Proficient Persons published January 22, 2007, in the Federal Register. 

202

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-2
203

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-3

PART I: NONDISCRIMINATION 

2-I.A. OVERVIEW 

Federal laws require PHAs to treat all applicants and participants equally, providing the same 
opportunity to access services, regardless of family characteristics and background. Federal law 
prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, 
familial status, and disability. In addition, HUD regulations provide for additional protections 
regarding sexual orientation, gender identity, and marital status. The PHA will comply fully with 
all federal, state, and local nondiscrimination laws, and with rules and regulations governing fair 
housing and equal opportunity in housing and employment, including: 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 

 Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (as amended by the Community Development Act 
of 1974 and the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988) 

 Executive Orders 11063 and 13988  

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

 Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (to the extent that it applies, otherwise 
Section 504 and the Fair Housing Amendments govern) 

 The Equal Access to Housing in HUD Programs Regardless of Sexual Orientation or Gender 
Identity Final Rule, published in the Federal Register February 3, 2012 and further clarified 
in Notice PIH 2014-20 

 Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA) 

When more than one civil rights law applies to a situation, the laws will be read and applied 
together. 

Any applicable state laws or local ordinances and any legislation protecting individual rights of 
tenants, applicants, or staff that may subsequently be enacted will also apply. 

PHA Policy 
            No person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, religion or creed, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, disability; mental or physical, familial status, retaliation for 
having filed a charge, complained about discrimination to the management or landlord, or 
participated in an investigation or court proceedings involving discrimination be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination 
under the HA housing programs. 

 
 To further its commitment to full compliance with applicable Civil Rights laws, the HA will 

provide Federal/State/local information to applicants for, and participants in, the Section 8 
Housing Program regarding discrimination and any recourse available to them if they believe 
they may be victims of discrimination. Applicable Fair Housing Information and 
Discrimination Complaint Forms will be made available at the HA office. In addition, all 

204

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-4

written information and advertisements will contain the appropriate Equal Opportunity 
language and logo. 

 
 The HA will assist families that believe they have suffered illegal discrimination by 

providing them copies of the housing discrimination form. The HA will also assist them in 
completing the form, if requested, and will provide them with the address of the nearest 
HUD Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity. 

 
 Staff will be required to participate in fair housing training and will be informed of the 

importance of affirmatively furthering fair housing and providing equal opportunity to all 
families, including providing reasonable accommodations to persons with disabilities.  Fair 
Housing posters are visible in the HA office and/or municipal building. 

 
 Except as otherwise provided in 24 CFR 8.21(a), 8.25, and 8.31, no individual with 

disabilities shall be denied the benefits of, be excluded from participation in, or otherwise be 
subjected to discrimination because the HA facilities are inaccessible to or unusable by 
persons with disabilities.   

 

205

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-5

2-I.B. NONDISCRIMINATION 

Federal regulations prohibit discrimination against certain protected classes and other groups of 
people. State and local requirements, as well as PHA policies, can prohibit discrimination based 
on other factors. 

The PHA shall not discriminate because of race, color, sex, religion, familial status, age, 
disability or national origin (called “protected classes”) 

Familial status includes children under the age of 18 living with parents or legal custodians, 
pregnant women, and people securing custody of children under the age of 18.   

The PHA will not discriminate on the basis of marital status, gender identity, or sexual 
orientation [FR Notice 02/03/12; Executive Order 13988]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA shall not discriminate because of creed or military status. 

The PHA will not use any of these factors to: 

 Deny to any family the opportunity to apply for housing, nor deny to any qualified applicant 
the opportunity to participate in the housing choice voucher program 

 Provide housing that is different from that provided to others 

 Subject anyone to segregation or disparate treatment 

 Subject anyone to sexual harassment 

 Restrict anyone's access to any benefit enjoyed by others in connection with the housing 
program 

 Treat a person differently in determining eligibility or other requirements for admission  

 Steer an applicant or participant toward or away from a particular area based any of these 
factors 

 Deny anyone access to the same level of services 

 Deny anyone the opportunity to participate in a planning or advisory group that is an integral 
part of the housing program  

 Discriminate in the provision of residential real estate transactions  

 Discriminate against someone because they are related to or associated with a member of a 
protected class 

 Publish or cause to be published an advertisement or notice indicating the availability of 
housing that prefers or excludes persons who are members of a protected class 

206

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-6

Providing Information to Families and Owners 

The PHA must take steps to ensure that families and owners are fully aware of all applicable 
civil rights laws. As part of the briefing process, the PHA must provide information to HCV 
applicant families about civil rights requirements and the opportunity to rent in a broad range of 
neighborhoods [24 CFR 982.301]. The Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) contract informs 
owners of the requirement not to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, 
sex, national origin, age, familial status, or disability in connection with the contract.  

Discrimination Complaints 

If an applicant or participant believes that any family member has been discriminated against by 
the PHA or an owner, the family should advise the PHA. The PHA should make every 
reasonable attempt to determine whether the applicant’s or participant’s assertions have merit 
and take any warranted corrective action. In addition, the PHA is required to provide the 
applicant or participant with information about how to file a discrimination complaint [24 CFR 
982.304]. 

Upon receipt of a housing discrimination complaint, the PHA is required to: 

 Provide written notice of the complaint to those alleged and inform the complainant that such 
notice was made 

 Investigate the allegations and provide the complainant and those alleged with findings 
and either a proposed corrective action or an explanation of why corrective action is 
not warranted 

 Keep records of all complaints, investigations, notices, and corrective actions  
[Notice PIH 2014-20] 

PHA Policy 

Applicants or participants who believe that they have been subject to unlawful 
discrimination may notify the PHA either orally or in writing. 

Within 10 business days of receiving the complaint, the PHA will provide a written 
notice to those alleged to have violated the rule. The PHA will also send a written notice 
to the complainant informing them that notice was sent to those alleged to have violated 
the rule, as well as information on how to complete and submit a housing discrimination 
complaint form to HUD's Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity (FHEO). 

The PHA will attempt to remedy discrimination complaints made against the PHA and 
will conduct an investigation into all allegations of discrimination. 

Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the PHA's investigation, the PHA 
will provide the complainant and those alleged to have violated the rule with findings and 
either a proposed corrective action plan or an explanation of why corrective action is not 
warranted. 

The PHA will keep a record of all complaints, investigations, notices, and corrective 
actions. (See Chapter 16.) 

207

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-7
208

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-8

PART II: POLICIES RELATED TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

2-II.A. OVERVIEW 

One type of disability discrimination prohibited by the Fair Housing Act is the refusal to make 
reasonable accommodation in rules, policies, practices, or services when such accommodation 
may be necessary to afford a person with a disability the equal opportunity to use and enjoy a 
program or dwelling under the program. 

The PHA must ensure that persons with disabilities have full access to the PHA’s programs and 
services. This responsibility begins with the first contact by an interested family and continues 
through every aspect of the program. 

PHA Policy 

 
It is the policy of the HA to be service-directed in the administration of housing programs, 

and to exercise and demonstrate a high level of professionalism while providing housing 

services to families. A participant with a disability must first ask for a specific change to a 

policy or practice as an accommodation of their disability before the HA will treat a person 

differently than anyone else. 

The HA’s policies and practices are designed to provide assurances that persons with 

disabilities will be given reasonable accommodations, upon request, so that they may fully 

access and utilize the housing program and related services. The availability of requesting an 

accommodation will be made known by including notices on HA forms and letters. This 

policy is intended to afford persons with disabilities an equal opportunity to obtain the same 

result, to gain the same benefit, or to reach the same level of achievement as those who do 

not have disabilities. 

209

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-9

2-II.B. DEFINITION OF REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 

A reasonable accommodation is an adjustment made to a rule, policy, practice, or service that 
allows a person with a disability to have equal access to the HCV program. For example, 
reasonable accommodations may include making home visits, extending the voucher term, or 
approving an exception payment standard in order for a participant to lease an accessible 
dwelling unit. 

Federal regulations stipulate that requests for accommodations will be considered reasonable if 
they do not create an “undue financial and administrative burden” for the PHA, or result in a 
“fundamental alteration” in the nature of the program or service offered. A fundamental 
alteration is a modification that alters the essential nature of a provider’s operations. 

Types of Reasonable Accommodations 

When needed, the PHA will modify normal procedures to accommodate the needs of a person 
with disabilities. Examples include: 

 Permitting applications and reexaminations to be completed by mail 

 Conducting home visits 

 Using higher payment standards (either within the acceptable range or with HUD approval of 
a payment standard outside the PHA range) if the PHA determines this is necessary to enable 
a person with disabilities to obtain a suitable housing unit 

 Providing time extensions for locating a unit when necessary because of lack of availability 
of accessible units or special challenges of the family in seeking a unit 

 Permitting an authorized designee or advocate to participate in the application or certification 
process and any other meetings with PHA staff 

210

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-10

2-II.C. REQUEST FOR AN ACCOMMODATION 

If an applicant or participant indicates that an exception, change, or adjustment to a rule, policy, 
practice, or service is needed because of a disability, HUD requires that the PHA treat the 
information as a request for a reasonable accommodation, even if no formal request is made 
[Joint Statement of the Departments of HUD and Justice: Reasonable Accommodations under 
the Fair Housing Act].  

The family must explain what type of accommodation is needed to provide the person with the 
disability full access to the PHA’s programs and services.  

If the need for the accommodation is not readily apparent or known to the PHA, the family must 
explain the relationship between the requested accommodation and the disability. There must be 
an identifiable connection, or nexus, between the requested accommodation and the individual’s 
disability. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA requires family to make its request in writing using a reasonable 
accommodation request form.  

211

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-11

2-II.D. VERIFICATION OF DISABILITY 

The regulatory civil rights definition for persons with disabilities is provided in Exhibit 2-1 at the 
end of this chapter. The definition of a person with a disability for the purpose of obtaining a 
reasonable accommodation is much broader than the HUD definition of disability which is used 
for waiting list preferences and income allowances.  

Before providing an accommodation, the PHA must determine that the person meets the 
definition of a person with a disability, and that the accommodation will enhance the family’s 
access to the PHA’s programs and services.  

If a person’s disability is obvious or otherwise known to the PHA, and if the need for the 
requested accommodation is also readily apparent or known, no further verification will be 
required [Joint Statement of the Departments of HUD and Justice: Reasonable Accommodations 
under the Fair Housing Act]. 

If a family indicates that an accommodation is required for a disability that is not obvious or 
otherwise known to the PHA, the PHA must verify that the person meets the definition of a 
person with a disability, and that the limitations imposed by the disability require the requested 
accommodation.  

When verifying a disability, the PHA will follow the verification policies provided in Chapter 7. 
All information related to a person’s disability will be treated in accordance with the 
confidentiality policies provided in Chapter 16. In addition to the general requirements that 
govern all verification efforts, the following requirements apply when verifying a disability:  

 Third-party verification must be obtained from an individual identified by the family who is 
competent to make the determination. A doctor or other medical professional, a peer support 
group, a non-medical service agency, or a reliable third party who is in a position to know 
about the individual’s disability may provide verification of a disability [Joint Statement of 
the Departments of HUD and Justice: Reasonable Accommodations under the Fair Housing 
Act]  

 The PHA must request only information that is necessary to evaluate the disability-related 
need for the accommodation. The PHA will not inquire about the nature or extent of any 
disability.  

 Medical records will not be accepted or retained in the participant file.  

 In the event that the PHA does receive confidential information about a person’s specific 
diagnosis, treatment, or the nature or severity of the disability, the PHA will dispose of it. In 
place of the information, the PHA will note in the file that the disability and other requested 
information have been verified, the date the verification was received, and the name and 
address of the knowledgeable professional who sent the information [Notice PIH 2010-26].  

212

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-12

2-II.E. APPROVAL/DENIAL OF A REQUESTED ACCOMMODATION [Joint Statement 
of the Departments of HUD and Justice: Reasonable Accommodations under the Fair Housing 
Act, Notice PIH 2010-26]. 

The PHA must approve a request for an accommodation if the following three conditions are 
met:  

 The request was made by or on behalf of a person with a disability.  

 There is a disability-related need for the accommodation. 

 The requested accommodation is reasonable, meaning it would not impose an undue 
financial and administrative burden on the PHA, or fundamentally alter the nature of the 
PHA’s HCV operations (including the obligation to comply with HUD requirements and 
regulations). 

Requests for accommodations must be assessed on a case-by-case basis, taking into account 
factors such as the overall size of the PHA’s program with respect to the number of employees, 
type of facilities and size of budget, type of operation including composition and structure of 
workforce, the nature and cost of the requested accommodation, and the availability of 
alternative accommodations that would effectively meet the family’s disability-related needs.  

Before making a determination whether to approve the request, the PHA may enter into 
discussion and negotiation with the family, request more information from the family, or may 
require the family to sign a consent form so that the PHA may verify the need for the requested 
accommodation. 

PHA Policy 

After a request for an accommodation is presented, the PHA will respond in writing 
within 10 business days. 

If the PHA denies a request for an accommodation because there is no relationship, or 
nexus, found between the disability and the requested accommodation, the notice will 
inform the family of the right to appeal the PHA’s decision through an informal review 
(if applicable) or informal hearing (see Chapter 16). 

If the PHA denies a request for an accommodation because it is not reasonable (it would 
impose an undue financial and administrative burden or fundamentally alter the nature of 
the PHA’s operations), the PHA will discuss with the family whether an alternative 
accommodation could effectively address the family’s disability-related needs without a 
fundamental alteration to the HCV program and without imposing an undue financial and 
administrative burden. 

If the PHA believes that the family has failed to identify a reasonable alternative 
accommodation after interactive discussion and negotiation, the PHA will notify the 
family in writing of its determination within 10 business days from the date of the most 
recent discussion or communication with the family. 

213

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-13

2-II.F. PROGRAM ACCESSIBILITY FOR PERSONS WITH HEARING OR VISION 
IMPAIRMENTS  

HUD regulations require the PHA to ensure that persons with disabilities related to hearing and 
vision have reasonable access to the PHA's programs and services [24 CFR 8.6].  

At the initial point of contact with each applicant, the PHA shall inform all applicants of 
alternative forms of communication that can be used other than plain language paperwork.  

PHA Policy 

To meet the needs of persons with hearing impairments, TTD/TTY (1-800-735-2943 text 
telephone display / teletype) communication will be available.  

To meet the needs of persons with vision impairments, large-print and audio versions of 
key program documents will be made available upon request. When visual aids are used 
in public meetings or presentations, or in meetings with PHA staff, one-on-one assistance 
will be provided upon request. 

Additional examples of alternative forms of communication are sign language 
interpretation; having material explained orally by staff; or having a third party 
representative (a friend, relative or advocate, named by the applicant) to receive, interpret 
and explain housing materials and be present at all meetings.   

214

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-14

2-II.G. PHYSICAL ACCESSIBILITY 

The PHA must comply with a variety of regulations pertaining to physical accessibility, 
including the following: 

 Notice PIH 2010-26 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973  

 The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990  

 The Architectural Barriers Act of 1968  

 The Fair Housing Act of 1988 

The PHA’s policies concerning physical accessibility must be readily available to applicants and 
participants. They can be found in three key documents: 

 This plan describes the key policies that govern the PHA’s responsibilities with regard to 
physical accessibility.  

 Notice PIH 2010-26 summarizes information about pertinent laws and implementing 
regulations related to nondiscrimination and accessibility in federally-funded housing 
programs. 

 The PHA Plan provides information about self-evaluation, needs assessment, and transition 
plans.  

The design, construction, or alteration of PHA facilities must conform to the Uniform Federal 
Accessibility Standards (UFAS). Newly-constructed facilities must be designed to be readily 
accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities. Alterations to existing facilities must be 
accessible to the maximum extent feasible, defined as not imposing an undue financial and 
administrative burden on the operations of the HCV program.  

When issuing a voucher to a family that includes an individual with disabilities, the PHA will 
include a current list of available accessible units known to the PHA and will assist the family in 
locating an available accessible unit, if necessary.  

In general, owners must permit the family to make reasonable modifications to the unit. 
However, the owner is not required to pay for the modification and may require that the unit be 
restored to its original state at the family’s expense when the family moves. 

215

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-15

2-II.H. DENIAL OR TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE 

A PHA’s decision to deny or terminate the assistance of a family that includes a person with 
disabilities is subject to consideration of reasonable accommodation [24 CFR 982.552 (2)(iv)]. 

When applicants with disabilities are denied assistance, the notice of denial must inform them of 
the PHA’s informal review process and their right to request an informal review. In addition, the 
notice must inform applicants with disabilities of their right to request reasonable 
accommodations to participate in the informal review process. 

When a participant family’s assistance is terminated, the notice of termination must inform them 
of the PHA’s informal hearing process and their right to request a hearing and reasonable 
accommodation. 

When reviewing reasonable accommodation requests, the PHA must consider whether any 
mitigating circumstances can be verified to explain and overcome the problem that led to the 
PHA’s decision to deny or terminate assistance. If a reasonable accommodation will allow the 
family to meet the requirements, the PHA must make the accommodation.  

216

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-16

PART III: IMPROVING ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH LIMITED 
ENGLISH PROFICIENCY (LEP) 

2-III.A. OVERVIEW 

Language for Limited English Proficiency Persons (LEP) can be a barrier to accessing important 
benefits or services, understanding and exercising important rights, complying with applicable 
responsibilities, or understanding other information provided by the HCV program. In certain 
circumstances, failure to ensure that LEP persons can effectively participate in or benefit from 
federally-assisted programs and activities may violate the prohibition under Title VI against 
discrimination on the basis of national origin. This part incorporates the Final Guidance to 
Federal Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition against National Origin 
Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, published January 22, 2007, in the 
Federal Register. 

The PHA will take affirmative steps to communicate with people who need services or 
information in a language other than English. These persons will be referred to as Persons with 
Limited English Proficiency (LEP). 

LEP is defined as persons who do not speak English as their primary language and who have a 
limited ability to read, write, speak or understand English. For the purposes of this administrative 
plan, LEP persons are HCV applicants and participants, and parents and family members of 
applicants and participants. 

In order to determine the level of access needed by LEP persons, the PHA will balance the 
following four factors: (1) the number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or 
likely to be encountered by the Housing Choice Voucher program; (2) the frequency with which 
LEP persons come into contact with the program; (3) the nature and importance of the program, 
activity, or service provided by the program to people’s lives; and (4) the resources available to 
the PHA and costs. Balancing these four factors will ensure meaningful access by LEP persons 
to critical services while not imposing undue burdens on the PHA.

217

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-17

2-III.B. ORAL INTERPRETATION 

The PHA will offer competent interpretation services free of charge, upon request, to the 
LEP person. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will utilize a language line for telephone interpreter services. 

When exercising the option to conduct remote briefings, informal reviews, or hearings, 
however, the PHA will coordinate with a remote interpretation service which, when 
available, uses video conferencing technology rather than voice-only interpretation. 

Where LEP persons desire, they will be permitted to use, at their own expense, an 
interpreter of their own choosing, in place of or as a supplement to the free language 
services offered by the PHA. The PHA, at its discretion, may choose to use the language 
services even when LEP persons desire to use an interpreter of their choosing. The 
interpreter may be a family member or friend. If the interpreter chosen by the family is a 
minor, the PHA will not rely on the minor to serve as the interpreter. 

The PHA will analyze the various kinds of contacts it has with the public, to assess 
language needs and decide what reasonable steps should be taken. “Reasonable steps” 
may not be reasonable where the costs imposed substantially exceed the benefits. 

Where feasible and possible, according to its language assistance plan (LAP), the PHA 
will train and hire bilingual staff to be available to act as interpreters and translators, will 
pool resources with other PHAs, and will standardize documents. 

2-III.C. WRITTEN TRANSLATION 

Translation is the replacement of a written text from one language into an equivalent written text 
in another language.  

PHA Policy 

In order to comply with written-translation obligations, the PHA will take the 
following steps: 

The PHA will provide written translations of vital documents for each eligible 
LEP language group that constitutes 5 percent or 1,000 persons, whichever is less, 
of the population of persons eligible to be served or likely to be affected or 
encountered. Translation of other documents, if needed, can be provided orally; or 

If there are fewer than 50 persons in a language group that reaches the 5 percent 
trigger, the PHA does not translate vital written materials, but provides written 
notice in the primary language of the LEP language group of the right to receive 
competent oral interpretation of those written materials, free of cost. 

218

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-18

2-III.D. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

After completing the four-factor analysis and deciding what language assistance services are 
appropriate, the PHA shall determine whether it is necessary to develop a written 
implementation plan to address the identified needs of the LEP populations it serves. 

If the PHA determines that it is not necessary to develop a written implementation plan, the 
absence of a written plan does not obviate the underlying obligation to ensure meaningful access 
by LEP persons to the PHA’s Housing Choice Voucher program and services. 

PHA Policy 

If it is determined that the PHA serves very few LEP persons, and the PHA has very 
limited resources, the PHA will not develop a written LEP plan, but will consider 
alternative ways to articulate in a reasonable manner a plan for providing meaningful 
access. Entities having significant contact with LEP persons, such as schools, grassroots 
and faith-based organizations, community groups, and groups working with new 
immigrants will be contacted for input into the process. 

If the PHA determines it is appropriate to develop a written LEP plan, the following five 
steps will be taken: (1) Identifying LEP individuals who need language assistance; (2) 
identifying language assistance measures; (3) training staff; (4) providing notice to LEP 
persons; and (5) monitoring and updating the LEP plan. 

219

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-19

 

220

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-20

EXHIBIT 2-1: DEFINITION OF A PERSON WITH A DISABILITY UNDER  
FEDERAL CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS [24 CFR Parts 8.3 and 100.201] 

A person with a disability, as defined under federal civil rights laws, is any person who: 

 Has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more of the major life 
activities of an individual, or 

 Has a record of such impairment, or 

 Is regarded as having such impairment  

The phrase “physical or mental impairment” includes: 

 Any physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic or disfigurement, or anatomical loss 
affecting one or more of the following body systems: neurological; musculoskeletal; special 
sense organs; respiratory, including speech organs; cardiovascular; reproductive; digestive; 
genito-urinary; hemic and lymphatic; skin; and endocrine; or 

 Any mental or psychological disorder, such as mental retardation, organic brain syndrome, 
emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. The term “physical or mental 
impairment” includes, but is not limited to: such diseases and conditions as orthopedic, 
visual, speech and hearing impairments, cerebral palsy, autism, epilepsy, muscular 
dystrophy, multiple sclerosis, cancer, heart disease, diabetes, mental retardation, emotional 
illness, drug addiction and alcoholism. 

“Major life activities” includes, but is not limited to, caring for oneself, performing manual tasks, 
walking, seeing, hearing, breathing, learning, and/or working. 

“Has a record of such impairment” means has a history of, or has been misclassified as having, a 
mental or physical impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities. 

“Is regarded as having an impairment” is defined as having a physical or mental impairment that 
does not substantially limit one or more major life activities but is treated by a public entity 
(such as the PHA) as constituting such a limitation; has none of the impairments defined in this 
section but is treated by a public entity as having such an impairment; or has a physical or mental 
impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, only as a result of the 
attitudes of others toward that impairment. 

221

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 2-21

The definition of a person with disabilities does not include: 

 Current illegal drug users  

 People whose alcohol use interferes with the rights of others 

 Persons who objectively pose a direct threat or substantial risk of harm to others that cannot 
be controlled with a reasonable accommodation under the HCV program 

The above definition of disability determines whether an applicant or participant is entitled to 
any of the protections of federal disability civil rights laws. Thus, a person who does not meet 
this disability is not entitled to a reasonable accommodation under federal civil rights and fair 
housing laws and regulations.  

The HUD definition of a person with a disability is much narrower than the civil rights definition 
of disability. The HUD definition of a person with a disability is used for purposes of receiving 
the disabled family preference, the $400 elderly/disabled household deduction, the $480 
dependent deduction, the allowance for medical expenses, or the allowance for disability 
assistance expenses.  

The definition of a person with a disability for purposes of granting a reasonable accommodation 
request is much broader than the HUD definition of disability. Many people will not qualify as a 
disabled person under the HCV program, yet an accommodation is needed to provide equal 
opportunity. 

222

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-1

Chapter 3 

ELIGIBILITY 

INTRODUCTION 

The PHA is responsible for ensuring that every individual and family admitted to the HCV 
program meets all program eligibility requirements. This includes any individual approved to 
join the family after the family has been admitted to the program. The family must provide any 
information needed by the PHA to confirm eligibility and determine the level of the family’s 
assistance. 

To be eligible for the HCV program: 

 The applicant family must: 

- Qualify as a family as defined by HUD and the PHA.  

- Have income at or below HUD-specified income limits. 

- Qualify on the basis of citizenship or the eligible immigrant status of family members.  

- Provide social security number information for household members as required. 

- Consent to the PHA’s collection and use of family information as provided for in PHA-
provided consent forms.  

- Not currently be receiving a duplicative subsidy. 

 The PHA must determine that the current or past behavior of household members does not 
include activities that are prohibited by HUD or the PHA.  

This chapter contains three parts: 

Part I: Definitions of Family and Household Members. This part contains HUD and PHA 
definitions of family and household members and explains initial and ongoing eligibility 
issues related to these members. 

Part II: Basic Eligibility Criteria. This part discusses income eligibility, and rules 
regarding citizenship, social security numbers, and family consent. 

Part III: Denial of Assistance. This part covers factors related to an applicant’s past or 
current conduct (e.g. criminal activity) that can cause the PHA to deny assistance. 

223

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-2
224

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-3

PART I: DEFINITIONS OF FAMILY AND HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS  

3-I.A. OVERVIEW 

Some eligibility criteria and program rules vary depending upon the composition of the family 
requesting assistance. In addition, some requirements apply to the family as a whole and others 
apply to individual persons who will live in the assisted unit. This part provides information that 
is needed to correctly identify family and household members, and to apply HUD's eligibility 
rules. 

3-I.B. FAMILY AND HOUSEHOLD [24 CFR 982.201(c); FR Notice 02/03/12; 
Notice PIH 2014-20] 

The terms family and household have different meanings in the HCV program. 

Family 

To be eligible for assistance, an applicant must qualify as a family. Family as defined by HUD 
includes, but is not limited to the following, regardless actual or perceived sexual orientation, 
gender identity, or marital status, a single person, who may be an elderly person, disabled person, 
near-elderly person, or any other single person; or  a group of persons residing together. Such 
group includes, but is not limited to a family with or without children (a child who is temporarily 
away from the home because of placement in foster care is considered a member of the family), 
an elderly family, a near-elderly family, a disabled family, a displaced family, or the remaining 
member of a tenant family. The PHA has the discretion to determine if any other group of 
persons qualifies as a family. 

Gender Identity means actual or perceived gender characteristics. 

Sexual orientation means homosexuality, heterosexuality, or bisexuality. 

PHA Policy 

A family also includes two or more individuals who are not related by blood, marriage, 
adoption, or other operation of law but who either can demonstrate that they have lived 
together previously or certify that each individual’s income and other resources will be 
available to meet the needs of the family. 

Each family must identify the individuals to be included in the family at the time of 
application, and must notify the PHA if the family’s composition changes. 

Household 

Household is a broader term that includes additional people who, with the PHA’s permission, 
live in an assisted unit, such as live-in aides, foster children, and foster adults. 

225

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-4

3-I.C. FAMILY BREAKUP AND REMAINING MEMBER OF TENANT FAMILY  

Family Breakup [24 CFR 982.315; Notice PIH 2017-08] 

Except under the following conditions, the PHA has discretion to determine which members of 
an assisted family continue to receive assistance if the family breaks up: 

 If the family breakup results from an occurrence of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking, the PHA must ensure that the victim retains assistance. (For 
documentation requirements and policies related to domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, and stalking, see section 16-IX.D of this plan.) 

 In accordance with Noitce PIH 2017-08, for HUD–Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing 
(HUD–VASH) vouchers, when the veteran is the perpetrator of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the victim must continue to be assisted. Upon 
termination of the perpetrator’s HUD–VASH voucher, the victim should be given a regular 
HCV if one is available, and the perpetrator’s HUD–VASH voucher should be used to serve 
another eligible family. If a regular HCV is not available, the victim will continue to use the 
HUD–VASH voucher, which must be issued to another eligible family upon the voucher’s 
turnover. 

 If a court determines the disposition of property between members of the assisted family, the 
PHA is bound by the court’s determination of which family members continue to receive 
assistance. 

PHA Policy 

When a family on the waiting list breaks up into two otherwise eligible families, only 
one of the new families may retain the original application date. Other former family 
members may make a new application with a new application date if the waiting list 
is open. 

If a family breaks up into two otherwise eligible families while receiving assistance, only 
one of the new families will continue to be assisted.  

In the absence of a judicial decision or an agreement among the original family members, 
the PHA will determine which family will retain their placement on the waiting list or 
continue to receive assistance. In making its determination, the PHA will take into 
consideration the following factors: (1) the interest of any minor children, including 
custody arrangements; (2) the interest of any ill, elderly, or disabled family members; (3) 
the interest of any family member who is the victim of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, including a family member who was forced to leave 
an assisted unit as a result of such actual or threatened abuse; (4) any possible risks to 
family members as a result of criminal activity; and (5) the recommendations of social 
service professionals 

226

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-5

Remaining Member of a Tenant Family [24 CFR 5.403] 

The HUD definition of family includes the remaining member of a tenant family, which is a 
member of an assisted family who remains in the unit when other members of the family have 
left the unit. Household members such as live-in aides, foster children, and foster adults do not 
qualify as remaining members of a family.  

If dependents are the only “remaining members of a tenant family” and there is no family 
member able to assume the responsibilities of the head of household, see Chapter 6, Section 6-
I.B, for the policy on “Caretakers for a Child.” 

3-I.D. HEAD OF HOUSEHOLD [24 CFR 5.504(b)] 

Head of household means the adult member of the family who is considered the head for 
purposes of determining income eligibility and rent. The head of household is responsible for 
ensuring that the family fulfills all of its responsibilities under the program, alone or in 
conjunction with a cohead or spouse. 

PHA Policy 

The family may designate any qualified family member as the head of household. 

The head of household must have the legal capacity to enter into a lease under state and 
local law. A minor who is emancipated under state law may be designated as head of 
household. 

3-I.E. SPOUSE, COHEAD, AND OTHER ADULT  

A family may have a spouse or cohead, but not both [HUD-50058 IB, p. 13]. 

Spouse means the marriage partner of the head of household. 

PHA Policy 

A marriage partner includes the partner in a "common law" marriage as defined in state 
law. The term “spouse” does not apply to friends, roommates, or significant others who 
are not marriage partners. A minor who is emancipated under state law may be 
designated as a spouse. 

A cohead is an individual in the household who is equally responsible with the head of 
household for ensuring that the family fulfills all of its responsibilities under the program, but 
who is not a spouse. A family can have only one cohead. 

PHA Policy 

Minors who are emancipated under state law may be designated as a cohead. 

Other adult means a family member, other than the head, spouse, or cohead, who is 18 years of 
age or older. Foster adults and live-in aides are not considered other adults. 

227

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-6

3-I.F. DEPENDENT [24 CFR 5.603] 

A dependent is a family member who is under 18 years of age or a person of any age who is a 
person with a disability or a full-time student, except that the following persons can never be 
dependents: the head of household, spouse, cohead, foster children/adults and live-in aides. 
Identifying each dependent in the family is important because each dependent qualifies the 
family for a dependent allowance as described in Chapter 6. 

Joint Custody of Dependents 

PHA Policy 

Dependents that are subject to a joint custody arrangement will be considered a member 
of the family, if they live with the applicant or participant family 50 percent or more of 
the time. 

When more than one applicant or participant family is claiming the same dependents as 
family members, the family with primary custody at the time of the initial examination or 
reexamination will be able to claim the dependents. If there is a dispute about which 
family should claim them, the PHA will make the determination based on available 
documents such as court orders, or an IRS return showing which family has claimed the 
child for income tax purposes. 

3-I.G. FULL-TIME STUDENT [24 CFR 5.603; HCV GB, p. 5-29] 

A full-time student (FTS) is a person who is attending school or vocational training on a full-time 
basis. The time commitment or subject load that is needed to be full-time is defined by the 
educational institution. 

Identifying each FTS is important because: (1) each family member that is an FTS, other than the 
head, spouse, or cohead, qualifies the family for a dependent allowance, and (2) the earned 
income of such an FTS is treated differently from the income of other family members. 

3-I.H. ELDERLY AND NEAR-ELDERLY PERSONS, AND ELDERLY FAMILY  
[24 CFR 5.100 and 5.403, FR Notice 02/03/12] 

Elderly Persons  

An elderly person is a person who is at least 62 years of age.  

Near-Elderly Persons 

A near-elderly person is a person who is 50-61 years of age. 

Elderly Family 

An elderly family is one in which the head, spouse, cohead, or sole member is an elderly person. 
Identifying elderly families is important because elderly families qualify for the elderly family 
allowance as described in Chapter 6. 

228

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-7

3-I.I. PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES AND DISABLED FAMILY [24 CFR 5.403,  
FR Notice 02/03/12] 

Persons with Disabilities  

Under the HCV program, special rules apply to persons with disabilities and to any family whose 
head, spouse, or cohead is a person with disabilities. The technical definitions of individual with 
handicaps and persons with disabilities are provided in Exhibit 3-1 at the end of this chapter. 
These definitions are used for a number of purposes including ensuring that persons with 
disabilities are not discriminated against based upon disability.  

As discussed in Chapter 2, the PHA must make all aspects of the HCV program accessible to 
persons with disabilities and consider reasonable accommodations requested based upon a 
person’s disability. 

Disabled Family  

A disabled family is one in which the head, spouse, or cohead is a person with disabilities. 
Identifying disabled families is important because these families qualify for the disabled family 
allowance as described in Chapter 6. 

Even though persons with drug or alcohol dependencies are considered persons with disabilities, 
this does not prevent the PHA from denying assistance for reasons related to alcohol and drug 
abuse in accordance with the policies found in Part III of this chapter, or from terminating 
assistance in accordance with the policies in Chapter 12. 

3-I.J. GUESTS [24 CFR 5.100] 

A guest is a person temporarily staying in the unit with the consent of a member of the household 
who has expressed or implied authority to so consent.  

PHA Policy 

A guest can remain in the assisted unit no longer than 30 consecutive days or a total of 90 
cumulative calendar days during any 12-month period.  

Children who are subject to a joint custody arrangement or for whom a family has 
visitation privileges, that are not included as a family member because they live outside 
of the assisted household more than 50 percent of the time, are not subject to the time 
limitations of guests as described above.  

A family may request an exception to this policy for valid reasons (e.g., care of a relative 
recovering from a medical procedure is expected to last 40 consecutive days). An 
exception will not be made unless the family can identify and provide documentation of 
the residence to which the guest will return.  

229

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-8

3-I.K. FOSTER CHILDREN AND FOSTER ADULTS  

Foster adults are usually persons with disabilities, unrelated to the tenant family, who are unable 
to live alone [24 CFR 5.609]. 

The term foster child is not specifically defined by the regulations. 

Foster children and foster adults who are living with an applicant or who have been approved by 
the PHA to live with a participant family are considered household members but not family 
members. The income of foster children/adults is not counted in family annual income, and 
foster children/adults do not qualify for a dependent deduction [24 CFR 5.603; HUD-50058 IB, 
p. 13]. 

PHA Policy 

A foster child is a child that is in the legal guardianship or custody of a state, county, or 
private adoption or foster care agency, yet is cared for by foster parents in their own 
homes, under some kind of short-term or long-term foster care arrangement with the 
custodial agency. 

A foster child or foster adult may be allowed to reside in the unit if their presence would 
not result in a violation of HQS space standards according to 24 CFR 982.401.  

Children that are temporarily absent from the home as a result of placement in foster care are 
discussed in Section 3-I.L. 

3-I.L. ABSENT FAMILY MEMBERS 

Individuals may be absent from the family, either temporarily or permanently, for a variety of 
reasons including educational activities, placement in foster care, employment, illness, 
incarceration, and court order.  

Definitions of Temporarily and Permanently Absent  

PHA Policy 

Generally an individual who is or is expected to be absent from the assisted unit for 180 
consecutive days or less is considered temporarily absent and continues to be considered 
a family member. Generally an individual who is or is expected to be absent from the 
assisted unit for more than 180 consecutive days is considered permanently absent and no 
longer a family member. Exceptions to this general policy are discussed below. 

Absent Students  

PHA Policy 

When someone who has been considered a family member attends school away from 
home, the person will continue to be considered a family member unless information 
becomes available to the PHA indicating that the student has established a separate 
household or the family declares that the student has established a separate household.  

230

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-9

Absences Due to Placement in Foster Care [24 CFR 5.403] 

Children temporarily absent from the home as a result of placement in foster care are considered 
members of the family.  

PHA Policy  

If a child has been placed in foster care, the PHA will verify with the appropriate agency 
whether and when the child is expected to be returned to the home. Unless the agency 
confirms that the child has been permanently removed from the home, the child will be 
counted as a family member. 

Absent Head, Spouse, or Cohead 

PHA Policy 

An employed head, spouse, or cohead absent from the unit more than 180 consecutive 
days due to employment will continue to be considered a family member.  

Family Members Permanently Confined for Medical Reasons [HCV GB, p. 5-22] 

If a family member is confined to a nursing home or hospital on a permanent basis, that person is 
no longer considered a family member and the income of that person is not counted [HCV GB, 
p. 5-22]. 

PHA Policy 

An individual confined to a nursing home or hospital on a permanent basis is not 
considered a family member. 

The PHA will request verification of the family member’s permanent absence from a 
responsible medical professional. If the responsible medical professional cannot provide 
a determination, the person will be considered temporarily absent. If the family certifies 
that the family member is confined on a permanent basis, they may present, and the PHA 
will consider, any additional documentation or evidence. 

Return of Permanently Absent Family Members 

PHA Policy 

The family must request PHA approval for the return of any adult family members that 
the PHA previously determined to be permanently absent. The individual is subject to the 
eligibility and screening requirements discussed elsewhere in this chapter. 

231

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-10

3-I.M. LIVE-IN AIDE 

A live-in aide is a person who resides with one or more elderly persons, or near-elderly persons, 
or persons with disabilities, and who: (1) is determined to be essential to the care and well-being 
of the persons, (2) is not obligated for the support of the persons, and (3) would not be living in 
the unit except to provide the necessary supportive services [24 CFR 5.403]. 

The PHA must approve a live-in aide if needed as a reasonable accommodation in accordance 
with 24 CFR 8, to make the program accessible to and usable by the family member with 
disabilities. 

The income of a live-in aide is not counted in the calculation of annual income for the family [24 
CFR 5.609(b)]. Relatives may be approved as live-in aides if they meet all of the criteria defining 
a live-in aide. Because live-in aides are not family members, a relative who serves as a live-in 
aide would not be considered a remaining member of a tenant family. 

PHA Policy 

A family’s request for a live-in aide must be made in writing. Written verification will be 
required from a reliable, knowledgeable professional, such as a doctor, social worker, or 
case worker, that the live-in aide is essential for the care and well-being of the elderly, 
near-elderly, or disabled family member. For continued approval, the family must submit 
a new, written request-subject to PHA verification-at each annual reexamination. 

In addition, the family and live-in aide will be required to submit a certification stating 
that the live-in aide is (1) not obligated for the support of the person(s) needing the care, 
and (2) would not be living in the unit except to provide the necessary supportive 
services. 

The PHA will not approve a particular person as a live-in aide, and may withdraw such 
approval if [24 CFR 982.316(b)]: 

The person commits fraud, bribery or any other corrupt or criminal act in 
connection with any federal housing program; 

The person commits drug-related criminal activity or violent criminal activity; or 

The person currently owes rent or other amounts to the PHA or to another PHA in 
connection with Section 8 or public housing assistance under the 1937 Act. 

The PHA will notify the family of its decision in writing within 10 business days of 
receiving a request for a live-in aide, including all required documentation related to 
the request. 

232

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-11

PART II: BASIC ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 

3-II.A. INCOME ELIGIBILITY AND TARGETING 

Income Limits  

HUD establishes income limits for all areas of the country and publishes them annually in the 
Federal Register. They are based upon estimates of median family income with adjustments for 
family size. The income limits are used to determine eligibility for the program and for income 
targeting purposes as discussed in this section.  

Definitions of the Income Limits [24 CFR 5.603(b)] 

Low-income family. A family whose annual income does not exceed 80 percent of the 
median income for the area, adjusted for family size.  

Very low-income family. A family whose annual income does not exceed 50 percent of the 
median income for the area, adjusted for family size.  

Extremely low-income family. A family whose annual income does not exceed the federal 
poverty level or 30 percent of the median income for the area, whichever number is higher. 

Area median income is determined by HUD, with adjustments for smaller and larger 
families. HUD may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 30, 50, or 80 percent of 
the median income for an area if HUD finds that such variations are necessary because of 
unusually high or low family incomes. 

Using Income Limits for Eligibility [24 CFR 982.201] 

Income limits are used for eligibility only at admission. Income eligibility is determined by 
comparing the annual income of an applicant to the applicable income limit for their family size. 
In order to be income eligible, an applicant family must be one of the following: 

 A very low-income family 

 A low-income family that has been "continuously assisted" under the 1937 Housing Act. A 
family is considered to be continuously assisted if the family is already receiving assistance 
under any 1937 Housing Act program at the time the family is admitted to the HCV program 
[24 CFR 982.4] 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will consider a family to be continuously assisted if the family was leasing a 
unit under any 1937 Housing Act program at the time they were selected from the PHA’s 
waiting list. 

 A low-income family that qualifies for voucher assistance as a non-purchasing household 
living in HOPE 1 (public housing homeownership), HOPE 2 (multifamily housing 
homeownership) developments, or other HUD-assisted multifamily homeownership 
programs covered by 24 CFR 248.173 

 A low-income or moderate-income family that is displaced as a result of the prepayment of a 
mortgage or voluntary termination of a mortgage insurance contract on eligible low-income 
housing as defined in 24 CFR 248.101 

233

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-12

HUD permits the PHA to establish additional categories of low-income families that may be 
determined eligible. The additional categories must be consistent with the PHA plan and the 
consolidated plans for local governments within the PHA’s jurisdiction. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA has not established any additional categories of eligible low-income families. 

Using Income Limits for Targeting [24 CFR 982.201] 

At least 75 percent of the families admitted to the PHA's program during a PHA fiscal year must 
be extremely low-income families. HUD may approve exceptions to this requirement if the PHA 
demonstrates that it has made all required efforts, but has been unable to attract an adequate 
number of qualified extremely low-income families. 

Families continuously assisted under the 1937 Housing Act and families living in eligible low-
income housing that are displaced as a result of prepayment of a mortgage or voluntary 
termination of a mortgage insurance contract are not counted for income targeting purposes. 

234

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-13

3-II.B. CITIZENSHIP OR ELIGIBLE IMMIGRATION STATUS [24 CFR 5, Subpart E] 

Housing assistance is available only to individuals who are U.S. citizens, U.S. nationals (herein 
referred to as citizens and nationals), or noncitizens that have eligible immigration status. At 
least one family member must be a citizen, national, or noncitizen with eligible immigration 
status in order for the family to qualify for any level of assistance. 

All applicant families must be notified of the requirement to submit evidence of their citizenship 
status when they apply. Where feasible, and in accordance with the PHA’s Limited English 
Proficiency Plan, the notice must be in a language that is understood by the individual if the 
individual is not proficient in English. 

Declaration [24 CFR 5.508] 

HUD requires each family member to declare whether the individual is a citizen, a national, or an 
eligible noncitizen, except those members who elect not to contend that they have eligible 
immigration status. Those who elect not to contend their status are considered to be ineligible 
noncitizens. For citizens, nationals and eligible noncitizens the declaration must be signed 
personally by the head, spouse, cohead, and any other family member 18 or older, and by a 
parent or guardian for minors. The family must identify in writing any family members who elect 
not to contend their immigration status (see Ineligible Noncitizens below). No declaration is 
required for live-in aides, foster children, or foster adults.  

U.S. Citizens and Nationals 

In general, citizens and nationals are required to submit only a signed declaration as verification 
of their status. However, HUD regulations permit the PHA to request additional documentation 
of their status, such as a passport. 

PHA Policy  

Family members who declare citizenship or national status will not be required to provide 
additional documentation unless the PHA receives information indicating that an 
individual’s declaration may not be accurate.  

Eligible Noncitizens 

In addition to providing a signed declaration, those declaring eligible noncitizen status must sign 
a verification consent form and cooperate with PHA efforts to verify their immigration status as 
described in Chapter 7. The documentation required for establishing eligible noncitizen status 
varies depending upon factors such as the date the person entered the U.S., the conditions under 
which eligible immigration status has been granted, the person’s age, and the date on which the 
family began receiving HUD-funded assistance.  

Lawful residents of the Marshall Islands, the Federated States of Micronesia, and Palau, together 
known as the Freely Associated States, or FAS, are eligible for housing assistance under section 
141 of the Compacts of Free Association between the U.S. Government and the Governments of 
the FAS [Public Law 106-504]. 

235

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-14

Ineligible Noncitizens 

Those noncitizens who do not wish to contend their immigration status are required to have their 
names listed on a noncontending family members listing, signed by the head, spouse, or cohead 
(regardless of citizenship status), indicating their ineligible immigration status. The PHA is not 
required to verify a family member’s ineligible status and is not required to report an individual’s 
unlawful presence in the U.S. to the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services 
(USCIS).  

Providing housing assistance to noncitizen students is prohibited [24 CFR 5.522]. This 
prohibition extends to the noncitizen spouse of a noncitizen student as well as to minor children 
who accompany or follow to join the noncitizen student. Such prohibition does not extend to the 
citizen spouse of a noncitizen student or to the children of the citizen spouse and noncitizen 
student. Such a family is eligible for prorated assistance as a mixed family. 

Mixed Families 

A family is eligible for assistance as long as at least one member is a citizen, national, or eligible 
noncitizen. Families that include eligible and ineligible individuals are considered mixed 
families. Such families will be given notice that their assistance will be prorated, and that they 
may request a hearing if they contest this determination. See Chapter 6 for a discussion of how 
rents are prorated, and Chapter 16 for a discussion of informal hearing procedures.  

Ineligible Families [24 CFR 5.514(d), (e), and (f)] 

A PHA may elect to provide assistance to a family before the verification of the eligibility of the 
individual or one family member [24 CFR 5.512(b)]. Otherwise, no individual or family may be 
assisted prior to the affirmative establishment by the PHA that the individual or at least one 
family member is eligible. Verification of eligibility for this purpose occurs when the individual 
or family members have submitted documentation to the PHA in accordance with program 
requirements [24 CFR 5.512(a)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not provide assistance to a family before the verification of at least one 
family member. 

When a PHA determines that an applicant family does not include any citizens, nationals, 
or eligible noncitizens, following the verification process, the family will be sent a 
written notice within 10 business days of the determination.  

The notice will explain the reasons for the denial of assistance, that the family may be 
eligible for proration of assistance, and will advise the family of its right to request an 
appeal to the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS), or to request 
an informal hearing with the PHA. The informal hearing with the PHA may be requested 
in lieu of the USCIS appeal, or at the conclusion of the USCIS appeal process. The notice 
must also inform the applicant family that assistance may not be delayed until the 
conclusion of the USCIS appeal process, but that it may be delayed pending the 
completion of the informal hearing process.  

Informal hearing procedures are contained in Chapter 16. 

236

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-15

Timeframe for Determination of Citizenship Status [24 CFR 5.508(g)] 

For new occupants joining the assisted family, the PHA must verify status at the first interim or 
regular reexamination following the person’s occupancy, whichever comes first. 

If an individual qualifies for a time extension for the submission of required documents, the PHA 
must grant such an extension for no more than 30 days [24 CFR 5.508(h)]. 

Each family member is required to submit evidence of eligible status only one time during 
continuous occupancy. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will verify the citizenship status of applicants at the time other eligibility 
factors are determined. 

3-II.C. SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBERS [24 CFR 5.216 and 5.218, Notice PIH 2018-24] 

The applicant and all members of the applicant’s household must disclose the complete and 
accurate social security number (SSN) assigned to each household member, and the 
documentation necessary to verify each SSN. If a child under age 6 has been added to an 
applicant family within 6 months prior to voucher issuance, an otherwise eligible family may be 
admitted to the program and must disclose and document the child’s SSN within 90 days of the 
effective date of the initial HAP contract. A detailed discussion of acceptable documentation is 
provided in Chapter 7. 

Note: These requirements do not apply to noncitizens who do not contend eligible immigration 
status. 

In addition, each participant who has not previously disclosed an SSN, has previously disclosed 
an SSN that HUD or the SSA determined was invalid, or has been issued a new SSN must 
submit their complete and accurate SSN and the documentation required to verify the SSN at the 
time of the next interim or annual reexamination or recertification. Participants age 62 or older as 
of January 31, 2010, whose determination of eligibility was begun before January 31, 2010, are 
exempt from this requirement and remain exempt even if they move to a new assisted unit. 

The PHA must deny assistance to an applicant family if they do not meet the SSN disclosure and 
documentation requirements contained in 24 CFR 5.216. 

237

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-16

3-II.D. FAMILY CONSENT TO RELEASE OF INFORMATION [24 CFR 5.230; 
HCV GB, p. 5-13] 

HUD requires each adult family member, and the head of household, spouse, or cohead, 
regardless of age, to sign form HUD-9886, Authorization for the Release of Information/Privacy 
Act Notice, the form HUD-52675 Debts Owed to Public Housing Agencies and Termination, 
and other consent forms as needed to collect information relevant to the family’s eligibility and 
level of assistance. Chapter 7 provides detailed information concerning the consent forms and 
verification requirements. 

The PHA must deny admission to the program if any member of the applicant family fails to sign 
and submit the consent forms for obtaining information in accordance with 24 CFR 5, Subparts 
B and F [24 CFR 982.552(b)(3)]. 

238

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-17

3-II.E. STUDENTS ENROLLED IN INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION  
[24 CFR 5.612, FR Notice 4/10/06, FR Notice 9/21/16] 

Section 327 of Public Law 109-115 and the implementing regulation at 24 CFR 5.612 
established new restrictions on the eligibility of certain students (both part- and full-time) who 
are enrolled in institutions of higher education.  

If a student enrolled at an institution of higher education is under the age of 24, is not a veteran, 
is not married, does not have a dependent child, and is not a person with disabilities receiving 
HCV assistance as of November 30, 2005, the student’s eligibility must be examined along with 
the income eligibility of the student’s parents. In these cases, both the student and the student’s 
parents must be income eligible for the student to receive HCV assistance. If, however, a student 
in these circumstances is determined independent from his/her parents in accordance with PHA 
policy, the income of the student’s parents will not be considered in determining the student’s 
eligibility. 

The new law does not apply to students who reside with parents who are applying to receive 
HCV assistance. It is limited to students who are seeking assistance on their own, separately 
from their parents. 

Definitions 

In determining whether and how the new eligibility restrictions apply to a student, the PHA will 
rely on the following definitions [FR Notice 4/10/06, FR Notice 9/21/16]. 

Dependent Child 

In the context of the student eligibility restrictions, dependent child means a dependent child of a 
student enrolled in an institution of higher education. The dependent child must also meet the 
definition of dependent in 24 CFR 5.603, which states that the dependent must be a member of 
the assisted family, other than the head of household or spouse, who is under 18 years of age, or 
is a person with a disability, or is a full-time student. Foster children and foster adults are not 
considered dependents. 

239

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-18

Independent Student 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will consider a student “independent” from his or her parents and the parents’ 
income will not be considered when determining the student’s eligibility if the following 
four criteria are all met: 

The individual is of legal contract age under state law. 

The individual has established a household separate from his/her parents for at 
least one year prior to application for occupancy or the individual meets the U.S. 
Department of Education’s definition of independent student. 

To be considered an independent student according to the Department of 
Education, a student must meet one or more of the following criteria: 

The individual is at least 24 years old by December 31 of the 
award year for which aid is sought 

The individual is an orphan, in foster care, or a ward of the court, 
or was an orphan, in foster care, or ward of the court at any time 
when the individual was 13 years of age or older 

The individual is, or was immediately prior to attaining the age of 
majority, an emancipated minor or in legal guardianship as 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction in the individual’s 
state of legal residence 

The individual is a veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces or is 
currently serving on active duty in the Armed Forces for other than 
training purposes 

The individual is a graduate or professional student 

 The individual is married 

The individual has one or more legal dependents other than a 
spouse (for example, dependent children or an elderly dependent 
parent) 

240

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-19

The individual has been verified during the school year in which 
the application is submitted as either an unaccompanied youth who 
is a homeless child or youth, or as unaccompanied, at risk of 
homelessness, and self-supporting by:  

A local educational agency homeless liaison 

The director of a program funded under subtitle B of title 
IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act or a 
designee of the director 

A financial aid administrator 

The individual is a student for whom a financial aid administrator 
makes a documented determination of independence by reason of 
other unusual circumstances 

The individual was not claimed as a dependent by his/her parents pursuant to IRS 
regulations, as demonstrated on the parents’ most recent tax forms. 

The individual provides a certification of the amount of financial assistance that 
will be provided by his/her parents. This certification must be signed by the 
individual providing the support and must be submitted even if no assistance is 
being provided. 

If the PHA determines that an individual meets the definition of a vulnerable youth such 
a determination is all that is necessary to determine that the person is an independent 
student for the purposes of using only the student’s income for determining eligibility for 
assistance. 

The PHA will verify that a student meets the above criteria in accordance with the 
policies in Section 7-II.E. 

Institution of Higher Education 

The PHA will use the statutory definition under section 102 of the Higher Education Act of 1965 
to determine whether a student is attending an institution of higher education (see Exhibit 3-2). 

Parents 

PHA Policy 

For purposes of student eligibility restrictions, the definition of parents includes 
biological or adoptive parents, stepparents (as long as they are currently married to 
the biological or adoptive parent), and guardians (e.g., grandparents, aunt/uncle, 
godparents, etc). 

Person with Disabilities 

The PHA will use the statutory definition under section 3(b)(3)(E) of the 1937 Act to determine 
whether a student is a person with disabilities (see Exhibit 3-1). 

241

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-20

Veteran 

PHA Policy 

A veteran is a person who served in the active military, naval, or air service and who was 
discharged or released from such service under conditions other than dishonorable. 

Vulnerable Youth 

PHA Policy 

A vulnerable youth is an individual who meets the U.S. Department of Education’s 
definition of independent student in paragraphs (b), (c), or (h), as adopted in Section II of 
FR Notice 9/21/16: 

The individual is an orphan, in foster care, or a ward of the court, or was an 
orphan, in foster care, or ward of the court at any time when the individual was 13 
years of age or older 

The individual is, or was immediately prior to attaining the age of majority, an 
emancipated minor or in legal guardianship as determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in the individual’s state of legal residence 

The individual has been verified during the school year in which the application is 
submitted as either an unaccompanied youth who is a homeless child or youth, or 
as unaccompanied, at risk of homelessness, and self-supporting by: 

A local educational agency homeless liason 

The director of a program funded under subtitle B of title IV of the 
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act or a designee of the director 

A financial aid administrator 

242

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-21

Determining Student Eligibility 

If a student is applying for assistance on his/her own, apart from his/her parents, the PHA must 
determine whether the student is subject to the eligibility restrictions contained in 24 CFR 5.612. 
If the student is subject to those restrictions, the PHA must ensure that: (1) the student is 
individually eligible for the program, (2) either the student is independent from his/her parents or 
the student’s parents are income eligible for the program, and (3) the “family” with which the 
student is applying is collectively eligible for the program. 

PHA Policy 

For any student who is subject to the 5.612 restrictions, the PHA will: 

Follow its usual policies in determining whether the student individually and the 
student’s “family” collectively are eligible for the program 

Determine whether the student is independent from his/her parents in accordance 
with the definition of independent student in this section  

Follow the policies below, if applicable, in determining whether the student’s 
parents are income eligible for the program 

If the PHA determines that the student, the student’s parents (if applicable), or the 
student’s “family” is not eligible, the PHA will send a notice of denial in accordance with 
the policies in Section 3-III.F, and the applicant family will have the right to request an 
informal review in accordance with the policies in Section 16-III.B. 

243

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-22

Determining Parental Income Eligibility 

PHA Policy 

For any student who is subject to the 5.612 restrictions and who does not satisfy the 
definition of independent student in this section, the PHA will determine the income 
eligibility of the student’s parents as follows: 

If the student’s parents are married and living together, the PHA will obtain a 
joint income declaration and certification of joint income from the parents. 

If the student’s parent is widowed or single, the PHA will obtain an income 
declaration and certification of income from that parent. 

If the student’s parents are divorced or separated, the PHA will obtain an income 
declaration and certification of income from each parent. 

If the student has been living with one of his/her parents and has not had contact 
with or does not know where to contact his/her other parent, the PHA will require 
the student to submit a certification under penalty of perjury describing the 
circumstances and stating that the student does not receive financial assistance 
from the other parent. The PHA will then obtain an income declaration and 
certification of income from the parent with whom the student has been living or 
had contact. 

In determining the income eligibility of the student’s parents, the PHA will use the 
income limits for the jurisdiction in which the parents live. 

3-II.F> EIV SYSTEM SERCHES [Notice PIH 2018-18; EIV FAQs; EIV System Training 
9/30/20 

Existing Tenant Search 

Prior to admission to the program, the PHA must search for all household members using the 
EIV Existing Tenant Search module. The PHA must review the reports for any SSA matches 
involving another PHA or a multifamily entity and follow up on any issues identified. The PHA 
must provide the family with a copy of the Existing Tenant Search results if requested. At no 
time may any family member receive duplicatiove assistance.  

If the tenant is a new admission to the PHA, and a match is identified at a multifamily property, 
the PHA must report the program admission date to the multifamily property and document the 
notification in the tenant file. The family must provide documentation of move-out from the 
assisted unit, as applicable.  

 PHA Policy 

 The PHA will contact the PHA or owner identified in the report o confirm that the family 
has moved out of the unit and obtain documentation of current tenancy status, including a form 
HUD-50058 or 50059, as applicable, showing an end of participation. The PHA will only 
approve assistance contingent upon the move-out from the currently occupied assisted unit.  

244

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-23

Debts Owed to PHAs and Terminations 

All adult household members must sign the form HUD-52675 Debts Owed to Public Housing 
and Terminations. Prior to admission to the program, the PHA must search for each adult family 
member in the Debts Owed to PHAs and Terminations module. 

If a current or former tenant disputes the information in the module, the tenant should contact the 
PHA directly in writing to dispute the information and provide any documentation that supports 
the dispute. If the PHA determines that the disputed information is incorrect, the PHA will 
update or delete the record from EIV. Former tenants may dispute debt and termination 
information for a period of up to three years from the end of participation date in the program.  

 PHA Policy 

The PHA will require each adult household member to sign the form HUD-52675 once at 
the eligibility determination. Any new members added to the household after admission 
will be required to sign the form HUD-52675 prior to being added to the household.  

The PHA will search the Debts Owed to PHAs and Terminations module as part of the 
eligibility determination for new households and as part of the screening process for any 
household members added after the household is admitted to the program. If any 
information on the debts or terminations is returned by the search, the PHA will 
determine if this information warrants a denial in accordance with the policies in Part III 
of this chapter.  

Income and IVT Reports 

For each new admission, the PHA is required to review the EIV income and IVT Reports to 
confirm and validate family reported income within 120 days of the IMS/PIC submission date of 
the new admission. The PHA must print and maintain copies of the EIV income and IVT repots 
in the tenant file and resolve any discrepancies with the family within 60 days of the EIV income 
or IVT report dates.  

245

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-24

PART III: DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE 

3-III.A. OVERVIEW 

A family that does not meet the eligibility criteria discussed in Parts I and II, must be denied 
assistance. In this section we will discuss other situations and circumstances in which denial of 
assistance is mandatory for the PHA, and those in which denial of assistance is optional for 
the PHA. 

While the regulations state that the PHA must prohibit admission for certain types of criminal 
activity and give the PHA the option to deny for other types of previous criminal history, more 
recent HUD rules and OGC guidance must also be taken into consideration when determining 
whether a particular individual’s criminal history merits denial of admission. 

When considering any denial of admission, PHAs may not use arrest records as the basis for the 
denial. Further, HUD does not require the adoption of “One Strike” policies and reminds PHAs 
of their obligation to safeguard the due process rights of applicants and tenants [Notice 
PIH 2015-19]. 

HUD’s Office of General Counsel issued a memo on April 4, 2016, regarding the application of 
Fair Housing Act standards to the use of criminal records. This memo states that a PHA violates 
the Fair Housing Act when their policy or practice has an unjustified discriminatory effect, even 
when the PHA had no intention to discriminate. Where a policy or practice that restricts 
admission based on criminal history has a disparate impact on a particular race, national origin, 
or other protected class, that policy or practice is in violation of the Fair Housing Act if it is not 
necessary to serve a substantial, legitimate, nondiscriminatory interest of the PHA, or if that 
interest could be served by another practice that has a less discriminatory effect [OGC 
Memo 4/4/16]. 

PHAs who impose blanket prohibitions on any person with any conviction record, no matter 
when the conviction occurred, what the underlying conduct entailed, or what the convicted 
person has done since then will be unable to show that such policy or practice is necessary to 
achieve a substantial, legitimate, nondiscriminatory interest. Even a PHA with a more tailored 
policy or practice that excludes individuals with only certain types of convictions must still prove 
that its policy is necessary. To do this, the PHA must show that its policy accurately 
distinguishes between criminal conduct that indicates a demonstrable risk to resident safety and 
property and criminal conduct that does not. 

246

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-25

Forms of Denial [24 CFR 982.552(a)(2); HCV GB, p. 5-35] 

Denial of assistance includes any of the following: 

 Not placing the family's name on the waiting list 

 Denying or withdrawing a voucher 

 Not approving a request for tenancy or refusing to enter into a HAP contract 

 Refusing to process a request for or to provide assistance under portability procedures 

Prohibited Reasons for Denial of Program Assistance [24 CFR 982.202(b),  
24 CFR 5.2005(b)] 

HUD rules prohibit denial of program assistance to the program based on any of the 
following criteria: 

 Age, disability, race, color, religion, sex, or national origin (See Chapter 2 for additional 
information about fair housing and equal opportunity requirements.) 

 Where a family lives prior to admission to the program 

 Where the family will live with assistance under the program. Although eligibility is not 
affected by where the family will live, there may be restrictions on the family’s ability to 
move outside the PHA’s jurisdiction under portability. (See Chapter 10.) 

 Whether members of the family are unwed parents, recipients of public assistance, or 
children born out of wedlock 

 Whether the family includes children 

 Whether a family decides to participate in a family self-sufficiency program 

 Whether or not a qualified applicant is or has been a victim of domestic violence,  
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking if the applicant is otherwise qualified for 
assistance (See section 3-III.G.) 

247

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-26

3-III.B. MANDATORY DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE [24 CFR 982.553(a)]  

HUD requires the PHA to deny assistance in the following cases: 

 Any member of the household has been evicted from federally assisted housing in the last 
three years for drug-related criminal activity. HUD permits, but does not require, the PHA to 
admit an otherwise-eligible family if the household member has completed a PHA-approved 
drug rehabilitation program or the circumstances which led to eviction no longer exist (e.g., 
the person involved in the criminal activity no longer lives in the household). 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not admit an otherwise-eligible family who was evicted from federally 
assisted housing within the past five years for drug related criminal activity under any 
circumstances. 

 The PHA determines that any household member is currently engaged in the use of illegal 
drugs.  

PHA Policy 

Currently engaged in is defined as any use of illegal drugs during the previous three 
months, unless the applicant is currently enrolled in and fully compliant with treatment. 

 The PHA has reasonable cause to believe that any household member’s current use or pattern 
of use of illegal drugs, or current abuse or pattern of abuse of alcohol, may threaten the 
health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents. 

PHA Policy 

In determining reasonable cause, the PHA will consider all credible evidence, including 
but not limited to, any record of convictions, arrests, or evictions of household members 
related to the use of illegal drugs or the abuse of alcohol. A conviction will be given more 
weight than an arrest. A record or records of arrest will not be used as the sole basis of 
determining reasonable cause. The PHA will also consider evidence from treatment 
providers or community-based organizations providing services to household members. 

 Any household member has ever been convicted of drug-related criminal activity for the 
production or manufacture of methamphetamine in any location, not just federally assisted 
housing, the family will be denied assistance. 

 Any household member is subject to a lifetime registration requirement under a state sex 
offender registration program 

248

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-27

3-III.C. OTHER PERMITTED REASONS FOR DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE 

HUD permits, but does not require, the PHA to deny assistance for the reasons discussed in this 
section.  

Criminal Activity [24 CFR 982.553] 

HUD permits, but does not require, the PHA to deny assistance if the PHA determines that any 
household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in during a reasonable time before the 
family would receive assistance, certain types of criminal activity. 

PHA Policy 

If any household member is currently engaged in, or has engaged in any of the following 
criminal activities, within the past five years unless otherwise stated, the family will be 
denied assistance.  

Drug-related criminal activity, defined by HUD as the illegal manufacture, sale, 
distribution, or use of a drug, or the possession of a drug with intent to manufacture, sell, 
distribute or use the drug [24 CFR 5.100].  

Violent criminal activity, defined by HUD as any criminal activity that has as one of its 
elements the use, attempted use, or threatened use of physical force substantial enough to 
cause, or be reasonably likely to cause, serious bodily injury or property damage [24 CFR 
5.100]. 

Criminal activity that may threaten the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of 
the premises by other residents or persons residing in the immediate vicinity; or 

Criminal activity that may threaten the health or safety of property owners, management 
staff, and persons performing contract administration functions or other responsibilities 
on behalf of the PHA (including a PHA employee or a PHA contractor, subcontractor, or 
agent). 

Immediate vicinity means within a three-block radius of the premises. 

Evidence of such criminal activity includes, but is not limited to: 

Any conviction for drug-related or violent criminal activity within the past 
five years. 

Records of arrests for drug-related or violent criminal activity within the past five 
years, although a record or records of arrest will not be used as the sole basis for 
the denial or proof that the applicant engaged in disqualifying criminal activity. 

A conviction for drug-related or violent criminal activity will be given more 
weight than an arrest for such activity. 

In making its decision to deny assistance, the PHA will consider the factors discussed in 
Section 3-III.E. Upon consideration of such factors, the PHA may, on a case-by-case 
basis, decide not to deny assistance. 

249

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-28

Previous Behavior in Assisted Housing [24 CFR 982.552(c)] 

HUD authorizes the PHA to deny assistance based on the family’s previous behavior in assisted 
housing. 

Per the alternative requirements listed in the Federal Register notice dated December 29, 2014, 
PHAs are no longer permitted to deny assistance to a family because the family previously failed 
to meet its obligations under the Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) program [FR Notice 12/29/14]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will deny assistance to an applicant family if: 

The family does not provide information that the PHA or HUD determines is 
necessary in the administration of the program. 

The family does not provide complete and true information to the PHA. 

Any family member has been evicted from federally assisted housing in the last 
five years. 

Any family member has committed fraud, bribery, or any other corrupt or 
criminal act in connection with any federal housing program. 

The family owes rent or other amounts to any PHA in connection with Section 8 
or other public housing assistance under the 1937 Act, unless the family repays 
the full amount of the debt prior to being selected from the waiting list. 

If the family has not reimbursed any PHA for amounts the PHA paid to an owner 
under a HAP contract for rent, damages to the unit, or other amounts owed by the 
family under the lease, unless the family repays the full amount of the debt prior 
to being selected from the waiting list. 

The family has breached the terms of a repayment agreement entered into with the 
PHA, unless the family repays the full amount of the debt covered in the 
repayment agreement prior to being selected from the waiting list. 

A family member has engaged in or threatened violent or abusive behavior toward 
PHA personnel. 

Abusive or violent behavior towards PHA personnel includes verbal as 
well as physical abuse or violence. Use of racial epithets, or other 
language, written or oral, that is customarily used to intimidate may be 
considered abusive or violent behavior.  

Threatening refers to oral or written threats or physical gestures that 
communicate intent to abuse or commit violence. 

In making its decision to deny assistance, the PHA will consider the factors discussed in 
Section 3-III.E. Upon consideration of such factors, the PHA may, on a case-by-case 
basis, decide not to deny assistance. 

250

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-29

3-III.D. SCREENING 

Screening for Eligibility  

PHAs are authorized to obtain criminal conviction records from law enforcement agencies to 
screen applicants for admission to the HCV program. This authority assists the PHA in 
complying with HUD requirements and PHA policies to deny assistance to applicants who are 
engaging in or have engaged in certain criminal activities. In order to obtain access to the records 
the PHA must require every applicant family to submit a consent form signed by each adult 
household member [24 CFR 5.903]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will perform a criminal background check through Iowa Courts Online, other 
state court records for states they have resided and One Source, for every adult household 
member. 

While a PHA has regulatory authority to use criminal conviction records for the purpose of 
applicant screening for admission, there is no corresponding authority to use these records to 
check for criminal and illegal drug activity by participants, and therefore, PHAs may not use 
records for this purpose. 

PHAs are required to perform criminal background checks necessary to determine whether any 
household member is subject to a lifetime registration requirement under a state sex offender 
program in the state where the housing is located, as well as in any other state where a household 
member is known to have resided [24 CFR 982.553(a)(2)(i)].  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will use the Dru Sjodin National Sex Offender database to screen applicants 
for admission.  

Additionally, PHAs must ask whether the applicant, or any member of the applicant’s household, 
is subject to a lifetime registered sex offender registration requirement in any state [Notice 
PIH 2012-28]. 

If the PHA proposes to deny assistance based on a criminal record or on lifetime sex offender 
registration information, the PHA must notify the household of the proposed action and must 
provide the subject of the record and the applicant a copy of the record and an opportunity to 
dispute the accuracy and relevance of the information prior to a denial of admission. [24 CFR 
5.903(f) and 5.905(d)].  

251

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-30

Screening for Suitability as a Tenant [24 CFR 982.307] 

The PHA has no liability or responsibility to the owner for the family’s behavior or suitability for 
tenancy. The PHA has the authority to conduct additional screening to determine whether an 
applicant is likely to be a suitable tenant.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not conduct additional screening to determine an applicant family’s 
suitability for tenancy.  

The owner is responsible for screening and selection of the family to occupy the owner’s unit. 
The PHA must inform the owner that screening and selection for tenancy is the responsibility of 
the owner. An owner may consider a family’s history with respect to factors such as: payment of 
rent and utilities, caring for a unit and premises, respecting the rights of other residents to the 
peaceful enjoyment of their housing, criminal activity that is a threat to the health, safety or 
property of others, and compliance with other essential conditions of tenancy. 

HUD requires the PHA to provide prospective owners with the family's current and prior address 
(as shown in PHA records) and the name and address (if known) of the owner at the family's 
current and prior addresses. HUD permits the PHA to provide owners with additional 
information, as long as families are notified that the information will be provided, and the same 
type of information is provided to all owners. 

The PHA may not disclose to the owner any confidential information provided to the PHA by the 
family in response to a PHA request for documentation of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking except at the written request or with the written consent of the 
individual providing the documentation  
[24 CFR 5.2007(a)(4)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will inform owners of their responsibility to screen prospective tenants, and 
will provide owners with the required known name and address information, at the time 
of the initial HQS inspection or before. The PHA will not provide any additional 
information to the owner, such as tenancy history or criminal history, etc. 

252

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-31

3-III.E. CRITERIA FOR DECIDING TO DENY ASSISTANCE 

Evidence [24 CFR 982.553(c)] 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will use the concept of the preponderance of the evidence as the standard for 
making all admission decisions. 

Preponderance of the evidence is defined as evidence which is of greater weight or more 
convincing than the evidence which is offered in opposition to it; that is, evidence which 
as a whole shows that the fact sought to be proved is more probable than not. 
Preponderance of the evidence may not be determined by the number of witnesses, but by 
the greater weight of all evidence. 

Consideration of Circumstances [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)] 

HUD authorizes the PHA to consider all relevant circumstances when deciding whether to deny 
assistance based on a family’s past history except in the situations for which denial of assistance 
is mandatory (see Section 3-III.B). 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will consider the following facts and circumstances prior to making its 
decision: 

The seriousness of the case, especially with respect to how it would affect other 
residents’ safety or property 

The effects that denial of assistance may have on other members of the family 
who were not involved in the action or failure to act 

The extent of participation or culpability of individual family members, including 
whether the culpable family member is a minor or a person with disabilities, or 
(as discussed further in section 3-III.G) a victim of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking 

The length of time since the violation occurred, including the age of the individual 
at the time of the conduct, as well as the family’s recent history and the likelihood 
of favorable conduct in the future 

253

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-32

While a record or records of arrest will not be used as the sole basis for denial, an 
arrest may, however, trigger an investigation to determine whether the applicant 
actually engaged in disqualifying criminal activity. As part of its investigation, the 
PHA may obtain the police report associated with the arrest and consider the 
reported circumstances of the arrest. The PHA may also consider: 

Any statements made by witnesses or the applicant not included in the 
police report 

Whether criminal charges were filed 

Whether, if filed, criminal charges were abandoned, dismissed, not 
prosecuted, or ultimately resulted in an acquittal 

Any other evidence relevant to determining whether or not the applicant 
engaged in disqualifying activity 

Evidence of criminal conduct will be considered if it indicates a demonstrable risk 
to safety and/or property 

In the case of drug or alcohol abuse, whether the culpable household member is 
participating in or has successfully completed a supervised drug or alcohol 
rehabilitation program or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully 

The PHA will require the applicant to submit evidence of the household 
member’s current participation in or successful completion of a supervised 
drug or alcohol rehabilitation program, or evidence of otherwise having 
been rehabilitated successfully. 

254

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-33

Removal of a Family Member's Name from the Application  

Should the PHA’s screening process reveal that an applicant’s household includes an individual 
subject to state lifetime registered sex offender registration, the PHA must offer the family the 
opportunity to remove the ineligible family member from the household. If the family is 
unwilling to remove that individual from the household, the PHA must deny admission to the 
family [Notice PIH 2012-28].  

For other criminal activity, the PHA may permit the family to exclude the culpable family 
members as a condition of eligibility. [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)(ii)]. 

PHA Policy 

As a condition of receiving assistance, a family may agree to remove the culpable family 
member from the application. In such instances, the head of household must certify that 
the family member will not be permitted to visit, stay as a guest, or reside in the assisted 
unit.  

After admission to the program, the family must present evidence of the former family 
member’s current address upon PHA request. 

Reasonable Accommodation [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)(iv)] 

If the family includes a person with disabilities, the PHA’s decision concerning denial of 
admission is subject to consideration of reasonable accommodation in accordance with 24 CFR 
Part 8.  

PHA Policy 

If the family indicates that the behavior of a family member with a disability is the reason 
for the proposed denial of assistance, the PHA will determine whether the behavior is 
related to the stated disability. If so, upon the family’s request, the PHA will determine 
whether admitting the family as a reasonable accommodation is appropriate. The PHA 
will only consider accommodations that can reasonably be expected to address the 
behavior that is the basis of the proposed denial of assistance. See Chapter 2 for a 
discussion of reasonable accommodation.  

255

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-34

3-III.F. NOTICE OF ELIGIBILITY OR DENIAL  

If the family is eligible for assistance, the PHA will notify the family in writing and schedule a 
tenant briefing, as discussed in Chapter 5.  

If the PHA determines that a family is not eligible for the program for any reason, the family 
must be notified promptly. The notice must describe: (1) the reasons for which assistance has 
been denied, (2) the family’s right to an informal review, and (3) the process for obtaining the 
informal review [24 CFR 982.554 (a)]. See Chapter 16, for informal review policies and 
procedures. 

PHA Policy 

The family will be notified of a decision to deny assistance in writing within 10 business 
days of the determination.  

If a PHA uses a criminal record or sex offender registration information obtained under 24 CFR 
5, Subpart J, as the basis of a denial, a copy of the record must precede the notice to deny, with 
an opportunity for the applicant to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the information before 
the PHA can move to deny the application. In addition, a copy of the record must be provided to 
the subject of the record [24 CFR 5.903(f) and 5.905(d)]. The PHA must give the family an 
opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of that record, in the informal review process 
in accordance with program requirements [24 CFR 982.553(d)]. 

PHA Policy 

If based on a criminal record or sex offender registration information, an applicant family 
appears to be ineligible the PHA will notify the family in writing of the proposed denial 
and provide a copy of the record to the applicant and to the subject of the record. The 
family will be given 10 business days to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the 
information. If the family does not contact the PHA to dispute the information within that 
10-day period, the PHA will proceed with issuing the notice of denial of admission. A 
family that does not exercise their right to dispute the accuracy of the information prior to 
issuance of the official denial letter will still be given the opportunity to do so as part of 
the informal review process.  

Notice requirements related to denying assistance to noncitizens are contained in Section 3-II.B. 

Notice policies related to denying admission to applicants who may be victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking are contained in Section 3-III.G. 

256

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-35

3-III.G. PROHIBITION AGAINST DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE TO VICTIMS OF 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, AND STALKING 

The Violence against Women Act of 2013 (VAWA) and the HUD regulation at 
24 CFR 5.2005(b) prohibit PHAs from denying an applicant admission to the HCV program 
on the basis or as a direct result of the fact that the applicant is or has been a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, if the applicant otherwise qualifies for 
assistance or admission. 

Definitions of key terms used in VAWA are provided in section 16-IX of this plan, where 
general VAWA requirements and policies pertaining to notification, documentation, and 
confidentiality are also located. 

Notification 

VAWA 2013 expanded notification requirements to include the obligation for PHAs to provide 
applicants who are denied assistance with a VAWA Notice of Occupancy Rights (form HUD–
5380) and a domestic violence certification form (HUD-5382) at the time the applicant is denied. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA acknowledges that a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking may have an unfavorable history (e.g., a poor credit history, poor 
rental history, a record of previous damage to an apartment, a prior arrest record) due to 
adverse factors that would warrant denial under the PHA’s policies. 

While the PHA is not required to identify whether adverse factors that resulted in the 
applicant’s denial are a result of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking, the applicant may inform the PHA that their status as a victim is directly related 
to the grounds for the denial. The PHA will request that the applicant provide enough 
information to the PHA to allow the PHA to make an objectively reasonable 
determination, based on all circumstances, whether the adverse factor is a direct result of 
their status as a victim. 

The PHA will include in its notice of denial the VAWA information described in section 
16-IX.C of this plan as well as including a copy of the form HUD-5382. The PHA will 
request in writing that an applicant wishing to claim protection under VAWA notify the 
PHA within 14 business days. 

257

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-36

Documentation 

Victim Documentation [24 CFR 5.2007] 

PHA Policy 

If an applicant claims the protection against denial of assistance that VAWA provides to 
victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, the PHA will 
request in writing that the applicant provide documentation supporting the claim in 
accordance with section 16-IX.D of this plan. 

Perpetrator Documentation 

PHA Policy 

If the perpetrator of the abuse is a member of the applicant family, the applicant must 
provide additional documentation consisting of one of the following: 

A signed statement (1) requesting that the perpetrator be removed from the 
application and (2) certifying that the perpetrator will not be permitted to visit or 
to stay as a guest in the assisted unit 

Documentation that the perpetrator has successfully completed, or is successfully 
undergoing, rehabilitation or treatment. The documentation must be signed by an 
employee or agent of a domestic violence service provider or by a medical or 
other knowledgeable professional from whom the perpetrator has sought or is 
receiving assistance in addressing the abuse. The signer must attest under penalty 
of perjury to his or her belief that the rehabilitation was successfully completed or 
is progressing successfully. The victim and perpetrator must also sign or attest to 
the documentation. 

258

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-37

EXHIBIT 3-1: DETAILED DEFINITIONS RELATED TO DISABILITIES 

Person with Disabilities [24 CFR 5.403] 

The term person with disabilities means a person who has any of the following types of 
conditions: 

 Has a disability, as defined in 42 U.S.C. Section 423(d)(1)(A), which reads:  

Inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically 
determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or 
which has lasted or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 
months; or 

In the case of an individual who has attained the age of 55 and is blind (within the 
meaning of “blindness” as defined in section 416(i)(1) of this title), inability by reason of 
such blindness to engage in substantial gainful activity, requiring skills or ability 
comparable to those of any gainful activity in which he has previously engaged with 
some regularity and over a substantial period of time. 

 Has a developmental disability as defined in the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and 
Bill of Rights Act of 2000 [42 U.S.C.15002(8)], which defines developmental disability in 
functional terms as follows:  

(A) In General 

The term “developmental disability” means a severe, chronic disability of an 
individual that: 

(i) is attributable to a mental or physical impairment or combination of mental and 
physical impairments; 

(ii) is manifested before the individual attains age 22; 

(iii) is likely to continue indefinitely; 

(iv) results in substantial functional limitations in 3 or more of the following areas of 
major life activity: (I) Self-care, (II) Receptive and expressive language, (III) 
Learning, (IV) Mobility, (V) Self-direction, (VI) Capacity for independent living, 
(VII) Economic self-sufficiency; and 

(v) reflects the individual’s need for a combination and sequence of special, 
interdisciplinary, or generic services, individualized supports, or other forms of 
assistance that are of lifelong or extended duration and are individually planned 
and coordinated. 

259

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-38

(B) Infants and Young Children 

An individual from birth to age 9, inclusive, who has a substantial developmental delay 
or specific congenital or acquired condition, may be considered to have a developmental 
disability without meeting 3 or more of the criteria described in clauses (i) through (v) of 
subparagraph (A) if the individual, without services and supports, has a high probability 
of meeting those criteria later in life. 

 Has a physical, mental, or emotional impairment that is expected to be of long-continued and 
indefinite duration; substantially impedes his or her ability to live independently, and is of 
such a nature that the ability to live independently could be improved by more suitable 
housing conditions. 

People with the acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) or any conditions arising from the 
etiologic agent for AIDS are not excluded from this definition. 

A person whose disability is based solely on any drug or alcohol dependence does not qualify as 
a person with disabilities for the purposes of this program. 

For purposes of reasonable accommodation and program accessibility for persons with 
disabilities, the term person with disabilities refers to an individual with handicaps.  

260

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-39

Individual with Handicaps [24 CFR 8.3] 

Individual with handicaps means any person who has a physical or mental impairment that 
substantially limits one or more major life activities; has a record of such an impairment; or is 
regarded as having such an impairment. The term does not include any individual who is an 
alcoholic or drug abuser whose current use of alcohol or drugs prevents the individual from 
participating in the program or activity in question, or whose participation, by reason of such 
current alcohol or drug abuse, would constitute a direct threat to property or the safety of others. 
As used in this definition, the phrase: 

(1) Physical or mental impairment includes: 

(a) Any physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or anatomical loss 
affecting one or more of the following body systems: neurological; musculoskeletal; 
special sense organs; respiratory, including speech organs; cardiovascular; reproductive; 
digestive; genito-urinary; hemic and lymphatic; skin; and endocrine; or  

(b) Any mental or psychological disorder, such as mental retardation, organic brain 
syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. The term 
physical or mental impairment includes, but is not limited to, such diseases and 
conditions as orthopedic, visual, speech and hearing impairments, cerebral palsy, autism, 
epilepsy, muscular dystrophy, multiple sclerosis, cancer, heart disease, diabetes, mental 
retardation, emotional illness, drug addiction and alcoholism. 

(2) Major life activities means functions such as caring for one's self, performing manual tasks, 
walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning and working. 

(3) Has a record of such an impairment means has a history of, or has been misclassified as 
having, a mental or physical impairment that substantially limits one or more major life 
activities. 

(4) Is regarded as having an impairment means: 

(a) Has a physical or mental impairment that does not substantially limit one or more major 
life activities but that is treated by a recipient as constituting such a limitation; 

(b) Has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life 
activities only as a result of the attitudes of others toward such impairment; or 

(c) Has none of the impairments defined in paragraph (1) of this section but is treated by a 
recipient as having such an impairment. 

261

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-40

 

262

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-41

EXHIBIT 3-2: DEFINITION OF INSTITUTION OF HIGHER EDUCATION 
[20 U.S.C. 1001 and 1002] 

Eligibility of Students for Assisted Housing Under Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act of 
1937; Supplementary Guidance; Notice [Federal Register, April 10, 2006] 

Institution of Higher Education shall have the meaning given this term in the Higher Education 
Act of 1965 in 20 U.S.C. 1001 and 1002. 

Definition of ‘‘Institution of Higher Education’’ From 20 U.S.C. 1001 

(a) Institution of higher education. For purposes of this chapter, other than subchapter IV and 
part C of subchapter I of chapter 34 of Title 42, the term ‘‘institution of higher education’’ 
means an educational institution in any State that 

(1) Admits as regular students only persons having a certificate of graduation from a school 
providing secondary education, or the recognized equivalent of such a certificate;  

(2) Is legally authorized within such State to provide a program of education beyond 
secondary education;  

(3) Provides an educational program for which the institution awards a bachelor’s degree or 
provides not less than a 2-year program that is acceptable for full credit toward such a 
degree;  

(4) Is a public or other nonprofit institution; and  

(5) Is accredited by a nationally recognized accrediting agency or association, or if not so 
accredited, is an institution that has been granted preaccreditation status by such an 
agency or association that has been recognized by the Secretary for the granting of 
preaccreditation status, and the Secretary has determined that there is satisfactory 
assurance that the institution will meet the accreditation standards of such an agency or 
association within a reasonable time.  

(b) Additional institutions included. For purposes of this chapter, other than subchapter IV and 
part C of subchapter I of chapter 34 of Title 42, the term ‘‘institution of higher education’’ 
also includes—  

(1) Any school that provides not less than a 1-year program of training to prepare students 
for gainful employment in a recognized occupation and that meets the provision of 
paragraphs (1), (2), (4), and (5) of subsection (a) of this section; and  

(2) A public or nonprofit private educational institution in any State that, in lieu of the 
requirement in subsection (a)(1) of this section, admits as regular students persons who 
are beyond the age of compulsory school attendance in the State in which the institution 
is located.  

(c) List of accrediting agencies. For purposes of this section and section 1002 of this title, the 
Secretary shall publish a list of nationally recognized accrediting agencies or associations 
that the Secretary determines, pursuant to subpart 2 of part G of subchapter IV of this 
chapter, to be reliable authority as to the quality of the education or training offered. 

263

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-42

Definition of ‘‘Institution of Higher Education’’ From 20 U.S.C. 1002 

(a) Definition of institution of higher education for purposes of student assistance programs  

(1) Inclusion of additional institutions. Subject to paragraphs (2) through (4) of this 
subsection, the term ‘‘institution of higher education’’ for purposes of subchapter IV of 
this chapter and part C of subchapter I of chapter 34 of title 42 includes, in addition to the 
institutions covered by the definition in section 1001 of this title—  

(A) A proprietary institution of higher education (as defined in subsection (b) of this 
section);  

(B) A postsecondary vocational institution (as defined in subsection (c) of this section); 
and  

(C) Only for the purposes of part B of subchapter IV of this chapter, an institution outside 
the United States that is comparable to an institution of higher education as defined in 
section 1001 of this title and that has been approved by the Secretary for the purpose 
of part B of subchapter IV of this chapter.  

(2) Institutions outside the United States  

(A) In general. For the purpose of qualifying as an institution under paragraph (1)(C), the 
Secretary shall establish criteria by regulation for the approval of institutions outside 
the United States and for the determination that such institutions are comparable to an 
institution of higher education as defined in section 1001 of this title (except that a 
graduate medical school, or a veterinary school, located outside the United States 
shall not be required to meet the requirements of section 1001 (a)(4) of this title). 
Such criteria shall include a requirement that a student attending such school outside 
the United States is ineligible for loans made, insured, or guaranteed under part B of 
subchapter IV of this chapter unless—  

(i) In the case of a graduate medical school located outside the United States—  

(I)(aa) At least 60 percent of those enrolled in, and at least 60 percent of the 
graduates of, the graduate medical school outside the United States were not 
persons described in section 1091(a)(5) of this title in the year preceding the 
year for which a student is seeking a loan under part B of subchapter IV of 
this chapter; and  

(bb) At least 60 percent of the individuals who were students or graduates of the 
graduate medical school outside the United States or Canada (both nationals 
of the United States and others) taking the examinations administered by the 
Educational Commission for Foreign Medical Graduates received a passing 
score in the year preceding the year for which a student is seeking a loan 
under part B of subchapter IV of this chapter; or  

(II) The institution has a clinical training program that was approved by a State as 
of January 1, 1992; or  

264

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-43

(ii) In the case of a veterinary school located outside the United States that does not 
meet the requirements of section 1001(a)(4) of this title, the institution’s students 
complete their clinical training at an approved veterinary school located in the 
United States.  

(B) Advisory panel  

(i) In general. For the purpose of qualifying as an institution under paragraph (1)(C) 
of this subsection, the Secretary shall establish an advisory panel of medical 
experts that shall—  

(I) Evaluate the standards of accreditation applied to applicant foreign medical 
schools; and  

(II) Determine the comparability of those standards to standards for accreditation 
applied to United States medical schools.  

(ii) Special rule if the accreditation standards described in clause (i) are determined 
not to be comparable, the foreign medical school shall be required to meet the 
requirements of section 1001 of this title.  

(C) Failure to release information. The failure of an institution outside the United States 
to provide, release, or authorize release to the Secretary of such information as may 
be required by subparagraph (A) shall render such institution ineligible for the 
purpose of part B of subchapter IV of this chapter.  

(D) Special rule. If, pursuant to this paragraph, an institution loses eligibility to participate 
in the programs under subchapter IV of this chapter and part C of subchapter I of 
chapter 34 of title 42, then a student enrolled at such institution may, notwithstanding 
such loss of eligibility, continue to be eligible to receive a loan under part B while 
attending such institution for the academic year succeeding the academic year in 
which such loss of eligibility occurred.  

(3) Limitations based on course of study or enrollment. An institution shall not be considered 
to meet the definition of an institution of higher education in paragraph (1) if such 
institution—  

(A) Offers more than 50 percent of such institution’s courses by correspondence, unless 
the institution is an institution that meets the definition in section 2471 (4)(C) of this 
title;  

(B) Enrolls 50 percent or more of the institution’s students in correspondence courses, 
unless the institution is an institution that meets the definition in such section, except 
that the Secretary, at the request of such institution, may waive the applicability of 
this subparagraph to such institution for good cause, as determined by the Secretary in 
the case of an institution of higher education that provides a 2-or 4-year program of 
instruction (or both) for which the institution awards an associate or baccalaureate 
degree, respectively;  

265

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-44

(C) Has a student enrollment in which more than 25 percent of the students are 
incarcerated, except that the Secretary may waive the limitation contained in this 
subparagraph for a nonprofit institution that provides a 2-or 4-year program of 
instruction (or both) for which the institution awards a bachelor’s degree, or an 
associate’s degree or a postsecondary diploma, respectively; or  

(D) Has a student enrollment in which more than 50 percent of the students do not have a 
secondary school diploma or its recognized equivalent, and does not provide a 2-or 4-
year program of instruction (or both) for which the institution awards a bachelor’s 
degree or an associate’s degree, respectively, except that the Secretary may waive the 
limitation contained in this subparagraph if a nonprofit institution demonstrates to the 
satisfaction of the Secretary that the institution exceeds such limitation because the 
institution serves, through contracts with Federal, State, or local government 
agencies, significant numbers of students who do not have a secondary school 
diploma or its recognized equivalent.  

(4) Limitations based on management. An institution shall not be considered to meet the 
definition of an institution of higher education in paragraph (1) if—  

(A) The institution, or an affiliate of the institution that has the power, by contract or 
ownership interest, to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of 
the institution, has filed for bankruptcy, except that this paragraph shall not apply to a 
nonprofit institution, the primary function of which is to provide health care 
educational services (or an affiliate of such an institution that has the power, by 
contract or ownership interest, to direct or cause the direction of the institution’s 
management or policies) that files for bankruptcy under chapter 11 of title 11 between 
July 1, 1998, and December 1, 1998; or  

(B) The institution, the institution’s owner, or the institution’s chief executive officer has 
been convicted of, or has pled nolo contendere or guilty to, a crime involving the 
acquisition, use, or expenditure of funds under subchapter IV of this chapter and part 
C of subchapter I of chapter 34 of title 42, or has been judicially determined to have 
committed fraud involving funds under subchapter IV of this chapter and part C of 
subchapter I of chapter 34 of title 42.  

(5) Certification. The Secretary shall certify an institution’s qualification as an institution of 
higher education in accordance with the requirements of subpart 3 of part G of subchapter 
IV of this chapter.  

(6) Loss of eligibility. An institution of higher education shall not be considered to meet the 
definition of an institution of higher education in paragraph (1) if such institution is 
removed from eligibility for funds under subchapter IV of this chapter and part C of 
subchapter I of chapter 34 of title 42 as a result of an action pursuant to part G of 
subchapter IV of this chapter.  

266

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-45

(b) Proprietary institution of higher education  

(1) Principal criteria. For the purpose of this section, the term ‘‘proprietary institution of 
higher education’’ means a school that—  

(A) Provides an eligible program of training to prepare students for gainful employment 
in a recognized occupation;  

(B) Meets the requirements of paragraphs (1) and (2) of section 1001 (a) of this title;  

(C) Does not meet the requirement of paragraph (4) of section 1001 (a) of this title;  

(D) Is accredited by a nationally recognized accrediting agency or association recognized 
by the Secretary pursuant to part G of subchapter IV of this chapter;  

(E) Has been in existence for at least 2 years; and  

(F) Has at least 10 percent of the school’s revenues from sources that are not derived 
from funds provided under subchapter IV of this chapter and part C of subchapter I of 
chapter 34 of title 42, as determined in accordance with regulations prescribed by the 
Secretary.  

(2) Additional institutions. The term ‘‘proprietary institution of higher education’’ also 
includes a proprietary educational institution in any State that, in lieu of the requirement 
in paragraph (1) of section 1001 (a) of this title, admits as regular students persons who 
are beyond the age of compulsory school attendance in the State in which the institution 
is located.  

(c) Postsecondary vocational institution.  

(1) Principal criteria. For the purpose of this section, the term ‘‘postsecondary vocational 
institution’’ means a school that—  

(A) Provides an eligible program of training to prepare students for gainful employment 
in a recognized occupation;  

(B) Meets the requirements of paragraphs (1), (2), (4), and (5) of section 1001 (a) of this 
title; and  

(C) Has been in existence for at least 2 years.  

(2) Additional institutions. The term ‘‘postsecondary vocational institution’’ also includes an 
educational institution in any State that, in lieu of the requirement in paragraph (1) of 
section 1001 (a) of this title, admits as regular students persons who are beyond the age 
of compulsory school attendance in the State in which the institution is located. 

267

Item 15.



© Copyright 2021 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 3/1/21 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 3-46

 

268

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-1

Chapter 4 

APPLICATIONS, WAITING LIST AND TENANT SELECTION 

INTRODUCTION 

When a family wishes to receive assistance under the HCV program, the family must submit an 
application that provides the PHA with the information needed to determine the family’s 
eligibility. HUD requires the PHA to place all families that apply for assistance on a waiting list. 
When HCV assistance becomes available, the PHA must select families from the waiting list in 
accordance with HUD requirements and PHA policies as stated in the administrative plan and the 
annual plan. 

The PHA is required to adopt clear policies and procedures for accepting applications, placing 
families on the waiting list, and selecting families from the waiting list, and must follow these 
policies and procedures consistently. The actual order in which families are selected from the 
waiting list can be affected if a family has certain characteristics designated by HUD or the PHA 
that justify their selection. Examples of this are the selection of families for income targeting and 
the selection of families that qualify for targeted funding. 

HUD regulations require that all families have an equal opportunity to apply for and receive 
housing assistance, and that the PHA affirmatively further fair housing goals in the 
administration of the program [24 CFR 982.53, HCV GB p. 4-1]. Adherence to the selection 
policies described in this chapter ensures that the PHA will be in compliance with all relevant 
fair housing requirements, as described in Chapter 2. 

This chapter describes HUD and PHA policies for taking applications, managing the waiting list 
and selecting families for HCV assistance. The policies outlined in this chapter are organized 
into three sections, as follows: 

Part I: The Application Process. This part provides an overview of the application 
process, and discusses how applicants can obtain and submit applications.  It also 
specifies how the PHA will handle the applications it receives. 

Part II: Managing the Waiting List. This part presents the policies that govern how the 
PHA’s waiting list is structured, when it is opened and closed, and how the public is 
notified of the opportunity to apply for assistance. It also discusses the process the PHA 
will use to keep the waiting list current. 

Part III: Selection for HCV Assistance. This part describes the policies that guide the 
PHA in selecting families for HCV assistance as such assistance becomes available. It 
also specifies how in-person interviews will be used to ensure that the PHA has the 
information needed to make a final eligibility determination. 

269

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-2
270

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-3

PART I: THE APPLICATION PROCESS 

4-I.A. OVERVIEW 

This part describes the PHA policies for making applications available, accepting applications 
making preliminary determinations of eligibility, and the placement of applicants on the waiting 
list. This part also describes the PHA’s obligation to ensure the accessibility of the application 
process to elderly persons, people with disabilities, and people with limited English proficiency 
(LEP).  

4-I.B. APPLYING FOR ASSISTANCE [HCV GB, pp. 4-11 – 4-16, Notice PIH 2009-36] 

Any family that wishes to receive HCV assistance must apply for admission to the program. 
HUD permits the PHA to determine the format and content of HCV applications, as well how 
such applications will be made available to interested families and how applications will be 
accepted by the PHA. The PHA must include Form HUD-92006, Supplement to Application for 
Federally Assisted Housing, as part of the PHA’s application. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA initially will require families to provide only the information needed to make 
an initial assessment of the family’s eligibility, and to determine the family’s placement 
on the waiting list. The family will be required to provide all of the information necessary 
to establish family eligibility and level of assistance when the family is selected from the 
waiting list. 

Families may apply online at waitlistcheck.com/ia1330, obtain application forms from 
the Cedar Falls City Hall during normal business hours. Families may also request – by 
telephone or by mail – that an application be mailed to them via first class mail. 

Completed applications must be returned to the PHA by mail, electronically, by fax, or 
submitted in person during normal business hours. Applications must be complete in 
order to be accepted by the PHA for processing. If an application is incomplete, the PHA 
will notify the family of the additional information required. 

271

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-4

4-I.C. ACCESSIBILITY OF THE APPLICATION PROCESS 

Elderly and Disabled Populations [24 CFR 8 and HCV GB, pp. 4-11 – 4-13] 

The PHA must take steps to ensure that the application process is accessible to those people who 
might have difficulty complying with the normal, standard PHA application process. This could 
include people with disabilities, certain elderly individuals, as well as persons with limited 
English proficiency (LEP). The PHA must provide reasonable accommodation to the needs of 
individuals with disabilities. The application-taking facility and the application process must be 
fully accessible, or the PHA must provide an alternate approach that provides full access to the 
application process. Chapter 2 provides a full discussion of the PHA’s policies related to 
providing reasonable accommodations for people with disabilities. 

Limited English Proficiency 

PHAs are required to take reasonable steps to ensure equal access to their programs and activities 
by persons with limited English proficiency [24 CFR 1]. Chapter 2 provides a full discussion on 
the PHA’s policies related to ensuring access to people with limited English proficiency (LEP). 

272

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-5

4-I.D. PLACEMENT ON THE WAITING LIST 

The PHA must review each complete application received and make a preliminary assessment of 
the family’s eligibility. The PHA must accept applications from families for whom the list is 
open unless there is good cause for not accepting the application (such as denial of assistance) 
for the grounds stated in the regulations [24 CFR 982.206(b)(2)]. Where the family is determined 
to be ineligible, the PHA must notify the family in writing [24 CFR 982.201(f)]. Where the 
family is not determined to be ineligible, the family will be placed on a waiting list of applicants. 

No applicant has a right or entitlement to be listed on the waiting list, or to any particular 
position on the waiting list [24 CFR 982.202(c)]. 

Ineligible for Placement on the Waiting List 

PHA Policy 

If the PHA can determine from the information provided that a family is ineligible, the 
family will not be placed on the waiting list. Where a family is determined to be 
ineligible, the PHA will send written notification of the ineligibility determination within 
10 business days of receiving a complete application. The notice will specify the reasons 
for ineligibility and will inform the family of its right to request an informal review and 
explain the process for doing so (see Chapter 16). 

Eligible for Placement on the Waiting List 

PHA Policy 

Placement on the waiting list does not indicate that the family is, in fact, eligible for 
assistance. A final determination of eligibility will be made when the family is selected 
from the waiting list. 

Applicants will be placed on the waiting list according to any preference(s) for which 
they qualify, and the date and time their complete application is received by the PHA.  

273

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-6
274

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-7

PART II: MANAGING THE WAITING LIST 

4-II.A. OVERVIEW 

The PHA must have policies regarding various aspects of organizing and managing the waiting 
list of applicant families. This includes opening the list to new applicants, closing the list to new 
applicants, notifying the public of waiting list openings and closings, updating waiting list 
information, purging the list of families that are no longer interested in or eligible for assistance, 
as well as conducting outreach to ensure a sufficient number of applicants. 

In addition, HUD imposes requirements on how a PHA may structure its waiting list and how 
families must be treated if they apply for assistance from a PHA that administers more than one 
assisted housing program. 

4-II.B. ORGANIZATION OF THE WAITING LIST [24 CFR 982.204 and 205] 

The PHA’s HCV waiting list must be organized in such a manner to allow the PHA to accurately 
identify and select families for assistance in the proper order, according to the admissions 
policies described in this plan. 

The waiting list must contain the following information for each applicant listed: 
 Applicant name; 
 Family unit size; 
 Date and time of application; 
 Qualification for any local preference; 
 Racial or ethnic designation of the head of household. 

HUD requires the PHA to maintain a single waiting list for the HCV program unless it serves 
more than one county or municipality. Such PHAs are permitted, but not required, to maintain a 
separate waiting list for each county or municipality served. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will maintain a single waiting list for the HCV program. 

275

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-8

4-II.C. OPENING AND CLOSING THE WAITING LIST [24 CFR 982.206] 

Closing the Waiting List 

A PHA is permitted to close the waiting list if it has an adequate pool of families to use its 
available HCV assistance. Alternatively, the PHA may elect to continue to accept applications 
only from certain categories of families that meet particular preferences or funding criteria. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will close the waiting list when the estimated waiting period for housing 
assistance for applicants on the Preference 1 reaches 36 months for the most current 
applicants. Where the PHA has particular preferences or funding criteria that require a 
specific category of family, the PHA may elect to continue to accept applications from 
these applicants while closing the waiting list to others. 

Reopening the Waiting List 

If the waiting list has been closed, it cannot be reopened until the PHA publishes a notice in local 
newspapers of general circulation, minority media, and other suitable media outlets. The notice 
must comply with HUD fair housing requirements and must specify who may apply, and where 
and when applications will be received.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will announce the reopening of the waiting list at least 10 business days prior to 
the date applications will first be accepted. If the list is only being reopened for certain 
categories of families, this information will be contained in the notice. 

The PHA will give public notice by publishing the relevant information in suitable media 
outlets including, but not limited to: 

Waterloo/Cedar Falls Courier, City of Cedar Falls Website and Social Media 
forums 

276

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-9

4-II.D. FAMILY OUTREACH [HCV GB, pp. 4-2 to 4-4] 

The PHA must conduct outreach as necessary to ensure that the PHA has a sufficient number of 
applicants on the waiting list to use the HCV resources it has been allotted. 

Because HUD requires the PHA to admit a specified percentage of extremely low-income 
families to the program (see Chapter 4, Part III), the PHA may need to conduct special outreach 
to ensure that an adequate number of such families apply for assistance [HCV GB, p. 4-20 
to 4-21]. 

PHA outreach efforts must comply with fair housing requirements. This includes: 

 Analyzing the housing market area and the populations currently being served to identify 
underserved populations 

 Ensuring that outreach efforts are targeted to media outlets that reach eligible populations 
that are underrepresented in the program 

 Avoiding outreach efforts that prefer or exclude people who are members of a protected class 

PHA outreach efforts must be designed to inform qualified families about the availability of 
assistance under the program. These efforts may include, as needed, any of the following 
activities: 

 Submitting press releases to local newspapers, including minority newspapers 

 Developing informational materials and flyers to distribute to other agencies 

 Providing application forms to other public and private agencies that serve the low income 
population 

 Developing partnerships with other organizations that serve similar populations, including 
agencies that provide services for persons with disabilities 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will monitor the characteristics of the population being served and the 
characteristics of the population as a whole in the PHA’s jurisdiction. Targeted outreach 
efforts will be undertaken if a comparison suggests that certain populations are being 
underserved. 

277

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-10

4-II.E. REPORTING CHANGES IN FAMILY CIRCUMSTANCES 

PHA Policy 

While the family is on the waiting list, the family must immediately inform the PHA of 
changes in contact information, including current residence, mailing address, and phone 
number. The changes may be submitted in writing, by phone or by logging into their 
assistancecheck.com account. 

4-II.F. UPDATING THE WAITING LIST [24 CFR 982.204] 

HUD requires the PHA to establish policies to use when removing applicant names from the 
waiting list. 

Purging the Waiting List 

The decision to withdraw an applicant family that includes a person with disabilities from the 
waiting list is subject to reasonable accommodation. If the applicant did not respond to a PHA 
request for information or updates, and the PHA determines that the family did not respond 
because of the family member’s disability, the PHA must reinstate the applicant family to their 
former position on the waiting list [24 CFR 982.204(c)(2)]. 

PHA Policy 

The waiting list will be updated as needed to ensure that all applicants and applicant 
information is current and timely. 

To update the waiting list, the PHA will send an update request via first class mail to each 
family on the waiting list to determine whether the family continues to be interested in, 
and to qualify for, the program. This update request will be sent to the last address that 
the PHA has on record for the family. The update request will provide a deadline by 
which the family must respond and will state that failure to respond will result in the 
applicant’s name being removed from the waiting list. 

The family’s response must be in writing and may be delivered in person, by mail, by 
email, or by fax. Responses should be postmarked or received by the PHA not later than 
10 business days from the date of the PHA letter.  

If the family fails to respond within 10 business days, the family will be removed from 
the waiting list without further notice. 

If the notice is returned by the post office with no forwarding address, the applicant will 
be removed from the waiting list without further notice. 

If the notice is returned by the post office with a forwarding address, the notice will be re-
sent to the address indicated. The family will have 10 business days to respond from the 
date the letter was re-sent. 

If a family is removed from the waiting list for failure to respond, the PHA may reinstate 
the family if it is determined that the lack of response was due to PHA error, or to 
circumstances beyond the family’s control.  

278

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-11

Removal from the Waiting List  

PHA Policy 

If at any time an applicant family is on the waiting list, the PHA determines that the 
family is not eligible for assistance (see Chapter 3), the family will be removed from the 
waiting list. 

If a family is removed from the waiting list because the PHA has determined the family is 
not eligible for assistance, a notice will be sent to the family’s address of record as well 
as to any alternate address provided on the initial application.  The notice will state the 
reasons the family was removed from the waiting list and will inform the family how to 
request an informal review regarding the PHA’s decision (see Chapter 16) [24 CFR 
982.201(f)]. 

279

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-12
280

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-13

PART III: SELECTION FOR HCV ASSISTANCE 

4-III.A. OVERVIEW 

As vouchers become available, families on the waiting list must be selected for assistance in 
accordance with the policies described in this part.  

The order in which families are selected from the waiting list depends on the selection method 
chosen by the PHA and is impacted in part by any selection preferences for which the family 
qualifies. The availability of targeted funding also may affect the order in which families are 
selected from the waiting list. 

The PHA must maintain a clear record of all information required to verify that the family is 
selected from the waiting list according to the PHA’s selection policies [24 CFR 982.204(b) and 
982.207(e)]. 

4-III.B. SELECTION AND HCV FUNDING SOURCES 

Special Admissions [24 CFR 982.203] 

HUD may award funding for specifically-named families living in specified types of units (e.g., 
a family that is displaced by demolition of public housing; a non-purchasing family residing in a 
HOPE 1 or 2 projects). In these cases, the PHA may admit such families whether or not they are 
on the waiting list, and, if they are on the waiting list, without considering the family’s position 
on the waiting list. These families are considered non-waiting list selections. The PHA must 
maintain records showing that such families were admitted with special program funding. 

Targeted Funding [24 CFR 982.204(e)] 

HUD may award a PHA funding for a specified category of families on the waiting list. The 
PHA must use this funding only to assist the families within the specified category. In order to 
assist families within a targeted funding category, the PHA may skip families that do not qualify 
within the targeted funding category. Within this category of families, the order in which such 
families are assisted is determined according to the policies provided in Section 4-III.C. 

PHA Policy 

Regular HCV Funding 

The PHA does not currently administer any type of targeted funding. 

Regular HCV funding may be used to assist any eligible family on the waiting list. Families are 
selected from the waiting list according to the policies provided in Section 4-III.C. 

281

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-14

4-III.C. SELECTION METHOD  

PHAs must describe the method for selecting applicant families from the waiting list, including 
the system of admission preferences that the PHA will use [24 CFR 982.202(d)].  

Local Preferences [24 CFR 982.207; HCV p. 4-16] 

PHAs are permitted to establish local preferences, and to give priority to serving families that 
meet those criteria. HUD specifically authorizes and places restrictions on certain types of local 
preferences. HUD also permits the PHA to establish other local preferences, at its discretion. 
Any local preferences established must be consistent with the PHA plan and the consolidated 
plan, and must be based on local housing needs and priorities that can be documented by 
generally accepted data sources.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will use the following local preferences: 
A. Displaced: Individuals or families displaced by government action or whose 

dwelling has been extensively damaged or destroyed as a result of a disaster declared 
or otherwise formally recognized pursuant to federal disaster relief laws.  
 

B. Elderly Family / Disabled Family / Families Residency Preference 
Documentation of residency preference must include one of the following at the 
time of application: 
i. Evidence of legal domicile by a lease in the name of the applicant; 
ii. Evidence of legal domicile by a utility bill in the name of the applicant;  
iii. Evidence of working in Cedar Falls by pay stub or letter from employer; or 
iv. Evidence of dependent children enrollment in a Cedar Falls school along with 

two pieces of official mail and a notarized statement from the Cedar Falls 
homeowner / lease holder. 

v. Families with at least one dependent who live or work in Cedar Falls. 
 

C. Families who are not residents and do not live (do not have a legal domicile) or 
work in the jurisdiction of the HA.    
 

D. Single, non-elderly, or non-disabled families with no children under the age of 
18 that do not otherwise fall into a described preference, regardless of residency.   

 
*The use of a residency preference does not have the purpose or effect of delaying or 
otherwise denying admission to the Section 8 Program based on the race, color, ethnic 
origin, gender, religion, disability, or age of any member of an applicant family. 

 

Income Targeting Requirement [24 CFR 982.201(b)(2)] 

HUD requires that extremely low-income (ELI) families make up at least 75 percent of the 
families admitted to the HCV program during the PHA’s fiscal year. ELI families are those with 
annual incomes at or below the federal poverty level or 30 percent of the area median income, 

282

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-15

whichever number is higher. To ensure this requirement is met, a PHA may skip non-ELI 
families on the waiting list in order to select an ELI family.  

Low-income families admitted to the program that are “continuously assisted” under the 1937 
Housing Act [24 CFR 982.4(b)], as well as low-income or moderate-income families admitted to 
the program that are displaced as a result of the prepayment of the mortgage or voluntary 
termination of an insurance contract on eligible low-income housing, are not counted for income 
targeting purposes [24 CFR 982.201(b)(2)(v)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will monitor progress in meeting the income targeting requirement throughout 
the fiscal year.  Extremely low-income families will be selected ahead of other eligible 
families on an as-needed basis to ensure the income targeting requirement is met. 

Order of Selection 

The PHA system of preferences may select families based on local preferences according to the 
date and time of application or by a random selection process (lottery) [24 CFR 982.207(c)]. If a 
PHA does not have enough funding to assist the family at the top of the waiting list, it is not 
permitted to skip down the waiting list to a family that it can afford to subsidize when there are 
not sufficient funds to subsidize the family at the top of the waiting list [24 CFR 982.204(d) 
and (e)]. 

PHA Policy 

Families will be selected from the waiting list based on the targeted funding or selection 
preference(s) for which they qualify, and in accordance with the PHA’s hierarchy of 
preferences, if applicable. Within each targeted funding or preference category, families 
will be selected on a first-come, first-served basis according to the date and time their 
complete application is received by the PHA. Documentation will be maintained by the 
PHA as to whether families on the list qualify for and are interested in targeted funding.  
If a higher placed family on the waiting list is not qualified or not interested in targeted 
funding, there will be a notation maintained so that the PHA does not have to ask higher 
placed families each time targeted selections are made. 

283

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-16

4-III.D. NOTIFICATION OF SELECTION 

When a family has been selected from the waiting list, the PHA must notify the family 
[24 CFR 982.554(a)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will notify the family by first class mail when it is selected from the waiting 
list. The notice will inform the family of the following:  

Date, time, and location of the scheduled application interview, including any 
procedures for rescheduling the interview 

Who is required to attend the interview 

All documents that must be provided at the interview, including information about 
what constitutes acceptable documentation 

If a notification letter is returned to the PHA with no forwarding address, the family will 
be removed from the waiting list. A notice of denial (see Chapter 3) will be sent to the 
family’s address of record, as well as to any known alternate address. 

4-III.E. THE APPLICATION INTERVIEW 

HUD recommends that the PHA obtain the information and documentation needed to make an 
eligibility determination though a face-to-face interview with a PHA representative [HCV GB, 
pg. 4-16].  Being invited to attend an interview does not constitute admission to the program. 

Assistance cannot be provided to the family until all SSN documentation requirements are met. 
However, if the PHA determines that an applicant family is otherwise eligible to participate in 
the program, the family may retain its place on the waiting list for a period of time determined by 
the PHA [Notice PIH 2018-24]. 

Reasonable accommodation must be made for persons with disabilities who are unable to attend 
an interview due to their disability. 

PHA Policy  

Families selected from the waiting list will participate in an eligibility interview by phone 
or in person. 

All adult family members are required to attend the interview. 

The head of household or spouse/cohead must provide acceptable documentation of legal 
identity. (Chapter 7 provides a discussion of proper documentation of legal identity.) If 
the family representative does not provide the required documentation at the time of the 
interview, he or she will be required to provide it within 10 business days. 

284

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-17

Pending disclosure and documentation of social security numbers, the PHA will allow the 
family to retain its place on the waiting list for 30 days. If not all household members 
have disclosed their SSNs at the next time the PHA is issuing vouchers, the PHA will 
issue a voucher to the next eligible applicant family on the waiting list. 

The family must provide the information necessary to establish the family’s eligibility 
and determine the appropriate level of assistance, and must complete required forms, 
provide required signatures, and submit required documentation. If any materials are 
missing, the PHA will provide the family with a written list of items that must be 
submitted. 

Any required documents or information that the family is unable to provide at the 
interview must be provided within 10 business days of the interview (Chapter 7 provides 
details about longer submission deadlines for particular items, including documentation 
of eligible noncitizen status). If the family is unable to obtain the information or materials 
within the required time frame, the family may request an extension. If the required 
documents and information are not provided within the required time frame (plus any 
extensions), the family will be sent a notice of denial (See Chapter 3). 

An advocate, interpreter, or other assistant may assist the family with the application and 
the interview process.  

Interviews will be conducted in English. For limited English proficient (LEP) applicants, 
the PHA will provide translation services in accordance with the PHA’s LEP plan. 

If the family is unable to attend a scheduled interview, the family should contact the PHA 
in advance of the interview to schedule a new appointment. In all circumstances, if a 
family does not attend a scheduled interview, the PHA will send another notification 
letter with a new interview appointment time. Applicants who fail to attend two 
scheduled interviews without PHA approval will be denied assistance based on the 
family’s failure to supply information needed to determine eligibility. A notice of denial 
will be issued in accordance with policies contained in Chapter 3. 

285

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 4-18

4-III.F. COMPLETING THE APPLICATION PROCESS 

The PHA must verify all information provided by the family (see Chapter 7). Based on verified 
information, the PHA must make a final determination of eligibility (see Chapter 3) and must 
confirm that the family qualified for any special admission, targeted funding admission, or 
selection preference that affected the order in which the family was selected from the waiting 
list. 

PHA Policy 

If the PHA determines that the family is ineligible, the PHA will send written notification 
of the ineligibility determination within 10 business days of the determination. The notice 
will specify the reasons for ineligibility. 

If a family fails to qualify for any criteria that affected the order in which it was selected 
from the waiting list (e.g. extremely low-income), the family will be returned to its 
original position on the waiting list. The PHA will notify the family in writing that it has 
been returned to the waiting list, and will specify the reasons for it.  

If the PHA determines that the family is eligible to receive assistance, the PHA will invite 
the family to attend a briefing in accordance with the policies in Chapter 5. 

286

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-1

Chapter 5 

BRIEFINGS AND VOUCHER ISSUANCE 

INTRODUCTION 

This chapter explains the briefing and voucher issuance process. When a family is determined to 
be eligible for the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program, the PHA must ensure that the 
family fully understands the way the program operates and the family’s obligations under the 
program. This is accomplished through both an oral briefing and provision of a briefing packet 
containing the HUD-required documents and other information the family needs to know in 
order to lease a unit under the program. Once the family is fully informed of the program’s 
requirements, the PHA issues the family a voucher. The voucher includes the unit size for which 
the family qualifies based on the PHA’s subsidy standards, as well as the issue and expiration 
date of the voucher. The voucher is the document that authorizes the family to begin its search 
for a unit, and limits the amount of time the family has to successfully locate an acceptable unit.  

This chapter describes HUD regulations and PHA policies related to these topics in two parts:  

Part I: Briefings and Family Obligations. This part details the program’s requirements 
for briefing families orally, and for providing written materials describing the program 
and its requirements. It includes a particular focus on the family’s obligations under the 
program.  

Part II: Subsidy Standards and Voucher Issuance. This part discusses the PHA’s 
standards for determining how many bedrooms a family of a given composition qualifies 
for, which in turn affects the amount of subsidy the family can receive. It also discusses 
the policies that dictate how vouchers are issued, and how long families have to locate a 
unit. 

PART I: BRIEFINGS AND FAMILY OBLIGATIONS 

5-I.A. OVERVIEW 

HUD regulations require the PHA to conduct mandatory briefings for applicant families who 
qualify for a voucher. The briefing provides a broad description of owner and family 
responsibilities, explains the PHA’s procedures, and includes instructions on how to lease a unit. 
This part describes how oral briefings will be conducted, specifies what written information will 
be provided to families, and lists the family’s obligations under the program. 

287

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-2

5-I.B. BRIEFING [24 CFR 982.301] 

The PHA must give the family an oral briefing and provide the family with a briefing packet 
containing written information about the program. Families may be briefed individually or in 
groups. At the briefing, the PHA must ensure effective communication in accordance with 
Section 504 requirements (Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973), and ensure that the 
briefing site is accessible to individuals with disabilities. For a more thorough discussion of 
accessibility requirements, refer to Chapter 2. 

PHA Policy 

Briefings will be conducted in person or by phone. 

Generally, all adult family members are required to attend the briefing. If any adult 
member is unable to attend, the PHA may waive this requirement as long as the head, 
spouse or co-head attends the briefing. 

Families that attend group briefings and still need individual assistance will be referred to 
an appropriate PHA staff person. 

Briefings will be conducted in English. For limited English proficient (LEP) applicants, 
the PHA will provide translation services in accordance with the PHA’s LEP plan (See 
Chapter 2). 

Notification and Attendance 

PHA Policy 

Families will be notified of their eligibility for assistance at the time they are invited to 
attend a briefing. The notice will identify who is required to attend the briefing, as well as 
the date and time of the scheduled briefing.  

If the notice is returned by the post office with no forwarding address, the applicant will 
be denied and their name will not be placed back on the waiting list. If the notice is 
returned by the post office with a forwarding address, the notice will be re-sent to the 
address indicated.   

288

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-3

Oral Briefing [24 CFR 982.301(a)] 

Each briefing must provide information on the following subjects: 

 How the Housing Choice Voucher program works; 

 Family and owner responsibilities;  

 Where the family can lease a unit, including renting a unit inside or outside the PHA’s 
jurisdiction; 

 An explanation of how portability works. The PHA may not discourage the family from 
choosing to live anywhere in the PHA jurisdiction or outside the PHA jurisdiction under 
portability, unless otherwise expressly authorized by statute, regulation, PIH Notice, or 
court order; 

 The PHA must inform the family of how portability may affect the family’s assistance 
through screening, subsidy standards, payment standards, and any other elements of the 
portability process which may affect the family’s assistance; 

 The advantages of areas that do not have a high concentration of low-income families; and 

 For families receiving welfare-to-work vouchers, a description of any local obligations of a 
welfare-to-work family and an explanation that failure to meet the obligations is grounds for 
denial of admission or termination of assistance. 

289

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-4

Briefing Packet [24 CFR 982.301(b)] 

Documents and information provided in the briefing packet must include the following: 

 The term of the voucher, voucher suspensions, and the PHA’s policies on any extensions of 
the term. If the PHA allows extensions, the packet must explain how the family can request 
an extension. 

 A description of the method used to calculate the housing assistance payment for a family, 
including how the PHA determines the payment standard for a family, how the PHA 
determines total tenant payment for a family, and information on the payment standard and 
utility allowance schedule.  

 An explanation of how the PHA determines the maximum allowable rent for an assisted unit.  

 Where the family may lease a unit and an explanation of how portability works, including 
information on how portability may affect the family’s assistance through screening, subsidy 
standards, payment standards, and any other elements of the portability process that may 
affect the family’s assistance. 

 The HUD-required tenancy addendum, which must be included in the lease. 

 The form the family must use to request approval of tenancy, and a description of the 
procedure for requesting approval for a tenancy. 

 A statement of the PHA policy on providing information about families to prospective 
owners. 

 The PHA subsidy standards including when and how exceptions are made. 

 Materials (e.g., brochures) on how to select a unit and any additional information on 
selecting a unit that HUD provides. 

 Information on federal, state and local equal opportunity laws and a copy of the housing 
discrimination complaint form.  

 A list of landlords known to the PHA who may be willing to lease a unit to the family or 
other resources (e.g., newspapers, organizations, online search tools) known to the PHA that 
may assist the family in locating a unit. PHAs must ensure that the list of landlords or other 
resources covers areas outside of poverty or minority concentration. 

 Notice that if the family includes a person with disabilities, the family may request a list of 
available accessible units known to the PHA. 

 The family obligations under the program, including any obligations of a welfare-to-work 
family. 

 The grounds on which the PHA may terminate assistance for a participant family because of 
family action or failure to act. 

 PHA informal hearing procedures including when the PHA is required to offer a participant 
family the opportunity for an informal hearing, and how to request the hearing. 

 An explanation of the advantages of moving to an area that does not have a high 
concentration of low-income families. 

290

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-5

If the PHA is located in a metropolitan area, the following additional information must be 
included in the briefing packet in order to receive full points under SEMAP Indicator 7, 
Expanding Housing Opportunities [24 CFR 985.3(g)]: 

 Maps showing areas with housing opportunities outside areas of poverty or minority 
concentration, both within its jurisdiction and its neighboring jurisdiction 

 Information about the characteristics of these areas including job opportunities, schools, 
transportation, and other services 

 An explanation of how portability works, including a list of portability contact persons for 
neighboring PHAs with names, addresses, and telephone numbers 

Additional Items to Be Included in the Briefing Packet 

In addition to items required by the regulations, PHAs may wish to include supplemental 
materials to help explain the program to both participants and owners [HCV GB p. 8-7, 
Notice PIH 2017-12]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will provide the following additional materials in the briefing packet: 

The HUD pamphlet on lead-based paint entitled Protect Your Family from Lead 
in Your Home 

Information on how to fill out and file a housing discrimination complaint form 

The form HUD-5380 domestic violence certification form and the form 
HUD-5382 notice of occupancy rights, which contains information on VAWA 
protections for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, 
and stalking 

“Is Fraud Worth It?” (form HUD-1141-OIG), which explains the types of actions 
a family must avoid and the penalties for program abuse 

“What You Should Know about EIV,” a guide to the Enterprise Income 
Verification (EIV) system published by HUD as an attachment to 
Notice PIH 2017-12 

291

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-6

5-I.C. FAMILY OBLIGATIONS  

Obligations of the family are described in the housing choice voucher (HCV) regulations and on 
the voucher itself. These obligations include responsibilities the family is required to fulfill, as 
well as prohibited actions. The PHA must inform families of these obligations during the oral 
briefing, and the same information must be included in the briefing packet. When the family’s 
unit is approved and the HAP contract is executed, the family must meet those obligations in 
order to continue participating in the program. Violation of any family obligation may result in 
termination of assistance, as described in Chapter 12. 

Time Frames for Reporting Changes Required By Family Obligations 

PHA Policy 

Unless otherwise noted below, when family obligations require the family to respond to a 
request or notify the PHA of a change, notifying the PHA of the request or change within 
10 business days is considered prompt notice. 

When a family is required to provide notice to the PHA, the notice must be in writing. 

Family Obligations [24 CFR 982.551] 

The family obligations of the voucher are listed as follows: 

 The family must supply any information that the PHA or HUD determines to be necessary, 
including submission of required evidence of citizenship or eligible immigration status. 

 The family must supply any information requested by the PHA or HUD for use in a regularly 
scheduled reexamination or interim reexamination of family income and composition. 

 The family must disclose and verify social security numbers and sign and submit consent 
forms for obtaining information. 

 Any information supplied by the family must be true and complete. 

 The family is responsible for any Housing Quality Standards (HQS) breach by the family 
caused by failure to pay tenant-provided utilities or appliances, or damages to the dwelling 
unit or premises beyond normal wear and tear caused by any member of the household or 
guest. 

PHA Policy 

Damages beyond normal wear and tear will be considered to be damages which could be 
assessed against the security deposit. 

 The family must allow the PHA to inspect the unit at reasonable times and after reasonable 
notice, as described in Chapter 8 of this plan. 

292

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-7

 The family must not commit any serious or repeated violation of the lease. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will determine if a family has committed serious or repeated violations of the 
lease based on available evidence, including but not limited to, a court-ordered eviction 
or an owner’s notice to evict, police reports, and affidavits from the owner, neighbors, or 
other credible parties with direct knowledge.  

Serious and repeated lease violations will include, but not be limited to, nonpayment of 
rent, disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property, living or housekeeping habits that 
cause damage to the unit or premises, and criminal activity. Generally, the criterion to be 
used will be whether or not the reason for the eviction was the fault of the tenant or 
guests. Any incidents of, or criminal activity related to, domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking will not be construed as serious or repeated lease 
violations by the victim [24 CFR 5.2005(c)(1)]. 

 The family must notify the PHA and the owner before moving out of the unit or terminating 
the lease. 

PHA Policy 

The family must comply with lease requirements regarding written notice to the owner. 
The family must provide written notice to the PHA at the same time the owner is notified.  

 The family must promptly give the PHA a copy of any owner eviction notice.  

 The family must use the assisted unit for residence by the family. The unit must be the 
family’s only residence. 

 The composition of the assisted family residing in the unit must be approved by the PHA. 
The family must promptly notify the PHA in writing of the birth, adoption, or court-awarded 
custody of a child. The family must request PHA approval to add any other family member 
as an occupant of the unit. 

PHA Policy 

The request to add a family member must be submitted in writing and approved prior to 
the person moving into the unit. The PHA will determine eligibility of the new member 
in accordance with the policies in Chapter 3. 

 The family must promptly notify the PHA in writing if any family member no longer lives in 
the unit. 

293

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-8

 If the PHA has given approval, a foster child or a live-in aide may reside in the unit. The 
PHA has the discretion to adopt reasonable policies concerning residency by a foster child or 
a live-in aide, and to define when PHA consent may be given or denied. For policies related 
to the request and approval/disapproval of foster children, foster adults, and live-in aides, see 
Chapter 3 (sections I.K and I.M), and Chapter 11 (section II.B).The family must not sublease 
the unit, assign the lease, or transfer the unit. 

PHA Policy 

Subleasing includes receiving payment to cover rent and utility costs by a person living in 
the unit who is not listed as a family member. 

 The family must supply any information requested by the PHA to verify that the family is 
living in the unit or information related to family absence from the unit. 

294

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-9

 The family must promptly notify the PHA when the family is absent from the unit. 

PHA Policy 

Notice is required under this provision only when all family members will be absent from 
the unit for an extended period. An extended period is defined as any period greater than 
30 calendar days. Written notice must be provided to the PHA at the start of the extended 
absence. 

 The family must pay utility bills and provide and maintain any appliances that the owner is 
not required to provide under the lease [Form HUD-52646, Voucher]. 

 The family must not own or have any interest in the unit, (other than in a cooperative and 
owners of a manufactured home leasing a manufactured home space).  

 Family members must not commit fraud, bribery, or any other corrupt or criminal act in 
connection with the program. (See Chapter 14, Program Integrity for additional information). 

 Family members must not engage in drug-related criminal activity or violent criminal activity 
or other criminal activity that threatens the health, safety or right to peaceful enjoyment of 
other residents and persons residing in the immediate vicinity of the premises. See Chapter 
12 for HUD and PHA policies related to drug-related and violent criminal activity. 

 Members of the household must not engage in abuse of alcohol in a way that threatens the 
health, safety or right to peaceful enjoyment of the other residents and persons residing in the 
immediate vicinity of the premises. See Chapter 12 for a discussion of HUD and PHA 
policies related to alcohol abuse. 

 An assisted family or member of the family must not receive HCV program assistance while 
receiving another housing subsidy, for the same unit or a different unit under any other 
federal, state or local housing assistance program. 

 A family must not receive HCV program assistance while residing in a unit owned by a 
parent, child, grandparent, grandchild, sister or brother of any member of the family, unless 
the PHA has determined (and has notified the owner and the family of such determination) 
that approving rental of the unit, notwithstanding such relationship, would provide 
reasonable accommodation for a family member who is a person with disabilities. [Form 
HUD-52646, Voucher] 

295

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-10
296

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-11

PART II: SUBSIDY STANDARDS AND VOUCHER ISSUANCE 

5-II.A. OVERVIEW 

The PHA must establish subsidy standards that determine the number of bedrooms needed for 
families of different sizes and compositions. This part presents the policies that will be used to 
determine the family unit size (also known as the voucher size) a particular family should 
receive, and the policies that govern making exceptions to those standards. The PHA must also 
establish policies related to the issuance of the voucher, to the voucher term, and to any 
extensions of the voucher term. 

5-II.B. DETERMINING FAMILY UNIT (VOUCHER) SIZE [24 CFR 982.402] 

For each family, the PHA determines the appropriate number of bedrooms under the PHA 
subsidy standards and enters the family unit size on the voucher that is issued to the family. The 
family unit size does not dictate the size of unit the family must actually lease, nor does it 
determine who within a household will share a bedroom/sleeping room.  

The following requirements apply when the PHA determines family unit size: 

 The subsidy standards must provide for the smallest number of bedrooms needed to house a 
family without overcrowding. 

 The subsidy standards must be consistent with space requirements under the housing quality 
standards. 

 The subsidy standards must be applied consistently for all families of like size and 
composition. 

 A child who is temporarily away from the home because of placement in foster care is 
considered a member of the family in determining the family unit size. 

 A family that consists of a pregnant woman (with no other persons) must be treated as a two-
person family. 

 Any live-in aide (approved by the PHA to reside in the unit to care for a family member who 
is disabled or is at least 50 years of age) must be counted in determining the family unit size; 

297

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-12

 Unless a live-in-aide resides with a family, the family unit size for any family consisting of a 
single person must be either a zero- or one-bedroom unit, as determined under the PHA 
subsidy standards. 

PHA Policy 

Children of separate genders regardless of age (i.e., from birth) will be allocated 
separate bedrooms. 

Children of the same gender with an age difference exceeding 5 years will be 
allocated separate bedrooms. 

Unrelated adults of the same gender will be allocated separate bedrooms. 

Persons of different generations will be allocated separate bedrooms. 

Foster adults and children will not be required to share a bedroom with family 
members. 

In case a family who shares custody of a child (or children), only those children 
residing in the household more than 50% of the time shall be included when 
considering assignment of bedroom size. 

 

 

Voucher Size Persons in Household 
 (Minimum – Maximum) 

0 Bedroom 1 

1 Bedroom 1-2 

2 Bedrooms 2-4 

3 Bedrooms 3-6 

4 Bedrooms 4-8 

5 Bedrooms 6-10 

298

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-13

5-II.C. EXCEPTIONS TO SUBSIDY STANDARDS  

In determining family unit size for a particular family, the PHA may grant an exception to its 
established subsidy standards if the PHA determines that the exception is justified by the age, 
sex, health, handicap, or relationship of family members or other personal circumstances         
[24 CFR 982.402(b)(8)]. Reasons may include, but are not limited to: 

 A need for an additional bedroom for medical equipment 

 A need for a separate bedroom for reasons related to a family member’s disability, medical or 
health condition 

For a single person who is not elderly, disabled, or a remaining family member, an exception 
cannot override the regulatory limit of a zero or one bedroom [24 CFR 982.402(b)(8)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will consider granting an exception for any of the reasons specified in the 
regulation: the age, sex, health, handicap, or relationship of family members or other 
personal circumstances. 

The family must request any exception to the subsidy standards in writing. The request 
must explain the need or justification for a larger family unit size, and must include 
appropriate documentation. Requests based on health-related reasons must be verified by 
a knowledgeable professional source (e.g., doctor or health professional), unless the 
disability and the disability–related request for accommodation is readily apparent or 
otherwise known. The family’s continued need for an additional bedroom due to special 
medical equipment must be re-verified at annual reexamination. 

The PHA will notify the family of its determination within 10 business days of receiving 
the family’s request. If a participant family’s request is denied, the notice will inform the 
family of their right to request an informal hearing.  

299

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-14

5-II.D. VOUCHER ISSUANCE [24 CFR 982.302] 

When a family is selected from the waiting list (or as a special admission as described in Chapter 
4), or when a participant family wants to move to another unit, the PHA issues a Housing Choice 
Voucher, form HUD-52646. This chapter deals only with voucher issuance for applicants. For 
voucher issuance associated with moves of program participants, please refer to Chapter 10. 

The voucher is the family’s authorization to search for housing. It specifies the unit size for 
which the family qualifies, and includes both the date of voucher issuance and date of expiration. 
It contains a brief description of how the program works and explains the family obligations 
under the program. The voucher is evidence that the PHA has determined the family to be 
eligible for the program, and that the PHA expects to have money available to subsidize the 
family if the family finds an approvable unit. However, the PHA does not have any liability to 
any party by the issuance of the voucher, and the voucher does not give the family any right to 
participate in the PHA’s housing choice voucher program [Voucher, form HUD-52646]. 

A voucher can be issued to an applicant family only after the PHA has determined that the 
family is eligible for the program based on verification of information received within the 60 
days prior to issuance [24 CFR 982.201(e)] and after the family has attended an oral briefing 
[HCV 8-1]. 

PHA Policy 

Vouchers will be issued to eligible applicants immediately following the mandatory 
briefing. 

The PHA should have sufficient funds to house an applicant before issuing a voucher. If funds 
are insufficient to house the family at the top of the waiting list, the PHA must wait until it has 
adequate funds before it calls another family from the list [HCV GB p. 8-10].  

PHA Policy 

Prior to issuing any vouchers, the PHA will determine whether it has sufficient funding in 
accordance with the policies in Part VIII of Chapter 16. 

If the PHA determines that there is insufficient funding after a voucher has been issued, the PHA 
may rescind the voucher and place the affected family back on the waiting list. 

300

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-15

5-II.E. VOUCHER TERM AND EXTENSIONS 

Voucher Term [24 CFR 982.303] 

The initial term of a voucher must be at least 60 calendar days. The initial term must be stated on 
the voucher [24 CFR 982.303(a)]. 

PHA Policy 

The initial voucher term will be 120 calendar days. 

The family must submit a Request for Tenancy Approval and proposed lease within the 
120-day period unless the PHA grants an extension. 

Extensions of Voucher Term [24 CFR 982.303(b)] 

The PHA has the authority to grant extensions of search time, to specify the length of an 
extension, and to determine the circumstances under which extensions will be granted. There is 
no limit on the number of extensions that the PHA can approve. Discretionary policies related to 
extension and expiration of search time must be described in the PHA’s administrative plan [24 
CFR 982.54].  

PHAs must approve additional search time if needed as a reasonable accommodation to make the 
program accessible to and usable by a person with disabilities. The extension period must be 
reasonable for the purpose. 

301

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-16

The family must be notified in writing of the PHA’s decision to approve or deny an extension. 
The PHA’s decision to deny a request for an extension of the voucher term is not subject to 
informal review [24 CFR 982.554(c)(4)]. 

PHA Policy 

Generally, the PHA will not approve extensions to the term of the voucher.  

The PHA will approve extensions only in the following circumstances: 

It is necessary as a reasonable accommodation for a person with disabilities.  

It is necessary due to reasons beyond the family’s control, as determined by the 
PHA. Following is a list of extenuating circumstances that the PHA may consider 
in making its decision. The presence of these circumstances does not guarantee 
that an extension will be granted: 

Serious illness or death in the family 

Other family emergency 

Obstacles due to employment 

Whether the family has already submitted requests for tenancy approval 
that were not approved by the PHA 

Whether family size or other special circumstances make it difficult to 
find a suitable unit 

Any request for an additional extension must include the reason(s) an additional 
extension is necessary. The PHA may require the family to provide documentation to 
support the request or obtain verification from a qualified third party. 

All requests for extensions to the voucher term must be made in writing and submitted to 
the PHA prior to the expiration date of the voucher (or extended term of the voucher). 

The PHA will decide whether to approve or deny an extension request within 10 business 
days of the date the request is received, and will immediately provide the family written 
notice of its decision. 

302

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-17

Suspensions of Voucher Term [24 CFR 982.303(c)]  

The PHA must provide for suspension of the initial or any extended term of the voucher from the 
date the family submits a request for PHA approval of the tenancy until the date the PHA notifies 
the family in writing whether the request has been approved or denied. 

Expiration of Voucher Term 

Once a family’s housing choice voucher term (including any extensions) expires, the family is no 
longer eligible to search for housing under the program. If the family still wishes to receive 
assistance, the PHA may require that the family reapply, or may place the family on the waiting 
list with a new application date but without requiring reapplication. Such a family does not 
become ineligible for the program on the grounds that it was unable to locate a unit before the 
voucher expired [HCV GB p. 8-13]. 

PHA Policy 

If an applicant family’s voucher term or extension expires before the PHA has approved a 
tenancy, the PHA will require the family to reapply for assistance. 

Within 10 business days after the expiration of the voucher term or any extension, the 
PHA will notify the family in writing that the voucher term has expired and that the 
family must reapply when the waiting list is open in order to be placed on the waiting list. 

303

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 5-18

 

304

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-1

Chapter 6 

INCOME AND SUBSIDY DETERMINATIONS 
[24 CFR Part 5, Subparts E and F; 24 CFR 982] 

INTRODUCTION 

A family’s income determines eligibility for assistance and is also used to calculate the family’s 
payment and the PHA’s subsidy. The PHA will use the policies and methods described in this 
chapter to ensure that only eligible families receive assistance and that no family pays more or 
less than its obligation under the regulations. This chapter describes HUD regulations and PHA 
policies related to these topics in three parts as follows:  

 Part I: Annual Income. HUD regulations specify the sources of income to include and 
exclude to arrive at a family’s annual income. These requirements and PHA policies for 
calculating annual income are found in Part I. 

 Part II: Adjusted Income. Once annual income has been established HUD regulations require 
the PHA to subtract from annual income any of five mandatory deductions for which a 
family qualifies. These requirements and PHA policies for calculating adjusted income are 
found in Part II. 

 Part III: Calculating Family Share and PHA Subsidy. This part describes the statutory 
formula for calculating total tenant payment (TTP), the use of utility allowances, and the 
methodology for determining PHA subsidy and required family payment. 

305

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-2

PART I: ANNUAL INCOME 

6-I.A. OVERVIEW 

The general regulatory definition of annual income shown below is from 24 CFR 5.609.  

5.609 Annual income. 

(a) Annual income means all amounts, monetary or not, which: 

(1) Go to, or on behalf of, the family head or spouse (even if temporarily absent) or to any other 
family member; or 

(2) Are anticipated to be received from a source outside the family during the 12-month period 
following admission or annual reexamination effective date; and  

(3) Which are not specifically excluded in paragraph [5.609(c)]. 

(4) Annual income also means amounts derived (during the 12-month period) from assets to 
which any member of the family has access. 

In addition to this general definition, HUD regulations establish policies for treating specific 
types of income and assets. The full texts of those portions of the regulations are provided in 
exhibits at the end of this chapter as follows: 

 Annual Income Inclusions (Exhibit 6-1) 

 Annual Income Exclusions (Exhibit 6-2)  

 Treatment of Family Assets (Exhibit 6-3) 

 Earned Income Disallowance for Persons with Disabilities (Exhibit 6-4)  

 The Effect of Welfare Benefit Reduction (Exhibit 6-5) 

Sections 6-I.B and 6-I.C discuss general requirements and methods for calculating annual 
income. The rest of this section describes how each source of income is treated for the purposes 
of determining annual income. HUD regulations present income inclusions and exclusions 
separately [24 CFR 5.609(b) and 24 CFR 5.609(c)]. In this plan, however, the discussions of 
income inclusions and exclusions are integrated by topic (e.g., all policies affecting earned 
income are discussed together in section 6-I.D). Verification requirements for annual income are 
discussed in Chapter 7.  

306

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-3

6-I.B. HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION AND INCOME 

Income received by all family members must be counted unless specifically excluded by the 
regulations. It is the responsibility of the head of household to report changes in family 
composition. The rules on which sources of income are counted vary somewhat by family 
member. The chart below summarizes how family composition affects income determinations.  

 

Summary of Income Included and Excluded by Person 

Live-in aides Income from all sources is excluded [24 CFR 5.609(c)(5)]. 

Foster child or foster adult Income from all sources is excluded [24 CFR 5.609(c)(2)]. 

Head, spouse, or cohead 
Other adult family members 

All sources of income not specifically excluded by the 
regulations are included. 

Children under 18 years of age Employment income is excluded [24 CFR 5.609(c)(1)]. 

All other sources of income, except those specifically 
excluded by the regulations, are included. 

Full-time students 18 years of 
age or older (not head, spouse, 
or cohead) 

Employment income above $480/year is excluded [24 CFR 
5.609(c)(11)]. 

All other sources of income, except those specifically 
excluded by the regulations, are included. 

 

307

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-4

Temporarily Absent Family Members 

The income of family members approved to live in the unit will be counted, even if the family 
member is temporarily absent from the unit [HCV GB, p. 5-18]. 

PHA Policy 

Generally an individual who is or is expected to be absent from the assisted unit for 180 
consecutive days or less is considered temporarily absent and continues to be considered 
a family member. Generally an individual who is or is expected to be absent from the 
assisted unit for more than 180 consecutive days is considered permanently absent and no 
longer a family member. Exceptions to this general policy are discussed below. 

Absent Students  

PHA Policy 

When someone who has been considered a family member attends school away from 
home, the person will continue to be considered a family member unless information 
becomes available to the PHA indicating that the student has established a separate 
household or the family declares that the student has established a separate household.  

Absences Due to Placement in Foster Care 

Children temporarily absent from the home as a result of placement in foster care are considered 
members of the family [24 CFR 5.403].  

PHA Policy  

If a child has been placed in foster care, the PHA will verify with the appropriate agency 
whether and when the child is expected to be returned to the home. Unless the agency 
confirms that the child has been permanently removed from the home, the child will be 
counted as a family member. 

Absent Head, Spouse, or Cohead 

PHA Policy 

An employed head, spouse, or cohead absent from the unit more than 180 consecutive 
days due to employment will continue to be considered a family member.  

308

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-5

Family Members Permanently Confined for Medical Reasons 

If a family member is confined to a nursing home or hospital on a permanent basis, that person is 
no longer considered a family member and the income of that person is not counted [HCV GB, 
p. 5-22]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will request verification from a responsible medical professional and will use 
this determination. If the responsible medical professional cannot provide a 
determination, the person generally will be considered temporarily absent. The family 
may present evidence that the family member is confined on a permanent basis and 
request that the person not be considered a family member. 

When an individual who has been counted as a family member is determined 
permanently absent, the family is eligible for the medical expense deduction only if the 
remaining head, spouse, or cohead qualify as an elderly person or a person with 
disabilities. 

Joint Custody of Dependents 

PHA Policy 

Dependents that are subject to a joint custody arrangement will be considered a member 
of the family, if they live with the applicant or participant family 50 percent or more of 
the time. 

When more than one applicant or participant family is claiming the same dependents as 
family members, the family with primary custody at the time of the initial examination or 
reexamination will be able to claim the dependents. If there is a dispute about which 
family should claim them, the PHA will make the determination based on available 
documents such as court orders, school records, or an IRS return showing which family 
has claimed the child for income tax purposes. 

309

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-6

Caretakers for a Child 

PHA Policy  

The approval of a caretaker is at the owner and PHA’s discretion and subject to the owner 
and PHA’s screening criteria. If neither a parent nor a designated guardian remains in a 
household receiving HCV assistance, the PHA will take the following actions. 

(1) If a responsible agency has determined that another adult is to be brought into the 
assisted unit to care for a child for an indefinite period, the designated caretaker will 
not be considered a family member until a determination of custody or legal 
guardianship is made. 

(2) If a caretaker has assumed responsibility for a child without the involvement of a 
responsible agency or formal assignment of custody or legal guardianship, the 
caretaker will be treated as a visitor for 90 days. After the 90 days has elapsed, the 
caretaker will be considered a family member unless information is provided that 
would confirm that the caretaker’s role is temporary. In such cases the PHA will 
extend the caretaker’s status as an eligible visitor.  

(3) At any time that custody or guardianship legally has been awarded to a caretaker, the 
housing choice voucher will be transferred to the caretaker. 

(4) During any period that a caretaker is considered a visitor, the income of the caretaker 
is not counted in annual income and the caretaker does not qualify the family for any 
deductions from income. 

310

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-7

6-I.C. ANTICIPATING ANNUAL INCOME  

The PHA is required to count all income “anticipated to be received from a source outside the 
family during the 12-month period following admission or annual reexamination effective date” 
[24 CFR 5.609(a)(2)]. Policies related to anticipating annual income are provided below.  

Basis of Annual Income Projection 

The PHA generally will use current circumstances to determine anticipated income for the 
coming 12-month period. HUD authorizes the PHA to use other than current circumstances to 
anticipate income when: 

 An imminent change in circumstances is expected [HCV GB, p. 5-17] 

 It is not feasible to anticipate a level of income over a 12-month period (e.g., seasonal or 
cyclic income) [24 CFR 5.609(d)] 

 The PHA believes that past income is the best available indicator of expected future income 
[24 CFR 5.609(d)] 

PHAs are required to use HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) system in its entirety as a 
third party source to verify employment and income information, and to reduce administrative 
subsidy payment errors in accordance with HUD administrative guidance [24 CFR 5.233(a)(2)].  

HUD allows PHAs to use tenant-provided documents (pay stubs) to project income once EIV 
data has been received in such cases where the family does not dispute the EIV employer data 
and where the PHA does not determine it is necessary to obtain additional third-party data. 

PHA Policy 

When EIV is obtained and the family does not dispute the EIV employer data, the PHA 
will use current tenant-provided documents to project annual income. When the tenant-
provided documents are pay stubs, the PHA will make every effort to obtain current and 
consecutive pay stubs dated within the last 60 days.  

The PHA will obtain written and/or oral third-party verification in accordance with the 
verification requirements and policy in Chapter 7 in the following cases: 

If EIV or other UIV data is not available, 

If the family disputes the accuracy of the EIV employer data, and/or 

If the PHA determines additional information is needed.  

In such cases, the PHA will review and analyze current data to anticipate annual income. 
In all cases, the family file will be documented with a clear record of the reason for the 
decision, and a clear audit trail will be left as to how the PHA annualized projected 
income.  

When the PHA cannot readily anticipate income based upon current circumstances (e.g., 
in the case of seasonal employment, unstable working hours, or suspected fraud), the 
PHA will review and analyze historical data for patterns of employment, paid benefits, 
and receipt of other income and use the results of this analysis to establish annual income.  

311

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-8

Any time current circumstances are not used to project annual income, a clear rationale 
for the decision will be documented in the file. In all such cases the family may present 
information and documentation to the PHA to show why the historic pattern does not 
represent the family’s anticipated income. 

Known Changes in Income 

If the PHA verifies an upcoming increase or decrease in income, annual income will be 
calculated by applying each income amount to the appropriate part of the 12-month 
period.  

Example: An employer reports that a full-time employee who has been receiving $8/hour 
will begin to receive $8.25/hour in the eighth week after the effective date of the 
reexamination. In such a case the PHA would calculate annual income as follows: 
($8/hour × 40 hours × 7 weeks) + ($8.25 × 40 hours × 45 weeks). 

The family may present information that demonstrates that implementing a change before 
its effective date would create a hardship for the family. In such cases the PHA will 
calculate annual income using current circumstances and then require an interim 
reexamination when the change actually occurs. This requirement will be imposed even if 
the PHA’s policy on reexaminations does not require interim reexaminations for other 
types of changes. 

When tenant-provided third-party documents are used to anticipate annual income, they 
will be dated within the last 60 days of the reexamination interview date. 

Projecting Income 

In HUD’s EIV webcast of January 2008, HUD made clear that PHAs are not to use EIV 
quarterly wages to project annual income. 

312

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-9

6-I.D. EARNED INCOME 

Types of Earned Income Included in Annual Income 

Wages and Related Compensation 

The full amount, before any payroll deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime pay, 
commissions, fees, tips and bonuses, and other compensation for personal services is included in 
annual income [24 CFR 5.609(b)(1)]. 

PHA Policy 

For persons who regularly receive bonuses or commissions, the PHA will verify and then 
average amounts received for the one year preceding admission or reexamination. If only 
a one-year history is available, the PHA will use the prior year amounts. In either case the 
family may provide, and the PHA will consider, a credible justification for not using this 
history to anticipate future bonuses or commissions. If a new employee has not yet 
received any bonuses or commissions, the PHA will count only the amount estimated by 
the employer. The file will be documented appropriately. 

Some Types of Military Pay 

All regular pay, special pay and allowances of a member of the Armed Forces are counted [24 
CFR 5.609(b)(8)] except for the special pay to a family member serving in the Armed Forces 
who is exposed to hostile fire [24 CFR 5.609(c)(7)]. 

Types of Earned Income Not Counted in Annual Income  

Temporary, Nonrecurring, or Sporadic Income [24 CFR 5.609(c)(9)] 

This type of income (including gifts) is not included in annual income. Sporadic income includes 
temporary payments from the U.S. Census Bureau for employment lasting no longer than 
180 days [Notice PIH 2009-19]. 

PHA Policy 

Sporadic income is income that is not received periodically and cannot be reliably 
predicted. For example, the income of an individual who works occasionally as a 
handyman would be considered sporadic if future work could not be anticipated and no 
historic, stable pattern of income existed. 

Children’s Earnings 

Employment income earned by children (including foster children) under the age of 18 years is 
not included in annual income [24 CFR 5.609(c)(1)]. (See Eligibility chapter for a definition of 
foster children.) 

Certain Earned Income of Full-Time Students 

Earnings in excess of $480 for each full-time student 18 years old or older (except for the head, 
spouse, or cohead) are not counted [24 CFR 5.609(c)(11)]. To be considered “full-time,” a 
student must be considered “full-time” by an educational institution with a degree or certificate 
program [HCV GB, p. 5-29]. 

313

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-10

Income of a Live-in Aide 

Income earned by a live-in aide, as defined in [24 CFR 5.403], is not included in annual income 
[24 CFR 5.609(c)(5)]. (See Eligibility chapter for a full discussion of live-in aides.) 

Income Earned under Certain Federal Programs 

Income from some federal programs is specifically excluded from consideration as income [24 
CFR 5.609(c)(17)], including: 

 Payments to volunteers under the Domestic Volunteer Services Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C. 
5044(g), 5058) 

 Awards under the federal work-study program (20 U.S.C. 1087 uu) 

 Payments received from programs funded under Title V of the Older Americans Act of 1985 
(42 U.S.C. 3056(f)) 

 Allowances, earnings, and payments to AmeriCorps participants under the National and 
Community Service Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12637(d)) 

 Allowances, earnings, and payments to participants in programs funded under the Workforce 
Investment Act of 1998 (29 U.S.C. 2931) 

Resident Service Stipend 

Amounts received under a resident service stipend are not included in annual income. A resident 
service stipend is a modest amount (not to exceed $200 per individual per month) received by a 
resident for performing a service for the PHA or owner, on a part-time basis, that enhances the 
quality of life in the development. Such services may include, but are not limited to, fire patrol, 
hall monitoring, lawn maintenance, resident initiatives coordination, and serving as a member of 
the PHA’s governing board. No resident may receive more than one such stipend during the 
same period of time [24 CFR 5.600(c)(8)(iv)]. 

314

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-11

State and Local Employment Training Programs 

Incremental earnings and benefits to any family member resulting from participation in 
qualifying state or local employment training programs (including training programs not 
affiliated with a local government) and training of a family member as resident management staff 
are excluded from annual income. Amounts excluded by this provision must be received under 
employment training programs with clearly defined goals and objectives and are excluded only 
for the period during which the family member participates in the training program [24 CFR 
5.609(c)(8)(v)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA defines training program as “a learning process with goals and objectives, 
generally having a variety of components, and taking place in a series of sessions over a 
period to time. It is designed to lead to a higher level of proficiency, and it enhances the 
individual’s ability to obtain employment. It may have performance standards to measure 
proficiency. Training may include, but is not limited to: (1) classroom training in a 
specific occupational skill, (2) on-the-job training with wages subsidized by the program, 
or (3) basic education” [expired Notice PIH 98-2, p. 3]. 

The PHA defines incremental earnings and benefits as the difference between: (1) the 
total amount of welfare assistance and earnings of a family member prior to enrollment in 
a training program, and (2) the total amount of welfare assistance and earnings of the 
family member after enrollment in the program [expired Notice PIH 98-2, pp. 3–4]. 

In calculating the incremental difference, the PHA will use as the pre-enrollment income 
the total annualized amount of the family member’s welfare assistance and earnings 
reported on the family’s most recently completed HUD-50058. 

End of participation in a training program must be reported in accordance with the PHA's 
interim reporting requirements. 

315

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-12

HUD-Funded Training Programs 

Amounts received under training programs funded in whole or in part by HUD [24 CFR 
5.609(c)(8)(i)] are excluded from annual income. Eligible sources of funding for the training 
include operating subsidy, Section 8 administrative fees, and modernization, Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME program, and other grant funds received from HUD. 

PHA Policy 

To qualify as a training program, the program must meet the definition of training 
program provided above for state and local employment training programs. 

Earned Income Tax Credit 

Earned income tax credit (EITC) refund payments received on or after January 1, 1991 (26 
U.S.C. 32(j)), are excluded from annual income [24 CFR 5.609(c)(17)]. Although many families 
receive the EITC annually when they file taxes, an EITC can also be received throughout the 
year. The prorated share of the annual EITC is included in the employee’s payroll check. 

Earned Income Disallowance 

The earned income disallowance for persons with disabilities is discussed in section 6-I.E below. 

316

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-13

6-I.E. EARNED INCOME DISALLOWANCE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES  
[24 CFR 5.617; Streamlining Final Rule (SFR) Federal Register 3/8/16] 

The earned income disallowance (EID) encourages people with disabilities to enter the work 
force by not including the full value of increases in earned income for a period of time. The full 
text of 24 CFR 5.617 is included as Exhibit 6-4 at the end of this chapter. Eligibility criteria and 
limitations on the disallowance are summarized below. 

Eligibility 

This disallowance applies only to individuals in families already participating in the HCV 
program (not at initial examination). To qualify, the family must experience an increase in 
annual income that is the result of one of the following events: 

 Employment of a family member who is a person with disabilities and who was previously 
unemployed for one or more years prior to employment. Previously unemployed includes a 
person who annually has earned not more than the minimum wage applicable to the 
community multiplied by 500 hours. The applicable minimum wage is the federal minimum 
wage unless there is a higher state or local minimum wage. 

 Increased earnings by a family member who is a person with disabilities and whose earnings 
increase during participation in an economic self-sufficiency or job-training program. A self-
sufficiency program includes a program designed to encourage, assist, train, or facilitate the 
economic independence of HUD-assisted families or to provide work to such families [24 
CFR 5.603(b)]. 

 New employment or increased earnings by a family member who is a person with disabilities 
and who has received benefits or services under Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
(TANF) or any other state program funded under Part A of Title IV of the Social Security 
Act within the past six months. If the benefits are received in the form of monthly 
maintenance, there is no minimum amount. If the benefits or services are received in a form 
other than monthly maintenance, such as one-time payments, wage subsidies, or 
transportation assistance, the total amount received over the six-month period must be at 
least $500. 

317

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-14

Calculation of the Disallowance 

Calculation of the earned income disallowance for an eligible member of a qualified family 
begins with a comparison of the member’s current income with his or her “baseline income.” 
The family member’s baseline income is his or her income immediately prior to qualifying for 
the EID. The family member’s baseline income remains constant throughout the period that he or 
she is participating in the EID. 

Calculation Method 

Initial 12-Month Exclusion 

During the initial exclusion period of 12 consecutive months, the full amount (100 percent) of 
any increase in income attributable to new employment or increased earnings is excluded.  

PHA Policy 

The initial EID exclusion period will begin on the first of the month following the date an 
eligible member of a qualified family is first employed or first experiences an increase in 
earnings. 

Second 12-Month Exclusion 

During the second exclusion period of 12 consecutive months, the PHA must exclude at least 50 
percent of any increase in income attributable to employment or increased earnings.  

PHA Policy 

During the second 12-month exclusion period, the PHA will exclude 100 percent of any 
increase in income attributable to new employment or increased earnings. 

Lifetime Limitation 

The EID has a two-year (24-month) lifetime maximum. The two-year eligibility period begins at 
the same time that the initial exclusion period begins and ends 24 months later. During the 24-
month period, an individual remains eligible for EID even if they begin to receive assistance 
from a different housing agency, move between public housing and Section 8 assistance, or have 
breaks in assistance. 

318

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-15

6-I.F. BUSINESS INCOME [24 CFR 5.609(b)(2)] 

Annual income includes “the net income from the operation of a business or profession. 
Expenditures for business expansion or amortization of capital indebtedness shall not be used as 
deductions in determining net income. An allowance for depreciation of assets used in a business 
or profession may be deducted, based on straight line depreciation, as provided in Internal 
Revenue Service regulations. Any withdrawal of cash or assets from the operation of a business 
or profession will be included in income, except to the extent the withdrawal is reimbursement of 
cash or assets invested in the operation by the family” [24 CFR 5.609(b)(2)].  

Business Expenses 

Net income is “gross income less business expense” [HCV GB, p. 5-19]. 

PHA Policy 

To determine business expenses that may be deducted from gross income, the PHA will 
use current applicable Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules for determining allowable 
business expenses [see IRS Publication 535], unless a topic is addressed by HUD 
regulations or guidance as described below. 

Business Expansion 

HUD regulations do not permit the PHA to deduct from gross income expenses for business 
expansion. 

PHA Policy 

Business expansion is defined as any capital expenditures made to add new business 
activities, to expand current facilities, or to operate the business in additional locations. 
For example, purchase of a street sweeper by a construction business for the purpose of 
adding street cleaning to the services offered by the business would be considered a 
business expansion. Similarly, the purchase of a property by a hair care business to open 
at a second location would be considered a business expansion. 

Capital Indebtedness 

HUD regulations do not permit the PHA to deduct from gross income the amortization of capital 
indebtedness. 

PHA Policy 

Capital indebtedness is defined as the principal portion of the payment on a capital asset 
such as land, buildings, and machinery. This means the PHA will allow as a business 
expense interest, but not principal, paid on capital indebtedness. 

319

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-16

Negative Business Income 

If the net income from a business is negative, no business income will be included in annual 
income; a negative amount will not be used to offset other family income. 

Withdrawal of Cash or Assets from a Business  

HUD regulations require the PHA to include in annual income the withdrawal of cash or assets 
from the operation of a business or profession unless the withdrawal reimburses a family 
member for cash or assets invested in the business by the family. 

PHA Policy 

Acceptable investments in a business include cash loans and contributions of assets or 
equipment. For example, if a member of an assisted family provided an up-front loan of 
$2,000 to help a business get started, the PHA will not count as income any withdrawals 
from the business up to the amount of this loan until the loan has been repaid. 
Investments do not include the value of labor contributed to the business without 
compensation. 

Co-owned Businesses 

PHA Policy 

If a business is co-owned with someone outside the family, the family must document the 
share of the business it owns. If the family’s share of the income is lower than its share of 
ownership, the family must document the reasons for the difference. 

320

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-17

6-I.G. ASSETS [24 CFR 5.609(b)(3); 24 CFR 5.603(b)] 

Overview 

There is no asset limitation for participation in the HCV program. However, HUD requires that 
the PHA include in annual income the anticipated “interest, dividends, and other net income of 
any kind from real or personal property” [24 CFR 5.609(b)(3)]. This section discusses how the 
income from various types of assets is determined. For most types of assets, the PHA must 
determine the value of the asset in order to compute income from the asset. Therefore, for each 
asset type, this section discusses: 

 How the value of the asset will be determined 

 How income from the asset will be calculated 

Exhibit 6-1 provides the regulatory requirements for calculating income from assets [24 CFR 
5.609(b)(3)], and Exhibit 6-3 provides the regulatory definition of net family assets. This section 
begins with a discussion of general policies related to assets and then provides HUD rules and 
PHA policies related to each type of asset.  

Optional policies for family self-certification of assets are found in Chapter 7. 

General Policies 

Income from Assets 

The PHA generally will use current circumstances to determine both the value of an asset and the 
anticipated income from the asset. As is true for all sources of income, HUD authorizes the PHA 
to use other than current circumstances to anticipate income when (1) an imminent change in 
circumstances is expected (2) it is not feasible to anticipate a level of income over 12 months or 
(3) the PHA believes that past income is the best indicator of anticipated income. For example, if 
a family member owns real property that typically receives rental income but the property is 
currently vacant, the PHA can take into consideration past rental income along with the 
prospects of obtaining a new tenant. 

PHA Policy 

Anytime current circumstances are not used to determine asset income, a clear rationale 
for the decision will be documented in the file. In such cases the family may present 
information and documentation to the PHA to show why the asset income determination 
does not represent the family’s anticipated asset income. 

321

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-18

Valuing Assets 

The calculation of asset income sometimes requires the PHA to make a distinction between an 
asset’s market value and its cash value. 

 The market value of an asset is its worth in the market (e.g., the amount a buyer would pay 
for real estate or the total value of an investment account). 

 The cash value of an asset is its market value less all reasonable amounts that would be 
incurred when converting the asset to cash.  

PHA Policy 

Reasonable costs that would be incurred when disposing of an asset include, but are not 
limited to, penalties for premature withdrawal, broker and legal fees, and settlement costs 
incurred in real estate transactions [HCV GB, p. 5-28]. 

Lump-Sum Receipts 

Payments that are received in a single lump sum, such as inheritances, capital gains, lottery 
winnings, insurance settlements, and proceeds from the sale of property, are generally considered 
assets, not income. However, such lump-sum receipts are counted as assets only if they are 
retained by a family in a form recognizable as an asset (e.g., deposited in a savings or checking 
account) [RHIIP FAQs]. (For a discussion of lump-sum payments that represent the delayed start 
of a periodic payment, most of which are counted as income, see sections 6-I.H and 6-I.I.) 

Imputing Income from Assets [24 CFR 5.609(b)(3), Notice PIH 2012-29] 

When net family assets are $5,000 or less, the PHA will include in annual income the actual 
income anticipated to be derived from the assets. When the family has net family assets in excess 
of $5,000, the PHA will include in annual income the greater of (1) the actual income derived 
from the assets or (2) the imputed income. Imputed income from assets is calculated by 
multiplying the total cash value of all family assets by an average passbook savings rate as 
determined by the PHA. 

 Note: The HUD field office no longer provides an interest rate for imputed asset income. The 
“safe harbor” is now for the PHA to establish a passbook rate within 0.75 percent of a 
national average. 

 The PHA must review its passbook rate annually to ensure that it remains within 0.75 percent 
of the national average. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA initially set the imputed asset passbook rate at zero percent.  

The PHA will review the passbook rate annually. If the national rate is at or below 0.75 
percent, the PHA will continue to use zero percent. If the national rate exceeds 0.75 
percent at the time of the annual review, the PHA will adjust the rate to the current 
national rate . 

322

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-19

Determining Actual Anticipated Income from Assets 

It may or may not be necessary for the PHA to use the value of an asset to compute the actual 
anticipated income from the asset. When the value is required to compute the anticipated income 
from an asset, the market value of the asset is used. For example, if the asset is a property for 
which a family receives rental income, the anticipated income is determined by annualizing the 
actual monthly rental amount received for the property; it is not based on the property’s market 
value. However, if the asset is a savings account, the anticipated income is determined by 
multiplying the market value of the account by the interest rate on the account. 

Withdrawal of Cash or Liquidation of Investments  

Any withdrawal of cash or assets from an investment will be included in income except to the 
extent that the withdrawal reimburses amounts invested by the family. For example, when a 
family member retires, the amount received by the family from a retirement investment plan is 
not counted as income until the family has received payments equal to the amount the family 
member deposited into the retirement investment plan. 

Jointly Owned Assets 

The regulation at 24 CFR 5.609(a)(4) specifies that annual income includes “amounts derived 
(during the 12-month period) from assets to which any member of the family has access.” 

PHA Policy 

If an asset is owned by more than one person and any family member has unrestricted 
access to the asset, the PHA will count the full value of the asset. A family member has 
unrestricted access to an asset when he or she can legally dispose of the asset without the 
consent of any of the other owners. 

If an asset is owned by more than one person, including a family member, but the family 
member does not have unrestricted access to the asset, the PHA will prorate the asset 
according to the percentage of ownership. If no percentage is specified or provided for by 
state or local law, the PHA will prorate the asset evenly among all owners. 

Assets Disposed of for Less than Fair Market Value [24 CFR 5.603(b)] 

HUD regulations require the PHA to count as a current asset any business or family asset that 
was disposed of for less than fair market value during the two years prior to the effective date of 
the examination/reexamination, except as noted below. 

323

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-20

Minimum Threshold 

The HCV Guidebook permits the PHA to set a threshold below which assets disposed of for less 
than fair market value will not be counted [HCV GB, p. 5-27]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not include the value of assets disposed of for less than fair market value 
unless the cumulative fair market value of all assets disposed of during the past two years 
exceeds the gross amount received for the assets by more than $1,000. 

When the two-year period expires, the income assigned to the disposed asset(s) also 
expires. If the two-year period ends between annual recertifications, the family may 
request an interim recertification to eliminate consideration of the asset(s). 

Assets placed by the family in nonrevocable trusts are considered assets disposed of for 
less than fair market value except when the assets placed in trust were received through 
settlements or judgments. 

Separation or Divorce 

The regulation also specifies that assets are not considered disposed of for less than fair market 
value if they are disposed of as part of a separation or divorce settlement and the applicant or 
tenant receives important consideration not measurable in dollar terms. 

PHA Policy 

All assets disposed of as part of a separation or divorce settlement will be considered 
assets for which important consideration not measurable in monetary terms has been 
received. In order to qualify for this exemption, a family member must be subject to a 
formal separation or divorce settlement agreement established through arbitration, 
mediation, or court order. 

Foreclosure or Bankruptcy 

Assets are not considered disposed of for less than fair market value when the disposition is the 
result of a foreclosure or bankruptcy sale. 

Family Declaration 

PHA Policy 

Families must sign a declaration form at initial certification and each annual 
recertification identifying all assets that have been disposed of for less than fair market 
value or declaring that no assets have been disposed of for less than fair market value. 
The PHA may verify the value of the assets disposed of if other information available to 
the PHA does not appear to agree with the information reported by the family. 

324

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-21

Types of Assets 

Checking and Savings Accounts 

For regular checking accounts and savings accounts, cash value has the same meaning as market 
value. If a checking account does not bear interest, the anticipated income from the account is 
zero. 

PHA Policy 

In determining the value of checking account and savings accounts, the PHA will use the 
current balance. 

In determining the anticipated income from an interest-bearing checking or savings 
account, the PHA will multiply the value of the account by the current rate of interest 
paid on the account. 

Investment Accounts Such as Stocks, Bonds, Saving Certificates, and Money Market Funds 

Interest or dividends earned by investment accounts are counted as actual income from assets 
even when the earnings are reinvested. The cash value of such an asset is determined by 
deducting from the market value any broker fees, penalties for early withdrawal, or other costs of 
converting the asset to cash. 

PHA Policy 

In determining the market value of an investment account, the PHA will use the value of 
the account on the most recent investment report. 

How anticipated income from an investment account will be calculated depends on 
whether the rate of return is known. 

For assets that are held in an investment account with a known rate of return (e.g., 
savings certificates), asset income will be calculated based on that known rate 
(market value multiplied by rate of earnings). 

When the anticipated rate of return is not known (e.g., stocks), the PHA will 
calculate asset income based on the earnings for the most recent reporting period. 

325

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-22

Equity in Real Property or Other Capital Investments 

Equity (cash value) in a property or other capital asset is the estimated current market value of 
the asset less the unpaid balance on all loans secured by the asset and reasonable costs (such as 
broker fees) that would be incurred in selling the asset [HCV GB, p. 5-25]. 

PHA Policy 

In determining the equity, the PHA will access public tax records for value of property. 

The PHA will first use the payoff amount for the loan (mortgage) as the unpaid balance 
to calculate equity. If the payoff amount is not available, the PHA will use the basic loan 
balance information to deduct from the market value in the equity calculation. 

Equity in real property and other capital investments is considered in the calculation of asset 
income except for the following types of assets: 

 Equity accounts in HUD homeownership programs [24 CFR5.603(b)] 

 The value of a home currently being purchased with assistance under the HCV program 
Homeownership Option for the first 10 years after the purchase date of the home [24 CFR 
5.603(b), Notice PIH 2012-3] 

 Equity in owner-occupied cooperatives and manufactured homes in which the family lives 
[HCV GB, p. 5-25] 

 Equity in real property when a family member’s main occupation is real estate [HCV GB, p. 
5-25]. This real estate is considered a business asset, and income related to this asset will be 
calculated as described in section 6-I.F. 

 Interests in Indian Trust lands [24 CFR 5.603(b)] 

 Real property and capital assets that are part of an active business or farming operation [HCV 
GB, p. 5-25] 

The PHA must also deduct from the equity the reasonable costs for converting the asset to cash. 
Using the formula for calculating equity specified above, the net cash value of real property is 
the market value minus the balance of the loan (mortgage) minus the expenses to convert to cash  
[Notice PIH 2012-3]. 

PHA Policy 

For the purposes of calculating expenses to convert to cash for real property, the PHA 
will use ten percent of the market value of the home.  

A family may have real property as an asset in two ways: (1) owning the property itself and (2) 
holding a mortgage or deed of trust on the property. In the case of a property owned by a family 
member, the anticipated asset income generally will be in the form of rent or other payment for 
the use of the property. If the property generates no income, actual anticipated income from the 
asset will be zero. 

326

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-23

In the case of a mortgage or deed of trust held by a family member, the outstanding balance 
(unpaid principal) is the cash value of the asset. The interest portion only of payments made to 
the family in accordance with the terms of the mortgage or deed of trust is counted as anticipated 
asset income. 

PHA Policy 

In the case of capital investments owned jointly with others not living in a family’s unit, a 
prorated share of the property’s cash value will be counted as an asset unless the PHA 
determines that the family receives no income from the property and is unable to sell or 
otherwise convert the asset to cash. 

Trusts 

A trust is a legal arrangement generally regulated by state law in which one party (the creator or 
grantor) transfers property to a second party (the trustee) who holds the property for the benefit 
of one or more third parties (the beneficiaries). 

Revocable Trusts 

If any member of a family has the right to withdraw the funds in a trust, the value of the trust is 
considered an asset [HCV GB, p. 5-25]. Any income earned as a result of investment of trust 
funds is counted as actual asset income, whether the income is paid to the family or deposited in 
the trust. 

Nonrevocable Trusts  

In cases where a trust is not revocable by, or under the control of, any member of a family, the 
value of the trust fund is not considered an asset. However, any income distributed to the family 
from such a trust is counted as a periodic payment or a lump-sum receipt, as appropriate [24 CFR 
5.603(b)]. (Periodic payments are covered in section 6-I.H. Lump-sum receipts are discussed 
earlier in this section.) 

Retirement Accounts 

Company Retirement/Pension Accounts 

In order to correctly include or exclude as an asset any amount held in a company retirement or 
pension account by an employed person, the PHA must know whether the money is accessible 
before retirement [HCV GB, p. 5-26]. 

While a family member is employed, only the amount the family member can withdraw without 
retiring or terminating employment is counted as an asset [HCV GB, p. 5-26]. 

After a family member retires or terminates employment, any amount distributed to the family 
member is counted as a periodic payment or a lump-sum receipt, as appropriate [HCV GB, p. 5-
26], except to the extent that it represents funds invested in the account by the family member. 
(For more on periodic payments, see section 6-I.H.) The balance in the account is counted as an 
asset only if it remains accessible to the family member. 

IRA, Keogh, and Similar Retirement Savings Accounts 

IRA, Keogh, and similar retirement savings accounts are counted as assets even though early 
withdrawal would result in a penalty [HCV GB, p. 5-25]. 

327

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-24

Personal Property 

Personal property held as an investment, such as gems, jewelry, coin collections, antique cars, 
etc., is considered an asset [HCV GB, p. 5-25]. 

PHA Policy 

In determining the value of personal property held as an investment, the PHA will use the 
family’s estimate of the value. The PHA may obtain an appraisal to confirm the value of 
the asset if there is reason to believe that the family’s estimated value is off by $50 or 
more. The family must cooperate with the appraiser, but cannot be charged any costs 
related to the appraisal. 

Generally, personal property held as an investment generates no income until it is 
disposed of. If regular income is generated (e.g., income from renting the personal 
property), the amount that is expected to be earned in the coming year is counted as 
actual income from the asset. 

Necessary items of personal property are not considered assets [24 CFR 5.603(b)]. 

PHA Policy 

Necessary personal property consists of only those items not held as an investment, and 
may include clothing, furniture, household furnishings, jewelry, and vehicles, including 
those specially equipped for persons with disabilities. 

Life Insurance 

The cash value of a life insurance policy available to a family member before death, such as a 
whole life or universal life policy is included in the calculation of the value of the family’s assets 
[HCV GB 5-25]. The cash value is the surrender value. If such a policy earns dividends or 
interest that the family could elect to receive, the anticipated amount of dividends or interest is 
counted as income from the asset whether or not the family actually receives it. 

328

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-25

6-I.H. PERIODIC PAYMENTS 

Periodic payments are forms of income received on a regular basis. HUD regulations specify 
periodic payments that are and are not included in annual income.  

Periodic Payments Included in Annual Income 

 Periodic payments from sources such as social security, unemployment and welfare 
assistance, annuities, insurance policies, retirement funds, and pensions. However, periodic 
payments from retirement accounts, annuities, and similar forms of investments are counted 
only after they exceed the amount contributed by the family [24 CFR 5.609(b)(4) and (b)(3)]. 

 Disability or death benefits and lottery receipts paid periodically, rather than in a single lump 
sum [24 CFR 5.609(b)(4) and HCV, p. 5-14]. 

Lump-Sum Payments for the Delayed Start of a Periodic Payment 

Most lump-sums received as a result of delays in processing periodic payments, such as 
unemployment or welfare assistance, are counted as income. However, lump-sum receipts for the 
delayed start of periodic social security or supplemental security income (SSI) payments are not 
counted as income. Additionally, any deferred disability benefits that are received in a lump-sum 
or in prospective monthly amounts from the Department of Veterans Affairs are to be excluded 
from annual income [24 CFR 5.609(c)(14)]. 

PHA Policy 

When a delayed-start payment is received and reported during the period in which the 
PHA is processing an annual reexamination, the PHA will adjust the family share and 
PHA subsidy retroactively for the period the payment was intended to cover. The family 
may pay in full any amount due or request to enter into a repayment agreement with 
the PHA. 

Treatment of Overpayment Deductions from Social Security Benefits 

The PHA must make a special calculation of annual income when the Social Security 
Administration (SSA) overpays an individual, resulting in a withholding or deduction from his or 
her benefit amount until the overpayment is paid in full. The amount and duration of the 
withholding will vary depending on the amount of the overpayment and the percent of the 
benefit rate withheld. Regardless of the amount withheld or the length of the withholding period, 
the PHA must use the reduced benefit amount after deducting only the amount of the 
overpayment withholding from the gross benefit amount [Notice PIH 2018-24]. 

329

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-26

Periodic Payments Excluded from Annual Income 

 Payments received for the care of foster children or foster adults (usually persons with 
disabilities, unrelated to the assisted family, who are unable to live alone) [24 CFR 
5.609(c)(2)]. Kinship guardianship assistance payments (Kin-GAP) and other similar 
guardianship payments are treated the same as foster care payments and are likewise 
excluded from annual income [Notice PIH 2012-1]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will exclude payments for the care of foster children and foster adults only if 
the care is provided through an official arrangement with a local welfare agency [HCV 
GB, p. 5-18]. 

 Amounts paid by a state agency to a family with a member who has a developmental 
disability and is living at home to offset the cost of services and equipment needed to keep 
the developmentally disabled family member at home [24 CFR 5.609(c)(16)]. 

 Amounts received under the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (42 U.S.C. 
1626(c)) [24 CFR 5.609(c)(17)]. 

 Amounts received under the Child Care and Development Block Grant Act of 1990 (42 
U.S.C. 9858q) [24 CFR 5.609(c)(17)]. 

 Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) refund payments (26 U.S.C. 32(j)) [24 CFR 5.609(c)(17)]. 
Note: EITC may be paid periodically if the family elects to receive the amount due as part of 
payroll payments from an employer. 

 Lump-sums received as a result of delays in processing Social Security and SSI payments 
(see section 6-I.H.) [24 CFR 5.609(c)(14)]. 

 Lump-sums or prospective monthly amounts received as deferred disability benefits from the 
Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) [24 CFR 5.609(c)(14)]. 

330

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-27

6-I.I. PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF EARNINGS 

Payments in lieu of earnings, such as unemployment and disability compensation, worker’s 
compensation, and severance pay, are counted as income [24 CFR 5.609(b)(5)] if they are 
received either in the form of periodic payments or in the form of a lump-sum amount or 
prospective monthly amounts for the delayed start of a periodic payment. If they are received in 
a one-time lump sum (as a settlement, for instance), they are treated as lump-sum receipts [24 
CFR 5.609(c)(3)]. (See also the discussion of periodic payments in section 6-I.H and the 
discussion of lump-sum receipts in section 6-I.G.) 

331

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-28

6-I.J. WELFARE ASSISTANCE 

Overview 

Welfare assistance is counted in annual income. Welfare assistance includes Temporary 
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and any payments to individuals or families based on 
need that are made under programs funded separately or jointly by federal, state, or local 
governments [24 CFR 5.603(b)].  

Sanctions Resulting in the Reduction of Welfare Benefits [24 CFR 5.615] 

The PHA must make a special calculation of annual income when the welfare agency imposes 
certain sanctions on certain families. The full text of the regulation at 24 CFR 5.615 is provided 
as Exhibit 6-5. The requirements are summarized below. This rule applies only if a family was 
receiving HCV assistance at the time the sanction was imposed.  

Covered Families 

The families covered by 24 CFR 5.615 are those “who receive welfare assistance or other public 
assistance benefits (‘welfare benefits’) from a State or other public agency (’welfare agency’) 
under a program for which Federal, State or local law requires that a member of the family must 
participate in an economic self-sufficiency program as a condition for such assistance” [24 CFR 
5.615(b)] 

Imputed Income 

When a welfare agency imposes a sanction that reduces a family’s welfare income because the 
family commits fraud or fails to comply with the agency’s economic self-sufficiency program or 
work activities requirement, the PHA must include in annual income “imputed” welfare income. 
The PHA must request that the welfare agency provide the reason for the reduction of benefits 
and the amount of the reduction of benefits. The imputed welfare income is the amount that the 
benefits were reduced as a result of the sanction.  

This requirement does not apply to reductions in welfare benefits: (1) at the expiration of the 
lifetime or other time limit on the payment of welfare benefits, (2) if a family member is unable 
to find employment even though the family member has complied with the welfare agency 
economic self-sufficiency or work activities requirements, or (3) because a family member has 
not complied with other welfare agency requirements [24 CFR 5.615(b)(2)]. 

Offsets 

The amount of the imputed welfare income is offset by the amount of additional income the 
family begins to receive after the sanction is imposed. When the additional income equals or 
exceeds the imputed welfare income, the imputed income is reduced to zero [24 CFR 
5.615(c)(4)]. 

332

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-29

6-I.K. PERIODIC AND DETERMINABLE ALLOWANCES [24 CFR 5.609(b)(7)] 

Annual income includes periodic and determinable allowances, such as alimony and child 
support payments, and regular contributions or gifts received from organizations or from persons 
not residing with an assisted family. 

Alimony and Child Support  

The PHA must count alimony or child support amounts awarded as part of a divorce or 
separation agreement. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will count court-awarded amounts for alimony and child support unless the 
PHA verifies that: (1) the payments are not being made, and (2) the family has made 
reasonable efforts to collect amounts due, including filing with courts or agencies 
responsible for enforcing payments [HCV GB, pp. 5-23 and 5-47]. 

Families who do not have court-awarded alimony and child support awards are not 
required to seek a court award and are not required to take independent legal action to 
obtain collection. 

Regular Contributions or Gifts 

The PHA must count as income regular monetary and nonmonetary contributions or gifts from 
persons not residing with an assisted family [24 CFR 5.609(b)(7)]. Temporary, nonrecurring, or 
sporadic income and gifts are not counted [24 CFR 5.609(c)(9)]. 

PHA Policy 

Examples of regular contributions include: (1) regular payment of a family’s bills (e.g., 
utilities, telephone, rent, credit cards, and car payments), (2) cash or other liquid assets 
provided to any family member on a regular basis, and (3) “in-kind” contributions such 
as groceries and clothing provided to a family on a regular basis. 

Nonmonetary contributions will be valued at the cost of purchasing the items, as 
determined by the PHA. For contributions that may vary from month to month (e.g., 
utility payments), the PHA will include an average amount based upon past history. 

333

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-30

6-I.L. STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9); Notice PIH 2015-21] 

In 2005, Congress passed a law (for Section 8 programs only) requiring that certain student 
financial assistance be included in annual income. Prior to that, the full amount of student 
financial assistance was excluded. For some students, the full exclusion still applies. 

Student Financial Assistance Included in Annual Income [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9); FR 4/10/06; 
Notice PIH 2015-21] 

The regulation requiring the inclusion of certain student financial assistance applies only to 
students who satisfy all of the following conditions: 

 They are enrolled in an institution of higher education, as defined under the Higher 
Education Act (HEA) of 1965. 

 They are seeking or receiving Section 8 assistance on their own—that is, apart from their 
parents—through the HCV program, the project-based voucher program, or the moderate 
rehabilitation program. 

 They are under 24 years of age OR they have no dependent children. 

For students who satisfy these three conditions, any financial assistance in excess of tuition and 
any other required fees and charges received: (1) under the 1965 HEA, (2) from a private source, 
or (3) from an institution of higher education, as defined under the 1965 HEA, must be included 
in annual income. 

334

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-31

To determine annual income in accordance with the above requirements, the PHA will use the 
definitions of dependent child, institution of higher education, and parents in section 3-II.E, 
along with the following definitions [FR 4/10/06, pp. 18148-18150]: 

 Assistance under the Higher Education Act of 1965 includes Pell Grants, Federal Supplement 
Educational Opportunity Grants, Academic Achievement Incentive Scholarships, State 
Assistance under the Leveraging Educational Assistance Partnership Program, the Robert G. 
Byrd Honors Scholarship Program, and Federal Work Study programs. 

 Assistance from private sources means assistance from nongovernmental sources, including 
parents, guardians, and other persons not residing with the student in an HCV assisted unit. 

 Tuition and fees are defined in the same manner in which the Department of Education 
defines tuition and fees [Notice PIH 2015-21]. 

- This is the amount of tuition and required fees covering a full academic year most 
frequently charged to students. 

- The amount represents what a typical student would be charged and may not be the same 
for all students at an institution. 

- If tuition is charged on a per-credit-hour basis, the average full-time credit hour load for 
an academic year is used to estimate average tuition.  

- Required fees include all fixed-sum charges that are required of a large proportion of all 
students. Examples include, but are not limited to, writing and science lab fees and fees 
specific to the student’s major or program (i.e., nursing program). 

- Expenses related to attending an institution of higher education must not be included as 
tuition. Examples include, but are not limited to, room and board, books, supplies, meal 
plans, transportation and parking, student health insurance plans, and other non-fixed-
sum charges. 

Student Financial Assistance Excluded from Annual Income [24 CFR 5.609(c)(6)] 

Any student financial assistance not subject to inclusion under 24 CFR 5.609(b)(9) is fully 
excluded from annual income under 24 CFR 5.609(c)(6), whether it is paid directly to the student 
or to the educational institution the student is attending. This includes any financial assistance 
received by: 

 Students residing with parents who are seeking or receiving Section 8 assistance 

 Students who are enrolled in an educational institution that does not meet the 1965 HEA 
definition of institution of higher education 

 Students who are over 23 AND have at least one dependent child, as defined in section 3-II.E 

 Students who are receiving financial assistance through a governmental program not 
authorized under the 1965 HEA. 

335

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-32

6-I.M. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS FROM ANNUAL INCOME 

Other exclusions contained in 24 CFR 5.609(c) that have not been discussed earlier in this 
chapter include the following: 

 Reimbursement of medical expenses [24 CFR 5.609(c)(4)] 

 Amounts received by participants in other publicly assisted programs which are specifically 
for or in reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred and which are made solely to 
allow participation in a specific program [24 CFR 5.609(c)(8)(iii)] 

 Amounts received by a person with a disability that are disregarded for a limited time for 
purposes of Supplemental Security Income eligibility and benefits because they are set aside 
for use under a Plan to Attain Self-Sufficiency (PASS) [(24 CFR 5.609(c)(8)(ii)] 

 Reparation payments paid by a foreign government pursuant to claims filed under the laws of 
that government by persons who were persecuted during the Nazi era [24 CFR 5.609(c)(10)] 

 Adoption assistance payments in excess of $480 per adopted child [24 CFR 5.609(c)(12)] 

 Refunds or rebates on property taxes paid on the dwelling unit [24 CFR 5.609(c)(15)] 

 Amounts paid by a state agency to a family with a member who has a developmental 
disability and is living at home to offset the cost of services and equipment needed to keep 
the developmentally disabled family member at home [24 CFR 5.609(c)(16)] 

 Amounts specifically excluded by any other federal statute [24 CFR 5.609(c)(17), FR Notice 
5/20/14]. HUD publishes an updated list of these exclusions periodically. It includes: 

(a) The value of the allotment provided to an eligible household under the Food Stamp Act 
of 1977 (7 U.S.C. 2017 (b)) 

(b) Benefits under Section 1780 of the School Lunch Act and Child Nutrition Act of 1966, 
including WIC 

 (c) Payments to volunteers under the Domestic Volunteer Services Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C. 
5044(g), 5058) 

(d) Payments received under the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act (43 U.S.C. 1626(c)) 

(e) Income derived from certain submarginal land of the United States that is held in trust 
for certain Indian tribes (25 U.S.C. 459e) 

(f) Payments or allowances made under the Department of Health and Human Services’ 
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (42 U.S.C. 8624(f)) 

(g) Payments received under programs funded in whole or in part under the Workforce 
Investment Act of 1998 (29 U.S.C. 2931) 

(h)  Deferred disability benefits from the Department of Veterans Affairs, whether received 
as a lump sum or in monthly prospective amounts 

(i) Income derived from the disposition of funds to the Grand River Band of Ottawa Indians 
(Pub. L. 94-540, 90 Stat. 2503-04) 

336

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-33

(j) Payments, funds, or distributions authorized, established, or directed by the Seneca 
Nation Settlement Act of 1990 (25 U.S.C. 1774f(b)) 

(k) A lump sum or periodic payment received by an individual Indian pursuant to the Class 
Action Settlement Agreement in the United States District Court case entitled Elouise 
Cobell et al. v. Ken Salazar et al., for a period of one year from the time of receipt of 
that payment as provided in the Claims Resolution Act of 2010 

(l) The first $2,000 of per capita shares received from judgment funds awarded by the 
Indian Claims Commission or the U. S. Claims Court, the interests of individual Indians 
in trust or restricted lands, including the first $2,000 per year of income received by 
individual Indians from funds derived from interests held in such trust or restricted lands 
(25 U.S.C. 1407-1408) 

(m) Benefits under the Indian Veterans Housing Opportunity Act of 2010 (only applies to 
Native American housing programs) 

(n) Payments received from programs funded under Title V of the Older Americans Act of 
1985 (42 U.S.C. 3056(f)) 

(o) Payments received on or after January 1, 1989, from the Agent Orange Settlement Fund 
or any other fund established pursuant to the settlement in In Re Agent Orange product 
liability litigation, M.D.L. No. 381 (E.D.N.Y.) 

(p) Payments received under 38 U.S.C. 1833(c) to children of Vietnam veterans born with 
spinal bifida, children of women Vietnam veterans born with certain birth defects, and 
children of certain Korean service veterans born with spinal bifida 

(q) Payments received under the Maine Indian Claims Settlement Act of 1980 (25 U.S.C. 
1721) 

(r) The value of any child care provided or arranged (or any amount received as payment 
for such care or reimbursement for costs incurred for such care) under the Child Care 
and Development Block Grant Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 9858q) 

(s) Earned income tax credit (EITC) refund payments received on or after January 1, 1991 
(26 U.S.C. 32(j)) 

(t) Payments by the Indian Claims Commission to the Confederated Tribes and Bands of 
Yakima Indian Nation or the Apache Tribe of Mescalero Reservation (Pub. L. 95-433) 

(u) Amounts of scholarships funded under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965j, 
including awards under federal work-study programs or under the Bureau of Indian 
Affairs student assistance programs (20 U.S.C. 1087uu). For Section 8 programs, the 
exception found in § 237 of Public Law 109–249 applies and requires that the amount of 
financial assistance in excess of tuition and mandatory fees shall be considered income 
in accordance with the provisions codified at 24 CFR 5.609(b)(9), except for those 
persons with disabilities as defined by 42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(3)(E) (Pub. L. 109–249) (See 
See Section 6-I.L. for exceptions.) 

(v) Allowances, earnings and payments to AmeriCorps participants under the National and 
Community Service Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12637(d)) 

337

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-34

(w) Any amount of crime victim compensation (under the Victims of Crime Act) received 
through crime victim assistance (or payment or reimbursement of the cost of such 
assistance) as determined under the Victims of Crime Act because of the commission of 
a crime against the applicant under the Victims of Crime Act (42 U.S.C. 10602) 

(x) Any amounts in an "individual development account" as provided by the Assets for 
Independence Act, as amended in 2002 

(y) Payments made from the proceeds of Indian tribal trust cases as described in Notice PIH 
2013–30, "Exclusion from Income of Payments under Recent Tribal Trust Settlements" 
(25 U.S.C. 117b(a)) 

(z) Major disaster and emergency assistance received under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster 
Relief and Emergency Assistance Act and comparable disaster assistance provided by 
states, local governments, and disaster assistance organizations 

(aa) Distributions from an ABLE account, and actual or imputed interest on the ABLE 
account balance 

338

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-35

PART II: ADJUSTED INCOME 

6-II.A. INTRODUCTION 

Overview 

HUD regulations require PHAs to deduct from annual income any of five mandatory deductions 
for which a family qualifies. The resulting amount is the family’s adjusted income. Mandatory 
deductions are found in 24 CFR 5.611.  

5.611(a) Mandatory deductions. In determining adjusted income, the responsible entity [PHA] 
must deduct the following amounts from annual income: 

(1) $480 for each dependent; 

(2) $400 for any elderly family or disabled family; 

(3) The sum of the following, to the extent the sum exceeds three percent of annual income: 

(i) Unreimbursed medical expenses of any elderly family or disabled family; 

(ii) Unreimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus expenses for each member 
of the family who is a person with disabilities, to the extent necessary to enable any member of 
the family (including the member who is a person with disabilities) to be employed. This 
deduction may not exceed the earned income received by family members who are 18 years of 
age or older and who are able to work because of such attendant care or auxiliary apparatus; and 

(4) Any reasonable child care expenses necessary to enable a member of the family to be 
employed or to further his or her education. 

This part covers policies related to these mandatory deductions. Verification requirements related 
to these deductions are found in Chapter 7. 

Anticipating Expenses 

PHA Policy 

Generally, the PHA will use current circumstances to anticipate expenses. When possible, 
for costs that are expected to fluctuate during the year (e.g., child care during school and 
nonschool periods and cyclical medical expenses), the PHA will estimate costs based on 
historic data and known future costs. 

If a family has an accumulated debt for medical or disability assistance expenses, the 
PHA will include as an eligible expense the portion of the debt that the family expects to 
pay during the period for which the income determination is being made. However, 
amounts previously deducted will not be allowed even if the amounts were not paid as 
expected in a preceding period. The PHA may require the family to provide 
documentation of payments made in the preceding year. 

339

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-36

6-II.B. DEPENDENT DEDUCTION 

An allowance of $480 is deducted from annual income for each dependent [24 CFR 5.611(a)(1)]. 
Dependent is defined as any family member other than the head, spouse, or cohead who is under 
the age of 18 or who is 18 or older and is a person with disabilities or a full-time student. Foster 
children, foster adults, and live-in aides are never considered dependents [24 CFR 5.603(b)]. 

6-II.C. ELDERLY OR DISABLED FAMILY DEDUCTION 

A single deduction of $400 is taken for any elderly or disabled family [24 CFR 5.611(a)(2)]. An 
elderly family is a family whose head, spouse, cohead, or sole member is 62 years of age or 
older, and a disabled family is a family whose head, spouse, cohead, or sole member is a person 
with disabilities [24 CFR 5.403]. 

340

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-37

6-II.D. MEDICAL EXPENSES DEDUCTION [24 CFR 5.611(a)(3)(i)] 

Unreimbursed medical expenses may be deducted to the extent that, in combination with any 
disability assistance expenses, they exceed three percent of annual income.  

The medical expense deduction is permitted only for families in which the head, spouse, or 
cohead is at least 62 or is a person with disabilities. If a family is eligible for a medical expense 
deduction, the medical expenses of all family members are counted [VG, p. 28]. 

Definition of Medical Expenses 

HUD regulations define medical expenses at 24 CFR 5.603(b) to mean “medical expenses, 
including medical insurance premiums, that are anticipated during the period for which annual 
income is computed, and that are not covered by insurance.” 

PHA Policy 

The most current IRS Publication 502, Medical and Dental Expenses, will be used as a 
reference to determine the costs that qualify as medical expenses. 

 

Summary of Allowable Medical Expenses from IRS Publication 502 

Services of medical professionals  

Surgery and medical procedures that are 
necessary, legal, noncosmetic  

Services of medical facilities  

Hospitalization, long-term care, and in-
home nursing services 

Prescription medicines and insulin, but 
not nonprescription medicines even if 
recommended by a doctor 

Improvements to housing directly related 
to medical needs (e.g., ramps for a wheel 
chair, handrails) 

Substance abuse treatment programs 

Psychiatric treatment 

Ambulance services and some costs of 
transportation related to medical 
expenses 

The cost and care of necessary 
equipment related to a medical 
condition (e.g., eyeglasses/lenses, 
hearing aids, crutches, and artificial 
teeth) 

Cost and continuing care of necessary 
service animals 

Medical insurance premiums or the cost 
of a health maintenance organization 
(HMO) 

Note: This chart provides a summary of eligible medical expenses only. Detailed 
information is provided in IRS Publication 502. Medical expenses are considered 
only to the extent they are not reimbursed by insurance or some other source. 

341

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-38

Families That Qualify for Both Medical and Disability Assistance Expenses 

PHA Policy 

This policy applies only to families in which the head, spouse, or cohead is 62 or older or 
is a person with disabilities.  

When expenses anticipated by a family could be defined as either medical or disability 
assistance expenses, the PHA will consider them medical expenses unless it is clear that 
the expenses are incurred exclusively to enable a person with disabilities to work. 

342

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-39

6-II.E. DISABILITY ASSISTANCE EXPENSES DEDUCTION [24 CFR 5.603(b) and  
24 CFR 5.611(a)(3)(ii)] 

Reasonable expenses for attendant care and auxiliary apparatus for a disabled family member 
may be deducted if they: (1) are necessary to enable a family member 18 years or older to work, 
(2) are not paid to a family member or reimbursed by an outside source, (3) in combination with 
any medical expenses, exceed three percent of annual income, and (4) do not exceed the earned 
income received by the family member who is enabled to work. 

Earned Income Limit on the Disability Assistance Expense Deduction 

A family can qualify for the disability assistance expense deduction only if at least one family 
member (who may be the person with disabilities) is enabled to work [24 CFR 5.603(b)]. 

The disability expense deduction is capped by the amount of “earned income received by family 
members who are 18 years of age or older and who are able to work” because of the expense [24 
CFR 5.611(a)(3)(ii)]. The earned income used for this purpose is the amount verified before any 
earned income disallowances or income exclusions are applied. 

PHA Policy 

The family must identify the family members enabled to work as a result of the disability 
assistance expenses. In evaluating the family’s request, the PHA will consider factors 
such as how the work schedule of the relevant family members relates to the hours of 
care provided, the time required for transportation, the relationship of the family 
members to the person with disabilities, and any special needs of the person with 
disabilities that might determine which family members are enabled to work. 

When the PHA determines that the disability assistance expenses enable more than one 
family member to work, the expenses will be capped by the sum of the family members’ 
incomes. 

343

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-40

Eligible Disability Expenses 

Examples of auxiliary apparatus are provided in the HCV Guidebook as follows: “Auxiliary 
apparatus are items such as wheelchairs, ramps, adaptations to vehicles, or special equipment to 
enable a blind person to read or type, but only if these items are directly related to permitting the 
disabled person or other family member to work” [HCV GB, p. 5-30].  

HUD advises PHAs to further define and describe auxiliary apparatus [VG, p. 30].  

Eligible Auxiliary Apparatus 

PHA Policy 

Expenses incurred for maintaining or repairing an auxiliary apparatus is eligible. In the 
case of an apparatus that is specially adapted to accommodate a person with disabilities 
(e.g., a vehicle or computer), the cost to maintain the special adaptations (but not 
maintenance of the apparatus itself) is an eligible expense. The cost of service animals 
trained to give assistance to persons with disabilities, including the cost of acquiring the 
animal, veterinary care, food, grooming, and other continuing costs of care, will be 
included. 

Eligible Attendant Care 

The family determines the type of attendant care that is appropriate for the person with 
disabilities. 

PHA Policy 

Attendant care includes, but is not limited to, reasonable costs for home medical care, 
nursing services, in-home or center-based care services, interpreters for persons with 
hearing impairments, and readers for persons with visual disabilities. 

Attendant care expenses will be included for the period that the person enabled to work is 
employed plus reasonable transportation time. The cost of general housekeeping and 
personal services is not an eligible attendant care expense. However, if the person 
enabled to work is the person with disabilities, personal services necessary to enable the 
person with disabilities to work are eligible. 

If the care attendant also provides other services to the family, the PHA will prorate the 
cost and allow only that portion of the expenses attributable to attendant care that enables 
a family member to work. For example, if the care provider also cares for a child who is 
not the person with disabilities, the cost of care must be prorated. Unless otherwise 
specified by the care provider, the calculation will be based upon the number of hours 
spent in each activity and/or the number of persons under care. 

344

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-41

Payments to Family Members 

No disability assistance expenses may be deducted for payments to a member of an assisted 
family [24 CFR 5.603(b)]. However, expenses paid to a relative who is not a member of the 
assisted family may be deducted if they are not reimbursed by an outside source. 

Necessary and Reasonable Expenses 

The family determines the type of care or auxiliary apparatus to be provided and must describe 
how the expenses enable a family member to work. The family must certify that the disability 
assistance expenses are necessary and are not paid or reimbursed by any other source. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA determines the reasonableness of the expenses based on typical costs of care or 
apparatus in the locality. To establish typical costs, the PHA will collect information 
from organizations that provide services and support to persons with disabilities. A 
family may present, and the PHA will consider, the family’s justification for costs that 
exceed typical costs in the area. 

Families That Qualify for Both Medical and Disability Assistance Expenses 

PHA Policy 

This policy applies only to families in which the head or spouse is 62 or older or is a 
person with disabilities. 

When expenses anticipated by a family could be defined as either medical or disability 
assistance expenses, the PHA will consider them medical expenses unless it is clear that 
the expenses are incurred exclusively to enable a person with disabilities to work. 

345

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-42

6-II.F. CHILD CARE EXPENSE DEDUCTION 

HUD defines child care expenses at 24 CFR 5.603(b) as “amounts anticipated to be paid by the 
family for the care of children under 13 years of age during the period for which annual income 
is computed, but only where such care is necessary to enable a family member to actively seek 
employment, be gainfully employed, or to further his or her education and only to the extent such 
amounts are not reimbursed. The amount deducted shall reflect reasonable charges for child care. 
In the case of child care necessary to permit employment, the amount deducted shall not exceed 
the amount of employment income that is included in annual income.” 

Clarifying the Meaning of Child for This Deduction 

Child care expenses do not include child support payments made to another on behalf of a minor 
who is not living in an assisted family’s household [VG, p. 26]. However, child care expenses for 
foster children that are living in the assisted family’s household are included when determining 
the family’s child care expenses [HCV GB, p. 5-29]. 

Qualifying for the Deduction  

Determining Who Is Enabled to Pursue an Eligible Activity 

PHA Policy 

The family must identify the family member(s) enabled to pursue an eligible activity. The 
term eligible activity in this section means any of the activities that may make the family 
eligible for a child care deduction (seeking work, pursuing an education, or being 
gainfully employed). 

In evaluating the family’s request, the PHA will consider factors such as how the 
schedule for the claimed activity relates to the hours of care provided, the time required 
for transportation, the relationship of the family member(s) to the child, and any special 
needs of the child that might help determine which family member is enabled to pursue 
an eligible activity. 

Seeking Work 

PHA Policy 

If the child care expense being claimed is to enable a family member to seek 
employment, the family must provide evidence of the family member’s efforts to obtain 
employment at each reexamination. The deduction may be reduced or denied if the 
family member’s job search efforts are not commensurate with the child care expense 
being allowed by the PHA. 

346

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-43

Furthering Education 

PHA Policy 

If the child care expense being claimed is to enable a family member to further his or her 
education, the member must be enrolled in school (academic or vocational) or 
participating in a formal training program. The family member is not required to be a 
full-time student, but the time spent in educational activities must be commensurate with 
the child care claimed. 

Being Gainfully Employed 

PHA Policy 

If the child care expense being claimed is to enable a family member to be gainfully 
employed, the family must provide evidence of the family member’s employment during 
the time that child care is being provided. Gainful employment is any legal work activity 
(full- or part-time) for which a family member is compensated. 

Earned Income Limit on Child Care Expense Deduction 

When a family member looks for work or furthers his or her education, there is no cap on the 
amount that may be deducted for child care – although the care must still be necessary and 
reasonable. However, when child care enables a family member to work, the deduction is capped 
by “the amount of employment income that is included in annual income” [24 CFR 5.603(b)]. 

The earned income used for this purpose is the amount of earned income verified after any 
earned income disallowances or income exclusions are applied. 

When the person who is enabled to work is a person with disabilities who receives the earned 
income disallowance (EID) or a full-time student whose earned income above $480 is excluded, 
child care costs related to enabling a family member to work may not exceed the portion of the 
person’s earned income that actually is included in annual income. For example, if a family 
member who qualifies for the EID makes $15,000 but because of the EID only $5,000 is 
included in annual income, child care expenses are limited to $5,000. 

The PHA must not limit the deduction to the least expensive type of child care. If the care allows 
the family to pursue more than one eligible activity, including work, the cap is calculated in 
proportion to the amount of time spent working [HCV GB, p. 5-30]. 

PHA Policy 

When the child care expense being claimed is to enable a family member to work, only 
one family member’s income will be considered for a given period of time. When more 
than one family member works during a given period, the PHA generally will limit 
allowable child care expenses to the earned income of the lowest-paid member. The 
family may provide information that supports a request to designate another family 
member as the person enabled to work. 

347

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-44

Eligible Child Care Expenses 

The type of care to be provided is determined by the assisted family. The PHA may not refuse to 
give a family the child care expense deduction because there is an adult family member in the 
household that may be available to provide child care [VG, p. 26]. 

Allowable Child Care Activities 

PHA Policy 

For school-age children, costs attributable to public or private school activities during 
standard school hours are not considered. Expenses incurred for supervised activities 
after school or during school holidays (e.g., summer day camp, after-school sports 
league) are allowable forms of child care. 

The costs of general housekeeping and personal services are not eligible. Likewise, child 
care expenses paid to a family member who lives in the family’s unit are not eligible; 
however, payments for child care to relatives who do not live in the unit are eligible. 

If a child care provider also renders other services to a family or child care is used to 
enable a family member to conduct activities that are not eligible for consideration, the 
PHA will prorate the costs and allow only that portion of the expenses that is attributable 
to child care for eligible activities. For example, if the care provider also cares for a child 
with disabilities who is 13 or older, the cost of care will be prorated. Unless otherwise 
specified by the child care provider, the calculation will be based upon the number of 
hours spent in each activity and/or the number of persons under care. 

Necessary and Reasonable Costs 

Child care expenses will be considered necessary if: (1) a family adequately explains how the 
care enables a family member to work, actively seek employment, or further his or her education, 
and (2) the family certifies, and the child care provider verifies, that the expenses are not paid or 
reimbursed by any other source. 

PHA Policy 

Child care expenses will be considered for the time required for the eligible activity plus 
reasonable transportation time. For child care that enables a family member to go to 
school, the time allowed may include not more than one study hour for each hour spent in 
class. 

To establish the reasonableness of child care costs, the PHA will use the schedule of child 
care costs from a qualified local entity that either subsidizes child care costs or licenses 
child care providers. Families may present, and the PHA will consider, justification for 
costs that exceed typical costs in the area. 

348

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-45

PART III: CALCULATING FAMILY SHARE AND PHA SUBSIDY 

6-III.A. OVERVIEW OF RENT AND SUBSIDY CALCULATIONS 

TTP Formula [24 CFR 5.628] 

HUD regulations specify the formula for calculating the total tenant payment (TTP) for an 
assisted family. TTP is the highest of the following amounts, rounded to the nearest dollar: 

 30 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted income (adjusted income is defined in Part II) 

 10 percent of the family’s monthly gross income (annual income, as defined in Part I, divided 
by 12) 

 The welfare rent (in as-paid states only) 

 A minimum rent between $0 and $50 that is established by the PHA  

The PHA has authority to suspend and exempt families from minimum rent when a financial 
hardship exists, as defined in section 6-III.B. 

The amount that a family pays for rent and utilities (the family share) will never be less than the 
family’s TTP but may be greater than the TTP depending on the rent charged for the unit the 
family selects. 

Welfare Rent [24 CFR 5.628] 

PHA Policy 

Welfare rent does not apply in this locality. 

Minimum Rent [24 CFR 5.630] 

PHA Policy 

The minimum rent for this locality is $0. 

Family Share [24 CFR 982.305(a)(5)] 

If a family chooses a unit with a gross rent (rent to owner plus an allowance for tenant-paid 
utilities) that exceeds the PHA’s applicable payment standard: (1) the family will pay more than 
the TTP, and (2) at initial occupancy the PHA may not approve the tenancy if it would require 
the family share to exceed 40 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted income. The income used 
for this determination must have been verified no earlier than 60 days before the family’s 
voucher was issued. (For a discussion of the application of payment standards, see 
section 6-III.C.) 

349

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-46

PHA Subsidy [24 CFR 982.505(b)] 

The PHA will pay a monthly housing assistance payment (HAP) for a family that is equal to the 
lower of (1) the applicable payment standard for the family minus the family’s TTP or (2) the 
gross rent for the family’s unit minus the TTP. (For a discussion of the application of payment 
standards, see section 6-III.C.) 

Utility Reimbursement [24 CFR 982.514(b); 982.514(c)] 

When the PHA subsidy for a family exceeds the rent to owner, the family is due a utility 
reimbursement. HUD permits the PHA to pay the reimbursement to the family or directly to the 
utility provider. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will make utility reimbursements to the Cedar Falls Utilities. 

The PHA may make all utility reimbursement payments to qualifying families on a monthly 
basis or may make quarterly payments when the monthly reimbursement amount is $15.00 or 
less. Reimbursements must be made once per calendar-year quarter and must be prorated if the 
family leaves the program in advance of its next quarterly reimbursement. The PHA must also 
adopt hardship policies for families for whom receiving quarterly reimbursement would create a 
financial hardship. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will issue all utility reimbursements monthly. 

350

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-47

6-III.B. FINANCIAL HARDSHIPS AFFECTING MINIMUM RENT [24 CFR 5.630] 

PHA Policy 

The financial hardship rules do not apply in this jurisdiction because the PHA has 
established a minimum rent of $0. 

 

351

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-48

6-III.C. APPLYING PAYMENT STANDARDS [24 CFR 982.505; 982.503(b)] 

Overview 

The PHA’s schedule of payment standards is used to calculate housing assistance payments for 
HCV families. This section covers the application of the PHA’s payment standards. The 
establishment and revision of the PHA’s payment standard schedule are covered in Chapter 16. 

Payment standard is defined as “the maximum monthly assistance payment for a family assisted 
in the voucher program (before deducting the total tenant payment by the family)” [24 CFR 
982.4(b)]. 

The payment standard for a family is the lower of (1) the payment standard for the family unit 
size, which is defined as the appropriate number of bedrooms for the family under the PHA’s 
subsidy standards [24 CFR 982.4(b)], or (2) the payment standard for the size of the dwelling 
unit rented by the family. 

If the PHA has established an exception payment standard for a designated part of a zip code 
area or FMR area and a family’s unit is located in the exception area, the PHA must use the 
appropriate payment standard for the exception area. 

The PHA is required to pay a monthly housing assistance payment (HAP) for a family that is the 
lower of (1) the payment standard for the family minus the family’s TTP or (2) the gross rent for 
the family’s unit minus the TTP. 

If during the term of the HAP contract for a family’s unit, the owner lowers the rent, the PHA 
will recalculate the HAP using the lower of the initial payment standard or the gross rent for the 
unit [HCV GB, p. 7-8]. 

Changes in Payment Standards 

When the PHA revises its payment standards during the term of the HAP contract for a family’s 
unit, it will apply the new payment standards in accordance with HUD regulations. 

Decreases 

If a PHA changes its payment standard schedule, resulting in a lower payment standard amount, 
during the term of a HAP contract, the PHA is not required to reduce the payment standard used 
to calculate subsidy for families under HAP contract as long as the HAP contract remains in 
effect [FR Notice 11/16/16]. 

However, if the PHA does choose to reduce the payment standard for families currently under 
HAP contract, the initial reduction to the payment standard may not be applied any earlier than 
the effective date of the family’s second regular reexamination following the effective date of the 
decrease in the payment standard amount. At that point, the PHA may either reduce the payment 
standard to the current amount in effect on the PHA’s payment standard schedule, or may reduce 
the payment standard to another amount that is higher than the normally applicable amount on 
the schedule. The PHA may also establish different policies for designated areas within their 
jurisdiction (e.g., different zip code areas). 

352

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-49

In any case, the PHA must provide the family with at least 12 months’ notice that the payment 
standard is being reduced before the effective date of the change. The PHA’s policy on decreases 
in the payment standard during the term of the HAP contract apply to all families under HAP 
contract at the time of the effective date of the decrease in the payment standard within the 
designated area.  

PHA Policy 

If a PHA changes its payment standard schedule resulting in a lower payment standard 
amount, during the term of a HAP contract, the PHA will not reduce the payment 
standard used to calculate subsidy for families under HAP contract as long as the HAP 
contract remains in effect. 

The PHA will not establish different policies for decreases in the payment standard for 
designated areas within their jurisdiction. 

Increases 

If the payment standard is increased during the term of the HAP contract, the increased payment 
standard will be used to calculate the monthly housing assistance payment for the family 
beginning on the effective date of the family’s first regular reexamination on or after the 
effective date of the increase in the payment standard. 

Families requiring or requesting interim reexaminations will not have their HAP payments 
calculated using the higher payment standard until their next annual reexamination [HCV GB, 
p. 7-8]. 

Changes in Family Unit Size 

Irrespective of any increase or decrease in the payment standard, if the family unit size increases 
or decreases during the HAP contract term, the new family unit size must be used to determine 
the payment standard for the family beginning at the family’s first regular reexamination 
following the change in family unit size. 

Reasonable Accommodation 

If a family requires a higher payment standard as a reasonable accommodation for a family 
member who is a person with disabilities, the PHA is allowed to establish a higher payment 
standard for the family of not more than 120 percent of the published FMR. 

353

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-50

6-III.D. APPLYING UTILITY ALLOWANCES [24 CFR 982.517] 

Overview 

A PHA-established utility allowance schedule is used in determining family share and PHA 
subsidy. A family's utility allowance is determined by the size of dwelling unit leased by a 
family or the voucher unit size for which the family qualifies using PHA subsidy standards, 
whichever is the lower of the two. See Chapter 5 for information on the PHA’s subsidy 
standards. 

For policies on establishing and updating utility allowances, see Chapter 16. 

Reasonable Accommodation 

HCV program regulations require a PHA to approve a utility allowance amount higher than 
shown on the PHA’s schedule if a higher allowance is needed as a reasonable accommodation 
for a family member with a disability. For example, if a family member with a disability requires 
such an accommodation, the PHA will approve an allowance for air-conditioning, even if the 
PHA has determined that an allowance for air-conditioning generally is not needed.  

The family must request the higher allowance and provide the PHA with an explanation of the 
need for the reasonable accommodation and information about the amount of additional 
allowance required [HCV GB, p. 18-8]. 

Utility Allowance Revisions 

At reexamination, the PHA must use the current utility allowance schedule [HCV GB, p. 18-8]. 

PHA Policy 

Revised utility allowances will be applied to a family’s rent and subsidy calculations at 
the first annual reexamination that is effective after the allowance is adopted. 

354

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-51

6-III.E. PRORATED ASSISTANCE FOR MIXED FAMILIES [24 CFR 5.520] 

HUD regulations prohibit assistance to ineligible family members. A mixed family is one that 
includes at least one U.S. citizen or eligible immigrant and any number of ineligible family 
members. The PHA must prorate the assistance provided to a mixed family. The PHA will first 
determine assistance as if all family members were eligible and then prorate the assistance based 
upon the percentage of family members that actually are eligible. For example, if the PHA 
subsidy for a family is calculated at $500 and two of four family members are ineligible, the 
PHA subsidy would be reduced to $250. 

355

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-52

 

356

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-53

EXHIBIT 6-1: ANNUAL INCOME INCLUSIONS 

24 CFR 5.609 

(a) Annual income means all amounts, 
monetary or not, which: 

(1) Go to, or on behalf of, the family head or 
spouse (even if temporarily absent) or to any 
other family member; or 

(2) Are anticipated to be received from a 
source outside the family during the 12-month 
period following admission or annual 
reexamination effective date; and  

(3) Which are not specifically excluded in 
paragraph (c) of this section. 

(4) Annual income also means amounts 
derived (during the 12-month period) from 
assets to which any member of the family has 
access. 

(b) Annual income includes, but is not limited 
to: 

(1) The full amount, before any payroll 
deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime 
pay, commissions, fees, tips and bonuses, and 
other compensation for personal services; 

(2) The net income from the operation of a 
business or profession. Expenditures for 
business expansion or amortization of capital 
indebtedness shall not be used as deductions in 
determining net income. An allowance for 
depreciation of assets used in a business or 
profession may be deducted, based on straight 
line depreciation, as provided in Internal 
Revenue Service regulations. Any withdrawal 
of cash or assets from the operation of a 
business or profession will be included in 
income, except to the extent the withdrawal is 
reimbursement of cash or assets invested in the 
operation by the family; 

(3) Interest, dividends, and other net income of 
any kind from real or personal property. 
Expenditures for amortization of capital 
indebtedness shall not be used as deductions in 
determining net income. An allowance for 
depreciation is permitted only as authorized in 
paragraph (b)(2) of this section. Any 
withdrawal of cash or assets from an 
investment will be included in income, except 
to the extent the withdrawal is reimbursement 
of cash or assets invested by the family. Where 
the family has net family assets in excess of 
$5,000, annual income shall include the 
greater of the actual income derived from all 
net family assets or a percentage of the value 
of such assets based on the current passbook 
savings rate, as determined by HUD; 

(4) The full amount of periodic amounts 
received from Social Security, annuities, 
insurance policies, retirement funds, pensions, 
disability or death benefits, and other similar 
types of periodic receipts, including a lump-
sum amount or prospective monthly amounts 
for the delayed start of a periodic amount 
(except as provided in paragraph (c)(14) of 
this section); 

(5) Payments in lieu of earnings, such as 
unemployment and disability compensation, 
worker's compensation and severance pay 
(except as provided in paragraph (c)(3) of this 
section); 

357

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-54

(6) Welfare assistance payments. 

(i) Welfare assistance payments made under 
the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
(TANF) program are included in annual 
income only to the extent such payments: 

(A) Qualify as assistance under the TANF 
program definition at 45 CFR 260.311; and 

(B) Are not otherwise excluded under 
paragraph (c) of this section. 

(ii) If the welfare assistance payment includes 
an amount specifically designated for shelter 
and utilities that is subject to adjustment by the 
welfare assistance agency in accordance with 
the actual cost of shelter and utilities, the 
amount of welfare assistance income to be 
included as income shall consist of: 

(A) The amount of the allowance or grant 
exclusive of the amount specifically 
designated for shelter or utilities; plus 

(B) The maximum amount that the welfare 
assistance agency could in fact allow the 
family for shelter and utilities. If the family's 
welfare assistance is ratably reduced from the 
standard of need by applying a percentage, the 
amount calculated under this paragraph shall 
be the amount resulting from one application 
of the percentage. 

(7) Periodic and determinable allowances, 
such as alimony and child support payments, 
and regular contributions or gifts received 
from organizations or from persons not 
residing in the dwelling; 

(8) All regular pay, special pay and allowances 
of a member of the Armed Forces (except as 
provided in paragraph (c)(7) of this section) 

                                                 
1 Text of 45 CFR 260.31 follows. 

(9) For section 8 programs only and as 
provided in 24 CFR 5.612, any financial 
assistance, in excess of amounts received for 
tuition, that an individual receives under the 
Higher Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1001 
et seq.), from private sources, or from an 
institution of higher education (as defined 
under the Higher Education Act of 1965 (20 
U.S.C. 1002)), shall be considered income to 
that individual, except that financial assistance 
described in this paragraph is not considered 
annual income for persons over the age of 23 
with dependent children. For purposes of this 
paragraph, “financial assistance” does not 
include loan proceeds for the purpose of 
determining income. 

HHS DEFINITION OF 
"ASSISTANCE" 

45 CFR:  GENERAL TEMPORARY 

ASSISTANCE FOR NEEDY FAMILIES 

260.31  What does the term “assistance” 
mean? 

(a)(1) The term “assistance” includes cash, 
payments, vouchers, and other forms of 
benefits designed to meet a family’s 
ongoing basic needs (i.e., for food, clothing, 
shelter, utilities, household goods, personal 
care items, and general incidental 
expenses). 

(2) It includes such benefits even when they 
are: 

(i) Provided in the form of payments by a 
TANF agency, or other agency on its 
behalf, to individual recipients; and 

(ii) Conditioned on participation in work 
experience or community service (or any 
other work activity under 261.30 of this 
chapter). 

358

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-55

(3) Except where excluded under paragraph 
(b) of this section, it also includes 
supportive services such as transportation 
and child care provided to families who are 
not employed. 

(b) [The definition of “assistance”] 
excludes: (1) Nonrecurrent, short-term 
benefits that: 

(i) Are designed to deal with a specific 
crisis situation or episode of need; 

(ii) Are not intended to meet recurrent or 
ongoing needs; and 

(iii) Will not extend beyond four months. 

(2) Work subsidies (i.e., payments to 
employers or third parties to help cover the 
costs of employee wages, benefits, 
supervision, and training); 

(3) Supportive services such as child care 
and transportation provided to families who 
are employed; 

(4) Refundable earned income tax credits; 

(5) Contributions to, and distributions from, 
Individual Development Accounts; 

(6) Services such as counseling, case 
management, peer support, child care 
information and referral, transitional 
services, job retention, job advancement, 
and other employment-related services that 
do not provide basic income support; and 

(7) Transportation benefits provided under a 
Job Access or Reverse Commute project, 
pursuant to section 404(k) of [the Social 
Security] Act, to an individual who is not 
otherwise receiving assistance. 

 

359

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-56

EXHIBIT 6-2: ANNUAL INCOME EXCLUSIONS 

24 CFR 5.609 

(c) Annual income does not include the 
following: 

(1) Income from employment of children 
(including foster children) under the age of 18 
years; 

(2) Payments received for the care of foster 
children or foster adults (usually persons with 
disabilities, unrelated to the tenant family, who 
are unable to live alone); 

(3) Lump-sum additions to family assets, such 
as inheritances, insurance payments (including 
payments under health and accident insurance 
and worker's compensation), capital gains and 
settlement for personal or property losses 
(except as provided in paragraph (b)(5) of this 
section); 

(4) Amounts received by the family that are 
specifically for, or in reimbursement of, the 
cost of medical expenses for any family 
member; 

(5) Income of a live-in aide, as defined in 
Sec. 5.403; 

(6) Subject to paragraph (b)(9) of this section, 
the full amount of student financial assistance 
paid directly to the student or to the 
educational institution; 

(7) The special pay to a family member 
serving in the Armed Forces who is exposed to 
hostile fire; 

(8) (i) Amounts received under training 
programs funded by HUD; 

(ii) Amounts received by a person with a 
disability that are disregarded for a limited 
time for purposes of Supplemental Security 
Income eligibility and benefits because they 
are set aside for use under a Plan to Attain 
Self-Sufficiency (PASS); 

(iii) Amounts received by a participant in other 
publicly assisted programs which are 
specifically for or in reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses incurred (special equipment, 
clothing, transportation, child care, etc.) and 
which are made solely to allow participation in 
a specific program; 

(iv) Amounts received under a resident service 
stipend. A resident service stipend is a modest 
amount (not to exceed $200 per month) 
received by a resident for performing a service 
for the PHA or owner, on a part-time basis, 
that enhances the quality of life in the 
development. Such services may include, but 
are not limited to, fire patrol, hall monitoring, 
lawn maintenance, resident initiatives 
coordination, and serving as a member of the 
PHA's governing board. No resident may 
receive more than one such stipend during the 
same period of time; 

(v) Incremental earnings and benefits resulting 
to any family member from participation in 
qualifying State or local employment training 
programs (including training programs not 
affiliated with a local government) and 
training of a family member as resident 
management staff. Amounts excluded by this 
provision must be received under employment 
training programs with clearly defined goals 
and objectives, and are excluded only for the 
period during which the family member 
participates in the employment training 
program; 

(9) Temporary, nonrecurring or sporadic 
income (including gifts); 

(10) Reparation payments paid by a foreign 
government pursuant to claims filed under the 
laws of that government by persons who were 
persecuted during the Nazi era; 

360

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-57

(11) Earnings in excess of $480 for each full-
time student 18 years old or older (excluding 
the head of household and spouse); 

(12) Adoption assistance payments in excess 
of $480 per adopted child; 

(13) [Reserved] 

(14) Deferred periodic amounts from 
supplemental security income and social 
security benefits that are received in a lump 
sum amount or in prospective monthly 
amounts, or any deferred Department of Veterans 
Affairs disability benefits that are received in a 
lump sum amount or prospective monthly 
amounts. 

(15) Amounts received by the family in the 
form of refunds or rebates under State or local 
law for property taxes paid on the 
dwelling unit; 

(16) Amounts paid by a State agency to a 
family with a member who has a 
developmental disability and is living at home 
to offset the cost of services and equipment 
needed to keep the developmentally disabled 
family member at home; or 

(17) Amounts specifically excluded by any 
other Federal statute from consideration as 
income for purposes of determining eligibility 
or benefits under a category of assistance 
programs that includes assistance under any 
program to which the exclusions set forth in 24 
CFR 5.609(c) apply. A notice will be 
published in the Federal Register and 
distributed to PHAs and housing owners 
identifying the benefits that qualify for this 
exclusion. Updates will be published and 
distributed when necessary. [See Section 
6-I.M. for a list of benefits that qualify for 
this exclusion.] 

361

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-58

EXHIBIT 6-3: TREATMENT OF FAMILY ASSETS 

24 CFR 5.603(b) Net Family Assets 

(1) Net cash value after deducting reasonable 
costs that would be incurred in disposing of 
real property, savings, stocks, bonds, and other 
forms of capital investment, excluding 
interests in Indian trust land and excluding 
equity accounts in HUD homeownership 
programs. The value of necessary items of 
personal property such as furniture and 
automobiles shall be excluded. 

(2) In cases where a trust fund has been 
established and the trust is not revocable by, or 
under the control of, any member of the family 
or household, the value of the trust fund will 
not be considered an asset so long as the fund 
continues to be held in trust. Any income 
distributed from the trust fund shall be counted 
when determining annual income under Sec. 
5.609. 

(3) In determining net family assets, PHAs or 
owners, as applicable, shall include the value 
of any business or family assets disposed of by 
an applicant or tenant for less than fair market 
value (including a disposition in trust, but not 
in a foreclosure or bankruptcy sale) during the 
two years preceding the date of application for 
the program or reexamination, as applicable, in 
excess of the consideration received therefor. 
In the case of a disposition as part of a 
separation or divorce settlement, the 
disposition will not be considered to be for less 
than fair market value if the applicant or tenant 
receives important consideration not 
measurable in dollar terms. 

(4) For purposes of determining annual income 
under Sec. 5.609, the term "net family assets'' 
does not include the value of a home currently 
being purchased with assistance under part 
982, subpart M of this title. This exclusion is 
limited to the first 10 years after the purchase 
date of the home.

362

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-59

EXHIBIT 6-4: EARNED INCOME DISALLOWANCE FOR PERSONS WITH 
DISABILITIES 

24 CFR 5.617 Self-sufficiency incentives for persons with disabilities–Disallowance of 
increase in annual income. 

(a) Applicable programs. The disallowance of 
earned income provided by this section is 
applicable only to the following programs: 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program (24 

CFR part 92); Housing Opportunities for 
Persons with AIDS (24 CFR part 574); 
Supportive Housing Program (24 CFR part 
583); and the Housing Choice Voucher 
Program (24 CFR part 982).  

(b) Definitions. The following definitions 
apply for purposes of this section. 

Baseline income. The annual income 
immediately prior to implementation of the 
disallowance described in paragraph (c)(1) of 
this section of a person with disabilities (who 
is a member of a qualified family). 

Disallowance. Exclusion from annual income.  

Previously unemployed includes a person with 
disabilities who has earned, in the twelve 
months previous to employment, no more than 
would be received for 10 hours of work per 
week for 50 weeks at the established minimum 
wage.  

Qualified family. A family residing in housing 
assisted under one of the programs listed in 
paragraph (a) of this section or receiving 
tenant-based rental assistance under one of the 
programs listed in paragraph (a) of this 
section.  

(1) Whose annual income increases as a result 
of employment of a family member who is a 
person with disabilities and who was 
previously unemployed for one or more years 
prior to employment;  

(2) Whose annual income increases as a result 
of increased earnings by a family member who 
is a person with disabilities during 
participation in any economic self-sufficiency 
or other job training program; or 

 (3) Whose annual income increases, as a 
result of new employment or increased 
earnings of a family member who is a person 
with disabilities, during or within six months 
after receiving assistance, benefits or services 
under any state program for temporary 
assistance for needy families funded under 
Part A of Title IV of the Social Security Act, 
as determined by the responsible entity in 
consultation with the local agencies 
administering temporary assistance for needy 
families (TANF) and Welfare-to-Work 
(WTW) programs. The TANF program is not 
limited to monthly income maintenance, but 
also includes such benefits and services as 
one-time payments, wage subsidies and 
transportation assistance-- provided that the 
total amount over a six-month period is at least 
$500.  

363

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-60

(c) Disallowance of increase in annual 
income— 

(1) Initial twelve month exclusion. During the 
12-month period beginning on the date a 
member who is a person with disabilities of a 
qualified family is first employed or the family 
first experiences an increase in annual income 
attributable to employment, the responsible 
entity must exclude from annual income (as 
defined in the regulations governing the 
applicable program listed in paragraph (a) of 
this section) of a qualified family any increase 
in income of the family member who is a 
person with disabilities as a result of 
employment over prior income of that family 
member.  

(2) Second twelve month exclusion and phase-
in. Upon expiration of the 12-month period 
defined in paragraph (c)(1) of this section and 
for the subsequent 12-month period, the 
responsible entity must exclude from annual 
income of a qualified family at least 50 percent 
of any increase in income of such family 
member as a result of employment over the 
family member’s baseline income. 

(3) Maximum 2-year disallowance. The 
disallowance of increased income of an 

individual family member who is a person 
with disabilities as provided in paragraph 
(c)(1) or (c)(2) of this section is limited to a 
lifetime 24-month period. The disallowance 
applies for a maximum of 12 months for 
disallowance under paragraph (c)(1) of this 
section and a maximum of 12 months for 
disallowance under paragraph (c)(2) of this 
section, during the 24- month period starting 
from the initial exclusion under paragraph 
(c)(1) of this section. 

(4) Effect of changes on currently 
participating families. Families eligible for 
and participating in the disallowance of earned 
income under this section prior to May 9, 2016 
will continue to be governed by this section in 
effect as it existed immediately prior to that 
date (see 24 CFR parts 0 to 199, revised as of 
April 1, 2016). 

(d) Inapplicability to admission. The 
disallowance of increases in income as a result 
of employment of persons with disabilities 
under this section does not apply for purposes 
of admission to the program (including the 
determination of income eligibility or any 
income targeting that may be applicable).

  

364

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-61

EXHIBIT 6-5: THE EFFECT OF WELFARE BENEFIT REDUCTION 

24 CFR 5.615  

Public housing program and Section 8 tenant-based assistance program: How welfare 
benefit reduction affects family income. 

(a) Applicability. This section applies to 
covered families who reside in public housing 
(part 960 of this title) or receive Section 8 
tenant-based assistance (part 982 of this title). 

(b) Definitions. The following definitions 
apply for purposes of this section: 

Covered families. Families who receive 
welfare assistance or other public assistance 
benefits ("welfare benefits'') from a State or 
other public agency ("welfare agency'') under a 
program for which Federal, State, or local law 
requires that a member of the family must 
participate in an economic self-sufficiency 
program as a condition for such assistance. 

Economic self-sufficiency program. See 
definition at Sec. 5.603. 

Imputed welfare income. The amount of 
annual income not actually received by a 
family, as a result of a specified welfare 
benefit reduction, that is nonetheless included 
in the family's annual income for purposes of 
determining rent. 

Specified welfare benefit reduction. 

(1) A reduction of welfare benefits by the 
welfare agency, in whole or in part, for a 
family member, as determined by the welfare 
agency, because of fraud by a family member 
in connection with the welfare program; or 
because of welfare agency sanction against a 
family member for noncompliance with a 
welfare agency requirement to participate in an 
economic self-sufficiency program. 

(2) "Specified welfare benefit reduction'' does 
not include a reduction or termination of 
welfare benefits by the welfare agency: 

(i) at expiration of a lifetime or other time 
limit on the payment of welfare benefits; 

(ii) because a family member is not able to 
obtain employment, even though the family 
member has complied with welfare agency 
economic self-sufficiency or work activities 
requirements; or 

(iii) because a family member has not 
complied with other welfare agency 
requirements. 

(c) Imputed welfare income. 

(1) A family's annual income includes the 
amount of imputed welfare income (because of 
a specified welfare benefits reduction, as 
specified in notice to the PHA by the welfare 
agency), plus the total amount of other annual 
income as determined in accordance with Sec. 
5.609. 

(2) At the request of the PHA, the welfare 
agency will inform the PHA in writing of the 
amount and term of any specified welfare 
benefit reduction for a family member, and the 
reason for such reduction, and will also inform 
the PHA of any subsequent changes in the 
term or amount of such specified welfare 
benefit reduction. The PHA will use this 
information to determine the amount of 
imputed welfare income for a family. 

(3) A family's annual income includes imputed 
welfare income in family annual income, as 
determined at the PHA's interim or regular 
reexamination of family income and 
composition, during the term of the welfare 
benefits reduction (as specified in information 
provided to the PHA by the welfare agency). 

365

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 6-62

(4) The amount of the imputed welfare income 
is offset by the amount of additional income a 
family receives that commences after the time 
the sanction was imposed. When such 
additional income from other sources is at 
least equal to the imputed  

(5) The PHA may not include imputed welfare 
income in annual income if the family was not 
an assisted resident at the time of sanction. 

(d) Review of PHA decision.  

(1) Public housing. If a public housing tenant 
claims that the PHA has not correctly 
calculated the amount of imputed welfare 
income in accordance with HUD requirements, 
and if the PHA denies the family's request to 
modify such amount, the PHA shall give the 
tenant written notice of such denial, with a 
brief explanation of the basis for the PHA 
determination of the amount of imputed 
welfare income. The PHA notice shall also 
state that if the tenant does not agree with the 
PHA determination, the tenant may request a 
grievance hearing in accordance with part 966, 
subpart B of this title to review the PHA 
determination. The tenant is not required to 
pay an escrow deposit pursuant to Sec. 
966.55(e) for the portion of tenant rent 
attributable to the imputed welfare income in 
order to obtain a grievance hearing on the 
PHA determination. 

(2) Section 8 participant. A participant in the 
Section 8 tenant-based assistance program 
may request an informal hearing, in 
accordance with Sec. 982.555 of this title, to 
review the PHA determination of the amount 
of imputed welfare income that must be 
included in the family's annual income in 
accordance with this section. If the family 
claims that such amount is not correctly 
calculated in accordance with HUD 
requirements, and if the PHA denies the 
family's request to modify such amount, the 
PHA shall give the family written notice of 
such denial, with a brief explanation of the 

basis for the PHA determination of the amount 
of imputed welfare income. Such notice shall 
also state that if the family does not agree with 
the PHA determination, the family may 
request an informal hearing on the 
determination under the PHA hearing 
procedure. 

(e) PHA relation with welfare agency.  

(1) The PHA must ask welfare agencies to 
inform the PHA of any specified welfare 
benefits reduction for a family member, the 
reason for such reduction, the term of any such 
reduction, and any subsequent welfare agency 
determination affecting the amount or term of 
a specified welfare benefits reduction. If the 
welfare agency determines a specified welfare 
benefits reduction for a family member, and 
gives the PHA written notice of such 
reduction, the family's annual incomes shall 
include the imputed welfare income because of 
the specified welfare benefits reduction. 

 (2) The PHA is responsible for determining 
the amount of imputed welfare income that is 
included in the family's annual income as a 
result of a specified welfare benefits reduction 
as determined by the welfare agency, and 
specified in the notice by the welfare agency to 
the PHA. However, the PHA is not responsible 
for determining whether a reduction of welfare 
benefits by the welfare agency was correctly 
determined by the welfare agency in 
accordance with welfare program requirements 
and procedures, nor for providing the 
opportunity for review or hearing on such 
welfare agency determinations. 

 (3) Such welfare agency determinations are 
the responsibility of the welfare agency, and 
the family may seek appeal of such 
determinations through the welfare agency's 
normal due process procedures. The PHA shall 
be entitled to rely on the welfare agency notice 
to the PHA of the welfare agency's 
determination of a specified welfare benefits 
reduction. 

366

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-1

Chapter 7 

VERIFICATION 
[24 CFR 982.516, 24 CFR 982.551, 24 CFR 5.230, Notice PIH 2018-18] 

INTRODUCTION 

The PHA must verify all information that is used to establish the family’s eligibility and level of 
assistance and is required to obtain written authorization from the family in order to collect the 
information. Applicants and program participants must cooperate with the verification process as 
a condition of receiving assistance. The PHA must not pass on the cost of verification to the 
family. 

The PHA will follow the verification guidance provided by HUD in Notice PIH 2018-18 and any 
subsequent guidance issued by HUD. This chapter summarizes those requirements and provides 
supplementary PHA policies. 

Part I describes the general verification process. Part II provides more detailed requirements 
related to family information. Part III provides information on income and assets, and Part IV 
covers mandatory deductions. 

Verification policies, rules and procedures will be modified as needed to accommodate persons 
with disabilities. All information obtained through the verification process will be handled in 
accordance with the records management policies of the PHA. 

PART I: GENERAL VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

7-I.A. FAMILY CONSENT TO RELEASE OF INFORMATION [24 CFR 982.516 AND 
982.551, 24 CFR 5.230] 

The family must supply any information that the PHA or HUD determines is necessary to the 
administration of the program and must consent to PHA verification of that information [24 CFR 
982.551]. 

Consent Forms 

It is required that all adult applicants and participants sign form HUD-9886, Authorization for 
Release of Information. The purpose of form HUD-9886 is to facilitate automated data collection 
and computer matching from specific sources and provides the family's consent only for the 
specific purposes listed on the form. HUD and the PHA may collect information from State 
Wage Information Collection Agencies (SWICAs) and current and former employers of adult 
family members. Only HUD is authorized to collect information directly from the Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS) and the Social Security Administration (SSA). Adult family members 
must sign other consent forms as needed to collect information relevant to the family’s eligibility 
and level of assistance. 

Penalties for Failing to Consent [24 CFR 5.232] 

If any family member who is required to sign a consent form fails to do so, the PHA will deny 
admission to applicants and terminate assistance of participants. The family may request an 
informal review (applicants) or informal hearing (participants) in accordance with PHA 
procedures. 

367

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-2

7-I.B. OVERVIEW OF VERIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

HUD’s Verification Hierarchy [Notice PIH 2018-18] 

HUD mandates the use of the EIV system and offers administrative guidance on the use of other 
methods to verify family information and specifies the circumstances in which each method will 
be used. In general HUD requires the PHA to use the most reliable form of verification that is 
available and to document the reasons when the PHA uses a lesser form of verification.  

In order of priority, the forms of verification that the PHA will use are: 

 Up-front Income Verification (UIV) using HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) 
system  

 Up-front Income Verification (UIV) using a non-HUD system 

 Written Third-Party Verification (may be provided by applicant or participant) 

 Written Third-party Verification Form 

 Oral Third-party Verification 

 Self-Certification 

Each of the verification methods is discussed in subsequent sections below. 

Requirements for Acceptable Documents 

PHA Policy 

Any documents used for verification must be the original (not photocopies) and generally 
must be dated within 60 days of the PHA request. The documents must not be damaged, 
altered or in any way illegible. Families may upload their documents to the Assistance 
Check website; send an email or picture of the document. 

Print-outs from Web pages are considered original documents. 

 

368

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-3

File Documentation 

The PHA must document in the file how the figures used in income and rent calculations were 
determined. All verification attempts, information obtained, and decisions reached during the 
verification process will be recorded in the family’s file in sufficient detail to demonstrate that 
the PHA has followed all of the verification policies set forth in this plan. The record should be 
sufficient to enable a staff member or HUD reviewer to understand the process followed and 
conclusions reached. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will document, in the family file, the following: 

Reported family annual income 

Value of assets 

Expenses related to deductions from annual income 

Other factors influencing adjusted income 

When the PHA is unable to obtain third-party verification, the PHA will document in the family 
file the reason that third-party verification was not available [24 CFR 982.516(a)(2); Notice 
PIH 2018-18]. 

7-I.C. UP-FRONT INCOME VERIFICATION (UIV)  

Up-front income verification (UIV) refers to the PHA’s use of the verification tools available 
from independent sources that maintain computerized information about earnings and benefits. 
UIV will be used to the extent that these systems are available to the PHA.  

There may be legitimate differences between the information provided by the family and UIV-
generated information. If the family disputes the accuracy of UIV data, no adverse action can be 
taken until the PHA has independently verified the UIV information and the family has been 
granted an opportunity to contest any adverse findings through the informal review/hearing 
process of the PHA. 

See Chapter 6 for the PHA’s policy on the use of UIV/EIV to project annual income. 

369

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-4

Upfront Income Verification Using HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) System 
(Mandatory) 

PHAs must use HUD’s EIV system in its entirety as a third-party source to verify tenant 
employment and income information during mandatory reexaminations or recertifications of 
family composition and income in accordance with 24 CFR 5.236 and administrative guidance 
issued by HUD. The EIV system contains data showing earned income, unemployment benefits, 
social security benefits, and SSI benefits for participant families. The following policies apply to 
the use of HUD’s EIV system. 

EIV Income and IVT Reports 

The data shown on income and income validation tool (IVT) reports is updated quarterly. Data 
may be between 3 and 6 months old at the time reports are generated. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will obtain income and IVT reports for annual reexaminations on a monthly 
basis. Reports will be generated as part of the regular reexamination process. 

Income and IVT reports will be compared to family-provided information as part of the 
annual reexamination process. Income reports may be used in the calculation of annual 
income, as described in Chapter 6-I.C. Income reports may also be used to meet the 
regulatory requirement for third party verification, as described above. Policies for 
resolving discrepancies between income reports and family-provided information will be 
resolved as described in Chapter 6-I.C. and in this chapter. 

Income and IVT reports will be used in interim reexaminations to identify any 
discrepancies between reported income and income shown in the EIV system, and as 
necessary to verify earned income, and to verify and calculate unemployment benefits, 
Social Security and/or SSI benefits. EIV will also be used to verify that families claiming 
zero income are not receiving income from any of these sources. 

Income and IVT reports will be retained in participant files with the applicable annual or 
interim reexamination documents. 

When the PHA determines through EIV reports and third-party verification that a family 
has concealed or under-reported income, corrective action will be taken pursuant to the 
policies in Chapter 14, Program Integrity. 

370

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-5

EIV Identity Verification 

The EIV system verifies tenant identities against SSA records. These records are compared to 
PIC data for a match on social security number, name, and date of birth. 

PHAs are required to use EIV’s Identity Verification Report on a monthly basis to improve the 
availability of income information in EIV [Notice PIH 2018-18]. 

When identity verification for a participant fails, a message will be displayed within the EIV 
system and no income information will be displayed. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will identify participants whose identity verification has failed by reviewing 
EIV’s Identity Verification Report on a monthly basis. 

The PHA will attempt to resolve PIC/SSA discrepancies by obtaining appropriate 
documentation from the participant. When the PHA determines that discrepancies exist 
due to PHA errors such as spelling errors or incorrect birth dates, the errors will be 
corrected promptly. 

Upfront Income Verification Using Non-HUD Systems (Optional) 

In addition to mandatory use of the EIV system, HUD encourages PHAs to utilize other upfront 
verification sources.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will inform all applicants and participants of its use of the following UIV 
resources during the admission and reexamination process: 

HUD’s EIV system  

 

 

371

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-6

7-I.D. THIRD-PARTY WRITTEN AND ORAL VERIFICATION  

HUD’s current verification hierarchy defines two types of written third-party verification. The 
more preferable form, “written third-party verification,” consists of an original document 
generated by a third-party source, which may be received directly from a third-party source or 
provided to the PHA by the family. If written third-party verification is not available, the PHA 
must attempt to obtain a “written third-party verification form.” This is a standardized form used 
to collect information from a third party. 

Written Third-Party Verification [Notice PIH 2018-18] 

Written third-party verification documents must be original and authentic and may be supplied 
by the family or received from a third-party source. 

Examples of acceptable tenant-provided documents include, but are not limited to: pay stubs, 
payroll summary reports, employer notice or letters of hire and termination, SSA benefit 
verification letters, bank statements, child support payment stubs, welfare benefit letters and/or 
printouts, and unemployment monetary benefit notices.  

The PHA is required to obtain, at minimum, two current and consecutive pay stubs for 
determining annual income from wages.  

The PHA may reject documentation provided by the family if the document is not an original, if 
the document appears to be forged, or if the document is altered, mutilated, or illegible. 

PHA Policy 

Third-party documents provided by the family must be dated within 60 days of the PHA 
request date. 

If the PHA determines that third-party documents provided by the family are not 
acceptable, the PHA will explain the reason to the family and request additional 
documentation. 

As verification of earned income, the PHA will require the family to provide the two 
most current, consecutive pay stubs. At the PHA’s discretion, if additional paystubs are 
needed due to the family’s circumstances (e.g., sporadic income, fluctuating schedule, 
etc.), the PHA may request additional paystubs or a payroll record. 

372

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-7

Written Third-Party Verification Form 

When upfront verification is not available and the family is unable to provide written third-party 
documents, the PHA must request a written third-party verification form. HUD’s position is that 
this traditional third-party verification method presents administrative burdens and risks which 
may be reduced through the use of family-provided third-party documents. 

PHAs may mail, fax, or email third-party written verification form requests to third-party 
sources. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will send third-party verification forms directly to the third party. 

Third-party verification forms will be sent when third-party verification documents are 
unavailable or are rejected by the PHA. 

Oral Third-Party Verification [Notice PIH 2018-18] 

For third-party oral verification, PHAs contact sources, identified by UIV techniques or by the 
family, by telephone or in person.  

Oral third-party verification is mandatory if neither form of written third-party verification is 
available. 

Third-party oral verification may be used when requests for written third-party verification forms 
have not been returned within a reasonable time—e.g., 10 business days.  

PHAs should document in the file the date and time of the telephone call or visit, the name of the 
person contacted, the telephone number, as well as the information confirmed.  

PHA Policy 

In collecting third-party oral verification, PHA staff will record in the family’s file the 
name and title of the person contacted, the date and time of the conversation (or attempt), 
the telephone number used, and the facts provided.  

When any source responds verbally to the initial written request for verification the PHA 
will accept the verbal response as oral verification but will also request that the source 
complete and return any verification forms that were provided. 

373

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-8

When Third-Party Verification is Not Required [Notice PIH 2018-18] 

Third-party verification may not be available in all situations. HUD has acknowledged that it 
may not be cost-effective or reasonable to obtain third-party verification of income, assets, or 
expenses when these items would have a minimal impact on the family’s total tenant payment. 

PHA Policy 

If the family cannot provide original documents, the PHA will pay the service charge 
required to obtain third-party verification, unless it is not cost effective in which case a 
self-certification will be acceptable as the only means of verification. The cost of 
verification will not be passed on to the family. 

The cost of postage and envelopes to obtain third-party verification of income, assets, and 
expenses is not an unreasonable cost [VG, p. 18]. 

Primary Documents 

Third-party verification is not required when legal documents are the primary source, such as a 
birth certificate or other legal documentation of birth. 

Imputed Assets  

HUD permits PHAs to accept a self-certification from a family as verification of assets disposed 
of for less than fair market value [HCV GB, p. 5-28]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will accept a self-certification from a family as verification of assets disposed 
of for less than fair market value. 

Value of Assets and Asset Income [24 CFR 982.516(a)] 

For families with net assets totaling $5,000 or less, the PHA may accept the family’s declaration 
of asset value and anticipated asset income. However, the PHA is required to obtain third-party 
verification of all assets regardless of the amount during the intake process and at least every 
three years thereafter. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will obtain third-party verification of all assets regardless of the amount. 

374

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-9

7-I.E. SELF-CERTIFICATION 

When HUD requires third-party verification, self-certification or “tenant declaration,” is used as 
a last resort when the PHA is unable to obtain third-party verification. 

Self-certification, however, is an acceptable form of verification when: 

 A source of income is fully excluded 

 Net family assets total $5,000 or less and the PHA has adopted a policy to accept self 
certification at annual recertification, when applicable 

 The PHA has adopted a policy to implement streamlined annual recertifications for fixed 
sources of income (See Chapter 11) 

When the PHA was required to obtain third-party verification but instead relies on a tenant 
declaration for verification of income, assets, or expenses, the family’s file must be documented 
to explain why third-party verification was not available. 

PHA Policy 

When information cannot be verified by a third party or by review of documents, family 
members will be required to submit self-certifications attesting to the accuracy of the 
information they have provided to the PHA. 

The PHA may require a family to certify that a family member does not receive a 
particular type of income or benefit. 

The self-certification must be made in a format acceptable to the PHA and must be 
signed by the family member whose information or status is being verified.  

375

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-10
376

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-11

PART II: VERIFYING FAMILY INFORMATION 

7-II.A. VERIFICATION OF LEGAL IDENTITY 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will require families to furnish verification of legal identity for each household 
member. 

Verification of Legal Identity for Adults 

Current, valid driver's license or Department of Motor Vehicles identification card 

Certificate of birth, naturalization papers 

Church issued baptismal certificate 

U.S. military discharge (DD 214) 

Current U.S. passport 

Current government employer identification card with picture 

If a document submitted by a family is illegible for any reason or otherwise questionable, 
more than one of these documents may be required. 

If none of these documents can be provided and at the PHA’s discretion, a third party 
who knows the person may attest to the person’s identity. The certification must be 
provided in a format acceptable to the PHA and be signed in the presence of a PHA 
representative or PHA notary public.  

Legal identity will be verified for all applicants at the time of eligibility determination 
and in cases where the PHA has reason to doubt the identity of a person representing him 
or herself to be a participant. 

377

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-12

7-II.B. SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBERS [24 CFR 5.216, Notice PIH 2018-24] 

The family must provide documentation of a valid social security number (SSN) for each 
member of the household, with the exception of individuals who do not contend eligible 
immigration status. Exemptions also include, existing program participants who were at least 62 
years of age as of January 31, 2010, and had not previously disclosed an SSN.  

Note that an individual who previously declared to have eligible immigration status may not 
change his or her declaration for the purpose of avoiding compliance with the SSN disclosure 
and documentation requirements or penalties associated with noncompliance with these 
requirements. Nor may the head of household opt to remove a household member from the 
family composition for this purpose. 

The PHA must accept the following documentation as acceptable evidence of the social security 
number:  

 An original SSN card issued by the Social Security Administration (SSA) 

 An original SSA-issued document, which contains the name and SSN of the individual 

 An original document issued by a federal, state, or local government agency, which contains 
the name and SSN of the individual 

The PHA may only reject documentation of an SSN provided by an applicant or participant if the 
document is not an original document or if the original document has been altered, mutilated, is 
illegible, or appears to be forged.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will explain to the applicant or participant the reasons the document is not 
acceptable and request that the individual obtain and submit acceptable documentation of 
the SSN to the PHA within 90 days.  

In the case of Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy (SRO) individuals, the required 
documentation must be provided within 90 calendar days from the date of admission into the 
program. The PHA must grant one additional 90-day extension if it determines that the 
applicant’s failure to comply was due to circumstances that were beyond the applicant’s control 
and could not have been reasonably foreseen.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will grant one additional 90-day extension if needed for reasons beyond the 
participant’s control such as delayed processing of the SSN application by the SSA, 
natural disaster, fire, death in the family, or other emergency. If the individual fails to 
comply with SSN disclosure and documentation requirements upon expiration of the 
provided time period, the PHA will terminate the individual’s assistance. 

378

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-13

If an applicant family includes a child less than 6 years of age who joined the household within 
the 6 months prior to the date of voucher issuance, an otherwise eligible family may be admitted 
to the program and the family must provide documentation of the child’s SSN within 90 days of 
the effective date of the initial HAP contract. A 90-day extension will be granted if the PHA 
determines that the participant’s failure to comply was due to unforeseen circumstances and was 
outside of the participant’s control. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will grant one additional 90-day extension if needed for reasons beyond the 
applicant’s control, such as delayed processing of the SSN application by the SSA, 
natural disaster, fire, death in the family, or other emergency.  

When a participant requests to add a new household member who is at least 6 years of age, or 
who is under the age of 6 and has an SSN, the participant must provide the complete and 
accurate SSN assigned to each new member at the time of reexamination or recertification, in 
addition to the documentation required to verify it. The PHA may not add the new household 
member until such documentation is provided.  

When a participant requests to add a new household member who is under the age of 6 and has 
not been assigned an SSN, the participant must provide the SSN assigned to each new child and 
the required documentation within 90 calendar days of the child being added to the household. A 
90-day extension will be granted if the PHA determines that the participant’s failure to comply 
was due to unforeseen circumstances and was outside of the participant’s control. During the 
period the PHA is awaiting documentation of the SSN, the child will be counted as part of the 
assisted household. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will grant one additional 90-day extension if needed for reasons beyond the 
participant’s control such as delayed processing of the SSN application by the SSA, 
natural disaster, fire, death in the family, or other emergency. 

Social security numbers must be verified only once during continuously-assisted occupancy. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will verify each disclosed SSN by: 

Obtaining documentation from applicants and participants that is acceptable as 
evidence of social security numbers 

Making a copy of the original documentation submitted, returning it to the 
individual, and retaining a copy in the file folder 

379

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-14

Once the individual’s verification status is classified as “verified,” the PHA may, at its 
discretion, remove and destroy copies of documentation accepted as evidence of social security 
numbers. The retention of the EIV Summary Report or Income Report is adequate 
documentation of an individual’s SSN. 

PHA Policy 

Once an individual’s status is classified as “verified” in HUD’s EIV system, the PHA 
will remove and destroy copies of documentation accepted as evidence of social security 
numbers. 

7-II.C. DOCUMENTATION OF AGE 

A birth certificate or other official record of birth is the preferred form of age verification for all 
family members. For elderly family members an original document that provides evidence of the 
receipt of social security retirement benefits is acceptable.  

PHA Policy 

If an official record of birth or evidence of social security retirement benefits cannot be 
provided, the PHA will require the family to submit other documents that support the 
reported age of the family member (e.g., school records, driver's license if birth year is 
recorded) and to provide a self-certification.   

Age must be verified only once during continuously-assisted occupancy. 

7-II.D. FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS 

Applicants and program participants are required to identify the relationship of each household 
member to the head of household. Definitions of the primary household relationships are 
provided in the Eligibility chapter.  

PHA Policy 

Family relationships are verified only to the extent necessary to determine a family’s 
eligibility and level of assistance. Certification by the head of household normally is 
sufficient verification of family relationships.  

Marriage 

PHA Policy 

Certification by the head of household is normally sufficient verification. If the PHA has 
reasonable doubts about a marital relationship, the PHA will require the family to 
document the marriage.  

A marriage certificate generally is required to verify that a couple is married.  

In the case of a common law marriage, the couple must demonstrate that they hold 
themselves to be married (e.g., by telling the community they are married, calling each 
other husband and wife, using the same last name, filing joint income tax returns). 

380

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-15

Separation or Divorce 

PHA Policy 

Certification by the head of household is normally sufficient verification. If the PHA has 
reasonable doubts about a separation or divorce, the PHA will require the family to 
provide documentation of the divorce or separation.  

A certified copy of a divorce decree, signed by a court officer, is required to document 
that a couple is divorced. 

A copy of a court-ordered maintenance or other court record is required to document a 
separation. 

If no court document is available, documentation from a community-based agency will 
be accepted. 

Absence of Adult Member 

PHA Policy 

If an adult member who was formerly a member of the household is reported to be 
permanently absent, the family must provide evidence to support that the person is no 
longer a member of the family (e.g., documentation of another address at which the 
person resides such as a lease or utility bill). 

Foster Children and Foster Adults 

PHA Policy 

Third-party verification from the state or local government agency responsible for the 
placement of the individual with the family is required. 

381

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-16

7-II.E. VERIFICATION OF STUDENT STATUS 

General Requirements 

PHA Policy 

The PHA requires families to provide information about the student status of all students 
who are 18 years of age or older. This information will be verified only if:  

The family reports full-time student status for an adult other than the head, 
spouse, or cohead. 

The family reports child care expenses to enable a family member to further his or 
her education. 

The family includes a student enrolled in an institution of higher education. 

Restrictions on Assistance to Students Enrolled in Institutions of Higher Education 

This section applies only to students who are seeking assistance on their own, separately from 
their parents. It does not apply to students residing with parents who are seeking or receiving 
HCV assistance. 

PHA Policy 

In accordance with the verification hierarchy described in section 7-1.B, the PHA will 
determine whether the student is exempt from the restrictions in 24 CFR 5.612 by 
verifying any one of the following exemption criteria: 

The student is enrolled at an educational institution that does not meet the 
definition of institution of higher education in the Higher Education Act of 1965 
(see section Exhibit 3-2). 

The student is at least 24 years old. 

The student is a veteran, as defined in section 3-II.E. 

The student is married. 

The student has at least one dependent child, as defined in section 3-II.E. 

The student is a person with disabilities, as defined in section 3-II.E, and was 
receiving assistance prior to November 30, 2005. 

If the PHA cannot verify at least one of these exemption criteria, the PHA will conclude 
that the student is subject to the restrictions on assistance at 24 CFR 5.612. In addition to 
verifying the student’s income eligibility, the PHA will then proceed to verify either the 
student’s parents’ income eligibility (see section 7-III.J) or the student’s independence 
from his/her parents (see below). 

382

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-17

Independent Student 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will verify a student’s independence from his/her parents to determine that the 
student’s parents’ income is not relevant for determining the student’s eligibility by doing 
all of the following: 

Either reviewing and verifying previous address information to determine whether 
the student has established a household separate from his/her parents for at least 
one year, or reviewing and verifying documentation relevant to determining 
whether the student meets the U.S. Department of Education’s definition of 
independent student (see section 3-II.E) 

Reviewing the student’s prior year income tax returns to verify the student is 
independent or verifying the student meets the U.S. Department of Education’s 
definition of independent student (see section 3-II.E) 

Requesting and obtaining written certification directly from the student’s parents 
identifying the amount of support they will be providing to the student, even if the 
amount of support is $0, except in cases in which the PHA determines that the 
student is a vulnerable youth (see section 3-II.E) 

7-II.F. DOCUMENTATION OF DISABILITY 

The PHA must verify the existence of a disability in order to allow certain income disallowances 
and deductions from income. The PHA is not permitted to inquire about the nature or extent of a 
person’s disability [24 CFR 100.202(c)]. The PHA may not inquire about a person’s diagnosis or 
details of treatment for a disability or medical condition. If the PHA receives a verification 
document that provides such information, the PHA will not place this information in the tenant 
file. Under no circumstances will the PHA request a participant’s medical record(s). For more 
information on health care privacy laws, see the Department of Health and Human Services’ 
website at http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/privacy/. 

The above cited regulation does not prohibit the following inquiries, provided these inquiries are 
made of all applicants, whether or not they are persons with disabilities [VG, p. 24]: 

 Inquiry into an applicant’s ability to meet the requirements of ownership or tenancy 

 Inquiry to determine whether an applicant is qualified for a dwelling available only to 
persons with disabilities or to persons with a particular type of disability 

 Inquiry to determine whether an applicant for a dwelling is qualified for a priority available 
to persons with disabilities or to persons with a particular type of disability 

 Inquiring whether an applicant for a dwelling is a current illegal abuser or addict of a 
controlled substance 

 Inquiring whether an applicant has been convicted of the illegal manufacture or distribution 
of a controlled substance 

383

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-18

Family Members Receiving SSA Disability Benefits 

Verification of the receipt of disability benefits from the Social Security Administration (SSA) is 
sufficient verification of disability for the purpose of qualifying for waiting list preferences (if 
applicable) or certain income disallowances and deductions [VG, p. 23]. 

PHA Policy 

For family members claiming disability who receive disability benefits from the SSA, the 
PHA will attempt to obtain information about disability benefits through the HUD 
Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) system. If documentation from HUD’s EIV System 
is not available, the PHA will request a current (dated within the last 60 days) SSA 
benefit verification letter from each family member claiming disability status. If the 
family is unable to provide the document(s), the PHA will ask the family to request a 
benefit verification letter by either calling SSA at 1-800-772-1213, or by requesting it 
from www.ssa.gov. Once the applicant or participant receives the benefit verification 
letter they will be required to provide it to the PHA. 

Family Members Not Receiving SSA Disability Benefits 

Receipt of veteran’s disability benefits, worker’s compensation, or other non-SSA benefits based 
on the individual’s claimed disability are not sufficient verification that the individual meets 
HUD’s definition of disability in 24 CFR 5.403. 

PHA Policy 

For family members claiming disability who do not receive disability benefits from the 
SSA, a knowledgeable professional must provide third-party verification that the family 
member meets the HUD definition of disability. See the Eligibility chapter for the HUD 
definition of disability. The knowledgeable professional will verify whether the family 
member does or does not meet the HUD definition.  

384

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-19

7-II.G. CITIZENSHIP OR ELIGIBLE IMMIGRATION STATUS [24 CFR 5.508] 

Overview 

Housing assistance is not available to persons who are not citizens, nationals, or eligible 
immigrants. Prorated assistance is provided for "mixed families" containing both eligible and 
ineligible persons. A detailed discussion of eligibility requirements is in the Eligibility chapter. 
This verifications chapter discusses HUD and PHA verification requirements related to 
citizenship status. 

The family must provide a certification that identifies each family member as a U.S. citizen, a 
U.S. national, an eligible noncitizen or an ineligible noncitizen and submit the documents 
discussed below for each family member. Once eligibility to receive assistance has been verified 
for an individual it need not be collected or verified again during continuously-assisted 
occupancy. [24 CFR 5.508(g)(5)] 

U.S. Citizens and Nationals 

HUD requires a declaration for each family member who claims to be a U.S. citizen or national. 
The declaration must be signed personally by any family member 18 or older and by a guardian 
for minors. 

The PHA may request verification of the declaration by requiring presentation of a birth 
certificate, United States passport or other appropriate documentation. 

PHA Policy 

Family members who claim U.S. citizenship or national status will not be required to 
provide additional documentation unless the PHA receives information indicating that an 
individual’s declaration may not be accurate. 

385

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-20

Eligible Immigrants 

Documents Required 

All family members claiming eligible immigration status must declare their status in the same 
manner as U.S. citizens and nationals. 

The documentation required for eligible noncitizens varies depending upon factors such as the 
date the person entered the U.S., the conditions under which eligible immigration status has been 
granted, age, and the date on which the family began receiving HUD-funded assistance. Exhibit 
7-1 at the end of this chapter summarizes documents family members must provide.  

PHA Verification [HCV GB, pp. 5-3 and 5-7] 

For family members age 62 or older who claim to be eligible immigrants, proof of age is 
required in the manner described in 7-II.C. of this plan. No further verification of eligible 
immigration status is required. 

For family members under the age of 62 who claim to be eligible immigrants, the PHA must 
verify immigration status with the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS).  

The PHA will follow all USCIS protocols for verification of eligible immigration status.  

7-II.H. VERIFICATION OF PREFERENCE STATUS 

The PHA must verify any preferences claimed by an applicant that determined placement on the 
waiting list. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will offer a preference to any family that has been terminated from its HCV 
program due to insufficient program funding. The PHA will verify this preference using 
the PHA’s termination records. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

386

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-21

PART III: VERIFYING INCOME AND ASSETS 

Chapter 6, Part I of this plan describes in detail the types of income that are included and 
excluded and how assets and income from assets are handled. Any assets and income reported by 
the family must be verified. This part provides PHA policies that supplement the general 
verification procedures specified in Part I of this chapter.  

7-III.A. EARNED INCOME 

Tips 

PHA Policy 

Unless tip income is included in a family member’s W-2 by the employer, persons who 
work in industries where tips are standard will be required to sign a certified estimate of 
tips received for the prior year and tips anticipated to be received in the coming year.  

Wages 

PHA Policy 

For wages other than tips, the family must provide originals of the two most current, 
consecutive pay stubs. 

7-III.B. BUSINESS AND SELF EMPLOYMENT INCOME  

PHA Policy 

Business owners and self-employed persons will be required to provide:  

An audited financial statement for the previous fiscal year if an audit was 
conducted. If an audit was not conducted, a statement of income and expenses 
must be submitted and the business owner or self-employed person must certify to 
its accuracy.  

All schedules completed for filing federal and local taxes in the preceding year. 

If accelerated depreciation was used on the tax return or financial statement, an 
accountant's calculation of depreciation expense, computed using straight-line 
depreciation rules. 

The PHA will provide a format for any person who is unable to provide such a statement 
to record income and expenses for the coming year. The business owner/self-employed 
person will be required to submit the information requested and to certify to its accuracy 
at all future reexaminations. 

At any reexamination the PHA may request documents that support submitted financial 
statements such as manifests, appointment books, cash books, or bank statements. 

If a family member has been self-employed less than three (3) months, the PHA will 
accept the family member's certified estimate of income and schedule an interim 
reexamination in three (3) months. If the family member has been self-employed for three 
(3) to twelve (12) months the PHA will require the family to provide documentation of 
income and expenses for this period and use that information to project income. 

387

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-22

7-III.C. PERIODIC PAYMENTS AND PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF EARNINGS 

For policies governing streamlined income determinations for fixed sources of income, please 
see Chapter 11. 

Social Security/SSI Benefits 

PHA Policy 

To verify the SS/SSI benefits of applicants, the PHA will request a current (dated within 
the last 60 days) SSA benefit verification letter from each family member that receives 
social security benefits. If the family is unable to provide the document(s), the PHA will 
help the applicant request a benefit verification letter from SSA’s Web site at 
www.ssa.gov or ask the family to request one by calling SSA at  
1-800-772-1213. Once the applicant has received the benefit verification letter they will 
be required to provide it to the PHA. 

To verify the SS/SSI benefits of participants, the PHA will obtain information about 
social security/SSI benefits through the HUD EIV System, and confirm with the 
participant(s) that the current listed benefit amount is correct. If the participant disputes 
the EIV-reported benefit amount, or if benefit information is not available in HUD 
systems, the PHA will request a current SSA benefit verification letter from each family 
member that receives social security benefits. If the family is unable to provide the 
document(s) the PHA will help the participant request a benefit verification letter from 
SSA’s Web site at www.ssa.gov or ask the family to request one by calling SSA at 1-800-
772-1213. Once the participant has received the benefit verification letter they will be 
required to provide it to the PHA. 

388

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-23

7-III.D. ALIMONY OR CHILD SUPPORT 

PHA Policy 

The methods the PHA will use to verify alimony and child support payments differ 
depending on whether the family declares that it receives regular payments.  

If the family declares that it receives regular payments, verification will be 
obtained in the following order of priority: 

Copies of the receipts and/or payment stubs for the 60 days prior to PHA 
request 

Third-party verification form from the state or local child support 
enforcement agency 

Third-party verification form from the person paying the support  

Family's self-certification of amount received  

If the family declares that it receives irregular or no payments, in addition to the 
verification process listed above, the family must provide evidence that it has 
taken all reasonable efforts to collect amounts due. This may include: 

A statement from any agency responsible for enforcing payment that 
shows the family has requested enforcement and is cooperating with all 
enforcement efforts 

If the family has made independent efforts at collection, a written 
statement from the attorney or other collection entity that has assisted the 
family in these efforts  

Note: Families are not required to undertake independent enforcement action. 

389

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-24

7-III.E. ASSETS AND INCOME FROM ASSETS 

Assets Disposed of for Less than Fair Market Value 

The family must certify whether any assets have been disposed of for less than fair market value 
in the preceding two years. The PHA needs to verify only those certifications that warrant 
documentation [HCV GB, p. 5-28]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will verify the value of assets disposed of only if:  

The PHA does not already have a reasonable estimation of its value from 
previously collected information, or  

The amount reported by the family in the certification appears obviously in error. 

Example 1: An elderly participant reported a $10,000 certificate of deposit at the last 
annual reexamination and the PHA verified this amount. Now the person reports that she 
has given this $10,000 to her son. The PHA has a reasonable estimate of the value of the 
asset; therefore, reverification of the value of the asset is not necessary. 

Example 2: A family member has disposed of its 1/4 share of real property located in a 
desirable area and has valued her share at approximately $5,000. Based upon market 
conditions, this declaration does not seem realistic. Therefore, the PHA will verify the 
value of this asset. 

7-III.F. NET INCOME FROM RENTAL PROPERTY 

PHA Policy 

The family must provide: 

A current executed lease for the property that shows the rental amount or 
certification from the current tenant 

A self-certification from the family members engaged in the rental of property 
providing an estimate of expenses for the coming year and the most recent IRS 
Form 1040 with Schedule E (Rental Income). 

If schedule E was not prepared, the PHA will require the family members 
involved in the rental of property to provide a self-certification of income and 
expenses for the previous year and may request documentation to support the 
statement including: tax statements, insurance invoices, bills for reasonable 
maintenance and utilities, and bank statements or amortization schedules showing 
monthly interest expense. 

390

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-25

7-III.G. RETIREMENT ACCOUNTS  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will accept written third-party documents supplied by the family as evidence of 
the status of retirement accounts. 

The type of original document that will be accepted depends upon the family member’s 
retirement status. 

Before retirement, the PHA will accept an original document from the entity 
holding the account with a date that shows it is the most recently scheduled 
statement for the account but in no case earlier than 6 months from the effective 
date of the examination. 

Upon retirement, the PHA will accept an original document from the entity 
holding the account that reflects any distributions of the account balance, any 
lump sums taken and any regular payments. 

After retirement, the PHA will accept an original document from the entity 
holding the account dated no earlier than 12 months before that reflects any 
distributions of the account balance, any lump sums taken and any regular 
payments. 

391

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-26

7-III.H. INCOME FROM EXCLUDED SOURCES  

A detailed discussion of excluded income is provided in Chapter 6, Part I. 

HUD guidance on verification of excluded income draws a distinction between income which is 
fully excluded and income which is only partially excluded. 

For fully excluded income, the PHA is not required to follow the verification hierarchy, 
document why third-party verification is not available, or report the income on the 50058. Fully 
excluded income is defined as income that is entirely excluded from the annual income 
determination (for example, food stamps, earned income of a minor, or foster care funds) [Notice 
PIH 2013-04]. 

PHAs may accept a family’s signed application or reexamination form as self-certification of 
fully excluded income. They do not have to require additional documentation. However, if there 
is any doubt that a source of income qualifies for full exclusion, PHAs have the option of 
requiring additional verification. 

For partially excluded income, the PHA is required to follow the verification hierarchy and all 
applicable regulations, and to report the income on the 50058. Partially excluded income is 
defined as income where only a certain portion of what is reported by the family qualifies to be 
excluded and the remainder is included in annual income (for example, the income of an adult 
full-time student, or income excluded under the earned income disallowance). 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will accept the family’s self-certification as verification of fully excluded 
income. The PHA may request additional documentation if necessary to document the 
income source. 

The PHA will verify the source and amount of partially excluded income as described in 
Part 1 of this chapter. 

7-III.I. ZERO ANNUAL INCOME STATUS 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will check UIV sources and/or request information from third-party sources to 
verify that certain forms of income such as unemployment benefits, TANF, SS, SSI, and 
earnings are not being received by families claiming to have zero annual income. 

392

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-27

7-III.J. STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE [Notice PIH 2015-21] 

Any financial assistance, in excess of amounts received for tuition, fees, and other required 
charges that a person attending an institution of higher education receives under the Higher 
Education Act of 1965, from private sources, or from an institution of higher education must be 
considered income unless the student is over the age of 23 with dependent children or is residing 
with parents who are seeking or receiving HCV assistance [24 CFR 5.609(b)(9) and FR 4/10/06]. 

For students over the age of 23 with dependent children or students residing with parents who are 
seeking or receiving HCV assistance, the full amount of student financial assistance is excluded 
from annual income [24 CFR 5.609(c)(6)]. The full amount of student financial assistance is also 
excluded for students attending schools that do not qualify as institutions of higher education (as 
defined in Exhibit 3-2).  Excluded amounts are verified only if, without verification, the PHA 
would not be able to determine whether or to what extent the income is to be excluded (see 
section 7-III.H). 

PHA Policy 

For a student subject to having a portion of his/her student financial assistance included 
in annual income in accordance with 24 CFR 5.609(b)(9), the PHA will request written 
third-party verification of both the source and the amount. Family-provided documents 
from the educational institution attended by the student will be requested, as well as 
documents generated by any other person or entity providing such assistance, as reported 
by the student. 

In addition, the PHA will request written verification of the student’s tuition, fees, and 
other required charges. 

If the PHA is unable to obtain third-party written verification of the requested 
information, the PHA will pursue other forms of verification following the verification 
hierarchy in section 7-I.B. 

393

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-28

7-III.K. PARENTAL INCOME OF STUDENTS SUBJECT TO ELIGIBILITY 
RESTRICTIONS 

If a student enrolled at an institution of higher education is under the age of 24, is not a veteran, 
is not married, does not have a dependent child, and is not a person with disabilities receiving 
HCV assistance as of November 30, 2005, the income of the student’s parents must be 
considered when determining income eligibility, unless the student is determined independent 
from his or her parents or a vulnerable youth in accordance with PHA policy [24 CFR 5.612, 
FR Notice 4/10/06, p. 18146, and FR Notice 9/21/16]. 

This provision does not apply to students residing with parents who are seeking or receiving 
HCV assistance. It is limited to students who are seeking or receiving assistance on their own, 
separately from their parents. 

PHA Policy 

If the PHA is required to determine the income eligibility of a student’s parents, the PHA 
will request an income declaration and certification of income from the appropriate 
parent(s) (as determined in section 3-II.E). The PHA will send the request directly to the 
parents, who will be required to certify to their income under penalty of perjury. The 
parents will be required to submit the information directly to the PHA. The required 
information must be submitted (postmarked) within 10 business days of the date of the 
PHA’s request or within any extended timeframe approved by the PHA. 

The PHA reserves the right to request and review supporting documentation at any time 
if it questions the declaration or certification. Supporting documentation may include, but 
is not limited to, Internal Revenue Service (IRS) tax returns, consecutive and original pay 
stubs, bank statements, pension benefit statements, benefit award letters, and other 
official and authentic documents from a federal, state, or local agency. 

394

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-29

PART IV: VERIFYING MANDATORY DEDUCTIONS 

7-IV.A. DEPENDENT AND ELDERLY/DISABLED HOUSEHOLD DEDUCTIONS 

The dependent and elderly/disabled family deductions require only that the PHA verify that the 
family members identified as dependents or elderly/disabled persons meet the statutory 
definitions. No further verifications are required. 

Dependent Deduction 

See Chapter 6 (6-II.B.) for a full discussion of this deduction. The PHA must verify that: 

 Any person under the age of 18 for whom the dependent deduction is claimed is not the head, 
spouse, or cohead of the family and is not a foster child  

 Any person age 18 or older for whom the dependent deduction is claimed is not a foster adult 
or live-in aide, and is a person with a disability or a full time student  

Elderly/Disabled Family Deduction 

See Eligibility chapter for a definition of elderly and disabled families and Chapter 6 (6-II.C.) for 
a discussion of the deduction. The PHA must verify that the head, spouse, or cohead is 62 years 
of age or older or a person with disabilities.  

395

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-30

7-IV.B. MEDICAL EXPENSE DEDUCTION 

Policies related to medical expenses are found in 6-II.D. The amount of the deduction will be 
verified following the standard verification procedures described in Part I. 

Amount of Expense 

PHA Policy 

Medical expenses will be verified through: 

Written third-party documents provided by the family, such as pharmacy printouts 
or receipts. 

The PHA will make a best effort to determine what expenses from the past are 
likely to continue to occur in the future. The PHA will also accept evidence of 
monthly payments or total payments that will be due for medical expenses during 
the upcoming 12 months. 

Written third-party verification forms, if the family is unable to provide 
acceptable documentation. 

If third-party or document review is not possible, written family certification as to 
costs anticipated to be incurred during the upcoming 12 months. 

In addition, the PHA must verify that: 

 The household is eligible for the deduction. 

 The costs to be deducted are qualified medical expenses. 

 The expenses are not paid for or reimbursed by any other source. 

 Costs incurred in past years are counted only once. 

396

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-31

Eligible Household 

The medical expense deduction is permitted only for households in which the head, spouse, or 
cohead is at least 62, or a person with disabilities. The PHA must verify that the family meets the 
definition of an elderly or disabled family provided in the Eligibility chapter and as described in 
Chapter 7 (7-IV.A.) of this plan. 

Qualified Expenses 

To be eligible for the medical expenses deduction, the costs must qualify as medical expenses. 
See Chapter 6 (6-II.D.) for the PHA’s policy on what counts as a medical expense. 

Unreimbursed Expenses 

To be eligible for the medical expenses deduction, the costs must not be reimbursed by another 
source.  

PHA Policy 

The family will be required to certify that the medical expenses are not paid or 
reimbursed to the family from any source. If expenses are verified through a third party, 
the third party must certify that the expenses are not paid or reimbursed from any 
other source. 

Expenses Incurred in Past Years 

PHA Policy 

When anticipated costs are related to on-going payment of medical bills incurred in past 
years, the PHA will verify: 

The anticipated repayment schedule 

The amounts paid in the past, and  

Whether the amounts to be repaid have been deducted from the family’s annual 
income in past years  

397

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-32

7-IV.C. DISABILITY ASSISTANCE EXPENSES 

Policies related to disability assistance expenses are found in 6-II.E. The amount of the deduction 
will be verified following the standard verification procedures described in Part I. 

Amount of Expense 

Attendant Care 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will accept written third-party documents provided by the family. 

If family-provided documents are not available, the PHA will provide a third-party 
verification form directly to the care provider requesting the needed information. 

Expenses for attendant care will be verified through: 

Written third-party documents provided by the family, such as receipts or 
cancelled checks. 

Third-party verification form signed by the provider, if family-provided 
documents are not available. 

If third-party verification is not possible, written family certification as to costs 
anticipated to be incurred for the upcoming 12 months. 

Auxiliary Apparatus 

PHA Policy 

Expenses for auxiliary apparatus will be verified through: 

Written third-party documents provided by the family, such as billing statements 
for purchase of auxiliary apparatus, or other evidence of monthly payments or 
total payments that will be due for the apparatus during the upcoming 12 months. 

Third-party verification form signed by the provider, if family-provided 
documents are not available. 

If third-party verification is not possible, written family certification of estimated 
apparatus costs for the upcoming 12 months. 

In addition, the PHA must verify that: 

 The family member for whom the expense is incurred is a person with disabilities (as 
described in 7-II.F above). 

 The expense permits a family member, or members, to work (as described in 6-II.E.). 

 The expense is not reimbursed from another source (as described in 6-II.E.). 

398

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-33

Family Member is a Person with Disabilities 

To be eligible for the disability assistance expense deduction, the costs must be incurred for 
attendant care or auxiliary apparatus expense associated with a person with disabilities. The PHA 
will verify that the expense is incurred for a person with disabilities (See 7-II.F.). 

Family Member(s) Permitted to Work 

The PHA must verify that the expenses claimed actually enable a family member, or members, 
(including the person with disabilities) to work. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will request third-party verification from a rehabilitation agency or 
knowledgeable medical professional indicating that the person with disabilities requires 
attendant care or an auxiliary apparatus to be employed, or that the attendant care or 
auxiliary apparatus enables another family member, or members, to work (See 6-II.E.). 
This documentation may be provided by the family. 

If third-party verification has been attempted and is either unavailable or proves 
unsuccessful, the family must certify that the disability assistance expense frees a family 
member, or members (possibly including the family member receiving the assistance), to 
work. 

Unreimbursed Expenses 

To be eligible for the disability expenses deduction, the costs must not be reimbursed by another 
source. 

PHA Policy 

The family will be required to certify that attendant care or auxiliary apparatus expenses 
are not paid by or reimbursed to the family from any source. 

399

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-34

7-IV.D. CHILD CARE EXPENSES 

Policies related to child care expenses are found in Chapter 6 (6-II.F). The amount of the 
deduction will be verified following the standard verification procedures described in Part I of 
this chapter. In addition, the PHA must verify that: 

 The child is eligible for care (12 or younger). 

 The costs claimed are not reimbursed. 

 The costs enable a family member to work, actively seek work, or further their education. 

 The costs are for an allowable type of child care. 

 The costs are reasonable. 

Eligible Child 

To be eligible for the child care deduction, the costs must be incurred for the care of a child 
under the age of 13. The PHA will verify that the child being cared for (including foster children) 
is under the age of 13 (See 7-II.C.).  

Unreimbursed Expense 

To be eligible for the child care deduction, the costs must not be reimbursed by another source.  

PHA Policy 

The family (and the care provider) will be required to certify that the child care expenses 
are not paid or reimbursed to the family from any source. 

400

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-35

Pursuing an Eligible Activity  

The PHA must verify that the family member(s) that the family has identified as being enabled to 
seek work, pursue education, or be gainfully employed, are actually pursuing those activities. 

PHA Policy 

Information to be Gathered 

The PHA will verify information about how the schedule for the claimed activity relates 
to the hours of care provided, the time required for transportation, the time required for 
study (for students), the relationship of the family member(s) to the child, and any special 
needs of the child that might help determine which family member is enabled to pursue 
an eligible activity. 

Seeking Work 

Whenever possible the PHA will use documentation from a state or local agency that 
monitors work-related requirements (e.g., welfare or unemployment). In such cases the 
PHA will request family-provided verification from the agency of the member’s job 
seeking efforts to date, and require the family to submit to the PHA any reports provided 
to the other agency.  

In the event third-party verification is not available, the PHA will provide the family with 
a form on which the family member must record job search efforts. The PHA will review 
this information at each subsequent reexamination for which this deduction is claimed. 

Furthering Education 

The PHA will request third-party documentation to verify that the person permitted to 
further his or her education by the child care is enrolled and provide information about 
the timing of classes for which the person is registered. The documentation may be 
provided by the family. 

Gainful Employment 

The PHA will seek third-party verification of the work schedule of the person who is 
permitted to work by the child care. In cases in which two or more family members could 
be permitted to work, the work schedules for all relevant family members may be 
verified. The documentation may be provided by the family. 

401

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-36

Allowable Type of Child Care 

The type of care to be provided is determined by the family, but must fall within certain 
guidelines, as discussed in Chapter 6. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will verify that the type of child care selected by the family is allowable, as 
described in Chapter 6 (6-II.F). 

The PHA will verify that the fees paid to the child care provider cover only child care 
costs (e.g., no housekeeping services or personal services) and are paid only for the care 
of an eligible child (e.g., prorate costs if some of the care is provided for ineligible family 
members). 

The PHA will verify that the child care provider is not an assisted family member. 
Verification will be made through the head of household’s declaration of family members 
who are expected to reside in the unit. 

Reasonableness of Expenses 

Only reasonable child care costs can be deducted. 

PHA Policy 

The actual costs the family incurs will be compared with the PHA’s established standards 
of reasonableness for the type of care in the locality to ensure that the costs are 
reasonable. 

If the family presents a justification for costs that exceed typical costs in the area, the 
PHA will request additional documentation, as required, to support a determination that 
the higher cost is appropriate. 

402

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-37

 EXHIBIT 7-1: SUMMARY OF DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS 
FOR NONCITIZENS [HCV GB, pp. 5-9 and 5-10] 

 All noncitizens claiming eligible status must sign a declaration of eligible immigrant status 
on a form acceptable to the PHA. 

 Except for persons 62 or older, all noncitizens must sign a verification consent form  

 Additional documents are required based upon the person's status. 

Elderly Noncitizens 

 A person 62 years of age or older who claims eligible immigration status also must provide 
proof of age such as birth certificate, passport, or documents showing receipt of SS old-age 
benefits.  

All other Noncitizens 

 Noncitizens that claim eligible immigration status also must present the applicable USCIS 
document. Acceptable USCIS documents are listed below. 

 Form I-551 Alien Registration Receipt 
Card (for permanent resident aliens) 

 Form I-94 Arrival-Departure Record 
annotated with one of the following: 

 “Admitted as a Refugee Pursuant to 
Section 207” 

 “Section 208” or “Asylum” 

 “Section 243(h)” or “Deportation 
stayed by Attorney General” 

 “Paroled Pursuant to Section 221 (d)(5) 
of the USCIS” 

 Form I-94 Arrival-Departure Record with 
no annotation accompanied by: 

 A final court decision granting asylum 
(but only if no appeal is taken); 

 A letter from a USCIS asylum officer 
granting asylum (if application is filed 
on or after 10/1/90) or from a USCIS 
district director granting asylum 
(application filed before 10/1/90); 

 A court decision granting withholding 
of deportation; or 

 A letter from an asylum officer granting 
withholding or deportation (if 
application filed on or after 10/1/90). 

 Form I-688 Temporary Resident Card 
annotated “Section 245A” or Section 210”. 

Form I-688B Employment Authorization Card 
annotated “Provision of Law 274a. 12(11)” or 
“Provision of Law 274a.12”. 

 A receipt issued by the USCIS indicating that an application for issuance of a replacement 
document in one of the above listed categories has been made and the applicant’s entitlement 
to the document has been verified; or 

 Other acceptable evidence. If other documents are determined by the USCIS to constitute 
acceptable evidence of eligible immigration status, they will be announced by notice 
published in the Federal Register 

 

403

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 7-38

 

404

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-1

Chapter 8 

HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS AND RENT REASONABLENESS 
DETERMINATIONS 

[24 CFR 982 Subpart I and 24 CFR 982.507] 

INTRODUCTION 

HUD requires that all units occupied by families receiving Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) 
assistance meet HUD's Housing Quality Standards (HQS) and permits the PHA to establish 
additional requirements. The use of the term "HQS" in this plan refers to the combination of both 
HUD and PHA-established requirements.  

All units must pass an HQS inspection prior to the approval of a lease and at least once every 24 
months during the term of the contract, and at other times as needed, to determine that the unit 
meets HQS. HUD also requires PHAs to determine that rents for units under the program are 
reasonable when compared to comparable unassisted units in the market area. 

This chapter explains HUD and PHA requirements related to housing quality and rent 
reasonableness as follows: 

Part I. Physical Standards. This part discusses the physical standards required of units 
occupied by HCV-assisted families and identifies decisions about the acceptability of the 
unit that may be made by the family based upon the family's preference. It also identifies 
life-threatening conditions that must be addressed on an expedited basis. 

Part II. The Inspection Process. This part describes the types of inspections the PHA will 
make and the steps that will be taken when units do not meet HQS.  

Part III. Rent Reasonableness Determinations. This part discusses the policies the PHA 
will use to make rent reasonableness determinations. 

Special HQS requirements for homeownership, manufactured homes, and other special housing 
types are discussed in Chapter 15 to the extent that they apply in this jurisdiction. 

405

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-2

PART I: PHYSICAL STANDARDS 

8-I.A. GENERAL HUD REQUIREMENTS 

HUD Performance and Acceptability Standards 

HUD's performance and acceptability standards for HCV-assisted housing are provided in 
24 CFR 982.401. These standards cover the following areas: 

 Sanitary facilities 

 Food preparation and refuse disposal 

 Space and Security 

 Thermal Environment 

 Illumination and electricity 

 Structure and materials 

 Interior Air Quality 

 Water Supply 

 Lead-based paint 

 Access 

 Site and neighborhood 

 Sanitary condition 

 Smoke Detectors 

A summary of HUD performance criteria is provided in Exhibit 8-1. Additional guidance on 
these requirements is found in the following HUD resources: 

 Housing Choice Voucher Guidebook, Chapter 10. 

 HUD Housing Inspection Manual for Section 8 Housing 

 HUD Inspection Form, form HUD-52580 (3/01) and Inspection Checklist, form 
HUD-52580-A (9/00) 

 HUD Notice 2003-31, Accessibility Notice: Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 and the 
Fair Housing Act of 1988. 

Tenant Preference Items 

HUD requires the PHA to enforce minimum HQS but also recognizes that certain judgments 
about the acceptability of the unit are left to the family. For example, the PHA must ensure that 
the unit contains the required sanitary facilities, but the family decides whether the cosmetic 
appearance of the facilities is acceptable. Exhibit 8-2 summarizes those items that are considered 
tenant preferences. 

406

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-3

Modifications to Provide Accessibility 

Under the Fair Housing Act of 1988 an owner must not refuse the request of a family that 
contains a person with a disability to make necessary and reasonable modifications to the unit. 
Such modifications are at the family's expense. The owner may require restoration of the unit to 
its original condition if the modification would interfere with the owner or next occupant's full 
enjoyment of the premises. The owner may not increase a customarily required security deposit. 
However, the landlord may negotiate a restoration agreement that requires the family to restore 
the unit and, if necessary to ensure the likelihood of restoration, may require the tenant to pay a 
reasonable amount into an interest bearing escrow account over a reasonable period of time. The 
interest in any such account accrues to the benefit of the tenant. The owner may also require 
reasonable assurances that the quality of the work will be acceptable and that any required 
building permits will be obtained. [24 CFR 100.203; Notice 2003-31]. 

Modifications to units to provide access for a person with a disability must meet all applicable 
HQS requirements and conform to the design, construction, or alteration of facilities contained in 
the UFAS and the ADA Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG) [28 CFR 35.151(c) and Notice 
2003-31] See Chapter 2 of this plan for additional information on reasonable accommodations 
for persons with disabilities. 

8-I.B. ADDITIONAL LOCAL REQUIREMENTS 

The PHA may impose variations to the HQS as long as the additional criteria are not likely to 
adversely affect the health or safety of participant families or severely restrict housing choices 
for families. HUD approval is required for variations to the HQS. HUD approval is not required 
if the variations are clarifications of HUD's acceptability criteria or performance standards 
[24 CFR 982.401(a)(4)]. 

Thermal Environment [HCV GB p.10-7] 

The PHA must define a “healthy living environment” for the local climate. This may be done by 
establishing a temperature that the heating system must be capable of maintaining, that is 
appropriate for the local climate.  

PHA Policy 

The heating system must be capable of maintaining an interior temperature of 65 degrees 
Fahrenheit between October 1 and May 1. 

407

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-4

  

 

8-I.C. LIFE-THREATENING CONDITIONS [24 CFR 982.404(a); FR Notice 1/18/17] 

HUD requires the PHA to define life-threatening conditions and to notify the owner or the family 
(whichever is responsible) of the corrections required. The responsible party must correct life-
threatening conditions within 24 hours of PHA notification.  

PHA Policy 

The following are considered life-threatening conditions: 

Any condition that jeopardizes the security of the unit 

Major plumbing leaks or flooding, waterlogged ceiling or floor in imminent 
danger of falling 

Natural or LP gas or fuel oil leaks 

A fuel storage vessel, fluid line, valve, or connection that supplies fuel to a 
HVAC unit is leaking or a strong odor is detected with potential for 
explosion or fire or that results in a health risk if inhaled 

Any electrical problem or condition that could result in shock or fire 

A light fixture is readily accessible, is not securely mounted to the ceiling 
or wall, and electrical connections or wires are exposed 

A light fixture is hanging by its wires 

A light fixture has a missing or broken bulb, and the open socket is readily 
accessible to the tenant during the day-to-day use of the unit 

A receptacle (outlet) or switch is missing or broken and electrical 
connections or wires are exposed 

An open circuit breaker position is not appropriately blanked off in a panel 
board, main panel board, or other electrical box that contains circuit 
breakers or fuses 

A cover is missing from any electrical device box, panel box, switch gear 
box, control panel, etc., and there are exposed electrical connections 

Any nicks, abrasions, or fraying of the insulation that exposes 
conducting wire 

Exposed bare wires or electrical connections 

Any condition that results in openings in electrical panels or electrical 
control device enclosures 

408

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-5

Water leaking or ponding near any electrical device 

Any condition that poses a serious risk of electrocution or fire and poses 
an immediate life-threatening condition 

Absence of a working heating system when outside temperature is below 60 
degrees Fahrenheit. 

Utilities not in service, including no running hot water 

Conditions that present the imminent possibility of injury  

Obstacles that prevent safe entrance or exit from the unit 

Any components that affect the function of the fire escape are missing 
or damaged 

Stored items or other barriers restrict or prevent the use of the fire escape 
in the event of an emergency 

The building’s emergency exit is blocked or impeded, thus limiting the 
ability of occupants to exit in a fire or other emergency 

Absence of a functioning toilet in the unit 

Inoperable or missing smoke carbon monoxide detectors  

Missing, damaged, discharged, overcharged, or expired fire extinguisher 
(where required) 

Gas/oil-fired water heater or heating, ventilation, or cooling system with missing, 
damaged, improper, or misaligned chimney venting 

The chimney or venting system on a fuel-fired water heater is misaligned, 
negatively pitched, or damaged, which may cause improper or dangerous 
venting or gases 

A gas dryer vent is missing, damaged, or is visually determined to be 
inoperable, or the dryer exhaust is not vented to the outside 

A fuel-fired space heater is not properly vented or lacks available 
combustion air 

A non-vented space heater is present 

Safety devices on a fuel-fired space heater are missing or damaged 

The chimney or venting system on fuel-fired heating, ventilation, or 
cooling system is misaligned, negatively pitched, or damaged, which may 
cause improper or dangerous venting of gas 

409

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-6

Deteriorating paint as defined at 24 CFR 35.110 in a unit built before 1978 that is 
to be occupied by a family with a child under six years of age if it would prevent 
the family from moving into the unit 

If an owner fails to correct life-threatening conditions as required by the PHA, the PHA 
will enforce the HQS in accordance with HUD requirements. See 8-II-G. 

If a family fails to correct a family-caused life-threatening condition as required by the 
PHA, the PHA will enforce the family obligations. See 8-II.H.  

The owner will be required to repair an inoperable smoke detector unless the PHA 
determines that the family has intentionally disconnected it (by removing batteries or 
other means). In this case, the family will be required to repair the smoke detector within 
24 hours. 

410

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-7

8-I.D. OWNER AND FAMILY RESPONSIBILITIES [24 CFR 982.404] 

Family Responsibilities 

The family is responsible for correcting the following HQS deficiencies: 

 Tenant-paid utilities not in service 

 Failure to provide or maintain appliances owned by the family 

 Damage to the unit or premises caused by a household member or guest beyond normal wear 
and tear which results in a breach of the HQS. "Normal wear and tear" is defined as items 
which could not be charged against the tenant's security deposit under state law or court 
practice.  

Owner Responsibilities 

The owner is responsible for all HQS violations not listed as a family responsibility above, even 
if the violation is caused by the family's living habits (e.g., vermin infestation). However, if the 
family's actions constitute a serious or repeated lease violation the owner may take legal action to 
evict the family. 

411

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-8

8-I.E. SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR CHILDREN WITH ELEVATED BLOOD 
LEAD LEVEL [24 CFR 35.1225; FR Notice 1/13/17; Notice PIH 2017-13] 

If a PHA is notified by a public health department or other medical health care provider, or 
verifies information from a source other than a public health department or medical health care 
provider, that a child of less than six years of age, living in an HCV-assisted unit has been 
identified as having an elevated blood lead level, the PHA must complete an environmental 
investigation of the dwelling unit within 15 calendar days after being notified by a public health 
department or other medical health care provider. The environmental investigation must be 
completed in accordance with program requirements, and the result of the environmental 
investigation must be immediately provided to the owner of the dwelling unit. In cases where the 
public health department has already completed an evaluation of the unit, this information must 
be provided to the owner. 

Within 30 days after receiving the environmental investigation report from the PHA, or the 
evaluation from the public health department, the owner is required to complete the reduction of 
identified lead-based paint hazards in accordance with the lead-based paint regulations [24 CFR 
35.1325 and 35.1330]. If the owner does not complete the “hazard reduction” as required, the 
dwelling unit is in violation of HQS and the PHA will take action in accordance with Section 
8-II.G. 

PHA reporting requirements, and data collection and record keeping responsibilities related to 
children with an elevated blood lead level are discussed in Chapter 16. 

8-I.F. VIOLATION OF HQS SPACE STANDARDS [24 CFR 982.401, 24 CFR 982.403] 

A dwelling unit must: 

 Provide adequate space and security for the family 

 Have at least one bedroom or living/sleeping room for each two persons 

A unit that does not meet these HQS space standards is defined as overcrowded. 

A living room may be used as sleeping (bedroom) space, but no more than two persons may 
occupy the space [HCV GB p. 10-6]. A bedroom or living/sleeping room must have at least: 

 One window 

 Two electrical outlets in proper operating condition (permanent overhead or wall-mounted 
light fixtures may count as one of the required electrical outlets) 

If the PHA determines that a unit is overcrowded because of an increase in family size or a 
change in family composition, the PHA must issue the family a new voucher, and the family and 
PHA must try to find an acceptable unit as soon as possible. If an acceptable unit is available for 
rental by the family, the PHA must terminate the HAP contract in accordance with its terms.  

412

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-9

PART II: THE INSPECTION PROCESS 

8-II.A. OVERVIEW [24 CFR 982.405] 

Types of Inspections 

The PHA conducts the following types of inspections as needed. Each type of inspection is 
discussed in the paragraphs that follow. 

 Initial Inspections. The PHA conducts initial inspections in response to a request from the 
family to approve a unit for participation in the HCV program.  

 Annual/Biennial Inspections. HUD requires the PHA to inspect each unit under lease at least 
annually or biennially, depending on PHA policy, to confirm that the unit still meets HQS. 
The inspection may be conducted in conjunction with the family's annual reexamination but 
also may be conducted separately. 

 Special Inspections. A special inspection may be requested by the owner, the family, or a 
third party as a result of problems identified with a unit between annual inspections. 

 Quality Control Inspections. HUD requires that a sample of units be inspected by a 
supervisor or other qualified individual to evaluate the work of the inspector(s) and to ensure 
that inspections are performed in compliance with the HQS.  

Inspection of PHA-Owned Units [24 CFR 982.352(b)] 

The PHA must obtain the services of an independent entity to perform all HQS inspections in 
cases where an HCV family is receiving assistance in a PHA-owned unit. A PHA-owned unit is 
defined as a unit that is owned by the PHA that administers the assistance under the consolidated 
ACC (including a unit owned by an entity substantially controlled by the PHA). The independent 
agency must communicate the results of each inspection to the family and the PHA. The 
independent agency must be approved by HUD, and may be the unit of general local government 
for the PHA jurisdiction (unless the PHA is itself the unit of general local government or an 
agency of such government).  

413

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-10

Inspection Costs [Notice PIH 2016-05] 

The PHA may not charge the family for unit inspections or reinspections [24 CFR 982.405(e)]. 
In the case of inspections of PHA-owned units, the PHA may compensate the independent 
agency from ongoing administrative fee for inspections performed. The PHA and the 
independent agency may not charge the family any fee or charge for the inspection 
[24 CFR.982.352(b)]. 

The PHA may not charge the owner for the inspection of the unit prior to the initial term of the 
lease or for a first inspection during assisted occupancy of the unit. However, the PHA may 
charge a reasonable fee to owners for reinspections in two situations: when the owner notifies the 
PHA that a repair has been made but the deficiency has not been corrected, and when the time 
for repairs has elapsed and the deficiency has not been corrected. Fees may not be imposed for 
tenant-caused damages, for cases in which the inspector could not gain access to the unit, or for 
new deficiencies discovered during a reinspection. 

The owner may not pass the cost of a reinspection fee to the family. Reinspection fees must be 
added to the PHA’s administrative fee reserves and may only be used for activities related to the 
provision of tenant-based assistance. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will impose a $40.00 re-inspection fee to the owner for the first re-inspection  

when: 

The owner reports that an HQS deficiency has been repaired, but re-inspection 
reveals that the deficiency has not been repaired; or  

When the time for repairs has elapsed and the deficiency has not been repaired. 

The PHA may waive the fee if repairs for non-life threatening items were delayed due 
to circumstances beyond the owner’s control. 

 

Notice and Scheduling 

The family must allow the PHA to inspect the unit at reasonable times with reasonable notice 
[24 CFR 982.551(d)]. 

PHA Policy 

Both the family and the owner will be given reasonable notice of all inspections. Except 
in the case of a life-threatening emergency, reasonable notice is considered to be not less 
than 48 hours. Inspections may be scheduled between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Generally 
inspections will be conducted on business days only. In the case of a life-threatening 
emergency, the PHA will give as much notice as possible, given the nature of the 
emergency. 

Owner and Family Inspection Attendance 

HUD permits the PHA to set policy regarding family and owner presence at the time of 
inspection [HCV GB p. 10-27]. 

PHA Policy 

414

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-11

When a family occupies the unit at the time of inspection an authorized adult must be 
present for the inspection. The presence of the owner or the owner's representative is 
encouraged but is not required. 

At initial inspection of a vacant unit, the PHA will inspect the unit in the presence of the 
owner or owner's representative if they are available. The presence of a family 
representative is permitted, but is not required. 

415

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-12

8-II.B. INITIAL HQS INSPECTION [24 CFR 982.401(a)]  

Initial Inspections [FR Notice 1/18/17] 

The PHA may, but is not required to, approve assisted tenancy and start HAP if the unit fails 
HQS inspection, but only if the deficiencies identified are non-life-threatening. Further, the PHA 
may, but is not required to, authorize occupancy if a unit passed an alternative inspection in the 
last 24 months. 

PHA Policy 

The unit must pass the HQS inspection on or before the effective date of the 
HAP contract. 

The PHA will not rely on alternative inspections and will conduct an HQS inspection for 
each unit prior to executing a HAP contract with the owner. 

Timing of Initial Inspections 

HUD requires PHAs with fewer than 1,250 budgeted units to complete the initial inspection, 
determine whether the unit satisfies HQS, and notify the owner and the family of the 
determination within 15 days of submission of the Request for Tenancy Approval (RTA). For 
PHAs with 1,250 or more budgeted units, to the extent practicable such inspection and 
determination must be completed within 15 days. The 15-day period is suspended for any period 
during which the unit is not available for inspection [982.305(b)(2)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will complete the initial inspection, determine whether the unit satisfies HQS, 
and notify the owner and the family of the determination within 15 days of submission of 
the Request for Tenancy Approval (RTA).  

Inspection Results and Reinspections 

PHA Policy 

If any HQS violations are identified, the owner will be notified of the deficiencies and be 
given a time frame to correct them. If requested by the owner, the time frame for 
correcting the deficiencies may be extended by the PHA for good cause. The PHA will 
reinspect the unit within 2 weeks of the date the owner notifies the PHA that the required 
corrections have been made.  

If the time period for correcting the deficiencies (or any PHA-approved extension) has 
elapsed, or the unit fails HQS at the time of the reinspection, the PHA will notify the 
owner and the family that the unit has been rejected and that the family must search for 
another unit. The PHA may agree to conduct a second reinspection, for good cause, at the 
request of the family and owner.  

Following a failed reinspection, the family may submit a new Request for Tenancy 
Approval for the same unit after the owner has made repairs, if they are unable to locate 
another suitable unit. 

416

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-13

 
Appliances [Form HUD-52580] 

PHA Policy 

If the family is responsible for supplying the stove and/or refrigerator, the PHA will 
allow the stove and refrigerator to be placed in the unit after the unit has met all other 
HQS requirements. The required appliances must be in place before the HAP contract is 
executed by the PHA. The PHA will execute the HAP contract based upon a certification 
from the family that the appliances have been installed and are working. A confirmatory 
inspection will be scheduled within 30 days of HAP contract approval.  

417

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-14

8-II.C. ANNUAL/BIENNIAL HQS INSPECTIONS [24 CFR 982.405 and 982.406; 
Notice PIH 2016-05] 

PHA Policy 

Each unit under HAP contract must be inspected within 24 months of the last full HQS 
inspection. 

The PHA will not rely on alternative inspection standards unless otherwise determined 
necessary during a pandemic or other emergency situation beyond the control of the HA. 

Scheduling the Inspection 

 PHA Policy 

If an adult cannot be present on the scheduled date, the family should request that the 
PHA reschedule the inspection. The PHA and family will agree on a new inspection date 
that generally should take place within 2 weeks of the originally scheduled date. The 
PHA may schedule an inspection more than five business days after the original date for 
good cause. 

If the family misses the first scheduled appointment without requesting a new inspection 
date, the PHA will automatically schedule a second inspection. If the family misses two 
scheduled inspections without PHA approval, the PHA will consider the family to have 
violated its obligation to make the unit available for inspection. This may result in 
termination of the family’s assistance in accordance with Chapter 12. 

8-II.D. SPECIAL INSPECTIONS [24 CFR 982.405(g)] 

If a participant or government official reports a life-threatening condition which the owner would 
be required to repair within 24 hours, the PHA must inspect the unit within 24 hours of 
notification. If the reported condition is not life-threatening, the PHA must inspect the unit 
within 15 days of notification. 

PHA Policy 

During a special inspection, the PHA generally will inspect only those deficiencies that 
were reported. However, the inspector will record any additional HQS deficiencies that 
are observed and will require the responsible party to make the necessary repairs. 

If the annual/biennial inspection has been scheduled or is due within 90 days of the date 
the special inspection is scheduled the PHA may elect to conduct a full annual/biennial 
inspection. 

418

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-15

8-II.E. QUALITY CONTROL INSPECTIONS [24 CFR 982.405(b); HCV GB, p. 10-32] 

HUD requires a PHA supervisor or other qualified person to conduct quality control inspections 
of a sample of units to ensure that each inspector is conducting accurate and complete 
inspections and that there is consistency in the application of the HQS. 

The unit sample must include only units that have been inspected within the preceding 3 months. 
The selected sample will include (1) each type of inspection (initial, annual, and special), (2) 
inspections completed by each inspector, and (3) units from a cross-section of neighborhoods. 

8-II.F. INSPECTION RESULTS AND REINSPECTIONS FOR UNITS UNDER HAP 
CONTRACT 

Notification of Corrective Actions 

The owner and the family will be notified in writing of the results of all inspections. When an 
inspection identifies HQS failures, the PHA will determine (1) whether or not the failure is a life-
threatening condition and (2) whether the family or owner is responsible. 

PHA Policy 

When life-threatening conditions are identified, the PHA will immediately notify both 
parties by telephone, facsimile, or email. The notice will specify who is responsible for 
correcting the violation. The corrective actions must be taken within 24 hours of the 
PHA’s notice. 

When failures that are not life-threatening are identified, the PHA will send the owner 
and the family a written notification of the inspection results 5 business days of the 
inspection. The written notice will specify who is responsible for correcting the violation, 
and the time frame within which the failure must be corrected. Generally not more than 
30 days will be allowed for the correction. 

The notice of inspection results will inform the owner that if life-threatening conditions 
are not corrected within 24 hours, and non-life threatening conditions are not corrected 
within the specified time frame (or any PHA-approved extension), the owner’s HAP will 
be abated in accordance with PHA policy (see 8-II.G.). 

Likewise, in the case of family caused deficiencies, the notice will inform the family that 
if corrections are not made within the specified time frame (or any PHA-approved 
extension, if applicable) the family’s assistance will be terminated in accordance with 
PHA policy (see Chapter 12). 

419

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-16

Extensions 

For conditions that are life-threatening, the PHA cannot grant an extension to the 24 hour 
corrective action period. For conditions that are not life-threatening, the PHA may grant an 
exception to the required time frames for correcting the violation, if the PHA determines that an 
extension is appropriate [24 CFR 982.404].  

PHA Policy 

Extensions will be granted in cases where the PHA has determined that the owner has 
made a good faith effort to correct the deficiencies and is unable to for reasons beyond 
the owner’s control. Reasons may include, but are not limited to: 

A repair cannot be completed because required parts or services are not available. 

A repair cannot be completed because of weather conditions.  

A reasonable accommodation is needed because the family includes a person with 
disabilities. 

The length of the extension will be determined on a case by case basis, but will not 
exceed 30 days, except in the case of delays caused by weather conditions. In the case of 
weather conditions, extensions may be continued until the weather has improved 
sufficiently to make repairs possible. The necessary repairs must be made within 15 
calendar days, once the weather conditions have subsided. 

Reinspections 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will conduct a reinspection immediately following the end of the corrective 
period, or any PHA approved extension.  

The family and owner will be given reasonable notice of the reinspection appointment. If 
the deficiencies have not been corrected by the time of the reinspection, the PHA will 
send a notice of abatement to the owner, or in the case of family caused violations, a 
notice of termination to the family, in accordance with PHA policies. If the PHA is 
unable to gain entry to the unit in order to conduct the scheduled reinspection, the PHA 
will consider the family to have violated its obligation to make the unit available for 
inspection. This may result in termination of the family’s assistance in accordance with 
Chapter 12. 

420

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-17

8-II.G. ENFORCING OWNER COMPLIANCE  

If the owner fails to maintain the dwelling unit in accordance with HQS, the PHA must take 
prompt and vigorous action to enforce the owner obligations.  

HAP Abatement 

If an owner fails to correct HQS deficiencies by the time specified by the PHA, HUD requires 
the PHA to abate housing assistance payments no later than the first of the month following the 
specified correction period (including any approved extension) [24 CFR 985.3(f)]. No retroactive 
payments will be made to the owner for the period of time the rent was abated. Owner rents are 
not abated as a result of HQS failures that are the family's responsibility. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will make all HAP abatements effective the first of the month following the 
expiration of the PHA specified correction period (including any extension). 

The PHA will inspect abated units within 5 business days of the owner's notification that 
the work has been completed. Payment will resume effective on the day the unit passes 
inspection.  

During any abatement period the family continues to be responsible for its share of the rent. The 
owner must not seek payment from the family for abated amounts and may not use the abatement 
as cause for eviction.  

HAP Contract Termination 

The PHA must decide how long any abatement period will continue before the HAP contract 
will be terminated. The PHA should not terminate the contract until the family finds another unit, 
provided the family does so in a reasonable time [HCV GB p. 10-29] and must give the owner 
reasonable notice of the termination. The PHA will issue a voucher to permit the family to move 
to another unit as described in Chapter 10.  

PHA Policy 

The maximum length of time that HAP may be abated is 90 days. However, if the owner 
completes corrections and notifies the PHA before the termination date of the HAP 
contract, the PHA may rescind the termination notice if (1) the family still resides in the 
unit and wishes to remain in the unit and (2) the unit passes inspection.  

Reasonable notice of HAP contract termination by the PHA is 30 days. 

8-II.H. ENFORCING FAMILY COMPLIANCE WITH HQS [24 CFR 982.404(b)] 

Families are responsible for correcting any HQS violations listed in paragraph 8.I.D. If the 
family fails to correct a violation within the period allowed by the PHA (and any extensions), the 
PHA will terminate the family’s assistance, according to the policies described in Chapter 12.  

If the owner carries out a repair for which the family is responsible under the lease, the owner 
may bill the family for the cost of the repair. 

421

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-18

PART III: RENT REASONABLENESS [24 CFR 982.507] 

8-III.A. OVERVIEW 

Except in the case of certain LIHTC- and HOME-assisted units, no HAP contract can be 
approved until the PHA has determined that the rent for the unit is reasonable. The purpose of 
the rent reasonableness test is to ensure that a fair rent is paid for each unit rented under the HCV 
program. 

HUD regulations define a reasonable rent as one that does not exceed the rent charged for 
comparable, unassisted units in the same market area. HUD also requires that owners not charge 
more for assisted units than for comparable units on the premises. This part explains the method 
used to determine whether a unit’s rent is reasonable. 

8-III.B. WHEN RENT REASONABLENESS DETERMINATIONS ARE REQUIRED 

Owner-Initiated Rent Determinations 

The PHA must make a rent reasonableness determination at initial occupancy and whenever the 
owner requests a rent adjustment. 

The owner and family first negotiate the rent for a unit. The PHA (or independent agency in the 
case of PHA-owned units) will assist the family with the negotiations upon request. At initial 
occupancy the PHA must determine whether the proposed rent is reasonable before a HAP 
Contract is signed. The owner must not change the rent during the initial lease term. Subsequent 
requests for rent adjustments must be consistent with the lease between the owner and the family. 
Rent increases will not be approved unless any failed items identified by the most recent HQS 
inspection have been corrected. 

PHA Policy 

After the initial occupancy period, the owner may request a rent adjustment in accordance 
with the owner’s lease.  

The PHA will determine whether the requested increase is reasonable within 10 business 
days of receiving the request from the owner. The owner will be notified of the 
determination in writing. 

All rents adjustments will be effective the first of the month following 60 days after the 
PHA’s receipt of the owner’s request or on the date specified by the owner, whichever 
is later. 

PHA- and HUD-Initiated Rent Reasonableness Determinations 

HUD requires the PHA to make a determination of rent reasonableness (even if the owner has 
not requested a change) if there is a 10 percent decrease in the fair market rent that goes into 
effect at least 60 days before the contract anniversary date. HUD also may direct the PHA to 
make a determination at any other time. The PHA may decide that a new determination of rent 
reasonableness is needed at any time. 

PHA Policy 

422

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-19

In addition to the instances described above, the PHA will make a determination of rent 
reasonableness at any time after the initial occupancy period if: (1) the PHA determines 
that the initial rent reasonableness determination was in error or (2) the PHA determines 
that the information provided by the owner about the unit or other units on the same 
premises was incorrect. 

423

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-20

LIHTC- and HOME-Assisted Units [24 CFR 982.507(c)] 

For units receiving low-income housing tax credits (LIHTCs) or units assisted under HUD’s 
HOME Investment Partnerships (HOME) Program, a rent comparison with unassisted units is 
not required if the voucher rent does not exceed the rent for other LIHTC- or HOME-assisted 
units in the project that are not occupied by families with tenant-based assistance.  

For LIHTCs, if the rent requested by the owner does exceed the LIHTC rents for non-voucher 
families, the PHA must perform a rent comparability study in accordance with program 
regulations. In such cases, the rent shall not exceed the lesser of: (1) the reasonable rent as 
determined from the rent comparability study; or (2) the payment standard established by the 
PHA for the unit size involved. 

8-III.C. HOW COMPARABILITY IS ESTABLISHED 

Factors to Consider 

HUD requires PHAs to take into consideration the factors listed below when determining rent 
comparability. The PHA may use these factors to make upward or downward adjustments to the 
rents of comparison units when the units are not identical to the HCV-assisted unit.  

 Location and age 

 Unit size including the number of rooms and square footage of rooms 

 The type of unit including construction type (e.g., single family, duplex, garden, low-rise, 
high-rise)  

 The quality of the units including the quality of the original construction, maintenance and 
improvements made 

 Amenities, services, and utilities included in the rent 

Units that Must Not Be Used as Comparable 

Comparable units must represent unrestricted market rents. Therefore, units that receive some 
form of federal, state, or local assistance that imposes rent restrictions cannot be considered 
comparable units. These include units assisted by HUD through any of the following programs: 
Section 8 project-based assistance, Section 236 and Section 221(d)(3) Below Market Interest 
Rate (BMIR) projects, HOME or Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program-
assisted units in which the rents are subsidized; units subsidized through federal, state, or local 
tax credits; units subsidized by the Department of Agriculture rural housing programs, and units 
that are rent-controlled by local ordinance [Notice PIH 2002-22, Notice PIH 2005-20, and 
Notice PIH 2011-46]. 

Note: Notice PIH 2011-46 issued August 17, 2011 provides further guidance on the issue of 
what constitutes an assisted unit. 

424

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-21

Rents Charged for Other Units on the Premises 

The Request for Tenancy Approval (HUD-52517) requires owners to provide information, on the 
form itself, about the rent charged for other unassisted comparable units on the premises if the 
premises include more than 4 units. 

By accepting the PHA payment each month the owner certifies that the rent is not more than the 
rent charged for comparable unassisted units on the premises. If asked to do so, the owner must 
give the PHA information regarding rents charged for other units on the premises. 

425

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-22

8-III.D . PHA RENT REASONABLENESS METHODOLOGY 

How Market Data Is Collected 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will collect and maintain data on market rents in the PHA's jurisdiction. 
Information sources include newspapers, realtors, market surveys, inquiries of owners 
and other available sources. The data will be maintained by bedroom size and market 
areas. Market areas may be defined by zip codes, census tract, neighborhood, and 
identifiable natural or man-made boundaries. The data will be updated on an ongoing 
basis and rent information that is more than 12 months old will be eliminated from the 
database. 

How Rents Are Determined 

PHA Policy 

The rent for a unit proposed for HCV assistance will be compared to the rent charged for 
comparable units in the same market area. The PHA will develop a range of prices for 
comparable units by bedroom size within defined market areas. Units proposed for HCV 
assistance will be compared to the units within this rent range. Because units may be 
similar, but not exactly like the unit proposed for HCV assistance, the PHA may make 
adjustments to the range of prices to account for these differences. 

The adjustment must reflect the local market. Not all differences in units require 
adjustments (e.g., the presence or absence of a garbage disposal may not affect the rent in 
some market areas). 

Adjustments may vary by unit type (e.g., a second bathroom may be more valuable in a 
three-bedroom unit than in a two-bedroom). 

The adjustment must reflect the rental value of the difference—not its construction costs 
(e.g., it might cost $20,000 to put on a new roof, but the new roof might not make any 
difference in what a tenant would be willing to pay because rental units are presumed to 
have functioning roofs). 

When a comparable project offers rent concessions (e.g., first month rent-free, or reduced 
rent) reported monthly rents will be adjusted accordingly. For example, if a comparable 
project reports rents of $500/month but new tenants receive the first month's rent free, the 
actual rent for the unit would be calculated as follows: $500 x 11 months = 5500/12 
months = actual monthly rent of $488. 

The PHA will notify the owner of the rent the PHA can approve based upon its analysis 
of rents for comparable units. The owner may submit information about other comparable 
units in the market area. The PHA will confirm the accuracy of the information provided 
and consider this additional information when making rent determinations. The owner 
must submit any additional information within 5 business days of the PHA’s request for 
information or the owner’s request to submit information. 

426

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-23

 

427

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-24

EXHIBIT 8-1: OVERVIEW OF HUD HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS 

Note: This document provides an overview of HQS. For more detailed information see the 
following documents: 

 24 CFR 982.401, Housing Quality Standards (HQS) 

 Housing Choice Voucher Guidebook, Chapter 10. 

 HUD Housing Inspection Manual for Section 8 Housing 

 HUD Inspection Form, form HUD-52580 (3/01) and Inspection Checklist, form 
HUD-52580-A (9/00) 

Sanitary Facilities 

The dwelling unit must include sanitary facilities within the unit. The sanitary facilities must be 
usable in privacy and must be in proper operating condition and adequate for personal 
cleanliness and disposal of human waste.  

Food Preparation and Refuse Disposal 

The dwelling unit must have space and equipment suitable for the family to store, prepare, and 
serve food in a sanitary manner. 

Space and Security 

The dwelling unit must provide adequate space and security for the family. This includes having 
at least one bedroom or living/sleeping room for each two persons. 

Thermal Environment 

The unit must have a safe system for heating the dwelling unit. Air conditioning is not required 
but if provided must be in proper operating condition. The dwelling unit must not contain 
unvented room heaters that burn gas, oil, or kerosene. Portable electric room heaters or kitchen 
stoves with built-in heating units are not acceptable as a primary source of heat for units located 
in climatic areas where permanent heat systems are required. 

Illumination and Electricity 

Each room must have adequate natural or artificial illumination to permit normal indoor 
activities and to support the health and safety of occupants. The dwelling unit must have 
sufficient electrical sources so occupants can use essential electrical appliances. Minimum 
standards are set for different types of rooms. Once the minimum standards are met, the number, 
type and location of electrical sources are a matter of tenant preference. 

Structure and Materials 

The dwelling unit must be structurally sound. Handrails are required when four or more steps 
(risers) are present, and protective railings are required when porches, balconies, and stoops are 
thirty inches or more off the ground. The elevator servicing the unit must be working [if there is 
one]. Manufactured homes must have proper tie-down devices capable of surviving wind loads 
common to the area. 

428

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-25

Interior Air Quality 

The dwelling unit must be free of air pollutant levels that threaten the occupants’ health. There 
must be adequate air circulation in the dwelling unit. Bathroom areas must have one openable 
window or other adequate ventilation. Any sleeping room must have at least one window. If a 
window was designed to be opened, it must be in proper working order. 

Water Supply 

The dwelling unit must be served by an approved public or private water supply that is sanitary 
and free from contamination. Plumbing fixtures and pipes must be free of leaks and threats to 
health and safety. 

Lead-Based Paint 

Lead-based paint requirements apply to dwelling units built prior to 1978 that are occupied or 
can be occupied by families with children under six years of age, excluding zero bedroom 
dwellings. Owners must: 

 Disclose known lead-based paint hazards to prospective tenants before the lease is signed, 

 provide all prospective families with "Protect Your Family from Lead in Your Home", 

 Stabilize deteriorated painted surfaces and conduct hazard reduction activities within 30 days 
when identified by the PHA 

 Notify tenants each time such an activity is performed 

 Conduct all work in accordance with HUD safe practices 

 As part of ongoing maintenance ask each family to report deteriorated paint 

 Maintain covered housing without deteriorated paint if there is child under six in the family 

For units occupied by elevated blood lead level (lead poisoned) children under six years of age, 
an environmental investigation must be conducted (paid for by the PHA). If lead hazards are 
identified during the environmental investigation, the owner must complete hazard reduction 
activities within 30 days. 

See HCV GB p. 10-15 for a detailed description of these requirements. For additional 
information on lead-based paint requirements see 24 CFR 35, Subparts A, B, M, and R. 

Access 

Use and maintenance of the unit must be possible without unauthorized use of other private 
properties. The building must provide an alternate means of exit in case of fire. 

Site and Neighborhood 

The site and neighborhood must be reasonably free from disturbing noises and reverberations, 
excessive trash or vermin, or other dangers to the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
occupants. 

429

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-26

Sanitary Condition 

The dwelling unit and its equipment must be in sanitary condition and free of vermin and rodent 
infestation. The unit must have adequate barriers to prevent infestation. 

Smoke Detectors 

Smoke detectors must be installed in accordance with and meet the requirements of the National 
Fire Protection Association Standard (NFPA) 74 (or its successor standards). If the dwelling unit 
is occupied by any person with a hearing impairment, smoke detectors must have an appropriate 
alarm system as specified in NFPA 74 (or successor standards).  

Hazards and Heath/Safety 

The unit, interior and exterior common areas accessible to the family, the site, and the 
surrounding neighborhood must be free of hazards to the family's health and safety. 

430

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-27

 

431

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-28

EXHIBIT 8-2: SUMMARY OF TENANT PREFERENCE AREAS 
RELATED TO HOUSING QUALITY 

Note: This document provides an overview of unit and site characteristics and conditions for 
which the family determines acceptability. For more detailed information see the following 
documents: 

 Housing Choice Voucher Guidebook, Chapter 10. 

 HUD Housing Inspection Manual for Section 8 Housing 

 HUD Inspection Form, form HUD-52580 (3/01) and Inspection Checklist, form 
HUD-52580-A (9/00) 

Provided the minimum housing quality standards have been met, HUD permits the family to 
determine whether the unit is acceptable with regard to the following characteristics. 

 Sanitary Facilities. The family may determine the adequacy of the cosmetic condition and 
quality of the sanitary facilities, including the size of the lavatory, tub, or shower; the 
location of the sanitary facilities within the unit; and the adequacy of the water heater.  

 Food Preparation and Refuse Disposal. The family selects size and type of equipment it 
finds acceptable. When the family is responsible for supplying cooking appliances, the 
family may choose to use a microwave oven in place of a conventional oven, stove, or range. 
When the owner is responsible for providing cooking appliances, the owner may offer a 
microwave oven in place of an oven, stove, or range only if other subsidized and 
unsubsidized units on the premises are furnished with microwave ovens only. The adequacy 
of the amount and type of storage space, the cosmetic conditions of all equipment, and the 
size and location of the kitchen are all determined by the family. 

 Space and Security. The family may determine the adequacy of room sizes and room 
locations. The family is also responsible for deciding the acceptability of the type of door and 
window locks. 

 Energy conservation items. The family may determine whether the amount of insulation, 
presence of absence of storm doors and windows and other energy conservation items are 
acceptable.  

 Illumination and Electricity. The family may determine whether the location and the number 
of outlets and fixtures (over and above those required to meet HQS standards) are acceptable 
or if the amount of electrical service is adequate for the use of appliances, computers, or 
stereo equipment. 

432

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 8-29

(6) Structure and Materials. Families may determine whether minor defects, such as lack of 
paint, or worn flooring or carpeting will affect the livability of the unit. 

(7) Indoor Air. Families may determine whether window and door screens, filters, fans, or other 
devices for proper ventilation are adequate to meet the family’s needs. However, if screens 
are present they must be in good condition. 

(8) Sanitary Conditions. The family determines whether the sanitary conditions in the unit, 
including minor infestations, are acceptable. 

(9) Neighborhood conditions. Families may determine whether neighborhood conditions such as 
the presence of drug activity, commercial enterprises, and convenience to shopping will 
affect the livability of the unit.  

Families have no discretion with respect to lead-based paint standards and smoke detectors. 

433

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-1

Chapter 9 

GENERAL LEASING POLICIES 

INTRODUCTION 

Chapter 9 covers the lease-up process from the family's submission of a Request for Tenancy 
Approval to execution of the HAP contract. 

In order for the PHA to assist a family in a particular dwelling unit, or execute a Housing 
Assistance Payments (HAP) contract with the owner of a dwelling unit, the PHA must determine 
that all the following program requirements are met: 

 The unit itself must qualify as an eligible unit [24 CFR 982.305(a)] 

 The unit must be inspected by the PHA and meet the Housing Quality Standards (HQS) [24 
CFR 982.305(a)] 

 The lease offered by the owner must be approvable and must include the required Tenancy 
Addendum [24 CFR 982.305(a)] 

 The rent to be charged by the owner for the unit must be reasonable [24 CFR 982.305(a)] 

 The owner must be an eligible owner, approvable by the PHA, with no conflicts of interest 
[24 CFR 982.306] 

 For families initially leasing a unit only: Where the gross rent of the unit exceeds the 
applicable payment standard for the family, the share of rent to be paid by the family cannot 
exceed 40 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted income [24 CFR 982.305(a)] 

434

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-2

9-I.A. TENANT SCREENING 

The PHA has no liability or responsibility to the owner or other persons for the family’s behavior 
or suitability for tenancy [24 CFR 982.307(a)(1)]. 

The PHA may elect to screen applicants for family behavior or suitability for tenancy. See 
Chapter 3 for a discussion of the PHA’s policies with regard to screening applicant families for 
program eligibility [24 CFR 982.307(a)(1)]. 

The owner is responsible for screening and selection of the family to occupy the owner’s unit. At 
or before PHA approval of the tenancy, the PHA must inform the owner that screening and 
selection for tenancy is the responsibility of the owner [24 CFR 982.307(a)(2)]. The PHA 
must also inform the owner or manager or his/her rights and obligations under the Violence 
against Women Act of 2013 (VAWA) [24 CFR 5.2005(a)(2)]. 

The PHA must provide the owner with the family’s current and prior address (as shown in the 
PHA records) and the name and address (if known to the PHA) of the landlord at the family’s 
current and prior address [24 CFR 982.307(b)(1)]. 

The PHA is permitted, but not required, to offer the owner other information in the PHA’s 
possession about the tenancy history or drug trafficking of family members [24 CFR 
982.307(b)(2)]. 

The PHA’s policy on providing information to the owner must be included in the family’s 
briefing packet [24 CFR 982.307(b)(3)]. 

The PHA may not disclose to the owner any confidential information provided by the family in 
response to a PHA request for documentation of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking except at the written request or with the written consent of the individual 
providing the documentation [24 CFR 5.2007(b)(4)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not screen applicants for family behavior or suitability for tenancy. 

The PHA will not provide additional screening information to the owner. 

435

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-3

9-I.B. REQUESTING TENANCY APPROVAL [Form HUD-52517] 

After the family is issued a voucher, the family must locate an eligible unit, with an owner or 
landlord willing to participate in the voucher program. Once a family finds a suitable unit and the 
owner is willing to lease the unit under the program, the owner and the family must request the 
PHA to approve the assisted tenancy in the selected unit. 

The owner and the family must submit two documents to the PHA: 

 Completed Request for Tenancy Approval (RTA) – Form HUD-52517 

 Copy of the proposed lease, including the HUD-prescribed Tenancy Addendum – Form 
HUD-52641-A 

The RTA contains important information about the rental unit selected by the family, including 
the unit address, number of bedrooms, structure type, year constructed, utilities included in the 
rent, and the requested beginning date of the lease, necessary for the PHA to determine whether 
to approve the assisted tenancy in this unit. 

Owners must certify to the most recent amount of rent charged for the unit and provide an 
explanation for any difference between the prior rent and the proposed rent. 

Owners must certify that they are not the parent, child, grandparent, grandchild, sister or brother 
of any member of the family, unless the PHA has granted a request for reasonable 
accommodation for a person with disabilities who is a member of the tenant household. 

For units constructed prior to 1978, owners must either 1) certify that the unit, common areas, 
and exterior have been found to be free of lead-based paint by a certified inspector; or 2) attach a 
lead-based paint disclosure statement. 

436

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-4

Both the RTA and the proposed lease must be submitted no later than the expiration date stated 
on the voucher. [HCV GB p.8-15]. 

PHA Policy 

The RTA must be signed by both the family and the owner. 

The owner may submit the RTA on behalf of the family. 

Completed RTA (including the proposed dwelling lease) must be submitted as hard 
copies, in-person, by mail, by email, bor by fax. 

The family may not submit, and the PHA will not process, more than one (1) RTA at 
a time. 

When the family submits the RTA the PHA will review the RTA for completeness. 

If the RTA is incomplete (including lack of signature by family, owner, or both), 
or if the dwelling lease is not submitted with the RTA, the PHA will notify the 
family and the owner of the deficiencies. 

Missing information and/or missing documents will only be accepted as hard 
copies, in-person, by mail, by email, or by fax.  

When the family submits the RTA and proposed lease, the PHA will also review the 
terms of the RTA for consistency with the terms of the proposed lease. 

If the terms of the RTA are not consistent with the terms of the proposed lease, 
the PHA will notify the family and the owner of the discrepancies. 

Corrections to the terms of the RTA and/or the proposed lease will only be 
accepted as hard copies, in-person, by mail, by email, by software, by phone, or 
by fax.  

 Because of the time sensitive nature of the tenancy approval process, the PHA 
will attempt to communicate with the owner and family by phone, fax, or email. 
The PHA will use mail when the parties cannot be reached by phone, fax, or 
email. 

9-I.C. OWNER PARTICIPATION 

The PHA does not formally approve an owner to participate in the HCV program. However, 
there are a number of criteria where the PHA may deny approval of an assisted tenancy based on 
past owner behavior, conflict of interest, or other owner-related issues. There are also criteria for 
which the PHA must disapprove an owner. No owner has a right to participate in the HCV 
program [24 CFR 982.306(e)] 

See Chapter 13 for a full discussion of owner qualification to participate in the HCV program. 

437

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-5

9-I.D. ELIGIBLE UNITS 

There are a number of criteria that a dwelling unit must meet in order to be eligible for assistance 
under the voucher program. Generally, a voucher-holder family may choose any available rental 
dwelling unit on the market in the PHA’s jurisdiction. This includes the dwelling unit they are 
currently occupying. 

Ineligible Units [24 CFR 982.352(a)] 

The PHA may not assist a unit under the voucher program if the unit is a public housing or 
Indian housing unit; a unit receiving project-based assistance under section 8 of the 1937 Act (42 
U.S.C. 1437f); nursing homes, board and care homes, or facilities providing continual 
psychiatric, medical, or nursing services; college or other school dormitories; units on the 
grounds of penal, reformatory, medical, mental, and similar public or private institutions; a unit 
occupied by its owner or by a person with any interest in the unit. 

PHA-Owned Units [24 CFR 982.352(b)] 

Otherwise eligible units that are owned or substantially controlled by the PHA issuing the 
voucher may also be leased in the voucher program. In order for a PHA-owned unit to be leased 
under the voucher program, the unit must not be ineligible housing and the PHA must inform the 
family, both orally and in writing, that the family has the right to select any eligible unit 
available for lease and that the family is free to select a PHA-owned unit without any pressure or 
steering by the PHA. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA does not have any eligible PHA-owned units available for leasing under the 
voucher program. 

Special Housing Types [24 CFR 982 Subpart M] 

HUD regulations permit, but do not generally require, the PHA to permit families to use voucher 
assistance in a number of special housing types in accordance with the specific requirements 
applicable to those programs. These special housing types include single room occupancy (SRO) 
housing, congregate housing, group home, shared housing, manufactured home space (where the 
family owns the manufactured home and leases only the space), cooperative housing and 
homeownership option. See Chapter 15 for specific information and policies on any of these 
housing types that the PHA has chosen to allow. 

The regulations do require the PHA to permit use of any special housing type if needed as a 
reasonable accommodation so that the program is readily accessible to and usable by persons 
with disabilities. 

438

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-6

Duplicative Assistance [24 CFR 982.352(c)] 

A family may not receive the benefit of HCV tenant-based assistance while receiving the benefit 
of any of the following forms of other housing subsidy, for the same unit or for a different unit:  

 Public or Indian housing assistance;  

 Other Section 8 assistance (including other tenant-based assistance); 

 Assistance under former Section 23 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 (before 
amendment by the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974);  

 Section 101 rent supplements;  

 Section 236 rental assistance payments;  

 Tenant-based assistance under the HOME Program;  

 Rental assistance payments under Section 521 of the Housing Act of 1949 (a program of the 
Rural Development Administration); 

 Any local or State rent subsidy;  

 Section 202 supportive housing for the elderly;  

 Section 811 supportive housing for persons with disabilities; (11) Section 202 projects for 
non-elderly persons with disabilities (Section 162 assistance); or 

 Any other duplicative federal, State, or local housing subsidy, as determined by HUD. For 
this purpose, 'housing subsidy' does not include the housing component of a welfare 
payment, a social security payment received by the family, or a rent reduction because of a 
tax credit. 

Housing Quality Standards (HQS) [24 CFR 982.305 and 24 CFR 982.401] 

In order to be eligible, the dwelling unit must be in decent, safe and sanitary condition. This 
determination is made using HUD’s Housing Quality Standards (HQS) and/or equivalent state or 
local standards approved by HUD. See Chapter 8 for a full discussion of the HQS standards, as 
well as the process for HQS inspection at initial lease-up. 

439

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-7

Unit Size 

In order to be eligible, the dwelling unit must be appropriate for the number of persons in the 
household. A family must be allowed to lease an otherwise acceptable dwelling unit with fewer 
bedrooms than the number of bedrooms stated on the voucher issued to the family, provided the 
unit meets the applicable HQS space requirements [24 CFR 982.402(d)]. The family must be 
allowed to lease an otherwise acceptable dwelling unit with more bedrooms than the number of 
bedrooms stated on the voucher issued to the family. See Chapter 5 for a full discussion of 
subsidy standards. 

Rent Reasonableness [24 CFR 982.305 and 24 CFR 982.507] 

In order to be eligible, the dwelling unit must have a reasonable rent. The rent must be 
reasonable in relation to comparable unassisted units in the area and must not be in excess of 
rents charged by the owner for comparable, unassisted units on the premises. See Chapter 8 for a 
full discussion of rent reasonableness and the rent reasonableness determination process. 

Rent Burden [24 CFR 982.508] 

Where a family is initially leasing a unit and the gross rent of the unit exceeds the applicable 
payment standard for the family, the family share cannot exceed 40 percent of the family’s 
adjusted monthly income. The term “family share” refers to the amount the family pays toward 
rent and utilities. The gross rent for the unit minus the total housing assistance payment (HAP) 
for the unit equals the family share. See Chapter 6 for a discussion of calculation of gross rent, 
the use of payment standards, and calculation of family income, family share of rent and HAP. 

440

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-8

9-I.E. LEASE AND TENANCY ADDENDUM 

The family and the owner must execute a written dwelling lease agreement for the assisted unit. 
This written lease is a contract between the tenant family and the owner; the PHA is not a party 
to this contract. 

The tenant must have legal capacity to enter a lease under State and local law. 'Legal capacity' 
means that the tenant is bound by the terms of the lease and may enforce the terms of the lease 
against the owner [24 CFR 982.308(a)] 

Lease Form and Tenancy Addendum [24 CFR 982.308] 

If the owner uses a standard lease form for rental to unassisted tenants in the locality or the 
premises, the lease must be in such standard form. If the owner does not use a standard lease 
form for rental to unassisted tenants, the owner may use another form of lease. The HAP contract 
prescribed by HUD contains the owner's certification that if the owner uses a standard lease form 
for rental to unassisted tenants, the lease for the assisted tenants is in such standard form.  

All provisions in the HUD-required Tenancy Addendum must be added word-for-word to the 
owner's standard lease form. The Tenancy Addendum includes the HUD requirements for the 
tenancy. Because it is a part of the lease, the tenant shall have the right to enforce the Tenancy 
Addendum against the owner. If there is a conflict between the owner’s lease and the Tenancy 
Addendum, the terms of the Tenancy Addendum shall prevail over any other provisions of 
the lease. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA does not provide a model or standard dwelling lease for owners to use in the 
HCV program. 

Lease Information [24 CFR 982.308(d)] 

The assisted dwelling lease must contain all of the required information as listed below:  

 The names of the owner and the tenant: 

 The unit rented (address, apartment number, and any other information needed to identify the 
contract unit) 

 The term of the lease (initial term and any provisions for renewal) 

 The amount of the monthly rent to owner 

 A specification of what utilities and appliances are to be supplied by the owner, and what 
utilities and appliances are to be supplied by the family 

441

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-9

Term of Assisted Tenancy 

The initial term of the assisted dwelling lease must be for at least one year [24 CFR 982.309]. 
The initial lease term is also stated in the HAP contract.  

The HUD program regulations permit the PHA to approve a shorter initial lease term if certain 
conditions are met. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not approve an initial lease term of less than one (1) year. 

During the initial term of the lease, the owner may not raise the rent to owner [24 CFR 982.309]. 

Any provisions for renewal of the dwelling lease will be stated in the dwelling lease [HCV 
Guidebook, pg. 8-22]. There are no HUD requirements regarding any renewal extension terms, 
except that they must be stated in the dwelling lease if they exist. 

The PHA may execute the HAP contract even if there is less than one year remaining from the 
beginning of the initial lease term to the end of the last expiring funding increment under the 
consolidated ACC. [24 CFR 982.309(b)]. 

Security Deposit [24 CFR 982.313 (a) and (b)] 

The owner may collect a security deposit from the tenant. The PHA may prohibit security 
deposits in excess of private market practice, or in excess of amounts charged by the owner to 
unassisted tenants. However, if the PHA chooses to do so, language to this effect must be added 
to Part A of the HAP contract [Form HUD-52641]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will allow the owner to collect any security deposit amount the owner 
determines is appropriate. Therefore, no modifications to the HAP contract will be 
necessary. 

442

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-10

Separate Non-Lease Agreements between Owner and Tenant 

Owners may not demand or accept any rent payment from the family in excess of the rent to the 
owner as approved by the PHA minus the PHA’s housing assistance payments to the owner 
[24 CFR 982.451(b)(4)]. 

The owner may not charge the tenant extra amounts for items customarily included in rent in the 
locality, or provided at no additional cost to unsubsidized tenants in the premises [24 CFR 
982.510(c)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA permits owners and families to execute separate, non-lease agreements for 
services, appliances (other than range and refrigerator) and other items that are not 
included in the lease. 

Any items, appliances, or other services that are customarily provided to unassisted 
families as part of the dwelling lease with those families, or are permanently installed in 
the dwelling unit must be included in the dwelling lease for the assisted family. These 
items, appliances or services cannot be placed under a separate non-lease agreement 
between the owner and family. Side payments for additional rent, or for items, appliances 
or services customarily provided to unassisted families as part of the dwelling lease for 
those families, are prohibited. 

Any items, appliances, or other services that are not customarily provided to unassisted 
families as part of the dwelling lease with those families, are not permanently installed in 
the dwelling unit and where the family has the sole option of not utilizing the item, 
appliance or service, may be included in a separate non-lease agreement between the 
owner and the family. 

The family is not liable and cannot be held responsible under the terms of the assisted 
dwelling lease for any charges pursuant to a separate non-lease agreement between the 
owner and the family. Non-payment of any charges pursuant to a separate non-lease 
agreement between the owner and the family cannot be a cause for eviction or 
termination of tenancy under the terms of the assisted dwelling lease. 

Separate non-lease agreements that involve additional items, appliances or other services 
may be considered amenities offered by the owner and may be taken into consideration 
when determining the reasonableness of the rent for the property. 

443

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-11

PHA Review of Lease 

The PHA will review the dwelling lease for compliance with all applicable requirements. 

PHA Policy 

If the dwelling lease is incomplete or incorrect, the PHA will notify the family and the 
owner of the deficiencies. Missing and corrected lease information will only be accepted 
as hard copies, in-person, by mail, by email, or by fax. The PHA will not accept missing 
and corrected information over the phone. 

Because the initial leasing process is time-sensitive, the PHA will attempt to 
communicate with the owner and family by phone, fax, or email. The PHA will use mail 
when the parties can’t be reached by phone, fax, or email. 

The PHA is permitted, but is not required, to review the lease to determine if the lease complies 
with State and local law and is permitted to decline to approve the tenancy if the PHA 
determines that the lease does not comply with State or local law [24 CFR 982.308(c)] 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not review the owner’s lease for compliance with state/local law. 

444

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-12

9-I.F. TENANCY APPROVAL [24 CFR 982.305] 

After receiving the family's Request for Tenancy Approval, with proposed dwelling lease, the 
PHA must promptly notify the family and owner whether the assisted tenancy is approved. 

Prior to approving the assisted tenancy and execution of a HAP contract, the PHA must ensure 
that all required actions and determinations, discussed in Part I of this chapter have been 
completed. 

These actions include ensuring that the unit is eligible; the unit has been inspected by the PHA 
and meets the Housing Quality Standards (HQS); the lease offered by the owner is approvable 
and includes the required Tenancy Addendum; the rent to be charged by the owner for the unit 
must is reasonable; where the family is initially leasing a unit and the gross rent of the unit 
exceeds the applicable payment standard for the family, the share of rent to be paid by the family 
does not exceed 40 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted income [24 CFR 982.305(a)]; the 
owner is an eligible owner, not disapproved by the PHA, with no conflicts of interest [24 CFR 
982.306]; the family and the owner have executed the lease, including the Tenancy Addendum, 
and the lead-based paint disclosure information [24 CFR 982.305(b)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will complete its determination within 10 business days of receiving all 
required information. 

If the terms of the RTA/proposed lease are changed for any reason, including but not 
limited to negotiation with the PHA, the PHA will obtain corrected copies of the RTA 
and proposed lease, signed by the family and the owner.  

Corrections to the RTA/proposed lease will only be accepted as hard copies, in-
person, by mail, by email, by software, by phone or by fax.  

If the PHA determines that the tenancy cannot be approved for any reason, the owner and 
the family will be notified in writing and given the opportunity to address any reasons for 
disapproval. The PHA will instruct the owner and family of the steps that are necessary to 
obtain approval of the tenancy. 

Where the tenancy is not approvable because the unit is not approvable, the 
family must continue to search for eligible housing within the timeframe of the 
issued voucher. 

If the tenancy is not approvable due to rent affordability or rent reasonableness, 
the PHA will attempt to negotiate the rent with the owner. If a new, approvable 
rent is negotiated, the tenancy will be approved. If the owner is not willing to 
negotiate an approvable rent, the family must continue to search for eligible 
housing within the timeframe of the issued voucher. 

445

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-13

9-I.G. HAP CONTRACT EXECUTION [24 CFR 982.305] 

The HAP contract is a written agreement between the PHA and the owner of the dwelling unit. 
Under the HAP contract, the PHA agrees to make housing assistance payments to the owner on 
behalf of the family, and the owner agrees to comply with all program requirements as stated in 
the HAP contract. 

The HAP contract form is prescribed by HUD.  

If the PHA has given approval for the family of the assisted tenancy, the owner and the PHA 
must execute the HAP contract. 

The term of the HAP contract must be the same as the term of the lease [24 CFR 982.451(a)(2)]. 

The PHA is permitted to execute a HAP contract even if the funding currently available does not 
extend for the full term of the HAP contract. 

The PHA must make a best effort to ensure that the HAP contract is executed before the 
beginning of the lease term. Regardless, the HAP contract must be executed no later than 60 
calendar days from the beginning of the lease term. 

The PHA may not pay any housing assistance payment to the owner until the HAP contract has 
been executed. If the HAP contract is executed during the period of 60 calendar days from the 
beginning of the lease term, the PHA will pay housing assistance payments after execution of the 
HAP contract (in accordance with the terms of the HAP contract), to cover the portion of the 
lease term before execution of the HAP contract (a maximum of 60 days).  

Any HAP contract executed after the 60-day period is void, and the PHA may not pay any 
housing assistance payment to the owner. 

PHA Policy 

Owners who have not previously participated in the HCV program must attend a meeting 
with the PHA in which the terms of the Tenancy Addendum and the HAP contract will be 
explained. The PHA may waive this requirement on a case-by-case basis, if it determines 
that the owner is sufficiently familiar with the requirements and responsibilities under the 
HCV program. 

The owner and the assisted family will execute the dwelling lease and the owner must 
provide a copy to the PHA. The PHA will ensure that both the owner and the assisted 
family receive copies of the dwelling lease. 

The owner and the PHA will execute the HAP contract. The PHA will not execute the 
HAP contract until the owner has submitted IRS form W-9. The PHA will ensure that the 
owner receives a copy of the executed HAP contract. 

As required under VAWA 2013, once the HAP contract and lease have been executed 
and the family has been admitted to the program, the PHA will notify families of their 
rights under VAWA by providing all families with a copy of the domestic violence 
certification form (HUD-5382) as well as the VAWA notice of occupancy rights (form 
HUD-5380). 

See Chapter 13 for a discussion of the HAP contract and contract provisions. 

446

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 9-14

9-I.H. CHANGES IN LEASE OR RENT [24 CFR 982.308] 

If the tenant and the owner agree to any changes in the lease, such changes must be in writing, 
and the owner must immediately give the PHA a copy of such changes. The lease, including any 
changes, must remain in accordance with the requirements of this chapter.  

Generally, PHA approval of tenancy and execution of a new HAP contract are not required for 
changes in the lease. However, under certain circumstances, the execution of a new lease and 
HAP contract are required. These circumstances include: 

 Changes in lease requirements governing tenant or owner responsibilities for utilities or 
appliances 

 Changes in lease provisions governing the term of the lease 

 The family moves to a new unit, even if the unit is in the same building or complex 

In these cases, if the HCV assistance is to continue, the family must submit a new Request for 
Tenancy Approval (RTA) along with a new dwelling lease containing the proposed changes. A 
new tenancy must then be approved in accordance with this chapter. 

Where the owner is changing the amount of the rent to owner, the owner must notify the PHA at 
least 60 days before any such changes go into effect [24 CFR 982.308(g)(4)]. The PHA will 
agree to such an increase only if the amount of the rent to owner is considered reasonable 
according to the rent reasonableness standards discussed in Chapter 8. If the requested rent is not 
found to be reasonable, the owner must either reduce the requested rent increase, or terminate the 
tenancy in accordance with the terms of the lease. 

No rent increase is permitted during the initial term of the lease [24 CFR 982.309(a)(3)]. 

PHA Policy 

Where the owner is requesting a rent increase, the PHA will determine whether the 
requested increase is reasonable within 10 business days of receiving the request from the 
owner. The owner will be notified of the determination in writing. 

Rent increases will go into effect on the first of the month following the 60 day period 
after the owner notifies the PHA of the rent change or on the date specified by the owner, 
whichever is later. 

447

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-1

Chapter 10 

MOVING WITH CONTINUED ASSISTANCE AND PORTABILITY 

INTRODUCTION 

Freedom of housing choice is a hallmark of the housing choice voucher (HCV) program. In 
general, HUD regulations impose few restrictions on where families may live or move with HCV 
assistance. This chapter sets forth HUD regulations and PHA policies governing moves within or 
outside the PHA’s jurisdiction in two parts: 

Part I: Moving with Continued Assistance. This part covers the general rules that apply to 
all moves by a family assisted under the PHA’s HCV program, whether the family moves 
to another unit within the PHA’s jurisdiction or to a unit outside the PHA’s jurisdiction 
under portability. 

Part II: Portability. This part covers the special rules that apply to moves by a family 
under portability, whether the family moves out of or into the PHA’s jurisdiction. This 
part also covers the special responsibilities that the PHA has under portability regulations 
and procedures. 

PART I: MOVING WITH CONTINUED ASSISTANCE 

10-I.A. ALLOWABLE MOVES 

HUD lists six regulatory conditions under which an assisted family is allowed to move to a new 
unit with continued assistance. Permission to move is subject to the restrictions set forth in 
section 10-I.B. 

 The family has a right to terminate the lease on notice to the owner (for the owner’s breach or 
otherwise) and has given a notice of termination to the owner in accordance with the lease 
[24 CFR 982.354(b)(3)]. If the family terminates the lease on notice to the owner, the family 
must give the PHA a copy of the notice at the same time [24 CFR 982.354(d)(1)]. 

 The lease for the family’s unit has been terminated by mutual agreement of the owner and the 
family [24 CFR 982.354(b)(1)(ii)]. 

PHA Policy 

If the family and the owner mutually agree to terminate the lease for the family’s unit, the 
family must give the PHA a copy of the termination agreement. 

448

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-2

 The owner has given the family a notice to vacate, has commenced an action to evict the 
family, or has obtained a court judgment or other process allowing the owner to evict the 
family [24 CFR 982.354(b)(2)]. The family must give the PHA a copy of any owner eviction 
notice [24 CFR 982.551(g)]. 

 The family or a member of the family is or has been the victim of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking and the move is needed to protect the health or safety of 
the family or family member [24 CFR 982.354(b)(4)]. This condition applies even when the 
family has moved out of its unit in violation of the lease, with or without prior notification to 
the PHA, if the family or family member who is the victim reasonably believed that he or she 
was imminently threatened by harm from further violence if he or she remained in the unit 
[24 CFR 982.354(b)(4), 24 CFR 982.353(b)]. The PHA must adopt an emergency transfer 
plan as required by regulations at 24 CFR 5.2007(e). 

PHA Policy 

If a family requests permission to move with continued assistance or for an external 
transfer to another covered housing program operated by the PHA based on a claim that 
the move is necessary to protect the health or safety of a family member who is or has 
been the victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the 
PHA will request that the resident request the emergency transfer using form HUD-5383, 
and the PHA will request documentation in accordance with section 16-IX.D of this plan. 

The PHA reserves the right to waive the documentation requirement if it determines that 
a statement or other corroborating evidence from the family or family member will 
suffice. In such cases the PHA will document the waiver in the family’s file. 

The PHA may choose to provide a voucher to facilitate an emergency transfer of the 
victim without first terminating the assistance of the perpetrator. 

Before granting an emergency transfer, the PHA will ensure the victim is eligible to 
receive continued assistance based on the citizenship or immigration status of the victim. 

The PHA has adopted an emergency transfer plan, which is included as Exhibit 16-3 to 
this plan and discusses external transfers to other covered housing programs. 

 The PHA has terminated the HAP contract for the family’s unit for the owner’s breach [24 
CFR 982.354(b)(1)(i)]. 

 The PHA determines that the family’s current unit does not meet the HQS space standards 
because of an increase in family size or a change in family composition. In such cases, the 
PHA must issue the family a new voucher, and the family and PHA must try to find an 
acceptable unit as soon as possible. If an acceptable unit is available for the family, the PHA 
must terminate the HAP contract for the family’s old unit in accordance with the HAP 
contract terms and must notify both the family and the owner of the termination. The HAP 
contract terminates at the end of the calendar month that follows the calendar month in which 
the PHA gives notice to the owner. [24 CFR 982.403(a) and (c)] 

449

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-3

10-I.B. RESTRICTIONS ON MOVES 

A family’s right to move is generally contingent upon the family’s compliance with program 
requirements [24 CFR 982.1(b)(2)]. HUD specifies two conditions under which a PHA may 
deny a family permission to move and two ways in which a PHA may restrict moves by a family. 

Denial of Moves 

HUD regulations permit the PHA to deny a family permission to move under the following 
conditions: 

Insufficient Funding 

The PHA may deny a family permission to move either within or outside the PHA’s jurisdiction 
if the PHA does not have sufficient funding for continued assistance [24 CFR 982.354(e)(1)]. 
However, Notice PIH 2016-09 significantly restricts the ability of PHAs to deny permission to 
move due to insufficient funding and places further requirements on PHAs regarding moves 
denied due to lack of funding. The requirements found in this notice are mandatory.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will deny a family permission to move on grounds that the PHA does not have 
sufficient funding for continued assistance if (a) the move is initiated by the family, not 
the owner or the PHA; (b) the PHA can demonstrate that the move will, in fact, result in 
higher subsidy costs (c) the PHA can demonstrate, in accordance with the policies in Part 
VIII of Chapter 16, that it does not have sufficient funding in its annual budget to 
accommodate the higher subsidy costs; and (d) for portability moves, the receiving PHA 
is not absorbing the voucher.  

If the PHA does not have sufficient funding for continued assistance, but the family must 
move from their unit (e.g., the unit failed HQS), the family may move to a higher cost 
unit if the move is within the PHA’s jurisdiction. The PHA, however, will not allow the 
family to move under portability in this situation if the family wishes to move to a higher 
cost area. 

For both moves within the PHA’s jurisdiction and outside under portability, the PHA will 
not deny a move due to insufficient funding if the PHA previously approved the move 
and subsequently experienced a funding shortfall if the family cannot remain in their 
current unit. The PHA will rescind the voucher in this situation if the family will be 
allowed to remain in their current unit.  

The PHA will create a list of families whose moves have been denied due to insufficient 
funding. The PHA will keep the family’s request open indefinitely, and when funds 
become available, the families on this list will take precedence over families on the 
waiting list. The PHA will use the same procedures for notifying families with open 
requests to move when funds become available as it uses for notifying families on the 
waiting list (see section 4-III.D). 

The PHA will inform the family of its policy regarding moves denied due to insufficient 
funding in a letter to the family at the time the move is denied. 

450

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-4

Grounds for Denial or Termination of Assistance 

The PHA may deny a family permission to move if it has grounds for denying or terminating the 
family’s assistance [24 CFR 982.354(e)(2)]. 

PHA Policy 

If the PHA has grounds for denying or terminating a family’s assistance, the PHA will act 
on those grounds in accordance with the regulations and policies set forth in Chapters 3 
and 12, respectively. In general, it will not deny a family permission to move for this 
reason; however, it retains the discretion to do so under special circumstances. 

Restrictions on Elective Moves [24 CFR 982.354(c)] 

HUD regulations permit the PHA to prohibit any elective move by a participant family during 
the family’s initial lease term. They also permit the PHA to prohibit more than one elective move 
by a participant family during any 12-month period. However, such prohibitions, if adopted, do 
not apply when the family or a member of the family is or has been the victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking and the move is needed to protect the health 
or safety of the family or family member. (For the policy on documentation of abuse, see section 
10-I.A.) In addition, the PHA may not establish a policy permitting moves only at reexamination 
[Notice PIH 2016-09]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will deny a family permission to make an elective move during the family’s 
initial lease term. This policy applies to moves within the PHA’s jurisdiction or outside it 
under portability. 

The PHA will also deny a family permission to make more than one elective move during 
any 12-month period. This policy applies to all assisted families residing in the PHA’s 
jurisdiction. 

The PHA will consider exceptions to these policies for the following reasons: to protect 
the health or safety of a family member (e.g., lead-based paint hazards, domestic 
violence, witness protection programs), to accommodate a change in family 
circumstances (e.g., new employment, school attendance in a distant area), or to address 
an emergency situation over which a family has no control. 

In addition, the PHA will allow exceptions to these policies for purposes of reasonable 
accommodation of a family member who is a person with disabilities (see Chapter 2). 

451

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-5

10-I.C. MOVING PROCESS 

Notification 

If a family wishes to move to a new unit, the family must notify the PHA and the owner before 
moving out of the old unit or terminating the lease on notice to the owner [24 CFR 
982.354(d)(2)]. If the family wishes to move to a unit outside the PHA’s jurisdiction under 
portability, the notice to the PHA must specify the area where the family wishes to move [24 
CFR 982.354(d)(2)]. The notices must be in writing [24 CFR 982.5]. 

Approval 

PHA Policy 

Upon receipt of a family’s notification that it wishes to move, the PHA will determine 
whether the move is approvable in accordance with the regulations and policies set forth 
in sections 10-I.A and 10-I.B. The PHA will notify the family in writing of its 
determination within 10 business days following receipt of the family’s notification. 

Reexamination of Family Income and Composition 

PHA Policy 

For families approved to move to a new unit within the PHA’s jurisdiction, the PHA will 
perform a new annual reexamination in accordance with the policies set forth in 
Chapter 11 of this plan. 

For families moving into or families approved to move out of the PHA’s jurisdiction 
under portability, the PHA will follow the policies set forth in Part II of this chapter. 

Voucher Issuance and Briefing 

PHA Policy 

For families approved to move to a new unit within the PHA’s jurisdiction, the PHA will 
issue a new voucher within 10 business days of the PHA’s written approval to move.  No 
briefing is required for these families. The PHA will follow the policies set forth in 
Chapter 5 on voucher term, extension, and expiration. If a family does not locate a new 
unit within the term of the voucher and any extensions, the family may remain in its 
current unit with continued voucher assistance if the owner agrees and the PHA approves. 
Otherwise, the family will lose its assistance. 

For families moving into or families approved to move out of the PHA’s jurisdiction 
under portability, the PHA will follow the policies set forth in Part II of this chapter. 

452

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-6

Housing Assistance Payments [24 CFR 982.311(d)] 

When a family moves out of an assisted unit, the PHA may not make any housing assistance 
payment to the owner for any month after the month the family moves out. The owner may keep 
the housing assistance payment for the month when the family moves out of the unit. 

If a participant family moves from an assisted unit with continued tenant-based assistance, the 
term of the assisted lease for the new assisted unit may begin during the month the family moves 
out of the first assisted unit. Overlap of the last housing assistance payment (for the month when 
the family moves out of the old unit) and the first assistance payment for the new unit, is not 
considered to constitute a duplicative housing subsidy. 

Zero HAP Families Who Wish to Move [24 CFR 982.455] 

A participant who is not receiving any subsidy, but whose HAP contract is still in force, may 
request a voucher to move to a different unit. The PHA must issue a voucher to move unless it 
has grounds to deny assistance under the program regulations. However, if the PHA determines 
no subsidy would be paid at the new unit, the PHA may refuse to enter into a HAP contract on 
behalf of the family. 

PHA Policy 

If a zero HAP family requests to move to a new unit, the family may request a voucher to 
move. However, if no subsidy will be paid at the unit to which the family requests to 
move, the PHA will not enter into a HAP contract on behalf of the family for the 
new unit. 

453

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-7

PART II: PORTABILITY 

10-II.A. OVERVIEW 

Within the limitations of the regulations and this plan, a participant family or an applicant family 
that has been issued a voucher has the right to use tenant-based voucher assistance to lease a unit 
anywhere in the United States providing that the unit is located within the jurisdiction of a PHA 
administering a tenant-based voucher program [24 CFR 982.353(b)]. The process by which a 
family obtains a voucher from one PHA and uses it to lease a unit in the jurisdiction of another 
PHA is known as portability. The PHA that issues the voucher is called the initial PHA. The 
PHA that has jurisdiction in the area to which the family wants to move is called the 
receiving PHA. 

The receiving PHA has the option of administering the family’s voucher for the initial PHA or 
absorbing the family into its own program. Under the first option, the receiving PHA provides all 
housing services for the family and bills the initial PHA for the family’s housing assistance 
payments and the fees for administering the family’s voucher. Under the second option, the 
receiving PHA pays for the family’s assistance with its own program funds, and the initial PHA 
has no further relationship with the family. The initial PHA must contact the receiving PHA via 
email or other confirmed delivery method to determine whether the receiving PHA will 
administer or absorb the initial PHA’s voucher. Based on the receiving PHA’s response, the 
initial PHA must determine whether they will approve or deny the portability request [Notice 
PIH 2016-09]. 

PHAs commonly act as both the initial and receiving PHA because families may move into or 
out of their jurisdiction under portability. Each role involves different responsibilities. The PHA 
will follow the rules and policies in section 10-II.B when it is acting as the initial PHA for a 
family. It will follow the rules and policies in section 10-II.C when it is acting as the receiving 
PHA for a family. 

In administering portability, the initial PHA and the receiving PHA must comply with financial 
procedures required by HUD, including the use of HUD-required forms [24 CFR 982.355(e)(5)].  

PHAs must also comply with billing and payment deadlines. HUD may reduce an administrative 
fee to an initial or receiving PHA if the PHA does not comply with HUD portability 
requirements [24 CFR 982.355(e)(7)].  

454

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-8

10-II.B. INITIAL PHA ROLE 

Allowable Moves under Portability 

A family may move with voucher assistance only to an area where there is at least one PHA 
administering a voucher program [24 CFR 982.353(b)]. If there is more than one PHA in the 
area, the initial PHA provides the family with the contact information for the receiving PHAs 
that serve the area, and the family selects the receiving PHA. The family must inform the initial 
PHA which PHA it has selected. If the family prefers not to select the receiving PHA, the initial 
PHA will select the receiving PHA on behalf of the family [24 CFR 982.255(b)]. 

Applicant families that have been issued vouchers as well as participant families may qualify to 
lease a unit outside the PHA’s jurisdiction under portability. HUD regulations and PHA policy 
determine whether a family qualifies. 

Applicant Families 

Under HUD regulations, most applicant families qualify to lease a unit outside the PHA’s 
jurisdiction under portability. However, HUD gives the PHA discretion to deny a portability 
move by an applicant family for the same two reasons that it may deny any move by a participant 
family: insufficient funding and grounds for denial or termination of assistance. If a PHA intends 
to deny a family permission to move under portability due to insufficient funding, the PHA must 
notify HUD within 10 business days of the determination to deny the move [24 CFR 
982.355(e)].  

PHA Policy 

In determining whether or not to deny an applicant family permission to move under 
portability because the PHA lacks sufficient funding or has grounds for denying 
assistance to the family, the initial PHA will follow the policies established in 
section 10-I.B of this chapter. If the PHA does deny the move due to insufficient 
funding, the PHA will notify HUD in writing within 10 business days of the PHA’s 
determination to deny the move.  

In addition, the PHA may establish a policy denying the right to portability to nonresident 
applicants during the first 12 months after they are admitted to the program [24 CFR 
982.353(c)]. 

PHA Policy 

If neither the head of household nor the spouse/cohead of an applicant family had a 
domicile (legal residence) in the PHA’s jurisdiction at the time that the family’s 
application for assistance was submitted, the family will be allowed to move PHA’s 
jurisdiction under portability [24 CFR 982.353 9(c)]. 

455

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-9

Participant Families 

The initial PHA must not provide portable assistance for a participant if a family has moved out 
of its assisted unit in violation of the lease [24 CFR 982.353(b)]. The Violence against Women 
Act of 2013 (VAWA) creates an exception to this prohibition for families who are otherwise in 
compliance with program obligations but have moved to protect the health or safety of a family 
member who is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking and who reasonably believed he or she was imminently threatened by harm from further 
violence if he or she remained in the unit [24 CFR 982.353(b)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will determine whether a participant family may move out of the PHA’s 
jurisdiction with continued assistance in accordance with the regulations and policies set 
forth here and in sections 10-I.A and 10-I.B of this chapter. The PHA will notify the 
family of its determination in accordance with the approval policy set forth in section 10-
I.C of this chapter. 

Determining Income Eligibility 

Applicant Families 

An applicant family may lease a unit in a particular area under portability only if the family is 
income eligible for admission to the voucher program in that area [24 CFR 982.353(d)(1)]. The 
family must specify the area to which the family wishes to move [24 CFR 982.355(c)(1)]. 

The initial PHA is responsible for determining whether the family is income eligible in the area 
to which the family wishes to move [24 CFR 982.353(d)(1), 24 CFR 982.355(9)]. If the 
applicant family is not income eligible in that area, the PHA must inform the family that it may 
not move there and receive voucher assistance [Notice PIH 2016-09]. 

Participant Families 

The income eligibility of a participant family is not redetermined if the family moves to a new 
jurisdiction under portability [24 CFR 982.353(d)(2)]. 

Reexamination of Family Income and Composition 

No new reexamination of family income and composition is required for an applicant family. 

PHA Policy 

For a participant family approved to move out of its jurisdiction under portability, the 
PHA generally will conduct a reexamination of family income and composition only if 
the family’s annual reexamination must be completed on or before the initial billing 
deadline specified on form HUD-52665, Family Portability Information. 

The PHA will make any exceptions to this policy necessary to remain in compliance with 
HUD regulations. 

456

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-10

Briefing 

The regulations and policies on briefings set forth in Chapter 5 of this plan require the PHA to 
provide information on portability to all applicant families that qualify to lease a unit outside the 
PHA’s jurisdiction under the portability procedures. Therefore, no special briefing is required for 
these families. 

PHA Policy 

No formal briefing will be required for a participant family wishing to move outside the 
PHA’s jurisdiction under portability. However, the PHA will provide the family with the  
same oral and written explanation of portability that it provides to applicant families 
selected for admission to the program (see Chapter 5).  

The PHA will provide the name, address, and phone of the contact for the PHAs in the 
jurisdiction to which they wish to move. If there is more than one PHA with jurisdiction 
over the area to which the family wishes to move, the PHA will advise the family that the 
family selects the receiving PHA and notify the initial PHA of which receiving PHA was 
selected. The PHA will provide the family with contact information for all of the 
receiving PHAs that serve the area. The PHA will not provide any additional information 
about receiving PHAs in the area. The PHA will further inform the family that if the 
family prefers not to select the receiving PHA, the initial PHA will select the receiving 
PHA on behalf of the family. In this case, the PHA will not provide the family with 
information for all receiving PHAs in the area. 

The PHA will advise the family that they will be under the RHA’s policies and 
procedures, including screening, subsidy standards, voucher extension policies, and 
payment standards. 

Voucher Issuance and Term 

An applicant family has no right to portability until after the family has been issued a voucher 
[24 CFR 982.353(b)]. In issuing vouchers to applicant families, the PHA will follow the 
regulations and procedures set forth in Chapter 5.  

PHA Policy 

For participating families approved to move under portability, the PHA will issue a new 
voucher within 10 business days of the PHA’s written approval to move. 

The initial term of the voucher will be 120 days.  

457

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-11

Voucher Extensions and Expiration 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will approve no extensions to a voucher issued to an applicant or participant 
family porting out of the PHA’s jurisdiction except under the following circumstances: 
(a) the initial term of the voucher will expire before the portable family will be issued a 
voucher by the receiving PHA, (b) the family decides to return to the initial PHA’s 
jurisdiction and search for a unit there, or (c) the family decides to search for a unit in a 
third PHA’s jurisdiction. In such cases, the policies on voucher extensions set forth in 
Chapter 5, section 5-II.E, of this plan will apply, including the requirement that the 
family apply for an extension in writing prior to the expiration of the initial voucher term. 

To receive or continue receiving assistance under the initial PHA’s voucher program, a 
family that moves to another PHA’s jurisdiction under portability must be under HAP 
contract in the receiving PHA’s jurisdiction within 90 days following the expiration date 
of the initial PHA’s voucher term (including any extensions). (See below under “Initial 
Billing Deadline” for one exception to this policy.) 

Preapproval Contact with the Receiving PHA 

Prior to approving a family’s request to move under portability, the initial PHA must contact the 
receiving PHA via email or other confirmed delivery method to determine whether the receiving 
PHA will administer or absorb the family’s voucher. Based on the receiving PHA’s response, the 
initial PHA must determine whether it will approve or deny the move [24 CFR 982.355(c)(3)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will use email, when possible, to contact the receiving PHA regarding whether 
the receiving PHA will administer or absorb the family’s voucher.  

Initial Notification to the Receiving PHA 

After approving a family’s request to move under portability, the initial PHA must promptly 
notify the receiving PHA via email or other confirmed delivery method to expect the family [24 
CFR 982.355(c)(3); 24 CFR 982.355(c)(7)]. The initial PHA must also advise the family how to 
contact and request assistance from the receiving PHA [24 CFR 982.355(c)(6)]. 

PHA Policy 

Because the portability process is time-sensitive, the PHA will notify the receiving PHA 
by phone, fax, or email to expect the family. The initial PHA will also ask the receiving 
PHA to provide any information the family may need upon arrival, including the name, 
fax, email address, and telephone number of the staff person responsible for business 
with incoming portable families and procedures related to appointments for voucher 
issuance. The PHA will pass this information along to the family. The PHA will also ask 
for the name, address, telephone number, fax and email of the person responsible for 
processing the billing information. 

458

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-12

Sending Documentation to the Receiving PHA 

The initial PHA is required to send the receiving PHA the following documents: 

 Form HUD-52665, Family Portability Information, with Part I filled out  
[Notice PIH 2016-09] 

 A copy of the family’s voucher [Notice PIH 2016-09] 

 A copy of the family’s most recent form HUD-50058, Family Report, or, if necessary in the 
case of an applicant family, family and income information in a format similar to that of form 
HUD-50058 [24 CFR 982.355(c)(7), Notice PIH 2016-09] 

 Copies of the income verifications backing up the form HUD-50058, including a copy of the 
family’s current EIV data [24 CFR 982.355(c)(7), Notice PIH 2016-09] 

PHA Policy 

In addition to these documents, the PHA will provide the following information, if 
available, to the receiving PHA: 

Social security numbers (SSNs) 

Documentation of SSNs for all nonexempt household members whose SSNs have 
not been verified through the EIV system 

Documentation of legal identity 

Documentation of citizenship or eligible immigration status 

The PHA will notify the family in writing regarding any information provided to the 
receiving PHA [HCV GB, p. 13-3]. 

459

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-13

Initial Billing Deadline [Notice PIH 2016-09] 

The deadline for submission of initial billing is 90 days following the expiration date of the 
voucher issued to the family by the initial PHA. In cases where suspension of the voucher delays 
the initial billing submission, the receiving PHA must notify the initial PHA of delayed billing 
before the billing deadline and document the delay is due to the suspension. In this case, the 
initial PHA must extend the billing deadline by 30 days.  

If the initial PHA does not receive a billing notice by the deadline and does not intend to honor a 
late billing submission, it must notify the initial PHA in writing. The initial PHA may report to 
HUD the receiving PHA’s failure to comply with the deadline. 

If the initial PHA will honor the late billing, no action is required. 

PHA Policy 

If the PHA has not received an initial billing notice from the receiving PHA within the 
billing deadline, it will contact the receiving PHA to inform them that it will not honor a 
late billing submission and will return any subsequent billings that it receives on behalf of 
the family. The PHA will send the receiving PHA a written confirmation of its decision 
by mail. 

The PHA will allow an exception to this policy if the family includes a person with 
disabilities and the late billing is a result of a reasonable accommodation granted to the 
family by the receiving PHA. 

460

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-14

Monthly Billing Payments [24 CFR 982.355(e), Notice PIH 2016-09] 

If the receiving PHA is administering the family’s voucher, the receiving PHA bills the initial 
PHA for housing assistance payments and administrative fees. When reimbursing for 
administrative fees, the initial PHA must promptly reimburse the receiving PHA for the lesser of 
80 percent of the initial PHA ongoing administrative fee or 100 percent of the receiving PHA’s 
ongoing administrative fee for each program unit under contract on the first day of the month for 
which the receiving PHA is billing the initial PHA under portability. If the administrative fees 
are prorated for the HCV program, the proration will apply to the amount of the administrative 
fee for which the receiving PHA may bill [24 CFR 982.355(e)(2)]. 

The initial PHA is responsible for making billing payments in a timely manner. The first billing 
amount is due within 30 calendar days after the initial PHA receives Part II of form HUD-52665 
from the receiving PHA. Subsequent payments must be received by the receiving PHA no later 
than the fifth business day of each month. The payments must be provided in a form and manner 
that the receiving PHA is able and willing to accept. 

The initial PHA may not terminate or delay making payments under existing portability billing 
arrangements as a result of overleasing or funding shortfalls. The PHA must manage its tenant-
based program in a manner that ensures that it has the financial ability to provide assistance for 
families that move out of its jurisdiction under portability and are not absorbed by receiving 
PHAs as well as for families that remain within its jurisdiction. 

PHA Policy 

This PHA 

Annual Updates of Form HUD-50058 

If the initial PHA is being billed on behalf of a portable family, it should receive an updated form 
HUD-50058 each year from the receiving PHA. If the initial PHA fails to receive an updated 
50058 by the family’s annual reexamination date, the initial PHA should contact the receiving 
PHA to verify the status of the family. The initial PHA must continue paying the receiving PHA 
based on the last form HUD-50058 received, unless instructed otherwise by HUD. The initial 
PHA may seek absorption of the vouchers by following steps outlined in Notice PIH 2016-09. 

Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 982.355(c)(17)] 

At any time, either the initial PHA or the receiving PHA may make a determination to deny or 
terminate assistance with the family in accordance with 24 CFR 982.552 and 24 CFR 982.553. 
(For PHA policies on denial and termination, see Chapters 3 and 12, respectively.) 

461

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-15

10-II.C. RECEIVING PHA ROLE 

If a family has a right to lease a unit in the receiving PHA’s jurisdiction under portability, the 
receiving PHA must provide assistance for the family [24 CFR 982.355(10)]. HUD may 
determine in certain instances that a PHA is not required to accept incoming portable families, 
such as a PHA in a declared disaster area. However, the PHA must have approval in writing 
from HUD before refusing any incoming portable families [24 CFR 982.355(b)]. 

Administration of the voucher must be in accordance with the receiving PHA’s policies. This 
requirement also applies to policies of Moving to Work agencies. The receiving PHA procedures 
and preferences for selection among eligible applicants do not apply to the family, and the 
receiving PHA waiting list is not used [24 CFR 982.355(c)(10)]. The family’s unit, or voucher, 
size is determined in accordance with the subsidy standards of the receiving PHA [24 CFR 
982.355(c)(12)], and the receiving PHA’s policies on extensions of the voucher term apply [24 
CFR 982.355(c)(14)].  

Responding to Initial PHA’s Request [24 CFR 982.355(c)] 

The receiving PHA must respond via email or other confirmed delivery method to the initial 
PHA’s inquiry to determine whether the family’s voucher will be billed or absorbed [24 CFR 
982.355(c)(3)]. If the receiving PHA informs the initial PHA that it will be absorbing the 
voucher, the receiving PHA cannot reverse its decision at a later date without consent of the 
initial PHA (24 CFR 982.355(c)(4). 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will use email, when possible, to notify the initial PHA whether it will 
administer or absorb the family’s voucher. 

Initial Contact with Family  

When a family moves into the PHA’s jurisdiction under portability, the family is responsible for 
promptly contacting the PHA and complying with the PHA’s procedures for incoming portable 
families. The family’s failure to comply may result in denial or termination of the receiving 
PHA’s voucher [24 CFR 982.355(c)(8)]. 

If the voucher issued to the family by the initial PHA has expired, the receiving PHA must 
contact the initial PHA to determine if it will extend the voucher [24 CFR 982.355(c)(13)]. An 
informal hearing is not required when a voucher has expired without the family leasing a unit. 

If for any reason the receiving PHA refuses to process or provide assistance to a family under the 
portability procedures, the family must be given the opportunity for an informal review or 
hearing [Notice PIH 2016-09]. (For more on this topic, see later under “Denial or Termination 
of Assistance.”)  

462

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-16

Briefing 

HUD allows the receiving PHA to require a briefing for an incoming portable family as long as 
the requirement does not unduly delay the family’s search [Notice PIH 2016-09]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not require the family to attend a briefing.  The PHA will provide the 
family with a briefing packet (as described in Chapter 5) and, in an individual briefing, 
will orally inform the family about the PHA’s payment and subsidy standards, procedures 
for requesting approval of a unit, the unit inspection process, and the leasing process.   

Income Eligibility and Reexamination 

The receiving PHA does not redetermine eligibility for a portable family that was already 
receiving assistance in the initial PHA’s voucher program [24 CFR 982.355(c)(9)]. If the 
receiving PHA opts to conduct a new reexamination for a current participant family, the 
receiving PHA may not delay issuing the family a voucher or otherwise delay approval of a unit 
[24 CFR 982.355(c)(11)]. 

PHA Policy 

For any family moving into its jurisdiction under portability, the PHA will conduct a new 
reexamination of family income and composition. However, the PHA will not delay 
issuing the family a voucher for this reason. Nor will the PHA delay approving a unit for 
the family until the reexamination process is complete unless the family is an applicant 
and the PHA cannot otherwise confirm that the family is income eligible for admission to 
the program in the area where the unit is located. 

In conducting its own reexamination, the PHA will rely upon any verifications provided 
by the initial PHA to the extent that they (a) accurately reflect the family’s current 
circumstances and (b) were obtained within the last 120 days.  Any new information may 
be verified by documents provided by the family and adjusted, if necessary, when third 
party verification is received. 

463

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-17

Voucher Issuance 

When a family moves into its jurisdiction under portability, the receiving PHA is required to 
issue the family a voucher [24 CFR 982.355(c)(13)]. The family must submit a request for 
tenancy approval to the receiving PHA during the term of the receiving PHA’s voucher [24 CFR 
982.355(c)(15)]. 

Timing of Voucher Issuance 

HUD expects the receiving PHA to issue the voucher within two weeks after receiving the 
family’s paperwork from the initial PHA if the information is in order, the family has contacted 
the receiving PHA, and the family complies with the receiving PHA’s procedures [Notice 
PIH 2016-09]. 

PHA Policy 

When a family ports into its jurisdiction, the PHA will issue the family a voucher based 
on the paperwork provided by the initial PHA unless the family’s paperwork from the 
initial PHA is incomplete, the family’s voucher from the initial PHA has expired or the 
family does not comply with the PHA’s procedures. The PHA will update the family’s 
information when verification has been completed. 

Voucher Term 

The term of the receiving PHA’s voucher may not expire before 30 calendar days from the 
expiration of the initial PHA’s voucher [24 CFR 982.355(c)(13)]. If the initial PHA extends the 
term of the voucher, the receiving PHA’s voucher may not expire before 30 days from the new 
expiration date of the initial PHA’s voucher [Notice PIH 2016-09]. 

PHA Policy 

The receiving PHA’s voucher will expire 30 calendars days from the expiration date of 
the initial PHA’s voucher. If the initial PHA extends the term of the voucher, the 
receiving PHA’s voucher will expire 30 calendar days from the new expiration date of 
the initial PHA’s voucher. 

Voucher Extensions [24 CFR 982.355(c)(14), Notice 2016-09] 

Once the receiving PHA issues the portable family a voucher, the receiving PHA’s policies on 
extensions of the voucher term apply. The receiving PHA must inform the initial PHA of any 
extension granted to the term of the voucher. It must also bear in mind the billing deadline 
provided by the initial PHA. Unless willing and able to absorb the family, the receiving PHA 
should ensure that any voucher expiration date would leave sufficient time to process a request 
for tenancy approval, execute a HAP contract, and deliver the initial billing to the initial PHA. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA generally will not extend the term of the voucher that it issues to an incoming 
portable family unless the PHA plans to absorb the family into its own program, in which 
case it will follow the policies on voucher extension set forth in section 5-II.E. 

The PHA will consider an exception to this policy as a reasonable accommodation to a 
person with disabilities (see Chapter 2). 

464

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-18

Voucher Suspensions [24 CFR 982.303, 24 CFR 982.355(c)(15)] 

If the family submits a request for tenancy approval during the term of the receiving PHA’s 
voucher, the PHA must suspend the term of that voucher. The term of the voucher stops from the 
date that the family submits a request for PHA approval of the tenancy until the date the PHA 
notifies the family in writing whether the request has been approved or denied [24 CFR 982.4(b)] 
(see Section 5-II.E).  

Notifying the Initial PHA 

The receiving PHA must promptly notify the initial PHA if the family has leased an eligible unit 
under the program or if the family fails to submit a request for tenancy approval for an eligible 
unit within the term of the receiving PHA’s voucher [24 CFR 982.355(c)(16)]. The receiving 
PHA is required to use Part II of form HUD-52665, Family Portability Information, for this 
purpose [Notice PIH 2016-09]. (For more on this topic and the deadline for notification, see 
below under “Administering a Portable Family’s Voucher.”) 

If an incoming portable family ultimately decides not to lease in the jurisdiction of the receiving 
PHA but instead wishes to return to the initial PHA’s jurisdiction or to search in another 
jurisdiction, the receiving PHA must refer the family back to the initial PHA. In such a case the 
voucher of record for the family is once again the voucher originally issued by the initial PHA. 
Any extension of search time provided by the receiving PHA’s voucher is only valid for the 
family’s search in the receiving PHA’s jurisdiction [Notice PIH 2016-09]. 

Administering a Portable Family’s Voucher 

Portability Billing [24 CFR 982.355(e)] 

To cover assistance for a portable family that was not absorbed, the receiving PHA bills the 
initial PHA for housing assistance payments and administrative fees. The amount of the housing 
assistance payment for a portable family in the receiving PHA’s program is determined in the 
same manner as for other families in the receiving PHA’s program. 

The receiving PHA may bill the initial PHA for the lesser of 80 percent of the initial PHA’s 
ongoing administrative fee or 100 percent of the receiving PHA’s ongoing administrative fee for 
each program unit under contract on the first day of the month for which the receiving PHA is 
billing the initial PHA under portability. If the administrative fees are prorated for the HCV 
program, the proration will apply to the amount of the administrative fee for which the receiving 
PHA may bill (i.e., the receiving PHA may bill for the lesser of 80 percent of the initial PHA’s 
prorated ongoing administrative fee or 100 percent of the receiving PHA’s ongoing 
administrative fee). 

If both PHAs agree, the PHAs may negotiate a different amount of reimbursement. 

PHA Policy 

Unless the PHA negotiates a different amount of reimbursement with the initial PHA, the 
PHA will bill the initial PHA the maximum amount of administrative fees allowed, 
ensuring any administrative fee proration has been properly applied.  

465

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-19

Initial Billing Deadline 

If a portable family’s search for a unit is successful and the receiving PHA intends to administer 
the family’s voucher, the receiving PHA must submit its initial billing notice (Part II of form 
HUD-52665) in time that the notice will be received no later than 90 days following the 
expiration date of the family’s voucher issued by the initial PHA [Notice PIH 2016-09]. This 
deadline may be extended for 30 additional days if the delay is due to suspension of the 
voucher’s term (see Initial Billing Section). A copy of the family’s form HUD-50058, Family 
Report, completed by the receiving PHA must be attached to the initial billing notice. The 
receiving PHA may send these documents by mail, fax, or email. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will send its initial billing notice by fax or email, if necessary, to meet the 
billing deadline but will also send the notice by regular mail. 

If the receiving PHA fails to send the initial billing by the deadline, it is required to absorb the 
family into its own program unless (a) the initial PHA is willing to accept the late submission or 
(b) HUD requires the initial PHA to honor the late submission (e.g., because the receiving PHA 
is overleased) [Notice PIH 2016-09]. 

Ongoing Notification Responsibilities [Notice PIH 2016-09, HUD-52665] 

Annual Reexamination. The receiving PHA must send the initial PHA a copy of a portable 
family’s updated form HUD-50058 after each annual reexamination for the duration of time the 
receiving PHA is billing the initial PHA on behalf of the family, regardless of whether there is a 
change in the billing amount. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will send a copy of the updated HUD-50058 by regular mail no later than 10 
business days after the effective date of the reexamination.  

Change in Billing Amount. The receiving PHA is required to notify the initial PHA, using form 
HUD-52665, of any change in the billing amount for the family as a result of: 

 A change in the HAP amount (because of a reexamination, a change in the applicable 
payment standard, a move to another unit, etc.) 

 An abatement or subsequent resumption of the HAP payments 

 Termination of the HAP contract 

 Payment of a damage/vacancy loss claim for the family 

 Termination of the family from the program 

466

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-20

The timing of the notice of the change in the billing amount should correspond with the 
notification to the owner and the family in order to provide the initial PHA with advance notice 
of the change. Under no circumstances should the notification be later than 10 business days 
following the effective date of the change in the billing amount. If the receiving PHA fails to 
send Form HUD-52665 within 10 days of effective date of billing changes, the initial PHA is not 
responsible for any increase prior to notification. If the change resulted in a decrease in the 
monthly billing amount, the initial PHA will offset future monthly payments until the difference 
is reconciled. 

Late Payments [Notice PIH 2016-09] 

If the initial PHA fails to make a monthly payment for a portable family by the fifth business day 
of the month, the receiving PHA must promptly notify the initial PHA in writing of the 
deficiency. The notice must identify the family, the amount of the billing payment, the date the 
billing payment was due, and the date the billing payment was received (if it arrived late). The 
receiving PHA must send a copy of the notification to the Office of Public Housing (OPH) in the 
HUD area office with jurisdiction over the receiving PHA. If the initial PHA fails to correct the 
problem by the second month following the notification, the receiving PHA may request by 
memorandum to the director of the OPH with jurisdiction over the receiving PHA that HUD 
transfer the unit in question. A copy of the initial notification and any subsequent 
correspondence between the PHAs on the matter must be attached. The receiving PHA must 
send a copy of the memorandum to the initial PHA. If the OPH decides to grant the transfer, the 
billing arrangement on behalf of the family ceases with the transfer, but the initial PHA is still 
responsible for any outstanding payments due to the receiving PHA. 

Overpayments [Notice PIH 2016-09] 

In all cases where the receiving PHA has received billing payments for billing arrangements no 
longer in effect, the receiving PHA is responsible for returning the full amount of the 
overpayment (including the portion provided for administrative fees) to the initial PHA. 

In the event that HUD determines billing payments have continued for at least three months 
because the receiving PHA failed to notify the initial PHA that the billing arrangement was 
terminated, the receiving PHA must take the following steps: 

 Return the full amount of the overpayment, including the portion provided for administrative 
fees, to the initial PHA. 

 Once full payment has been returned, notify the Office of Public Housing in the HUD area 
office with jurisdiction over the receiving PHA of the date and the amount of reimbursement 
to the initial PHA. 

At HUD’s discretion, the receiving PHA will be subject to the sanctions spelled out in Notice 
PIH 2016-09. 

467

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-21

Denial or Termination of Assistance 

At any time, the receiving PHA may make a determination to deny or terminate assistance to a 
portable family for family action or inaction [24 CFR 982.355(c)(17)]. 

In the case of a termination, the PHA should provide adequate notice of the effective date to the 
initial PHA to avoid having to return a payment. In no event should the receiving PHA fail to 
notify the initial PHA later than 10 business days following the effective date of the termination 
of the billing arrangement [HUD-52665; Notice PIH 2016-09]. 

PHA Policy 

If the PHA elects to deny or terminate assistance for a portable family, the PHA will 
notify the initial PHA within 10 business days after the informal review or hearing if the 
denial or termination is upheld. The PHA will base its denial or termination decision on 
the policies set forth in Chapter 3 or Chapter 12, respectively. The informal review or 
hearing will be held in accordance with the policies in Chapter 16. The receiving PHA 
will furnish the initial PHA with a copy of the review or hearing decision. 

468

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 10-22

Absorbing a Portable Family 

The receiving PHA may absorb an incoming portable family into its own program when the 
PHA executes a HAP contract on behalf of the family or at any time thereafter providing that 
the PHA has funding available under its annual contributions contract (ACC) [24 CFR 
982.355(d)(1), Notice PIH 2016-09]. 

If the receiving PHA absorbs a family from the point of admission, the admission will be 
counted against the income targeting obligation of the receiving PHA [24 CFR 
982.201(b)(2)(vii)]. 

If the receiving PHA absorbs a family after providing assistance for the family under a billing 
arrangement with the initial PHA, the receiving PHA must send an updated form HUD-52665 to 
the initial PHA no later than 10 business days following the effective date of the termination of 
the billing arrangement [Notice PIH 2016-09]. 

PHA Policy 

If the PHA decides to absorb a portable family upon the execution of a HAP contract on 
behalf of the family, the PHA will notify the initial PHA by the initial billing deadline 
specified on form HUD-52665. The effective date of the HAP contract will be the 
effective date of the absorption. 

If the PHA decides to absorb a family after that, it will provide the initial PHA with 30 
days’ advance notice, but no later than 10 business days following the effective date of 
the termination of the billing arrangement. 

Following the absorption of an incoming portable family, the family is assisted with funds 
available under the consolidated ACC for the receiving PHA’s voucher program [24 CFR 
982.355(d)], and the receiving PHA becomes the initial PHA in any subsequent moves by the 
family under portability [24 CFR 982.355(e)(4)]. 

469

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-1

Chapter 11 

REEXAMINATIONS 

INTRODUCTION 

The PHA is required to reexamine each family’s income and composition at least annually, and 
to adjust the family’s level of assistance accordingly. Interim reexaminations are also needed in 
certain situations. This chapter discusses both annual and interim reexaminations, and the 
recalculation of family share and subsidy that occurs as a result. HUD regulations and PHA 
policies concerning reexaminations are presented in three parts: 

Part I: Annual Reexaminations. This part discusses the process for conducting annual 
reexaminations. 

Part II: Interim Reexaminations. This part details the requirements for families to report 
changes in family income and composition between annual reexaminations. 

Part III: Recalculating Family Share and Subsidy Amount. This part discusses the 
recalculation of family share and subsidy amounts based on the results of annual and 
interim reexaminations. 

Policies governing reasonable accommodation, family privacy, required family cooperation, and 
program abuse, as described elsewhere in this plan, apply to both annual and interim 
reexaminations. 

PART I: ANNUAL REEXAMINATIONS [24 CFR 982.516] 

11-I.A. OVERVIEW 

The PHA must conduct a reexamination of family income and composition at least annually. 
This includes gathering and verifying current information about family composition, income, and 
expenses. Based on this updated information, the family’s income and rent must be recalculated. 
This part discusses the schedule for annual reexaminations, the information to be collected and 
verified, and annual reexamination effective dates.  

470

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-2

11-I.B STREAMLINED ANNUAL REEXAMINATIONS [24 CFR 982.516(b)] 

HUD permits PHAs to streamline the income determination process for family members with 
fixed sources of income. While third-party verification of all income sources must be obtained 
during the intake process and every three years thereafter, in the intervening years the PHA may 
determine income from fixed sources by applying a verified cost of living adjustment (COLA) or 
rate of interest. The PHA may, however, obtain third-party verification of all income, regardless 
of the source. Further, upon request of the family, the PHA must perform third-party verification 
of all income sources. 

Fixed sources of income include Social Security and SSI benefits, pensions, annuities, disability 
or death benefits, and other sources of income subject to a COLA or rate of interest. The 
determination of fixed income may be streamlined even if the family also receives income from 
other non-fixed sources. 

Two streamlining options are available, depending upon the percentage of the family’s income 
that is received from fixed sources. If at least 90 percent of the family’s income is from fixed 
sources, the PHA may streamline the verification of fixed income but is not required to verify 
non-fixed income amounts. If the family receives less than 90 percent of its income from fixed 
sources, the PHA may streamline the verification of fixed income and must verify non-fixed 
income annually. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA chooses not to streamline the annual reexamination process for fixed-income 
sources. The PHA will obtain third-party verification of all sources of income annualy. 

11-I.C. SCHEDULING ANNUAL REEXAMINATIONS 

The PHA must establish a policy to ensure that the annual reexamination for each family is 
completed within a 12-month period, and may require reexaminations more frequently [HCV GB 
p. 12-1]. 

PHA Policy  

The PHA will begin the annual reexamination process 120 days in advance of its 
scheduled effective date. Generally, the PHA will schedule annual reexamination 
effective dates to coincide with the family’s anniversary date. 

Anniversary date is defined as 12 months from the effective date of the family’s last 
annual reexamination or, during a family’s first year in the program, from the effective 
date of the family’s initial examination (admission). 

If the family moves to a new unit, the PHA will perform a new annual reexamination.  

The PHA also may schedule an annual reexamination for completion prior to the 
anniversary date for administrative purposes.  

Notification of and Participation in the Annual Reexamination Process 

The PHA is required to obtain the information needed to conduct annual reexaminations. How 
that information will be collected is left to the discretion of the PHA. However, PHAs should 

471

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-3

give tenants who were not provided the opportunity the option to complete Form HUD-92006 at 
this time [Notice PIH 2009-36]. 

PHA Policy 

Annual reexaminations will be conducted by mail, in person, by email or through the 
software system. Notification of the annual reexamination will be sent by first-class mail, 
email or through the software system and will inform the family of the deadline for 
providing it. Documents will be accepted by mail, email, in person, fax or by software 
system. 

If the notice is returned by the post office with no forwarding address, the PHA will 
attempt to call the phone number on file. If there is no response by phone, a notice of 
termination (See Chapter 12) will be sent to the family’s address of record as well as to 
any alternate address provided in the family’s file. 

An interview will be scheduled if the family requests assistance in providing information 
or documentation requested by the PHA. 

If the family is unable to attend a scheduled interview, the family should contact the PHA 
in advance of the interview to schedule a new appointment. If a family does not attend 
the scheduled interview, the PHA will send a second notification with a new interview 
appointment time.  

Families that fail to attend two scheduled interview without PHA approval will be sent a 
notice of termination in accordance with policies contained in Chapter 12. 

An advocate, interpreter, or other assistant may assist the family in the interview process. 
The family and the PHA must execute a certification attesting to the role and the 
assistance provided by any such third party. 

472

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-4

11-I.D. CONDUCTING ANNUAL REEXAMINATIONS 

As part of the annual reexamination process, families are required to provide updated 
information to the PHA regarding the family’s income, expenses, and composition [24 CFR 
982.551(b)]. 

PHA Policy 

Families will be asked to supply all required information (as described in the 
reexamination notice) before the deadline specified in the notice. The required 
information will include a PHA-designated reexamination form, an Authorization for the 
Release of Information/Privacy Act Notice, as well as supporting documents or forms 
related to the family’s income, expenses, and family composition.  

The PHA will noticy the family in writing if any required documentation or information 
is missing. The missing information or documentation must be provided within 10 
business days of the date the PHA notifies the family. If the family is unable to obtain the 
information or materials within the required time frame, the family may request an 
extension.  

If the family does not provide the required documents or information within the required 
time period (plus any extensions), the family will be sent a notice of termination (See 
Chapter 12). 

If the family requests or the PHA schedules in in-person interview, families will be asked 
to bring all required information (as described in the reexamination notice) to the 
reexamination appointment. 

Any required documents or information that the family is unable to provide at the time of 
the interview must be provided within 10 business days of the interview. If the family is 
unable to obtain the information or materials within the required time frame, the family 
may request an extension. 

The family does not provide the required documents or information within the required 
time period (plus any extensions), the family will be sent a notice of termination (see 
Chapter 12). 

Additionally, HUD recommends that at annual reexaminations PHAs ask whether the tenant, or 
any member of the tenant’s household, is subject to a lifetime sex offender registration 
requirement in any state [Notice PIH 2012-28]. 

PHA Policy 

At the annual reexamination, the PHA will ask whether the tenant, or any member of the 
tenant’s household, is subject to a lifetime sex offender registration requirement in any 
state. The PHA will use the Dru Sjodin National Sex Offender database to verify the 
information provided by the tenant. 

If the PHA proposes to terminate assistance based on lifetime sex offender registration 
information, the PHA must notify the household of the proposed action and must provide the 
subject of the record and the tenant a copy of the record and an opportunity to dispute the 

473

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-5

accuracy and relevance of the information prior to termination. [24 CFR 5.903(f) and 5.905(d)]. 
(See Chapter 12.) 

474

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-6

The information provided by the family generally must be verified in accordance with the 
policies in Chapter 7. Unless the family reports a change, or the PHA has reason to believe a 
change has occurred in information previously reported by the family, certain types of 
information that are verified at admission typically do not need to be re-verified on an annual 
basis. These include: 

 Legal identity 

 Age 

 Social security numbers  

 A person’s disability status 

 Citizenship or immigration status 

If adding a new family member to the unit causes overcrowding according to the housing quality 
standards (HQS) (see Chapter 8), the PHA must issue the family a new voucher, and the family 
and PHA must try to find an acceptable unit as soon as possible. If an acceptable unit is available 
for rental by the family, the PHA must terminate the HAP contract in accordance with its terms 
[24 CFR 982.403]. 

475

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-7

11-I.E. DETERMINING ONGOING ELIGIBILITY OF CERTAIN STUDENTS 
[24 CFR 982.552(b)(5)] 

Section 327 of Public Law 109-115 established new restrictions on the ongoing eligibility of 
certain students (both part- and full-time) who are enrolled in institutions of higher education.  

If a student enrolled in an institution of higher education is under the age of 24, is not a veteran, 
is not married, does not have a dependent child, and is not a person with disabilities receiving 
HCV assistance as of November 30, 2005, the student’s eligibility must be reexamined along 
with the income eligibility of the student’s parents on an annual basis. In these cases, both the 
student and the student’s parents must be income eligible for the student to continue to receive 
HCV assistance. If, however, a student in these circumstances is determined independent from 
his or her parents or is considered a vulnerable youth in accordance with PHA policy, the income 
of the student’s parents will not be considered in determining the student’s ongoing eligibility. 

Students who reside with parents in an HCV assisted unit are not subject to this provision. It is 
limited to students who are receiving assistance on their own, separately from their parents. 

PHA Policy 

During the annual reexamination process, the PHA will determine the ongoing eligibility 
of each student who is subject to the eligibility restrictions in 24 CFR 5.612 by reviewing 
the student’s individual income as well as the income of the student’s parents. If the 
student has been determined “independent” from his/her parents or is considered a 
vulnerable youth based on the policies in Sections 3-II.E and 7-II.E, the parents’ income 
will not be reviewed. 

If the student is no longer income eligible based on his/her own income or the income of 
his/her parents, the student’s assistance will be terminated in accordance with the policies 
in Section 12-I.D. 

If the student continues to be income eligible based on his/her own income and the 
income of his/her parents (if applicable), the PHA will process a reexamination in 
accordance with the policies in this chapter.  

476

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-8

11-I.F. EFFECTIVE DATES 

The PHA must establish policies concerning the effective date of changes that result from an 
annual reexamination [24 CFR 982.516]. 

PHA Policy  

In general, an increase in the family share of the rent that results from an annual 
reexamination will take effect on the family’s anniversary date, and the family will be 
notified at least 30 days in advance. 

If less than 30 days remain before the scheduled effective date, the increase will 
take effect on the first of the month following the end of the 30-day notice period.  

If a family moves to a new unit, the increase will take effect on the effective date 
of the new lease and HAP contract, and no 30-day notice is required. 

If the PHA chooses to schedule an annual reexamination for completion prior to 
the family’s anniversary date for administrative purposes, the effective date will 
be determined by the PHA, but will always allow for the 30-day notice period. 

If the family causes a delay in processing the annual reexamination, increases in 
the family share of the rent will be applied retroactively, to the scheduled 
effective date of the annual reexamination. The family will be responsible for any 
overpaid subsidy and may be offered a repayment agreement in accordance with 
the policies in Chapter 16. 

In general, a decrease in the family share of the rent that results from an annual 
reexamination will take effect on the family’s anniversary date. 

If a family moves to a new unit, the decrease will take effect on the effective date 
of the new lease and HAP contract. 

If the PHA chooses to schedule an annual reexamination for completion prior to 
the family’s anniversary date for administrative purposes, the effective date will 
be determined by the PHA.  

If the family causes a delay in processing the annual reexamination, decreases in 
the family share of the rent will be applied prospectively, from the first day of the 
month following completion of the reexamination processing.  

Delays in reexamination processing are considered to be caused by the family if the 
family fails to provide information requested by the PHA by the date specified, and this 
delay prevents the PHA from completing the reexamination as scheduled. 

477

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-9
478

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-10

PART II: INTERIM REEXAMINATIONS [24 CFR 982.516] 

11-II.A. OVERVIEW 

Family circumstances may change between annual reexaminations. HUD and PHA policies 
dictate what kinds of information about changes in family circumstances must be reported, and 
under what circumstances the PHA must process interim reexaminations to reflect those changes. 
HUD regulations also permit the PHA to conduct interim reexaminations of income or family 
composition at any time. When an interim reexamination is conducted, only those factors that 
have changed are verified and adjusted [HCV GB, p. 12-10]. 

In addition to specifying what information the family must report, HUD regulations permit the 
family to request an interim determination if other aspects of the family’s income or composition 
changes. The PHA must complete the interim reexamination within a reasonable time after the 
family’s request.  

This part includes HUD and PHA policies describing what changes families are required to 
report, what changes families may choose to report, and how the PHA will process both PHA- 
and family-initiated interim reexaminations. 

11-II.B. CHANGES IN FAMILY AND HOUSEHOLD COMPOSITION 

The family is required to report all changes in family composition. The PHA must adopt policies 
prescribing when and under what conditions the family must report changes in income and 
family composition. However, due to family obligations under the program, the PHA has limited 
discretion in this area. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will conduct interim reexaminations to account for any changes in household 
composition that occur between annual reexaminations.  

New Family Members Not Requiring PHA Approval 

The addition of a family member as a result of birth, adoption, or court-awarded custody does 
not require PHA approval. However, the family is required to promptly notify the PHA of the 
addition [24 CFR 982.551(h)(2)]. 

PHA Policy 

The family must inform the PHA of the birth, adoption, or court-awarded custody of a 
child within 10 business days. 

479

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-11

New Family and Household Members Requiring Approval  

With the exception of children who join the family as a result of birth, adoption, or court-
awarded custody, a family must request PHA approval to add a new family member [24 CFR 
982.551(h)(2)] or other household member (live-in aide or foster child) [24 CFR 982.551(h)(4)].  

When any new family member is added, the PHA must make appropriate adjustments in the 
family share of the rent and the HAP payment at the effective date of either the annual or interim 
reexamination [24 CFR 982.516(e)(2)].  

If a change in family size causes a violation of Housing Quality Standards (HQS) space 
standards (see Chapter 8), the PHA must issue the family a new voucher, and the family and 
PHA must try to find an acceptable unit as soon as possible. If an acceptable unit is available for 
rental by the family, the PHA must terminate the family’s HAP contract in accordance with its 
terms [24 CFR 982.403]. 

PHA Policy 

Families must request PHA approval to add a new family member, live-in aide, foster 
child, or foster adult. This includes any person not on the lease who is expected to stay in 
the unit for more than 30 consecutive days or 90 cumulative days within a 12-month 
period and therefore no longer qualifies as a “guest.” Requests must be made in writing 
and approved by the PHA prior to the individual moving into the unit. 

The PHA will not approve the addition of a new family or household member unless the 
individual meets the PHA’s eligibility criteria (see Chapter 3) and documentation 
requirements (see Chapter 7, Part II).  

The PHA will not approve the addition of a foster child or foster adult if it will cause a 
violation of HQS space standards. 

If the PHA determines an individual meets the PHA’s eligibility criteria and 
documentation requirements, the PHA will provide written approval to the family. If the 
approval of a new family member or live-in aide will cause overcrowding according to 
HQS standards, the approval letter will explain that the family will be issued a voucher 
and will be required to move.  

If the PHA determines that an individual does not meet the PHA’s eligibility criteria or 
documentation requirements, the PHA will notify the family in writing of its decision to 
deny approval of the new family or household member and the reasons for the denial. 

The PHA will make its determination within 10 business days of receiving all 
information required to verify the individual’s eligibility.  

480

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-12

Departure of a Family or Household Member 
Families must promptly notify the PHA if any family member no longer lives in the unit 
[24 CFR 982.551(h)(3)]. Because household members are considered when determining the 
family unit (voucher) size [24 CFR 982.402], the PHA also needs to know when any live-in aide, 
foster child, or foster adult ceases to reside in the unit.  

PHA Policy 

If a household member ceases to reside in the unit, the family must inform the PHA 
within 10 business days. This requirement also applies to a family member who has been 
considered temporarily absent at the point that the family concludes the individual is 
permanently absent. 

481

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-13

11-II.C. CHANGES AFFECTING INCOME OR EXPENSES  

Interim reexaminations can be scheduled either because the PHA has reason to believe that 
changes in income or expenses may have occurred, or because the family reports a change. 
When a family reports a change, the PHA may take different actions depending on whether the 
family reported the change voluntarily, or because it was required to do so.  

PHA-Initiated Interim Reexaminations 

PHA-initiated interim reexaminations are those that are scheduled based on circumstances or 
criteria defined by the PHA. They are not scheduled because of changes reported by the family. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will conduct interim reexaminations in each of the following instances:  

For families receiving the Earned Income Disallowance (EID), the PHA will 
conduct an interim reexamination at the start and conclusion of the 24-month 
eligibility period. 

If the family has reported zero income, the PHA will conduct an interim 
reexamination every month as long as the family continues to report that they 
have no income.  

If at the time of the annual reexamination, it is not feasible to anticipate a level of 
income for the next 12 months (e.g. seasonal or cyclic income), the PHA will 
schedule an interim reexamination to coincide with the end of the period for 
which it is feasible to project income.  

If at the time of the annual reexamination, tenant declarations were used on a 
provisional basis due to the lack of third-party verification, and third-party 
verification becomes available, the PHA will conduct an interim reexamination. 

The PHA may conduct an interim reexamination at any time in order to correct an 
error in a previous reexamination, or to investigate a tenant fraud complaint. 

482

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-14

Family-Initiated Interim Reexaminations 

The PHA must adopt policies prescribing when and under what conditions the family must report 
changes in family income or expenses [24 CFR 982.516(c)]. In addition, HUD regulations 
require that the family be permitted to obtain an interim reexamination any time the family has 
experienced a change in circumstances since the last determination [24 CFR 982.516(b)(2)].  

Required Reporting  

HUD regulations give the PHA the freedom to determine the circumstances under which families 
will be required to report changes affecting income. 

PHA Policy 

Families are required to report all increases in income, including new employment, 
within 10 business days of the change occurring. The PHA will conduct an interim 
reexamination to recalculate the new family share of rent and new subsidy amount.  

Optional Reporting 

The family may request an interim reexamination any time the family has experienced a change 
in circumstances since the last determination [24 CFR 982.516(b)(2)]. The PHA must process 
the request if the family reports a change that will result in a reduced family income [HCV GB, 
p. 12-9]. 

If a family reports a decrease in income from the loss of welfare benefits due to fraud or non-
compliance with a welfare agency requirement to participate in an economic self-sufficiency 
program, the family’s share of the rent will not be reduced [24 CFR 5.615]. For more 
information regarding the requirement to impute welfare income see Chapter 6. 

PHA Policy 

If a family reports a change that it was not required to report and that would result in an 
increase in the family share of the rent, the PHA will conduct an interim reexamination. 

If a family reports a change that it was not required to report and that would result in a 
decrease in the family share of rent, the PHA will conduct an interim reexamination. See 
Section 11-II.D. for effective dates. 

Families must report changes in income or expenses by the 25th of the month. 

483

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-15

11-II.D. PROCESSING THE INTERIM REEXAMINATION 

Method of Reporting 

PHA Policy 

The family may notify the PHA of changes either orally or in writing. If the family 
provides oral notice, the PHA may also require the family to submit the changes in 
writing. 

Generally, the family will not be required to attend an interview for an interim 
reexamination. However, if the PHA determines that an interview is warranted, the 
family may be required to attend. 

Based on the type of change reported, the PHA will determine the documentation the 
family will be required to submit. The family must submit any required information or 
documents within 10 business days of receiving a request from the PHA. This time frame 
may be extended for good cause with PHA approval. The PHA will accept required 
documentation by mail, by email, by fax, by software system or in person.  

Effective Dates 

The PHA must establish the time frames in which any changes that result from an interim 
reexamination will take effect [24 CFR 982.516(d)]. The changes may be applied either 
retroactively or prospectively, depending on whether there is to be an increase or a decrease in 
the family share of the rent, and whether the family reported any required information within the 
required time frames [HCV GB, p. 12-10]. 

PHA Policy  

If the family share of the rent is to increase: 

The increase generally will be effective on the first of the month following 30 
days’ notice to the family.  

If a family fails to report a change within the required time frames, or fails to 
provide all required information within the required time frames, the increase will 
be applied retroactively, to the date it would have been effective had the 
information been provided on a timely basis. The family will be responsible for 
any overpaid subsidy and may be offered a repayment agreement in accordance 
with the policies in Chapter 16. 

If the family share of the rent is to decrease:  

The decrease will be effective on the first day of the month following the month 
in which the change was reported and all required documentation was submitted. 
In cases where the change cannot be verified until after the date the change would 
have become effective, the change will be made retroactively.  

484

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-16

PART III: RECALCULATING FAMILY SHARE AND SUBSIDY AMOUNT 

11-III.A. OVERVIEW 

After gathering and verifying required information for an annual or interim reexamination, the 
PHA must recalculate the family share of the rent and the subsidy amount, and notify the family 
and owner of the changes [24 CFR 982.516(d)(2), HCV 12-6 and 12-10]. While the basic 
policies that govern these calculations are provided in Chapter 6, this part lays out policies that 
affect these calculations during a reexamination. 

11-III.B. CHANGES IN PAYMENT STANDARDS AND UTILITY ALLOWANCES 

In order to calculate the family share of the rent and HAP amount correctly, changes in payment 
standards, subsidy standards, or utility allowances may need to be updated and included in the 
PHA’s calculations. 

Specific policies governing how subsidy standards, payment standards, and utility allowances are 
applied are discussed below. 

Payment Standards [24 CFR 982.505] 

The family share of the rent and HAP calculations must use the correct payment standard for the 
family, taking into consideration the family unit size, the size of unit, and the area in which the 
unit is located [HCV GB, p. 12-5]. See Chapter 6 for information on how to select the 
appropriate payment standard. 

When the PHA changes its payment standards or the family’s situation changes, new payment 
standards are applied at the following times: 

 If the PHA’s payment standard amount changes during the term of the HAP contract, the date 
on which the new standard is applied depends on whether the standard has increased or 
decreased: 

- If the payment standard amount has increased, the increased payment standard will be 
applied at the first annual reexamination following the effective date of the increase in 
the payment standard. 

- If the payment standard amount has decreased, during the term of a HAP contract, the 
PHA is not required to reduce the payment standard as the HAP contract remains in 
effect. At the family’s second annual reexamination, the PHA may, but is not required to, 
apply the decreased payment standard or may gradually implement the reduced payment 
standard (See Chapter 6 for the PHA’s policy on decreases in the payment standard). 

 If the family moves to a new unit, or a new HAP contract is executed due to changes in the 
lease (even if the family remains in place) the current payment standard applicable to the 
family will be used when the new HAP contract is processed. 

485

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-17

Subsidy Standards [24 CFR 982.505(c)(4)] 

If there is a change in the family unit size that would apply to a family during the HAP contract 
term, either due to a change in family composition, or a change in the PHA’s subsidy standards 
(see Chapter 5), the new family unit size must be used to determine the payment standard 
amount for the family at the family’s first annual reexamination following the change in family 
unit size.  

Utility Allowances [24 CFR 982.517(d)] 

The family share of the rent and HAP calculations must reflect any changes in the family’s utility 
arrangement with the owner, or in the PHA’s utility allowance schedule [HCV GB, p. 12-5]. 
Chapter 16 discusses how utility allowance schedules are established. 

When there are changes in the utility arrangement with the owner, the PHA must use the utility 
allowances in effect at the time the new lease and HAP contract are executed. 

At reexamination, the PHA must use the PHA current utility allowance schedule [HCV GB, 
p. 18-8]. 

PHA Policy 

Revised utility allowances will be applied to a family’s rent and subsidy calculations at 
the first annual reexamination after the allowance is adopted. 

11-III.C. NOTIFICATION OF NEW FAMILY SHARE AND HAP AMOUNT 

The PHA must notify the owner and family of any changes in the amount of the HAP payment 
[HUD-52641, HAP Contract]. The notice must include the following information [HCV GB, p. 
12-6]: 

 The amount and effective date of the new HAP payment 

 The amount and effective date of the new family share of the rent 

 The amount and effective date of the new tenant rent to owner  

The family must be given an opportunity for an informal hearing regarding the PHA’s 
determination of their annual or adjusted income, and the use of such income to compute the 
housing assistance payment [24 CFR 982.555(a)(1)(i)] (see Chapter 16).  

PHA Policy 

The notice to the family will include the annual and adjusted income amounts that were 
used to calculate the family share of the rent and the housing assistance payment.  

The notice will state the family has the right to request an explanation of how the 
assistance was calculated and if the family disagrees, they have the right to informal 
hearing. The notice will include the procedures for requesting an informal hearing. 

486

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-18

11-III.D. DISCREPANCIES  

During an annual or interim reexamination, the PHA may discover that information previously 
reported by the family was in error, or that the family intentionally misrepresented information. 
In addition, the PHA may discover errors made by the PHA. When errors resulting in the 
overpayment or underpayment of subsidy are discovered, corrections will be made in accordance 
with the policies in Chapter 13. 

487

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 11-19

 

488

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-1

Chapter 12 

TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE AND TENANCY 

HUD regulations specify mandatory and optional grounds for which a PHA can terminate a 
family’s assistance. They also specify the circumstances under which an owner may terminate 
the tenancy of an assisted family. This chapter describes the policies that govern mandatory and 
optional terminations of assistance, and termination of tenancy by the owner. It is presented in 
three parts: 

Part I: Grounds for Termination of Assistance. This part describes the various 
circumstances under which assistance under the program can be terminated by the family 
or by the PHA. 

Part II: Approach to Termination of Assistance. This part describes the policies and the 
process that the PHA will use in evaluating decisions on whether to terminate assistance 
due to actions or inactions of the family where termination is an option. It specifies the 
alternatives that the PHA may consider in lieu of termination, the criteria the PHA will 
use when deciding what action to take, and the steps the PHA must take when 
terminating a family’s assistance. 

Part III: Termination of Tenancy by the Owner. This part describes the HUD policies that 
govern the owner’s right to terminate an assisted tenancy. 

PART I: GROUNDS FOR TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE 

12-I.A. OVERVIEW 

HUD requires the PHA to terminate assistance for certain actions and inactions of the family and 
when the family no longer requires assistance due to increases in family income. HUD permits 
the PHA to terminate assistance for certain other actions or inactions of the family. In addition, a 
family may decide to withdraw from the program and terminate their HCV assistance at any time 
by notifying the PHA. 

12-I.B. FAMILY NO LONGER REQUIRES ASSISTANCE [24 CFR 982.455] 

As a family’s income increases, the amount of the housing assistance payment decreases.  If the 
amount of assistance provided by the PHA is reduced to zero, the family's assistance terminates 
automatically 180 days after the last HAP payment.  

PHA Policy 

If a participating family receiving zero assistance experiences a change in circumstances 
that would result in a HAP payment to the owner, the family must notify the PHA of the 
change and request an interim reexamination before the expiration of the 180-day period.  

489

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-2

12-I.C. FAMILY CHOOSES TO TERMINATE ASSISTANCE 

The family may request that the PHA terminate housing assistance payments on behalf of the 
family at any time. 

PHA Policy 

The request to terminate assistance should be made in writing and signed by the head of 
household, and spouse or cohead if applicable. Before terminating the family’s 
assistance, the PHA will follow the notice requirements in Section 12-II.F. 

12-I.D. MANDATORY TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE 

HUD requires the PHA to terminate assistance in the following circumstances.  

Eviction [24 CFR 982.552(b)(2), 24 CFR 5.2005(c)(1)] 

The PHA must terminate assistance whenever a family is evicted from a unit assisted under the 
HCV program for a serious or repeated violation of the lease. As discussed further in section 12-
II.E, incidents of actual or threatened domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking may not be construed as serious or repeated violations of the lease by the victim or 
threatened victim of such violence or stalking. 

PHA Policy 

A family will be considered evicted if the family moves after a legal eviction order has 
been issued, whether or not physical enforcement of the order was necessary. 

If a family moves after the owner has given the family an eviction notice for serious or 
repeated lease violations but before a legal eviction order has been issued, termination of 
assistance is not mandatory. In such cases the PHA will determine whether the family has 
committed serious or repeated violations of the lease based on available evidence and 
may terminate assistance or take any of the alternative measures described in 
section 12-II.C. In making its decision, the PHA will consider the factors described in 
sections 12-II.D and 12-II.E. Upon consideration of such factors, the PHA may, on a 
case-by-case basis, choose not to terminate assistance.  

Serious and repeated lease violations will include, but not be limited to, nonpayment of 
rent, disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property, or living or housekeeping habits 
that cause damage to the unit or premises and criminal activity. Generally, the criterion to 
be used will be whether or not the reason for the eviction was the fault of the tenant 
or guests. 

Failure to Provide Consent [24 CFR 982.552(b)(3)] 

The PHA must terminate assistance if any family member fails to sign and submit any consent 
form they are required to sign for a regular or interim reexamination. See Chapter 7 for a 
complete discussion of consent requirements. 

490

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-3

Failure to Document Citizenship [24 CFR 982.552(b)(4) and [24 CFR 5.514(c)] 

The PHA must terminate assistance if (1) a family fails to submit required documentation within 
the required timeframe concerning any family member’s citizenship or immigration status; (2) a 
family submits evidence of citizenship and eligible immigration status in a timely manner, but 
United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) primary and secondary verification 
does not verify eligible immigration status of the family; or (3) a family member, as determined 
by the PHA, has knowingly permitted another individual who is not eligible for assistance to 
reside (on a permanent basis) in the unit.  

For (3) above, such termination must be for a period of at least 24 months. This does not apply to 
ineligible noncitizens already in the household where the family’s assistance has been prorated. 
See Chapter 7 for a complete discussion of documentation requirements. 

Failure to Disclose and Document Social Security Numbers [24 CFR 5.218(c),  
Notice PIH 2018-24] 

The PHA must terminate assistance if a participant family fails to disclose the complete and 
accurate social security numbers of each household member and the documentation necessary to 
verify each social security number. 

However, if the family is otherwise eligible for continued program assistance, and the PHA 
determines that the family’s failure to meet the SSN disclosure and documentation requirements 
was due to circumstances that could not have been foreseen and were outside of the family’s 
control, the PHA may defer the family’s termination and provide the opportunity to comply with 
the requirement within a period not to exceed 90 calendar days from the date the PHA 
determined the family to be noncompliant.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will defer the family’s termination and provide the family with the opportunity 
to comply with the requirement for a period of 90 calendar days for circumstances 
beyond the participant’s control such as delayed processing of the SSN application by the 
SSA, natural disaster, fire, death in the family, or other emergency, if there is a 
reasonable likelihood that the participant will be able to disclose an SSN by the deadline.  

Methamphetamine Manufacture or Production [24 CFR 982.553(b)(1)(ii)] 

The PHA must terminate assistance if any household member has ever been convicted of the 
manufacture or production of methamphetamine on the premises of federally assisted housing. 

Lifetime Registered Sex Offenders [Notice PIH 2012-28] 

Should a PHA discover that a member of an assisted household was subject to a lifetime 
registration requirement at admission and was erroneously admitted after June 25, 2001, the 
PHA must immediately terminate assistance for the household member.  

In this situation, the PHA must offer the family the opportunity to remove the ineligible family 
member from the household. If the family is unwilling to remove that individual from the 
household, the PHA must terminate assistance for the household. 

491

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-4

Failure of Students to Meet Ongoing Eligibility Requirements [24 CFR 982.552(b)(5) and 
FR 4/10/06] 

If a student enrolled at an institution of higher education is under the age of 24, is not a veteran, 
is not married, does not have dependent children, is not residing with his/her parents in an HCV 
assisted household, and is not a person with disabilities receiving HCV assistance as of 
November 30, 2005, the PHA must the terminate the student’s assistance if, at the time of 
reexamination, either the student’s income or the income of the student’s parents (if applicable) 
exceeds the applicable income limit. 

If a participant household consists of both eligible and ineligible students, the eligible students 
shall not be terminated, but must be issued a voucher to move with continued assistance in 
accordance with program regulations and PHA policies, or must be given the opportunity to 
lease in place if the terminated ineligible student members elect to move out of the assisted unit. 

Death of the Sole Family Member [24 CFR 982.311(d) and Notice PIH 2010-9] 

The PHA must immediately terminate program assistance for deceased single member 
households. 

12-I.E. MANDATORY POLICIES AND OTHER AUTHORIZED TERMINATIONS 

Mandatory Policies [24 CFR 982.553(b) and 982.551(l)] 

HUD requires the PHA to establish policies that permit the PHA to terminate assistance if the 
PHA determines that: 

 Any household member is currently engaged in any illegal use of a drug, or has a pattern of 
illegal drug use that interferes with the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the 
premises by other residents 

 Any household member’s abuse or pattern of abuse of alcohol may threaten the health, 
safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents 

 Any household member has violated the family’s obligation not to engage in any drug-
related criminal activity 

 Any household member has violated the family’s obligation not to engage in violent criminal 
activity 

492

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-5

Use of Illegal Drugs and Alcohol Abuse 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will terminate a family’s assistance if any household member is currently 
engaged in any illegal use of a drug, or has a pattern of illegal drug use that interferes 
with the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents. 

The PHA will terminate assistance if any household member’s abuse or pattern of abuse 
of alcohol threatens the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by 
other residents. 

Currently engaged in is defined as any use of illegal drugs during the previous three 
months. 

The PHA will consider all credible evidence, including but not limited to, any record of 
arrests, convictions, or eviction of household members related to the use of illegal drugs 
or abuse of alcohol. 

A record or records of arrest will not be used as the sole basis for the termination or proof 
that the participant engaged in disqualifying criminal activity. 

In making its decision to terminate assistance, the PHA will consider alternatives as 
described in Section 12-II.C and other factors described in Sections 12-II.D and 12-II.E. 
Upon consideration of such alternatives and factors, the PHA may, on a case-by-case 
basis, choose not to terminate assistance. 

493

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-6

Drug-Related and Violent Criminal Activity [24 CFR 5.100] 

Drug means a controlled substance as defined in section 102 of the Controlled Substances Act 
(21 U.S.C. 802). 

Drug-related criminal activity is defined by HUD as the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, 
or use of a drug, or the possession of a drug with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute or use 
the drug.  

Violent criminal activity means any criminal activity that has as one of its elements the use, 
attempted use, or threatened use of physical force substantial enough to cause, or be reasonably 
likely to cause, serious bodily injury or property damage. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will terminate a family’s assistance if any household member has violated the 
family’s obligation not to engage in any drug-related or violent criminal activity during 
participation in the HCV program. 

The PHA will consider all credible evidence, including but not limited to, any record of 
arrests and/or convictions of household members related to drug-related or violent 
criminal activity, and any eviction or notice to evict based on drug-related or violent 
criminal activity. 

A record or records of arrest will not be used as the sole basis for the termination or proof 
that the participant engaged in disqualifying criminal activity. 

In making its decision to terminate assistance, the PHA will consider alternatives as 
described in Section 12-II.C and other factors described in Sections 12-II.D and 12-II.E. 
Upon consideration of such alternatives and factors, the PHA may, on a case-by-case 
basis, choose not to terminate assistance. 

494

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-7

Other Authorized Reasons for Termination of Assistance  
[24 CFR 982.552(c), 24 CFR 5.2005(c)] 

HUD permits the PHA to terminate assistance under a number of other circumstances. It is left to 
the discretion of the PHA whether such circumstances in general warrant consideration for the 
termination of assistance. As discussed further in section 12-II.E, the Violence against Women 
Act of 2013 explicitly prohibits PHAs from considering incidents of, or criminal activity directly 
related to, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking as reasons for 
terminating the assistance of a victim of such abuse. 

Additionally, per the alternative requirements listed in the Federal Register notice dated 
December 29, 2014, PHAs are no longer permitted to terminate assistance to a family due to the 
family’s failure to meet its obligations under the Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) contract of 
participation [FR Notice 12/29/14]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will terminate a family’s assistance if: 

The family has failed to comply with any family obligations under the program.  
See Exhibit 12-1 for a listing of family obligations and related PHA policies. 

Any family member has been evicted from federally assisted housing in the last 
five years. 

Any family member has committed fraud, bribery, or any other corrupt or 
criminal act in connection with any federal housing program. 

The family currently owes rent or other amounts to any PHA in connection with 
Section 8 or public housing assistance under the 1937 Act. 

The family has not reimbursed any PHA for amounts the PHA paid to an owner 
under a HAP contract for rent, damages to the unit, or other amounts owed by the 
family under the lease. 

The family has breached the terms of a repayment agreement entered into with 
the PHA. 

495

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-8

A family member has engaged in or threatened violent or abusive behavior toward 
PHA personnel. 

Abusive or violent behavior towards PHA personnel includes verbal as 
well as physical abuse or violence. Use of racial epithets, or other 
language, written or oral, that is customarily used to intimidate may be 
considered abusive or violent behavior. 

Threatening refers to oral or written threats or physical gestures that 
communicate intent to abuse or commit violence. 

In making its decision to terminate assistance, the PHA will consider alternatives as 
described in Section 12-II.C and other factors described in Sections 12-II.D and 12-II.E. 
Upon consideration of such alternatives and factors, the PHA may, on a case-by-case 
basis, choose not to terminate assistance. 

Family Absence from the Unit [24 CFR 982.312] 

The family may be absent from the unit for brief periods. The PHA must establish a policy on 
how long the family may be absent from the assisted unit. However, the family may not be 
absent from the unit for a period of more than 180 consecutive calendar days for any reason. 
Absence in this context means that no member of the family is residing in the unit. 

PHA Policy 

If the family is absent from the unit for more than 180 consecutive calendar days, the 
family’s assistance will be terminated. Notice of termination will be sent in accordance 
with Section 12-II.F. 

496

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-9

Insufficient Funding [24 CFR 982.454] 

The PHA may terminate HAP contracts if the PHA determines, in accordance with HUD 
requirements, that funding under the consolidated ACC is insufficient to support continued 
assistance for families in the program. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will determine whether there is sufficient funding to pay for currently assisted 
families according to the policies in Part VIII of Chapter 16. If the PHA determines there 
is a shortage of funding, prior to terminating any HAP contracts, the PHA will determine 
if any other actions can be taken to reduce program costs. 

In the event that the PHA decides to stop issuing vouchers as a result of a funding 
shortfall, and the PHA is not assisting the required number of special purpose vouchers 
(NED families, HUD-Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) families, and family 
unification program (FUP) families), when the PHA resumes issuing vouchers, the PHA 
will issue vouchers first to the special purpose voucher families on its waiting list until it 
has reached the required number of special purpose vouchers, when applicable. 

If after implementing all reasonable cost cutting measures there is not enough funding 
available to provide continued assistance for current participants, the PHA will terminate 
HAP contracts as a last resort.  

Prior to terminating any HAP contracts, the PHA will inform the local HUD field office. 
The PHA will terminate the minimum number needed in order to reduce HAP costs to a 
level within the PHA’s annual budget authority. 

If the PHA must terminate HAP contracts due to insufficient funding, the PHA will do so 
in accordance with the following criteria and instructions:  

Families comprising the required number of special purpose vouchers, including 
nonelderly disabled (NED), HUD-Veteran’s Affairs Supportive Housing (HUD-
VASH), and family unification program (FUP) will be the last to be terminated. 

The PHA will terminate HAP contracts on a first in, first out according to the date 
of the family’s admission to the program in the order listed below: 

1. Non-elderly, non-disabled single member families. 

2. Non-elderly, non-disabled families with no children under the age of 18. 

3. Non-elderly, non-disabled families with children under the age of 18.  

4. Elderly and disabled families. 

497

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-10
498

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-11

PART II: APPROACH TO TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE 

12-II.A. OVERVIEW 

The PHA is required by regulation to terminate a family’s assistance for certain actions or 
inactions of the family. For other types of actions or inactions of the family, the regulations give 
the PHA the authority to either terminate the family’s assistance or to take another action. This 
part discusses the various actions the PHA may choose to take when it has discretion, and 
outlines the criteria the PHA will use to make its decision about whether or not to terminate 
assistance. It also specifies the requirements for the notification to the family of the PHA’s intent 
to terminate assistance. 

12-II.B. METHOD OF TERMINATION [24 CFR 982.552(a)(3)] 

Termination of assistance for a participant may include any or all of the following: 

 Terminating housing assistance payments under a current HAP contract, 

 Refusing to enter into a new HAP contract or approve a lease, or  

 Refusing to process a request for or to provide assistance under portability procedures. 

12-II.C. ALTERNATIVES TO TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE 

Change in Household Composition  

As a condition of continued assistance, the PHA may require that any household member who 
participated in or was responsible for an offense no longer resides in the unit [24 CFR 
982.552(c)(2)(ii)]. 

PHA Policy  

As a condition of continued assistance, the head of household must certify that the 
culpable family member has vacated the unit and will not be permitted to visit or to stay 
as a guest in the assisted unit. The family must present evidence of the former family 
member’s current address upon PHA request. 

Repayment of Family Debts  

PHA Policy 

If a family owes amounts to the PHA, as a condition of continued assistance, the PHA 
will require the family to repay the full amount or to enter into a repayment agreement, 
within 30 days of receiving notice from the PHA of the amount owed. See Chapter 16 for 
policies on repayment agreements.  

499

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-12

12-II.D. CRITERIA FOR DECIDING TO TERMINATE ASSISTANCE 

Evidence 

For criminal activity, HUD permits the PHA to terminate assistance if a preponderance of the 
evidence indicates that a household member has engaged in the activity, regardless of whether 
the household member has been arrested or convicted [24 CFR 982.553(c)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will use the concept of the preponderance of the evidence as the standard for 
making all termination decisions. 

Preponderance of the evidence is defined as evidence which is of greater weight or more 
convincing than the evidence which is offered in opposition to it; that is, evidence which 
as a whole shows that the fact sought to be proved is more probable than not. 
Preponderance of the evidence may not be determined by the number of witnesses, but by 
the greater weight of all evidence 

Use of Criminal Conviction Records after Admission [24 CFR 5.903] 

The regulation at 24 CFR 5.903 governs a PHA’s access to and use of criminal conviction 
records obtained from a “law enforcement agency” such as the National Crime Information 
Center (NCIC), police departments, and other law enforcement agencies that hold criminal 
conviction records. While the regulatory listing of permitted uses for these records includes PHA 
screening of applicants for admission to the HCV program, it specifically excludes the use of 
records for lease enforcement and eviction of HCV participants and excludes by omission a 
PHA’s use of records to terminate assistance for participants. While a PHA has regulatory 
authority to use criminal conviction records for the purpose of applicant screening for admission, 
there is no corresponding authority to use these records to check for criminal and illegal drug 
activity by participants, and therefore, PHAs may not use records for this purpose.  The 
limitations, however, do not apply to criminal conviction information searches from non-federal 
sources (i.e., sources other than the “law enforcement agencies” defined in 24 CFR 5.902(b)). 
There is no prohibition that bars a PHA from using non-federal sources to conduct criminal 
background checks of program participants. 

Consideration of Circumstances [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)(i)] 

The PHA is permitted, but not required, to consider all relevant circumstances when determining 
whether a family’s assistance should be terminated.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will consider the following facts and circumstances when making its decision 
to terminate assistance: 

The seriousness of the case, especially with respect to how it would affect other 
residents’ safety or property 

The effects that termination of assistance may have on other members of the 
family who were not involved in the action or failure to act 

500

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-13

The extent of participation or culpability of individual family members, including 
whether the culpable family member is a minor or a person with disabilities or 
(as discussed further in section 12-II.E) a victim of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault or stalking 

The length of time since the violation occurred, including the age of the individual 
at the time of the conduct, as well as the family’s recent history and the likelihood 
of favorable conduct in the future 

While a record or records of arrest will not be used as the sole basis for 
termination, an arrest may, however, trigger an investigation to determine whether 
the participant actually engaged in disqualifying criminal activity. As part of its 
investigation, the PHA may obtain the police report associated with the arrest and 
consider the reported circumstances of the arrest. The PHA may also consider: 

Any statements made by witnesses or the participant not included in the 
police report 

Whether criminal charges were filed 

Whether, if filed, criminal charges were abandoned, dismissed, not 
prosecuted, or ultimately resulted in an acquittal 

Any other evidence relevant to determining whether or not the participant 
engaged in disqualifying activity 

Evidence of criminal conduct will be considered if it indicates a demonstrable risk 
to safety and/or property 

In the case of drug or alcohol abuse, whether the culpable household member is 
participating in or has successfully completed a supervised drug or alcohol 
rehabilitation program or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully 

The PHA will require the participant to submit evidence of the household 
member’s current participation in or successful completion of a supervised drug 
or alcohol rehabilitation program, or evidence of otherwise having been 
rehabilitated successfully. 

In the case of program abuse, the dollar amount of the overpaid assistance and 
whether or not a false certification was signed by the family 

Reasonable Accommodation [24 CFR 982.552(c)(2)(iv)]   

If the family includes a person with disabilities, the PHA’s decision to terminate the family’s 
assistance is subject to consideration of reasonable accommodation in accordance with 24 CFR 
Part 8.  

PHA Policy 

If a family indicates that the behavior of a family member with a disability is the reason 
for a proposed termination of assistance, the PHA will determine whether the behavior is 
related to the disability. If so, upon the family’s request, the PHA will determine whether 
alternative measures are appropriate as a reasonable accommodation. The PHA will only 
consider accommodations that can reasonably be expected to address the behavior that is 
the basis of the proposed termination of assistance. See Chapter 2 for a discussion of 
reasonable accommodation. 

501

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-14

12-II.E. TERMINATIONS RELATED TO DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING 
VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT OR STALKING 

This section describes the protections against termination of assistance that the Violence against 
Women Act of 2013 (VAWA) provides for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault and stalking. For general VAWA requirements, key VAWA definitions, and PHA 
policies pertaining to notification, documentation, and confidentiality, see section 16-IX of 
this plan. 

VAWA Protections against Termination 

VAWA provides four specific protections against termination of HCV assistance for victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking. (Note: The second, third, and 
fourth protections also apply to terminations of tenancy or occupancy by owners participating in 
the HCV program, as do the limitations discussed under the next heading.) 

First, VAWA provides that a PHA may not terminate assistance to a family that moves out of an 
assisted unit in violation of the lease, with or without prior notification to the PHA, if the move 
occurred to protect the health or safety of a family member who is or has been the victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault  or stalking and who reasonably believed he or 
she was imminently threatened by harm from further violence if he or she remained in the unit 
[24 CFR 982.354(b)(4)]. 

Second, it provides that an incident or incidents of actual or threatened domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault or stalking may not be construed either as a serious or repeated lease 
violation by the victim or as good cause to terminate the assistance of the victim [24 CFR 
5.2005(c)(1)]. 

Third, it provides that criminal activity directly related to domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault or stalking may not be construed as cause for terminating the assistance of a tenant 
if a member of the tenant’s household, a guest, or another person under the tenant’s control is the 
one engaging in the criminal activity and the tenant or affiliated individual or other individual is 
the actual or threatened victim of the domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking [24 CFR 
5.2005(c)(2)]. 

Fourth, it gives PHAs the authority to terminate assistance to any tenant or lawful occupant who 
engages in criminal acts of physical violence against family members or others without 
terminating assistance to, or otherwise penalizing, the victim of the violence [24 CFR 5.2009(a)]. 

502

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-15

Limitations on VAWA Protections [24 CFR 5.2005(d) and (e)] 

VAWA does not limit the authority of a PHA to terminate the assistance of a victim of abuse for 
reasons unrelated to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking so long as the 
PHA does not subject the victim to a more demanding standard than it applies to other program 
participants [24 CFR 5.2005(d)(1)]. 

Likewise, VAWA does not limit the authority of a PHA to terminate the assistance of a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking if the PHA can demonstrate an 
actual and imminent threat to other tenants or those employed at or providing service to the 
assisted property if the victim is not terminated from assistance [24 CFR 5.2005(d)(2)]. 

HUD regulations define actual and imminent threat to mean words, gestures, actions, or other 
indicators of a physical threat that (a) is real, (b) would occur within an immediate time frame, 
and (c) could result in death or serious bodily harm [24 CFR 5.2005(d)(2) and (e)]. In 
determining whether an individual would pose an actual and imminent threat, the factors to be 
considered include: 

 The duration of the risk 

 The nature and severity of the potential harm 

 The likelihood that the potential harm will occur 

 The length of time before the potential harm would occur [24 CFR 5.2005(e)] 

In order to demonstrate an actual and imminent threat, the PHA must have objective evidence of 
words, gestures, actions, or other indicators. Even when a victim poses an actual and imminent 
threat, however, HUD regulations authorize a PHA to terminate the victim’s assistance “only 
when there are no other actions that could be taken to reduce or eliminate the threat” [24 CFR 
5.2005(d)(3)]. 

PHA Policy 

In determining whether a program participant who is a victim of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault or stalking is an actual and imminent threat to other 
tenants or those employed at or providing service to a property, the PHA will consider the 
following, and any other relevant, factors: 

Whether the threat is toward an employee or tenant other than the victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking 

Whether the threat is a physical danger beyond a speculative threat 

Whether the threat is likely to happen within an immediate time frame 

Whether the threat to other tenants or employees can be eliminated in some other 
way, such as by helping the victim relocate to a confidential location or seeking a 
legal remedy to prevent the perpetrator from acting on the threat 

If the participant wishes to contest the PHA’s determination that he or she is an actual 
and imminent threat to other tenants or employees, the participant may do so as part of 
the informal hearing. 

503

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-16

Documentation of Abuse [24 CFR 5.2007] 

PHA Policy 

When an individual facing termination of assistance for reasons related to domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking claims protection under VAWA, the 
PHA will request that the individual provide documentation supporting the claim in 
accordance with the policies in section 16-IX.D of this plan. 

The PHA reserves the right to waive the documentation requirement if it determines that 
a statement or other corroborating evidence from the individual will suffice. In such cases 
the PHA will document the waiver in the individual’s file. 

Terminating the Assistance of a Domestic Violence Perpetrator 

Although VAWA provides protection against termination of assistance for victims of domestic 
violence, it does not provide such protection for perpetrators. VAWA gives the PHA the explicit 
authority to “terminate assistance to any individual who is a tenant or lawful occupant and who 
engages in criminal acts of physical violence against family members or others” without 
terminating assistance to “or otherwise penalizing the victim of such violence who is also a 
tenant or lawful occupant” [24 CFR 5.2009(a)]. This authority is not dependent on a bifurcated 
lease or other eviction action by an owner against an individual family member. Further, this 
authority supersedes any local, state, or other federal law to the contrary. However, if the PHA 
chooses to exercise this authority, it must follow any procedures prescribed by HUD or by 
applicable local, state, or federal law regarding termination of assistance. This means that the 
PHA must follow the same rules when terminating assistance to an individual as it would when 
terminating the assistance of an entire family [3/16/07 Federal Register notice on the 
applicability of VAWA to HUD programs]. 

If the perpetrator remains in the unit, the PHA continues to pay the owner until the PHA 
terminates the perpetrator from the program. The PHA must not stop paying HAP until 30 days 
after the owner bifurcates the lease to evict the perpetrator. The PHA may pay HAP for the full 
month if the 30-day period will end mid-month [Notice PIH 2017-08]. 

If the perpetrator is the only participant eligible to receive assistance, the PHA will provide any 
remaining participant a chance to establish eligibility for the program. If the remaining 
participant cannot do so, the PHA will provide them with 30 days to establish eligibility for 
another housing program prior to termination of the HAP contract. 

504

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-17

PHA Policy 

The PHA will terminate assistance to a family member if the PHA determines that the 
family member has committed criminal acts of physical violence against other family 
members or others. This action will not affect the assistance of the remaining, 
nonculpable family members. 

In making its decision, the PHA will consider all credible evidence, including, but not 
limited to, a signed certification (form HUD-5382) or other documentation of abuse 
submitted to the PHA by the victim in accordance with this section and section 16-IX.D. 
The PHA will also consider the factors in section 12-II.D. Upon such consideration, the 
PHA may, on a case-by-case basis, choose not to terminate the assistance of the culpable 
family member. 

If the PHA does terminate the assistance of the culpable family member, it will do so in 
accordance with applicable law, HUD regulations, and the policies in this plan. 

505

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-18

12-II.F. TERMINATION NOTICE 

HUD regulations require PHAs to provide written notice of termination of assistance to a family 
only when the family is entitled to an informal hearing. However, since the family’s HAP 
contract and lease will also terminate when the family’s assistance terminates [form HUD-
52641], it is a good business practice to provide written notification to both owner and family 
anytime assistance will be terminated, whether voluntarily or involuntarily. 

PHA Policy 

Whenever a family’s assistance will be terminated, the PHA will send a written notice of 
termination to the family and to the owner. The PHA will also send a form HUD-5382 
and form HUD-5380 to the family with the termination notice. The notice will state the 
date on which the termination will become effective. This date generally will be at least 
30 calendar days following the date of the termination notice, but exceptions will be 
made whenever HUD rules, other PHA policies, or the circumstances surrounding the 
termination require. 

When the PHA notifies an owner that a family’s assistance will be terminated, the PHA 
will, if appropriate, advise the owner of his/her right to offer the family a separate, 
unassisted lease. 

If a family whose assistance is being terminated is entitled to an informal hearing, the notice of 
termination that the PHA sends to the family must meet the additional HUD and PHA notice 
requirements discussed in section 16-III.C of this plan. VAWA 2013 expands notification 
requirements to require PHAs to provide notice of VAWA rights and the HUD 5382 form when 
a PHA terminates a household’s housing benefits.  

PHA Policy 

Whenever the PHA decides to terminate a family’s assistance because of the family’s 
action or failure to act, the PHA will include in its termination notice the VAWA 
information described in section 16-IX.C of this plan and a form HUD-5382 and form 
HUD-5380. The PHA will request in writing that a family member wishing to claim 
protection under VAWA notify the PHA within 14 business days. 

Still other notice requirements apply in two situations: 

 If a criminal record is the basis of a family’s termination, the PHA must provide a copy of 
the record to the subject of the record and the tenant so that they have an opportunity to 
dispute the accuracy and relevance of the record [24 CFR 982.553(d)(2)]. 

 If immigration status is the basis of a family’s termination, as discussed in section 12-I.D, the 
special notice requirements in section 16-III.D must be followed. 

506

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-19

PART III: TERMINATION OF TENANCY BY THE OWNER 

12-III.A. OVERVIEW 

Termination of an assisted tenancy is a matter between the owner and the family; the PHA is not 
directly involved. However, the owner is under some constraints when terminating an assisted 
tenancy. Termination of tenancy for certain reasons will also result in termination of assistance 
as discussed in this section. 

12-III.B. GROUNDS FOR OWNER TERMINATION OF TENANCY [24 CFR 982.310, 24 
CFR 5.2005(c), and Form HUD-52641-A, Tenancy Addendum] 

During the term of the lease, the owner is not permitted to terminate the tenancy except for 
serious or repeated violations of the lease, certain violations of state or local law, or other 
good cause. 

Serious or Repeated Lease Violations 

The owner is permitted to terminate the family’s tenancy for serious or repeated violations of the 
terms and conditions of the lease, except when the violations are related to incidents of actual or 
threatened domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking and the victim is 
protected from eviction by the Violence against Women Act of 2013 (see section 12-II.E). A 
serious lease violation includes failure to pay rent or other amounts due under the lease. 
However, the PHA’s failure to make a HAP payment to the owner is not a violation of the lease 
between the family and the owner. 

Violation of Federal, State, or Local Law 

The owner is permitted to terminate the tenancy if a family member violates federal, state, or 
local law that imposes obligations in connection with the occupancy or use of the premises. 

Criminal Activity or Alcohol Abuse 

The owner may terminate tenancy during the term of the lease if any covered person—meaning 
any member of the household, a guest, or another person under the tenant’s control—commits 
any of the following types of criminal activity (for applicable definitions see 24 CFR 5.100): 

 Any criminal activity that threatens the health or safety of, or the right to peaceful enjoyment 
of the premises by, other residents (including property management staff residing on the 
premises) 

 Any criminal activity that threatens the health or safety of, or the right to peaceful enjoyment 
of their residences by, persons residing in the immediate vicinity of the premises 

 Any violent criminal activity on or near the premises 

 Any drug-related criminal activity on or near the premises 

However, in the case of criminal activity directly related to domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault or stalking, if the tenant or an affiliated individual is the victim, the criminal 
activity may not be construed as cause for terminating the victim’s tenancy (see section 12-II.E). 

507

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-20

The owner may terminate tenancy during the term of the lease if any member of the 
household is: 

 Fleeing to avoid prosecution, custody, or confinement after conviction for a crime or an 
attempt to commit a crime that is a felony under the laws of the place from which the 
individual flees, or that, in the case of the State of New Jersey, is a high misdemeanor; or 

 Violating a condition of probation or parole imposed under federal or state law. 

The owner may terminate tenancy during the term of the lease if any member of the household 
has engaged in abuse of alcohol that threatens the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment 
of the premises by other residents. 

Evidence of Criminal Activity 

The owner may terminate tenancy and evict by judicial action a family for criminal activity by a 
covered person if the owner determines the covered person has engaged in the criminal activity, 
regardless of whether the covered person has been arrested or convicted for such activity and 
without satisfying the standard of proof used for a criminal conviction. This is the case except in 
certain incidents where the criminal activity directly relates to domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and the tenant or an affiliated individual is the victim or 
threatened victim of the domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

Other Good Cause 

During the initial lease term, the owner may not terminate the tenancy for “other good cause” 
unless the owner is terminating the tenancy because of something the family did or failed to do. 
During the initial lease term or during any extension term, other good cause includes the 
disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property, or living or housekeeping habits that cause 
damage to the unit or premises.  

After the initial lease term, “other good cause” for termination of tenancy by the owner includes: 

 Failure by the family to accept the offer of a new lease or revision 

 The owner’s desire to use the unit for personal or family use, or for a purpose other than as a 
residential rental unit 

 A business or economic reason for termination of the tenancy (such as sale of the property, 
renovation of the unit, or desire to lease the unit at a higher rent) 

After the initial lease term, the owner may give the family notice at any time, in accordance with 
the terms of the lease. 

If a property is subject to foreclosure, during the term of the lease, the new owner of the property 
does not have good cause to terminate the tenant’s lease, unless the new owner will occupy the 
unit as their primary residence and has provided the tenant with at least a 90-day notice. In that 
case, the lease may be terminated effective on the date of sale, although the tenant is still entitled 
to a 90-day notice to vacate. See Section 13-II.G for a discussion of PHA policies relating to 
units in foreclosure. 

508

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-21

12-III.C. EVICTION [24 CFR 982.310(e) and (f) and Form HUD-52641-A, Tenancy 
Addendum] 

The owner must give the tenant a written notice that specifies the grounds for termination of 
tenancy during the term of the lease. The tenancy does not terminate before the owner has given 
this notice, and the notice must be given at or before commencement of the eviction action. 

The notice of grounds may be included in, or may be combined with, any owner eviction notice 
to the tenant. 

Owner eviction notice means a notice to vacate, or a complaint or other initial pleading used 
under state or local law to commence an eviction action. The owner may only evict the tenant 
from the unit by instituting a court action. The owner must give the PHA a copy of any eviction 
notice at the same time the owner notifies the family. The family is also required to give the 
PHA a copy of any eviction notice (see Chapter 5). 

PHA Policy 

If the eviction action is finalized in court, the owner must provide the PHA with 
documentation related to the eviction, including notice of the eviction date, as soon as 
possible, but no later than 5 business days following the court-ordered eviction. 

509

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-22

12-III.D. DECIDING WHETHER TO TERMINATE TENANCY [24 CFR 982.310(h), 
24 CFR 982.310(h)(4)] 

An owner who has grounds to terminate a tenancy is not required to do so, and may consider all 
of the circumstances relevant to a particular case before making a decision. These might include: 

 The nature of the offending action 

 The seriousness of the offending action; 

 The effect on the community of the termination, or of the owner’s failure to terminate the 
tenancy; 

 The extent of participation by the leaseholder in the offending action; 

 The effect of  termination of tenancy on household members not involved in the offending 
activity; 

 The demand for assisted housing by families who will adhere to lease responsibilities; 

 The extent to which the leaseholder has shown personal responsibility and taken all 
reasonable steps to prevent or mitigate the offending action; 

 The effect of the owner's action on the integrity of the program. 

The owner may require a family to exclude a household member in order to continue to reside in 
the assisted unit, where that household member has participated in or been culpable for action or 
failure to act that warrants termination. 

In determining whether to terminate tenancy for illegal use of drugs or alcohol abuse by a 
household member who is no longer engaged in such behavior, the owner may consider whether 
such household member is participating in or has successfully completed a supervised drug or 
alcohol rehabilitation program, or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully (42 U.S.C. 
13661). For this purpose, the owner may require the tenant to submit evidence of the household 
member's current participation in, or successful completion of, a supervised drug or alcohol 
rehabilitation program or evidence of otherwise having been rehabilitated successfully. 

The owner's termination of tenancy actions must be consistent with the fair housing and equal 
opportunity provisions in 24 CFR 5.105. 

An owner’s decision to terminate tenancy for incidents related to domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault or stalking is limited by the Violence against Women Act of 2013 
(VAWA) and the conforming regulations in 24 CFR Part 5, Subpart L. (See section 12-II.E.) 

12-III.E. EFFECT OF TENANCY TERMINATION ON THE FAMILY’S ASSISTANCE  

If a termination is not due to a serious or repeated violation of the lease, and if the PHA has no 
other grounds for termination of assistance, the PHA may issue a new voucher so that the family 
can move with continued assistance (see Chapter 10). 

510

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-23

EXHIBIT 12-1: STATEMENT OF FAMILY OBLIGATIONS 

Following is a listing of a participant family’s obligations under the HCV program: 

 The family must supply any information that the PHA or HUD determines to be necessary, 
including submission of required evidence of citizenship or eligible immigration status. 

 The family must supply any information requested by the PHA or HUD for use in a regularly 
scheduled reexamination or interim reexamination of family income and composition. 

 The family must disclose and verify social security numbers and sign and submit consent 
forms for obtaining information. 

 Any information supplied by the family must be true and complete. 

 The family is responsible for any Housing Quality Standards (HQS) breach by the family 
caused by failure to pay tenant-provided utilities or appliances, or damages to the dwelling 
unit or premises beyond normal wear and tear caused by any member of the household or 
guest. 

PHA Policy 

Damages beyond normal wear and tear will be considered to be damages which could be 
assessed against the security deposit. 

 The family must allow the PHA to inspect the unit at reasonable times and after reasonable 
notice, as described in Chapter 8 of this plan. 

 The family must not commit any serious or repeated violation of the lease. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will determine if a family has committed serious or repeated violations of the 
lease based on available evidence, including but not limited to, a court-ordered eviction 
or an owner’s notice to evict, police reports, and affidavits from the owner, neighbors, or 
other credible parties with direct knowledge. 

Serious and repeated lease violations will include, but not be limited to, nonpayment of 
rent, disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property, living or housekeeping habits that 
cause damage to the unit or premises, and criminal activity. Generally, the criterion to be 
used will be whether or not the reason for the eviction was the fault of the tenant or 
guests. Any incidents of, or criminal activity related to, domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault or stalking will not be construed as serious or repeated lease 
violations by the victim [24 CFR 5.2005(c)(1)]. 

 The family must notify the PHA and the owner before moving out of the unit or terminating 
the lease. 

PHA Policy 

The family must comply with lease requirements regarding written notice to the owner. 
The family must provide written notice to the PHA at the same time the owner is notified.  

 The family must promptly give the PHA a copy of any owner eviction notice.  

511

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-24

 The family must use the assisted unit for residence by the family. The unit must be the 
family’s only residence. 

 The composition of the assisted family residing in the unit must be approved by the PHA. 
The family must promptly notify the PHA in writing of the birth, adoption, or court-awarded 
custody of a child. The family must request PHA approval to add any other family member 
as an occupant of the unit. 

PHA Policy 

The request to add a family member must be submitted in writing and approved prior to 
the person moving into the unit. The PHA will determine eligibility of the new member 
in accordance with the policies in Chapter 3. 

 The family must promptly notify the PHA in writing if any family member no longer lives in 
the unit. 

 If the PHA has given approval, a foster child or a live-in aide may reside in the unit. The 
PHA has the discretion to adopt reasonable policies concerning residency by a foster child or 
a live-in aide, and to define when PHA consent may be given or denied. For policies related 
to the request and approval/disapproval of foster children, foster adults, and live-in aides, see 
Chapter 3 (Sections I.K and I.M), and Chapter 11 (Section II.B). 

 The family must not sublease the unit, assign the lease, or transfer the unit. 

PHA Policy 

Subleasing includes receiving payment to cover rent and utility costs by a person living in 
the unit who is not listed as a family member. 

 The family must supply any information requested by the PHA to verify that the family is 
living in the unit or information related to family absence from the unit. 

 The family must promptly notify the PHA when the family is absent from the unit. 

PHA Policy 

Notice is required under this provision only when all family members will be absent from 
the unit for an extended period. An extended period is defined as any period greater than 
30 calendar days. Written notice must be provided to the PHA at the start of the extended 
absence. 

 The family must pay utility bills and provide and maintain any appliances that the owner is 
not required to provide under the lease [Form HUD-52646, Voucher]. 

 The family must not own or have any interest in the unit, (other than in a cooperative and 
owners of a manufactured home leasing a manufactured home space).  

 Family members must not commit fraud, bribery, or any other corrupt or criminal act in 
connection with the program. (See Chapter 14, Program Integrity for additional information). 

512

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-25

 Family members must not engage in drug-related criminal activity or violent criminal activity 
or other criminal activity that threatens the health, safety or right to peaceful enjoyment of 
other residents and persons residing in the immediate vicinity of the premises. See Chapter 
12 for HUD and PHA policies related to drug-related and violent criminal activity. 

 Members of the household must not engage in abuse of alcohol in a way that threatens the 
health, safety or right to peaceful enjoyment of the other residents and persons residing in the 
immediate vicinity of the premises. See Chapter 12 for a discussion of HUD and PHA 
policies related to alcohol abuse. 

 An assisted family or member of the family must not receive HCV program assistance while 
receiving another housing subsidy, for the same unit or a different unit under any other 
federal, state or local housing assistance program. 

 A family must not receive HCV program assistance while residing in a unit owned by a 
parent, child, grandparent, grandchild, sister or brother of any member of the family, unless 
the PHA has determined (and has notified the owner and the family of such determination) 
that approving rental of the unit, notwithstanding such relationship, would provide 
reasonable accommodation for a family member who is a person with disabilities. [Form 
HUD-52646, Voucher] 

513

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 12-26

 

514

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-1

Chapter 13 

OWNERS 

INTRODUCTION 

Owners play a major role in the HCV program by supplying decent, safe, and sanitary housing 
for participating families. 

The term “owner” refers to any person or entity with the legal right to lease or sublease a unit to 
a participant in the HCV program [24 CFR 982.4(b)]. The term “owner” includes a principal or 
other interested party [24 CFR 982.453; 24 CFR 982.306(f)], such as a designated agent of the 
owner. 

Owners have numerous responsibilities under the program, including screening and leasing to 
families, maintaining the dwelling unit, enforcing the lease, and complying with various 
contractual obligations. 

The chapter is organized in two parts: 

Part I: Owners in the HCV Program. This part discusses the role of an owner in the 
PHA’s HCV program and highlights key owner rights and responsibilities. 

Part II: HAP Contracts. This part explains provisions of the HAP contract and the 
relationship between the PHA and the owner as expressed in the HAP contract. 

For detailed information about HCV program responsibilities and processes, including PHA 
policies in key areas, owners will need to refer to several other chapters in this plan. Where 
appropriate, Chapter 13 will reference the other chapters. 

515

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-2
516

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-3

PART I. OWNERS IN THE HCV PROGRAM 

13-I.A. OWNER RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION [HCV GB, pp. 2-4 to 2-6; 
HCV Landlord Strategy Guidebook for PHAs] 

Recruitment 

PHAs are responsible for ensuring that very low-income families have access to all types and 
ranges of affordable housing in the PHA’s jurisdiction, particularly housing outside areas of 
poverty or minority concentration. A critical element in fulfilling this responsibility is for the 
PHA to ensure that a sufficient number of owners, representing all types and ranges of affordable 
housing in the PHA’s jurisdiction, are willing to participate in the HCV program. 

To accomplish this objective, PHAs must identify and recruit new owners to participate in the 
program. 

If the PHA will be conducting outreach events, the PHA must ensure that notices and 
communications during outreach events are provided in a manner that is effective for persons 
with hearing, visual, and other communications-related disabilities. PHAs must also take 
reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to programs to persons with limited English 
proficiency. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will conduct owner outreach to ensure that owners are familiar with the 
program and its advantages. The PHA will actively recruit property owners with property 
located outside areas of poverty and minority concentration. These outreach strategies 
will include: 

Distributing printed material about the program to property owners and managers 

Contacting property owners and managers by phone or in-person 

Holding owner recruitment/information meetings at least once a year 

Participating in community-based organizations comprised of private property 
and apartment owners and managers 

Developing working relationships with owners, apartment associations, industry 
investor groups, and real estate brokers associations 

To the extent practical, partnering with and attending events hosted by other area 
agencies to deliver information about the HCV program 

Outreach strategies will be monitored for effectiveness and adapted accordingly. 

517

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-4

Retention 

In addition to recruiting owners to participate in the HCV program, the PHA must also provide 
the kind of customer service that will encourage participating owners to remain active in the 
program. 

PHA Policy 

All PHA activities that may affect an owner’s ability to lease a unit will be processed as 
rapidly as possible, in order to minimize vacancy losses for owners.  

The PHA will provide owners with information that explains the program, including 
HUD and PHA policies and procedures, in easy-to-understand language and also make 
the information available on the City website. 

The PHA will give special attention to helping new owners succeed through activities 
such as: 

Providing the owner with a designated PHA contact person. 

Coordinating inspection and leasing activities between the PHA, the owner, and 
the family. 

Initiating telephone contact with the owner to explain the inspection process and 
providing an inspection booklet and other resource materials about HUD housing 
quality standards. 

Contacting owners via emails or texts to disseminate information. 

Additional services may be undertaken on an as-needed basis, and as resources permit. 

518

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-5

13-I.B. BASIC HCV PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 

HUD requires the PHA to assist families in their housing search by providing the family with a 
list of landlords or other parties known to the PHA who may be willing to lease a unit to the 
family, or to help the family find a unit. Although the PHA cannot maintain a list of owners that 
are pre-qualified to participate in the program, owners may indicate to the PHA their willingness 
to lease a unit to an eligible HCV family, or to help the HCV family find a unit [24 CFR 
982.301(b)(11)]. 

PHA Policy 

Owners that wish to indicate their willingness to lease a unit to an eligible HCV family or 
to help the HCV family find a unit must notify the PHA. The PHA will maintain a listing 
of such owners and provide this listing to the HCV family as part of the informational 
briefing packet.  

When a family approaches an owner to apply for tenancy, the owner is responsible for screening 
the family and deciding whether to lease to the family, just as the owner would with any 
potential unassisted tenant. The PHA has no liability or responsibility to the owner or other 
persons for the family’s behavior or suitability for tenancy. See chapters 3 and 9 for more detail 
on tenant family screening policies and process. 

If the owner is willing, the family and the owner must jointly complete a Request for Tenancy 
Approval (RTA, Form HUD 52517), which constitutes the family's request for assistance in the 
specified unit, and which documents the owner’s willingness to lease to the family and to follow 
the program’s requirements. When submitted to the PHA, this document is the first step in the 
process of obtaining approval for the family to receive the financial assistance it will need in 
order to occupy the unit. Also submitted with the RTA is a copy of the owner’s proposed 
dwelling lease, including the HUD-required Tenancy Addendum (Form HUD-52641-A). See 
Chapter 9 for more detail on request for tenancy approval policies and process. 

HUD regulations stipulate requirements for the approval of an assisted tenancy. 

The owner must be qualified to participate in the program [24 CFR 982.306]. Some owners are 
precluded from participating in the program, or from renting to a particular family, either 
because of their past history with this or another federal housing program, or because of certain 
conflicts of interest. Owner qualifications are discussed later in this chapter. 

The selected unit must be of a type that is eligible for the program [24 CFR 982.305(a)]. Certain 
types of dwelling units cannot be assisted under the HCV program. Other types may be assisted 
under certain conditions. See chapter 9 for more detail on unit eligibility policies and process. 

The selected unit must meet HUD’s Housing Quality Standards (HQS) and/or equivalent state or 
local standards approved by HUD [24 CFR 982.305(a)]. The PHA will inspect the owner’s 
dwelling unit at least annually to ensure that the unit continues to meet HQS requirements. See 
chapter 8 for a discussion of the HQS standards and policies for HQS inspections at initial lease-
up and throughout the family’s tenancy. 

519

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-6

The PHA must determine that the proposed rent for the unit is reasonable [24 CFR 982.305(a)]. 
The rent must be reasonable in relation to comparable unassisted units in the area and must not 
be in excess of rents charged by the owner for comparable, unassisted units on the premises. See 
chapter 8 for a discussion of requirements and policies on rent reasonableness, rent comparability 
and the rent reasonableness determination process. 

At initial lease-up of a unit, if the gross rent exceeds the applicable payment standard, the PHA 
must ensure that the family share does not exceed 40 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted 
income [24 CFR 982.305(a)]. See chapter 6 for a discussion of the calculation of family income, 
family share of rent and HAP. 

The dwelling lease must comply with all program requirements [24 CFR 982.308]. Owners are 
encouraged to use their standard leases when renting to an assisted family. The HUD Tenancy 
Addendum includes the HUD requirements governing the tenancy and must be added word-for-
word to the owner’s lease. See chapter 9 for a discussion of the dwelling lease and tenancy 
addendum, including lease terms and provisions. 

The PHA and the owner must execute a Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract (Form 
HUD-52641). The HAP contract format is prescribed by HUD. See chapter 9 for a discussion of 
the HUD requirements for execution of the HAP contract. 

520

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-7

13-I.C. OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES [24 CFR 982.452] 

The basic owner responsibilities in the HCV program are outlined in the regulations as follows: 

 Complying with all of the owner’s obligations under the housing assistance payments (HAP) 
contract and the lease 

 Performing all management and rental functions for the assisted unit, including selecting a 
voucher-holder to lease the unit, and deciding if the family is suitable for tenancy of the unit 

 Maintaining the unit in accordance with the Housing Quality Standards (HQS), including 
performance of ordinary and extraordinary maintenance 

 Complying with equal opportunity requirements 

 Preparing and furnishing to the PHA information required under the HAP contract 

 Collecting the security deposit, the tenant rent, and any charges for unit damage by 
the family. 

 Enforcing tenant obligations under the dwelling lease 

 Paying for utilities and services that are not the responsibility of the family as specified in 
the lease 

 Allowing reasonable modifications to a dwelling unit occupied or to be occupied by a 
disabled person [24 CFR 100.203] 

 Complying with the Violence against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 (VAWA) when 
screening prospective HCV tenants or terminating the tenancy of an HCV family (see 24 
CFR Part 5, Subpart L; 24 CFR 982.310(h)(4); and 24 CFR 982.452(b)(1)) 

521

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-8

13-I.D. OWNER QUALIFICATIONS 

The PHA does not formally approve an owner to participate in the HCV program. However, 
there are a number of criteria where the PHA may deny approval of an assisted tenancy based on 
past owner behavior, conflict of interest, or other owner-related issues. No owner has a right to 
participate in the HCV program [24 CFR 982.306(e)]. 

Owners Barred from Participation [24 CFR 982.306(a) and (b)] 

The PHA must not approve the assisted tenancy if the PHA has been informed that the owner has 
been debarred, suspended, or subject to a limited denial of participation under 24 CFR part 24. 
HUD may direct the PHA not to approve a tenancy request if a court or administrative agency 
has determined that the owner violated the Fair Housing Act or other federal equal opportunity 
requirements, or if such an action is pending.  

Leasing to Relatives [24 CFR 982.306(d), HCV GB p. 11-2] 

The PHA must not approve a tenancy if the owner is the parent, child, grandparent, grandchild, 
sister, or brother of any member of the family. The PHA may make an exception as a reasonable 
accommodation for a family member with a disability. The owner is required to certify that no 
such relationship exists. This restriction applies at the time that the family receives assistance 
under the HCV program for occupancy of a particular unit. Current contracts on behalf of owners 
and families that are related may continue, but any new leases or contracts for these families may 
not be approved. 

Conflict of Interest [24 CFR 982.161; HCV GB p. 8-19] 

The PHA must not approve a tenancy in which any of the following classes of persons has any 
interest, direct or indirect, during tenure or for one year thereafter:  

 Any present or former member or officer of the PHA (except a participant commissioner) 

 Any employee of the PHA, or any contractor, subcontractor or agent of the PHA, who 
formulates policy or who influences decisions with respect to the programs 

 Any public official, member of a governing body, or State or local legislator, who exercises 
functions or responsibilities with respect to the programs 

 Any member of the Congress of the United States 

522

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-9

HUD may waive the conflict of interest requirements, except for members of Congress, for good 
cause. The PHA must submit a waiver request to the appropriate HUD Field Office for 
determination. 

Any waiver request submitted by the PHA must include the following [HCV Guidebook pp.11-2 
and 11-3]: 

 Complete statement of the facts of the case; 

 Analysis of the specific conflict of interest provision of the HAP contract and justification as 
to why the provision should be waived; 

 Analysis of and statement of consistency with state and local laws. The local HUD office, the 
PHA, or both parties may conduct this analysis. Where appropriate, an opinion by the state’s 
attorney general should be obtained;  

 Opinion by the local HUD office as to whether there would be an appearance of impropriety 
if the waiver were granted; 

 Statement regarding alternative existing housing available for lease under the HCV program 
or other assisted housing if the waiver is denied; 

 If the case involves a hardship for a particular family, statement of the circumstances and 
discussion of possible alternatives; 

 If the case involves a public official or member of the governing body, explanation of his/her 
duties under state or local law, including reference to any responsibilities involving the HCV 
program; 

 If the case involves employment of a family member by the PHA or assistance under the 
HCV program for an eligible PHA employee, explanation of the responsibilities and duties of 
the position, including any related to the HCV program; 

 If the case involves an investment on the part of a member, officer, or employee of the PHA, 
description of the nature of the investment, including disclosure/divestiture plans. 

Where the PHA has requested a conflict of interest waiver, the PHA may not execute the HAP 
contract until HUD has made a decision on the waiver request. 

PHA Policy 

In considering whether to request a conflict of interest waiver from HUD, the PHA will 
consider certain factors such as consistency of the waiver with state and local laws, the 
existence of alternative housing available to families, the individual circumstances of a 
particular family, the specific duties of individuals whose positions present a possible 
conflict of interest, the nature of any financial investment in the property and plans for 
disclosure/divestiture, and the possible appearance of impropriety. 

523

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-10

Owner Actions That May Result in Disapproval of a Tenancy Request [24 CFR 982.306(c)] 

HUD regulations permit the PHA to disapprove a request for tenancy for various actions and 
inactions of the owner.  

If the PHA disapproves a request for tenancy because an owner is not qualified, it may not 
terminate the HAP contract for any assisted families that are already living in the owner’s 
properties unless the owner has violated the HAP contract for those units [HCV GB p. 11-4]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will refuse to approve a request for tenancy if the PHA becomes aware that any 
of the following are true: 

The owner has violated obligations under a HAP contract under Section 8 of the 
1937 Act (42 U.S.C. 1437f); 

The owner has committed fraud, bribery or any other corrupt or criminal act in 
connection with any federal housing program; 

The owner has engaged in any drug-related criminal activity or any violent 
criminal activity; 

The owner has a history or practice of non-compliance with the HQS for units 
leased under the tenant-based programs, or with applicable housing standards for 
units leased with project-based Section 8 assistance or leased under any other 
federal housing program; 

The owner has a history or practice of failing to terminate tenancy of tenants of 
units assisted under Section 8 or any other federally assisted housing program for 
activity engaged in by the tenant, any member of the household, a guest or 
another person under the control of any member of the household that: (i) 
Threatens the right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents; (ii) 
Threatens the health or safety of other residents, of employees of the PHA, or of 
owner employees or other persons engaged in management of the housing; (iii) 
Threatens the health or safety of, or the right to peaceful enjoyment of their 
residences, by persons residing in the immediate vicinity of the premises; or (iv) 
Is drug-related criminal activity or violent criminal activity; 

The owner has a history or practice of renting units that fail to meet state or local 
housing codes; or 

The owner has not paid state or local real estate taxes, fines, or assessment. 

In considering whether to disapprove owners for any of the discretionary reasons listed 
above, the PHA will consider any mitigating factors. Such factors may include, but are 
not limited to, the seriousness of the violation in relation to program requirements, the 
impact on the ability of families to lease units under the program, health and safety of 
participating families, among others. Upon consideration of such circumstances, the PHA 
may, on a case-by-case basis, choose to approve an owner. 

524

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-11

Legal Ownership of Unit 

The following represents PHA policy on legal ownership of a dwelling unit to be assisted under 
the HCV program. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will only enter into a contractual relationship with the legal owner of a 
qualified unit. No tenancy will be approved without submitting a W-9 and signed contract 
by owner and or managing company. 

13-I.E. NON-DISCRIMINATION [HAP Contract – Form HUD-52641] 

The owner must not discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, age, familial status, or disability, in connection with any actions or 
responsibilities under the HCV program and the HAP contract with the PHA. 

The owner must cooperate with the PHA and with HUD in conducting any equal opportunity 
compliance reviews and complaint investigations in connection with the HCV program and the 
HAP contract with the PHA. 

See Chapter 2 for a more thorough discussion of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity 
requirements in the HCV program. 

525

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-12
526

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-13

PART II. HAP CONTRACTS 

13-II.A. OVERVIEW 

The HAP contract represents a written agreement between the PHA and the owner of the 
dwelling unit occupied by a HCV assisted family. The contract spells out the owner’s 
responsibilities under the program, as well as the PHA’s obligations. Under the HAP contract, 
the PHA agrees to make housing assistance payments to the owner on behalf of the family 
approved by the PHA to occupy the unit. 

The HAP contract is used for all HCV program tenancies except for assistance under the 
Section 8 homeownership program, and assistance to families that own a manufactured home 
and use their assistance to lease the space for the manufactured home. See chapter 15 for a 
discussion of any special housing types included in the PHA’s HCV program. 

When the PHA has determined that the unit meets program requirements and the tenancy is 
approvable, the PHA and owner must execute the HAP contract. See chapter 9 for a discussion 
of the leasing process, including provisions for execution of the HAP contract. 

527

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-14

13-II.B. HAP CONTRACT CONTENTS 

The HAP contract format is required by HUD, specifically Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) 
Contract, Form HUD-52641. 

The HAP contract contains three parts. 

Part A of the contract includes basic contract information: the names of the tenant and all 
household members, the address of the contract unit, start and end dates of initial lease term, the 
amount of initial monthly rent to owner, the amount of initial housing assistance payment, the 
utilities and appliances to be supplied by owner and tenant, and the signatures of the PHA 
representative and owner [HCV Guidebook, pp. 11-10 and 11-11]. 

In general, the HAP contract cannot be modified. However, PHAs do have the discretion to add 
language to Part A of the HAP contract which prohibits the owner from collecting a security 
deposit in excess of private market practices or in excess of amounts charged to unassisted 
tenants. PHA policy on the amount of security deposit an owner may collect is found in 
Chapter 9. 

PHAs also have the discretion to add language to Part A of the HAP contract that defines when 
the housing assistance payment by the PHA is deemed received by the owner (e.g., upon mailing 
by the PHA or actual receipt by the owner). 

PHA Policy 

The PHA has not adopted a policy that defines when the housing assistance payment by 
the PHA is deemed received by the owner. Therefore, no modifications to the HAP 
contract will be necessary. 

528

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-15

Part B is the body of the contract. It describes in detail program requirements affecting the owner 
and owner roles and responsibilities under the HCV program. Most of the requirements 
contained in Part B of the HAP contract are outlined elsewhere in this plan. Topics addressed in 
Part B include: 

 Lease of Contract Unit 

 Maintenance, Utilities, and Other Services 

 Term of HAP Contract 

 Provision and Payment of Utilities and Appliances 

 Rent to Owner: Reasonable Rent 

 PHA Payment to Owner 

 Prohibition of Discrimination 

 Owner’s Breach of HAP Contract 

 PHA and HUD Access to Premises and Owner’s Records 

 Exclusion of Third Party Rights 

 Conflict of Interest 

 Assignment of the HAP Contract 

 Written Notices 

 Entire Agreement Interpretation 

Part C of the contract includes the Tenancy Addendum (Form HUD-52641-A). The addendum 
sets forth the tenancy requirements for the program and the composition of the household, as 
approved by the PHA. The tenant has the right to enforce the Tenancy Addendum against the 
owner. The terms of the Tenancy Addendum prevail over any other provisions of the lease. 

529

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-16

13-II.C. HAP CONTRACT PAYMENTS 

General 

During the term of the HAP contract, and subject to the provisions of the HAP contract, the PHA 
must make monthly HAP payments to the owner on behalf of the family, at the beginning of 
each month. If a lease term begins after the first of the month, the HAP payment for the first 
month is prorated for a partial month.  

The amount of the HAP payment is determined according to the policies described in Chapter 6 
and is subject to change during the term of the HAP contract. The PHA must notify the owner 
and the family in writing of any changes in the HAP payment. 

HAP payments can be made only during the lease term, and only while the family is residing in 
the unit. 

The monthly HAP payment by the PHA is credited toward the monthly rent to owner under the 
family’s lease. The total of the rent paid by the tenant and the HAP payment is equal to the rent 
to owner as specified in the lease. 

The family is not responsible for payment of the HAP payment, and the PHA is not responsible 
for payment of the family share of rent. 

The family’s share of the rent cannot be more than the difference between the rent to owner and 
the HAP payment. The owner may not demand or accept any rent payment from the tenant in 
excess of this maximum [24 CFR 982.451(b)(4)]. The owner may not charge the tenant extra 
amounts for items customarily included in rent in the locality or provided at no additional cost to 
unsubsidized tenants in the premises [24 CFR 982.510(c)]. See chapter 9 for a discussion of 
separate, non-lease agreements for services, appliances and other items that are not included in 
the lease. 

If the owner receives any excess HAP from the PHA, the excess amount must be returned 
immediately. If the PHA determines that the owner is not entitled to all or a portion of the HAP, 
the PHA may deduct the amount of overpayment from any amounts due to the owner, including 
amounts due under any other Section 8 HCV contract. See Chapter 16 for additional detail on 
owner reimbursement of HAP overpayments. 

Owner Certification of Compliance 

Unless the owner complies with all provisions of the HAP contract, the owner is not entitled to 
receive housing assistance payments under the HAP contract [HAP Contract – Form 
HUD-52641]. 

By endorsing the monthly check from the PHA, the owner certifies to compliance with the terms 
of the HAP contract. This includes certification that the owner is maintaining the unit and 
premises in accordance with HQS; that the contract unit is leased to the tenant family and, to the 
best of the owner’s knowledge, the family resides in the unit as the family’s only residence; the 
rent to owner does not exceed rents charged by the owner for comparable unassisted units on the 
premises; and that the owner does not receive (other than rent to owner) any additional payments 
or other consideration for rent of the contract unit during the HAP term. 

530

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-17

Late HAP Payments [24 CFR 982.451(a)(5)] 

The PHA is responsible for making HAP payments promptly when due to the owner, in 
accordance with the terms of the HAP contract. After the first two calendar months of the HAP 
contract term, the HAP contract provides for late penalties if the PHA fails to make the HAP 
payment on time. 

Penalties for late HAP payments can only be imposed if 1) the penalties are in accordance with 
generally accepted local rental market practices and law governing penalties for late payment by 
tenants; 2) it is the owner’s normal business practice to charge late payment penalties for both 
assisted and unassisted families; and 3) the owner charges the assisted family for late payment of 
the family’s share of the rent. 

The PHA is not required to pay a late payment penalty if HUD determines that the payment is 
late for reasons beyond the PHA’s control. In addition, late payment penalties are not required if 
the PHA intentionally delays or denies payment as a remedy to an owner breach of the HAP 
contract [HCV Guidebook p. 11-7]. 

Termination of HAP Payments [24 CFR 982.311(b)] 

The PHA must continue making housing assistance payments to the owner in accordance with 
the HAP contract as long as the tenant continues to occupy the unit and the HAP contract is not 
violated. 

HAP payments terminate when the HAP contract terminates or when the tenancy is terminated in 
accordance with the terms of the lease. 

If the owner has initiated eviction proceedings against the family and the family continues to 
reside in the unit, the PHA must continue to make housing assistance payments to the owner 
until the owner has obtained a court judgment or other process allowing the owner to evict the 
tenant. 

PHA Policy 

The owner must inform the PHA when the owner has initiated eviction proceedings 
against the family and the family continues to reside in the unit. 

The owner must inform the PHA when the owner has obtained a court judgment or other 
process allowing the owner to evict the tenant and provide the PHA with a copy of such 
judgment or determination. 

After the owner has obtained a court judgment or other process allowing the owner to 
evict the tenant, the PHA will continue to make HAP payments to the owner until the 
family actually moves from the unit or until the family is physically evicted from the unit, 
whichever is earlier. The owner must inform the PHA of the date when the family 
actually moves from the unit or the family is physically evicted from the unit. 

531

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-18

13-II.D. BREACH OF HAP CONTRACT [24 CFR 982.453] 

Any of the following actions by the owner constitutes a breach of the HAP contract: 

 If the owner violates any obligations under the HAP contract including failure to maintain the 
unit in accordance with HQS 

 If the owner has violated any obligation under any other HAP contract under Section 8 

 If the owner has committed fraud, bribery or any other corrupt or criminal act in connection 
with any federal housing program 

 For projects with mortgages insured by HUD or loans made by HUD, if the owner has failed 
to comply with the regulation for the applicable program; or if the owner has committed 
fraud, bribery or any other corrupt or criminal act in connection with the mortgage or loan 

 If the owner has engaged in drug-related criminal activity 

 If the owner has committed any violent criminal activity 

If the PHA determines that a breach of the HAP contract has occurred, it may exercise any of its 
rights and remedies under the HAP contract. 

The PHA rights and remedies against the owner under the HAP contract include recovery of any 
HAP overpayment, suspension of housing assistance payments, abatement or reduction of the 
housing assistance payment, termination of the payment or termination of the HAP contract. The 
PHA may also obtain additional relief by judicial order or action.  

The PHA must notify the owner of its determination and provide in writing the reasons for the 
determination. The notice may require the owner to take corrective action by an established 
deadline. The PHA must provide the owner with written notice of any reduction in housing 
assistance payments or the termination of the HAP contract. 

PHA Policy 

Before the PHA invokes a remedy against an owner, the PHA will evaluate all 
information and documents available to determine if the contract has been breached. 

If relevant, the PHA will conduct an audit of the owner’s records pertaining to the 
tenancy or unit. 

If it is determined that the owner has breached the contract, the PHA will consider all of 
the relevant factors including the seriousness of the breach, the effect on the family, the 
owner’s record of compliance and the number and seriousness of any prior HAP contract 
violations. 

532

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-19

13-II.E. HAP CONTRACT TERM AND TERMINATIONS 

The term of the HAP contract runs concurrently with the term of the dwelling lease [24 CFR 
982.451(a)(2)], beginning on the first day of the initial term of the lease and terminating on the 
last day of the term of the lease, including any lease term extensions. 

The HAP contract and the housing assistance payments made under the HAP contract terminate 
if [HCV Guidebook pp.11-4 and 11-5, pg. 15-3]: 

 The owner or the family terminates the lease; 

 The lease expires; 

 The PHA terminates the HAP contract; 

 The PHA terminates assistance for the family; 

 The family moves from the assisted unit. In this situation, the owner is entitled to keep the 
housing assistance payment for the month when the family moves out of the unit.  

 180 calendar days have elapsed since the PHA made the last housing assistance payment to 
the owner; 

 The family is absent from the unit for longer than the maximum period permitted by the 
PHA; 

 The Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) between the PHA and HUD expires 

 The PHA elects to terminate the HAP contract. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA may elect to terminate the HAP contract in each of the following situations: 

Available program funding is not sufficient to support continued assistance for 
families in the program [24 CFR 982.454]; 

The unit does not meet HQS size requirements due to change in family 
composition [24 CFR 982.403] – see chapter 8; 

The unit does not meet HQS [24 CFR 982.404] – see chapter 8; 

The family breaks up [HUD Form 52641] – see chapter 3; 

The owner breaches the HAP contract [24 CFR 982.453(b)] – see Section 13-II.D. 

533

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-20

If the PHA terminates the HAP contract, the PHA must give the owner and the family written 
notice. The notice must specify the reasons for the termination and the effective date of the 
termination. Once a HAP contract is terminated, no further HAP payments may be made under 
that contract [HCV Guidebook pg.15-4]. 

PHA Policy 

In all cases, the HAP contract terminates at the end of the calendar month that follows the 
calendar month in which the PHA gives written notice to the owner. The owner is not 
entitled to any housing assistance payment after this period and must return to the PHA 
any housing assistance payment received after this period. 

If the family moves from the assisted unit into a new unit, even if the new unit is in the same 
building or complex as the assisted unit, the HAP contract for the assisted unit terminates. A new 
HAP contract would be required [HCV GB, p. 11-17]. 

When the family moves from an assisted unit into a new unit, the term of the HAP contract for 
the new unit may begin in the same month in which the family moves out of its old unit. This is 
not considered a duplicative subsidy [HCV GB, p. 8-22]. 

534

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-21

13-II.F. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP / ASSIGNMENT OF THE HAP CONTRACT  
[HUD-52641] 

The HAP contract cannot be assigned to a new owner without the prior written consent of the 
PHA. 

An owner under a HAP contract must notify the PHA in writing prior to a change in the legal 
ownership of the unit. The owner must supply all information as requested by the PHA. 

Prior to approval of assignment to a new owner, the new owner must agree to be bound by and 
comply with the HAP contract. The agreement between the new owner and the former owner 
must be in writing and in a form that the PHA finds acceptable. The new owner must provide the 
PHA with a copy of the executed agreement. 

PHA Policy 

Assignment of the HAP contract will be approved only if the new owner is qualified to 
become an owner under the HCV program according to the policies in Section 13-I.D. of 
this chapter. 

The PHA must receive a signed, written request from the existing owner stating the name 
and address of the new HAP payee and the effective date of the assignment in order to 
change the HAP payee under an outstanding HAP contract. 

Within 10 business days of receiving the owner’s request, the PHA will inform the 
current owner in writing whether the assignment may take place. 

The new owner must provide a written certification to the PHA that includes: 

A copy of the escrow statement or other document showing the transfer of title 
and recorded deed; 

A copy of the owner’s IRS Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification 
Number and Certification, or the social security number of the new owner; 

The effective date of the HAP contract assignment; 

A written agreement to comply with the terms of the HAP contract; and 

A certification that the new owner is not a prohibited relative. 

If the new owner does not agree to an assignment of the HAP contract, or fails to provide 
the necessary documents, the PHA will terminate the HAP contract with the old owner. If 
the new owner wants to offer the family a new lease, and the family elects to stay with 
continued assistance, the PHA will process the leasing in accordance with the policies in 
Chapter 9. 

535

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 13-22

13-II.G. FORECLOSURE [Notice PIH 2010-49] 

Families receiving HCV assistance are entitled to certain protections set forth under the 
Protecting Tenants at Foreclosure Act (PTFA). During the term of the lease, the new owner of 
the property does not have good cause to terminate the tenant’s lease, unless the new owner will 
occupy the unit as their primary residence and has provided the tenant with at least a 90-day 
notice. In that case, the lease may be terminated effective on the date of sale, although the tenant 
is still entitled to a 90-day notice to vacate. Further, the new owner assumes interest in the lease 
between the prior owner and the tenant and to the HAP contract. 

Any state or local law that provides longer time periods or other additional protections for 
tenants also applies. 

PHA Policy 

If a property is in foreclosure, the PHA will make all reasonable efforts to determine the 
status of the foreclosure and ownership of the property and will continue to make 
payments to the original owner until ownership legally transfers in accordance with the 
HAP contract. 

The PHA will attempt to obtain a written acknowledgement of the assignment of the 
HAP contract from the successor in interest. This will include a request for owner 
information, including a tax identification number and payment instructions from the new 
owner. Even if the new owner does not acknowledge the assignment of the HAP contract 
in writing, the assignment is still effective by operation of law. 

The PHA will inform the tenant that they must continue to pay rent in accordance with 
the lease, and if the new owner refuses to accept payment or cannot be identified, the 
tenant should pay rent into escrow. Failure to pay rent may constitute an independent 
ground for eviction. 

In the event that the PHA is unable to make HAP payments to the new owner due to an 
action or inaction by the new owner that prevents such payments (e.g., rejection of 
payments or failure to maintain the property according to HQS), or due to an inability to 
identify the new owner, the PHA will either use the funds to pay: 

The utilities that are the owner’s responsibility after taking reasonable steps to 
notify the owner; except that if the unit has been or will be rendered uninhabitable 
due to termination or threat of termination of service, prior notice is not required. 
In the latter case, the PHA shall notify the owner within a reasonable time after 
making the utility payment; or  

For the family’s reasonable moving costs, including security deposit costs. 

The PHA will also refer the tenant, as needed, to the local legal aid office in order to 
ensure adequate protection of the tenant’s rights and enforcement of the successor in 
interest’s performance under the HAP contract. 

See Section 12-III.B for a discussion of foreclosure as it pertains to owner termination 
of tenancy. 

536

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-1

Chapter 14 

PROGRAM INTEGRITY 

INTRODUCTION 

The PHA is committed to ensuring that subsidy funds made available to the PHA are spent in 
accordance with HUD requirements. 

This chapter covers HUD and PHA policies designed to prevent, detect, investigate, and resolve 
instances of program abuse or fraud. It also describes the actions that will be taken in the case of 
unintentional errors and omissions. 

Part I: Preventing, Detecting, and Investigating Errors and Program Abuse. This part 
presents PHA policies related to preventing, detecting, and investigating errors and 
program abuse. 

Part II: Corrective Measures and Penalties. This part describes the corrective measures 
the PHA must and may take when errors or program abuses are found.  

537

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-2

538

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-3

PART I: PREVENTING, DETECTING, AND  
INVESTIGATING ERRORS AND PROGRAM ABUSE 

14-I.A. PREVENTING ERRORS AND PROGRAM ABUSE 

HUD created the Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) system to provide PHAs with a powerful 
tool for preventing errors and detecting program abuse. PHAs are required to use the EIV system 
in its entirety in accordance with HUD administrative guidance [24 CFR 5.233]. PHAs are 
further required to: 

 Provide applicants and participants with form HUD-52675, “Debts Owed to PHAs and 
Terminations” 

 Require all adult members of an applicant or participant family to acknowledge receipt of 
form HUD-52675 by signing a copy of the form for retention in the family file 

PHA Policy 

To ensure that the PHA’s HCV program is administered according to the highest ethical 
and legal standards, the PHA will employ a variety of techniques to ensure that both 
errors and intentional program abuse are rare.  

The PHA will discuss program compliance and integrity issues during the 
voucher briefing sessions described in Chapter 5. 

The PHA will provide each applicant and participant with a copy of “Is Fraud 
Worth It?” (form HUD-1141-OIG), which explains the types of actions a family 
must avoid and the penalties for program abuse. 

The PHA will provide each applicant and participant with a copy of “What You 
Should Know about EIV,” a guide to the Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) 
system published by HUD as an attachment to Notice PIH 2017-12. 

The PHA will place a warning statement about the penalties for fraud (as 
described in 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 1010) on key PHA forms and form letters that 
request information from a family or owner.  

PHA staff will be required to review and explain the contents of all HUD- and 
PHA-required forms prior to requesting family member signatures.  

At every regular reexamination, PHA staff will explain any changes in HUD 
regulations or PHA policy that affect program participants. 

The PHA will provide each PHA employee with the necessary training on 
program rules and the organization’s standards of conduct and ethics. 

539

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-4

For purposes of this chapter the term error refers to an unintentional error or omission. 
Program abuse or fraud refers to a single act or pattern of actions that constitute a false 
statement, omission, or concealment of a substantial fact, made with the intent to deceive 
or mislead. 

14-I.B. DETECTING ERRORS AND PROGRAM ABUSE  

In addition to taking steps to prevent errors and program abuse, the PHA will use a variety of 
activities to detect errors and program abuse. 

Quality Control and Analysis of Data 

Under the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP), HUD requires the PHA to 
review a random sample of tenant records annually to determine if the records conform to 
program requirements and to conduct quality control inspections of a sample of units to ensure 
HQS compliance [24 CFR, Part 985]. (See Chapter 16 for additional information about SEMAP 
requirements). 

PHA Policy 

In addition to the SEMAP quality control requirements, the PHA will employ a variety of 
methods to detect errors and program abuse. 

The PHA routinely will use HUD and other non-HUD sources of up-front income 
verification. This includes The Work Number and any other private or public 
databases available to the PHA. 

At each annual reexamination, current information provided by the family will be 
compared to information provided at the last annual reexamination to identify 
inconsistencies and incomplete information.  

The PHA will compare family-reported income and expenditures to detect 
possible unreported income. 

Independent Audits and HUD Monitoring 

OMB Circular A-133 requires all PHAs that expend $500,000 or more in federal awards 
annually to have an independent audit (IPA). In addition, HUD conducts periodic on-site and 
automated monitoring of PHA activities and notifies the PHA of errors and potential cases of 
program abuse. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will use the results reported in any IPA or HUD monitoring reports to identify 
potential program abuses as well as to assess the effectiveness of the PHA’s error 
detection and abuse prevention efforts. 

Individual Reporting of Possible Errors and Program Abuse 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will encourage staff, program participants, and the public to report possible 
program abuse. 

540

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-5

14-I.C. INVESTIGATING ERRORS AND PROGRAM ABUSE 

When the PHA Will Investigate 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will review all referrals, specific allegations, complaints, and tips from any 
source including other agencies, companies, and individuals, to determine if they warrant 
investigation. In order for the PHA to investigate, the allegation must contain at least one 
independently verifiable item of information, such as the name of an employer or the 
name of an unauthorized household member. 

The PHA will investigate when inconsistent or contradictory information is detected 
through file reviews and the verification process. 

Consent to Release of Information [24 CFR 982.516] 

The PHA may investigate possible instances of error or abuse using all available PHA and public 
records. If necessary, the PHA will require HCV families to sign consent forms for the release of 
additional information. 

Analysis and Findings 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will base its evaluation on a preponderance of the evidence collected during its 
investigation. 

Preponderance of the evidence is defined as evidence which is of greater weight or more 
convincing than the evidence which is offered in opposition to it; that is, evidence that as 
a whole shows that the fact sought to be proved is more probable than not. Preponderance 
of evidence may not be determined by the number of witnesses, but by the greater weight 
of all evidence. 

For each investigation the PHA will determine (1) whether an error or program abuse has 
occurred, (2) whether any amount of money is owed the PHA, and (3) what corrective 
measures or penalties will be assessed. 

541

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-6

Consideration of Remedies 

All errors and instances of program abuse must be corrected prospectively. Whether the PHA 
will enforce other corrective actions and penalties depends upon the nature of the error or 
program abuse.  

PHA Policy 

In the case of family-caused errors or program abuse, the PHA will take into 
consideration (1) the seriousness of the offense and the extent of participation or 
culpability of individual family members, (2) any special circumstances surrounding the 
case, (3) any mitigating circumstances related to the disability of a family member, (4) 
the effects of a particular remedy on family members who were not involved in the 
offense. 

In the case of owner-caused errors or program abuse, the PHA will take into 
consideration (1) the seriousness of the offense, (2) the length of time since the violation 
has occurred, and (3) the effects of a particular remedy on family members who were not 
involved in the offense. 

Notice and Appeals  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will inform the relevant party in writing of its findings and remedies within 10 
business days of the conclusion of the investigation. The notice will include (1) a 
description of the error or program abuse, (2) the basis on which the PHA determined the 
error or program abuses, (3) the remedies to be employed, and (4) the family’s right to 
appeal the results through the informal review or hearing process, if applicable (see 
Chapter 16). 

542

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-7

PART II: CORRECTIVE MEASURES AND PENALTIES 

14-II.A. SUBSIDY UNDER- OR OVERPAYMENTS 

A subsidy under- or overpayment includes (1) an incorrect housing assistance payment to the 
owner, (2) an incorrect family share established for the family, and (3) an incorrect utility 
reimbursement to a family. 

Corrections 

Whether the incorrect subsidy determination is an overpayment or underpayment of subsidy, the 
PHA must promptly correct the HAP, family share, and any utility reimbursement prospectively. 

PHA Policy 

Increases in the family share will be implemented on the first of the month following a 
written 30-day notice. 

Any decreases in family share will become effective the first of the month following the 
discovery of the error. 

Reimbursement 

Whether the family or owner is required to reimburse the PHA or the PHA is required to make 
retroactive subsidy payments to the owner or family depends upon which party is responsible for 
the incorrect subsidy payment and whether the action taken was an error or program abuse. 
Policies regarding reimbursement are discussed in the three sections that follow. 

543

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-8

14-II.B. FAMILY-CAUSED ERRORS AND PROGRAM ABUSE 

Family obligations and general administrative requirements for participating in the program are 
discussed throughout this plan. This section deals specifically with errors and program abuse by 
family members. 

An incorrect subsidy determination caused by a family generally would be the result of incorrect 
reporting of family composition, income, assets, or expenses, but also would include instances in 
which the family knowingly allows the PHA to use incorrect information provided by a third 
party. 

Family Reimbursement to PHA [HCV GB pp. 22-12 to 22-13] 

PHA Policy 

In the case of family-caused errors or program abuse, the family will be required to repay 
any excess subsidy received. The PHA may, but is not required to, offer the family a 
repayment agreement in accordance with Chapter 16. If the family fails to repay the 
excess subsidy, the PHA will terminate the family’s assistance in accordance with the 
policies in Chapter 12. 

PHA Reimbursement to Family [HCV GB p. 22-12] 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not reimburse the family for any underpayment of assistance when the 
underpayment clearly is caused by the family.  

544

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-9

Prohibited Actions  

An applicant or participant in the HCV program must not knowingly: 

 Make a false statement to the PHA [Title 18 U.S.C. Section 1001].  

 Commit fraud, bribery, or any other corrupt or criminal act in connection with any federal 
housing program [24 CFR 982.552(c)(iv)]. 

PHA Policy 

Any of the following will be considered evidence of family program abuse:  

Payment to the owner in excess of amounts authorized by the PHA for rent, 
security deposit, and additional services 

Offering bribes or illegal gratuities to the PHA Board of Commissioners, 
employees, contractors, or other PHA representatives 

Offering payments or other incentives to the owner or a third party as an 
inducement for the third party to make false or misleading statements to the PHA 
on the family’s behalf 

Use of a false name or the use of falsified, forged, or altered documents 

Intentional misreporting of family information or circumstances (e.g. income, 
family composition)  

Omitted facts that were obviously known by a family member (e.g., not reporting 
employment income) 

Admission of program abuse by an adult family member 

The PHA may determine other actions to be program abuse based upon a preponderance 
of the evidence, as defined earlier in this chapter.  

Penalties for Program Abuse 

In the case of program abuse caused by a family the PHA may, at its discretion, impose any of 
the following remedies.  

 The PHA may require the family to repay excess subsidy amounts paid by the PHA, as 
described earlier in this section. 

 The PHA may require, as a condition of receiving or continuing assistance, that a culpable 
family member not reside in the unit. See policies in Chapter 3 (for applicants) and Chapter 
12 (for participants). 

 The PHA may deny or terminate the family’s assistance following the policies set forth in 
Chapter 3 and Chapter 12 respectively.  

 The PHA may refer the family for state or federal criminal prosecution as described in 
section 14-II.E.  

545

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-10

14-II.C. OWNER-CAUSED ERROR OR PROGRAM ABUSE 

Owner requirements that are part of the regular process of offering, leasing, and maintaining a 
unit (e.g., HQS compliance, fair housing) are addressed in the appropriate chapters of this plan. 
This section focuses on errors and program abuse by owners. 

An incorrect subsidy determination caused by an owner generally would be the result of an 
incorrect owner statement about the characteristics of the assisted unit (e.g., the number of 
bedrooms, which utilities are paid by the family). It also includes accepting duplicate housing 
assistance payments for the same unit in the same month, or after a family no longer resides in 
the unit. 

Owner Reimbursement to the PHA 

In all cases of overpayment of subsidy caused by the owner, the owner must repay to the PHA 
any excess subsidy received. The PHA may recover overpaid amounts by withholding housing 
assistance payments due for subsequent months, or if the debt is large, the PHA may allow the 
owner to pay in installments over a period of time [HCV GB p. 22-13].  

PHA Policy 

In cases where the owner has received excess subsidy, the PHA will require the owner to 
repay the amount owed in accordance with the policies in Section 16-IV.B. 

Prohibited Owner Actions  

An owner participating in the HCV program must not: 

 Make any false statement to the PHA [Title 18 U.S.C. Section 1001]. 

 Commit fraud, bribery, or any other corrupt or criminal act in connection with any federal 
housing program [24 CFR 982.453(a)(3)] including:  

546

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-11

PHA Policy 

Any of the following will be considered evidence of owner program abuse:  

Charging the family rent above or below the amount specified by the PHA 

Charging a security deposit other than that specified in the family’s lease 

Charging the family for services that are provided to unassisted tenants at no 
extra charge 

Knowingly accepting housing assistance payments for any month(s) after the 
family has vacated the unit 

Knowingly accepting incorrect or excess housing assistance payments 

Offering bribes or illegal gratuities to the PHA Board of Commissioners, 
employees, contractors, or other PHA representatives 

Offering payments or other incentives to an HCV family as an inducement for the 
family to make false or misleading statements to the PHA 

Residing in the unit with an assisted family 

Committing sexual or other harassment, either quid pro quo or hostile 
environment, based on the protected classes defined in Chapter 2 

Retaliating against any applicant or participant reporting/alleging sexual or other 
harassment, either quid pro quo or hostile environment, based on the protected 
classes defined in Chapter 2 

Remedies and Penalties 

When the PHA determines that the owner has committed program abuse, the PHA may take any 
of the following actions: 

 Require the owner to repay excess housing assistance payments, as discussed earlier in this 
section and in accordance with the policies in Chapter 16. 

 Terminate the HAP contract (See Chapter 13). 

 Bar the owner from future participation in any PHA programs. 

 Refer the case to state or federal officials for criminal prosecution as described in section 
14-II.E. 

547

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-12

14-II.D. PHA-CAUSED ERRORS OR PROGRAM ABUSE 

The responsibilities and expectations of PHA staff with respect to normal program 
administration are discussed throughout this plan. This section specifically addresses actions of a 
PHA staff member that are considered errors or program abuse related to the HCV program. 
Additional standards of conduct may be provided in the PHA personnel policy. 

PHA-caused incorrect subsidy determinations include (1) failing to correctly apply HCV rules 
regarding family composition, income, assets, and expenses, (2) assigning the incorrect voucher 
size to a family, and (3) errors in calculation. 

Repayment to the PHA 

Neither a family nor an owner is required to repay an overpayment of subsidy if the error or 
program abuse is caused by PHA staff [HCV GB. 22-12]. 

PHA Reimbursement to Family or Owner 

The PHA must reimburse a family for any underpayment of subsidy, regardless of whether the 
underpayment was the result of staff-caused error or staff or owner program abuse. Funds for this 
reimbursement must come from the PHA’s administrative fee reserves [HCV GB p. 22-12]. 

Prohibited Activities  

PHA Policy 

Any of the following will be considered evidence of program abuse by PHA staff: 

Failing to comply with any HCV program requirements for personal gain 

Failing to comply with any HCV program requirements as a result of a conflict of 
interest relationship with any applicant, participant, or owner 

Seeking or accepting anything of material value from applicants, participating 
families, vendors, owners, contractors, or other persons who provide services or 
materials to the PHA 

Disclosing confidential or proprietary information to outside parties 

Gaining profit as a result of insider knowledge of PHA activities, policies, or 
practices 

Misappropriating or misusing HCV funds 

Destroying, concealing, removing, or inappropriately using any records related to 
the HCV program 

Committing any other corrupt or criminal act in connection with any federal 
housing program 

548

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-13

14-II.E. CRIMINAL PROSECUTION 

PHA Policy 

When the PHA determines that program abuse by an owner, family, or PHA staff 
member has occurred and the amount of overpaid subsidy meets or exceeds the threshold 
for prosecution under local or state law, the PHA will refer the matter to the appropriate 
entity for prosecution. When the amount of overpaid assistance meets or exceeds the 
federal threshold, the case will also be referred to the HUD Office of Inspector General 
(OIG).  

Other criminal violations related to the HCV program will be referred to the appropriate 
local, state, or federal entity. 

549

Item 15.



© Copyright 2019 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 6/1/19 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. Page 14-14

14-II.F . FRAUD AND PROGRAM ABUSE RECOVERIES 

The PHA may retain a portion of program fraud losses that the PHA recovers from a family or 
owner through litigation, court order, or a repayment agreement [24 CFR 982.163]. 

The PHA must be the principal party initiating or sustaining the action to recover amounts due 
from tenants that are due as a result of fraud and abuse. 24 CFR 792.202 permits the PHA to 
retain the greater of: 

 50 percent of the amount it actually collects from a judgment, litigation (including settlement 
of a lawsuit) or an administrative repayment agreement, or 

 Reasonable and necessary costs that the PHA incurs related to the collection including costs 
of investigation, legal fees, and agency collection fees. 

The family must be afforded the opportunity for an informal hearing in accordance with 
requirements in 24 CFR 982.555. 

If HUD incurs costs on behalf of the PHA related to the collection, these costs must be deducted 
from the amount retained by the PHA. 

550

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-1

Chapter 15 

SPECIAL HOUSING TYPES 
[24 CFR 982 Subpart M] 

INTRODUCTION 

The PHA may permit a family to use any of the special housing types discussed in this chapter. 
However, the PHA is not required to permit families receiving assistance in its jurisdiction to use 
these housing types, except that PHAs must permit use of any special housing type if needed as a 
reasonable accommodation for a person with a disability. The PHA also may limit the number of 
families who receive HCV assistance in these housing types and cannot require families to use a 
particular housing type. No special funding is provided for special housing types. 

PHA Policy 

Families will not be permitted to use any special housing types, unless use is needed as a 
reasonable accommodation so that the program is readily accessible to a person with 
disabilities. 

Special housing types include single room occupancy (SRO), congregate housing, group homes, 
shared housing, cooperative housing, manufactured homes where the family owns the home and 
leases the space, and homeownership [24 CFR 982.601]. 

This chapter consists of the following seven parts. Each part contains a description of the 
housing type and any special requirements associated with it. Except as modified by this chapter, 
the general requirements of the HCV program apply to special housing types. 

Part I: Single Room Occupancy 

Part II: Congregate Housing 

Part III: Group Homes 

Part IV: Shared Housing 

Part V: Cooperative Housing 

Part VI: Manufactured Homes (including manufactured home space rental) 

Part VII: Homeownership 

551

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-2
552

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-3

PART I: SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY 

[24 CFR 982.602 through 982.605] 

15-I.A. OVERVIEW 

Single room occupancy (SRO) unit provides living and sleeping space for the exclusive use of 
the occupant but requires the occupant to share sanitary and/or food preparation facilities with 
others. More than one person may not occupy an SRO unit. HCV regulations do not limit the 
number of units in an SRO facility, but the size of a facility may be limited by local ordinances.  

When providing HCV assistance in an SRO unit, a separate lease and HAP contract are executed 
for each assisted person, and the standard form of the HAP contract is used. 

15-I.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE, AND HAP CALCULATION 

The payment standard for SRO housing is 75 percent of the zero-bedroom payment standard 
amount on the PHA’s payment standard schedule. 

The utility allowance for an assisted person residing in SRO housing is 75 percent of the zero-
bedroom utility allowance. 

The HAP for an assisted occupant in an SRO facility is the lower of the SRO payment standard 
amount minus the TTP or the gross rent for the unit minus the TTP.  

15-I.C. HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS (HQS) 

HQS requirements described in Chapter 8 apply to SRO housing except as modified below. 

 Access: Access doors to the SRO unit must have working locks for privacy. The occupant 
must be able to access the unit without going through any other unit. Each unit must have 
immediate access to two or more approved means of exit from the building, appropriately 
marked and leading to safe and open space at ground level. The SRO unit must also have any 
other means of exit required by State or local law. 

 Fire Safety: All SRO facilities must have a sprinkler system that protects major spaces. 
“Major spaces” are defined as hallways, common areas, and any other areas specified in local 
fire, building, or safety codes. SROs must also have hard-wired smoke detectors, and any 
other fire and safety equipment required by state or local law.  

Sanitary facilities and space and security standards must meet local code requirements for 
SRO housing. In the absence of local code standards the requirements discussed below apply 
[24 CFR 982.605]. 

553

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-4

 Sanitary Facilities: At least one flush toilet that can be used in privacy, a lavatory basin, and 
a bathtub or shower in proper operating condition must be provided for each six persons (or 
fewer) residing in the SRO facility. If the SRO units are leased only to men, flush urinals 
may be substituted for up to one half of the required number of toilets. Sanitary facilities 
must be reasonably accessible from a common hall or passageway, and may not be located 
more than one floor above or below the SRO unit. They may not be located below grade 
unless the SRO units are located on that level. 

 Space and Security: An SRO unit must contain at least 110 square feet of floor space, and at 
least four square feet of closet space with an unobstructed height of at least five feet, for use 
by the occupant. If the closet space is less than four square feet, the habitable floor space in 
the SRO unit must be increased by the amount of the deficiency. Exterior doors and windows 
accessible from outside the SRO unit must be lockable. 

Because no children live in SRO housing, the housing quality standards applicable to lead-
based paint do not apply. 

554

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-5

PART II: CONGREGATE HOUSING 

[24 CFR 982.606 through 982.609] 

15-II.A. OVERVIEW 

Congregate housing is intended for use by elderly persons or persons with disabilities. A 
congregate housing facility contains a shared central kitchen and dining area and a private living 
area for the individual household that includes at least a living room, bedroom and bathroom. 
Food service for residents must be provided. 

If approved by the PHA, a family member or live-in aide may reside with the elderly person or 
person with disabilities. The PHA must approve a live-in aide if needed as a reasonable 
accommodation so that the program is readily accessible to and usable by persons with 
disabilities. 

When providing HCV assistance in congregate housing, a separate lease and HAP contract are 
executed for each assisted family, and the standard form of the HAP contract is used. 

555

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-6

15-II.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE, AND HAP CALCULATION 

The payment standard for an individual unit in a congregate housing facility is based on the 
number of rooms in the private living area. If there is only one room in the unit (not including the 
bathroom or the kitchen, if a kitchen is provided), the PHA must use the payment standard for a 
zero-bedroom unit. If the unit has two or more rooms (other than the bathroom and the kitchen), 
the PHA must use the one-bedroom payment standard. 

The HAP for an assisted occupant in a congregate housing facility is the lower of the applicable 
payment standard minus the TTP or the gross rent for the unit minus the TTP. 

The gross rent for the unit for the purpose of calculating HCV assistance is the shelter portion 
(including utilities) of the resident’s monthly housing expense only. The residents’ costs for food 
service should not be included in the rent for a congregate housing unit. 

15-II.C. HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS 

HQS requirements as described in Chapter 8 apply to congregate housing except for the 
requirements stated below. 

Congregate housing must have (1) a refrigerator of appropriate size in the private living 
area of each resident; (2) a central kitchen and dining facilities located within the 
premises and accessible to the residents, and (3) food service for the residents, that is not 
provided by the residents themselves. 

The housing quality standards applicable to lead-based paint do not apply. 

556

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-7

PART III: GROUP HOME 

[24 CFR 982.610 through 982.614 and HCV GB p. 7-4] 

15-III.A. OVERVIEW 

A group home is a state-licensed facility intended for occupancy by elderly persons and/or 
persons with disabilities. Except for live-in aides, all persons living in a group home, whether 
assisted or not, must be elderly persons or persons with disabilities. Persons living in a group 
home must not require continuous medical or nursing care.  

A group home consists of bedrooms for residents, which can be shared by no more than two 
people, and a living room, kitchen, dining area, bathroom, and other appropriate social, 
recreational, or community space that may be shared with other residents. 

No more than 12 persons may reside in a group home including assisted and unassisted residents 
and any live-in aides. 

If approved by the PHA, a live-in aide may live in the group home with a person with 
disabilities. The PHA must approve a live-in aide if needed as a reasonable accommodation so 
that the program is readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities. 

When providing HCV assistance in a group home, a separate lease and HAP contract is executed 
for each assisted family, and the standard form of the HAP contract is used. 

15-III.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE, AND HAP 
CALCULATION 

Unless there is a live-in aide, the family unit size for an assisted occupant of a group home must 
be zero- or one-bedroom, depending on the PHA’s subsidy standard. If there is a live-in aide, the 
aide must be counted in determining the household’s unit size. 

The payment standard used to calculate the HAP is the lower of the payment standard for the 
family unit size or the prorata share of the payment standard for the group home size. The prorata 
share is calculated by dividing the number of persons in the assisted household by the number of 
persons (assisted and unassisted) living in the group home. 

The HAP for an assisted occupant in a group home is the lower of the payment standard minus 
the TTP or the gross rent minus the TTP.  

The utility allowance for an assisted occupant in a group home is the prorata share of the utility 
allowance for the group home. 

The rents paid for participants residing in group homes are subject to generally applicable 
standards for rent reasonableness. The rent for an assisted person must not exceed the prorata 
portion of the reasonable rent for the group home. In determining reasonable rent, the PHA 
should consider whether sanitary facilities and facilities for food preparation and service are 
common facilities or private facilities. 

557

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-8

15-III.C. HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS 

HQS requirements described in Chapter 8 apply to group homes except for the requirements 
stated below. 

 Sanitary Facilities: A group home must have at least one bathroom in the facility, with a 
flush toilet that can be used in privacy, a fixed basin with hot and cold running water, and a 
shower or bathtub with hot and cold running water. A group home may contain private or 
common bathrooms. However, no more than four residents can be required to share a 
bathroom. 

 Food Preparation and Service: Group home units must contain a kitchen and dining area 
with adequate space to store, prepare, and serve food. The facilities for food preparation and 
service may be private or may be shared by the residents. The kitchen must contain a range, 
an oven, a refrigerator, and a sink with hot and cold running water. The sink must drain into 
an approvable public or private disposal system. 

 Space and Security: Group homes must contain at least one bedroom of appropriate size for 
every two people, and a living room, kitchen, dining area, bathroom, and other appropriate 
social, recreational, or community space that may be shared with other residents. 

 Structure and Material: To avoid any threat to the health and safety of the residents, group 
homes must be structurally sound. Elevators must be in good condition. Group homes must 
be accessible to and usable by residents with disabilities. 

 Site and Neighborhood: Group homes must be located in a residential setting. The site and 
neighborhood should be reasonably free from hazards to the health, safety, and general 
welfare of the residents, and should not be subject to serious adverse conditions, such as: 

- Dangerous walks or steps 

- Instability 

- Flooding, poor drainage 

- Septic tank back-ups 

- Sewage hazards 

- Mud slides 

- Abnormal air pollution 

- Smoke or dust 

- Excessive noise 

- Vibrations or vehicular traffic 

- Excessive accumulations of trash 

- Vermin or rodent infestation, and 

- Fire hazards. 

The housing quality standards applicable to lead-based paint do not apply. 

558

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-9

PART IV: SHARED HOUSING 

[24 CFR 982.615 through 982.618] 

15-IV.A. OVERVIEW 

Shared housing is a single housing unit occupied by an assisted family and another resident or 
residents. The shared unit consists of both common space for use by the occupants of the unit 
and separate private space for each assisted family. 

An assisted family may share a unit with other persons assisted under the HCV program or with 
other unassisted persons. The owner of a shared housing unit may reside in the unit, but housing 
assistance may not be paid on behalf of the owner. The resident owner may not be related by 
blood or marriage to the assisted family.  

If approved by the PHA, a live-in aide may reside with the family to care for a person with 
disabilities. The PHA must approve a live-in aide if needed as a reasonable accommodation so 
that the program is readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities. 

When providing HCV assistance in shared housing, a separate lease and HAP contract are 
executed for each assisted family, and the standard form of the HAP contract is used. 

15-IV.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE AND HAP CALCULATION 

The payment standard for a family in shared housing is the lower of the payment standard for the 
family unit size or the prorata share of the payment standard for the shared housing unit size. 

The prorata share is calculated by dividing the number of bedrooms available for occupancy by 
the assisted family in the private space by the total number of bedrooms in the unit. 

The HAP for a family in shared housing is the lower of the payment standard minus the TTP or 
the gross rent minus the TTP. The utility allowance for an assisted family living in shared 
housing is the lower of the utility allowance for the family unit size (voucher size) or the prorata 
share of the utility allowance for the shared housing unit. 

Example: A family holds a 2-bedroom voucher. The family decides to occupy 
3 out of 4 bedrooms available in the unit.  

The utility allowance for a 4-bedroom unit equals $200 

The utility allowance for a 2-bedroom unit equals $100 

The prorata share of the utility allowance is $150 (3/4 of $200) 

The PHA will use the 2-bedroom utility allowance of $100. 

The rents paid for families living in shared housing are subject to generally applicable standards 
for rent reasonableness. The rent paid to the owner for the assisted family must not exceed the 
pro-rata portion of the reasonable rent for the shared unit. In determining reasonable rent, the 
PHA should consider whether sanitary and food preparation areas are private or shared. 

559

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-10

15-IV.C. HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS 

The PHA may not give approval to reside in shared housing unless the entire unit, including the 
portion of the unit available for use by the assisted family under its lease, meets the housing 
quality standards. 

HQS requirements described in Chapter 8 apply to shared housing except for the requirements 
stated below.  

 Facilities Available for the Family: Facilities available to the assisted family, whether shared 
or private, must include a living room, a bathroom, and food preparation and refuse disposal 
facilities. 

 Space and Security: The entire unit must provide adequate space and security for all assisted 
and unassisted residents. The private space for each assisted family must contain at least one 
bedroom for each two persons in the family. The number of bedrooms in the private space of 
an assisted family must not be less than the family unit size. A zero-bedroom or one-bedroom 
unit may not be used for shared housing. 

560

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-11

PART V: COOPERATIVE HOUSING 

[24 CFR 982.619] 

15-V.A. OVERVIEW 

This part applies to rental assistance for a cooperative member residing in cooperative housing. It 
does not apply to assistance for a cooperative member who has purchased membership under the 
HCV homeownership option, or to rental assistance for a family that leases a cooperative 
housing unit from a cooperative member. 

A cooperative is a form of ownership (nonprofit corporation or association) in which the 
residents purchase memberships in the ownership entity. Rather than being charged “rent” a 
cooperative member is charged a “carrying charge.” 

When providing HCV assistance in cooperative housing, the standard form of the HAP contract 
is used. 

15-V.B. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE AND HAP CALCULATION 

The payment standard and utility allowance are determined according to regular HCV program 
requirements. 

The HAP for a cooperative housing unit is the lower of the payment standard minus the TTP or 
the monthly carrying charge for the unit, plus any utility allowance, minus the TTP. The monthly 
carrying charge includes the member’s share of the cooperative debt service, operating expenses, 
and necessary payments to cooperative reserve funds. The carrying charge does not include 
down payments or other payments to purchase the cooperative unit or to amortize a loan made to 
the family for this purpose. 

15-V.C. HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS 

All standard HQS requirements apply to cooperative housing units. There are no additional HQS 
requirements. 

561

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-12
562

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-13

PART VI: MANUFACTURED HOMES 

[24 CFR 982.620 through 982.624; FR Notice 1/18/17] 

15-VI.A. OVERVIEW 

A manufactured home is a manufactured structure, transportable in one or more parts, that is 
built on a permanent chassis, and designed for use as a principal place of residence. HCV-
assisted families may occupy manufactured homes in two different ways. 

(1) A family can choose to rent a manufactured home already installed on a space and the PHA 
must permit it. In this instance program rules are the same as when a family rents any other 
residential housing, except that there are special HQS requirements as provided in 15-VI.D 
below. 

(2) HUD also permits an otherwise eligible family that owns a manufactured home to rent a 
space for the manufactured home and receive HCV assistance with the rent for the space as well 
as certain other housing expenses. PHAs may, but are not required to, provide assistance for such 
families. 

15-VI.B. SPECIAL POLICIES FOR MANUFACTURED HOME OWNERS WHO LEASE 
A SPACE 

Family Income 

In determining the annual income of families leasing manufactured home spaces, the value of the 
family’s equity in the manufactured home in which the family resides is not counted as a family 
asset. 

Lease and HAP Contract 

There is a separate Tenancy Addendum (Form 52642-a) and separate HAP Contract (Form 
52642) for this special housing type. 

563

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-14

15-VI.C. PAYMENT STANDARD, UTILITY ALLOWANCE AND HAP CALCULATION 
[FR Notice 1/18/17] 

Payment Standards 

The PHA payment standard for manufactured homes is determined in accordance with 24 CFR 
982.505 and is the payment standard used for the PHA’s HCV program. It is based on the 
applicable FMR for the area in which the manufactured home space is located.  

The payment standard for the family is the lower of the family unit size (voucher size) or the 
payment standard for the number of bedrooms in the manufactured home. 

Utility Allowance 

The PHA must establish utility allowances for manufactured home space rental. For the first 12 
months of the initial lease term only, the allowance must include an amount for a utility hook-up 
charge if the family actually incurred a hook-up charge because of a move. This allowance will 
not be given to a family that leases in place. Utility allowances for manufactured home space 
must not include the costs of digging a well or installing a septic system. 

If the amount of the monthly assistance payment for a family exceeds the monthly rent for the 
manufactured home space (including the owner’s monthly management and maintenance 
charges), the PHA may pay the remainder to the family, lender, or utility company. 

Space Rent 

The rent for the manufactured home space (including other eligible housing expenses) is the 
total of: 

 The rent charged for the manufactured home space; 

 Owner maintenance and management charges for the space; 

 The monthly payments made by the family to amortize the cost of purchasing the 
manufactured home, including any required insurance and property taxes; and 

 The applicable allowance for tenant-paid unities. 

Amortization Costs 

The monthly payment made by the family to amortize the cost of purchasing the manufactured 
home is the debt service established at the time of application to a lender for financing the 
purchase of the manufactured home if monthly payments are still being made. Any increase in 
debt service due to refinancing after purchase of the home may not be included in the 
amortization cost. Debt service for set-up charges incurred by a family may be included in the 
monthly amortization payments made by the family. In addition, set-up charges incurred before 
the family became an assisted family may be included in the amortization cost if monthly 
payments are still being made to amortize the charges. 

Housing Assistance Payment  

The HAP for a manufactured home space under the housing choice voucher program is the lower 
of the payment standard minus the TTP or the manufactured home space rent (including other 
eligible housing expenses) minus the TTP. 

564

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-15

Rent Reasonableness 

Initially, and annually thereafter the PHA must determine that the rent for the manufactured 
home space is reasonable based on rents for comparable manufactured home spaces. The PHA 
must consider the location and size of the space, and any services and maintenance to be 
provided by the owner. By accepting the monthly HAP check, the owner certifies that the rent 
does not exceed rents charged by the owner for comparable unassisted spaces in the 
manufactured home park or elsewhere.  

565

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-16

15-VI.D. HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS 

Under either type of occupancy described in 15-VI.A above, the manufactured home must meet 
all HQS performance requirements and acceptability criteria discussed in Chapter 8 of this plan. 
In addition, the following requirement applies: 

Manufactured Home Tie-Down 

A manufactured home must be placed on the site in a stable manner, and must be free from 
hazards such as sliding or wind damage. The home must be securely anchored by a tie-down 
device that distributes and transfers the loads imposed by the unit to appropriate ground anchors 
to resist overturning and sliding. 

566

Item 15.



© Copyright 2017 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 7/1/17 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 15-17

 

567

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-1

Chapter 16 

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 

INTRODUCTION 

This chapter discusses administrative policies and practices that are relevant to the activities 
covered in this plan. The policies are discussed in seven parts as described below:  

Part I: Administrative Fee Reserve. This part describes the PHA’s policies with regard to 
oversight of expenditures from its administrative fee reserve. 

Part II: Setting Program Standards and Schedules. This part describes what payment 
standards are, and how they are updated, as well as how utility allowances are established 
and revised. 

Part III: Informal Reviews and Hearings. This part outlines the requirements and 
procedures for informal reviews and hearings, and for informal hearings regarding 
citizenship status. 

Part IV: Owner or Family Debts to the PHA. This part describes policies for recovery of 
monies that the PHA has overpaid on behalf of families, or to owners, and describes the 
circumstances under which the PHA will offer repayment agreements to owners and 
families. Also discussed are the consequences for failure to make payments in accordance 
with a repayment agreement. 

Part V: Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP). This part describes what 
the SEMAP scores represent, how they are established, and how those scores affect a 
PHA. 

Part VI: Record-Keeping. All aspects of the program involve certain types of record-
keeping. This part outlines the privacy rights of applicants and participants and record 
retention policies the PHA will follow. 

Part VII: Reporting and Record Keeping for Children with Elevated Blood Lead Level. 
This part describes the PHA’s responsibilities for reporting, data collection, and record 
keeping relative to children with elevated blood lead levels that are less than six years of 
age, and are receiving HCV assistance. 

Part VIII: Determination of Insufficient Funding. This part describes the PHA’s policies 
for determining if there is sufficient funding to issue vouchers, to approve moves to 
higher cost units or areas, and to continue assistance for all participant families. 

Part IX: Violence against Women Act (VAWA): Notification, Documentation, 
Confidentiality. This part contains key terms used in VAWA and describes requirements 
related to notifying families and owners about their rights and responsibilities under 
VAWA; requesting documentation from victims of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, and stalking; and maintaining the confidentiality of information obtained 
from victims. 

568

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-2
569

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-3

PART I: ADMINISTRATIVE FEE RESERVE [24 CFR 982.155] 

The PHA will maintain administrative fee reserves, or unrestricted net position (UNP) for the 
program to pay program administrative expenses in excess of administrative fees paid by HUD 
for a PHA fiscal year. HUD appropriations acts beginning with FFY 2004 have specified that 
administrative fee funding may be used only for activities related to the provision of HCV 
assistance, including related development activities. Notice PIH 2012-9 cites two examples of 
related development activities: unit modification for accessibility purposes and development of 
project-based voucher units. The notice makes clear that other activities may also qualify as 
related development activities. Administrative fees that remain in the UNP account from funding 
provided prior to 2004 may be used for “other housing purposes permitted by state and local 
law,” in accordance with 24 CFR 982.155(b)(1).  

If a PHA has not adequately administered its HCV program, HUD may prohibit use of funds in 
the UNP Account and may direct the PHA to use funds in that account to improve administration 
of the program, for HCV HAP expenses, or to reimburse ineligible expenses in accordance with 
the regulation at 24 CFR 982.155(b)(3). 

HUD requires the PHA Board of Commissioners or other authorized officials to establish the 
maximum amount that may be charged against the UNP account without specific approval. 

PHA Policy 

Expenditures from the UNP account will be made in accordance with all applicable 
federal requirements. Expenditures will not exceed $10,000 per occurrence without the 
prior approval of the PHA’s Board of Commissioners. 

570

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-4
571

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-5

PART II: SETTING PROGRAM STANDARDS AND SCHEDULES 

16-II.A. OVERVIEW 

Although many of the program’s requirements are established centrally by HUD, the HCV 
program’s regulations recognize that some flexibility is required to allow the PHA to adapt the 
program to local conditions. This part discusses how the PHA establishes and updates certain 
schedules and standards that are used to administer the program locally. Details about how these 
schedules are applied to individual families are provided in other chapters. The schedules and 
standards discussed here include: 

 Payment Standards, which dictate the maximum subsidy a family can receive (application of 
the payment standards is discussed in Chapter 6); and 

 Utility Allowances, which specify how a family’s payment should be adjusted to account for 
tenant-paid utilities (application of utility allowances is discussed in Chapter 6). 

PHA Policy 

Copies of the payment standard and utility allowance schedules are available for review 
in the PHA’s offices during normal business hours.  

Families, owners, and members of the public may submit written comments on the 
schedules discussed in this part, at any time, for consideration during the next revision 
cycle. 

The PHA will maintain documentation to support its annual review of payment standards 
and utility allowance schedules. This documentation will be retained for at least 3 years. 

Establishing and updating the PHA passbook rate, which is used to calculate imputed income 
from assets, is covered in Chapter 6 (see Section 6-I.G.). 

16-II.B. PAYMENT STANDARDS [24 CFR 982.503; HCV GB, Chapter 7] 

The payment standard sets the maximum subsidy payment a family can receive from the PHA 
each month [24 CFR 982.505(a)]. Payment standards are based on fair market rents (FMRs) 
published annually by HUD. FMRs are set at a percentile within the rent distribution of standard 
quality rental housing units in each FMR area. For most jurisdictions FMRs are set at the 40th 
percentile of rents in the market area. 

The PHA must establish a payment standard schedule that establishes payment standard amounts 
for each FMR area within the PHA’s jurisdiction, and for each unit size within each of the FMR 
areas. For each unit size, the PHA may establish a single payment standard amount for the whole 
FMR area, or may set different payment standards for different parts of the FMR area. Unless 
HUD grants an exception, the PHA is required to establish a payment standard within a “basic 
range” established by HUD – between 90 and 110 percent of the published FMR for each unit 
size. 

572

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-6

Updating Payment Standards 

When HUD updates its FMRs, the PHA must update its payment standards if the standards are 
no longer within the basic range [24 CFR 982.503(b)]. HUD may require the PHA to make 
further adjustments if it determines that rent burdens for assisted families in the PHA’s 
jurisdiction are unacceptably high [24 CFR 982.503(g)]. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will review the appropriateness of the payment standards on an annual basis 
when the new FMR is published, and at other times as determined necessary. In addition 
to ensuring the payment standards are always within the “basic range” the PHA will 
consider the following factors when determining whether an adjustment should be made 
to the payment standard schedule: 

Funding Availability: The PHA will review the budget to determine the impact 
projected subsidy adjustments will have on funding available for the program and 
the number of families served. The PHA will compare the number of families 
who could be served under revised payment standard amounts with the number 
assisted under current payment standard amounts. 

Rent Burden of Participating Families: Rent burden will be determined by 
identifying the percentage of families, for each unit size, that are paying more 
than 30 percent of their monthly adjusted income as the family share. When 40 
percent or more of families, for any given unit size, are paying more than 30 
percent of adjusted monthly income as the family share, the PHA will consider 
increasing the payment standard. In evaluating rent burdens, the PHA will not 
include families renting a larger unit than their family unit size. 

Quality of Units Selected: The PHA may review the quality of units selected by 
participant families when making the determination of the percent of income 
families are paying for housing, to ensure that payment standard increases are 
only made when needed to reach the mid-range of the market. 

Changes in Rent to Owner: The PHA may review a sample of the units to 
determine how often owners are increasing or decreasing rents and the average 
percent of increases/decreases by bedroom size. 

Unit Availability: The PHA will review the availability of units for each unit 
size, particularly in areas with low concentrations of poor and minority families. 

Lease-up Time and Success Rate: The PHA will consider the percentage of 
families that are unable to locate suitable housing before the voucher expires and 
whether families are leaving the jurisdiction to find affordable housing. 

Effective dates of changes to payment standard amounts will be determined at time of 
update. The PHA will always ensure the payment standards will be within the 
basic range. 

573

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-7

Exception Payment Standards [24 CFR 982.503(c)(5), Notice PIH 2018-01] 

A non-SAFMR PHA may establish an exception payment standard for a zip code area of up to 
and including 110 percent of the SAFMR determined by HUD for that zip code area. Regardless 
of the level of the exception payment standard compared to the metropolitan area FMRs 
(MAFMRs), the PHA must send an email to SAFMRs@hud.gov to notify HUD that it has 
adopted an exception payment standard based on the SAFMR. A PHA that adopts an exception 
payment standard pursuant to this authority must apply it to the entire ZIP code area, for both its 
HCV, and if applicable, its PBV program. For the PBV program, this means that the rent to 
owner may not exceed the new exception payment standard amount, provided the rent is still 
reasonable. A PHA that adopts an exception payment standard area must revise its briefing 
materials to make families aware of the exception payment standard and the area that it covers. 

Voluntary Use of Small Area FMRs [24 CFR 982.503, Notice PIH 2018-01] 

PHAs that administer vouchers in a metropolitan area where the adoption of SAFMRs is not 
required may request approval from HUD to voluntarily adopt SAFMRs.  SAFMRs may be 
voluntarily adopted for one or more zip code areas. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA is not located in a metropolitan area and does not have the option adopting 
SAFMRs . 

Unit-by-Unit Exceptions [24 CFR 982.503(b), 24 CFR 982.505(d), Notice PIH 2010-26] 

Unit-by-unit exceptions to the PHA’s payment standards generally are not permitted. However, 
an exception may be made as a reasonable accommodation for a family that includes a person 
with disabilities. (See Chapter 2 for a discussion of reasonable accommodations.) This type of 
exception does not affect the PHA’s payment standard schedule.  

When needed as a reasonable accommodation, the PHA may make an exception to the payment 
standard without HUD approval if the exception amount does not exceed 120 percent of the 
applicable FMR for the unit size [24 CFR 982.503(b)]. The PHA may request HUD approval for 
an exception to the payment standard for a particular family if the required amount exceeds 120 
percent of the FMR.  

PHA Policy 

A family that requires a reasonable accommodation may request a higher payment 
standard at the time the Request for Tenancy Approval (RFTA) is submitted. The family 
must document the need for the exception. In order to approve an exception, or request an 
exception from HUD, the PHA must determine that: 

There is a shortage of affordable units that would be appropriate for the family; 

The family's TTP would otherwise exceed 40 percent of adjusted monthly 
income; and 

The rent for the unit is reasonable. 

574

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-8

"Success Rate" Payment Standard Amounts [24 CFR 982.503(e)] 

If a substantial percentage of families have difficulty finding a suitable unit, the PHA may 
request a “success rate payment standard” that applies to the entire jurisdiction. If approved by 
HUD, a success rate payment standard allows the PHA to set its payment standards at 90-110 
percent of a higher FMR (the 50th, rather than the 40th percentile FMR). To support the request, 
the PHA must demonstrate that during the most recent 6-month period for which information is 
available: 

 Fewer than 75 percent of families who were issued vouchers became participants;  

 The PHA had established payment standards for all unit sizes, and for the entire jurisdiction, 
at 110 percent of the published FMR; and 

 The PHA had a policy of allowing voucher holders who made sustained efforts to locate 
units at least 90 days to search for a unit. 

Although HUD approves the success rate payment standard for all unit sizes in the FMR area, 
the PHA may choose to adjust the payment standard for only some unit sizes in all, or a 
designated part, of the PHA’s jurisdiction within the FMR area.  

Decreases in the Payment Standard below the Basic Range [24 CFR 982.503(d)] 

The PHA must request HUD approval to establish a payment standard amount that is lower than 
the basic range. At HUD’s sole discretion, HUD may approve establishment of a payment 
standard lower than the basic range. HUD will not approve a lower payment standard if the 
family share for more than 40 percent of program participants exceeds 30 percent of adjusted 
monthly income.  

575

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-9

16-II.C. UTILITY ALLOWANCES [24 CFR 982.517] 

A PHA-established utility allowance schedule is used in determining family share and PHA 
subsidy. The PHA must maintain a utility allowance schedule for (1) all tenant-paid utilities, (2) 
the cost of tenant-supplied refrigerators and ranges, and (3) other tenant-paid housing services 
such as trash collection.  

The utility allowance schedule must be determined based on the typical cost of utilities and 
services paid by energy-conservative households that occupy housing of similar size and type in 
the same locality. In developing the schedule, the PHA must use normal patterns of consumption 
for the community as a whole, and current utility rates. 

The utility allowance must include the utilities and services that are necessary in the locality to 
provide housing that complies with housing quality standards. Costs for telephone, cable/satellite 
television, and internet services are not included in the utility allowance schedule.  

In the utility allowance schedule, the PHA must classify utilities and other housing services 
according to the following general categories: space heating; air conditioning; cooking; water 
heating; water; sewer; trash collection; other electric; cost of tenant-supplied refrigerator; cost of 
tenant-supplied range; and other specified housing services. 

The cost of each utility and housing service must be stated separately by unit size and type. 
Chapter 18 of the HCV Guidebook provides detailed guidance to the PHA about establishing 
utility allowance schedules. 

Air Conditioning 

An allowance for air-conditioning must be provided when the majority of housing units in the 
market have central air-conditioning or are wired for tenant-installed air conditioners. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA has included an allowance for air-conditioning in its schedule. Central air-
conditioning or a portable air conditioner must be present in a unit before the PHA will 
apply this allowance to a family’s rent and subsidy calculations. 

Reasonable Accommodation  

HCV program regulations require a PHA to approve a utility allowance amount higher than 
shown on the PHA’s schedule if a higher allowance is needed as a reasonable accommodation 
for a family member with a disability. For example, if a family member with a disability requires 
such an accommodation, the PHA will approve an allowance for air-conditioning, even if the 
PHA has determined that an allowance for air-conditioning generally is not needed (See Chapter 
2 for policies regarding the request and approval of reasonable accommodations). 

Utility Allowance Revisions  

The PHA must review its schedule of utility allowances each year, and must revise the schedule 
if there has been a change of 10 percent or more in any utility rate since the last time the 
allowance for that utility was revised. 

The PHA must maintain information supporting its annual review of utility allowance and any 
revisions made in its utility allowance schedule. 

576

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-10
577

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-11

PART III: INFORMAL REVIEWS AND HEARINGS 

16-III.A. OVERVIEW 

Both applicants and participants have the right to disagree with, and appeal, certain decisions of 
the PHA that may adversely affect them. PHA decisions that may be appealed by applicants and 
participants are discussed in this section.  

The process for applicant appeals of PHA decisions is called the “informal review.” For 
participants (or applicants denied admission because of citizenship issues), the appeal process is 
called an “informal hearing.” PHAs are required to include informal review procedures for 
applicants and informal hearing procedures for participants in their administrative plans [24 CFR 
982.54(d)(12) and (13)]. 

16-III.B. INFORMAL REVIEWS  

Informal reviews are provided for program applicants. An applicant is someone who has applied 
for admission to the program, but is not yet a participant in the program. Informal reviews are 
intended to provide a “minimum hearing requirement” [24 CFR 982.554], and need not be as 
elaborate as the informal hearing requirements [Federal Register 60, no. 127 (3 July 1995): 
34690]. 

Decisions Subject to Informal Review [24 CFR 982.554(a) and (c)] 

The PHA must give an applicant the opportunity for an informal review of a decision denying 
assistance [24 CFR 982.554(a)]. Denial of assistance may include any or all of the following [24 
CFR 982.552(a)(2)]: 

 Denying listing on the PHA waiting list 

 Denying or withdrawing a voucher 

 Refusing to enter into a HAP contract or approve a lease 

 Refusing to process or provide assistance under portability procedures 

Informal reviews are not required for the following reasons [24 CFR 982.554(c)]: 

 Discretionary administrative determinations by the PHA 

 General policy issues or class grievances 

 A determination of the family unit size under the PHA subsidy standards 

 A PHA determination not to approve an extension of a voucher term 

 A PHA determination not to grant approval of the tenancy 

 A PHA determination that the unit is not in compliance with the HQS 

 A PHA determination that the unit is not in accordance with the HQS due to family size 
or composition 

578

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-12

PHA Policy 

The PHA will only offer an informal review to applicants for whom assistance is being 
denied. Denial of assistance includes: denying listing on the PHA waiting list; denying or 
withdrawing a voucher; refusing to enter into a HAP contract or approve a lease; refusing 
to process or provide assistance under portability procedures. 

Notice to the Applicant [24 CFR 982.554(a)] 

The PHA must give an applicant prompt notice of a decision denying assistance. The notice must 
contain a brief statement of the reasons for the PHA decision, and must also state that the 
applicant may request an informal review of the decision. The notice must describe how to 
obtain the informal review.  

Scheduling an Informal Review 

PHA Policy 

A request for an informal review must be made in writing and delivered to the PHA 
either in person or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no later than 10 
business days from the date of the PHA’s denial of assistance.  

The PHA must schedule and send written notice of the informal review within 10 
business days of the family’s request. 

Informal Review Procedures [24 CFR 982.554(b)] 

The informal review must be conducted by a person other than the one who made or approved 
the decision under review, or a subordinate of this person. 

The applicant must be provided an opportunity to present written or oral objections to the 
decision of the PHA. 

579

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-13

Remote Informal Reviews 

All PHA policies and processes for remote informal reviews must be conducted in accordance 
with due process requirements and be in compliance with HUD regulations.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not conduct remote informal reviews. 

Informal Review Decision [24 CFR 982.554(b)] 

The PHA must notify the applicant of the PHA’s final decision, including a brief statement of the 
reasons for the final decision. 

PHA Policy 

In rendering a decision, the PHA will evaluate the following matters: 

Whether or not the grounds for denial were stated factually in the notice to 
the family. 

The validity of the grounds for denial of assistance. If the grounds for denial are 
not specified in the regulations, then the decision to deny assistance will be 
overturned.  

The validity of the evidence. The PHA will evaluate whether the facts presented 
prove the grounds for denial of assistance. If the facts prove that there are grounds 
for denial, and the denial is required by HUD, the PHA will uphold the decision 
to deny assistance. 

If the facts prove the grounds for denial, and the denial is discretionary, the PHA 
will consider the recommendation of the person conducting the informal review in 
making the final decision whether to deny assistance.  

The PHA will notify the applicant of the final decision, including a statement explaining 
the reason(s) for the decision. The notice will be mailed within 10 business days of the 
informal review, to the applicant and his or her representative, if any, along with proof 
of mailing. 

If the decision to deny is overturned as a result of the informal review, processing for 
admission will resume. 

If the family fails to appear for their informal review, the denial of admission will stand 
and the family will be so notified. 

580

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-14

16-III.C. INFORMAL HEARINGS FOR PARTICIPANTS [24 CFR 982.555] 

PHAs must offer an informal hearing for certain PHA determinations relating to the individual 
circumstances of a participant family. A participant is defined as a family that has been admitted 
to the PHA’s HCV program and is currently assisted in the program. The purpose of the informal 
hearing is to consider whether the PHA’s decisions related to the family’s circumstances are in 
accordance with the law, HUD regulations and PHA policies.  

The PHA is not permitted to terminate a family’s assistance until the time allowed for the family 
to request an informal hearing has elapsed, and any requested hearing has been completed. 
Termination of assistance for a participant may include any or all of the following: 

 Refusing to enter into a HAP contract or approve a lease 

 Terminating housing assistance payments under an outstanding HAP contract 

 Refusing to process or provide assistance under portability procedures 

Decisions Subject to Informal Hearing 

Circumstances for which the PHA must give a participant family an opportunity for an informal 
hearing are as follows: 

 A determination of the family’s annual or adjusted income, and the use of such income to 
compute the housing assistance payment 

 A determination of the appropriate utility allowance (if any) for tenant-paid utilities from the 
PHA utility allowance schedule 

 A determination of the family unit size under the PHA’s subsidy standards 

 A determination to terminate assistance for a participant family because of the family’s 
actions or failure to act 

 A determination to terminate assistance because the participant has been absent from the 
assisted unit for longer than the maximum period permitted under PHA policy and HUD 
rules 

 A determination to terminate a family’s Family Self Sufficiency contract, withhold 
supportive services, or propose forfeiture of the family’s escrow account [24 CFR 
984.303(i)] 

581

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-15

Circumstances for which an informal hearing is not required are as follows: 

 Discretionary administrative determinations by the PHA 

 General policy issues or class grievances 

 Establishment of the PHA schedule of utility allowances for families in the program 

 A PHA determination not to approve an extension of a voucher term 

 A PHA determination not to approve a unit or tenancy 

 A PHA determination that a unit selected by the applicant is not in compliance with the HQS 

 A PHA determination that the unit is not in accordance with HQS because of family size 

 A determination by the PHA to exercise or not to exercise any right or remedy against an 
owner under a HAP contract 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will only offer participants the opportunity for an informal hearing when 
required to by the regulations. 

Remote Informal Hearings 

The PHA’s essential responsibility is to ensure informal hearings meet the requirements of due 
process and comply with HUD regulations. Therefore, all PHA policies and processes for remote 
informal hearings will be conducted in accordance with due process requirements and will be in 
compliance with HUD regulations. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will not conduct remote informal hearings 

Informal Hearing Procedures 

Notice to the Family [24 CFR 982.555(c)] 

When the PHA makes a decision that is subject to informal hearing procedures, the PHA must 
inform the family of its right to an informal hearing at the same time that it informs the family of 
the decision. 

For decisions related to the family’s annual or adjusted income, the determination of the 
appropriate utility allowance, and the determination of the family unit size, the PHA must notify 
the family that they may ask for an explanation of the basis of the determination, and that if they 
do not agree with the decision, they may request an informal hearing on the decision. 

For decisions related to the termination of the family’s assistance, or the denial of a family’s 
request for an exception to the PHA’s subsidy standards, the notice must contain a brief 
statement of the reasons for the decision, a statement that if the family does not agree with the 
decision, the family may request an informal hearing on the decision, and a statement of the 
deadline for the family to request an informal hearing. 

 

 

582

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-16

PHA Policy 

In cases where the PHA makes a decision for which an informal hearing must be offered, 
the notice to the family will include all of the following: 

The proposed action or decision of the PHA. 

A brief statement of the reasons for the decision, including the regulatory 
reference. 

The date the proposed action will take place. 

A statement of the family’s right to an explanation of the basis for the PHA’s 
decision. 

A statement that if the family does not agree with the decision the family may 
request an informal hearing of the decision. 

A deadline for the family to request the informal hearing. 

To whom the hearing request should be addressed. 

A copy of the PHA’s hearing procedures. 

That the family may request a remote informal hearing 

If the PHA will require that the hearing be conducted remotely, at the time the notice is 
sent to the family informing them of the right to request an informal hearing, the family 
will be notified that the informal hearing will be conducted remotely. The family will be 
informed of the processes involved in a remote informal hearing and that the PHA will 
provide technical assistance, if needed, before the informal hearing. 

583

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-17

Scheduling an Informal Hearing [24 CFR 982.555(d)] 

When an informal hearing is required, the PHA must proceed with the hearing in a reasonably 
expeditious manner upon the request of the family.  

PHA Policy 

A request for an informal hearing must be made in writing and delivered to the PHA 
either in person or by first class mail, by the close of the business day, no later than 10 
business days from the date of the PHA’s decision or notice to terminate assistance.  

The PHA must schedule and send written notice of the informal hearing to the family 
within 10 business days of the family’s request. 

The family may request to reschedule a hearing for good cause, or if it is needed as a 
reasonable accommodation for a person with disabilities. Good cause is defined as an 
unavoidable conflict which seriously affects the health, safety or welfare of the family. 
Requests to reschedule a hearing must be made orally or in writing prior to the hearing 
date. At its discretion, the PHA may request documentation of the “good cause” prior to 
rescheduling the hearing. 

If the family does not appear within 20 minutes of the scheduled time, and was unable to 
reschedule the hearing in advance due to the nature of the conflict, the family must 
contact the PHA within 24 hours of the scheduled hearing date, excluding weekends and 
holidays. The PHA will reschedule the hearing only if the family can show good cause 
for the failure to appear, or if it is needed as a reasonable accommodation for a person 
with disabilities. If the family cannot show good cause for the failure to appear, or a 
rescheduling is not needed as a reasonable accommodation, the PHA’s decision 
will stand. 

584

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-18

Pre-Hearing Right to Discovery [24 CFR 982.555(e)] 

Participants and the PHA are permitted pre-hearing discovery rights. The family must be given 
the opportunity to examine before the hearing any PHA documents that are directly relevant to 
the hearing. The family must be allowed to copy any such documents at their own expense. If the 
PHA does not make the document available for examination on request of the family, the PHA 
may not rely on the document at the hearing. 

For the purpose of informal hearings, documents include records and regulations. 

PHA Policy 

The family will be allowed to copy any documents related to the hearing at a cost of $.25 
per page. The family must request discovery of PHA documents no later than 12:00 p.m. 
on the business day prior to the scheduled hearing date. 

Documents will be shared electronically whenever possible. 

The PHA hearing procedures may provide that the PHA must be given the opportunity to 
examine at the PHA offices before the hearing any family documents that are directly relevant to 
the hearing. The PHA must be allowed to copy any such document at the PHA’s expense. If the 
family does not make the document available for examination on request of the PHA, the family 
may not rely on the document at the hearing. 

PHA Policy 

For in-person hearings, the PHA will not require pre-hearing discovery by the PHA of 
family documents directly relevant to the hearing. 

Documents will be shared electronically whenever possible. 

Participant’s Right to Bring Counsel [24 CFR 982.555(e)(3)] 

At its own expense, the family may be represented by a lawyer or other representative at the 
informal hearing.  

Informal Hearing Officer [24 CFR 982.555(e)(4)] 

Informal hearings will be conducted by a person or persons approved by the PHA, other than the 
person who made or approved the decision or a subordinate of the person who made or approved 
the decision. 

585

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-19

Attendance at the Informal Hearing 

PHA Policy 

Hearings may be attended by a hearing officer and the following applicable persons:  

A PHA representative(s) and any witnesses for the PHA  

The participant and any witnesses for the participant 

The participant’s counsel or other representative 

Any other person approved by the PHA as a reasonable accommodation for a 
person with a disability  

Conduct at Hearings 

The person who conducts the hearing may regulate the conduct of the hearing in accordance with 
the PHA’s hearing procedures [24 CFR 982.555(4)(ii)]. 

PHA Policy 

The hearing officer is responsible to manage the order of business and to ensure that 
hearings are conducted in a professional and businesslike manner. Attendees are expected 
to comply with all hearing procedures established by the hearing officer and guidelines 
for conduct. Any person demonstrating disruptive, abusive or otherwise inappropriate 
behavior will be excused from the hearing at the discretion of the hearing officer. 

586

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-20

Evidence [24 CFR 982.555(e)(5)] 

The PHA and the family must be given the opportunity to present evidence and question any 
witnesses. In general, all evidence is admissible at an informal hearing. Evidence may be 
considered without regard to admissibility under the rules of evidence applicable to judicial 
proceedings. 

PHA Policy 

Any evidence to be considered by the hearing officer must be presented at the time of the 
hearing. There are four categories of evidence. 

Oral evidence: the testimony of witnesses 

Documentary evidence: a writing which is relevant to the case, for example, a 
letter written to the PHA. Writings include all forms of recorded communication 
or representation, including letters, words, pictures, sounds, videotapes or 
symbols or combinations thereof. 

Demonstrative evidence: Evidence created specifically for the hearing and 
presented as an illustrative aid to assist the hearing officer, such as a model, a 
chart or other diagram. 

Real evidence: A tangible item relating directly to the case. 

Hearsay Evidence is evidence of a statement that was made other than by a witness while 
testifying at the hearing and that is offered to prove the truth of the matter. Even though 
evidence, including hearsay, is generally admissible, hearsay evidence alone cannot be 
used as the sole basis for the hearing officer’s decision.  

If either the PHA or the family fail to comply with the discovery requirements described 
above, the hearing officer will refuse to admit such evidence. 

Other than the failure of a party to comply with discovery, the hearing officer has the 
authority to overrule any objections to evidence. 

Procedures for Rehearing or Further Hearing 

PHA Policy 

The hearing officer may ask the family for additional information and/or might adjourn 
the hearing in order to reconvene at a later date, before reaching a decision. If the family 
misses an appointment or deadline ordered by the hearing officer, the action of the PHA 
will take effect and another hearing will not be granted. 

587

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-21

Hearing Officer’s Decision [24 CFR 982.555(e)(6)] 

The person who conducts the hearing must issue a written decision, stating briefly the reasons for 
the decision. Factual determinations relating to the individual circumstances of the family must 
be based on a preponderance of evidence presented at the hearing.  

PHA Policy 

In rendering a decision, the hearing officer will consider the following matters: 

PHA Notice to the Family: The hearing officer will determine if the reasons for 
the PHA’s decision are factually stated in the Notice. 

Discovery: The hearing officer will determine if the PHA and the family were 
given the opportunity to examine any relevant documents in accordance with 
PHA policy. 

PHA Evidence to Support the PHA Decision: The evidence consists of the facts 
presented. Evidence is not conclusion and it is not argument. The hearing officer 
will evaluate the facts to determine if they support the PHA’s conclusion. 

Validity of Grounds for Termination of Assistance (when applicable): The 
hearing officer will determine if the termination of assistance is for one of the 
grounds specified in the HUD regulations and PHA policies. If the grounds for 
termination are not specified in the regulations or in compliance with PHA 
policies, then the decision of the PHA will be overturned.  

The hearing officer will issue a written decision to the family and the PHA no later than 
10 business days after the hearing. The report will contain the following information: 

Hearing information: 

Name of the participant; 

Date, time and place of the hearing; 

Name of the hearing officer; 

Name of the PHA representative; and 

Name of family representative (if any). 

Background: A brief, impartial statement of the reason for the hearing. 

Summary of the Evidence: The hearing officer will summarize the testimony of 
each witness and identify any documents that a witness produced in support of 
his/her testimony and that are admitted into evidence.  

Findings of Fact: The hearing officer will include all findings of fact, based on a 
preponderance of the evidence. Preponderance of the evidence is defined as 
evidence which is of greater weight or more convincing than the evidence which 
is offered in opposition to it; that is, evidence which as a whole shows that the 
fact sought to be proved is more probable than not. Preponderance of the evidence 
may not be determined by the number of witnesses, but by the greater weight of 
all evidence. 

588

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-22

Conclusions: The hearing officer will render a conclusion derived from the facts 
that were found to be true by a preponderance of the evidence. The conclusion 
will result in a determination of whether these facts uphold the PHA’s decision. 

Order: The hearing report will include a statement of whether the PHA’s 
decision is upheld or overturned. If it is overturned, the hearing officer will 
instruct the PHA to change the decision in accordance with the hearing officer’s 
determination. In the case of termination of assistance, the hearing officer will 
instruct the PHA to restore the participant’s program status. 

Issuance of Decision [24 CFR 982.555(e)(6)] 

A copy of the hearing must be furnished promptly to the family. 

PHA Policy 

The hearing officer will mail a “Notice of Hearing Decision” to the PHA and to the 
participant on the same day. This notice will be sent by first-class mail. The participant 
will be mailed the original “Notice of Hearing Decision” and a copy of the proof of 
mailing. A copy of the “Notice of Hearing Decision” will be maintained in the 
PHA’s file. 

Effect of Final Decision [24 CFR 982.555(f)] 

The PHA is not bound by the decision of the hearing officer for matters in which the PHA is not 
required to provide an opportunity for a hearing, decisions that exceed the authority of the 
hearing officer, decisions that conflict with or contradict HUD regulations, requirements, or are 
otherwise contrary to federal, state, or local laws. 

If the PHA determines it is not bound by the hearing officer’s decision in accordance with HUD 
regulations, the PHA must promptly notify the family of the determination and the reason for the 
determination.  

PHA Policy 

The Executive Director has the authority to determine that the PHA is not bound by the 
decision of the hearing officer because the PHA was not required to provide a hearing, 
the decision exceeded the authority of the hearing officer, the decision conflicted with or 
contradicted HUD regulations, requirements, or the decision was otherwise contrary to 
federal, state, or local laws. 

In such a case, the PHA will mail a “Notice of Final Decision” to the PHA and the 
participant on the same day. The “Notice of Final Decision” will be sent by first-class 
mail. A copy of this notice will be maintained in the PHA’s file. 

589

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-23

16-III.D. HEARING AND APPEAL PROVISIONS FOR NONCITIZENS [24 CFR 5.514] 

Denial or termination of assistance based on immigration status is subject to special hearing and 
notice rules. Applicants who are denied assistance due to immigration status are entitled to an 
informal hearing, not an informal review. 

Assistance to a family may not be delayed, denied, or terminated on the basis of immigration 
status at any time prior to a decision under the United States Citizenship and Immigration 
Services (USCIS) appeal process. Assistance to a family may not be terminated or denied while 
the PHA hearing is pending, but assistance to an applicant may be delayed pending the 
completion of the informal hearing. 

A decision against a family member, issued in accordance with the USCIS appeal process or the 
PHA informal hearing process, does not preclude the family from exercising the right, that may 
otherwise be available, to seek redress directly through judicial procedures. 

Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance [24 CFR 5.514(d)] 

The notice of denial or termination of assistance for noncitizens must advise the family: 

 That financial assistance will be denied or terminated, and provide a brief explanation of the 
reasons for the proposed denial or termination of assistance. 

 The family may be eligible for proration of assistance. 

 In the case of a participant, the criteria and procedures for obtaining relief under the 
provisions for preservation of families [24 CFR 5.514 and 5.518]. 

 That the family has a right to request an appeal to the USCIS of the results of secondary 
verification of immigration status and to submit additional documentation or explanation in 
support of the appeal. 

 That the family has a right to request an informal hearing with the PHA either upon 
completion of the USCIS appeal or in lieu of the USCIS appeal. 

 For applicants, assistance may not be delayed until the conclusion of the USCIS appeal 
process, but assistance may be delayed during the period of the informal hearing process. 

590

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-24

USCIS Appeal Process [24 CFR 5.514(e)] 

When the PHA receives notification that the USCIS secondary verification failed to confirm 
eligible immigration status, the PHA must notify the family of the results of the USCIS 
verification. The family will have 30 days from the date of the notification to request an appeal 
of the USCIS results. The request for appeal must be made by the family in writing directly to 
the USCIS. The family must provide the PHA with a copy of the written request for appeal and 
the proof of mailing. 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will notify the family in writing of the results of the USCIS secondary 
verification within 10 business days of receiving the results. 

The family must provide the PHA with a copy of the written request for appeal and proof 
of mailing within 10 business days of sending the request to the USCIS. 

The family must forward to the designated USCIS office any additional documentation or 
written explanation in support of the appeal. This material must include a copy of the USCIS 
document verification request (used to process the secondary request) or such other form 
specified by the USCIS, and a letter indicating that the family is requesting an appeal of the 
USCIS immigration status verification results. 

The USCIS will notify the family, with a copy to the PHA, of its decision. When the USCIS 
notifies the PHA of the decision, the PHA must notify the family of its right to request an 
informal hearing.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will send written notice to the family of its right to request an informal hearing 
within 10 business days of receiving notice of the USCIS decision regarding the family’s 
immigration status. 

Informal Hearing Procedures for Applicants [24 CFR 5.514(f)] 

After notification of the USCIS decision on appeal, or in lieu of an appeal to the USCIS, the 
family may request that the PHA provide a hearing. The request for a hearing must be made 
either within 30 days of receipt of the PHA notice of denial, or within 30 days of receipt of the 
USCIS appeal decision. 

The informal hearing procedures for applicant families are described below.  

Informal Hearing Officer 

The PHA must provide an informal hearing before an impartial individual, other than a person 
who made or approved the decision under review, and other than a person who is a subordinate 
of the person who made or approved the decision. See Section 16-III.C. for a listing of positions 
that serve as informal hearing officers. 

591

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-25

Evidence 

The family must be provided the opportunity to examine and copy at the family’s expense, at a 
reasonable time in advance of the hearing, any documents in the possession of the PHA 
pertaining to the family’s eligibility status, or in the possession of the USCIS (as permitted by 
USCIS requirements), including any records and regulations that may be relevant to the hearing. 

PHA Policy 

The family will be allowed to copy any documents related to the hearing at a cost of $.25 
per page. The family must request discovery of PHA documents no later than  
12:00 p.m. on the business day prior to the hearing. 

The family must be provided the opportunity to present evidence and arguments in support of 
eligible status. Evidence may be considered without regard to admissibility under the rules of 
evidence applicable to judicial proceedings. 

The family must also be provided the opportunity to refute evidence relied upon by the PHA, and 
to confront and cross-examine all witnesses on whose testimony or information the PHA relies. 

Representation and Interpretive Services 

The family is entitled to be represented by an attorney or other designee, at the family’s expense, 
and to have such person make statements on the family’s behalf. 

The family is entitled to request an interpreter. Upon request, the PHA will provide competent 
interpretation services, free of charge. 

Recording of the Hearing 

The family is entitled to have the hearing recorded by audiotape. The PHA may, but is not 
required to provide a transcript of the hearing. 

PHA Policy  

The PHA will not provide a transcript of an audio taped hearing. 

Hearing Decision 

The PHA must provide the family with a written final decision, based solely on the facts 
presented at the hearing, within 14 calendar days of the date of the informal hearing. The 
decision must state the basis for the decision. 

592

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-26

Informal Hearing Procedures for Residents [24 CFR 5.514(f)] 

After notification of the USCIS decision on appeal, or in lieu of an appeal to the USCIS, the 
family may request that the PHA provide a hearing. The request for a hearing must be made 
either within 30 days of receipt of the PHA notice of termination, or within 30 days of receipt of 
the USCIS appeal decision. 

For the informal hearing procedures that apply to participant families whose assistance is being 
terminated based on immigration status, see Section 16-III.C. 

Retention of Documents [24 CFR 5.514(h)] 

The PHA must retain for a minimum of 5 years the following documents that may have been 
submitted to the PHA by the family, or provided to the PHA as part of the USCIS appeal or the 
PHA informal hearing process: 

 The application for assistance 

 The form completed by the family for income reexamination 

 Photocopies of any original documents, including original USCIS documents 

 The signed verification consent form 

 The USCIS verification results 

 The request for a USCIS appeal 

 The final USCIS determination 

 The request for an informal hearing 

 The final informal hearing decision 

593

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-27

PART IV: OWNER OR FAMILY DEBTS TO THE PHA 

16-IV.A. OVERVIEW 

PHAs are required to include in the administrative plan, policies concerning repayment by a 
family of amounts owed to the PHA [24 CFR 982.54]. This part describes the PHA’s policies for 
recovery of monies owed to the PHA by families or owners. 

PHA Policy 

When an action or inaction of an owner or participant results in the overpayment of 
housing assistance, the PHA holds the owner or participant liable to return any 
overpayments to the PHA.  

The PHA will enter into repayment agreements in accordance with the policies contained 
in this part as a means to recover overpayments.  

When an owner or participant refuses to repay monies owed to the PHA, the PHA will 
utilize other available collection alternatives including, but not limited to, the following: 

Collection agencies 

Small claims court 

Civil law suit 

State income tax set-off program 

594

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-28

16-IV.B. REPAYMENT POLICY 

Owner Debts to the PHA 

PHA Policy 

Any amount due to the PHA by an owner must be repaid by the owner within 30 days of 
the PHA determination of the debt. 

If the owner fails to repay the debt within the required time frame and is entitled to future 
HAP payments, the PHA will reduce the future HAP payments by the amount owed until 
the debt is paid in full. 

If the owner is not entitled to future HAP payments the PHA may, in its sole discretion, 
offer to enter into a repayment agreement on terms prescribed by the PHA. 

If the owner refuses to repay the debt, does not enter into a repayment agreement, or 
breaches a repayment agreement, the PHA will ban the owner from future participation in 
the program and pursue other modes of collection. 

Family Debts to the PHA 

PHA Policy 

Any amount owed to the PHA by an HCV family must be repaid by the family. If the 
family is unable to repay the debt within 30 days, the PHA will offer to enter into a 
repayment agreement in accordance with the policies below.  

If the family refuses to repay the debt, does not enter into a repayment agreement, or 
breaches a repayment agreement, the PHA will terminate assistance in accordance with 
the policies in Chapter 12 and pursue other modes of collection. 

Repayment Agreement [24 CFR 792.103] 

The term repayment agreement refers to a formal written document signed by a tenant or owner 
and provided to the PHA in which a tenant or owner acknowledges a debt in a specific amount 
and agrees to repay the amount due at specific time periods. 

General Repayment Agreement Guidelines for Families 

Down Payment Requirement 

PHA Policy 

A family may, but will not be required to, make a down payment on the amount owed 
prior to entereing into a repayment agreement with the PHA. 

595

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-29

Payment Thresholds 

Notice PIH 2017-12 recommends that the total amount that a family must pay each month—the 
family’s monthly share of rent plus the monthly debt repayment amount—should not exceed 40 
percent of the family’s monthly adjusted income. However, a family may already be paying 40 
per cent or more of its monthly adjusted income in rent. Moreover, Notice PIH 2017-12 
acknowledges that PHAs have the discretion to establish “thresholds and policies” for repayment 
agreements with families [24 CFR 982.552(c)(1)(vii)]. 

PHA Policy 

If a family is paying less than 40 percent of its monthly adjusted income (MAI) in rent, 
the minimum monthly payment amount will be the greater of the following two amounts. 

The difference between 40 percent of the family’s MAI and the total family share 
at the time the agreement is executed 

 Or $25 

If a family is paying 40 percent or more of its MAI in rent, the PHA will establish a 
reasonable monthly payment amount vommensurate with the family’s MAI at the time 
the agreement is executed. In no event will the amount be less than $25.00. 

If a family can provide evidence satisfactory to the PHA that monthly payment amount of 
$25 would impose an undue hardship the PHA may, in its sole discretion, require a lower 
monthly payment amount. 

If the family’s income increases or decreases during the term of a repayment agreement, 
eith the PHA or the family may request that the monthly payment amount be adjusted 
accordingly. 

Execution of the Agreement 

PHA Policy 

Any repayment agreement between the PHA and a family must be signed and dated by 
the PHA and by the head of household and spouse/cohead (if applicable). 

Due Dates 

PHA Policy 

All payments are due by the close of business on the 15th day of the month. If the 15th 
does not fall on a business day, the due date is the close of business on the first business 
day after the 15th. 

596

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-30

Late or Missed Payments 

PHA Policy 

If a payment is not received by the end of the business day on the date due, and prior 
approval for the missed payment has not been given by the PHA, the PHA will send the 
family a delinquency notice giving the family 10 business days to make the late payment. 
If the payment is not received by the due date of the delinquency notice, it will be 
considered a breach of the agreement and the PHA will terminate assistance in 
accordance with the policies in Chapter 12. 

If a family receives three delinquency notices for unexcused late payments in a 12-month 
period, the repayment agreement will be considered in default, and the PHA will 
terminate assistance in accordance with the policies in Chapter 12. 

No Offer of Repayment Agreement 

PHA Policy 

The PHA generally will not enter into a repayment agreement with a family under any of 
the following conditions: 

If the family is already under an existing repayment agreement with the PHA. 

The PHA determins that the family’s debt is a result of program abuse or fraus (as 
defined in Chapter 14 of this plan). 

The amount  owed by the family exceeds the federal or state threshold for 
criminal prosecution. 

Repayment Agreements Involving Improper Payments 

Notice PIH 2017-12 requires certain provisions to be included in any repayment agreement 
involving amounts owed by a family because it underreported or failed to report income: 

 A reference to the items in the family briefing packet that state the family’s obligation to 
provide true and complete information at every reexamination and the grounds on which the 
PHA may terminate assistance because of a family’s action or failure to act 

 A statement clarifying that each month the family not only must pay to the PHA the monthly 
payment amount specified in the agreement but must also pay to the owner the family’s 
monthly share of the rent to owner 

 A statement that the terms of the repayment agreement may be renegotiated if the family’s 
income decreases or increases 

 A statement that late or missed payments constitute default of the repayment agreement and 
may result in termination of assistance 

597

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-31

PART V: SECTION 8 MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM (SEMAP) 

16-V.A. OVERVIEW 

The Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) is a tool that allows HUD to measure 
PHA performance in key areas to ensure program integrity and accountability. SEMAP scores 
translate into a rating for each PHA as high performing, standard, or troubled. Scores on 
individual SEMAP indicators, as well as overall SEMAP ratings, can affect the PHA in several 
ways.  

 High-performing PHAs can be given a competitive advantage under notices of funding 
availability [24 CFR 985.103]. 

 PHAs with deficiencies on one or more indicators are required to correct the deficiencies and 
report to HUD [24 CFR 985.106]. 

 PHAs with an overall rating of “troubled” are subject to additional HUD oversight, including 
on-site reviews by HUD staff, a requirement to develop a corrective action plan, and 
monitoring to ensure the successful implementation of the corrective action plan. In addition, 
PHAs that are designated “troubled” may not use any part of the administrative fee reserve 
for other housing purposes [24 CFR 985.107]. 

 HUD may determine that a PHA's failure to correct identified SEMAP deficiencies or to 
prepare and implement a corrective action plan required by HUD constitutes a default under 
the ACC [24 CFR 985.109]. 

598

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-32

16-V.B. SEMAP CERTIFICATION [24 CFR 985.101] 

PHAs must submit the HUD-required SEMAP certification form within 60 calendar days after 
the end of its fiscal year. The certification must be approved by PHA board resolution and signed 
by the PHA executive director. If the PHA is a unit of local government or a state, a resolution 
approving the certification is not required, and the certification must be executed by the Section 
8 program director. 

PHAs with less than 250 voucher units are only required to be assessed every other PHA fiscal 
year. HUD will assess such PHAs annually if the PHA elects to have its performance assessed on 
an annual basis; or is designated as “troubled” [24 CFR 985.105]. 

Failure of a PHA to submit its SEMAP certification within the required time frame will result in 
an overall performance rating of “troubled.” 

A PHA’s SEMAP certification is subject to HUD verification by an on-site confirmatory review 
at any time. 

Upon receipt of the PHA’s SEMAP certification, HUD will rate the PHA’s performance under 
each SEMAP indicator in accordance with program requirements. 

HUD Verification Method 

Several of the SEMAP indicators are scored based on a review of a quality control sample 
selected for this purpose. The PHA or the Independent Auditor must select an unbiased sample 
that provides an adequate representation of the types of information to be assessed, in accordance 
with SEMAP requirements [24 CFR 985.2]. 

If the HUD verification method for the indicator relies on data in the Form-50058 module 
(formerly known as MTCS) in the PIH Information Center (PIC), and HUD determines that 
those data are insufficient to verify the PHA's certification on the indicator due to the PHA's 
failure to adequately report family data, HUD will assign a zero rating for the indicator [24 CFR 
985.3]. 

599

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-33

16-V.C. SEMAP INDICATORS [24 CFR 985.3 and form HUD-52648] 

The table below lists each of the SEMAP indicators, contains a description of each indicator, and 
explains the basis for points awarded under each indicator. 

A PHA that expends less than $300,000 in Federal awards and whose Section 8 programs are not 
audited by an independent auditor, is not be rated under SEMAP indicators 1-7. 

 

SEMAP Indicators 

 Indicator 1: Selection from the waiting list 
 Maximum Score: 15 
 This indicator shows whether the PHA has written policies in its administrative plan for 

selecting applicants from the waiting list and whether the PHA follows these policies 
when selecting applicants for admission from the waiting list. 

 Points are based on the percent of families that are selected from the waiting list in 
accordance with the PHA’s written policies, according to the PHA’s quality control 
sample. 

Indicator 2: Rent reasonableness 
Maximum Score: 20 
 This indicator shows whether the PHA has and implements a reasonable written method 

to determine and document for each unit leased that the rent to owner is reasonable 
based on current rents for comparable unassisted units 

 Points are based on the percent of units for which the PHA follows its written method to 
determine reasonable rent and has documented its determination that the rent to owner is 
reasonable, according to the PHA’s quality control sample.  

Indicator 3: Determination of adjusted income 
Maximum Score: 20 
 This indicator measures whether the PHA verifies and correctly determines adjusted 

income for each assisted family, and where applicable, uses the appropriate utility 
allowances for the unit leased in determining the gross rent. 

 Points are based on the percent of files that are calculated and verified correctly, 
according to the PHA’s quality control sample. 

Indicator 4: Utility allowance schedule 
Maximum Score: 5 
 This indicator shows whether the PHA maintains an up-to-date utility allowance 

schedule. 
 Points are based on whether the PHA has reviewed the utility allowance schedule and 

adjusted it when required, according to the PHA’s certification. 

600

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-34

 

Indicator 5: HQS quality control inspections 
Maximum Score: 5 
 This indicator shows whether a PHA supervisor reinspects a sample of units under 

contract during the PHA fiscal year, which meets the minimum sample size 
requirements for quality control of HQS inspections. 

 Points are based on whether the required quality control reinspections were completed, 
according to the PHA’s certification. 

Indicator 6: HQS enforcement 
Maximum Score: 10 
 This indicator shows whether, following each HQS inspection of a unit under contract 

where the unit fails to meet HQS, any cited life-threatening deficiencies are corrected 
within 24 hours from the inspection and all other deficiencies are corrected within no 
more than 30 calendar days from the inspection or any PHA-approved extension. 

 Points are based on whether the PHA corrects all HQS deficiencies in accordance with 
required time frames, according to the PHA’s certification. 

Indicator 7: Expanding housing opportunities 
Maximum Points: 5 
 Only applies to PHAs with jurisdiction in metropolitan FMR areas. 
 This indicator shows whether the PHA has adopted and implemented a written policy to 

encourage participation by owners of units located outside areas of poverty or minority 
concentration; informs voucher holders of the full range of areas where they may lease 
units both inside and outside the PHA’s jurisdiction; and supplies a list of landlords or 
other parties who are willing to lease units or help families find units, including units 
outside areas of poverty or minority concentration. 

 Points are based on whether the PHA has adopted and implemented written policies in 
accordance with SEMAP requirements, according to the PHA’s certification. 

Indicator 8: FMR limit and payment standards 
Maximum Points: 5 points 
 This indicator shows whether the PHA has adopted a payment standard schedule that 

establishes payment standard amounts by unit size for each FMR area in the PHA’s 
jurisdiction, that are within the basic range of 90 to 110 percent of the published FMR. 

 Points are based on whether the PHA has appropriately adopted a payment standard 
schedule(s), according to the PHA’s certification. 

Indicator 9: Annual reexaminations 
Maximum Points: 10 
 This indicator shows whether the PHA completes a reexamination for each participating 

family at least every 12 months. 
 Points are based on the percent of reexaminations that are more than 2 months overdue, 

according to data from PIC. 

601

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-35

 

Indicator 10: Correct tenant rent calculations 
Maximum Points: 5  
 This indicator shows whether the PHA correctly calculates the family’s share of the rent 

to owner. 
 Points are based on the percent of correct calculations of family share of the rent, 

according to data from PIC. 

Indicator 11: Pre-contract HQS inspections 
Maximum Points: 5 
 This indicator shows whether newly leased units pass HQS inspection on or before the 

effective date of the assisted lease and HAP contract. 
 Points are based on the percent of newly leased units that passed HQS inspection prior to 

the effective date of the lease and HAP contract, according to data from PIC. 

Indicator 12: Annual HQS inspections 
Maximum Points: 10 
 This indicator shows whether the PHA inspects each unit under contract at least 

annually. 
 Points are based on the percent of annual HQS inspections of units under contract that 

are more than 2 months overdue, according to data from PIC. 

Indicator 13: Lease-up 
Maximum Points: 20 points 
 This indicator shows whether the PHA enters HAP contracts for at least 98 percent of the 

number of the PHA’s baseline voucher units in the ACC for the calendar year ending on 
or before the PHA’s fiscal year, or whether the PHA has expended at least 98 percent of 
its allocated budget authority for the same calendar year. The PHA can receive 15 points 
if 95 to 97 percent of vouchers are leased or budget authority is utilized. 

 Points are based on utilization of vouchers and HAP expenditures as reported in the 
voucher management system (VMS) for the most recently completed calendar year. 

Indicator 14: Family self-sufficiency (FSS) enrollment and escrow account balances 
Maximum Points: 10 
 Only applies to PHAs with mandatory FSS programs. 
 This indicator shows whether the PHA has enrolled families in the FSS program as 

required, and measures the percent of current FSS participants that have had increases in 
earned income which resulted in escrow account balances. 

 Points are based on the percent of mandatory FSS slots that are filled and the percent of 
families with escrow account balances, according to data from PIC. 

602

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-36

 

Success Rate of Voucher Holders  
Maximum Points: 5 
 Only applies to PHAs that have received approval to establish success rate payment 

standard amounts, and isn’t effective until the second full PHA fiscal year following the 
date of HUD approval of success rate payment standard amounts. 

 This indicator shows whether voucher holders were successful in leasing units with 
voucher assistance. 

 Points are based on the percent of families that were issued vouchers, and that became 
participants in the voucher program.  

Deconcentration Bonus Indicator 
Maximum Points: 5 
 Submission of data for this indicator is mandatory for a PHA using one or more payment 

standard amount(s) that exceed(s) 100 percent of the published FMR set at the 50 
percentile rent, starting with the second full PHA fiscal year following initial use of 
payment standard amounts based on the FMRs set at the 50th percentile. 

 Additional points are available to PHAs that have jurisdiction in metropolitan FMR areas 
and that choose to submit the required data. 

 Points are based on whether the data that is submitted meets the requirements for bonus 
points. 

603

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-37

PART VI: RECORD KEEPING  

16-VI.A. OVERVIEW 

The PHA must maintain complete and accurate accounts and other records for the program in 
accordance with HUD requirements, in a manner that permits a speedy and effective audit. All 
such records must be made available to HUD or the Comptroller General of the United States 
upon request. 

In addition, the PHA must ensure that all applicant and participant files are maintained in a way 
that protects an individual’s privacy rights. 

16-VI.B. RECORD RETENTION [24 CFR 982.158] 

During the term of each assisted lease, and for at least three years thereafter, the PHA must keep: 

 A copy of the executed lease; 

 The HAP contract; and 

 The application from the family. 

 In addition, the PHA must keep the following records for at least three years: 

 Records that provide income, racial, ethnic, gender, and disability status data on program 
applicants and participants; 

 An application from each ineligible family and notice that the applicant is not eligible; 

 HUD-required reports; 

 Unit inspection reports; 

 Lead-based paint records as required by 24 CFR 35, Subpart B. 

 Accounts and other records supporting PHA budget and financial statements for the program; 

 Records to document the basis for PHA determination that rent to owner is a reasonable rent 
(initially and during the term of a HAP contract); and 

 Other records specified by HUD. 

Notice PIH 2014-20 requires PHAs to keep records of all complaints, investigations, notices, and 
corrective actions related to violations of the Fair Housing Act or the equal access final rule. 

The PHA must keep confidential records of all emergency transfer requested by victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking under the PHA’s Emergency 
Transfer Plan, as well as the outcomes of such requests, and retain the records for a period of 
three years [24 CFR 5.2002(e)(12)]. 

If an informal hearing to establish a family’s citizenship status is held, longer retention 
requirements apply for some types of documents. For specific requirements, see Section 16-
III.D., Retention of Documents. 

604

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-38

16-VI.C. RECORDS MANAGEMENT 

PHAs must maintain applicant and participant files and information in accordance with the 
regulatory requirements described below. 

PHA Policy 

All applicant and participant information will be kept in a secure location and access will 
be limited to authorized PHA staff. All information will be scanned into the software 
system and orginals will be destroyed. 

PHA staff will not discuss personal family information unless there is a business reason 
to do so. Inappropriate discussion of family information or improper disclosure of family 
information by staff will result in disciplinary action. 

Privacy Act Requirements [24 CFR 5.212 and Form-9886] 

The collection, maintenance, use, and dissemination of social security numbers (SSN), employer 
identification numbers (EIN), any information derived from these numbers, and income 
information of applicants and participants must be conducted, to the extent applicable, in 
compliance with the Privacy Act of 1974, and all other provisions of Federal, State, and 
local law. 

Applicants and participants, including all adults in the household, are required to sign a consent 
form, HUD-9886, Authorization for Release of Information. This form incorporates the Federal 
Privacy Act Statement and describes how the information collected using the form may be used, 
and under what conditions HUD or the PHA may release the information collected. 

Upfront Income Verification (UIV) Records 

PHAs that access UIV data through HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) system are 
required to adopt and follow specific security procedures to ensure that all EIV data is protected 
in accordance with federal laws, regardless of the media on which the data is recorded (e.g. 
electronic, paper). These requirements are contained in the HUD-issued document, Enterprise 
Income Verification (EIV) System, Security Procedures for Upfront Income Verification data. 

PHA Policy 

Prior to utilizing HUD’s EIV system, the PHA will adopt and implement EIV security 
procedures required by HUD. 

605

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-39

Criminal Records  

The PHA may only disclose the criminal conviction records which the PHA receives from a law 
enforcement agency to officers or employees of the PHA, or to authorized representatives of the 
PHA who have a job-related need to have access to the information [24 CFR 5.903(e)]. 

The PHA must establish and implement a system of records management that ensures that any 
criminal record received by the PHA from a law enforcement agency is maintained 
confidentially, not misused or improperly disseminated, and destroyed, once the purpose for 
which the record was requested has been accomplished, including expiration of the period for 
filing a challenge to the PHA action without institution of a challenge or final disposition of any 
such litigation [24 CFR 5.903(g)]. 

The PHA must establish and implement a system of records management that ensures that any 
sex offender registration information received by the PHA from a State or local agency is 
maintained confidentially, not misused or improperly disseminated, and destroyed, once the 
purpose for which the record was requested has been accomplished, including expiration of the 
period for filing a challenge to the PHA action without institution of a challenge or final 
disposition of any such litigation. However, a record of the screening, including the type of 
screening and the date performed must be retained [Notice PIH 2012-28]. This requirement does 
not apply to information that is public information, or is obtained by a PHA other than under 24 
CFR 5.905. 

Medical/Disability Records  

PHAs are not permitted to inquire about the nature or extent of a person’s disability. The PHA 
may not inquire about a person’s diagnosis or details of treatment for a disability or medical 
condition. If the PHA receives a verification document that provides such information, the PHA 
should not place this information in the tenant file. The PHA should destroy the document. 

Documentation of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking 

For requirements and PHA policies related to management of documentation obtained from 
victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, see section 16-IX.E. 

606

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-40
607

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-41

PART VII: REPORTING AND RECORD KEEPING FOR CHILDREN WITH 
ELEVATED BLOOD LEAD LEVEL 

16-VII.A. OVERVIEW 

The PHA has certain responsibilities relative to children with elevated blood lead levels that are 
receiving HCV assistance. The notification, verification, and hazard reduction requirements are 
discussed in Chapter 8. This part deals with the reporting requirements, and data collection and 
record keeping responsibilities that the PHA is subject to. 

16-VII.B. REPORTING REQUIREMENT [24 CFR 35.1225(e); Notice PIH 2017-13] 

The owner must report the name and address of a child identified as having an elevated blood 
lead level to the public health department within five business days of being so notified by any 
other medical health care professional. The owner must also notify the HUD field office and the  
HUD Office of Lead Hazard Control and Healthy Homes (OLHCHH) of the child’s address 
within five business days. The PHA may collaborate with the owner on the notification process, 
such as by agreeing with the owner to provide the required notifications on the owner’s behalf. 

PHA Policy 

Upon notification by the owner, the PHA will provide the public health department 
written notice of the name and address of any child identified as having an elevated blood 
lead level within five business days. 

Upon notification by the owner, the PHA will notify the HUD field office and the HUD 
Office of Lead Hazard Control and Healthy Homes (OLHCHH) of the child’s address 
within five business days. 

16-VII.C. DATA COLLECTION AND RECORD KEEPING [24 CFR 35.1225(f)] 

At least quarterly, the PHA must attempt to obtain from the public health department(s) with a 
similar area of jurisdiction, the names and/or addresses of children less than 6 years old with an 
elevated blood lead level. 

If the PHA obtains names and addresses of elevated blood lead level children from the public 
health department(s), the PHA must match this information with the names and addresses of 
families receiving HCV assistance, unless the public health department performs such a 
procedure. If a match occurs, the PHA must carry out the notification, verification, and hazard 
reduction requirements discussed in Chapter 8, and the reporting requirement discussed above. 

At least quarterly, the PHA must also report an updated list of the addresses of units receiving 
assistance under the HCV program to the same public health department(s), unless the public 
health department(s) states that it does not wish to receive such a report. 

PHA Policy 

The public health department(s) has stated they do not wish to receive a report of an 
updated list of the addresses of units receiving assistance under the HCV program, on a 
quarterly basis. Therefore, the PHA is not providing such a report. 

608

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-42
609

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-43

PART VIII: DETERMINATION OF INSUFFICIENT FUNDING 

16-VIII.A. OVERVIEW 

The HCV regulations allow PHAs to deny families permission to move and to terminate Housing 
Assistance Payments (HAP) contracts if funding under the consolidated ACC is insufficient to 
support continued assistance [24 CFR 982.354(e)(1) and 982.454]. If a PHA denies a family a 
portability move based on insufficient funding, the PHA is required to notify the local HUD 
office within 10 business days [24 CFR 982.354]. Insufficient funding may also impact the 
PHA’s ability to issue vouchers to families on the waiting list. This part discusses the 
methodology the PHA will use to determine whether or not the PHA has sufficient funding to 
issue vouchers, approve moves, and to continue subsidizing all families currently under a 
HAP contract. 

16-VIII.B. METHODOLOGY 

PHA Policy 

The PHA will determine whether there is adequate funding to issue vouchers, approve 
moves to higher cost units and areas, and continue subsidizing all current participants by 
comparing the PHA’s annual budget authority to the annual total HAP needs on a 
monthly basis. The total HAP needs for the calendar year will be projected by 
establishing the actual HAP costs year to date. To that figure, the PHA will add 
anticipated HAP expenditures for the remainder of the calendar year. Projected HAP 
expenditures will be calculated by multiplying the projected number of units leased per 
remaining months by the most current month’s average HAP. The projected number of 
units leased per month will take into account the average monthly turnover of participant 
families. If the total annual HAP needs equal or exceed the annual budget authority, or if 
the PHA cannot support the cost of the proposed subsidy commitment (voucher issuance 
or move) based on the funding analysis, the PHA will be considered to have insufficient 
funding. 

610

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-44
611

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-45

PART IX: VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT (VAWA): NOTIFICATION, 
DOCUMENTATION, CONFIDENTIALITY 

16-IX.A. OVERVIEW 

The Violence against Women Act of 2013 (VAWA) provides special protections for victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking who are applying for or receiving 
assistance under the housing choice voucher (HCV) program. If your state or local laws provide 
greater protection for such victims, those laws apply in conjunction with VAWA. 

In addition to definitions of key terms used in VAWA, this part contains general VAWA 
requirements and PHA policies in three areas: notification, documentation, and confidentiality. 
Specific VAWA requirements and PHA policies are located primarily in the following sections: 
3-I.C, “Family Breakup and Remaining Member of Tenant Family”; 3-III.G, “Prohibition against 
Denial of Assistance to Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, and Stalking”; 10-I.A, 
“Allowable Moves”; 10-I.B, “Restrictions on Moves”; 12-II.E, “Terminations Related to 
Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, or Stalking”; and 12-II.F, “Termination Notice.” 

16-IX.B. DEFINITIONS [24 CFR 5.2003, 42 USC 13925] 

As used in VAWA: 

 The term bifurcate means, with respect to a public housing or Section 8 lease, to divide a 
lease as a matter of law such that certain tenants can be evicted or removed while the 
remaining family members’ lease and occupancy rights are allowed to remain intact. 

 The term dating violence means violence committed by a person who is or has been in a 
social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim; and where the existence 
of such a relationship shall be determined based on a consideration of the following factors: 

- The length of the relationship 

- The type of relationship 

- The frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship 

 The term domestic violence includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed 
by a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim, by a person with whom the 
victim shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated 
with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of 
the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction receiving grant 
monies, or by any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that 
person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction. 

612

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-46

 The term affiliated individual  means, with respect to a person: 

- A spouse, parent, brother or sister, or child of that individual, or an individual to whom 
that individual stands in the position or place of a parent; or  

- Any other individual, tenant, or lawful occupant living in the household of the victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

 The term sexual assault means: 

- Any nonconsensual sexual act proscribed by federal, tribal, or state law, including when 
the victim lacks the capacity to consent 

 The term stalking means:  

- To engage in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a 
reasonable person to fear for his or her safety or the safety of others, or suffer substantial 
emotional distress.  

613

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-47

 

Notification to Program Applicants and Participants [24 CFR 5.2005(a)(1)] 

PHAs are required to inform program applicants and participants of their rights under VAWA, 
including their right to confidentiality and the limits thereof, when they are denied assistance, 
when they are admitted to the program, and when they are notified of an eviction or termination 
of housing benefits.  

PHA Policy 

The PHA will provide all applicants with information about VAWA at the time they 
request an application for housing assistance, as part of the written briefing packet, and at 
the time the family is admitted to the program. The PHA will also include information 
about VAWA in all notices of denial of assistance (see section 3-III.G). 

The PHA will provide all participants with information about VAWA at the time of 
admission (see section 5-I.B) and at annual reexamination. The PHA will also include 
information about VAWA in notices of termination of assistance, as provided in 
section 12-II.F. 

The VAWA information provided to applicants and participants will consist of the 
notices in Exhibits 16-1 and 16-2. 

The PHA is not limited to providing VAWA information at the times specified in the above 
policy. If the PHA decides to provide VAWA information to a participant following an incident 
of domestic violence, Notice PIH 2017-08 cautions against sending the information by mail, 
since the abuser may be monitoring the mail. The notice recommends that in such cases the PHA 
make alternative delivery arrangements that will not put the victim at risk. 

PHA Policy 

Whenever the PHA has reason to suspect that providing information about VAWA to a 
participant might place a victim of domestic violence at risk, it will attempt to deliver the 
information by hand directly to the victim or by having the victim come to an office or 
other space that may be safer for the individual, making reasonable accommodations as 
necessary. For example, the PHA may decide not to send mail regarding VAWA 
protections to the victim’s unit if the PHA believes the perpetrator may have access to the 
victim’s mail, unless requested by the victim. 

When discussing VAWA with the victim, the PHA will take reasonable precautions to 
ensure that no one can overhear the conversation, such as having conversations in a 
private room. 

The victim may, but is not required to, designate an attorney, advocate, or other secure 
contact for communications regarding VAWA protections. 

614

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-48

16-IX.D. DOCUMENTATION [24 CFR 5.2007] 

A PHA presented with a claim for initial or continued assistance based on status as a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or criminal activity related to any of 
these forms of abuse may—but is not required to—request that the individual making the claim 
document the abuse. Any request for documentation must be in writing, and the individual must 
be allowed at least 14 business days after receipt of the request to submit the documentation. The 
PHA may extend this time period at its discretion. [24 CFR 5.2007(a)] 

The individual may satisfy the PHA’s request by providing any one of the following three forms 
of documentation [24 CFR 5.2007(b)]: 

(1) A completed and signed HUD-approved certification form (HUD-5382, Certification of 
Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking), which must include the 
name of the perpetrator only if the name of the perpetrator is safe to provide and is known to 
the victim. The form may be filled out and submitted on behalf of the victim.  

(2) A federal, state, tribal, territorial, or local police report or court record, or an administrative 
record 

(3) Documentation signed by a person who has assisted the victim in addressing domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, or the effects of such abuse. This person 
may be an employee, agent, or volunteer of a victim service provider; an attorney; a mental 
health professional; or a medical professional. The person signing the documentation must 
attest under penalty of perjury to the person’s belief that the incidents in question are bona 
fide incidents of abuse. The victim must also sign the documentation. 

The PHA may not require third-party documentation (forms 2 and 3) in addition to certification 
(form 1), except as specified below under “Conflicting Documentation,” nor may it require 
certification in addition to third-party documentation [VAWA final rule]. 

PHA Policy 

Any request for documentation of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or 
stalking will be in writing, will specify a deadline of 14 business days following receipt 
of the request, will describe the three forms of acceptable documentation, will provide 
explicit instructions on where and to whom the documentation must be submitted, and 
will state the consequences for failure to submit the documentation or request an 
extension in writing by the deadline. 

The PHA may, in its discretion, extend the deadline for 10 business days. In determining 
whether to extend the deadline, the PHA will consider factors that may contribute to the 
victim’s inability to provide documentation in a timely manner, including cognitive 
limitations, disabilities, limited English proficiency, absence from the unit, administrative 
delays, the danger of further violence, and the victim’s need to address health or safety 
issues. Any extension granted by the PHA will be in writing. 

Once the victim provides documentation, the PHA will acknowledge receipt of the 
documentation within 10 business days. 

615

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-49

Conflicting Documentation [24 CFR 5.2007(e)] 

In cases where the PHA receives conflicting certification documents from two or more members 
of a household, each claiming to be a victim and naming one or more of the other petitioning 
household members as the perpetrator, the PHA may determine which is the true victim by 
requiring each to provide acceptable third-party documentation, as described above (forms 2 and 
3). The PHA may also request third-party documentation when submitted documentation 
contains information that conflicts with existing information already available to the PHA. 
Individuals have 30 calendar days to return third-party verification to the PHA. If the PHA does 
not receive third-party documentation, and the PHA will deny or terminate assistance as a result, 
the PHA must hold separate hearings for the tenants [Notice PIH 2017-08]. 

The PHA must honor any court orders issued to protect the victim or to address the distribution 
of property. 

PHA Policy 

If presented with conflicting certification documents from members of the same 
household, the PHA will attempt to determine which is the true victim by requiring each 
of them to provide third-party documentation in accordance with 24 CFR 5.2007(e) and 
by following any HUD guidance on how such determinations should be made.  

When requesting third-party documents, the PHA will provide contact information for 
local domestic violence and legal aid offices. In such cases, applicants or tenants will be 
given 30 calendar days from the date of the request to provide such documentation. 

If the PHA does not receive third-party documentation within the required timeframe 
(and any extensions) the PHA will deny VAWA protections and will notify the applicant 
or tenant in writing of the denial. If, as a result, the applicant or tenant is denied or 
terminated from the program, the PHA will hold separate hearings for the applicants 
or tenants. 

Discretion to Require No Formal Documentation [24 CFR 5.2007(d)] 

The PHA has the discretion to provide benefits to an individual based solely on the individual’s 
statement or other corroborating evidence—i.e., without requiring formal documentation of 
abuse in accordance with 24 CFR 5.2007(b). HUD recommends documentation in a confidential 
manner when a verbal statement or other evidence is accepted. 

PHA Policy 

If the PHA accepts an individual’s statement or other corroborating evidence (as 
determined by the victim) of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or 
stalking, the PHA will document acceptance of the statement or evidence in the 
individual’s file.  

616

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-50

Failure to Provide Documentation [24 CFR 5.2007(c)] 

In order to deny relief for protection under VAWA, a PHA must provide the individual 
requesting relief with a written request for documentation of abuse. If the individual fails to 
provide the documentation within 14 business days from the date of receipt, or such longer time 
as the PHA may allow, the PHA may deny relief for protection under VAWA. 

16-IX.E. CONFIDENTIALITY [24 CFR 5.2007(b)(4)] 

All information provided to the PHA regarding domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault or stalking, including the fact that an individual is a victim of such violence or stalking, 
must be retained in confidence. This means that the PHA (1) may not enter the information into 
any shared database, (2) may not allow employees or others to access the information unless they 
are explicitly authorized to do so and have a need to know the information for purposes of their 
work, and (3) may not provide the information to any other entity or individual, except to the 
extent that the disclosure is (a) requested or consented to by the individual in writing, (b) 
required for use in an eviction proceeding, or (c) otherwise required by applicable law. 

PHA Policy 

If disclosure is required for use in an eviction proceeding or is otherwise required by 
applicable law, the PHA will inform the victim before disclosure occurs so that safety 
risks can be identified and addressed. 

617

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-51

EXHIBIT 16-1: SAMPLE NOTICE OF OCCUPANCY RIGHTS UNDER THE 
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT, FORM HUD-5380 

[Insert Name of Housing Provider] 

Notice of Occupancy Rights under the Violence Against Women Act1 

To all Tenants and Applicants 

The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) provides protections for victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  VAWA protections are not only available 
to women, but are available equally to all individuals regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual 
orientation.2  The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is the federal 
agency that oversees that the housing choice voucher program is in compliance with VAWA.  
This notice explains your rights under VAWA.  A HUD-approved certification form is attached 
to this notice.  You can fill out this form to show that you are or have been a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and that you wish to use your rights under 
VAWA.” 

Protections for Applicants 

If you otherwise qualify for assistance under the housing choice voucher program, you cannot be 
denied admission or denied assistance because you are or have been a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

Protections for Tenants 

If you are receiving assistance under the housing choice voucher program, you may not be 
denied assistance, terminated from participation, or be evicted from your rental housing because 
you are or have been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

Also, if you or an affiliated individual of yours is or has been the victim of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking by a member of your household or any guest, you 
may not be denied rental assistance or occupancy rights under the housing choice voucher 
program solely on the basis of criminal activity directly relating to that domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

Affiliated individual means your spouse, parent, brother, sister, or child, or a person to whom 
you stand in the place of a parent or guardian (for example, the affiliated individual is in your 
care, custody, or control); or any individual, tenant, or lawful occupant living in your household. 

                                                 
1 Despite the name of this law, VAWA protection is available regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual 
orientation. 
2 Housing providers cannot discriminate on the basis of any protected characteristic, including race, color, national 
origin, religion, sex, familial status, disability, or age.  HUD-assisted and HUD-insured housing must be made 
available to all otherwise eligible individuals regardless of actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, or 
marital status.  

618

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-52

Removing the Abuser or Perpetrator from the Household 

The PHA may divide (bifurcate) your lease in order to evict the individual or terminate the 
assistance of the individual who has engaged in criminal activity (the abuser or perpetrator) 
directly relating to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.   

If the PHA chooses to remove the abuser or perpetrator, the PHA may not take away the rights of 
eligible tenants to the unit or otherwise punish the remaining tenants.  If the evicted abuser or 
perpetrator was the sole tenant to have established eligibility for assistance under the program, 
the PHA must allow the tenant who is or has been a victim and other household members to 
remain in the unit for a period of time, in order to establish eligibility under the program or under 
another HUD housing program covered by VAWA, or, find alternative housing. 

In removing the abuser or perpetrator from the household, the PHA must follow federal, state, 
and local eviction procedures.  In order to divide a lease, the PHA may, but is not required to, 
ask you for documentation or certification of the incidences of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

Moving to Another Unit 

Upon your request, the PHA may permit you to move to another unit, subject to the availability 
of other units, and still keep your assistance.  In order to approve a request, the PHA may ask 
you to provide documentation that you are requesting to move because of an incidence of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  If the request is a request for 
emergency transfer, the housing provider may ask you to submit a written request or fill out a 
form where you certify that you meet the criteria for an emergency transfer under VAWA.  The 
criteria are: 

1. You are a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  
If your housing provider does not already have documentation that you are a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, your housing provider 
may ask you for such documentation, as described in the documentation section 
below. 

2. You expressly request the emergency transfer.  Your housing provider may choose 
to require that you submit a form, or may accept another written or oral request.   

3. You reasonably believe you are threatened with imminent harm from further 
violence if you remain in your current unit.  This means you have a reason to fear 
that if you do not receive a transfer you would suffer violence in the very near future.   

OR 

You are a victim of sexual assault and the assault occurred on the premises 
during the 90-calendar-day period before you request a transfer.  If you are a 
victim of sexual assault, then in addition to qualifying for an emergency transfer 
because you reasonably believe you are threatened with imminent harm from 
further violence if you remain in your unit, you may qualify for an emergency 
transfer if the sexual assault occurred on the premises of the property from which 
you are seeking your transfer, and that assault happened within the 90-calendar-
day period before you expressly request the transfer. 

619

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-53

The PHA will keep confidential requests for emergency transfers by victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and the location of any move by such 
victims and their families. 

The PHA’s emergency transfer plan provides further information on emergency transfers, and 
the PHA must make a copy of its emergency transfer plan available to you if you ask to see it. 

Documenting You Are or Have Been a Victim of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, 
Sexual Assault or Stalking 

The PHA can, but is not required to, ask you to provide documentation to “certify” that you are 
or have been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Such 
request from the PHA must be in writing, and the PHA must give you at least 14 business days 
(Saturdays, Sundays, and federal holidays do not count) from the day you receive the request to 
provide the documentation. The PHA may, but does not have to, extend the deadline for the 
submission of documentation upon your request. 

You can provide one of the following to the PHA as documentation.  It is your choice which of 
the following to submit if the PHA asks you to provide documentation that you are or have been 
a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

 A complete HUD-approved certification form given to you by the PHA with this notice, 
that documents an incident of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking. The form will ask for your name, the date, time, and location of the incident of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and a description of the 
incident.  The certification form provides for including the name of the abuser or 
perpetrator if the name of the abuser or perpetrator is known and is safe to provide.  

 A record of a Federal, State, tribal, territorial, or local law enforcement agency, court, or 
administrative agency that documents the incident of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking.  Examples of such records include police reports, protective 
orders, and restraining orders, among others. 

 A statement, which you must sign, along with the signature of an employee, agent, or 
vounteer of a victim service provider, an attorney, a medical professional or a mental 
helth professional (collectively, “professional”) from whom you sought assistance in 
addressing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, or the effects of 
abuse, and with the professional selected by you attesting under penalty of perjury that he 
or she believes that the incident or incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking are grounds for protection. 

 Any other statement or evidence that the PHA has agreed to accept.  

If you fail or refuse to provide one of these documents within the 14 business days, the PHA 
does not have to provide you with the protections contained in this notice.  

If the PHA receives conflicting evidence that an incident of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking has been committed (such as certification forms from two or more 
members of a household each claiming to be a victim and naming one or more of the other 
petitioning household members as the abuser or perpetrator), the PHA has the right to request 
that you provide third-party documentation within thirty 30 calendar days in order to resolve the 
conflict.  If you fail or refuse to provide third-party documentation where there is conflicting 
evidence, the PHA does not have to provide you with the protections contained in this notice. 

620

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-54

Confidentiality 

The PHA must keep confidential any information you provide related to the exercise of your 
rights under VAWA, including the fact that you are exercising your rights under VAWA.   

The PHA must not allow any individual administering assistance or other services on behalf of 
the PHA (for example, employees and contractors) to have access to confidential information 
unless for reasons that specifically call for these individuals to have access to this information 
under applicable Federal, State, or local law.  

The PHA must not enter your information into any shared database or disclose your information 
to any other entity or individual. The PHA, however, may disclose the information provided if: 

 You give written permission to the PHA to release the information on a time limited 
basis. 

 The PHA needs to use the information in an eviction or termination proceeding, such as 
to evict your abuser or perpetrator or terminate your abuser or perpetrator from assistance 
under this program. 

 A law requires the PHA or your landlord to release the information. 

VAWA does not limit the PHA’s duty to honor court orders about access to or control of the 
property. This includes orders issued to protect a victim and orders dividing property among 
household members in cases where a family breaks up. 

Reasons a Tenant Eligible for Occupancy Rights under VAWA May Be Evicted or 
Assistance May Be Terminated 

You can be evicted and your assistance can be terminated for serious or repeated lease violations 
that are not related to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking committed 
against you.  However, the PHA cannot hold tenants who have been victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking to a more demanding set of rules than it 
applies to tenants who have not been victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking.    

The protections described in this notice might not apply, and you could be evicted and your 
assistance terminated, if the PHA can demonstrate that not evicting you or terminating your 
assistance would present a real physical danger that: 

1. Would occur within an immediate time frame, and  

2. Could result in death or serious bodily harm to other tenants or those who work on the 
property. 

If the PHA can demonstrate the above, the PHA should only terminate your assistance or evict 
you if there are no other actions that could be taken to reduce or eliminate the threat. 

Other Laws 

VAWA does not replace any federal, state, or local law that provides greater protection for 
victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  You may be entitled to 
additional housing protections for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, 
or stalking under other Federal laws, as well as under State and local laws.   

621

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-55

Non-Compliance with The Requirements of This Notice 

You may report a covered housing provider’s violations of these rights and seek additional 
assistance, if needed, by contacting or filing a complaint with [insert contact information for 
any intermediary, if applicable] or [insert HUD field office].  

For Additional Information 

You may view a copy of HUD’s final VAWA rule at: https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2016-
11-16/pdf/2016-25888.pdf. 

Additionally, the PHA must make a copy of HUD’s VAWA regulations available to you if you 
ask to see them. 

For questions regarding VAWA, please contact [insert name of program or rental assistance 
contact information able to answer questions on VAWA]. 

For help regarding an abusive relationship, you may call the National Domestic Violence Hotline 
at 1-800-799-7233 or, for persons with hearing impairments, 1-800-787-3224 (TTY).  You may 
also contact [Insert contact information for relevant local organizations]. 

For tenants who are or have been victims of stalking seeking help may visit the National Center 
for Victims of Crime’s Stalking Resource Center at https://www.victimsofcrime.org/our-
programs/stalking-resource-center. 

For help regarding sexual assault, you may contact [Insert contact information for relevant 
organizations] 

Victims of stalking seeking help may contact [Insert contact information for relevant 
organizations]. 

Attachment:  Certification form HUD-5382 [form approved for this program to be included] 

622

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-56

 

623

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-57

EXHIBIT 16-2: CERTIFICATION OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, 
SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING AND ALTERNATE DOCUMENTATION,  

FORM HUD-5382 

CERTIFICATION OF              U.S. Department of Housing                    OMB Approval No. 2577-0286 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE,          and Urban Development                                              Exp. 06/30/2017 
DATING VIOLENCE, 
SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING,  
AND ALTERNATE DOCUMENTATION 

Purpose of Form:  The Violence Against Women Act (“VAWA”) protects applicants, tenants, and 
program participants in certain HUD programs from being evicted, denied housing assistance, or 
terminated from housing assistance based on acts of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking against them.  Despite the name of this law, VAWA protection is available to victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual 
orientation. 

Use of This Optional Form:  If you are seeking VAWA protections from your housing provider, your 
housing provider may give you a written request that asks you to submit documentation about the incident 
or incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.   

In response to this request, you or someone on your behalf may complete this optional form and submit it 
to your housing provider, or you may submit one of the following types of third-party documentation: 

(1) A document signed by you and an employee, agent, or volunteer of a victim service provider, an 
attorney, or medical professional, or a mental health professional (collectively, “professional”) from 
whom you have sought assistance relating to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking, or the effects of abuse.  The document must specify, under penalty of perjury, that the 
professional believes the incident or incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking occurred and meet the definition of “domestic violence,” “dating violence,” “sexual assault,” or 
“stalking” in HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR 5.2003.  

(2) A record of a Federal, State, tribal, territorial or local law enforcement agency, court, or 
administrative agency; or 

(3) At the discretion of the housing provider, a statement or other evidence provided by the applicant or 
tenant. 

Submission of Documentation:  The time period to submit documentation is 14 business days from the 
date that you receive a written request from your housing provider asking that you provide documentation 
of the occurrence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Your housing 
provider may, but is not required to, extend the time period to submit the documentation, if you request an 
extension of the time period.  If the requested information is not received within 14 business days of when 
you received the request for the documentation, or any extension of the date provided by your housing 
provider, your housing provider does not need to grant you any of the VAWA protections. Distribution or 
issuance of this form does not serve as a written request for certification. 

Confidentiality:  All information provided to your housing provider concerning the incident(s) of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking shall be kept confidential and such details 
shall not be entered into any shared database.  Employees of your housing provider are not to have access 
to these details unless to grant or deny VAWA protections to you, and such employees may not disclose 
this information to any other entity or individual, except to the extent that disclosure is: (i) consented to 
by you in writing in a time-limited release; (ii) required for use in an eviction proceeding or hearing 
regarding termination of assistance; or (iii) otherwise required by applicable law. 

624

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-58

TO BE COMPLETED BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE VICTIM OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, 
DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING  

1.  Date the written request is received by victim: _________________________________________ 

2.  Name of victim: ___________________________________________________________________ 

3.  Your name (if different from victim’s):________________________________________________ 

4.  Name(s) of other family member(s) listed on the lease:___________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

5.  Residence of victim: ________________________________________________________________ 

6.  Name of the accused perpetrator (if known and can be safely disclosed):____________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

7.  Relationship of the accused perpetrator to the victim:___________________________________ 

8.  Date(s) and times(s) of incident(s) (if known):___________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________ 

10.  Location of incident(s):_____________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This is to certify that the information provided on this form is true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge and recollection, and that the individual named above in Item 2 is or has been a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. I acknowledge that submission of false 
information could jeopardize program eligibility and could be the basis for denial of admission, 
termination of assistance, or eviction. 

 

Signature __________________________________Signed on (Date) ___________________________ 

Public Reporting Burden:  The public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to 
average 1 hour per response.  This includes the time for collecting, reviewing, and reporting the data.  The 
information provided is to be used by the housing provider to request certification that the applicant or 
tenant is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  The information is 
subject to the confidentiality requirements of VAWA. This agency may not collect this information, and 
you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid Office of Management and 
Budget control number. 

In your own words, briefly describe the incident(s):  

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________

625

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-59

EXHIBIT 16-3: EMERGENCY TRANSFER PLAN FOR VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC 
VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING  

(HCV VERSION) 

Attachment: Certification form HUD-5382 

[Insert name of covered housing provider] 
 

Emergency Transfer Plan for Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual 

Assault, or Stalking 

Housing Choice Voucher Program 

Emergency Transfers 

The PHA is concerned about the safety of its tenants, and such concern extends to tenants who 
are victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. In accordance with 
the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA),3 the PHA allows tenants who are victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking to request an emergency transfer 
from the tenant’s current unit to another unit. The ability to request a transfer is available 
regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual orientation.4  The ability of the PHA to honor such 
request for tenants currently receiving assistance, however, may depend upon a preliminary 
determination that the tenant is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking, and on whether the PHA has another dwelling unit that is available 
and is safe to offer the tenant for temporary or more permanent occupancy. 

This plan identifies tenants who are eligible for an emergency transfer, the documentation 
needed to request an emergency transfer, confidentiality protections, how an emergency transfer 
may occur, and guidance to tenants on safety and security. This plan is based on a model 
emergency transfer plan published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD), the federal agency that oversees that the public housing and housing choice voucher 
(HCV) programs are in compliance with VAWA. 

Eligibility for Emergency Transfers 

A tenant who is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as 
provided in HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR part 5, subpart L, is eligible for an emergency transfer 
if the tenant reasonably believes that there is a threat of imminent harm from further violence if 
the tenant remains within the same unit. If the tenant is a victim of sexual assault, the tenant may 
also be eligible to transfer if the sexual assault occurred on the premises within the 90-calendar- 
day period preceding a request for an emergency transfer. 

                                                 
3Despite the name of this law, VAWA protection is available to all victims of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, and stalking, regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual orientation. 
4Housing providers cannot discriminate on the basis of any protected characteristic, including race, color, national 
origin, religion, sex, familial status, disability, or age. HUD-assisted and HUD-insured housing must be made 
available to all otherwise eligible individuals regardless of actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, or 
marital status. 

626

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-60

A tenant requesting an emergency transfer must expressly request the transfer in accordance 
with the procedures described in this plan. 

Tenants who are not in good standing may still request an emergency transfer if they meet the 
eligibility requirements in this section. 

Emergency Transfer Request Documentation 

To request an emergency transfer, the tenant shall notify the PHA’s management office and 
submit a written request for a transfer to any PHA office. The PHA will provide reasonable 
accommodations to this policy for individuals with disabilities. The tenant’s written request for 
an emergency transfer should include either: 

1.   A statement expressing that the tenant reasonably believes that there is a threat of 
imminent harm from further violence if the tenant were to remain in the same 
dwelling unit assisted under the PHA’s program; OR 

2.   A statement that the tenant was a sexual assault victim and that the sexual 
assault occurred on the premises during the 90-calendar-day period preceding 
the tenant’s request for an emergency transfer. 

Confidentiality 

The PHA will keep confidential any information that the tenant submits in requesting an 
emergency transfer, and information about the emergency transfer, unless the tenant gives the 
PHA written permission to release the information on a time-limited basis, or disclosure of the 
information is required by law or required for use in an eviction proceeding or hearing regarding 
termination of assistance from the covered program. This includes keeping confidential the new 
location of the dwelling unit of the tenant, if one is provided, from the person or persons that 
committed an act of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking against the 
tenant. See the Notice of Occupancy Rights under the Violence against Women Act for All 
Tenants for more information about the PHA’s responsibility to maintain the confidentiality of 
information related to incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

Emergency Transfer Timing and Availability 

The PHA cannot guarantee that a transfer request will be approved or how long it will take to 
process a transfer request. The PHA will, however, act as quickly as possible to move a tenant 
who is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking to another unit, 
subject to availability and safety of a unit. If a tenant reasonably believes a proposed transfer 
would not be safe, the tenant may request a transfer to a different unit. If a unit is available, the 
transferred tenant must agree to abide by the terms and conditions that govern occupancy in the 
unit to which the tenant has been transferred. The PHA may be unable to transfer a tenant to a 
particular unit if the tenant has not or cannot establish eligibility for that unit. 

If the PHA has no safe and available units for which a tenant who needs an emergency transfer is 
eligible, the PHA will assist the tenant in identifying other housing providers who may have safe 
and available units to which the tenant could move. At the tenant’s request, the PHA will also 
assist tenants in contacting the local organizations offering assistance to victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking that are attached to this plan. 

627

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-61

Emergency Transfers: Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program  

Tenant-based assistance: If you are a participant in the tenant-based HCV program and request 
an emergency transfer as described in this plan, the PHA will assist you to move to a safe unit 
quickly using your existing voucher assistance. The PHA will make exceptions to program 
regulations restricting moves as required. 

At your request, the PHA will refer you to organizations that may be able to further assist you. 

Project-based assistance: If you are assisted under the project-based voucher (PBV) program, you 
may request an emergency transfer under the following programs for which you are not required 
to apply: 

 Tenant-based voucher, if available 
 Project-based assistance in the same project (if a vacant unit is available and you 

determine that the vacant unit is safe) 
 Project-based assistance in another development owned by the PHA 

Emergency transfers under VAWA will take priority over waiting list admissions for these types 
of assistance. 

You may also request an emergency transfer under the following programs for which you are 
required to apply: 

 Public housing program 
 PBV assistance in another development not owned by the PHA 
 [Insert other programs the PHA provides, such as LIHTC or HOME] 

Emergency transfers will not take priority over waiting list admissions for these programs. At 
your request, the PHA will refer you to organizations that may be able to further assist you. 

Safety and Security of Tenants 

Pending processing of the transfer and the actual transfer, if it is approved and occurs, the tenant 
is urged to take all reasonable precautions to be safe. 

Tenants who are or have been victims of domestic violence are encouraged to contact the 
National Domestic Violence Hotline at 1-800-799-7233, or a local domestic violence shelter, for 
assistance in creating a safety plan. For persons with hearing impairments, that hotline can be 
accessed by calling 1-800-787-3224 (TTY). 

Tenants who have been victims of sexual assault may call the Rape, Abuse, and Incest National 
Network’s National Sexual Assault Hotline at 1-800-656-HOPE, or visit the online hotline at: 
https://ohl.rainn.org/online/. 

Tenants who are or have been victims of stalking seeking help may visit the National Center for 
Victims of Crime’s Stalking Resource Center at: https://www.victimsofcrime.org/our-
programs/stalking-resource-center. 
Attachment: Local organizations offering assistance to victims of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

628

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-62

 

629

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-63

EXHIBIT 16-4: EMERGENCY TRANSFER REQUEST FOR CERTAIN VICTIMS OF 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING, 
FORM HUD-5383 

EMERGENCY TRANSFER           U.S. Department of Housing               OMB Approval No. 2577-0286 
REQUEST FOR CERTAIN               and Urban Development                                        Exp. 06/30/2017 
VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC  
VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE,  
SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING 

Purpose of Form: If you are a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, 
and you are seeking an emergency transfer, you may use this form to request an emergency transfer and 
certify that you meet the requirements of eligibility for an emergency transfer under the Violence Against 
Women Act (VAWA).  Although the statutory name references women, VAWA rights and protections 
apply to all victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking. Using this form does 
not necessarily mean that you will receive an emergency transfer.  See your housing provider’s 
emergency transfer plan for more information about the availability of emergency transfers.    

The requirements you must meet are: 

(1) You are a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  
If your housing provider does not already have documentation that you are a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, your housing provider 
may ask you for such documentation.  In response, you may submit Form HUD-5382, or 
any one of the other types of documentation listed on that Form. 

(2) You expressly request the emergency transfer.  Submission of this form confirms 
that you have expressly requested a transfer.  Your housing provider may choose to 
require that you submit this form, or may accept another written or oral request.  Please 
see your housing provider’s emergency transfer plan for more details. 

(3) You reasonably believe you are threatened with imminent harm from further 
violence if you remain in your current unit.  This means you have a reason to fear that 
if you do not receive a transfer you would suffer violence in the very near future.   

OR 

You are a victim of sexual assault and the assault occurred on the premises during 
the 90-calendar-day period before you request a transfer.  If you are a victim of 
sexual assault, then in addition to qualifying for an emergency transfer because you 
reasonably believe you are threatened with imminent harm from further violence if you 
remain in your unit, you may qualify for an emergency transfer if the sexual assault 
occurred on the premises of the property from which you are seeking your transfer, and 
that assault happened within the 90-calendar-day period before you submit this form or 
otherwise expressly request the transfer.      

Submission of Documentation:  If you have third-party documentation that demonstrates why you are 
eligible for an emergency transfer, you should submit that documentation to your housing provider if it is 
safe for you to do so.  Examples of third party documentation include, but are not limited to: a letter or 
other documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral 
counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom you have sought assistance; a current 
restraining order; a recent court order or other court records; a law enforcement report or records; 
communication records from the perpetrator of the violence or family members or friends of the 
perpetrator of the violence, including emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts. 

630

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-64

Confidentiality:  All information provided to your housing provider concerning the incident(s) of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and concerning your request for an 
emergency transfer shall be kept confidential.  Such details shall not be entered into any shared database.  
Employees of your housing provider are not to have access to these details unless to grant or deny VAWA 
protections or an emergency transfer to you.  Such employees may not disclose this information to any 
other entity or individual, except to the extent that disclosure is: (i) consented to by you in writing in a 
time-limited release; (ii) required for use in an eviction proceeding or hearing regarding termination of 
assistance; or (iii) otherwise required by applicable law.   

TO BE COMPLETED BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE PERSON REQUESTING A TRANSFER  

1.  Name of victim requesting an emergency transfer: ______________________________________ 

2.  Your name (if different from victim’s)_________________________________________________ 

3.  Name(s) of other family member(s) listed on the lease:____________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

4.  Name(s) of other family member(s) who would transfer with the victim:____________________  

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

5.  Address of location from which the victim seeks to transfer: _______________________________________ 

6.  Address or phone number for contacting the victim:____________________________________  

7.  Name of the accused perpetrator (if known and can be safely disclosed):___________________ 

8.  Relationship of the accused perpetrator to the victim:___________________________________  

9.  Date(s), Time(s) and location(s) of incident(s):___________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

10.  Is the person requesting the transfer a victim of a sexual assault that occurred in the past 90 
days on the premises of the property from which the victim is seeking a transfer? If yes, skip 
question 11. If no, fill out question 11. ______________ 

11.  Describe why the victim believes they are threatened with imminent harm from further 
violence if they remain in their current unit.   

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

12.  If voluntarily provided, list any third-party documentation you are providing along with this 

notice: ___________________________________________________________________ 

631

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-65

This is to certify that the information provided on this form is true and correct to the best of my 
knowledge, and that the individual named above in Item 1 meets the requirement laid out on this form for 
an emergency transfer.  I acknowledge that submission of false information could jeopardize program 
eligibility and could be the basis for denial of admission, termination of assistance, or eviction.  

 

Signature __________________________________Signed on (Date) ___________________________ 

632

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-66

 

633

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-67

 MODEL OWNER NOTIFICATION OF RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

[Insert Name of Housing Provider] 

NOTIFICATION OF YOUR RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

UNDER THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT (VAWA) 

VAWA provides protections for Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) and PBV applicants, 
tenants, and participants from being denied assistance on the basis or as a direct result of being a 
victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking.  

Purpose 

Many of VAWA’s protections to victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and 
stalking involve action by the public housing agency (PHA), but some situations involve action by 
owners of assisted housing.  The purpose of this notice (herein called “Notice”) is to explain your 
rights and obligations under VAWA, as an owner of housing assisted through [insert name of 
housing provider] HCV program.  Each component of this Notice also provides citations to HUD’s 
applicable regulations. 

Denial of Tenancy  

Protections for applicants: Owners cannot deny tenancy based on the applicant having been or 
currently being a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  However, 
the applicant must be otherwise eligible for tenancy.  (See 24 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 
982.452(b)(1).)  

Eviction  

Protections for HCV participants: Incidents or threats of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking will not be considered a serious or repeated lease violation by the victim, or good 
cause to terminate the tenancy of the victim (24 CFR 5.2005(c)).  Protection also applies to criminal 
activity related directly to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, conducted 
by a member of a tenant’s household or any guest or other person under the tenant’s control, if the 
tenant or an affiliated individual of the tenant is the victim or threatened victim of such domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking (24 CFR 5.2005(b)(2)).  

Limitations of VAWA protections: 

a. Nothing in the VAWA Final Rule limits the authority of an owner, when notified of a court order, 
to comply with a court order with respect to (24 CFR 5.2005(d)(1)):  

1) The rights of access or control of property, including civil protection orders issued to protect a 
victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking; or  

2) The distribution or possession of property among members of a household in a case.   

b. Nothing in the VAWA Final Rule limits an owner from evicting a victim of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking for a lease violation that is not premised on an act of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as long as the owner does not subject 
the victim to more demanding standards than other tenants when deciding whether to evict.  (See 24 
CFR 5.2005(d)(2).)  

c. Nothing in the VAWA Final Rule limits an owner from evicting a tenant (including the victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking) if the owner can demonstrate an actual 
and imminent threat to other tenants or those employed at or providing services to the HCV property 
would be present if the tenant or lawful occupant is not evicted.  (See 24 CFR 5.2005(d)(3).)  

634

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-68

i. In this context, words, gestures, actions, or other indicators will be considered an “actual and 
imminent threat” if they meet the following standards:  An actual and imminent threat consists of a 
physical danger that is real, would occur within an immediate time frame, and could result in death or 
serious bodily harm.  In determining whether an individual would pose an actual and imminent 
threat, the factors to be considered include: the duration of the risk, the nature and severity of the 
potential harm, the likelihood that the potential harm will occur, and the length of time before the 
potential harm would occur. (See 24 CFR 5.2003.)  

ii. Any eviction due to “actual and imminent threat” should be utilized by an owner only when there 
are no other actions that could be taken to reduce or eliminate the threat, including, but not limited to, 
transferring the victim to a different unit, barring the perpetrator from the property, contacting law 
enforcement to increase police presence or develop other plans to keep the property safe, or seeking 
other legal remedies to prevent the perpetrator from acting on a threat.  Restrictions predicated on 
public safety cannot be based on stereotypes, but must be tailored to particularized concerns about 
individual residents. (See 24 CFR 5.2005(d)(4).)  

Documentation of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking  

If an applicant or tenant requests VAWA protection based on status as a victim of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, the owner has the option to request that the victim 
document or provide written evidence to demonstrate that the violence occurred.  However, nothing 
in HUD’s regulation requires a covered housing provider to request this documentation. (See 24 CFR 
5.2007(b)(3).)    

If the owner chooses to request this documentation, the owner must make such request in writing.  
The individual may satisfy this request by providing any one document type listed under 24 CFR 
5.2007(b)(1):  

a. Form HUD-55383 (Self-Certification Form); or    

b. A document: 1) Signed by an employee, agent, or volunteer of a victim service provider, an 
attorney, or medical professional or a mental health professional (collectively, “professional”) from 
whom the victim has sought assistance relating to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, 
or stalking, or the effects of abuse:  

2) Signed by the applicant or tenant; and  

3) That specifies, under penalty of perjury, that the professional believes in the occurrence of the 
incident of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking that is the ground for 
protection and remedies under 24 CFR part 5, subpart L, and that the incident meets the applicable 
definition of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking under 24 CFR 5.2003; or   

c. A record of a Federal, State, tribal, territorial or local law enforcement agency, court, or 
administrative agency; or  

d. At the discretion of a covered housing provider, a statement or other evidence provided by the 
applicant or tenant. 

The owner must accept any of the above items (a – c).  The owner has discretion to accept a 
statement or other evidence (d).    

The owner is prohibited from requiring third-party documentation of the domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, unless the submitted documentation contains conflicting 
information.   

635

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-69

If the owner makes a written request for documentation, the owner may require submission of that 
documentation within 14 business days after the date that the individual received the written request 
for documentation. (24 CFR 5.2007(a)(2)).  The owner may extend this time period at its discretion.  
During the 14 business day period and any granted extensions of that time, no adverse actions, such 
as evictions or terminations, can be taken against the individual requesting VAWA protection.    

Once a victim provides documentation of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking, the owner is encouraged to acknowledge receipt of the documentation in a timely manner.    

If the applicant or tenant fails to provide documentation that meets the criteria in 24 CFR 5.2007 
within 14 business days after receiving the written request for that documentation or within the 
designated extension period, nothing in VAWA Final Rule may be construed to limit the authority of 
the covered housing provider to:  

a. Deny admission by the applicant or tenant to the housing or program;  

b. Deny assistance under the covered housing program to the applicant or tenant;  

c. Terminate the participation of the tenant in the covered housing program; or   

d. Evict the tenant, or a lawful occupant that commits a violation of a lease.    

An individual’s failure to timely provide documentation of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking does not result in a waiver of the individual’s right to challenge the denial 
of assistance or termination, nor does it preclude the individual’s ability to raise an incident of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking at eviction or termination proceedings.    

Moves 

A victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking may move in violation of 
their lease if the move is required to protect their safety.  If a move results in the termination of the 
Housing Assistance Payment Contract, the lease is automatically terminated.    

Lease Bifurcation   

Owners may choose to bifurcate a lease, or remove a household member from a lease in order to 
evict, remove, terminate occupancy rights, or terminate assistance to such member who engages in 
criminal activity directly relating to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking 
against an affiliated individual or other individual. (See 24 CFR 5.2009(a).)  If an owner chooses to 
bifurcate the lease, the owner must comply with the reasonable time to establish eligibility under the 
covered housing program or find alternative housing following lease bifurcation provision in 24 CFR 
5.2009(b).  VAWA protections, including bifurcation, do not apply to guests or unreported members 
of a household or anyone else residing in a household who is not a tenant.    

Eviction, removal, termination of occupancy rights, or termination of assistance must be effected in 
accordance with the procedures prescribed by federal, state, or local law for termination of leases.  

To avoid unnecessary delay in the bifurcation process, HUD recommends that owners seek 
court-ordered eviction of the perpetrator pursuant to applicable laws.  This process results in 
the underlying lease becoming null and void once the owner regains possession of the unit.  
The owner would then execute a new lease with the victim.    

636

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-70

Evictions Due to “Actual and Imminent Threat” or Violations Not Premised on Abuse   

The VAWA Final Rule generally prohibits eviction on the basis or as a direct result of the 
fact that the applicant or tenant is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking, if the applicant or tenant otherwise qualifies for assistance, 
participation or occupancy.  (See 24 CFR 5.2005.)   

However, the VAWA Final Rule does not prohibit an owner from evicting a tenant for any 
violation not premised on an act of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking that is in question against the tenant or an affiliated individual of the tenant.  Nor 
does the VAWA Final Rule prohibit an owner from evicting a tenant if the owner can 
demonstrate an actual and imminent threat to other tenants or those employed at or providing 
services to property of the owner would be present if that tenant or lawful occupant is not 
evicted or terminated from assistance.  (See 5.2005(d)(2) and (3).)  

In order to demonstrate an actual and imminent threat to other tenants or employees at the 
property, the covered housing provider must have objective evidence of words, gestures, 
actions, or other indicators that meet the standards in the following definition:   

Actual and imminent threat refers to a physical danger that is real, would occur within an 
immediate time frame, and could result in death or serious bodily harm.  In determining 
whether an individual would pose an actual and imminent threat, the factors to be considered 
include:  

 The duration of the risk;  

 The nature and severity of the potential harm;  

 The likelihood that the potential harm will occur; and  

 The length of time before the potential harm would occur.  

 (See 24 CFR 5.2003 and 5.2005(d)(2).) 

Confidentiality  

Any information submitted to a covered housing provider under 24 CFR 5.2007, including 
the fact that an individual is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking, must be maintained in strict confidence by the covered housing provider.  (See 24 
CFR 5.2007(c).) 

Employees of the owner (or those within their employ, e.g., contractors) must not have access 
to the information unless explicitly authorized by the owner for reasons that specifically call 
for these individuals to have access to this information under applicable Federal, State, or 
local law (e.g., the information is needed by an employee to provide the VAWA protections 
to the victim). 

The owner must not enter this information into any shared database, or disclose this 
information to any other entity or individual, except to the extent that disclosure is: 

a. Requested or consented to in writing by the individual (victim) in a time-limited release; 

b. Required for use in an eviction proceeding or hearing regarding termination of assistance from the 
covered program; or 

c. Otherwise required by applicable law. 

When communicating with the victim, owners must take precautions to ensure compliance with these 
confidentiality requirements. 

637

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-71

Service Providers  

[insert name of housing provider] has extensive relationships with local service providers. 
[insert name of housing provider] staff are available to provide referrals to shelters, 
counselors, and advocates.  These resources are also provided in [insert name of housing 
provider] Annual and 5-Year Plan, Administrative Plan, VAWA Notice of Occupancy 
Rights, and Emergency Transfer Plan.  A list of local service providers is attached to this 
Notice. 

Definitions  

Actual and imminent threat refers to a physical danger that is real, would occur within an 
immediate time frame, and could result in death or serious bodily harm. In determining 
whether an individual would pose an actual and imminent threat, the factors to be considered 
include: the duration of the risk, the nature and severity of the potential harm, the likelihood 
that the potential harm will occur, and the length of time before the potential harm would 
occur. 

Affiliated individual, with respect to an individual, means: 
(1) A spouse, parent, brother, sister, or child of that individual, or a person to whom that individual 
stands in the place of a parent or guardian (for example, the affiliated individual is a person in the 
care, custody, or control of that individual); or  
(2) Any individual, tenant, or lawful occupant living in the household of that individual. 

Bifurcate means to divide a lease as a matter of law, subject to the permissibility of such 
process under the requirements of the applicable HUD-covered program and State or local 
law, such that certain tenants or lawful occupants can be evicted or removed and the 
remaining tenants or lawful occupants can continue to reside in the unit under the same lease 
requirements or as may be revised depending upon the eligibility for continued occupancy of 
the remaining tenants and lawful occupants. 

Dating violence means violence committed by a person: 

(1) Who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim; and  

(2) Where the existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on a consideration of the 
following factors:  

(i) The length of the relationship; 

(ii) The type of relationship; and 

(iii) The frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship. 

Domestic violence includes felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a 
current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim, by a person with whom the victim 
shares a child in common, by a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the 
victim as a spouse or intimate partner, by a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim 
under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction receiving grant monies, or by 
any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that person's acts 
under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction.  The term “spouse or intimate 
partner of the victim” includes a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a 
romantic or intimate nature with the victim, as determined by the length of the relationship, 
the type of the relationship, and the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in 
the relationship. 

638

Item 15.



© Copyright 2020 Nan McKay & Associates, Inc. Adminplan 4/1/20 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

Page 16-72

Sexual assault means any nonconsensual sexual act proscribed by Federal, tribal, or State law, 
including when the victim lacks capacity to consent.  

Stalking means engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would 
cause a reasonable person to:  
(1) Fear for the person’s individual safety or the safety of others; or   
(2) Suffer substantial emotional distress.  

VAWA means the Violence Against Women Act of 1994, as amended (42 U.S.C. 13925 and 
42 U.S.C. 14043e et seq.).  

Attached:  
Legal services and the domestic violence resources for the Metro area  
Form HUD-5382 Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking  
[insert name of housing provider] VAWA Notice of Occupancy Rights 

639

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-1

GLOSSARY 

A. ACRONYMS USED IN THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER (HCV) PROGRAM 

AAF Annual adjustment factor (published by HUD in the Federal Register and used to 
compute annual rent adjustments) 

ACC Annual contributions contract 

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 

AIDS Acquired immune deficiency syndrome 

BR Bedroom 

CDBG Community Development Block Grant (Program) 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations (published federal rules that define and implement 
laws; commonly referred to as “the regulations”) 

CPI Consumer price index (published monthly by the Department of Labor as an 
inflation indicator) 

EID Earned income disallowance 

EIV Enterprise Income Verification 

FDIC Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 

FHA Federal Housing Administration (HUD Office of Housing) 

FHEO Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity (HUD Office of) 

FICA Federal Insurance Contributions Act (established Social Security taxes) 

FMR Fair market rent 

FR Federal Register 

FSS Family Self-Sufficiency (Program) 

FY Fiscal year 

FYE Fiscal year end 

GAO Government Accountability Office 

GR Gross rent 

HA Housing authority or housing agency 

HAP Housing assistance payment 

HCV Housing choice voucher 

HQS Housing quality standards 

HUD Department of Housing and Urban Development 

HUDCLIPS HUD Client Information and Policy System 

640

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-2

IPA Independent public accountant 

IRA Individual retirement account 

IRS Internal Revenue Service 

JTPA Job Training Partnership Act 

LBP Lead-based paint 

LEP Limited English proficiency 

MSA Metropolitan statistical area (established by the U.S. Census Bureau) 

MTCS Multi-family Tenant Characteristics System (now the Form HUD-50058 
submodule of the PIC system) 

MTW Moving to Work 

NOFA Notice of funding availability 

OGC HUD's Office of General Counsel 

OIG HUD’s Office of Inspector General 

OMB  Office of Management and Budget 

PASS Plan to Achieve Self-Support 

PHA Public housing agency 

PIC PIH Information Center 

PIH (HUD Office of) Public and Indian Housing 

PS Payment standard 

QC Quality control 

REAC (HUD) Real Estate Assessment Center 

RFP Request for proposals 

RFTA Request for tenancy approval 

RIGI Regional inspector general for investigation (handles fraud and program abuse 
matters for HUD at the regional office level) 

SEMAP Section 8 Management Assessment Program 

SRO Single room occupancy 

SSA Social Security Administration 

SSI Supplemental security income 

SWICA State wage information collection agency 

641

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-3

TANF Temporary assistance for needy families 

TPV Tenant protection vouchers 

TR Tenant rent 

TTP Total tenant payment 

UA Utility allowance 

UFAS Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards 

UIV Upfront income verification 

URP Utility reimbursement payment 

VAWA Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013 

642

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-4

B. GLOSSARY OF SUBSIDIZED HOUSING TERMS 

Absorption. In portability (under subpart H of this part 982): the point at which a receiving PHA 
stops billing the initial PHA for assistance on behalf of a portability family. The receiving 
PHA uses funds available under the receiving PHA consolidated ACC. 

Accessible. The facility or portion of the facility can be approached, entered, and used by persons 
with disabilities. 

Adjusted income. Annual income, less allowable HUD deductions and allowances. 

Administrative fee. Fee paid by HUD to the PHA for administration of the program. See 
§982.152. 

Administrative plan. The plan that describes PHA policies for administration of the tenant-based 
programs. The Administrative Plan and any revisions must be approved by the PHA’s board 
and included as a supporting document to the PHA Plan. See §982.54. 

Admission. The point when the family becomes a participant in the program. The date used for 
this purpose is the effective date of the first HAP contract for a family (first day of initial 
lease term) in a tenant-based program. 

Affiliated individual. With respect to an individual, a spouse, parent, brother, sister, or child of 
that individual, or an individual to whom that individual stands in loco parentis (in the place  
of a parent), or any individual, tenant, or lawful occupant living in the household of 
that individual 

Amortization payment. In a manufactured home space rental: The monthly debt service payment 
by the family to amortize the purchase price of the manufactured home. 

Annual. Happening once a year. 

Annual contributions contract (ACC). The written contract between HUD and a PHA under 
which HUD agrees to provide funding for a program under the 1937 Act, and the PHA 
agrees to comply with HUD requirements for the program. 

Annual income. The anticipated total income of an eligible family from all sources for the  
12-month period following the date of determination of income, computed in accordance 
with the regulations. 

Applicant (applicant family). A family that has applied for admission to a program but is not yet 
a participant in the program. 

Area exception rent. An amount that exceeds the published FMR. See 24 CFR 982.504(b). 

As-paid states. States where the welfare agency adjusts the shelter and utility component of the 
welfare grant in accordance with actual housing costs. 

Assets. (See net family assets.) 

Auxiliary aids. Services or devices that enable persons with impaired sensory, manual, or 
speaking skills to have an equal opportunity to participate in, and enjoy the benefits of, 
programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance. 

Biennial. Happening every two years. 

643

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-5

Bifurcate. With respect to a public housing or Section 8 lease, to divide a lease as a matter of 
law such that certain tenants can be evicted or removed while the remaining family members’ 
lease and occupancy rights are allowed to remain intact. 

Budget authority. An amount authorized and appropriated by the Congress for payment to PHAs 
under the program. For each funding increment in a PHA program, budget authority is the 
maximum amount that may be paid by HUD to the PHA over the ACC term of the funding 
increment. 

Child. A member of the family other than the family head or spouse who is under 18 years of 
age. 

Child care expenses. Amounts anticipated to be paid by the family for the care of children under 
13 years of age during the period for which annual income is computed, but only where such 
care is necessary to enable a family member to actively seek employment, be gainfully 
employed, or to further his or her education and only to the extent such amounts are not 
reimbursed. The amount deducted shall reflect reasonable charges for child care. In the case 
of child care necessary to permit employment, the amount deducted shall not exceed the 
amount of employment income that is included in annual income. 

Citizen. A citizen or national of the United States. 

Cohead. An individual in the household who is equally responsible for the lease with the head of 
household. A family may have a cohead or spouse but not both. A cohead never qualifies as a 
dependent. The cohead must have legal capacity to enter into a lease. 

Common space. In shared housing, the space available for use by the assisted family and other 
occupants of the unit. 

Computer match. The automated comparison of databases containing records about individuals. 

Confirmatory review. An on-site review performed by HUD to verify the management 
performance of a PHA. 

Consent form. Any consent form approved by HUD to be signed by assistance applicants and 
participants to obtain income information from employers and SWICAs; return information 
from the Social Security Administration (including wages, net earnings from self-
employment, and retirement income); and return information for unearned income from the 
IRS. Consent forms expire after a certain time and may authorize the collection of other 
information to determine eligibility or level of benefits. 

Congregate housing. Housing for elderly persons or persons with disabilities that meets the 
HQS for congregate housing. A special housing type: see 24 CFR 982.606–609. 

Contiguous MSA. In portability (under subpart H of part 982): An MSA that shares a common 
boundary with the MSA in which the jurisdiction of the initial PHA is located. 

Continuously assisted. An applicant is continuously assisted under the 1937 Act if the family is 
already receiving assistance under any 1937 Housing Act program when the family is 
admitted to the voucher program. 

Contract authority. The maximum annual payment by HUD to a PHA for a funding increment. 

644

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-6

Cooperative (term includes mutual housing). Housing owned by a nonprofit corporation or 
association, and where a member of the corporation or association has the right to reside in a 
particular apartment, and to participate in management of the housing. A special housing 
type (see 24 CFR 982.619). 

Covered families. Statutory term for families who are required to participate in a welfare agency 
economic self-sufficiency program and who may be subject to a welfare benefit sanction for 
noncompliance with this obligation. Includes families who receive welfare assistance or other 
public assistance under a program for which federal, state or local law requires that a member 
of the family must participate in an economic self-sufficiency program as a condition for the 
assistance. 

Dating violence. Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a 
romantic or intimate nature with the victim; and where the existence of such a relationship 
shall be determined based on a consideration of the following factors:  

- The length of the relationship 

- The type of relationship 

- The frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship 

Dependent. A member of the family (except foster children and foster adults) other than the 
family head or spouse, who is under 18 years of age, or is a person with a disability, or is a 
full-time student. 

Dependent child. In the context of the student eligibility restrictions, a dependent child of a 
student enrolled in an institution of higher education. The dependent child must also meet the 
definition of dependent as specified above. 

Disability assistance expenses. Reasonable expenses that are anticipated, during the period for 
which annual income is computed, for attendant care and auxiliary apparatus for a disabled 
family member, and that are necessary to enable a family member (including the disabled 
member) to be employed, provided that the expenses are neither paid to a member of the 
family nor reimbursed by an outside source. 

Disabled family. A family whose head, cohead, spouse, or sole member is a person with 
disabilities; two or more persons with disabilities living together; or one or more persons 
with disabilities living with one or more live-in aides. 

Disabled person. See person with disabilities. 

Disallowance. Exclusion from annual income.  

Displaced family. A family in which each member, or whose sole member, is a person displaced 
by governmental action, or a person whose dwelling has been extensively damaged or 
destroyed as a result of a disaster declared or otherwise formally recognized pursuant to 
federal disaster relief laws. 

Domestic violence. Felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a current or former 
spouse of the victim, by a person with whom the victim shares a child in common, by a 
person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse, by a person 
similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the 
jurisdiction receiving grant monies, or by any other person against an adult or youth victim 

645

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-7

who is protected from that person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the 
jurisdiction. 

Domicile. The legal residence of the household head or spouse as determined in accordance with 
state and local law. 

Drug-related criminal activity. The illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, or use of a drug, or 
the possession of a drug with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute, or use the drug. 

Economic self-sufficiency program. Any program designed to encourage, assist, train or 
facilitate the economic independence of assisted families, or to provide work for such 
families. Can include job training, employment counseling, work placement, basic skills 
training, education, English proficiency, Workfare, financial or household management, 
apprenticeship, or any other program necessary to ready a participant to work (such as 
treatment for drug abuse or mental health treatment). Includes any work activities as defined 
in the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 607(d)). Also see 24 CFR 5.603(c). 

Elderly family. A family whose head, cohead, spouse, or sole member is a person who is at least 
62 years of age; two or more persons who are at least 62 years of age living together; or one 
or more persons who are at least 62 years of age living with one or more live-in aides. 

Elderly person. An individual who is at least 62 years of age. 

Eligible family A family that is income eligible and meets the other requirements of the 1937 
Act and Part 5 of 24 CFR. See also family. 

Employer identification number (EIN). The nine-digit taxpayer identifying number that is 
assigned to an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company, or corporation. 

Evidence of citizenship or eligible status. The documents which must be submitted as evidence 
of citizenship or eligible immigration status. See 24 CFR 5.508(b).  

Extremely low-income family. A family whose annual income does not exceed the federal 
poverty level or 30 percent of the median income for the area, whichever number is higher. 
Area median income is determined by HUD, with adjustments for smaller and larger 
families. HUD may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 30 percent of median 
income if HUD finds such variations are necessary due to unusually high or low family 
incomes. See 24 CFR 5.603. 

Facility. All or any portion of buildings, structures, equipment, roads, walks, parking lots, rolling 
stock, or other real or personal property or interest in the property. 

Fair Housing Act.  Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing 
Amendments Act of 1988. 

Fair market rent (FMR). The rent, including the cost of utilities (except telephone), as 
established by HUD for units of varying sizes (by number of bedrooms), that must be paid in 
the housing market area to rent privately owned, existing, decent, safe, and sanitary rental 
housing of modest (non-luxury) nature with suitable amenities. See periodic publications in 
the Federal Register in accordance with 24 CFR Part 888. 

646

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-8

Family. Includes but is not limited to the following, regardless of actual or perceived sexual 
orientation, gender identity, or marital status, and can be further defined in PHA policy. 

- A family with or without children (the temporary absence of a child from the home due to 
placement in foster care is not considered in determining family composition and 
family size) 

- An elderly family or a near-elderly family 

- A displaced family 

- The remaining member of a tenant family 

- A single person who is not an elderly or displaced person, or a person with disabilities, or 
the remaining member of a tenant family. 

Family rent to owner. In the voucher program, the portion of rent to owner paid by the family. 

Family self-sufficiency program (FSS program). The program established by a PHA in 
accordance with 24 CFR part 984 to promote self-sufficiency of assisted families, including 
the coordination of supportive services (42 U.S.C. 1437u). 

Family share. The portion of rent and utilities paid by the family. For calculation of family 
share, see 24 CFR 982.515(a). 

Family unit size. The appropriate number of bedrooms for a family, as determined by the PHA 
under the PHA subsidy standards. 

Federal agency. A department of the executive branch of the federal government. 

Foster child care payment. A payment to eligible households by state, local, or private agencies 
appointed by the state to administer payments for the care of foster children. 

Full-time student. A person who is attending school or vocational training on a full-time basis 
(carrying a subject load that is considered full-time for day students under the standards and 
practices of the educational institution attended). See 24 CFR 5.603. 

Funding increment. Each commitment of budget authority by HUD to a PHA under the 
consolidated annual contributions contract for the PHA program. 

Gender identity. Actual or perceived gender-related characteristics. 

Gross rent. The sum of the rent to owner plus any utility allowance. 

Group home. A dwelling unit that is licensed by a state as a group home for the exclusive 
residential use of two to twelve persons who are elderly or persons with disabilities 
(including any live-in aide). (A special housing type: see  24 CFR 982.610–614.) 

Handicap. Any condition or characteristic that renders a person an individual with handicaps. 
(See person with disabilities.) 

HAP contract. The housing assistance payments contract. A written contract between the PHA 
and an owner for the purpose of providing housing assistance payments to the owner on 
behalf of an eligible family. 

Head of household. The adult member of the family who is the head of the household for 
purposes of determining income eligibility and rent. 

647

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-9

Household. A household includes additional people other than the family who, with the PHA’s 
permission, live in an assisted unit, such as live-in aides, foster children, and foster adults. 

Housing assistance payment. The monthly assistance payment by a PHA, which includes: (1) A 
payment to the owner for rent to the owner under the family's lease; and (2) An additional 
payment to the family if the total assistance payment exceeds the rent to owner. 

Housing agency (HA). See public housing agency. 

Housing quality standards (HQS). The HUD minimum quality standards for housing assisted 
under the voucher program. 

HUD. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

Imputed asset. An asset disposed of for less than fair market value during the two years 
preceding examination or reexamination. 

Imputed asset income. The PHA-established passbook rate multiplied by the total cash value of 
assets. The calculation is used when net family assets exceed $5,000. 

Imputed welfare income. An amount of annual income that is not actually received by a family 
as a result of a specified welfare benefit reduction, but is included in the family’s annual 
income and therefore reflected in the family’s rental contribution. 

Income. Income from all sources of each member of the household, as determined in accordance 
with criteria established by HUD. 

Income for eligibility. Annual income. 

Income information means information relating to an individual’s income, including:  

- All employment income information known to current or previous employers or other 
income sources 

- All information about wages, as defined in the state's unemployment compensation law, 
including any social security number; name of the employee; quarterly wages of the 
employee; and the name, full address, telephone number, and, when known, employer 
identification number of an employer reporting wages under a state unemployment 
compensation law  

- Whether an individual is receiving, has received, or has applied for unemployment 
compensation, and the amount and the period received 

- Unearned IRS income and self-employment, wages, and retirement income 

- Wage, social security, and supplemental security income data obtained from the Social 
Security Administration. 

Individual with handicaps. See person with disabilities. 

Initial PHA. In portability, the term refers to both: (1) A PHA that originally selected a family 
that later decides to move out of the jurisdiction of the selecting PHA; and (2) A PHA that 
absorbed a family that later decides to move out of the jurisdiction of the absorbing PHA. 

Initial payment standard. The payment standard at the beginning of the HAP contract term. 

Initial rent to owner. The rent to owner at the beginning of the HAP contract term. 

648

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-10

Institution of higher education. An institution of higher education as defined in 20 U.S.C. 1001 
and 1002. See Exhibit 3-2 in this Administrative Plan. 

Jurisdiction. The area in which the PHA has authority under state and local law to administer the 
program. 

Landlord. Either the owner of the property or his/her representative, or the managing agent or 
his/her representative, as shall be designated by the owner. 

Lease. A written agreement between an owner and a tenant for the leasing of a dwelling unit to 
the tenant. The lease establishes the conditions for occupancy of the dwelling unit by a 
family with housing assistance payments under a HAP contract between the owner and the 
PHA. 

Live-in aide. A person who resides with one or more elderly persons, or near-elderly persons, or 
persons with disabilities, and who:  

- Is determined to be essential to the care and well-being of the persons;  

- Is not obligated for the support of the persons; and  

- Would not be living in the unit except to provide the necessary supportive services. 

Living/sleeping room. A living room may be used as sleeping (bedroom) space, but no more 
than two persons may occupy the space. A bedroom or living/sleeping room must have at 
least one window and two electrical outlets in proper operating condition. See HCV GB 
p. 10-6 and 24 CFR 982.401. 

Local preference. A preference used by the PHA to select among applicant families. 

Low-income family. A family whose income does not exceed 80 percent of the median income 
for the area as determined by HUD with adjustments for smaller or larger families, except 
that HUD may establish income limits higher or lower than 80 percent for areas with 
unusually high or low incomes. 

Manufactured home. A manufactured structure that is built on a permanent chassis, is designed 
for use as a principal place of residence, and meets the HQS. (A special housing type: see  24 
CFR 982.620 and 982.621.) 

Manufactured home space. In manufactured home space rental: A space leased by an owner to a 
family. A manufactured home owned and occupied by the family is located on the space. See 
24 CFR 982.622 to 982.624. 

Medical expenses. Medical expenses, including medical insurance premiums, that are 
anticipated during the period for which annual income is computed, and that are not covered 
by insurance (a deduction for elderly or disabled families only). These allowances are given 
when calculating adjusted income for medical expenses in excess of 3 percent of 
annual income. 

Minor. A member of the family household other than the family head or spouse, who is under 18 
years of age. 

Mixed family. A family whose members include those with citizenship or eligible immigration 
status, and those without citizenship or eligible immigration status. 

649

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-11

Monthly adjusted income. One twelfth of adjusted income. 

Monthly income. One twelfth of annual income. 

Mutual housing. Included in the definition of cooperative. 

National. A person who owes permanent allegiance to the United States, for example, as a result 
of birth in a United States territory or possession. 

Near-elderly family. A family whose head, spouse, or sole member is a person who is at least 50 
years of age but below the age of 62; or two or more persons, who are at least 50 years of age 
but below the age of 62, living together; or one or more persons who are at least 50 years of 
age but below the age of 62 living with one or more live-in aides. 

Net family assets. (1) Net cash value after deducting reasonable costs that would be incurred in 
disposing of real property, savings, stocks, bonds, and other forms of capital investment, 
excluding interests in Indian trust land and excluding equity accounts in HUD 
homeownership programs. The value of necessary items of personal property such as 
furniture and automobiles shall be excluded. 

- In cases where a trust fund has been established and the trust is not revocable by, or under 
the control of, any member of the family or household, the value of the trust fund will not 
be considered an asset so long as the fund continues to be held in trust. Any income 
distributed from the trust fund shall be counted when determining annual income under 
§5.609. 

- In determining net family assets, PHAs or owners, as applicable, shall include the value of 
any business or family assets disposed of by an applicant or tenant for less than fair market 
value (including a disposition in trust, but not in a foreclosure or bankruptcy sale) during 
the two years preceding the date of application for the program or reexamination, as 
applicable, in excess of the consideration received therefore. In the case of a disposition as 
part of a separation or divorce settlement, the disposition will not be considered to be for 
less than fair market value if the applicant or tenant receives important consideration not 
measurable in dollar terms. 

Noncitizen. A person who is neither a citizen nor national of the United States. 

Notice of funding availability (NOFA). For budget authority that HUD distributes by 
competitive process, the Federal Register document that invites applications for funding. 
This document explains how to apply for assistance and the criteria for awarding the funding. 

Office of General Counsel (OGC). The General Counsel of HUD. 

Overcrowded. A unit that does not meet the following HQS space standards: (1) Provide 
adequate space and security for the family; and (2) Have at least one bedroom or 
living/sleeping room for each two persons. 

Owner. Any person or entity with the legal right to lease or sublease a unit to a participant. 

PHA Plan. The annual plan and the 5-year plan as adopted by the PHA and approved by HUD. 

650

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-12

PHA’s quality control sample. An annual sample of files or records drawn in an unbiased 
manner and reviewed by a PHA supervisor (or by another qualified person other than the 
person who performed the original work) to determine if the work documented in the files or 
records conforms to program requirements. For minimum sample size see CFR 985.3. 

Participant (participant family). A family that has been admitted to the PHA program and is 
currently assisted in the program. The family becomes a participant on the effective date of 
the first HAP contract executed by the PHA for the family (first day of initial lease term). 

Payment standard. The maximum monthly assistance payment for a family assisted in the 
voucher program (before deducting the total tenant payment by the family). 

Person with disabilities. For the purposes of program eligibility. A person who has a disability 
as defined under the Social Security Act or Developmental Disabilities Care Act, or a person 
who has a physical or mental impairment expected to be of long and indefinite duration and 
whose ability to live independently is substantially impeded by that impairment but could be 
improved by more suitable housing conditions. This includes persons with AIDS or 
conditions arising from AIDS but excludes persons whose disability is based solely on drug 
or alcohol dependence. For the purposes of reasonable accommodation. A person with a 
physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, a 
person regarded as having such an impairment, or a person with a record of such 
an impairment. 

 Portability. Renting a dwelling unit with a Section 8 housing choice voucher outside the 
jurisdiction of the initial PHA. 

Premises. The building or complex in which the dwelling unit is located, including common 
areas and grounds. 

Previously unemployed. With regard to the earned income disallowance, a person with 
disabilities who has earned, in the 12 months previous to employment, no more than would 
be received for 10 hours of work per week for 50 weeks at the established minimum wage. 

Private space. In shared housing, the portion of a contract unit that is for the exclusive use of an 
assisted family. 

Processing entity. The person or entity that, under any of the programs covered, is responsible 
for making eligibility and related determinations and any income reexamination. In the HCV 
program, the “processing entity” is the “responsible entity.” 

Project owner. The person or entity that owns the housing project containing the assisted 
dwelling unit. 

Public assistance. Welfare or other payments to families or individuals, based on need, which 
are made under programs funded, separately or jointly, by federal, state, or local 
governments. 

Public housing agency (PHA). Any state, county, municipality, or other governmental entity or 
public body, or agency or instrumentality of these entities, that is authorized to engage or 
assist in the development or operation of low-income housing under the 1937 Act. 

651

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-13

Qualified family (under the earned income disallowance). A family participating in an applicable 
assisted housing program or receiving HCV assistance: 

- Whose annual income increases as a result of employment of a family member who is a 
person with disabilities and who was previously unemployed for one or more years prior to 
employment; 

- Whose annual income increases as a result of increased earnings by a family member who 
is a person with disabilities during participation in any economic self-sufficiency or other 
job training program; or 

- Whose annual income increases, as a result of new employment or increased earnings of a 
family member who is a person with disabilities, during or within six months after 
receiving assistance, benefits or services under any state program for temporary assistance 
for needy families funded under Part A of Title IV of the Social Security Act, as 
determined by the responsible entity in consultation with the local agencies administering 
temporary assistance for needy families (TANF) and Welfare-to-Work (WTW) programs. 
The TANF program is not limited to monthly income maintenance, but also includes such 
benefits and services as one-time payments, wage subsidies and transportation assistance-- 
provided that the total amount over a six-month period is at least $500.  

Qualified census tract. With regard to certain tax credit units, any census tract (or equivalent 
geographic area defined by the Bureau of the Census) in which at least 50 percent of 
households have an income of less than 60 percent of Area Median Gross Income (AMGI), 
or where the poverty rate is at least 25 percent, and where the census tract is designated as a 
qualified census tract by HUD. 

Reasonable rent. A rent to owner that is not more than rent charged: (1) For comparable units in 
the private unassisted market; and (2) For comparable unassisted units in the premises. 

Reasonable accommodation. A change, exception, or adjustment to a rule, policy, practice, or 
service to allow a person with disabilities to fully access the PHA’s programs or services. 

Receiving PHA. In portability: A PHA that receives a family selected for participation in the 
tenant-based program of another PHA. The receiving PHA issues a voucher and provides 
program assistance to the family. 

Recertification. Sometimes called reexamination. The process of securing documentation of 
total family income used to determine the rent the tenant will pay for the next 12 months if 
there are no additional changes to be reported.  

Remaining member of the tenant family. The person left in assisted housing who may or may 
not normally qualify for assistance on their own circumstances (i.e., an elderly spouse dies, 
leaving widow age 47 who is not disabled). 

Rent to owner. The total monthly rent payable to the owner under the lease for the unit (also 
known as contract rent). Rent to owner covers payment for any housing services, 
maintenance, and utilities that the owner is required to provide and pay for. 

Residency preference. A PHA preference for admission of families that reside anywhere in a 
specified area, including families with a member who works or has been hired to work in the 
area (See residency preference area). 

652

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-14

Residency preference area. The specified area where families must reside to qualify for a 
residency preference. 

Responsible entity. For the public housing and the Section 8 tenant-based assistance, project-
based voucher assistance, and moderate rehabilitation programs, the responsible entity means 
the PHA administering the program under an ACC with HUD. For all other Section 8 
programs, the responsible entity means the Section 8 owner. 

Secretary. The Secretary of Housing and Urban Development. 

Section 8. Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937. 

Section 8 covered programs. All HUD programs which assist housing under Section 8 of the 
1937 Act, including Section 8 assisted housing for which loans are made under Section 202 
of the Housing Act of 1959. 

Section 214. Section 214 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1980, as 
amended.  

Section 214 covered programs. The collective term for the HUD programs to which the 
restrictions imposed by Section 214 apply. These programs are set forth in 24 CFR 5.500. 

Security deposit. A dollar amount (maximum set according to the regulations) which can be used 
for unpaid rent or damages to the owner upon termination of the lease. 

Set-up charges. In a manufactured home space rental, charges payable by the family for 
assembling, skirting, and anchoring the manufactured home. 

Sexual assault. Any nonconsensual sexual act proscribed by federal, tribal, or state law, 
including when the victim lacks capacity to consent (42 U.S.C. 13925(a)). 

Sexual orientation. Homosexuality, heterosexuality or bisexuality. 

Shared housing. A unit occupied by two or more families. The unit consists of both common 
space for shared use by the occupants of the unit and separate private space for each assisted 
family. (A special housing type: see 24 CFR 982.615–982.618.) 

Single person. A person living alone or intending to live alone. 

Single room occupancy housing (SRO). A unit that contains no sanitary facilities or food 
preparation facilities, or contains either, but not both, types of facilities. (A special housing 
type: see 24 CFR 982.602–982.605.) 

Social security number (SSN). The nine-digit number that is assigned to a person by the Social 
Security Administration and that identifies the record of the person’s earnings reported to the 
Social Security Administration. The term does not include a number with a letter as a suffix 
that is used to identify an auxiliary beneficiary. 

Special admission. Admission of an applicant that is not on the PHA waiting list or without 
considering the applicant’s waiting list position. 

Special housing types. See subpart M of part 982. Subpart M states the special regulatory 
requirements for: SRO housing, congregate housing, group homes, shared housing, 
cooperatives (including mutual housing), and manufactured homes (including manufactured 
home space rental). 

653

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-15

Specified welfare benefit reduction. Those reductions of welfare benefits (for a covered family) 
that may not result in a reduction of the family rental contribution. A reduction of welfare 
benefits because of fraud in connection with the welfare program, or because of welfare 
sanction due to noncompliance with a welfare agency requirement to participate in an 
economic self-sufficiency program. 

Spouse. The marriage partner of the head of household. 

Stalking. To follow, pursue, or repeatedly commit acts with the intent to kill, injure, harass, or 
intimidate; or to place under surveillance with the intent to kill, injure, harass, or intimidate 
another person; and in the course of, or as a result of, such following, pursuit, surveillance, or 
repeatedly committed acts, to place a person in reasonable fear of the death of, or serious 
bodily injury to, or to cause substantial emotional harm to (1) that person, (2) a member of 
the immediate family of that person, or (3) the spouse or intimate partner of that person. 

State wage information collection agency (SWICA). The state agency, including any Indian 
tribal agency, receiving quarterly wage reports from employers in the state, or an alternative 
system that has been determined by the Secretary of Labor to be as effective and timely in 
providing employment-related income and eligibility information. 

Subsidy standards. Standards established by a PHA to determine the appropriate number of 
bedrooms and amount of subsidy for families of different sizes and compositions. 

Suspension. The term on the family’s voucher stops from the date the family submits a request 
for PHA approval of the tenancy, until the date the PHA notifies the family in writing 
whether the request has been approved or denied. This practice is also called tolling. 

Tax credit rent. With regard to certain tax credit units, the rent charged for comparable units of 
the same bedroom size in the building that also receive the low-income housing tax credit but 
do not have any additional rental assistance (e.g., tenant-based voucher assistance). 

Tenancy addendum. For the housing choice voucher program, the lease language required by 
HUD in the lease between the tenant and the owner. 

Tenant. The person or persons (other than a live-in aide) who executes the lease as lessee of the 
dwelling unit. 

Tenant rent to owner. See family rent to owner.  

Term of lease. The amount of time a tenant agrees in writing to live in a dwelling unit. 

Total tenant payment (TTP). The total amount the HUD rent formula requires the tenant to pay 
toward rent and utilities. 

Unit. Residential space for the private use of a family. The size of a unit is based on the number 
of bedrooms contained within the unit and generally ranges from zero (0) bedrooms to 
six (6) bedrooms. 

Utilities. Water, electricity, gas, other heating, refrigeration, cooking fuels, trash collection, and 
sewage services. Telephone service is not included. 

654

Item 15.



 

© Copyright 2015 Nan McKay & Associates Adminplan 10/1/15 
Unlimited copies may be made for internal use. 

GL-16

Utility allowance. If the cost of utilities (except telephone) and other housing services for an 
assisted unit is not included in the tenant rent but is the responsibility of the family occupying 
the unit, an amount equal to the estimate made or approved by a PHA or HUD of the 
monthly cost of a reasonable consumption of such utilities and other services for the unit by 
an energy-conservative household of modest circumstances consistent with the requirements 
of a safe, sanitary, and healthful living environment. 

Utility reimbursement. In the voucher program, the portion of the housing assistance payment 
which exceeds the amount of rent to owner. 

Utility hook-up charge. In a manufactured home space rental: Costs payable by a family for 
connecting the manufactured home to utilities such as water, gas, electrical and sewer lines. 

Very low-income family. A low-income family whose annual income does not exceed 50 percent 
of the median income for the area, as determined by HUD, with adjustments for smaller and 
larger families. HUD may establish income limits higher or lower than 50 percent of the 
median income for the area on the basis of its finding that such variations are necessary 
because of unusually high or low family incomes. This is the income limit for the housing 
choice voucher program. 

Veteran. A person who has served in the active military or naval service of the United States at 
any time and who shall have been discharged or released therefrom under conditions other 
than dishonorable. 

Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act (VAWA) of 2013. Prohibits denying admission 
to the program to an otherwise qualified applicant or terminating assistance on the basis that 
the applicant or program participant is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

Violent criminal activity. Any illegal criminal activity that has as one of its elements the use, 
attempted use, or threatened use of physical force against the person or property of another. 

Voucher (housing choice voucher). A document issued by a PHA to a family selected for 
admission to the housing choice voucher program. This document describes the program and 
the procedures for PHA approval of a unit selected by the family. The voucher also states 
obligations of the family under the program. 

Voucher holder. A family holding a voucher with an unexpired term (search time). 

Voucher program. The housing choice voucher program. 

Waiting list. A list of families organized according to HUD regulations and PHA policy who are 
waiting for a unit to become available. 

Waiting list admission. An admission from the PHA waiting list.  

Welfare assistance. Income assistance from federal or state welfare programs, including 
assistance provided under TANF and general assistance. Does not include assistance directed 
solely to meeting housing expenses, nor programs that provide health care, child care or other 
services for working families. For the FSS program (984.103(b)), welfare assistance includes 
only cash maintenance payments from federal or state programs designed to meet a family’s 
ongoing basic needs, but does not include food stamps, emergency rental and utilities 
assistance, SSI, SSDI, or social security. 

655

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspection Services Division 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green & City Council  
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official   
 
 DATE: November 29, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Contract with Peters Construction for City Hall Remodel Project 
 
The City’s Capital Improvements Program started recognizing a goal to improve City 
Hall in the FY17-22 CIP.  The project went through multiple iterations before we landed 
on what we believe is the best project and the best use of our resources.  The project 
includes reorganizing the offices to utilize the vacant portion of the lower level, creating 
a single window to allow for a single stop for citizens to complete their business, 
enhancing and improving the accessibility of City Hall, creating a lobby outside council 
chambers for public meetings and council meeting overflow, exchanging light fixtures for 
efficient LED fixtures, replacing the outdated mechanical system, and replacing well-
used carpet and furniture.  Even though the scope is large, the designer and city staff 
have worked diligently to find ways to reuse and reduce to ensure a cost effective 
project. 
 
Council voted to approve the project as submitted at the October 18, 2021 public 
hearing.  The project was then bid on November 4, 2021.  Council approved Peters 
Construction as the low bidder at the November 15, 2021 council meeting.  The next 
step to move forward with this project is execution of the contract between the City and 
Peters Construction.   
 
Enclosed are the following documents for approval: 
 

 A101-2017 - AIA Contract between City of Cedar Falls and Peters Construction 
for the remodel of City Hall for a cost of $3,851,456.00.   

 A101-2017 - AIA additions and deletions document. 

 A201-2017 - General Conditions of the contract.   

 Insurance documents from Peters Construction 
 
 

656

Item 16.



657

Item 16.



658

Item 16.



659

Item 16.



660

Item 16.



661

Item 16.



662

Item 16.



663

Item 16.



664

Item 16.



Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA® Document A101® – 2017

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has 
added to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from 
the original AIA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text.

Note:  This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any 
part of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated 
simultaneously by AIA software at 13:45:59 CT on 11/23/2021.

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101® – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 
1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A101," and 
“AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 13:45:59 CT on 
11/23/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA42)

1

PAGE 1
 
AGREEMENT made as of the Sixteenth day of November in the year Two Thousand Twenty-One
 
...
 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Telephone Number: 319.268.5189
 
...
 
Peters Construction Corp.  
901 Black Hawk Rd 
Waterloo, IA 50701
Telephone Number: 319.236.2003
 
...
 
Cedar Falls City Hall Remodel
 
Cedar Falls, Iowa
 
A full building remodel of City Hall prompted by the need to update the building due to aging materials (carpets and 
finishes), efficient operations of staff and best use of the space available.
 
...
 
Emergent Architecture  
100 E 2nd St, Ste 204 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Telephone Number: 319.529.3945
 
PAGE 2
 
[ X  ]    Established as follows:
 
 
...
 
December 7, 2021 following approval of this Agreement at the December 6, 2021 Cedar Falls City Council 
Meeting. 

665

Item 16.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101® – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 
1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A101," and 
“AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 13:45:59 CT on 
11/23/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA42)

2

 
PAGE 3
 
[ X  ]    By the following date: December 16, 2022 
 
...
 
§ 3.3.2 Subject to adjustments of the Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents, if portions of the Work 
are to be completed prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work, the Contractor shall achieve Substantial 
Completion of such portions by the following dates:
 
 
...
 

Portion of Work Substantial Completion Date
  

 
...
 
§ 3.3.3 If the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion as provided in this Section 3.3, liquidated damages, 
if any, shall be assessed as set forth in Section 4.5.
 
 
...
 
§ 4.1 The Owner shall pay the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor’s performance of the 
Contract. The Contract Sum shall be  ($ Three Million, Eight Hundred Fifty-One Thousand, Four Hundred Fifty-Six 
Dollars and Zero Cents ($ 3,851,456.00 ), subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract 
Documents.
 
 
 
...
 

ALTERNATE #3 - Replace fire alarm 
panel in lieu of modifying existing. 

 $0.00 Change

 
 
...
 

NONE   
 
 
...
 

GENERAL CONTINGENCY  $200,000.00
 
 
...
 

NONE   
...
 
NOT APPLICABLE 
 
...
 

666

Item 16.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101® – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 
1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A101," and 
“AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 13:45:59 CT on 
11/23/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA42)

3

NONE
 
PAGE 4
 
§ 5.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of 
the month, or as follows:25th day of the
 
...
 
 month.
 
 
...
 
§ 5.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the 25th  day of a month, 
and the Architect submits the Application for Payment to the City by the last day of the month, the Owner shall 
make payment of the amount certified to the Contractor not later than the   day of the   month. following approval at 
the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on the 3rd Monday of the following month.       If an Application for 
Payment is received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, payment of the amount certified shall be 
made by the Owner not later than   (  ) days after the Architect receives the Application for Payment.following 
approval at the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting on the 3rd Monday, two months after the initial 
deadline.       
 
...
 
Five Percent ( 5% ) 
 
PAGE 5
 
All items are subject to retainage. 
 
...
 
Not Applicable 
 
 
Upon achieving Substantial Completion, as defined by Iowa Code Chapter 26, the Contractor may formally request 
the release of all or part of the retainage funds being held on the Project. The Contractors' Request for Release of the 
Retainage Funds shall be accompanied by a sworn statement that ten (10) calendar days prior to filing the Request 
for Release of the Funds, a notice was given to all known subcontractors, sub-subcontractors and suppliers that the 
Contractor is requesting the early release of retainage funds. If proper documentation is received from the 
contractor, the Owner will release all retainage funds following the next monthly council meeting or within thirty 
(30) days, whichever is less, except it may retain the following:
 
 
...
 
.1   An amount equal to 200% of the value of labor or materials yet to be provided on the Project as determined by 
the Owner and its authorized contract representative. For the purposes of section, "authorized contract 
representative" means the Architect of record on the Project, unless otherwise specified.
 
 
 
...
 
 .2   An amount equal to 200% of the value of any Chapter 573 claims currently on file at the time the Request for 
Release of Retainage is approved.

667

Item 16.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101® – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 
1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A101," and 
“AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 13:45:59 CT on 
11/23/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA42)

4

 
 
If the Owner withholds an amount from the retainage payment to the Contractor, the Owner will provide a reason 
the request is being denied to the Contractor within thirty (30) calendar days of the receipt of the request.  
 
...
 
The Owner may withhold 200% of the value of the work not satisfactorily completed at the time of final acceptance 
as well as withhold 200% of the value of any Iowa Code Chapter 573 claims on file 30 days after final acceptance 
prior to the making of any final payment. 
 
PAGE 6
 
Payments due and unpaid under the Contract shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate stated 
below, or in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where the Project is 
located.specified by rule pursuant to Iowa Code Section 74A.2. 
 
...
 
(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.)
 
...
 
   %   
 
...
 
The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Article 15 of AIA Document A201–2017, unless 
the parties appoint below another individual, not a party to this Agreement, to serve as the Initial Decision 
Maker.A201–2017.
 
 
...
 
[ X  ]    Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction
 
 
...
 
If the Owner and Contractor do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree 
in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a 
court of competent jurisdiction.
 
 
...
 
$0.00 plus payment for work completed by Contractor prior to notice of such termination. 
 
...
 
Jamie Castle
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
Telephone Number: 319.268.5189
Email Address: jamie.castle@cedarfalls.com
 

668

Item 16.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101® – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 
1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A101," and 
“AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 13:45:59 CT on 
11/23/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA42)

5

...
 
Bradley Best
901 Black Hawk Rd 
Waterloo, IA 50704
Telephone Number: 319.236.2003
Email Address: bbest@peters.build
 
PAGE 7
 
§ 8.5.1 The Owner and the Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance as set forth in AIA Document A101™–
2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of payment is a Stipulated Sum, 
Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds, Exhibit A - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
 
...
 
§ 8.5.2 The Contractor shall provide bonds as set forth in AIA Document A101™–2017 Exhibit A, and elsewhere in 
the Contract Documents.
 
...
 
§ 8.6 Notice in electronic format, pursuant to Article 1 of AIA Document A201–2017, may be given in accordance 
with AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, if completed, or as 
otherwise set forth below:SECTION NOT USED 
 
...
 
(If other than in accordance with AIA Document E203–2013, insert requirements for delivering notice in electronic 
format such as name, title, and email address of the recipient and whether and how the system will be required to 
generate a read receipt for the transmission.)
 
...
 
NONE 
 
...
 

.2    AIA Document A101™–2017, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds Exhibit A - INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
...
 

.4    AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, dated as 
indicated below:

 
...
 

(Insert the date of the E203-2013 incorporated into this Agreement.)
 
...
 

Exhibit -- NOT INCLUDED IN THIS
 
...
 

 CONTRACT

669

Item 16.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101® – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 
1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A101," and 
“AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 13:45:59 CT on 
11/23/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA42)

6

 
 
 

 
...
 

Complete bound set of drawings  CEDAR FALLS CITY 
HALL REMODEL

 2021.10.05

 
 
...
 

Complete bound book of 
specifications 

 CEDAR FALLS CITY 
HALL REMODEL

 2021.10.05  824

 
 
...
 

Addendum #1
Addendum #2
Addendum #3 

 2021.10.25
2021.11.01
2021.11.03

 16
27
2

 
...
 

.8    Other Exhibits:Exhibits or Documents: NONE
 
PAGE 8
 

(Check all boxes that apply and include appropriate information identifying the exhibit where 
required.)

 
...
 
[   ]    AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, dated as indicated below:
 
...
 
(Insert the date of the E204-2017 incorporated into this Agreement.)
 
  

 
...
 

[   ]    The Sustainability Plan:
 

 
 
...
 

Title Date Pages
   

 
...
 
[   ]    Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:
 

 

670

Item 16.



Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A101® – 2017. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 
1991, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A101," and 
“AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 13:45:59 CT on 
11/23/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA42)

7

 
...
 

Document Title Date Pages
    

 
...
 

.9    Other documents, if any, listed below:
 
...
 

(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Contract Documents. AIA 
Document A201™–2017 provides that the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, 
sample forms, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal 
requirements, and other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or 
proposals, are not part of the Contract Documents unless enumerated in this Agreement. Any such 
documents should be listed here only if intended to be part of the Contract Documents.)

 
 

  
 
...
 
Robert M. Green, Mayor  Bradley Best, President

671

Item 16.



AIA Document D401™ – 2003. Copyright © 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA 
software at 13:45:59 CT on 11/23/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA42)

1

Certification of Document's Authenticity
AIA® Document D401™ – 2003

I, , hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the attached final document 
simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 13:45:59 CT on 11/23/2021 
under Order No. 3123952366 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final 
document I made no changes to the original text of AIA® Document A101TM - 2017, Standard Form of Agreement 
Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of payment is a Stipulated Sum, as published by the AIA in its 
software, other than those additions and deletions shown in the associated Additions and Deletions Report.

_____________________________________________________________
(Signed) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Title) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Dated)

672

Item 16.



   Document A201® – 2017
General Conditions of the Contract for Construction

Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to 
the standard form text is available 
from the author and should be 
reviewed. A vertical line in the left 
margin of this document indicates 
where the author has added 
necessary information and where 
the author has added to or deleted 
from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification.

For guidance in modifying this 
document to include supplementary 
conditions, see AIA Document 
A503™, Guide for Supplementary 
Conditions.

for the following PROJECT:
(Name and location or address)

Cedar Falls City Hall Remodel
 
Cedar Falls, Iowa

THE OWNER:
(Name, legal status and address)

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

THE ARCHITECT:
(Name, legal status and address)

Emergent Architecture  
100 E 2nd St, Ste 204 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1    GENERAL PROVISIONS

2    OWNER

3    CONTRACTOR

4    ARCHITECT

5    SUBCONTRACTORS

6    CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

7    CHANGES IN THE WORK

8    TIME

9    PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

10   PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

11   INSURANCE AND BONDS

12   UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

13   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

14   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

673

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

2

15   CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

674

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

3

INDEX
(Topics and numbers in bold are Section headings.)

Acceptance of Nonconforming Work
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3
Acceptance of Work
9.6.6, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.3
Access to Work
3.16, 6.2.1, 12.1
Accident Prevention
10
Acts and Omissions
3.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.8, 3.18, 4.2.3, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 10.2.5, 
10.2.8, 13.3.2, 14.1, 15.1.2, 15.2
Addenda
1.1.1
Additional Costs, Claims for
3.7.4, 3.7.5, 10.3.2, 15.1.5
Additional Inspections and Testing
9.4.2, 9.8.3, 12.2.1, 13.4
Additional Time, Claims for
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 8.3.2, 15.1.6
Administration of the Contract
3.1.3, 4.2, 9.4, 9.5
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid
1.1.1
Aesthetic Effect
4.2.13
Allowances
3.8
Applications for Payment
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.5.4, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.10
Approvals
2.1.1, 2.3.1, 2.5, 3.1.3, 3.10.2, 3.12.8, 3.12.9, 
3.12.10.1, 4.2.7, 9.3.2, 13.4.1
Arbitration
8.3.1, 15.3.2, 15.4 
ARCHITECT
4
Architect, Definition of
4.1.1
Architect, Extent of Authority
2.5, 3.12.7, 4.1.2, 4.2, 5.2, 6.3, 7.1.2, 7.3.4, 7.4, 9.2, 
9.3.1, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.8, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1, 
13.4.1, 13.4.2, 14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.4, 15.2.1
Architect, Limitations of Authority and 
Responsibility
2.1.1, 3.12.4, 3.12.8, 3.12.10, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 4.2.2, 
4.2.3, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.10, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 5.2.1, 7.4, 
9.4.2, 9.5.4, 9.6.4, 15.1.4, 15.2
Architect’s Additional Services and Expenses
2.5, 12.2.1, 13.4.2, 13.4.3, 14.2.4
Architect’s Administration of the Contract
3.1.3, 3.7.4, 15.2, 9.4.1, 9.5
Architect’s Approvals

2.5, 3.1.3, 3.5, 3.10.2, 4.2.7
Architect’s Authority to Reject Work
3.5, 4.2.6, 12.1.2, 12.2.1
Architect’s Copyright
1.1.7, 1.5
Architect’s Decisions
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 4.2.14, 6.3, 
7.3.4, 7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4.1, 9.5, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 
13.4.2, 15.2
Architect’s Inspections
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4
Architect’s Instructions
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 13.4.2
Architect’s Interpretations
4.2.11, 4.2.12
Architect’s Project Representative
4.2.10
Architect’s Relationship with Contractor
1.1.2, 1.5, 2.3.3, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 
3.5, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.9.3, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 
3.18, 4.1.2, 4.2, 5.2, 6.2.2, 7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 
9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 10.3, 11.3, 12, 13.3.2, 13.4, 15.2
Architect’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 11.3
Architect’s Representations
9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1
Architect’s Site Visits
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4
Asbestos
10.3.1
Attorneys’ Fees
3.18.1, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 10.3.3
Award of Separate Contracts
6.1.1, 6.1.2
Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for 
Portions of the Work
5.2
Basic Definitions
1.1
Bidding Requirements
1.1.1
Binding Dispute Resolution
8.3.1, 9.7, 11.5, 13.1, 15.1.2, 15.1.3, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 
15.2.6.1, 15.3.1, 15.3.2, 15.3.3, 15.4.1
Bonds, Lien
7.3.4.4, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.3
Bonds, Performance, and Payment
7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.5
Building Information Models Use and Reliance
1.8
Building Permit
3.7.1
Capitalization
1.3
Certificate of Substantial Completion
9.8.3, 9.8.4, 9.8.5

675

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

4

Certificates for Payment
4.2.1, 4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 
9.10.1, 9.10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.4
Certificates of Inspection, Testing or Approval
13.4.4
Certificates of Insurance
9.10.2
Change Orders
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.8.2.3, 3.11, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 5.2.3, 
7.1.2, 7.1.3, 7.2, 7.3.2, 7.3.7, 7.3.9, 7.3.10, 8.3.1, 
9.3.1.1, 9.10.3, 10.3.2, 11.2, 11.5, 12.1.2
Change Orders, Definition of
7.2.1
CHANGES IN THE WORK
2.2.2, 3.11, 4.2.8, 7, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3.1, 9.3.1.1, 
11.5
Claims, Definition of
15.1.1
Claims, Notice of
1.6.2, 15.1.3
CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
3.2.4, 6.1.1, 6.3, 7.3.9, 9.3.3, 9.10.4, 10.3.3, 15, 15.4
Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims
15.4.1
Claims for Additional Cost
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.4, 7.3.9, 9.5.2, 10.2.5, 10.3.2, 15.1.5
Claims for Additional Time
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.4, 6.1.1, 8.3.2, 9.5.2, 10.3.2, 15.1.6
Concealed or Unknown Conditions, Claims for
3.7.4
Claims for Damages
3.2.4, 3.18, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 11.3, 
11.3.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.7
Claims Subject to Arbitration
15.4.1
Cleaning Up
3.15, 6.3
Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to
2.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.4.1, 3.7.1, 3.10.1, 3.12.6, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 
6.2.2, 8.1.2, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 11.1, 11.2, 15.1.5
Commencement of the Work, Definition of
8.1.2
Communications
3.9.1, 4.2.4
Completion, Conditions Relating to
3.4.1, 3.11, 3.15, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 8.2, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 
9.10, 12.2, 14.1.2, 15.1.2
COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND
9
Completion, Substantial
3.10.1, 4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 
9.10.3, 12.2, 15.1.2
Compliance with Laws
2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 10.2.2, 
13.1, 13.3, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14.1.1, 14.2.1.3, 
15.2.8, 15.4.2, 15.4.3
Concealed or Unknown Conditions

3.7.4, 4.2.8, 8.3.1, 10.3
Conditions of the Contract
1.1.1, 6.1.1, 6.1.4
Consent, Written
3.4.2, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 13.2, 
15.4.4.2
Consolidation or Joinder
15.4.4
CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY 
SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
1.1.4, 6
Construction Change Directive, Definition of
7.3.1
Construction Change Directives
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.11, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1.1, 7.1.2, 7.1.3, 
7.3, 9.3.1.1
Construction Schedules, Contractor’s
3.10, 3.11, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2
Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
5.4, 14.2.2.2
Continuing Contract Performance
15.1.4
Contract, Definition of
1.1.2
CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
OF THE
5.4.1.1, 5.4.2, 11.5, 14
Contract Administration
3.1.3, 4, 9.4, 9.5
Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating 
to
3.7.1, 3.10, 5.2, 6.1
Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of
1.5.2, 2.3.6, 5.3
Contract Documents, Definition of
1.1.1
Contract Sum
2.2.2, 2.2.4, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.8, 3.10.2, 5.2.3, 7.3, 7.4, 
9.1, 9.2, 9.4.2, 9.5.1.4, 9.6.7, 9.7, 10.3.2, 11.5, 12.1.2, 
12.3, 14.2.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.4.2, 15.1.5, 15.2.5
Contract Sum, Definition of
9.1
Contract Time
1.1.4, 2.2.1, 2.2.2, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.10.2, 5.2.3, 6.1.5, 
7.2.1.3, 7.3.1, 7.3.5, 7.3.6, 7, 7, 7.3.10, 7.4, 8.1.1, 
8.2.1, 8.2.3, 8.3.1, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 12.1.1, 12.1.2, 
14.3.2, 15.1.4.2, 15.1.6.1, 15.2.5
Contract Time, Definition of
8.1.1
CONTRACTOR
3
Contractor, Definition of
3.1, 6.1.2
Contractor’s Construction and Submittal Schedules
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 4.2.3, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2
Contractor’s Employees

676

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

5

2.2.4, 3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 
10.2, 10.3, 11.3, 14.1, 14.2.1.1
Contractor’s Liability Insurance
11.1
Contractor’s Relationship with Separate Contractors 
and Owner’s Forces
3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 6, 11.3, 12.2.4
Contractor’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.2.2, 2.2.4, 3.3.2, 3.18.1, 3.18.2, 4.2.4, 5, 9.6.2, 
9.6.7, 9.10.2, 11.2, 11.3, 11.4
Contractor’s Relationship with the Architect
1.1.2, 1.5, 2.3.3, 3.1.3, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.4.2, 
3.5.1, 3.7.4, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18, 4.2, 5.2, 
6.2.2, 7, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 10.2.6, 
10.3, 11.3, 12, 13.4, 15.1.3, 15.2.1
Contractor’s Representations
3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.6, 6.2.2, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.8.2
Contractor’s Responsibility for Those Performing the 
Work
3.3.2, 3.18, 5.3, 6.1.3, 6.2, 9.5.1, 10.2.8
Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents
3.2
Contractor’s Right to Stop the Work
2.2.2, 9.7
Contractor’s Right to Terminate the Contract
14.1
Contractor’s Submittals
3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8.2, 
9.8.3, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3
Contractor’s Superintendent
3.9, 10.2.6
Contractor’s Supervision and Construction 
Procedures
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 
7.1.3, 7.3.4, 7.3.6, 8.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.4
Coordination and Correlation
1.2, 3.2.1, 3.3.1, 3.10, 3.12.6, 6.1.3, 6.2.1
Copies Furnished of Drawings and Specifications
1.5, 2.3.6, 3.11
Copyrights
1.5, 3.17
Correction of Work
2.5, 3.7.3, 9.4.2, 9.8.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.1, 12.1.2, 12.2, 12.3, 
15.1.3.1, 15.1.3.2, 15.2.1
Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2
Cost, Definition of
7.3.4
Costs
2.5, 3.2.4, 3.7.3, 3.8.2, 3.15.2, 5.4.2, 6.1.1, 6.2.3, 
7.3.3.3, 7.3.4, 7.3.8, 7.3.9, 9.10.2, 10.3.2, 10.3.6, 
11.2, 12.1.2, 12.2.1, 12.2.4, 13.4, 14
Cutting and Patching
3.14, 6.2.5 
Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate 
Contractors
3.14.2, 6.2.4, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 12.2.4

Damage to the Work
3.14.2, 9.9.1, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.5, 10.4, 12.2.4
Damages, Claims for
3.2.4, 3.18, 6.1.1, 8.3.3, 9.5.1, 9.6.7, 10.3.3, 11.3.2, 
11.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.7
Damages for Delay
6.2.3, 8.3.3, 9.5.1.6, 9.7, 10.3.2, 14.3.2
Date of Commencement of the Work, Definition of
8.1.2
Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of
8.1.3
Day, Definition of
8.1.4
Decisions of the Architect
3.7.4, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 4.2.11, 4.2.12, 4.2.13, 6.3, 7.3.4, 
7.3.9, 8.1.3, 8.3.1, 9.2, 9.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 13.4.2, 
14.2.2, 14.2.4, 15.1, 15.2
Decisions to Withhold Certification
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.7, 14.1.1.3
Defective or Nonconforming Work, Acceptance, 
Rejection and Correction of
2.5, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.3, 9.5.1, 9.5.3, 9.6.6, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 
9.10.4, 12.2.1
Definitions
1.1, 2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.5, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 3.12.3, 4.1.1, 5.1, 
6.1.2, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 8.1, 9.1, 9.8.1, 15.1.1
Delays and Extensions of Time
3.2, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.6, 15.2.5
Digital Data Use and Transmission
1.7
Disputes
6.3, 7.3.9, 15.1, 15.2
Documents and Samples at the Site
3.11
Drawings, Definition of
1.1.5
Drawings and Specifications, Use and Ownership of
3.11
Effective Date of Insurance
8.2.2
Emergencies
10.4, 14.1.1.2, 15.1.5
Employees, Contractor’s
3.3.2, 3.4.3, 3.8.1, 3.9, 3.18.2, 4.2.3, 4.2.6, 10.2, 
10.3.3, 11.3, 14.1, 14.2.1.1
Equipment, Labor, or Materials
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
4.2.6, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 
9.10.2, 10.2.1, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2
Execution and Progress of the Work
1.1.3, 1.2.1, 1.2.2, 2.3.4, 2.3.6, 3.1, 3.3.1, 3.4.1, 3.7.1, 
3.10.1, 3.12, 3.14, 4.2, 6.2.2, 7.1.3, 7.3.6, 8.2, 9.5.1, 
9.9.1, 10.2, 10.3, 12.1, 12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1.4
Extensions of Time
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3, 7.4, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 
10.4, 14.3, 15.1.6, 15.2.5

677

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

6

Failure of Payment
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2
Faulty Work
(See Defective or Nonconforming Work)
Final Completion and Final Payment
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.8.2, 9.10, 12.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3
Financial Arrangements, Owner’s
2.2.1, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1
Governing Law
13.1
Guarantees (See Warranty)
Hazardous Materials and Substances
10.2.4, 10.3
Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers
5.2.1
Indemnification
3.17, 3.18, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 10.3.3, 11.3
Information and Services Required of the Owner
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.3, 3.2.2, 3.12.10.1, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 
9.6.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 
14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.4
Initial Decision
15.2
Initial Decision Maker, Definition of
1.1.8
Initial Decision Maker, Decisions
14.2.4, 15.1.4.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 15.2.5
Initial Decision Maker, Extent of Authority
14.2.4, 15.1.4.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.2, 15.2.3, 15.2.4, 15.2.5
Injury or Damage to Person or Property
10.2.8, 10.4
Inspections
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 
9.9.2, 9.10.1, 12.2.1, 13.4
Instructions to Bidders
1.1.1
Instructions to the Contractor
3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.8.1, 5.2.1, 7, 8.2.2, 12, 13.4.2
Instruments of Service, Definition of
1.1.7
Insurance
6.1.1, 7.3.4, 8.2.2, 9.3.2, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 10.2.5, 
11
Insurance, Notice of Cancellation or Expiration
11.1.4, 11.2.3
Insurance, Contractor’s Liability
11.1
Insurance, Effective Date of
8.2.2, 14.4.2
Insurance, Owner’s Liability
11.2
Insurance, Property
10.2.5, 11.2, 11.4, 11.5
Insurance, Stored Materials
9.3.2

INSURANCE AND BONDS
11
Insurance Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy
9.9.1
Insured loss, Adjustment and Settlement of
11.5
Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2.1, 4.2.7, 4.2.12, 4.2.13
Interest
13.5
Interpretation
1.1.8, 1.2.3, 1.4, 4.1.1, 5.1, 6.1.2, 15.1.1
Interpretations, Written
4.2.11, 4.2.12
Judgment on Final Award
15.4.2
Labor and Materials, Equipment
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 9.10.2, 10.2.1, 
10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2
Labor Disputes
8.3.1
Laws and Regulations
1.5, 2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 
9.9.1, 10.2.2, 13.1, 13.3.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14, 15.2.8, 
15.4
Liens
2.1.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8
Limitations, Statutes of
12.2.5, 15.1.2, 15.4.1.1
Limitations of Liability
3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.10, 3.12.10.1, 3.17, 3.18.1, 4.2.6, 
4.2.7, 6.2.2, 9.4.2, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 9.6.8, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 
11.3, 12.2.5, 13.3.1
Limitations of Time
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.5, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2.7, 
5.2, 5.3, 5.4.1, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 12.2, 13.4, 14, 15, 
15.1.2, 15.1.3, 15.1.5
Materials, Hazardous
10.2.4, 10.3
Materials, Labor, Equipment and
1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4.1, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 
5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 9.10.2, 
10.2.1.2, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2
Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and 
Procedures of Construction
3.3.1, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 9.4.2
Mechanic’s Lien
2.1.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8
Mediation
8.3.1, 15.1.3.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3, 15.4.1, 
15.4.1.1
Minor Changes in the Work
1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1, 7.4
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
13

678

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

7

Modifications, Definition of
1.1.1
Modifications to the Contract
1.1.1, 1.1.2, 2.5, 3.11, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 5.2.3, 7, 8.3.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2
Mutual Responsibility
6.2
Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of
9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3
Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of
2.4, 2.5, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.4, 
12.2
Notice
1.6, 1.6.1, 1.6.2, 2.1.2, 2.2.2., 2.2.3, 2.2.4, 2.5, 3.2.4, 
3.3.1, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 5.2.1, 7.4, 
8.2.2 9.6.8, 9.7, 9.10.1, 10.2.8, 10.3.2, 11.5, 12.2.2.1, 
13.4.1, 13.4.2, 14.1, 14.2.2, 14.4.2, 15.1.3, 15.1.5, 
15.1.6, 15.4.1
Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Insurance
11.1.4, 11.2.3
Notice of Claims
1.6.2, 2.1.2, 3.7.4, 9.6.8, 10.2.8, 15.1.3, 15.1.5, 
15.1.6, 15.2.8, 15.3.2, 15.4.1
Notice of Testing and Inspections
13.4.1, 13.4.2
Observations, Contractor’s
3.2, 3.7.4
Occupancy
2.3.1, 9.6.6, 9.8
Orders, Written
1.1.1, 2.4, 3.9.2, 7, 8.2.2, 11.5, 12.1, 12.2.2.1, 13.4.2, 
14.3.1
OWNER
2
Owner, Definition of
2.1.1
Owner, Evidence of Financial Arrangements
2.2, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4
Owner, Information and Services Required of the
2.1.2, 2.2, 2.3, 3.2.2, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 
9.3.2, 9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 13.4.1, 
13.4.2, 14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.4
Owner’s Authority
1.5, 2.1.1, 2.3.32.4, 2.5, 3.4.2, 3.8.1, 3.12.10, 3.14.2, 
4.1.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.9, 5.2.1, 5.2.4, 5.4.1, 6.1, 6.3, 7.2.1, 
7.3.1, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 9.3.2, 9.5.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 
10.3.2, 11.4, 11.5, 12.2.2, 12.3, 13.2.2, 14.3, 14.4, 
15.2.7
Owner’s Insurance
11.2
Owner’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 9.6.4, 9.10.2, 14.2.2
Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work
2.5, 14.2.2
Owner’s Right to Clean Up
6.3
Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award 

Separate Contracts
6.1
Owner’s Right to Stop the Work
2.4
Owner’s Right to Suspend the Work
14.3
Owner’s Right to Terminate the Contract
14.2, 14.4
Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications and 
Other Instruments of Service
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.1.7, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.2.2, 3.11, 3.17, 4.2.12, 
5.3
Partial Occupancy or Use
9.6.6, 9.9
Patching, Cutting and
3.14, 6.2.5
Patents
3.17
Payment, Applications for
4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.8.5, 9.10.1, 
14.2.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3
Payment, Certificates for
4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 9.10.1, 
9.10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4
Payment, Failure of
9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2
Payment, Final
4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.10, 12.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3
Payment Bond, Performance Bond and
7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2
Payments, Progress
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 14.2.3, 15.1.4
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
9
Payments to Subcontractors
5.4.2, 9.5.1.3, 9.6.2, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 14.2.1.2
PCB
10.3.1
Performance Bond and Payment Bond
7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2
Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws
2.3.1, 3.7, 3.13, 7.3.4.4, 10.2.2
PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION OF
10
Polychlorinated Biphenyl
10.3.1
Product Data, Definition of
3.12.2
Product Data and Samples, Shop Drawings
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7
Progress and Completion
4.2.2, 8.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 14.1.4, 15.1.4
Progress Payments
9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 14.2.3, 15.1.4
Project, Definition of
1.1.4
Project Representatives

679

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

8

4.2.10
Property Insurance
10.2.5, 11.2
Proposal Requirements
1.1.1
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
10
Regulations and Laws
1.5, 2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 
10.2.2, 13.1, 13.3, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14, 15.2.8, 
15.4
Rejection of Work
4.2.6, 12.2.1
Releases and Waivers of Liens
9.3.1, 9.10.2
Representations
3.2.1, 3.5, 3.12.6, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1
Representatives
2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.9, 4.1.1, 4.2.10, 13.2.1
Responsibility for Those Performing the Work
3.3.2, 3.18, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 5.3, 6.1.3, 6.2, 6.3, 9.5.1, 10
Retainage
9.3.1, 9.6.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3
Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions 
by Contractor
3.2, 3.12.7, 6.1.3
Review of Contractor’s Submittals by Owner and 
Architect
3.10.1, 3.10.2, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2, 5.2, 6.1.3, 9.2, 9.8.2
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and 
Samples by Contractor
3.12
Rights and Remedies
1.1.2, 2.4, 2.5, 3.5, 3.7.4, 3.15.2, 4.2.6, 5.3, 5.4, 6.1, 
6.3, 7.3.1, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.2.5, 10.3, 12.2.1, 12.2.2, 
12.2.4, 13.3, 14, 15.4
Royalties, Patents and Copyrights
3.17
Rules and Notices for Arbitration
15.4.1
Safety of Persons and Property
10.2, 10.4
Safety Precautions and Programs
3.3.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 5.3, 10.1, 10.2, 10.4
Samples, Definition of
3.12.3
Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7
Samples at the Site, Documents and
3.11
Schedule of Values
9.2, 9.3.1
Schedules, Construction
3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2
Separate Contracts and Contractors
1.1.4, 3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.7, 6, 8.3.1, 12.1.2
Separate Contractors, Definition of

6.1.1
Shop Drawings, Definition of
3.12.1
Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples
3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7
Site, Use of
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1
Site Inspections
3.2.2, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 3.7.4, 4.2, 9.9.2, 9.4.2, 9.10.1, 13.4
Site Visits, Architect’s
3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4
Special Inspections and Testing
4.2.6, 12.2.1, 13.4
Specifications, Definition of
1.1.6
Specifications
1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.2.2, 1.5, 3.12.10, 3.17, 4.2.14
Statute of Limitations
15.1.2, 15.4.1.1
Stopping the Work
2.2.2, 2.4, 9.7, 10.3, 14.1
Stored Materials
6.2.1, 9.3.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4
Subcontractor, Definition of
5.1.1
SUBCONTRACTORS
5
Subcontractors, Work by
1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.1, 3.18, 4.2.3, 5.2.3, 5.3, 5.4, 
9.3.1.2, 9.6.7
Subcontractual Relations
5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6, 9.10, 10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1
Submittals
3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 7.3.4, 9.2, 9.3, 
9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3
Submittal Schedule
3.10.2, 3.12.5, 4.2.7
Subrogation, Waivers of
6.1.1, 11.3
Substances, Hazardous
10.3
Substantial Completion
4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 
12.2, 15.1.2
Substantial Completion, Definition of
9.8.1
Substitution of Subcontractors
5.2.3, 5.2.4
Substitution of Architect
2.3.3
Substitutions of Materials
3.4.2, 3.5, 7.3.8
Sub-subcontractor, Definition of
5.1.2
Subsurface Conditions
3.7.4
Successors and Assigns

680

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

9

13.2
Superintendent
3.9, 10.2.6
Supervision and Construction Procedures
1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 
7.1.3, 7.3.4, 8.2, 8.3.1, 9.4.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.4
Suppliers
1.5, 3.12.1, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 5.2.1, 9.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.4, 9.6, 
9.10.5, 14.2.1
Surety
5.4.1.2, 9.6.8, 9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.2, 14.2.2, 
15.2.7
Surety, Consent of
9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3
Surveys
1.1.7, 2.3.4
Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
14.3
Suspension of the Work
3.7.5, 5.4.2, 14.3
Suspension or Termination of the Contract
5.4.1.1, 14
Taxes
3.6, 3.8.2.1, 7.3.4.4
Termination by the Contractor
14.1, 15.1.7
Termination by the Owner for Cause
5.4.1.1, 14.2, 15.1.7
Termination by the Owner for Convenience
14.4
Termination of the Architect
2.3.3
Termination of the Contractor Employment
14.2.2

TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE 
CONTRACT
14
Tests and Inspections
3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 
9.9.2, 9.10.1, 10.3.2, 12.2.1, 13.4
TIME
8
Time, Delays and Extensions of
3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 
10.3.2, 10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.6, 15.2.5
Time Limits

2.1.2, 2.2, 2.5, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2, 
5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 
9.4.1, 9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 12.2, 13.4, 14, 
15.1.2, 15.1.3, 15.4
Time Limits on Claims
3.7.4, 10.2.8, 15.1.2, 15.1.3
Title to Work
9.3.2, 9.3.3
UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
12
Uncovering of Work
12.1
Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown
3.7.4, 8.3.1, 10.3
Unit Prices
7.3.3.2, 9.1.2
Use of Documents
1.1.1, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.12.6, 5.3
Use of Site
3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1
Values, Schedule of
9.2, 9.3.1
Waiver of Claims by the Architect
13.3.2
Waiver of Claims by the Contractor
9.10.5, 13.3.2, 15.1.7
Waiver of Claims by the Owner
9.9.3, 9.10.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.2.1, 13.3.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.7
Waiver of Consequential Damages
14.2.4, 15.1.7
Waiver of Liens
9.3, 9.10.2, 9.10.4
Waivers of Subrogation
6.1.1, 11.3
Warranty
3.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 12.2.2, 
15.1.2
Weather Delays
8.3, 15.1.6.2
Work, Definition of
1.1.3
Written Consent
1.5.2, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12.8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.10.3, 
13.2, 13.3.2, 15.4.4.2
Written Interpretations
4.2.11, 4.2.12
Written Orders
1.1.1, 2.4, 3.9, 7, 8.2.2, 12.1, 12.2, 13.4.2, 14.3.1

681

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

10

ARTICLE 1   GENERAL PROVISIONS
§ 1.1 Basic Definitions
§ 1.1.1 The Contract Documents
The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the 
Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other 
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, other documents listed in 
the Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment 
to the Contract signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive, or (4) a written 
order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the 
Contract Documents do not include the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, 
other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contractor’s bid or 
proposal, or portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements.

§ 1.1.2 The Contract
The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated 
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Documents shall 
not be construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the 
Architect’s consultants, (2) between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3) between the Owner 
and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants, or (4) between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the 
Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the 
Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.

§ 1.1.3 The Work
The term “Work” means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or 
partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment, and services provided or to be provided by 
the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.

§ 1.1.4 The Project
The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole 
or a part and which may include construction by the Owner and by Separate Contractors.

§ 1.1.5 The Drawings
The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and 
dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.

§ 1.1.6 The Specifications
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials, 
equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.

§ 1.1.7 Instruments of Service
Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the 
tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their 
respective professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies, 
surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§ 1.1.8 Initial Decision Maker
The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in 
accordance with Section 15.2. The Initial Decision Maker shall not show partiality to the Owner or Contractor and 
shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 1.2 Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents
§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and 
completion of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by 
one shall be as binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent 

682

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

11

consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the 
indicated results.

§ 1.2.1.1 The invalidity of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not invalidate the Contract or its remaining 
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Contract Documents violates any law, or is otherwise invalid 
or unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and 
enforceable. In such case the Contract Documents shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give 
effect to the parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Contract.

§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not 
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be 
performed by any trade.

§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction 
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings.

§ 1.3 Capitalization
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of 
numbered articles, or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.

§ 1.4 Interpretation
In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and “any” and 
articles such as “the” and “an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in 
another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.

§ 1.5 Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications, and Other Instruments of Service
§ 1.5.1 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and retain all common law, statutory, and other 
reserved rights in their Instruments of Service, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-
subcontractors, and suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or 
distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be 
construed as publication in derogation of the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rights.

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the 
Instruments of Service provided to them, subject to any protocols established pursuant to Sections 1.7 and 1.8, solely 
and exclusively for execution of the Work. All copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, 
if any, shown on the Instruments of Service. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers may 
not use the Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to the Project outside the scope of the Work 
without the specific written consent of the Owner, Architect, and the Architect’s consultants.

§ 1.6 Notice
§ 1.6.1 Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.6.2, where the Contract Documents require one party to notify or 
give notice to the other party, such notice shall be provided in writing to the designated representative of the party to 
whom the notice is addressed and shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person, by mail, by 
courier, or by electronic transmission if a method for electronic transmission is set forth in the Agreement.

§ 1.6.2 Notice of Claims as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be provided in writing and shall be deemed to have been 
duly served only if delivered to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed by 
certified or registered mail, or by courier providing proof of delivery.

§ 1.7 Digital Data Use and Transmission
The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transmission and use of Instruments of Service or any other 
information or documentation in digital form. The parties will use AIA Document E203™–2013, Building 
Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, 
and exchange of digital data.

683

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

12

§ 1.8 Building Information Models Use and Reliance
Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols 
governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model and without having those protocols set 
forth in AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, and the requisite 
AIA Document G202™–2013, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form, shall be at the using or 
relying party’s sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or 
contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees.

ARTICLE 2   OWNER
§ 2.1 General
§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have 
express authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization. 
Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term “Owner” means 
the Owner or the Owner’s authorized representative.

§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor, within fifteen days after receipt of a written request, information 
necessary and relevant for the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce mechanic’s lien rights. Such 
information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located, 
usually referred to as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.

§ 2.2 Evidence of the Owner’s Financial Arrangements
§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to 
the Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s 
obligations under the Contract. The Contractor shall have no obligation to commence the Work until the Owner 
provides such evidence. If commencement of the Work is delayed under this Section 2.2.1, the Contract Time shall 
be extended appropriately.

§ 2.2.2 Following commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish 
to the Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s 
obligations under the Contract only if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Contractor as the Contract 
Documents require; (2) the Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to 
make payment when due; or (3) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum. If the Owner fails to 
provide such evidence, as required, within fourteen days of the Contractor’s request, the Contractor may 
immediately stop the Work and, in that event, shall notify the Owner that the Work has stopped. However, if the 
request is made because a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum under (3) above, the Contractor 
may immediately stop only that portion of the Work affected by the change until reasonable evidence is provided. If 
the Work is stopped under this Section 2.2.2, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract 
Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and start-up, plus 
interest as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 2.2.3 After the Owner furnishes evidence of financial arrangements under this Section 2.2, the Owner shall not 
materially vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor.

§ 2.2.4 Where the Owner has designated information furnished under this Section 2.2 as “confidential,” the 
Contractor shall keep the information confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person. However, the 
Contractor may disclose “confidential” information, after seven (7) days’ notice to the Owner, where disclosure is 
required by law, including a subpoena or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental 
entity, or by court or arbitrator(s) order. The Contractor may also disclose “confidential” information to its 
employees, consultants, sureties, Subcontractors and their employees, Sub-subcontractors, and others who need to 
know the content of such information solely and exclusively for the Project and who agree to maintain the 
confidentiality of such information.

§ 2.3 Information and Services Required of the Owner
§ 2.3.1 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents, 
including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, 

684

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

13

assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent 
changes in existing facilities.

§ 2.3.2 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture, or an entity lawfully practicing 
architecture, in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the 
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.

§ 2.3.3 If the employment of the Architect terminates, the Owner shall employ a successor to whom the Contractor 
has no reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the Architect.

§ 2.3.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of 
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the 
Work.

§ 2.3.5 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with 
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control 
and relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the 
Contractor’s written request for such information or services.

§ 2.3.6 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor one copy of 
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2.

§ 2.4 Owner’s Right to Stop the Work
If the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as 
required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the 
Owner may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such 
order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part 
of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent 
required by Section 6.1.3.

§ 2.5 Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work
If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails 
within a ten-day period after receipt of notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such default 
or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, 
correct such default or neglect. Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to 
prior approval of the Architect and the Architect may, pursuant to Section 9.5.1, withhold or nullify a Certificate for 
Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the reasonable cost of 
correcting such deficiencies, including Owner’s expenses and compensation for the Architect’s additional services 
made necessary by such default, neglect, or failure. If current and future payments are not sufficient to cover such 
amounts, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. If the Contractor disagrees with the actions of the 
Owner or the Architect, or the amounts claimed as costs to the Owner, the Contractor may file a Claim pursuant to 
Article 15.

ARTICLE 3   CONTRACTOR
§ 3.1 General
§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the 
jurisdiction where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have 
express authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term “Contractor” means 
the Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized representative.

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of its obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests, 
inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor.

685

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

14

§ 3.2 Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor
§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, 
become generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated personal 
observations with requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the 
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as 
the information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.4, shall take field measurements of any existing 
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These 
obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the 
purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor 
shall promptly report to the Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or made known to the 
Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the 
Contractor’s review is made in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional, 
unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable 
laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor 
shall promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a 
request for information in such form as the Architect may require.

§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the 
Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or 
3.2.3, the Contractor shall submit Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations 
of Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner, subject to Section 15.1.7, 
as would have been avoided if the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those 
obligations, the Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, 
inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions 
and the Contract Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes, 
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 3.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures
§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract. If the Contract 
Documents give specific instructions concerning construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 
procedures, the Contractor shall evaluate the jobsite safety thereof and shall be solely responsible for the jobsite 
safety of such means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Owner 
and Architect, and shall propose alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect 
shall evaluate the proposed alternative solely for conformance with the design intent for the completed construction. 
Unless the Architect objects to the Contractor’s proposed alternative, the Contractor shall perform the Work using 
its alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. 

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s employees, 
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or 
on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors.

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that 
such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.

§ 3.4 Labor and Materials
§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other 
facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent 
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.

686

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

15

§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work approved by the Architect in accordance with Section 3.12.8 
or ordered by the Architect in accordance with Section 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the 
consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction 
Change Directive.

§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other 
persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly 
skilled in tasks assigned to them.

§ 3.5 Warranty
§ 3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the 
Contract will be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The 
Contractor further warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be 
free from defects, except for those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. 
Work, materials, or equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor’s 
warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the 
Contractor, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. If 
required by the Architect, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials 
and equipment.

§ 3.5.2 All material, equipment, or other special warranties required by the Contract Documents shall be issued in the 
name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance with Section 9.8.4.

§ 3.6 Taxes
The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are 
legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled 
to go into effect.

§ 3.7 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws
§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building 
permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper 
execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally 
required at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded.

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility 
for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.

§ 3.7.4 Concealed or Unknown Conditions
If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions 
that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an 
unusual nature that differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in 
construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall promptly 
provide notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than 14 days 
after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly investigate such conditions and, if the Architect 
determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required 
for, performance of any part of the Work, will recommend that an equitable adjustment be made in the Contract Sum 
or Contract Time, or both. If the Architect determines that the conditions at the site are not materially different from 
those indicated in the Contract Documents and that no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect 
shall promptly notify the Owner and Contractor, stating the reasons. If either party disputes the Architect’s 
determination or recommendation, that party may submit a Claim as provided in Article 15.

687

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

16

§ 3.7.5 If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial 
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately 
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such 
notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume 
the operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but 
shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the 
Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in 
Article 15.

§ 3.8 Allowances
§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items 
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, 
but the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable 
objection.

§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents,
.1    allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and 

all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;
.2    Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and 

other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but 
not in the allowances; and

.3    whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly 
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual 
costs and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor’s costs under Section 
3.8.2.2.

§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness.

§ 3.9 Superintendent
§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance 
at the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and 
communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor.

§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the 
name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. Within 14 days of receipt of the information, the Architect 
may notify the Contractor, stating whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to the proposed 
superintendent or (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the Architect to provide notice within the 14-day 
period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made 
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent, 
which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed.

§ 3.10 Contractor’s Construction and Submittal Schedules
§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall submit for the Owner’s and Architect’s 
information a Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall contain detail appropriate for the 
Project, including (1) the date of commencement of the Work, interim schedule milestone dates, and the date of 
Substantial Completion; (2) an apportionment of the Work by construction activity; and (3) the time required for 
completion of each portion of the Work. The schedule shall provide for the orderly progression of the Work to 
completion and shall not exceed time limits current under the Contract Documents. The schedule shall be revised at 
appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and Project.

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter as necessary to maintain a current 
submittal schedule, shall submit a submittal schedule for the Architect’s approval. The Architect’s approval shall not 
be unreasonably delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (1) be coordinated with the Contractor’s 
construction schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review submittals. If the Contractor fails to 
submit a submittal schedule, or fails to provide submittals in accordance with the approved submittal schedule, the 

688

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

17

Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time 
required for review of submittals.

§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to 
the Owner and Architect.

§ 3.11 Documents and Samples at the Site
The Contractor shall make available, at the Project site, the Contract Documents, including Change Orders, 
Construction Change Directives, and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field 
changes and selections made during construction, and the approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and 
similar required submittals. These shall be in electronic form or paper copy, available to the Architect and Owner, 
and delivered to the Architect for submittal to the Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as 
constructed.

§ 3.12 Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples
§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data specially prepared for the Work by the 
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor to illustrate some portion of 
the Work.

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams, 
and other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work.

§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment, or workmanship, and establish standards 
by which the Work will be judged.

§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose 
is to demonstrate how the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept expressed 
in the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittals. 
Review by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals upon which the 
Architect is not expected to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents. Submittals that 
are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned by the Architect without action.

§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve, and submit to the 
Architect, Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents, in 
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal 
schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of 
the Owner or of Separate Contractors.

§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to 
the Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified 
materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and (3) checked and 
coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract 
Documents.

§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittal 
and review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, until the respective submittal has been 
approved by the Architect.

§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of 
responsibility for deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, unless the Contractor has specifically notified the Architect 
of such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given written approval to the specific deviation as 
a minor change in the Work, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued authorizing 
the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, 
Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, by the Architect’s approval thereof.

689

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

18

§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data, 
Samples, or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the 
absence of such notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of 
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of 
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor’s 
responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures. The Contractor shall not be 
required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law.

§ 3.12.10.1 If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or 
equipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will 
specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely 
upon the adequacy and accuracy of the performance and design criteria provided in the Contract Documents. The 
Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by an appropriately licensed design 
professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop 
Drawings, and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings, and other submittals related to the 
Work, designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional’s written 
approval when submitted to the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy 
and accuracy of the services, certifications, and approvals performed or provided by such design professionals, 
provided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor the performance and design criteria that such 
services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the Architect will review and approve or take other 
appropriate action on submittals only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given 
and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.12.10.2 If the Contract Documents require the Contractor’s design professional to certify that the Work has been 
performed in accordance with the design criteria, the Contractor shall furnish such certifications to the Architect at 
the time and in the form specified by the Architect.

§ 3.13 Use of Site
The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably 
encumber the site with materials or equipment.

§ 3.14 Cutting and Patching
§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to 
make its parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting, or patching shall be restored to the condition 
existing prior to the cutting, fitting, or patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents.

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially completed 
construction of the Owner or Separate Contractors by cutting, patching, or otherwise altering such construction, or 
by excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter construction by the Owner or a Separate Contractor 
except with written consent of the Owner and of the Separate Contractor. Consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. The Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold, from the Owner or a Separate Contractor, its consent to 
cutting or otherwise altering the Work.

§ 3.15 Cleaning Up
§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials and 
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste 
materials, rubbish, the Contractor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus materials from and about 
the Project.

§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and the 
Owner shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor.

690

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

19

§ 3.16 Access to Work
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect with access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever 
located.

§ 3.17 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights
The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement 
of copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but 
shall not be responsible for defense or loss when a particular design, process, or product of a particular manufacturer 
or manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are contained in 
Drawings, Specifications, or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if an infringement of a 
copyright or patent is discovered by, or made known to, the Contractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for the 
loss unless the information is promptly furnished to the Architect.

§ 3.18 Indemnification
§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, 
Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages, 
losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the 
Work, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, 
or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the 
negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or 
anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense is 
caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce 
other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section 
3.18.

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an employee of the Contractor, 
a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the 
indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, 
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts, 
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

ARTICLE 4   ARCHITECT
§ 4.1 General
§ 4.1.1 The Architect is the person or entity retained by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.2 and identified as such in 
the Agreement.

§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents 
shall not be restricted, modified, or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. 
Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 4.2 Administration of the Contract
§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be 
an Owner’s representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment. 
The Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract 
Documents.

§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed 
with the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, 
and to determine in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when 
fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to 
make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will 
not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or 
procedures, or for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the 
Contractor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and 
quality of the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the 

691

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

20

Contract Documents, (2) known deviations from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, 
and (3) defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s 
failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not 
have control over or charge of, and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of, the Contractor, Subcontractors, 
or their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 4.2.4 Communications 
The Owner and Contractor shall include the Architect in all communications that relate to or affect the Architect’s 
services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance of any 
direct communications between the Owner and the Contractor otherwise relating to the Project. Communications by 
and with the Architect’s consultants shall be through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and 
suppliers shall be through the Contractor. Communications by and with Separate Contractors shall be through the 
Owner. The Contract Documents may specify other communication protocols.

§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review 
and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts.

§ 4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the 
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the 
Work in accordance with Sections 13.4.2 and 13.4.3, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or completed. 
However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to 
exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, 
suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals 
such as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance 
with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect’s action will be 
taken in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved 
submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional 
judgment to permit adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the 
accuracy and completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for 
installation or performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as 
required by the Contract Documents. The Architect’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the 
Contractor of the obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5, and 3.12. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval 
of safety precautions or of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect’s 
approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.

§ 4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may order minor changes 
in the Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make determinations and 
recommendations regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7.4.

§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date 
of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8; receive and forward to the 
Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and 
assembled by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to Section 
9.10.

§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more Project representatives to assist in 
carrying out the Architect’s responsibilities at the site. The Owner shall notify the Contractor of any change in the 
duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Project representatives.

§ 4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the 
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests 
will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable 
from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations 

692

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

21

and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not 
show partiality to either, and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§ 4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent 
expressed in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The 
Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with 
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and 
Specifications in response to the requests for information.

ARTICLE 5   SUBCONTRACTORS
§ 5.1 Definitions
§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the 
Work at the site. The term “Subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in 
number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term “Subcontractor” 
does not include a Separate Contractor or the subcontractors of a Separate Contractor.

§ 5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to 
perform a portion of the Work at the site. The term “Sub-subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract 
Documents as if singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-
subcontractor.

§ 5.2 Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for Portions of the Work
§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the 
Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the persons or entities proposed for each principal portion of the 
Work, including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design. Within 14 days of 
receipt of the information, the Architect may notify the Contractor whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has 
reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity or (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the 
Architect to provide notice within the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made 
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the 
Contractor has made reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.3 If the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the 
Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. If the proposed but 
rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall 
be increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order 
shall be issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract 
Sum or Contract Time shall be allowed for such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively 
in submitting names as required.

§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person, or entity for one previously selected if the Owner 
or Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution.

§ 5.3 Subcontractual Relations
By appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be 
performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume 
toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the responsibility for safety of the 
Subcontractor’s Work that the Contractor, by these Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner and Architect. 
Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and Architect under the Contract 
Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not 
prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the subcontract 
agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies, and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract 
Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into 
similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, 

693

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

22

prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor 
will be bound, and, upon written request of the Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of 
the proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will 
similarly make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-
subcontractors.

§ 5.4 Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided 
that

.1    assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to 
Section 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the 
Subcontractor and Contractor; and

.2    assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the 
Contract.

When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor’s rights and 
obligations under the subcontract.

§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the Subcontractor’s 
compensation shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension.

§ 5.4.3 Upon assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a 
successor contractor or other entity. If the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor contractor or other entity, 
the Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor contractor’s obligations under the 
subcontract.

ARTICLE 6   CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
§ 6.1 Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts
§ 6.1.1 The term “Separate Contractor(s)” shall mean other contractors retained by the Owner under separate 
agreements. The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the 
Owner’s own forces, and with Separate Contractors retained under Conditions of the Contract substantially similar 
to those of this Contract, including those provisions of the Conditions of the Contract related to insurance and 
waiver of subrogation.

§ 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations 
on the site, the term “Contractor” in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes 
each separate Owner-Contractor Agreement.

§ 6.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each Separate 
Contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate with 
any Separate Contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Contractor shall make any 
revisions to its construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The construction 
schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner until 
subsequently revised.

§ 6.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations 
related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces or with Separate Contractors, the Owner or its Separate 
Contractors shall have the same obligations and rights that the Contractor has under the Conditions of the Contract, 
including, without excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6, and Articles 10, 11, and 12.

§ 6.2 Mutual Responsibility
§ 6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and Separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and 
storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the 
Contractor’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.

§ 6.2.2 If part of the Contractor’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or operations by 
the Owner or a Separate Contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, 

694

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

23

promptly notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or 
Separate Contractor that would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Contractor’s Work. 
Failure of the Contractor to notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects prior to proceeding with the 
Work shall constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner’s or Separate Contractor’s completed or partially 
completed construction is fit and proper to receive the Contractor’s Work. The Contractor shall not be responsible 
for discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate Contractor that are not 
apparent.

§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a Separate 
Contractor because of the Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner 
shall be responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a Separate Contractor’s delays, 
improperly timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction.

§ 6.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage that the Contractor wrongfully causes to completed or 
partially completed construction or to property of the Owner or Separate Contractor as provided in Section 10.2.5.

§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each Separate Contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are 
described for the Contractor in Section 3.14.

§ 6.3 Owner’s Right to Clean Up
If a dispute arises among the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner as to the responsibility under their 
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the 
Owner may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible.

ARTICLE 7   CHANGES IN THE WORK
§ 7.1 General
§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the 
Contract, by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to the 
limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. A Construction 
Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the 
Contractor. An order for a minor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect alone.

§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents. The 
Contractor shall proceed promptly with changes in the Work, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, 
Construction Change Directive, or order for a minor change in the Work.

§ 7.2 Change Orders
§ 7.2.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor, and 
Architect stating their agreement upon all of the following:

.1    The change in the Work;

.2    The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and

.3    The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

§ 7.3 Construction Change Directives
§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and 
Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract 
Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes 
in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the 
Contract Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly.

§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change 
Order.

§ 7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be 
based on one of the following methods:

695

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

24

.1    Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation;

.2    Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;

.3    Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or 
percentage fee; or

.4    As provided in Section 7.3.4.

§ 7.3.4 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum, 
the Architect shall determine the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of those performing 
the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an amount for overhead 
and profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable amount. In 
such case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Architect may 
prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in the 
Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 7.3.4 shall be limited to the following:

.1    Costs of labor, including applicable payroll taxes, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom, 
workers’ compensation insurance, and other employee costs approved by the Architect;

.2    Costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or 
consumed;

.3    Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the Contractor 
or others;

.4    Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use, or similar taxes, directly 
related to the change; and

.5    Costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change.

§ 7.3.5 If the Contractor disagrees with the adjustment in the Contract Time, the Contractor may make a Claim in 
accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.

§ 7.3.6 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in 
the Work involved and advise the Architect of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, 
provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or 
Contract Time.

§ 7.3.7 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement therewith, 
including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall 
be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.

§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a 
net decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and 
credits covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall 
be figured on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change.

§ 7.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor 
may request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment. 
The Architect will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification for payment for those costs 
and certify for payment the amount that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to be 
reasonably justified. The Architect’s interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same basis 
as a Change Order, subject to the right of either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 15.

§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the 
adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such 
agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders may be 
issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive.

§ 7.4 Minor Changes in the Work
The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents 
and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. The Architect’s order 
for minor changes shall be in writing. If the Contractor believes that the proposed minor change in the Work will 

696

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

25

affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor shall notify the Architect and shall not proceed to 
implement the change in the Work. If the Contractor performs the Work set forth in the Architect’s order for a minor 
change without prior notice to the Architect that such change will affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the 
Contractor waives any adjustment to the Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time.

ARTICLE 8   TIME
§ 8.1 Definitions
§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in 
the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work.

§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement.

§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8.

§ 8.1.4 The term “day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically 
defined.

§ 8.2 Progress and Completion
§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement, 
the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.

§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, commence 
the Work prior to the effective date of insurance required to be furnished by the Contractor and Owner.

§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion 
within the Contract Time.

§ 8.3 Delays and Extensions of Time
§ 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by (1) an act or neglect 
of the Owner or Architect, of an employee of either, or of a Separate Contractor; (2) by changes ordered in the 
Work; (3) by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, adverse weather conditions 
documented in accordance with Section 15.1.6.2, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control; (4) by delay 
authorized by the Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution; or (5) by other causes that the 
Contractor asserts, and the Architect determines, justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended for such 
reasonable time as the Architect may determine.

§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.

§ 8.3.3 This Section 8.3 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of 
the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 9   PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
§ 9.1 Contract Sum
§ 9.1.1 The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount 
payable by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

§ 9.1.2 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally 
contemplated are materially changed so that application of such unit prices to the actual quantities causes substantial 
inequity to the Owner or Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values
Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit a 
schedule of values to the Architect before the first Application for Payment, allocating the entire Contract Sum to 
the various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in the form, and supported by the data to 
substantiate its accuracy, required by the Architect. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used 
as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment. Any changes to the schedule of values shall be 
submitted to the Architect and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require, and 

697

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

26

unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s subsequent Applications 
for Payment.

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment
§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the 
Architect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under 
Section 9.2, for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, if required, and supported by all 
data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment that the Owner or Architect require, such as copies of 
requisitions, and releases and waivers of liens from Subcontractors and suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if 
provided for in the Contract Documents.

§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in 
the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the 
Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders.

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the 
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or supplier, unless such Work has been performed by others 
whom the Contractor intends to pay.

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and 
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance 
by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location 
agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon 
compliance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner’s title to such 
materials and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of applicable 
insurance, storage, and transportation to the site, for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner 
no later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for 
Payment all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the 
Owner shall, to the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, 
security interests, or encumbrances, in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, or other persons or entities 
that provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to the Work.

§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment
§ 9.4.1 The Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either (1) 
issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the 
Contractor; or (2) issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Architect determines is 
properly due, and notify the Contractor and Owner of the Architect’s reasons for withholding certification in part as 
provided in Section 9.5.1; or (3) withhold certification of the entire Application for Payment, and notify the 
Contractor and Owner of the Architect’s reason for withholding certification in whole as provided in Section 9.5.1.

§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner, 
based on the Architect’s evaluation of the Work and the data in the Application for Payment, that, to the best of the 
Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the 
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount 
certified. The foregoing representations are subject to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract 
Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of subsequent tests and inspections, to correction of minor 
deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and to specific qualifications expressed by the 
Architect. However, the issuance of a Certificate for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has (1) 
made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work; (2) reviewed 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures; (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received 
from Subcontractors and suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to 
payment; or (4) made examination to ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously 
paid on account of the Contract Sum.

698

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

27

§ 9.5 Decisions to Withhold Certification
§ 9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary 
to protect the Owner, if in the Architect’s opinion the representations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot 
be made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the 
Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised 
amount, the Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to 
make such representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of 
subsequently discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, to 
such extent as may be necessary in the Architect’s opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor 
is responsible, including loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of

.1    defective Work not remedied;

.2    third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims, unless security 
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor;

.3    failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or suppliers for labor, materials 
or equipment;

.4    reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;

.5    damage to the Owner or a Separate Contractor;

.6    reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid 
balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or

.7    repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 9.5.2 When either party disputes the Architect’s decision regarding a Certificate for Payment under Section 9.5.1, 
in whole or in part, that party may submit a Claim in accordance with Article 15.

§ 9.5.3 When the reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts 
previously withheld.

§ 9.5.4 If the Architect withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option, 
issue joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractor or supplier to whom the Contractor failed to make 
payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. If the Owner makes payments by 
joint check, the Owner shall notify the Architect and the Contractor shall reflect such payment on its next 
Application for Payment.

§ 9.6 Progress Payments
§ 9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and 
within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect.

§ 9.6.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor, no later than seven days after receipt of payment from the 
Owner, the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to 
the Contractor on account of the Subcontractor’s portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by appropriate 
agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar 
manner.

§ 9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of 
completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Owner on 
account of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor.

§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid 
Subcontractors and suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractor for subcontracted Work. If the Contractor 
fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact Subcontractors and 
suppliers to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an 
obligation to pay, or to see to the payment of money to, a Subcontractor or supplier, except as may otherwise be 
required by law.

§ 9.6.5 The Contractor’s payments to suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided in Sections 9.6.2, 
9.6.3 and 9.6.4.

699

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

28

§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the 
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.6.7 Unless the Contractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum, 
payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors or provided by suppliers shall 
be held by the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished materials, or both, 
under contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall 
require money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor, create any 
fiduciary liability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust, or entitle any person or entity to an 
award of punitive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision.

§ 9.6.8 Provided the Owner has fulfilled its payment obligations under the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall 
defend and indemnify the Owner from all loss, liability, damage or expense, including reasonable attorney’s fees 
and litigation expenses, arising out of any lien claim or other claim for payment by any Subcontractor or supplier of 
any tier. Upon receipt of notice of a lien claim or other claim for payment, the Owner shall notify the Contractor. If 
approved by the applicable court, when required, the Contractor may substitute a surety bond for the property 
against which the lien or other claim for payment has been asserted.

§ 9.7 Failure of Payment
If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days after 
receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven days 
after the date established in the Contract Documents, the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding 
dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ notice to the Owner and Architect, stop the 
Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and 
the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and start-
up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8 Substantial Completion
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof 
is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the 
Work for its intended use.

§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept 
separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of 
items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the 
responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or 
designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Architect’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not 
included on the Contractor’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so 
that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor 
shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification 
by the Architect. In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to 
determine Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.4 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a 
Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion; establish 
responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and 
insurance; and fix the time within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the 
Certificate. Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion 
of the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.5 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written 
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in the Certificate. Upon such acceptance, and consent of surety if 
any, the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment 
shall be adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

700

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

29

§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use
§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when 
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is consented 
to by the insurer and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or 
use may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Contractor have 
accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, 
maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for 
correction of the Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents. When the Contractor 
considers a portion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit a list to the Architect as provided 
under Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. The 
stage of the progress of the Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Contractor or, if 
no agreement is reached, by decision of the Architect.

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor, and Architect shall jointly inspect 
the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the 
Work.

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not 
constitute acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment
§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon 
receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection. When the Architect 
finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect will 
promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and 
belief, and on the basis of the Architect’s on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in accordance 
with the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the Contractor and noted in the final 
Certificate is due and payable. The Architect’s final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation 
that conditions listed in Section 9.10.2 as precedent to the Contractor’s being entitled to final payment have been 
fulfilled.

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits 
to the Architect (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected 
with the Work for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts 
withheld by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the 
Contract Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement that the 
Contractor knows of no reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the Contract 
Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (5) documentation of any special warranties, such as 
manufacturers’ warranties or specific Subcontractor warranties, and (6) if required by the Owner, other data 
establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts and releases and waivers of liens, claims, 
security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated 
by the Owner. If a Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may 
furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such lien, claim, security interest, or 
encumbrance. If a lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance remains unsatisfied after payments are made, the 
Contractor shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging the lien, 
claim, security interest, or encumbrance, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault 
of the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Architect so confirms, the 
Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without terminating the 
Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed, corrected, and accepted. If 
the remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract 
Documents, and if bonds have been furnished, the written consent of the surety to payment of the balance due for 
that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to 
certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment, 
except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims.

701

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

30

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from
.1    liens, Claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;
.2    failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; 
.3    terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; or
.4    audits performed by the Owner, if permitted by the Contract Documents, after final payment.

§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a supplier, shall constitute a waiver of 
claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time of 
final Application for Payment.

ARTICLE 10   PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs
The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs 
in connection with the performance of the Contract.

§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property
§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to 
prevent damage, injury, or loss to

.1    employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby;

.2    the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, 
under care, custody, or control of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a Sub-subcontractor; and

.3    other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of 
construction.

§ 10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with, and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, bearing on safety of persons or property or their 
protection from damage, injury, or loss.

§ 10.2.3 The Contractor shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of 
the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings 
against hazards; promulgating safety regulations; and notifying the owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of 
the safeguards.

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods are 
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under 
supervision of properly qualified personnel.

§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property 
insurance required by the Contract Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in 
whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under 
Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3. The Contractor may make a Claim for the cost to remedy the damage or loss to the 
extent such damage or loss is attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable 
to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to the 
Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.18.

§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor’s organization at the site whose duty 
shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor’s superintendent unless otherwise 
designated by the Contractor in writing to the Owner and Architect.

§ 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or 
create an unsafe condition.

702

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

31

§ 10.2.8 Injury or Damage to Person or Property
If either party suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of 
others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, notice of the injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall 
be given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall provide 
sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the matter.

§ 10.3 Hazardous Materials and Substances
§ 10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Contract Documents 
regarding hazardous materials or substances. If the Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance not 
addressed in the Contract Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily 
injury or death to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or 
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Contractor, the Contractor shall, upon recognizing 
the condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area and notify the Owner and Architect of the condition.

§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to verify 
the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such material or 
substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required by the Contract 
Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications of 
persons or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of the material or substance or who are 
to perform the task of removal or safe containment of the material or substance. The Contractor and the Architect 
will promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not either has reasonable objection to the persons or 
entities proposed by the Owner. If either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity proposed 
by the Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have no reasonable 
objection. When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon 
written agreement of the Owner and Contractor. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended 
appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable additional costs 
of shutdown, delay, and start-up.

§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against 
claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from 
performance of the Work in the affected area if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or 
death as described in Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or 
expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property 
(other than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss, or expense is due to the fault or negligence 
of the party seeking indemnity.

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for hazardous materials or substances the 
Contractor brings to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The 
Owner shall be responsible for hazardous materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the 
extent of the Contractor’s fault or negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances.

§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of 
hazardous materials or substances the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the 
Contractor fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are 
due to the Owner’s fault or negligence.

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the Contractor is held liable by a government agency for 
the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the 
Contract Documents, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred.

§ 10.4 Emergencies
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contractor’s discretion, to 
prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor 
on account of an emergency shall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7.

703

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

32

ARTICLE 11   INSURANCE AND BONDS
§ 11.1 Contractor’s Insurance and Bonds
§ 11.1.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the 
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or 
insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The 
Owner, Architect, and Architect’s consultants shall be named as additional insureds under the Contractor’s 
commercial general liability policy or as otherwise described in the Contract Documents.

§ 11.1.2 The Contractor shall provide surety bonds of the types, for such penal sums, and subject to such terms and 
conditions as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required bonds 
from a company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in the jurisdiction where the Project is 
located.

§ 11.1.3 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment 
of obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall 
authorize a copy to be furnished.

§ 11.1.4 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Contractor’s Required Insurance. Within three (3) business days of the 
date the Contractor becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any insurance required by 
the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide notice to the Owner of such impending or actual cancellation 
or expiration. Upon receipt of notice from the Contractor, the Owner shall, unless the lapse in coverage arises from 
an act or omission of the Owner, have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has been cured by the 
procurement of replacement coverage by the Contractor. The furnishing of notice by the Contractor shall not relieve 
the Contractor of any contractual obligation to provide any required coverage.

§ 11.2 Owner’s Insurance
§ 11.2.1 The Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the 
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents. The Owner shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or insurance 
companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. 

§ 11.2.2 Failure to Purchase Required Property Insurance. If the Owner fails to purchase and maintain the required 
property insurance, with all of the coverages and in the amounts described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the 
Contract Documents, the Owner shall inform the Contractor in writing prior to commencement of the Work. Upon 
receipt of notice from the Owner, the Contractor may delay commencement of the Work and may obtain insurance 
that will protect the interests of the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-Subcontractors in the Work. When the 
failure to provide coverage has been cured or resolved, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be equitably 
adjusted. In the event the Owner fails to procure coverage, the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent the loss to the Owner would have been covered by the 
insurance to have been procured by the Owner. The cost of the insurance shall be charged to the Owner by a Change 
Order. If the Owner does not provide written notice, and the Contractor is damaged by the failure or neglect of the 
Owner to purchase or maintain the required insurance, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all reasonable 
costs and damages attributable thereto.

§ 11.2.3 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Owner’s Required Property Insurance. Within three (3) business days of 
the date the Owner becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any property insurance 
required by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall provide notice to the Contractor of such impending or actual 
cancellation or expiration. Unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act or omission of the Contractor: (1) the 
Contractor, upon receipt of notice from the Owner, shall have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage 
has been cured by the procurement of replacement coverage by either the Owner or the Contractor; (2) the Contract 
Time and Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted; and (3) the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent any loss to the Owner would have been covered by the 
insurance had it not expired or been cancelled. If the Contractor purchases replacement coverage, the cost of the 
insurance shall be charged to the Owner by an appropriate Change Order. The furnishing of notice by the Owner 
shall not relieve the Owner of any contractual obligation to provide required insurance.

704

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

33

§ 11.3 Waivers of Subrogation
§ 11.3.1 The Owner and Contractor waive all rights against (1) each other and any of their subcontractors, sub-
subcontractors, agents, and employees, each of the other; (2) the Architect and Architect’s consultants; and (3) 
Separate Contractors, if any, and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees, for 
damages caused by fire, or other causes of loss, to the extent those losses are covered by property insurance required 
by the Agreement or other property insurance applicable to the Project, except such rights as they have to proceeds 
of such insurance. The Owner or Contractor, as appropriate, shall require similar written waivers in favor of the 
individuals and entities identified above from the Architect, Architect’s consultants, Separate Contractors, 
subcontractors, and sub-subcontractors. The policies of insurance purchased and maintained by each person or entity 
agreeing to waive claims pursuant to this section 11.3.1 shall not prohibit this waiver of subrogation. This waiver of 
subrogation shall be effective as to a person or entity (1) even though that person or entity would otherwise have a 
duty of indemnification, contractual or otherwise, (2) even though that person or entity did not pay the insurance 
premium directly or indirectly, or (3) whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the damaged 
property.

§ 11.3.2 If during the Project construction period the Owner insures properties, real or personal or both, at or adjacent 
to the site by property insurance under policies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final payment 
property insurance is to be provided on the completed Project through a policy or policies other than those insuring 
the Project during the construction period, to the extent permissible by such policies, the Owner waives all rights in 
accordance with the terms of Section 11.3.1 for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss covered by this 
separate property insurance.

§ 11.4 Loss of Use, Business Interruption, and Delay in Completion Insurance
The Owner, at the Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain insurance that will protect the Owner against loss of 
use of the Owner’s property, or the inability to conduct normal operations, due to fire or other causes of loss. The 
Owner waives all rights of action against the Contractor and Architect for loss of use of the Owner’s property, due to 
fire or other hazards however caused.

§11.5 Adjustment and Settlement of Insured Loss
§ 11.5.1 A loss insured under the property insurance required by the Agreement shall be adjusted by the Owner as 
fiduciary and made payable to the Owner as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to 
requirements of any applicable mortgagee clause and of Section 11.5.2. The Owner shall pay the Architect and 
Contractor their just shares of insurance proceeds received by the Owner, and by appropriate agreements the 
Architect and Contractor shall make payments to their consultants and Subcontractors in similar manner.

§ 11.5.2 Prior to settlement of an insured loss, the Owner shall notify the Contractor of the terms of the proposed 
settlement as well as the proposed allocation of the insurance proceeds. The Contractor shall have 14 days from 
receipt of notice to object to the proposed settlement or allocation of the proceeds. If the Contractor does not object, 
the Owner shall settle the loss and the Contractor shall be bound by the settlement and allocation. Upon receipt, the 
Owner shall deposit the insurance proceeds in a separate account and make the appropriate distributions. Thereafter, 
if no other agreement is made or the Owner does not terminate the Contract for convenience, the Owner and 
Contractor shall execute a Change Order for reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed Work in the amount 
allocated for that purpose. If the Contractor timely objects to either the terms of the proposed settlement or the 
allocation of the proceeds, the Owner may proceed to settle the insured loss, and any dispute between the Owner and 
Contractor arising out of the settlement or allocation of the proceeds shall be resolved pursuant to Article 15. 
Pending resolution of any dispute, the Owner may issue a Construction Change Directive for the reconstruction of 
the damaged or destroyed Work.

ARTICLE 12   UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
§ 12.1 Uncovering of Work
§ 12.1.1 If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Architect’s request or to requirements specifically 
expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the 
Architect’s examination and be replaced at the Contractor’s expense without change in the Contract Time.

§ 12.1.2 If a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect has not specifically requested to examine prior 
to its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such 
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to 

705

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

34

the Contract Sum and Contract Time as may be appropriate. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, the costs of uncovering the Work, and the cost of correction, shall be at the Contractor’s expense.

§ 12.2 Correction of Work
§ 12.2.1 Before Substantial Completion
The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or failing to conform to the requirements of 
the Contract Documents, discovered before Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or 
completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost of 
uncovering and replacement, and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, 
shall be at the Contractor’s expense.

§ 12.2.2 After Substantial Completion
§ 12.2.2.1 In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.5, if, within one year after the date of 
Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of warranties 
established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, 
any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor 
shall correct it promptly after receipt of notice from the Owner to do so, unless the Owner has previously given the 
Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the 
condition. During the one-year period for correction of Work, if the Owner fails to notify the Contractor and give the 
Contractor an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require correction by the 
Contractor and to make a claim for breach of warranty. If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within 
a reasonable time during that period after receipt of notice from the Owner or Architect, the Owner may correct it in 
accordance with Section 2.5.

§ 12.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first 
performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual 
completion of that portion of the Work.

§ 12.2.2.3 The one-year period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the 
Contractor pursuant to this Section 12.2.

§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Owner.

§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or Separate 
Contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Contractor’s correction or removal of Work 
that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to 
other obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for 
correction of Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct 
the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents 
may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the 
Contractor’s liability with respect to the Contractor’s obligations other than specifically to correct the Work.

§ 12.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work
If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the 
Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as 
appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made.

ARTICLE 13   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 13.1 Governing Law
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that jurisdiction’s 
choice of law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal 
Arbitration Act shall govern Section 15.4.

706

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

35

§ 13.2 Successors and Assigns
§ 13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided 
in Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the 
other. If either party attempts to make an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain 
legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract.

§ 13.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction 
financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Contract Documents. 
The Contractor shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate the assignment.

§ 13.3 Rights and Remedies
§ 13.3.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder 
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available 
by law.

§ 13.3.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty 
afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a 
breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed upon in writing.

§ 13.4 Tests and Inspections
§ 13.4.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract 
Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations or lawful orders of public 
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and 
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public 
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect 
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such 
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of tests, inspections, or approvals that do not become requirements until 
after bids are received or negotiations concluded. The Owner shall directly arrange and pay for tests, inspections, or 
approvals where building codes or applicable laws or regulations so require.

§ 13.4.2 If the Architect, Owner, or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require 
additional testing, inspection, or approval not included under Section 13.4.1, the Architect will, upon written 
authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection, 
or approval, by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Architect of 
when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such 
costs, except as provided in Section 13.4.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense.

§ 13.4.3 If procedures for testing, inspection, or approval under Sections 13.4.1 and 13.4.2 reveal failure of the 
portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs made necessary 
by such failure, including those of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses, 
shall be at the Contractor’s expense.

§ 13.4.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection, or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Contract 
Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered to the Architect.

§ 13.4.5 If the Architect is to observe tests, inspections, or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the 
Architect will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.

§ 13.4.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the Work.

§ 13.5 Interest
Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate 
the parties agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place 
where the Project is located.

707

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

36

ARTICLE 14   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT
§ 14.1 Termination by the Contractor
§ 14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days 
through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any 
other persons or entities performing portions of the Work, for any of the following reasons:

.1    Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be 
stopped;

.2    An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, that requires all Work to be 
stopped;

.3    Because the Architect has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Contractor of 
the reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because the Owner has not 
made payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or

.4    The Owner has failed to furnish to the Contractor reasonable evidence as required by Section 2.2.

§ 14.1.2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a 
Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work, 
repeated suspensions, delays, or interruptions of the entire Work by the Owner as described in Section 14.3, 
constitute in the aggregate more than 100 percent of the total number of days scheduled for completion, or 120 days 
in any 365-day period, whichever is less.

§ 14.1.3 If one of the reasons described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days’ 
notice to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed, 
as well as reasonable overhead and profit on Work not executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination. 

§ 14.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor, a 
Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing 
portions of the Work because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract 
Documents with respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional 
days’ notice to the Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided in 
Section 14.1.3.

§ 14.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause
§ 14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor

.1    repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;

.2    fails to make payment to Subcontractors or suppliers in accordance with the respective agreements 
between the Contractor and the Subcontractors or suppliers;

.3    repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of a public authority; or

.4    otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.

§ 14.2.2 When any of the reasons described in Section 14.2.1 exist, and upon certification by the Architect that 
sufficient cause exists to justify such action, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the 
Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, seven days’ notice, terminate employment 
of the Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety:

.1    Exclude the Contractor from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and 
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor;

.2    Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and

.3    Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request 
of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs 
incurred by the Owner in finishing the Work.

§ 14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall 
not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.

§ 14.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for 
the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages incurred by the Owner and not 
expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance, 

708

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

37

the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or Owner, as the case 
may be, shall be certified by the Initial Decision Maker, upon application, and this obligation for payment shall 
survive termination of the Contract.

§ 14.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work, in 
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.

§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by 
suspension, delay, or interruption under Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include profit. No 
adjustment shall be made to the extent

.1    that performance is, was, or would have been, so suspended, delayed, or interrupted, by another cause 
for which the Contractor is responsible; or

.2    that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract.

§ 14.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience
§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor 
shall

.1    cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;

.2    take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; 
and

.3    except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, 
terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and 
purchase orders.

§ 14.4.3 In case of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Owner shall pay the Contractor for Work 
properly executed; costs incurred by reason of the termination, including costs attributable to termination of 
Subcontracts; and the termination fee, if any, set forth in the Agreement.

ARTICLE 15   CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
§ 15.1 Claims 
§ 15.1.1 Definition
A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, a change in 
the Contract Time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term “Claim” also includes other 
disputes and matters in question between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract. The 
responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. This Section 15.1.1 does not require 
the Owner to file a Claim in order to impose liquidated damages in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 15.1.2 Time Limits on Claims
The Owner and Contractor shall commence all Claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or 
related to the Contract, whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise, in accordance with the 
requirements of the binding dispute resolution method selected in the Agreement and within the period specified by 
applicable law, but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The 
Owner and Contractor waive all Claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 15.1.2.

§ 15.1.3 Notice of Claims
§ 15.1.3.1 Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered 
prior to expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to 
the other party and to the Initial Decision Maker with a copy sent to the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as 
the Initial Decision Maker. Claims by either party under this Section 15.1.3.1 shall be initiated within 21 days after 
occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition 
giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later.

709

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

38

§ 15.1.3.2 Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered 
after expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to the 
other party. In such event, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker is required.

§ 15.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance
§ 15.1.4.1 Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 
and Article 14, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall 
continue to make payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 15.1.4.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted in accordance with the Initial Decision Maker’s 
decision, subject to the right of either party to proceed in accordance with this Article 15. The Architect will issue 
Certificates for Payment in accordance with the decision of the Initial Decision Maker.

§ 15.1.5 Claims for Additional Cost
If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, notice as provided in Section 15.1.3 
shall be given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that is the subject of the Claim. Prior notice is 
not required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4.

§ 15.1.6 Claims for Additional Time
§ 15.1.6.1 If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, notice as provided in 
Section 15.1.3 shall be given. The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of 
delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.

§ 15.1.6.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be 
documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have 
been reasonably anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction.

§ 15.1.7 Waiver of Claims for Consequential Damages
The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to 
this Contract. This mutual waiver includes

.1    damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, 
business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of 
such persons; and

.2    damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of 
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit, 
except anticipated profit arising directly from the Work.

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination 
in accordance with Article 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude assessment of 
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 15.2 Initial Decision
§ 15.2.1 Claims, excluding those where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered after expiration of 
the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2 or arising under Sections 10.3, 10.4, and 11.5, shall 
be referred to the Initial Decision Maker for initial decision. The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker, 
unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Except for those Claims excluded by this Section 15.2.1, an initial 
decision shall be required as a condition precedent to mediation of any Claim. If an initial decision has not been 
rendered within 30 days after the Claim has been referred to the Initial Decision Maker, the party asserting the 
Claim may demand mediation and binding dispute resolution without a decision having been rendered. Unless the 
Initial Decision Maker and all affected parties agree, the Initial Decision Maker will not decide disputes between the 
Contractor and persons or entities other than the Owner.

§ 15.2.2 The Initial Decision Maker will review Claims and within ten days of the receipt of a Claim take one or 
more of the following actions: (1) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a response with supporting 
data from the other party, (2) reject the Claim in whole or in part, (3) approve the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise, 
or (5) advise the parties that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker 
lacks sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the 

710

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

39

Initial Decision Maker’s sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the 
Claim.

§ 15.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek 
information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Initial 
Decision Maker in rendering a decision. The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to authorize retention of 
such persons at the Owner’s expense.

§ 15.2.4 If the Initial Decision Maker requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional 
supporting data, such party shall respond, within ten days after receipt of the request, and shall either (1) provide a 
response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Initial Decision Maker when the response or supporting 
data will be furnished, or (3) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no supporting data will be furnished. Upon 
receipt of the response or supporting data, if any, the Initial Decision Maker will either reject or approve the Claim 
in whole or in part.

§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving or rejecting the Claim, or indicating that 
the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim. This initial decision shall (1) be in writing; (2) state the 
reasons therefor; and (3) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision 
Maker, of any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding 
on the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding 
dispute resolution.

§ 15.2.6 Either party may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 15.2.6.1.

§ 15.2.6.1 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of receipt of an initial decision, demand in writing that the 
other party file for mediation. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand fails to file for 
mediation within 30 days after receipt thereof, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue binding 
dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision.

§ 15.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if 
any, of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner 
may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.

§ 15.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in 
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines.

§ 15.3 Mediation
§ 15.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those 
waived as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent 
to binding dispute resolution.

§ 15.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction 
Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in 
writing, delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. 
The request may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event, 
mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending 
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the 
parties or court order. If an arbitration is stayed pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the parties may nonetheless proceed 
to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 15.3.3 Either party may, within 30 days from the date that mediation has been concluded without resolution of the 
dispute or 60 days after mediation has been demanded without resolution of the dispute, demand in writing that the 
other party file for binding dispute resolution.  If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand fails to 
file for binding dispute resolution within 60 days after receipt thereof, then both parties waive their rights to binding 
dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision.

711

Item 16.



Init.

/

AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and “AIA Contract Documents” are 
registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order 
No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract 
Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

40

§ 15.3.4 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the 
place where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in 
mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4 Arbitration
§ 15.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in the Agreement, any 
Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually 
agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction 
Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. The Arbitration shall be conducted in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. A demand for arbitration shall be 
made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the 
arbitration. The party filing a notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to 
that party on which arbitration is permitted to be demanded.

§ 15.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based 
on the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a 
written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of 
legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim.

§ 15.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in 
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity 
duly consented to by parties to the Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court 
having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4.4 Consolidation or Joinder 
§ 15.4.4.1 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either 
party may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any other arbitration to which it is a party 
provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations 
to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact, and (3) the arbitrations employ materially 
similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).

§ 15.4.4.2 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either 
party may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a common question of law or fact whose 
presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided that the party sought to be joined 
consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall not 
constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written 
consent.

§ 15.4.4.3 The Owner and Contractor grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under 
this Section 15.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as those of the 
Owner and Contractor under this Agreement.

712

Item 16.



Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA® Document A201® – 2017

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has 
added to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from 
the original AIA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text.

Note:  This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any 
part of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated 
simultaneously by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021.

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A201® – 2017. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 
1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, "A201," and 
“AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 15:21:43 CT on 
11/17/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

1

PAGE 1
 
Cedar Falls City Hall Remodel
 
Cedar Falls, Iowa
 
...
 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
 
...
 
Emergent Architecture  
100 E 2nd St, Ste 204 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613
 

713

Item 16.



AIA Document D401™ – 2003. Copyright © 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” 
“AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA 
software at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 under Order No.3123952366 which expires on 09/03/2022, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org.
User Notes:  (3B9ADA3B)

1

Certification of Document's Authenticity
AIA® Document D401™ – 2003

I, , hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the attached final document 
simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 15:21:43 CT on 11/17/2021 
under Order No. 3123952366 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final 
document I made no changes to the original text of AIA® Document A201TM - 2017, General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction, as published by the AIA in its software, other than those additions and deletions shown in 
the associated Additions and Deletions Report.

_____________________________________________________________
(Signed) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Title) 

_____________________________________________________________
(Dated)

714

Item 16.



715

Item 16.



716

Item 16.



717

Item 16.



718

Item 16.



719

Item 16.



720

Item 16.



721

Item 16.



722

Item 16.



723

Item 16.



724

Item 16.



725

Item 16.



726

Item 16.



727

Item 16.



728

Item 16.



729

Item 16.



730

Item 16.



731

Item 16.



732

Item 16.



733

Item 16.



734

Item 16.



735

Item 16.



736

Item 16.



737

Item 16.



738

Item 16.



739

Item 16.



740

Item 16.



741

Item 16.



742

Item 16.



743

Item 16.



744

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

 DATE: November 24, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program:  
  610 W 28th Street 
 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single-family owner-occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner-occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
Rodney and Ricki Dieser recently purchased the property at 610 W 28th Street. The owner has 
applied to be considered for the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program 
and has attached supplemental materials as required for review. The property meets the 
requirements for the program: has been a rental for at least the last three years (since 2004), 
is located in the R-2 zoning district, falls within the program’s geographical boundaries, and is 
in a block with less than 75% rentals.  
 
After purchasing the house, Rodney and Ricki Dieser have spent about $7300 on needed 
interior repairs and few exterior improvements and also plan to make needed additional 
exterior repairs and update exterior components of the house including replacing gutters, 
replace sidings of the house, install soffits, window trims, replace three windows and a door 
with new ones. All of these improvements are estimated to cost about $27,545.00 for which 
quotes from Sides and Bown Construction ($9,550), Spahn & Rose Lumber Company 
($14,995), and Webber’s Gutter service ($3,079) has been submitted. The quotes are also 
attached with the packet for reference. The applicant also proposes to replace all the 
remaining  windows of the house, provided the grant is given which will add another $5,750 
expense to the total above, bringing total investments of about $33,295.00. Applicant has also 
provided a detailed house inspection report for review (attached with packet) with pictures that 
suggest that these improvements are needed to enhance the living condition and improve 
character of the neighborhood.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this 
property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000 with the placement of a lien on the property for 
which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if sold before the 

745

Item 17.



end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with the 
balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the City of the 
improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This approval is 
subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection). 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

746

Item 17.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Community Development Department, 

City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 
 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

 
Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $  10,000.00 

 
Date:    

 
RE: Property located at: 610 W 28th Street  

and legally described as   TWENTY EIGHTH STREET ADDITION LOT 22 
 

 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners: Rodney and Ricki Dieser (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a Rental to 
Owner Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed upon the 
above-described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 

60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 747

Item 17.



 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   

   
Rodney Dieser  Ricki Dieser 

OWNER  OWNER 
   

 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2021, by Rodney 
and Ricki Dieser 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

748

Item 17.



1 
 

Oct. 19, 2021 

 

Department of Community Development  

Planning and Community Services Division 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

Item: Rental to single family owner conversion incentive program 

 

Dear Members of Department of Community Development and Members of the Planning and 

Community Services Division 

 

The purpose of this cover letter is to explain the merits of the application for the rental to single 

family owner conversion incentive program/forgivable loan.  

On August 13, 2021, we purchased a house at 610 West 28
th

 street in Cedar Falls from Joe and 

Melanie Griffith/Griffith Investments with the hope it would qualify for the forgivable loan 

funding process. Joe and Melanie Griffith purchased this house in 1996 and have rented it since 

and communicated to us that the rental unit was registered with and in compliance with 

ordinances of the Cedar Falls (please see their attached letter).  

Simply stated, we fell in love with this house, with the beautiful craftsman work inside and the 

amazing backyard view of the prairie grass gardens. To walk or ride a bike to the University of 

Northern Iowa (where Rodney has work for over 20 years) was an additional advantage to this 

house. Although we realize this application may not be granted, it was clearly on our mind as we 

read about the criteria prior to purchase.  

We have broken this cover letter into the following sections: (1) rationale; (2) partnership with 

the city to invest in this house; (3) our plan on how to use forgivable loan funds (if we qualify); 

and (4) a little about us.  

Rationale for Application/Forgivable Loan 

We plan to invest a considerable amount of money into this house regardless of whether we 

qualify for this forgivable loan; however, if awarded the $10,000 we can invest more into this 

house and make its outside the beautiful small gem it once was.  

Please drive by our house as it will become apparent it is the eyesore house in the neighborhood. 

That is, it is the only house on our street (between Walnut street and the dead end) that the 

exterior looks deteriorated and poor.  

The exterior is in very poor shape. It needs new siding, new windows, new gutters, new external 

doors, front and back yard has excessive weeds, and the front side walk and front yard right 

outside the house (front side) dips downward. The sidewalk (close to house) also needs repair as 

it is uneven and is a tripping hazard.  

749

Item 17.



2 
 

Please read the House Inspection Report (HIR and located as at attachment), prepared by Brick 

Kicker on 5/27/21 as it details the condition of the house and shows excellent and precise 

pictures of the poor condition of the house, including siding, windows, pavement, and gutters. 

Drawing from this report, below are a sampling of concerns, as they apply to the rental to single 

family owner conversion incentive program criteria: 

 Water damage was noted on areas of the building's exterior, which may allow additional 

water damage to the underlying surfaces and can encourage wood destroying insect 

infestation. Repair or replacement of any effected wood composite siding is 

recommended by a qualified contractor. Failing paint was noted on areas of the Wood 

Composite siding. (p. 3 of HIR). 

 Missing or failed coatings of paint was noted on the exterior trim. Proper refinishing and 

caulking are recommended to prevent further deterioration of the trim material (p. 4 of 

HIR) 

 See photos on p. 3-4 (of HIR), that show poor condition of siding.   

 Open areas were noted in the front stoop areas (p. 5 of HIR).  

 The building's concrete walkway(s) were noted to have uneven sections with trip ledges. 

These would benefit from feathering and/or additional types of repair/replacement for 

pedestrian safety. The concrete walkway(s) have settled toward the building which could 

allow storm water to accumulate along the foundation leaving the potential for water 

infiltration into the structure. Proper correction of settled walkway(s) by a qualified 

contractor is recommended. (p. 4-5 of HIR). Please see photos on p. 5 of HIR. 

 Trees, shrubs and/or vines were overgrown at roof areas and around the exterior of the 

home. Recommend cutting this back to maintain at least 8 to 12 inches of clear space 

between the structure and any vegetation to promote proper air circulation and help 

prevent damage from stains, moisture and insects (p. 6 of HIR).  

 Although it is not stated in the report, the front and rear yard has an extensive amount of 

weeds.  

 Rotting was noted at the egress window (p. 6). Please see photo on p. 6 of HIR. 

 The seams in the gutters were observed to be leaking at one or more locations. Properly 

resealing the gutter seams is recommended. The gutters were filled with water and debris 

at the time of the inspection. Recommend gutters be cleaned and checked for proper seal 

at all joints. The gutters and/or downspouts were loose or separated at one or more areas. 

This will contribute to foundation seepage and proper correction is recommended. The 

gutters appeared to be sagging at one or more areas. This will allow water to collect in the 

gutters instead of properly draining out and away from the building. Proper correction by 

a qualified contractor is recommended (p. 9-10 of HIR).  

 The overhead garage door(s) has damaged safety cable(s) at one or more of the extension 

springs. These cables prevent damage or injury from springs that break. Recommend 

replacement by a qualified garage door contractor. Overhead door spring(s) were broken. 

Recommend proper repair/replacement by a qualified garage door contractor for safety 

and ease of operation (p. 11-10 of HIR).  

 

750

Item 17.



3 
 

A Partnership with the City and Our Investment into this House for the Long-Haul 

We plan on living in this house until Rod retires from work at the University of Northern Iowa, 

which will occur in about 20 years. That is, we plan on living in this house for a long time and 

will invest in it.  

We have already invested a good amount of money to return this house to the gem it once was, 

and to upgrade its functionality. Below is what we have already completed, since we purchased 

the house on August 13, 2012.  

 Upgraded the electrical amps to 200, as recommended by city code. Replaced entire 

circuit box. K & W Electric Inc. completed the work. Cost was $1552. (Please see p. 27-

29 of HIR regard electrical system of house). Receipt is included as an attachment.  

 Rewired parts of house (e.g. all cord would fall out of electrical boxes), added lights and 

light fixtures, installed air vent into bathroom (as it did not have one). Worked completed 

by Dalton’s for a cost of $3000. (Please see p. 27-29 of HIR regard electrical system of 

house). Receipt is included as an attachment. 

 Replaced front garage door at a cost of $1016.50, completed by Cedar Valley Garage 

Doors. Receipt is included as an attachment. 

 Fixed downstairs bathroom by fixing shower, installing a new toilet, bracing sink to wall, 

installing new water shot off valve in basement. Cost $1500. (Please see p. 20-21 and 24-

25 of HIR regarding downstairs bathroom and other plumbing concerns). Because these 

projects were completed at differing times, we have not included the differing receipts, 

but we could if needed.  

 I aireded (plug-holes) front and back lawn (rented from Black Hawk Rental for cost of 

$90) and purchased five, four-pound bags of grass seed to over seed to help grass grown 

($120). Used Step 4 of Scotts four-step fertilizer (cost $25) to start process to kill weeds 

and help grass grow in front and back yard. Put weed killers on lawn.  

What We Plan on Using Forgivable Loan On 

Per application criteria, we plan to use any forgivable loan money to help with upgrades of 

siding, windows, gutters, landscaping, sidewalk paving, and stair stoop area.  

If we do not receive the forgivable loan, we still plan on replacing the siding (and tearing off old 

siding; not covering over) and replacing only the three front windows, as that is all we could 

afford. We have entered a contract with Spahn and Rose Lumber Company (in Reinbeck) and the 

cost for materials is $14, 995. 59. Please see attachment of cost. We have entered a contract with 

Sides and Bown Construction (in Reinbeck) and the cost for installation is $9550. Please see 

attachment of cost (the $15, 300 cost is if we were to replace all windows, which again, we 

cannot afford to do; see estimate of $9550). They plan to start their work in the latter part of 

October.  

If we are blessed to receive this forgivable loan, we will use it to complete the exterior of the 

house (siding), and then use our own money/forgivable loan money to complete the following: 

remaining windows (so that all windows are replaced) and gutters (estimate from Weber’s 

751

Item 17.



4 
 

Gutters that it would cost $3000; see attachment). We would also like to replace the front door, 

landscaping, sidewalk paving, electrical work outside (e.g. front light in front of door and 

garage) and stair stoop area.  

Using the evaluative criteria provided on the application, we have provided answers to the 

evaluative questions.  

Level of investment – Is the owner leveraging the grant to provide more than a 1:1 

match? 

Yes, we will be finically investing more than the 1:1 match to return this house to 

the gem it once was. 

 

Scope of the project – Are multiple exterior and property improvement items included 

in the project? 

Yes, there are multiple exterior and property improvement items and additional 

improvements made to the interior of the house (e.g. electrical)  

 

Neighborhood context – Is this a neighborhood with less than 50% rentals where there 

is potential to maintain a balance of majority owner-occupied residences? 

Yes, in this neighborhood (the street we live on) there is less than 50% rentals 

where there is potential to maintain a balance of majority owner-occupied 

residences. Please note that all houses in the immediate neighborhood are are 

owners. However, around that immediate area are more and more houses being 

turned into rentals for students attending the University of Northern Iowa.  

 

Distinguishing factors – Are there other circumstances to consider that make the 

request exceptional and lead to significant positive impacts upon the neighborhood? 

Yes, all neighbors in our immediate area (between Walnut street and the dead 

end) want to preserve this neighborhood from becoming rentals. In fact, when we 

purchased the house from Joe and Melanie Griffith/Griffith Investments it was 

written into the buyers/seller’s agreement that we cannot sell this property to any 

person or entity who could use the dwelling as income producing property 

(rentals). This specifically aligns to the tenets of the forgivable loan program.  

 

 

A Little About Us 

 

We moved to Cedar Falls in 2001 because Rodney was offered a job at the University of 

Northern Iowa as a professor. He currently teaches in two units:  Departments of Health, 

Recreation, and Community Services and Clinical Mental Health Counseling (see  

https://coe.uni.edu/hrcs/faculty-and-staff/rodney-b-dieser-phd). Rodney also works 10 hours a 

week at Covenant Family Solutions as a Licensed Mental Health Counselor (often working on a 

sliding scale fee or pro-bono) and as a workplace mental health adviser (see  

https://covenantfamilysolutions.com/team/rodney-dieser/). Rodney views his most important role 

as a husband and father.  

 

752

Item 17.

https://coe.uni.edu/hrcs/faculty-and-staff/rodney-b-dieser-phd
https://covenantfamilysolutions.com/team/rodney-dieser/


5 
 

Ricki Dieser primary work has been as a homemaker and worked part time in health (e.g. 

Curves: Women’s Health and Fitness) until debilitating migraines caused her to have to stop 

working (in 2007) and she had to seek treatment at Mayo Clinic. Prior to the COVID 19 

Pandemic she volunteered at Worlds Window (fair trade supporting women in developing 

countries) in downtown Cedar Falls.  

 

Rod and Ricki have raised three sons, two work full time as mechanics for the Metropolitan 

Transit Authority (MET) and their youngest sons works part time at Copy Works and attends 

Hawkeye Community College. Rod and Ricki moved into the house at 610 West 28
th

 street as 

they wanted to downsize (with only one son at home), and fell in love with the location of this 

house, the craftsman’s work interior of the house, and the amazing view of the Prairie grass 

gardens. They want to restore the exterior of this house to be the gem it once was.  

 

Please contact us if you have any questions or need addition supporting documentation. 

 

We appreciate your time and efforts. 

 

 

 

 

 

Rodney and Ricki Dieser 

610 W. 28
th

 St. 

Cedar Falls, IA, 50613 

Tel: (319) 266-7388/ 

 

 

 

 

753

Item 17.



754

Item 17.



755

Item 17.



756

Item 17.



757

Item 17.



758

Item 17.



759

Item 17.



760

Item 17.



761

Item 17.



762

Item 17.



763

Item 17.



764

Item 17.



765

Item 17.



766

Item 17.



767

Item 17.



768

Item 17.



769

Item 17.



770

Item 17.



771

Item 17.



772

Item 17.



773

Item 17.



774

Item 17.



775

Item 17.



776

Item 17.



777

Item 17.



778

Item 17.



779

Item 17.



780

Item 17.



781

Item 17.



782

Item 17.



783

Item 17.



784

Item 17.



785

Item 17.



786

Item 17.



787

Item 17.



788

Item 17.



789

Item 17.



790

Item 17.



791

Item 17.



792

Item 17.



793

Item 17.



794

Item 17.



795

Item 17.



796

Item 17.



Page 1 of 1

Weber's Gutter Service
614 Clair Street 

Cedar Falls, IA  50613 US

webersgutterservice@gmail.com

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
Rod Dieser 
610 W 28th St 
Cedar Falls, Iowa

ESTIMATE 1341
DATE 07/23/2021

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY AMOUNT

5" Gutter Installation 5" White Gutter 218 1,526.00

3x4 Standard Downspout 
Installation

3x4 White Standard Length Downspout 4 300.00

Gutter Removal & 
Disposal

Remove old gutter & haul away. 218 163.50

RX Screen - 5" Installation 5" Gutter/Leaf Guard 218 1,090.00

 TOTAL $3,079.50

Accepted By

Accepted Date

797

Item 17.



798

Item 17.



799

Item 17.



800

Item 17.



801

Item 17.



802

Item 17.



803

Item 17.



804

Item 17.



805

Item 17.



806

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

 DATE: November 24, 2021 

 SUBJECT: 6607 University Avenue Site Plan Revision for Starbeck’s Smokehouse 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

S-I, Shopping Center District Site Plan Review  
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Levi Architecture 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Starbeck’s Smokehouse, Suite B, 6607 University Avenue 
 

 
PROPOSAL:   
Levi Architecture on behalf of Starbeck’s Smokehouse owner is proposing to add a roof 
covering over the newly built patio area for the restaurant.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This property is S-1, Shopping Center 
District, similar to the Mall property. The 
purpose of this district is to provide for the 
development of shopping centers. Any 
changes or modifications or amendments 
to the plans for the commercial use and 
development of property in the S-1 zone 
shall be reviewed by the planning and 
zoning staff. If the change is deemed 
insignificant in nature, the staff may 
recommend to the council that the change 
be approved without the benefit of a 
mandatory review before the planning and 
zoning commission. (Section 26-
189(5)(b)). For the proposed project, the 
elements under review include addition or 
enlargement of existing structure for 
Starbeck Smokehouse outdoor patio area.  

807

Item 18.



 
Early this year, the applicant proposed minor façade updates for Starbeck’s 
Smokehouse project, which were reviewed and approved by City Council. At the time 
proposal included development of 2,900 Square feet of Suite B (5,320 square feet) for 
Starbeck’s Smokehouse restaurant and do some minor façade changes like changing 
the height and placement of canopies, changing the sign areas and its placement, 
reducing the number of openings, addition of partial shading (pergolas) over the patio 
area and some minor façade material changes from what was approved in 2018.  
 
With current proposal, the applicant is planning to add a roof covering over existing 
patio area for the restaurant. Staff finds the proposal is minor in nature, for which 
mandatory Planning and Zoning Commission review is not required, but according to 
the S1 Shopping District requirements must be reviewed and approved by City Council.  
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
The proposed project is to add a 
roof covering over the developed 
pergolas area over the patio to 
provide shed and create a semi-
open space for diners. Plan is to 
use reclaimed wood beams as 
rafters, cedar siding to cover the 
rise and a corrugated metal roof 
covering to match existing building 
panels. Staffs recommend 
extending roof with slight 
overhang on both sides and add 
gutters for better performance of 
the roof. City staff notes that a 
building permit will be required for 
roof installation. And applicant will 
be submitting drawings for 
building permits soon. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the proposed minor 
modifications for covering outdoor patio area for Starbeck’s Smokehouse (Suite B) at 
west side of 6607 University Avenue building. 
 
 
 
Attachments: Renderings 

   

 
 

808

Item 18.



corrugated metal
roof to match
building panels,
2/12 or 3/12
shallow slope roof

reclaimed wood
beams with 2x
runners.

cedar siding to
match columns

809

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, City Planner I 

  Ben Claypool, PhD, El, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: October 20, 2021  

 SUBJECT: Creekside Luxury Condos - Preliminary & Final Plats  
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to preliminary and final plat, effectively combining 4 lots in the 
new Creekside Luxury Condos Plat. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Dan Levi - Levi Architecture; Nate Kass - Fehr Graham, 
Engineer/Surveyor 
 

LOCATION: 
 

6.38 acres at the northwest corner of Cedar Heights Drive and Valley 
High Drive  

 
PROPOSAL:   
The petitioner is proposing to create 
one large developable parcel by 
combining lots 1, 2, & 3 of the Hanna 
Park Commercial Addition along with 
lot 4 (except the north 15 feet 
thereof) of the P. A. Hanna Addition 
to the City of Cedar Falls. These lots 
are located at the northwest corner 
of Cedar Heights and Valley High 
Drives. The intent of the petitioner is 
to develop the subject property with 
six 12-plex condominium buildings 
that will be owner-occupied. To 
ensure the developer can properly 
develop as intended, they are 
proposing that lots be combined, 
easements be reconfigured, and a 
minor piece of land be dedicated to 

810

Item 19.



the City for sidewalk. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The area proposed for development is in the process of being rezoned from C-1 to R-P 
(RZ21-005) with a final City Council vote to take place on November 1st, 2021. 
Concurrent with this request, the applicant is also seeking approval of a proposed site 
plan (SP21-010). These original parcels and the surrounding area on three sides were 
zoned C-1 Commercial in 2005. The northernmost parcel was platted in 1990 and the 
other three were platted in 2007. 
 
ANALYSIS 
This subdivision is on 6.38 acres of land located along Cedar Heights Drive, just north 
of Valley High Drive. The preliminary and final plat would consist of a single buildable 
lot. The size of said lot will be well above the lot area requirements of the R-4 District 
which the R-P District references. Development on this lot requires a site plan review by 
the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council. 
 
The lots to be combined currently contain building lines which will go away and be 
replaced by building lines as depicted on the Final Plat. The Final Plat includes a 25-
foot building line along the North, South, and East, and a 35-foot building line along the 
West. These meet or exceed the setback requirements of the R-P Planned Residence 
District. 
 
Since the existing lots will be combined into one lot, the easements also need to be 
reconfigured.  The preliminary plat illustrates the easements that will be vacated and the 
new easements that will be established to serve the proposed development. On the new 
plat, a 10 foot utility easement will extend around the perimeter of the new lot.  A gas 
utility easement will be established across the center of the lot in a location that will run 
between proposed buildings. 
 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, 
gas and communication services are available to the site. The developer will be 
responsible for extending the utility services to the proposed development. The 
easements identified on the plat satisfy CFU requirements. 
 
The Preliminary Plat shows the required relocation of the existing gas main.  CFU will 
relocate the gas main at the developer’s expense.  The developer is responsible for the 
construction of a properly sized water system from the existing 8” water main along 
Cedar Heights Drive. Included in the installation are valves, fire hydrants and water 
service stubs for the new lots.  Cedar Falls Public Safety will need to review the site 
plan and determine the quantity and location of the private fire hydrants on the site. 
 

811

Item 19.



The deed of dedication notes that only two access points off of Cedar Heights will be 
permitted. This limit was also agreed to in the Developmental Procedures Agreement 
executed as part of the rezoning. 
 
City zoning staff notes that the proposed lot is of sufficient lot area to meet the 
anticipated development plans. 
 
Items such as the grading plan, stormwater management plan, and utility plan have all 
previously been submitted and approved as part of the platting and site plan review 
process.  
 
Typically a preliminary plat would be submitted and approved first prior to the final plat 
being submitted. This allows for the installation of any required public infrastructure, 
such as streets, sewers and other utilities. However, this subdivision does not include 
the construction of any new public infrastructure, so reviewing both plats concurrently is 
possible.  
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
The platting documents including the Deed of Dedication, Attorney’s Title Opinion and a 
plat fees have been submitted. Signed plats and Deed of Dedication are required to be 
submitted in time to be included in the City Council packet for the date Council would 
vote on this item. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
At their meeting on November 10, 2021 the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed 
the proposed preliminary and final plats and recommended approval with a vote of 7 to 
0 (2 abstained). The Community Development Department also reviewed the proposal 
and recommends approval.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
10/27/2021 

The first item of business was the preliminary and final plat for 
Creekside Luxury Condos. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. 
Sevy provided background information. The intent of the petitioner is 
to develop the property with six 12-plex condominium buildings. The 
property recently went through the rezoning process and now needs 
site plan review. Easements will also need to be reconfigured as the 
existing lots will be combined into one lot. Mr. Sevy discussed 
changes to the plat, including the building lines and details regarding 
tract A that is dedicated to the City for sidewalk. The item is being 
brought before the Commission for discussion only at this time. The 
site plan will be discussed later in the meeting. 
 
James Meehan, 2403 Legacy Lane Unit 2, stated that he believes 
that a drainage easement berm was cut causing water issues in the 
neighbors’ back yards. He wants to see that corrected feels that the 

812

Item 19.



layout looks like it could create more water issues. He would like to 
be sure that the grading is done well to avoid those issues. He also 
noted concerns with the population density and how that will affect 
traffic.  
 
Mr. Holst asked how the density fits within the RP District. Mr. Sevy 
explained that the area is medium density residential, which is the 
same as the properties to the West. What is proposed is a little 
denser, but very similar. Staff finds that it is consistent with the 
approved master plan and the designation on the Future Land Use 
Map. 
 
Ms. Saul stated that she feels it is a reasonable request and should 
move forward. The item was continued to the next meeting. 
 

Discussion and 
Vote 
11/10/2021 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided background 
information. He explained that the petitioner is proposing to create 
one large developable parcel by combining four lots from two 
existing plats. He explained that the petitioner’s intent is to develop 
the property with six twelve-plex condominium buildings that will be 
owner occupied. The property recently went through the rezoning 
process from C-1, Commercial to RP-Residential and is located on 
6.38 acres of land. He discussed the easement changes that would 
need to be made as well as the building lines around the property. 
Setback requirements are met. A small tract is being dedicated to 
the City as part of the planning process. The developer will be 
constructing sidewalk on that dedicated portion. Staff recommends 
approval subject to comments or direction from the Commission and 
conformance to staff recommendations and technical requirements.  
 
Mr. Holst made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved with 7 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, 
Holst, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), 0 nays and 2 abstentions 
(Grybovych and Larson). 

  
Attachments: Preliminary Plat 
  Final Plat 
  Deed of Dedication 
   
 

813

Item 19.



814

Item 19.



815

Item 20.



816

Item 20.



817

Item 20.



818

Item 20.



819

Item 20.



820

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, City Planner I 

  Ben Claypool, PhD, El, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: October 19, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Site Plan – Creekside Condos 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Approve site plan for six 12-plex buildings in the R-P Planned Residence 
District. (Case #SP21-010) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Dan Levi; Levi Architecture 

LOCATION: 
 

Northwest corner of Cedar Heights Drive and Valley High Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is seeking to build a medium density residential condominium development along 
Cedar Heights Drive north of Valley High Drive. This includes six 12-plex buildings that are 42 
feet in height (three stories), each having an 
attached garage that provides one garage stall 
for each unit. Additional uncovered parking is 
also provided in order to meet the parking 
requirement.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The area proposed for development is in the 
process of being rezoned from C-1 to R-P 
(RZ21-005) with a final City Council vote to 
take place on November 1st, 2021. This area is 
also in the process of preliminary (PP21-005) 
and final (FP21-002) platting concurrently with 
this site plan request where lots are being 
combined, easements are being reconfigured, 
and a small piece of land is being dedicated to 
the City to provide more space for a public 
sidewalk. These original parcels and the 

821

Item 21.



surrounding area on three sides were zoned C-1 Commercial in 2005. The northernmost parcel 
was platted in 1990 and the other three were platted in 2007. 
 
Below is the development site plan provided by the applicant featuring six 12-plex buildings, 
attached garages, and additional parking (See also full site plan set attached). Also detailed is 
the stormwater management infrastructure planned for the site. Highlighted in green is the first 
phase of the grading plan which completes an entire proposed berm to border the west edge of 
the property. This was a concession made for neighbors on the west who were unsure when the 
2nd and 3rd phases would go in. 
 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
The purpose of the R-P Planned Residence District is to provide for the orderly planned growth 
of residential developments in larger tracts of land. For initial development plans, the R-P 
Planned Residence District requires review and approval by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council. That review typically involves a master plan where several 
parcels are involved. That master plan then becomes the document by which to judge future 
development. The Commission recently recommended approval of the rezoning and associated 
master plan.  The applicant now requests full review of a detailed site plan as anticipated with 
the developmental procedures agreement included as part of the rezoning. The submitted site 
plan, landscaping plan, and stormwater management plan must be consistent with the master 
plan and developmental procedures agreement approved with the rezoning and must meet all 
other City Code requirements.  
 
The following is an analysis of the proposed site plan for the Creekside Luxury Condos 
development.  
 

1. Below is a table of the spatial requirements that would apply to this project along with 
the proposed figures: 

 

 Required  Proposed (consistent with approved 
Master Plan)  

Front Yard Setback: Min. 20 feet 34 feet (closest building); 55 feet (furthest 
building) 

 

822

Item 21.



Rear Yard Setback: Min. 35 feet 69 feet (closest building); 90 feet (furthest 
building) 

Side Yard Setback: Min. 10 feet (25 
feet total of both 

sides) 

25 feet on north and 60 feet on south 

Lot area minimum: 14,800 square feet  
per 12-plex (44 
units per acre in 
the R-4 District) 

46,391 square feet per 12-plex (11.3 units 
per acre) 

Height: N/A 3 stories; 42 feet 

 
Concern about the height and number of units has been expressed by members of the 
neighboring HOA to the west. The applicant seems to adequately address these 
concerns by providing a substantial buffer that more than meets the landscape 
requirements, and having the buildings set back a minimum of 69 feet. The buildings at 
that setback are only 1 story and the 3-story 42-foot structures are 170 feet minimum 
from the west property line. Both of these measures are substantial by general privacy 
standards in the City. The submitted site plan is consistent with the master plan 
submitted with the rezoning.  

 
2. Since Cedar Heights Drive is an arterial street and previous plats limit the number of 

driveways, only two access points will be allowed to ensure a smooth traffic flow. This 
requirement is detailed in both the proposed deed of dedication and a developmental 
procedures agreement that was executed as part of the rezoning to R-P. The 
applicant’s proposal shows two access points, both on Cedar Heights Drive. A third 
access point may be allowed on Valley High Drive, however the applicant has opted not 
to provide that access point due to slope and elevation issues. The site plan is 
consistent with the master plan and developmental procedures agreement submitted 
with the rezoning.  

 
3. The landscape plan is substantially similar to the landscape plan that was filed with the 

master plan, but has been improved to ensure proper screening of the parking and that 
the interior of the parking lot has shade trees as required by code. Parking lot screening 
at the height of 6 feet is required along property lines abutting neighbors and 3 feet for 
parking areas that are in view of street frontages. The proposed plan features a 3.5 to 
6-foot berm along the west edge of the property with trees, shrubs, and other plants on 
top of it which are required to have a height of 3 feet at planting. Below is an exhibit that 
was created to demonstrate to the neighbors how these measures will soften the view 
from their rear yards and effectively screen the taller buildings from view. Staff finds that 
this is a good solution to help screen and separate the lower intensity residential 
development to the west and the taller buildings proposed with this development. 

 

823

Item 21.



 
 

The proposed plan also provides a 6-foot high screen of the parking along the north 
and a 3-foot screen at appropriate places along Cedar Heights Drive and Valley High 
Drive. Staff finds that the proposed landscape plan provides sufficient screening. 

 
4. Below is the provided landscape plan (see attached detailed landscaping plan). This 

plan shows the necessary screening of parking areas along property lines and street 
frontages as previously discussed. The parking code also requires trees in the interior 
of the parking area at the rate of 1 per 21 parking spaces which comes to 8 overstory 
trees required to give shade to parking spaces. The applicant provides two trees in 
each parking area between buildings which comes to a total of 10 internal trees. In 
addition to these, there are other trees dispersed in spaces that make sense to beautify 
and provide variety around paved areas. Trees are also required around the periphery 
of the parking area (including street trees) at the rate of 1 per 50 lineal feet of parking 
area. The landscape plan more than meets this requirement when considering all of the 
overstory, ornamental, and coniferous trees provided. The landscaping plan provides 
the necessary details on species, planting size, and height at maturity. Staff finds this 
detailed plan is consistent with what was discussed at rezoning with regard to buffering 
along the west property line and adds additional detail on parking lot landscaping and 
landscape buffer along the north and south lot lines as well. 
 

 
 

 
5. Phasing is also noted on the above landscape plan which shows the southernmost 

buildings built first (on the right). Installation of the public sidewalk along the South 
border will be part of phase 1. Construction will progress northward (to the left), two 

824

Item 21.



buildings at a time as market conditions demand. This is consistent with the phasing 
outlined in the developmental procedures agreement entered into in conjunction with 
the rezoning. This phasing also ensures a seamless rollout of the stormwater 
management plan where the largest portion of the infrastructure is taken care of in the 
first phase. 
 

6. A flooding issue off-site in the 
rear yards of the neighbors to 
the west was a topic of 
discussion during public 
hearings for the rezoning. It 
should be noted that with 
development the stormwater 
from the proposed development 
will be managed in contrast to 
the uncontrolled run-off from 
what is currently a vacant lot. 
Based on the submitted 
stormwater management plan, 
the stormwater that falls on all 
paved surfaces will be directed 
to the east (away from the area 
prone to flooding) to a series of 
landscaped basins along Cedar 
Heights Drive. Pictured to the 
right is an illustration of how water will flow to intakes which are piped to the basins. 
See additional Technical Review comments below for more information.  
 

7. The submitted elevation drawings and material details are consistent with what was 
submitted with the master plan. The bulk of the facades are made up of windows, 
cement paneling, and corrugated metal paneling along with some other accent 
materials. Renderings are also included in the attachments. 
 

 

Water flows directly to basins or to intakes (red) which carry 
the water to basins. 

825

Item 21.



 
 

 

 
 

8. Signage in the R-P District is reviewed and approved administratively the same as any 
other residential district. A separate sign permit will be required at the time of 
development. While a formal sign application has not yet been filed, the applicant has 
provided renderings and dimensions of a monument sign in the southeast corner of the 
property to display the name of the development. The proposed sign is within the height 
limit (20 feet) and the applicant noted on the rendering that the sign area (lettering) is 
not to exceed the code limit of 40 square feet. Below are images from the provided 
renderings. 

826

Item 21.



 
 
 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS: 
Engineering staff notes that the stormwater management plan meets City Code requirements. 
As for the flooding concern to the west, the stormwater management report states: “An earth 
berm is to be constructed along the west edge of the property to reduce lost runoff to 
neighboring properties. Runoff to the west from a 100 year event should be reduced from 2.23 
cubic feet per second to 0.48 cubic feet per second.” The efforts made along the western 
boundary will prevent a significant amount of sheet flow from ever having the opportunity to flow 
on to those adjacent properties. 
 
The public sidewalk bordering the property on the South along Valley High Drive will be installed 
as part of this project. Also, portions of the trail along Cedar Heights will be repaired as indicated 
on the site plan. 
 
Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the site plan for the Creekside Condos.  Water, electric, 
gas, and communications utility services are available in accordance with the service policies of 
CFU. 
  
The developer is responsible for the construction of a properly sized water system from the 
existing 8” water main along Cedar Heights Drive. Included in the installation are valves, fire 
hydrants and water service stubs for the new lots.  Cedar Falls Public Safety will need to review 
the site plan and determine the quantity and location of the private fire hydrants on the site. 
 
All existing water services not being reused will be required to be terminated at the water main 
in accordance with the Cedar Falls Utilities water service policy.  New water services shall be 
connected to the existing water main with tapping-in valve/sleeve. 
 
The landscaping plan shows trees and other landscaping features in the right of way and utility 
easements.  Removal and replacement of the trees or any other landscaping located within 
these areas that may be disturbed by utility maintenance, repair, or replacement is the 
responsibility of the property owner. 
 
A notice was mailed to property owners within 300 feet of the property under consideration on 
October 20, 2021 regarding this site plan. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
At their meeting on November 10, 2021 the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this 

827

Item 21.



proposal to build six 12-plex units at the northwest corner of Cedar Heights Drive and Valley 
High Drive and recommended approval with a vote of 7 to 0 (2 abstained). The Community 
Development Department also reviewed the proposal and recommends approval. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
10/27/2021 

The next item of business was a site plan for the Creekside Luxury Condos. Chair 
Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Larson recused himself from the item. Mr. 
Sevy provided a rendering of the site plan and noted that it conforms substantially 
to the master plan that was approved as part of the rezoning process. The 
density requirements are also met. He discussed the landscape plan, building 
elevations, signage, neighborhood concerns and solutions. He displayed a 
rendering of the stormwater management plan. The item is currently for 
discussion at this time.  
 
Dan Levi, Levi Architecture, 1009 Technology Parkway, noted that they have 
been working with the city for several months and have had a chance to have the 
developer to have several meetings with the surrounding neighbors.  
 
John Lane, 3909 Legacy Lane, stated that most of the people in his HOA were 
opposed to the rezoning that has passed. He explained that they would prefer 
that the project start at the north end instead of the south in case the project is 
not completed. They also prefer that the berm and foliage is completed before the 
rest begins.  
 
James Meehan, 2403 Legacy Lane Unit 2, stated that the southern HOA in the 
Legacy Lane area shares the same concerns and joins with their 
recommendations.  
 
Mr. Lane spoke again regarding the water issues.  
 
Mr. Meehan stated that he doesn’t believe that anyone has gone out to look at 
the drainage control berm and feels that it should be looked into further. He feels 
that the cut in the berm let the drainage come through.  
 
Mr. Leeper asked Mr. Levi to explain what happens in the first phase with regard 
to the control of the water. Mr. Levi explained that as they’re moving dirt when 
they build the first two buildings to the south, there will be a lot of excess dirt that 
will be left on the site north and west of the parking lot. This will catch the water 
as it comes from the north to the south, directing it toward the southeast corner of 
the undeveloped remaining lots.  
 
Mr. Lane spoke again regarding the phasing and retaining ponds. 
 
Ms. Saul commented that the water problem that is being brought up is not on the 
property being discussed. The concern is that the project doesn’t create more 
water issues. Ms. Howard confirmed that they have to show that they meet the 
stormwater management requirements for their site and how it will be routed from 
the site and not cause additional issues on the neighbors’ property.  
 
Mr. Holst asked if putting in the berm right away is an option so that it can adjust 

828

Item 21.



the water issues right away. Ms. Howard stated that this would be a question for 
the applicant.  
 
The item was continued to the next meeting. 
 

Discussion 
and Vote 
11/10/2021 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided background information. 
He explained that site plan conforms substantially to the approved Master Plan. 
He explained that the buildings are set back appropriately and placed exactly as 
in the Master Plan as well. Requirements regarding access points and density 
have been met. The developer has proposed a slightly different grading plan that 
includes completion of the berm in the first phase of the project. The landscape 
plan, elevations and materials, and signage plans all meet requirements as well. 
The stormwater management plan has been approved by the Engineering 
department and the flooding issue is anticipated to be improved. A rendering of 
the plan was provided. Staff recommends approval subject to any comments or 
direction from the Commission and conformance with all staff recommendations 
and technical comments. 
 
Dan Levi, Levi Architecture, 1009 Technology Parkway (project architect), 
explained that the developer has been working on this with the city for some time 
to vet out any concerns and work out any issues.  
 
John Lane, 3909 Legacy Lane, stated that he met with Mr. Sevy recently and 
most of his questions were answered at that time. He asked for clarification that 
once the site plan is approved no changes can be made by the developer. 
 
Ms. Lynch expressed her support for the project. Mr. Holst stated that his biggest 
issue with the drainage and feels that the berm will eliminate potential water 
issues. Mr. Leeper thanked the community and the developer for their part in the 
process. 
 
Ms. Lynch made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved with 7 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Holst, Leeper, Lynch, 
Moser and Saul), 0 nays and 2 abstentions (Grybovych and Larson). 

 
 
Attachment: Site Plan Documents 
  Grading Phasing Plan 
  Landscape Plan 
  Renderings 
  Public Comment Filed 
  Photos of flooding to the West 
   
   

829

Item 21.



1-800-292-8989
www.iowaonecall.com

Date

 All 

I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me
or under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly
licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa.

        Nathan P. Kass, P.E. & P.L.S.
License Number 18659
My license renewal date is December 31, 2021.
Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

830

Item 21.



831

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

VA
LL

EY
 H

IG
H

 D
RI

VE

832

Item 21.



833

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

VA
LL

EY
 H

IG
H

 D
RI

VE

834

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

VA
LL

EY
 H

IG
H

 D
RI

VE

835

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

VA
LL

EY
 H

IG
H

 D
RI

VE

836

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

837

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

838

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

839

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

840

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

VALLEY HIGH DRIVE

841

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

842

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

843

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

844

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

845

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

846

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

847

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

848

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

849

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

850

Item 21.



CE
D

AR
 H

EI
G

H
TS

 D
RI

VE

VALLEY HIGH DRIVE

®

851

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

VA
LL

EY
 H

IG
H

 D
RI

VE

852

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

VA
LL

EY
 H

IG
H

 D
RI

VE

853

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

VA
LL

EY
 H

IG
H

 D
RI

VE

854

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

855

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

856

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

857

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

858

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

859

Item 21.



CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

860

Item 21.



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 

CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

VA
LL

EY
 H

IG
H

 D
RI

VE

861

Item 21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.A. HANNA ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
G:\C3D\19\19-972 Cedar Heights Condos\19-972 design.dwg, C0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LG COMPANIES, LLC 4104 WEDGEWOOD DRIVE CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

AutoCAD SHX Text
AJB

AutoCAD SHX Text
NPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/15/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-972

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEKSIDE LUXURY CONDOS CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, IOWAIOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE: 11/4/2111/4/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT AND LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER/DEVELOPER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2021 FEHR GRAHAM  FEHR GRAHAM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET TYPE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
C0.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATUM INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL AND BENCHMARK INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL CONTROL:    NAVD(88) NAVD(88) HORIZONTAL CONTROL:  NAD83 IOWA STATE PLANE NORTH ZONE, NAD83 IOWA STATE PLANE NORTH ZONE, US SURVEY FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN CREEKSIDE LUXURY CONDOS SITE ADDRESS -  CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE LOTS 1-3, HANNA PARK COMMERCIAL ADDITION & LOT 4, HANNA'S P.A. ADDITION. OWNER LG COMPANIES, LLC 4104 WEDGEWOOD DRIVE CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 ARCHITECT LEVI ARCHITECTURE 1009 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613 ZONING: (CURRENT) C-1 NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL (PROPOSED) R-P PLANNED RESIDENTIAL LOT INFORMATION LOT SIZE: 278,124 S.F. / 6.38 ACRES SETBACK REQUIREMENTS (PER PLAT) FRONT: 25 REAR: 25' SIDE: 25' BUILDING AND LOT USE PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT AT PEAK - 41'-8" BUILDING FOOTPRINT: 10,500 S.F. (EACH) BUILDING FOOTPRINT: 63,000 S.F. (TOTAL) (22.7%) TOTAL PAVEMENT & SIDEWALKS: 107,446 S.F. (38.6%) TOTAL VEGETATED SURFACE: 107,678 S.F. (38.7%) EXISTING BUILDING FOOTPRINT: N/A TOTAL PAVEMENT & SIDEWALKS: N/A TOTAL VEGETATED SURFACE: 278,124 S.F. (100%) DENSITY - 72 UNITS/6.38 ACRES = 11.3 UNITS/ACRE PARKING DATA (PROPOSED)  TOTAL REQUIRED PARKING:  DWELLING, MULTI-UNIT: TWO PARKING SPACES PER DWELLING UNIT, PLUS ONE ADDITIONAL PARKING SPACE FOR EACH BEDROOM IN EACH DWELLING UNIT IN EXCESS OF TWO BEDROOMS. ONE ADDITIONAL STALL SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR EVERY FIVE UNITS IN EXCESS OF FIVE UNITS FOR VISITOR PARKING. 72 TWO BEDROOM UNITS  = 144 SPACES = 144 SPACES VISITOR PARKING  = 15 SPACES = 15 SPACES TOTAL SPACES  = 159 SPACES = 159 SPACES TOTAL PROVIDED PARKING - 162 PARKING STALLS    (12 HANDICAP)    (150 STANDARD) FLOOD PLAIN - N/A WETLAND - N/A PHASING PROJECT PLANNED TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN 3 PHASES, 2 STRUCTURES PER PHASE. PHASE 1 TO HAVE A SINGLE DRIVEWAY FROM CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE. SECOND DRIVEWAY CONSTRUCTED IN PHASE 2 FROM CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 6 PHASE 3 FINISHED FLOOR = 928.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 5 PHASE 3 FINISHED FLOOR = 926.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 4 PHASE 2 FINISHED FLOOR = 924.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 3 PHASE 2 FINISHED FLOOR = 922.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 2 PHASE 1 FINISHED FLOOR = 919.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 1 PHASE 1 FINISHED FLOOR = 916.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN MIDDLE [PHASE 2]

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN SOUTH (N) [PHASE 1]

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN SOUTH (S) [PHASE 1]

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN NORTH [PHASE 3]

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEGMENTAL BLOCK RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM6

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CP1 = CUT X IN SIDWALK, WEST SIDE OF CEDAR HEIGHTS DR, ±360' NORTH OF VALLEY HIGH DR.    N-3647766.17, E-5214792.42, ELEV-919.82 N-3647766.17, E-5214792.42, ELEV-919.82 CP2 = CUT X ON CONCRETE INTAKE TOP NORTH SIDE OF VALLEY HIGH DR., WEST OF CEDAR HEIGHTS DR    N-3647407.03, E-5214741.82, ELEV-906.28 BM 3 = X ON HYDRANT BOLT, WEST SIDE OF CEDAR HEIGHTS DR., ±716' NORTH OF VALLEY HIGH DR.N-3648119.17, E-5214793.16, ELEV-925.04 BM 4 = X ON HYDRANT BOLT, WEST SIDE OF CEDAR HEIGHTS DR., ±316' NORTH OF VALLEY HIGH DR,N-3647720.71, E-5214777.34, ELEV-920.83 BM 5 = X ON HYDRANT BOLT, WEST SIDE OF CEDAR HEIGHTS DR., ±18' NORTH OF VALLEY HIGH DR,N-3647420.27, E-5214798.87, ELEV-909.39 BM 6 = X ON HYDRANT BOLT, NORTH SIDE OF VALLEY HIGH DRIVE, ±270' WEST OF CEDAR HEIGHTS DR.,N-3647420.27, E-5214798.87, ELEV-909.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: EARTHEN BERM TO BE CONSTRUCTED THE ENTIRE LENGTH IN PHASE 1. LANDSCAPING OF THE BERM TO BE COMPLETED AS EACH ADJACENT PHASE IS COMPLETED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE DELINEATION LINE



ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL
Ó 

CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE

VA
LL

EY
 H

IG
H

 D
RI

VE

”

”

(5)HQF

(6)JSG

(5)HQF

(17)JSG

(2)JTL

(2)SAB

(2)SAB

(1)EA(1)EA
(1)EA(1)EA

(1)MAB

(1)MAB

(1)MAB (1)MAB

(1)MAB

(1)MAB

(1)HLS

(1)HLS(1)HLS
(1)HLS

(1)GAG

(1)GAG

(1)GAG (1)GAG

(1)GAG

(1)GAG

(1)MSG (1)MSG

(1)BR
(1)BR

(1)AQ
(1)AQ

(1)OSW

(1)OSW

(1)MSG

(1)BR

(1)OR

(1)OR

(1)OSW

(1)KCE
(1)SN

(1)SN

(1)SN(1)SN

(1)SN

(1)SN

(1)SFA
(1)SFA

(10)SGL
(12)SGL (12)SGL

(2)JTL

(2)JTL

(14)JSG

(16)JSG

(1)CPF
(1)CPF

(10)HQF
(10)HQF

(3)HLL
(3)HLL

(12)LMK(10)LMK

(12)SBR

(6)VBM

(1)MRS
(1)MRS (1)GAG

(1)HLS (1)HLS(1)KCE(1)MSG(1)HLS(1)OR(1)MSG

(1)JTL
(1)JTL (1)CAA

(1)CAT
(1)LS

(1)KCE

(1)SFA

(10)JSG (4)JSG (5)JSG
(7)JSG

(9)DOG(3)DOG
(3)DOG(5)DOG

(12)DOG

(6)DOG

(3)DOG(5)DOG

(1)SFA

(1)CAA

(11)Arb

(13)Arb

862

Item 21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Xref ACAD LGC Condo Building 2019_0410.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
Xref ACAD LGC Condo Building 2019_0410.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
Xref ACAD LGC Condo Building 2019_0410.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
Xref ACAD LGC Condo Building 2019_0410.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
Xref ACAD LGC Condo Building 2019_0410.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
Xref ACAD LGC Condo Building 2019_0410.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
930

AutoCAD SHX Text
926

AutoCAD SHX Text
927

AutoCAD SHX Text
928

AutoCAD SHX Text
929

AutoCAD SHX Text
931

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
930

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
926

AutoCAD SHX Text
927

AutoCAD SHX Text
928

AutoCAD SHX Text
929

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
909

AutoCAD SHX Text
911

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
923

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
926

AutoCAD SHX Text
925

AutoCAD SHX Text
926

AutoCAD SHX Text
927

AutoCAD SHX Text
928

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
915

AutoCAD SHX Text
913

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
917

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
919

AutoCAD SHX Text
921

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\Nate's Designs\Commercial Work\L\Levi Architecture\Condos\LANDSCAPE\LANDSCAPE.dwg, C6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LG COMPANIES, LLC 4104 WEDGEWOOD DRIVE CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

AutoCAD SHX Text
AJB

AutoCAD SHX Text
NPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/06/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING PLAN - ALL PHASES

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-972

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEKSIDE LUXURY CONDOS CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, IOWAIOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE: 10/13/2110/13/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT AND LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER/DEVELOPER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2021 FEHR GRAHAM  FEHR GRAHAM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WISCONSIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET TYPE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 6 PHASE 3 FINISHED FLOOR = 928.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 5 PHASE 3 FINISHED FLOOR = 926.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 4 PHASE 2 FINISHED FLOOR = 924.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 3 PHASE 2 FINISHED FLOOR = 922.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 2 PHASE 1 FINISHED FLOOR = 919.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 1 PHASE 1 FINISHED FLOOR = 916.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 1 SEED MIX (LAWN) SUDAS 9010.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCHED OR LANDSCAPE STONE LANDSCAPE AREA COLOR & TYPE PER OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER STORY TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONIFEROUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORNAMENTAL TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONIFEROUS SHRUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS SHRUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLAN CREEKSIDE LUXURY CONDOS ZONING (PROPOSED) RP ' PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL LOT SIZE:  278,124 S.F. / 6.38 ACRES REQUIREMENTS PER ORDINANCE (PARAPHRASED): a. HEDGE SCREENING ALONG PARKING STALLS AND WHERE HEDGE SCREENING ALONG PARKING STALLS AND WHERE HEADLIGHTS WOULD BE A NUISANCE TO NEIGHBORS. b. TREES PLACED EVERY 50 FEET ALONG PARKING. TREES PLACED EVERY 50 FEET ALONG PARKING. NOTES: 1. OVERSTORY TREE MIN. SIZE SHALL BE 1.5” CALIPER FOR OVERSTORY TREE MIN. SIZE SHALL BE 1.5” CALIPER FOR  CALIPER FOR DECIDUOUS / 3' TALL FOR CONIFEROUS 2. ORNAMENTAL TREE MIN. SIZE SHALL BE 1” CALIPER  ORNAMENTAL TREE MIN. SIZE SHALL BE 1” CALIPER   CALIPER  3. SHRUBS SHALL BE MINIMUM 2 GALLON CONTAINER SHRUBS SHALL BE MINIMUM 2 GALLON CONTAINER 4. STREET TREES SHALL AVOID UTILITIES. STREET TREES SHALL AVOID UTILITIES. PHASING PROJECT PLANNED TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN 3 PHASES, 2 STRUCTURES PER PHASE SHARING A DRIVE FROM CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE. PHASING SHOWN IN DETAIL ON C2.# SERIES SHEETS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER STONE OR SIMILAR APPROVED <5% < 8" < 8" 50-100% 8"-18"  8"-18"  <5% >/= 24">/= 24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE, TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE GRASSES



863

Item 21.



864

Item 21.



FIRST FLOOR PLAN
5,882 Square Feet - Apartment
3,918 Square Feet - Garage

UP

865

Item 21.



SECOND FLOOR PLAN
THIRD FLOOR PLAN SIM.

DN

5,882 Square feet
866

Item 21.



T.O. WALL
+31'-6"

1

3

6

2

54

54

5 4

4

6

5

7 7 7

8

99 9

2 2

9

+0'-0"
MAIN F.F.E.

+10'-6"

+21'-0"

SECOND F.F.E.

THIRD FLOOR F.F.E.

9

EAST ELEVATION

4'-0"

1

2

3

4

5

6

ASPHALT SHINGLES - CHARCOAL

CEMENT PANELS - WHITE            

CEMENT PANELS - ACCENT COLOR VARIES BY BUILDING

HARDIE SHINGLE SIDING - ACCENT COLOR VARIES BY BUILDING

HARDIE PLANK LAP SIDING - 8-8-4 PATTERN, COBBLE STONE

CORRUGATED METAL PANELS - SLATE GRAY

7

8

SOFFIT/FACIA - WHITE

ALUM. ENTRANCE FRAMING - WHITE

9 ALUM. WINDOW FRAMING - WHITE

867

Item 21.



+0'-0"
MAIN F.F.E.

+10'-6"

+21'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

+31'-6"

3

6

2

545 4

68
9

7

9
2

5 5
8

8

8

8

8

8

9
2

7

1

1

SECOND F.F.E.

THIRD FLOOR F.F.E.

T.O. WALL

4'-0"

2 2

3

1

2

3

4

5

6

ASPHALT SHINGLES - CHARCOAL

CEMENT PANELS - WHITE            

CEMENT PANELS - ACCENT COLOR VARIES BY BUILDING

HARDIE SHINGLE SIDING - ACCENT COLOR VARIES BY BUILDING

HARDIE PLANK LAP SIDING - 8-8-4 PATTERN, COBBLE STONE

CORRUGATED METAL PANELS - SLATE GRAY

7

8

SOFFIT/FACIA - WHITE

ALUM. ENTRANCE FRAMING - WHITE

9 ALUM. WINDOW FRAMING - WHITE

+41'-8"
T.O. PEAK

868

Item 21.



WEST ELEVATION

T.O. WALL
+31'-6"

+0'-0"
MAIN F.F.E.

+10'-6"

+21'-0"

SECOND F.F.E.

THIRD FLOOR F.F.E.

3

8

2

5 54 4
9

9 9

9
6

6

1

4'-0"

77 2 2

9 9

6

5

1

2

3

4

5

6

ASPHALT SHINGLES - CHARCOAL

CEMENT PANELS - WHITE            

CEMENT PANELS - ACCENT COLOR VARIES BY BUILDING

HARDIE SHINGLE SIDING - ACCENT COLOR VARIES BY BUILDING

HARDIE PLANK LAP SIDING - 8-8-4 PATTERN, COBBLE STONE

CORRUGATED METAL PANELS - SLATE GRAY

7

8

SOFFIT/FACIA - WHITE

ALUM. ENTRANCE FRAMING - WHITE

9 ALUM. WINDOW FRAMING - WHITE

+41'-8"
T.O. PEAK

869

Item 21.



+0'-0"
MAIN F.F.E.

+10'-6"

+21'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION

+31'-6"

SECOND F.F.E.

THIRD FLOOR F.F.E.

T.O. WALL

8

344

6 6

22 22

5

9 99 98 8

8 8

8 8

9 5

1

7

7

3
5 5

2 2

1

4'-0"

1

2

3

4

5

6

ASPHALT SHINGLES - CHARCOAL

CEMENT PANELS - WHITE            

CEMENT PANELS - ACCENT COLOR VARIES BY BUILDING

HARDIE SHINGLE SIDING - ACCENT COLOR VARIES BY BUILDING

HARDIE PLANK LAP SIDING - 8-8-4 PATTERN, COBBLE STONE

CORRUGATED METAL PANELS - SLATE GRAY

7

8

SOFFIT/FACIA - WHITE

ALUM. ENTRANCE FRAMING - WHITE

9 ALUM. WINDOW FRAMING - WHITE

+41'-8"
T.O. PEAK

870

Item 21.



871

Item 21.



13
' -

 0
"

5'
 - 

6"
38' - 0"

2' - 2"

42' - 4"

CULTURED OR SYNTHETIC CLAD 
STONE BASE, GRAY COLOR TO 
MATCH BUILDING

CEMENT PANELS, COLOR TO 
MATCH BUILDING

HALO LIT ALUM. CUT CHANNEL 
LETTER, TYP. SIGNAGE NOT TO 
EXCEED MAX ALLOWABLE 40 SF

18
' -

 6
" (

N
O

T 
EX

C
EE

D
IN

G
 M

AX
. 2

0'
-0

")

872

Item 21.



873

Item 21.



1

Chris Sevy

From: Luanne Puhl <budy.zma@hotmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2021 3:29 PM
To: Chris Sevy
Subject: Creekside Condos

CAUTION: This email originated outside the City of Cedar Falls email system. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

Chris...Photos of water running down the backyard of my condo at 4110 Legacy Lane were provided 
to Karen and you. Please include them in the packet for the P and Z meeting on October 27.  
 
Thank you 
 
Luanne Puhl 
 
 
 
Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone 
 

874

Item 21.



875

Item 21.



876

Item 21.



877

Item 21.



878

Item 21.



879

Item 22.



880

Item 22.



881

Item 22.



882

Item 22.



883

Item 22.



884

Item 22.



885

Item 22.



886

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: November 29, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Greenhill Village Estates 
  Final Acceptance of Improvements 
  Project No. SU – 184 – 3220   
 
 
Construction work has been completed on the public improvements in the Greenhill 
Village Estates Addition. The project was designed by Axiom Consultants and has been 
completed in accordance with the project plans and the City of Cedar Falls Standard 
Specifications. The project was inspected by the City of Cedar Falls Engineering 
Division. 
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed and approved the project plans and 
specifications, inspected the project through the construction process; and has received 
and reviewed the project reports and certifications. The project documentation is in 
order and the project is complete and ready for City Council acceptance. Attached are 
copies of the Maintenance Bond from the developer, Greenhill Village Residential LLC, 
and the Final Plat for the Greenhill Village Estates. 
 
The Greenhill Village Estates Addition has been constructed in reasonable compliance 
with the project plans and specifications. The Engineering Division recommends that the 
City Council approve and accept the public improvements for the Greenhill Village 
Estates Addition.  
 
 
__________________________________________November 29, 2021       __ 
Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II                    Date 
 
 
 
xc:   Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works  
  David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

887

Item 23.



LOT 1
8.66 AC

377,094 SF

S8
9°

 2
3'

 2
2"

W
   

  1
79

.9
5'

S4
5° 4

6' 0
2"E

85.53' (8
5.33' R

)

S44° 47' 18"W     319.99'

S46° 08' 28"W

88.95'

S64° 45' 07"W

78.67'

S8
6°

 1
0'

 4
2"

W
92

.0
9'

TR
AC

T 
A

0.
49

 A
C

21
,2

72
 S

F

N
89

° 1
5'

 5
6"

E 
   

 3
44

.8
3'

N00° 30' 03"W     876.27'
60.00'

N
89

° 1
5'

 5
6"

E 
   

 3
51

.0
4'

C3

C1
C2

BOUNDARY - CURVE TABLE

CURVE #

C1

C2

C3

LENGTH

552.53

479.44

73.09

RADIUS

780.00

780.00

780.00

DELTA

40°35'12"

35°13'03"

5°22'09"

CHORD DIR.

S24° 54' 27"E

S27° 35' 31"E

S07° 17' 55"E

CHORD LEN.

541.05

471.92

73.07

STORM SEWER AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT
N89° 29' 57"E     36.05'

S01° 34' 57"E     27.03'

N88° 25' 03"E     13.45'

N42° 14' 17"E     127.49'

N72° 29' 09"E     88.85'

S62° 49' 12"E
15.53'

S44° 47' 18"W     12.50'

C14

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

S44° 44' 28"W
32.71'

C5

C6

S45° 28' 18"W

24.64'

C7

S27° 10' 48"W
41.36' C8

C9

N00° 30' 03"W     271.28'C10

N13° 08' 57"W     90.16'

C11N00° 44' 04"W     93.84'C12

N07° 58' 54"E
19.72'C13

N00° 46' 02"W
23.83'

27.07 '

43.66 '

354.16 ' 462.11 '

LOT CURVE TABLE

CURVE #

C14

LENGTH

21.14

RADIUS

15.00

DELTA

80°45'04"

CHORD DIR.

S50° 21' 32"E

CHORD LEN.

19.43

STORM WATER DRAINAGE EASEMENT

N44° 31' 42"W
20.00'

N00° 28' 18"E
21.81'

N41° 3
3' 3

5"W
     

101.49'

S52° 05' 04"W
22.92'

S26° 38' 32"W
26.41' S22° 54' 32"E

40.07'

S15° 21' 36"E
28.05' S22° 10' 08"W

41.52'

S52° 51' 46"W
     151.13'

N6
6°

 5
4'

 1
4"

W
    

 9
2.

51
'

S89° 32' 44"W     43.10'

S66° 52' 46"W
26.01 '

UTILITY EASEMENT - CURVE TABLE

CURVE #

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

LENGTH

89.62

78.37

63.85

98.05

231.60

44.15

48.10

33.77

30.84

RADIUS

262.00

238.00

200.00

124.00

124.00

200.00

222.00

222.00

202.00

DELTA

19°35'54"

18°52'04"

18°17'30"

45°18'21"

107°00'48"

12°38'54"

12°24'53"

8°42'57"

8°44'56"

CHORD DIR.

S54° 32' 25"W

S54° 54' 20"W

S36° 19' 33"W

S49° 49' 58"W

N54° 00' 27"W

N06° 49' 30"W

N06° 56' 30"W

N03° 37' 25"E

N03° 36' 26"E

CHORD LEN.

89.18

78.02

63.58

95.52

199.37

44.06

48.01

33.74

30.81

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

DR
AW

IN
G 

LO
G

EN
GI

N
EE

R:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 O
F 

CH
AN

GE
S

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E:

CL
IE

N
T 

N
AM

E:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
0.

:
DA

TE
 IS

SU
ED

:
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

CU
RR

EN
T 

RE
V:

W
W

W
.A

XI
O

M
-C

O
N

.C
O

M
 |

 (3
19

) 5
19

-6
22

0

 Nov 07, 2019 - 6:44am S:\PROJECTS\190053\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Plats\190053-Final.dwg

19
-0

05
3

1 
O

F 
1

GE
AT

ER
N

EL
SO

N
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N

FI
N

AL
 P

LA
T

N
O

VE
M

BE
R 

7,
 2

01
9

GR
EE

N
HI

LL
 V

IL
LA

GE
 E

ST
AT

ES
CI

TY
 R

EV
IE

W

A

N
O

T 
FO

R 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

0 25 50

LO
REN DRIVE

ALGONQUIN DRIVE

ASHW
ORTH DRIVE

ADDISON DRIVE

GREENHILL VILLAGE

SECOND ADDITION

MU ZONING

GREENHILL VILLAGE

FIRST ADDITION

BK 27 PG 149

MU ZONING

GREENHILL VILLAGE

FOURTH ADDITION

MU ZONING

GREENHILL VILLAGE

FOURTH ADDITION

MU ZONING

GREENHILL VILLAGE COMMERCIAL

FIRST ADDITION

MU ZONING

GREENHILL VILLAGE

FIFTH ADDITION

PHASE 1

MU ZONING

GREENHILL VILLAGE

FIFTH ADDITION

REPLAT OF LOTS 1-5

BK 2010 PG 22801

MU ZONING

GREENHILL VILLAGE

THIRD ADDITION

DOCUMENT #20062617

MU ZONING

LO
RE

N
 D

RI
VE

60'
ROW

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

PROJECT KEY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PROJECT

LOCATION

So
ut
h

Br
an
ch

D
ry

R
un

58

27

POINT OF BEGINNING
NW CORNER OF LOT 6 OF GREENHILL
VILLAGE FIFTH ADDITION, PHASE 1
FOUND 1/2" REBAR OPC NUMBER ILLEGIBLE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
BEING A PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH,
RANGE 14 WEST IN BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA LYING WEST OF ALGONQUIN DRIVE
DESCRIBED AS:
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 6, GREENHILL VILLAGE FIFTH ADDITION,
PHASE 1, AS RECORDED  IN BOOK 2006, PAGE 18897 OF THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY
RECORDS, THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID GREENHILL VILLAGE FIFTH ADDITION,
PHASE 1 N00°30’03”W, 876.27 FEET; THENCE N89°15’56”E, 351.04 FEET TO THE WEST
RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF ALGONQUIN DRIVE; THENCE SOUTHERLY 552.53 FEET ALONG SAID
WEST LINE ON A 780.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY (CHORD BEARING
S24°54’27”E, 541.05 FEET); THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE S45°46’02”E, 85.53 FEET TO
THE NORTHERLY CORNER OF LOT 1 OF THE REPLAT OF LOTS 1-5, GREENHILL VILLAGE FIFTH
ADDITION, PHASE 1 AS RECORDED IN BOOK 2010, PAGE 22801 OF THE BLACK HAWK
COUNTY RECORDS, THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID REPLAT S44°47’18”W, 319.99
FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE S46°08’28”W, 88.95 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID
NORTH LINE S64°45’07”W, 78.67 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE S86°10'42"W,
92.09 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE; S89°23’22”W, 179.95 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING.
DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 9.56 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND OTHER
RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD.

FINAL PLAT

GREENHILL VILLAGE ESTATES
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

RECORDER'S INDEX

COUNTY:

SECTION:

QUARTER SECTION:

CITY:

SUBDIVISION:

BLOCK:

LOT(S):

PROPRIETOR:

REQUESTED BY:

PREPARED BY:
AXIOM CONSULTANTS, LLC, 60 E. Court St. Unit 3
Iowa City, IA 52240 - PH# 319.519.6220

GREENHILL VILLAGE ESTATES

FOR RECORDER'S USE ONLY RECORDER'S INDEX

COUNTY:

SECTION:

QUARTER SECTION:

CITY:

SUBDIVISION:

BLOCK:

LOT(S):

PROPRIETOR:

REQUESTED BY:

PREPARED BY:
AXIOM CONSULTANTS, LLC, 60 E. Court St. Unit 3
Iowa City, IA 52240 - PH# 319.519.6220

FOR RECORDER'S USE ONLY

NE 1/4

GREENHILL VILLAGE RES LLC

NELSON CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT

19828
R. GEATER
BRADLEY

PR
OF

ES
S IONAL LAND

SURVEYOR

ALL
I

O

W

A

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS LAND SURVEYING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT
PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED  LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF IOWA.

BRADLEY R. GEATER, P.L.S., P.E. DATE
LICENSE NUMBER 19828.

MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31, 2019.

PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:

FALLS

NA

NA

CEDAR

26-89-14

BLACKHAWK

LEGEND

SECTION CORNER

PROPERTY CORNER - FOUND
1/2" Ø REBAR NO CAP OR AS
LABELED

PROPERTY CORNER - FOUND
1/2" Ø REBAR YPC #8165

PROPERTY CORNER - SET
SET 5/8" Ø REBAR
WITH OPC #19828

ORANGE PLASTIC CAP

YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

RED PLASTIC CAP

BOUNDARY OR PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

SECTION LINE

EASEMENT

EXISTING FENCE

OPC

YPC

RPC

FOUND 1/2" Ø
REBAR RPC #1195

OPC OPC

OPC

FOUND 1/2" Ø
REBAR OPC #18486

OPC

FOUND 1/2" Ø
REBAR OPC #18486

OPC
FOUND 1/2" Ø
REBAR YPC #12532

OPC

PLAT PREPARED BY:
AXIOM CONSULTANTS
60 E. COURT STREET
IOWA CITY, IA 52240
PH: 319-519-6220

STORM SEWER AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' STORM SEWER AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

APPLICANT:
NELSON CONSTRUCTION &
DEVELOPMENT
218 6TH AVENUE, SUITE 200
DES MOINES, IA 50309

PROPERTY OWNER:
GREENHILL VILLAGE RES LLC
211 1ST AVE SE #A
CEDAR RAPIDS, IA 52403

DRAFT

NOTES:

1. TRACT A TO BE DEDICATED TO THE CITY AS PUBLIC ROW.
2. ALL MONUMENTS TO BE PLACED WITHIN ONE YEAR OF RECORDING OF SUBDIVISION.
3. BASIS OF BEARINGS IS THE IOWA PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM SOUTH ZONE NAD 83..
4. THIS PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS AND ROADWAYS OF RECORD.
5. NO INVESTIGATION CONCERNING ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS,

OR FOR THE EXISTENCE OF UNDERGROUND CONTAINERS, STRUCTURES OR FACILITIES
WHICH MAY AFFECT THE USE OR DEVELOPMENT OF THIS PROPERTY WAS MADE AS A
PART OF THIS SURVEY.

6. NO INVESTIGATION WAS MADE AS APART OF THIS SURVEY TO DETERMINE OR SHOW
DATA CONCERNING EXISTENCE, SIZE , DEPTH, CONDITION, CAPACITY, OR LOCATION OF
ANY UTILITIES OR MUNICIPAL FACILITIES, EXCEPT AS NOTED.  CALL IOWA ONE-CALL AT
1-800-292-8989 FOR INFORMATION REGARDING THESE UTILITIES OR FACILITIES.

7. DISTANCES ARE LISTED IN FEET AND DECIMAL PART OF A FOOT.
8. ERROR OF CLOSURE IS LESS THAN 1 IN 10,000.

10' ELECTRIC &
COMMUNICATIONS

EASEMENT

10' ELECTRIC &
COMMUNICATIONS

EASEMENT

24' ACCESS &
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

GREENHILL VILLAGE

TOWNHOMES II

STORM SEWER
AND DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

10' ELECTRIC &
COMMUNICATIONS

EASEMENT

24' ACCESS
EASEMENT

NE CORNER OF LOT 1 OF REPLAT OF LOTS 1-5,
GREEN VILLAGE FIFTH ADDITION, PHASE 1
FOUND 1/2" REBAR OPC NUMBER ILLEGIBLE

24' ACCESS &
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

888

Item 23.

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DANISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FJORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LLOYD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANN

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLORIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIZARRO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUESADA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATHENS CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENHILL RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALVARDO AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORDIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAREY DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
KYLIE CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORDIC DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALBOA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORONADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTMINSTER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLACIER DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIEW CIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANDOVER CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CELTIC CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRIET LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DONALD DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORDIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUSTIN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMELIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASHWORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOREN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALGONQUIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALGONQUIN DR



889

Item 23.



890

Item 23.



891

Item 23.



892

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Rob M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: November 29, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Greenhill Road and South Main Street Intersection Improvement Project  
  Project No. RC-173-3228 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Friday, November 19, 2021 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
Greenhill Road and South Main Street Intersection Improvement Project. A total of four 
(4) bids were received, with Petersen Contractors, Inc. the low bidder: 
 

 Total Bid               

Engineering Estimate $3,357,466.56 

Petersen Contractors, Inc. $3,329,289.25 

Owen Contracting, Inc. $3,431,691.81 

Boomerang $3,487,710.70 

Portzen Construction, Inc. $3,555,906.50 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $3,357,466.56. Petersen Contractors, Inc. 
of Reinbeck, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $3,329,289.25. Attached is a 
bid tab for your reference. 
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from Petersen Contractors, Inc. in the 
amount of $3,329,289.25. On December 20th, 2021, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance 
Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  
  

893

Item 24.



TABULATION OF BIDS

Greenhill Road & South Main Street Intersection Improvements

City of Cedar Falls - Project Number RC-173-3228

BASE BID

ITEM ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1 2010-C-0 Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 6,500.00$        6,500.00$            5,000.00$        5,000.00$           5,000.00$        5,000.00$           50,000.00$      50,000.00$         10,000.00$      10,000.00$          17,500.00$      17,500.00$            
2 2010-D-2 Topsoil, Compost Amended CY 80 85.00$             6,800.00$            75.00$             6,000.00$           75.00$             6,000.00$           50.00$             4,000.00$           125.00$           10,000.00$          81.25$             6,500.00$              
3 2010-D-1 Topsoil, Strip, Stockpile and Respread CY 811.5 15.00$             12,172.50$          12.50$             10,143.75$         12.50$             10,143.75$         20.00$             16,230.00$         30.00$             24,345.00$          18.75$             15,215.63$            
4 2010-D-3 Topsoil, Off-site CY 233.3 35.00$             8,165.50$            30.00$             6,999.00$           30.00$             6,999.00$           50.00$             11,665.00$         40.00$             9,332.00$            37.50$             8,748.75$              
5 2010-E-0 Excavation, Class 10 CY 7500 8.00$               60,000.00$          12.50$             93,750.00$         12.50$             93,750.00$         1.00$               7,500.00$           10.50$             78,750.00$          9.13$               68,437.50$            
6 2010-F-0 Below Grade Excavation (Core Out) SY 1250 35.00$             43,750.00$          10.00$             12,500.00$         10.00$             12,500.00$         50.00$             62,500.00$         40.00$             50,000.00$          27.50$             34,375.00$            
7 2010-G-0 Subgrade Preparation SY 11285 3.50$               39,497.50$          3.00$               33,855.00$         3.00$               33,855.00$         1.00$               11,285.00$         1.65$               18,620.25$          2.16$               24,403.81$            
8 2010-I-0 Subbase, 12", Modified SY 11285 15.00$             169,275.00$        15.00$             169,275.00$       15.00$             169,275.00$       14.00$             157,990.00$       13.50$             152,347.50$        14.38$             162,221.88$          
9 2010-L-0 Compaction Testing LS 1 3,500.00$        3,500.00$            2,000.00$        2,000.00$           5,000.00$        5,000.00$           3,500.00$        3,500.00$           1,500.00$        1,500.00$            3,000.00$        3,000.00$              

10 3010-F-0 Trench Compaction Testing LS 1 3,500.00$        3,500.00$            1,500.00$        1,500.00$           5,000.00$        5,000.00$           3,600.00$        3,600.00$           1,000.00$        1,000.00$            2,775.00$        2,775.00$              
11 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP Class III, 18" LF 918.3 75.00$             68,872.50$          65.00$             59,689.50$         65.00$             59,689.50$         125.00$           114,787.50$       90.00$             82,647.00$          86.25$             79,203.38$            
12 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP Class III, 24" LF 208.3 95.00$             19,788.50$          80.00$             16,664.00$         80.00$             16,664.00$         145.00$           30,203.50$         80.00$             16,664.00$          96.25$             20,048.88$            
13 4020-D-0 Removal of Storm Sewer, RCP, 30" or Less LF 813 20.00$             16,260.00$          17.50$             14,227.50$         17.50$             14,227.50$         15.00$             12,195.00$         15.00$             12,195.00$          16.25$             13,211.25$            
14 4030-B-0 Pipe Apron, RCP, 24" EA 1 2,000.00$        2,000.00$            3,000.00$        3,000.00$           3,000.00$        3,000.00$           2,000.00$        2,000.00$           3,500.00$        3,500.00$            2,875.00$        2,875.00$              
15 4040-A-0 Subdrain, Perforated, 6" LF 3410 10.00$             34,100.00$          18.50$             63,085.00$         18.50$             63,085.00$         15.00$             51,150.00$         16.00$             54,560.00$          17.00$             57,970.00$            
16 4040-C-0 Subdrain Cleanout, Type B EA 8 950.00$           7,600.00$            600.00$           4,800.00$           600.00$           4,800.00$           500.00$           4,000.00$           1,500.00$        12,000.00$          800.00$           6,400.00$              
17 4040-D-0 Subdrain Outlets and Connections, 6" EA 18 650.00$           11,700.00$          300.00$           5,400.00$           300.00$           5,400.00$           200.00$           3,600.00$           200.00$           3,600.00$            250.00$           4,500.00$              
18 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched, Class 52 DIP, 12" LF 854.3 90.00$             76,887.00$          85.00$             72,615.50$         85.00$             72,615.50$         100.00$           85,430.00$         135.00$           115,330.50$        101.25$           86,497.88$            
19 5010-A-2 Water Main, Trenchless, Class 52 DIP, 12" LF 202.9 200.00$           40,580.00$          225.00$           45,652.50$         225.00$           45,652.50$         200.00$           40,580.00$         250.00$           50,725.00$          225.00$           45,652.50$            
20 5010-C-2 Fitting, DIP LB 5865 11.00$             64,515.00$          5.50$               32,257.50$         5.50$               32,257.50$         10.00$             58,650.00$         7.50$               43,987.50$          7.13$               41,788.13$            
21 5020-A-0 Gate Valve, DIP, 12" EA 7 2,500.00$        17,500.00$          3,750.00$        26,250.00$         3,750.00$        26,250.00$         2,800.00$        19,600.00$         3,500.00$        24,500.00$          3,450.00$        24,150.00$            
22 5020-D-0 Flushing Device (Blowoff), 12" EA 2 2,000.00$        4,000.00$            2,250.00$        4,500.00$           2,250.00$        4,500.00$           1,500.00$        3,000.00$           3,000.00$        6,000.00$            2,250.00$        4,500.00$              
23 5020-C-0 Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 3 5,500.00$        16,500.00$          7,000.00$        21,000.00$         7,000.00$        21,000.00$         6,000.00$        18,000.00$         7,250.00$        21,750.00$          6,812.50$        20,437.50$            
24 5020-I-0 Fire Hydrant Assembly Removal EA 1 2,500.00$        2,500.00$            1,250.00$        1,250.00$           1,250.00$        1,250.00$           500.00$           500.00$              800.00$           800.00$               950.00$           950.00$                 
25 5020-J-0 Removal of Valve, 12" EA 4 500.00$           2,000.00$            875.00$           3,500.00$           875.00$           3,500.00$           250.00$           1,000.00$           500.00$           2,000.00$            625.00$           2,500.00$              
26 6010-A-0 Manhole, SW-401, 48" EA 2 3,750.00$        7,500.00$            4,250.00$        8,500.00$           4,250.00$        8,500.00$           5,000.00$        10,000.00$         4,500.00$        9,000.00$            4,500.00$        9,000.00$              
27 6010-B-0 Intake, SW-507 EA 2 5,600.00$        11,200.00$          6,000.00$        12,000.00$         6,000.00$        12,000.00$         4,500.00$        9,000.00$           5,150.00$        10,300.00$          5,412.50$        10,825.00$            
28 6010-B-0 Intake, SW-508 EA 7 5,500.00$        38,500.00$          7,500.00$        52,500.00$         7,500.00$        52,500.00$         5,000.00$        35,000.00$         7,250.00$        50,750.00$          6,812.50$        47,687.50$            
29 6010-B-0 Intake, SW-510 EA 2 7,200.00$        14,400.00$          8,000.00$        16,000.00$         8,000.00$        16,000.00$         5,500.00$        11,000.00$         8,850.00$        17,700.00$          7,587.50$        15,175.00$            
30 6010-B-0 Intake, SW-541 EA 2 6,700.00$        13,400.00$          9,000.00$        18,000.00$         9,000.00$        18,000.00$         9,000.00$        18,000.00$         8,000.00$        16,000.00$          8,750.00$        17,500.00$            
31 6010-H-0 Remove Manhole EA 2 800.00$           1,600.00$            1,000.00$        2,000.00$           1,000.00$        2,000.00$           500.00$           1,000.00$           900.00$           1,800.00$            850.00$           1,700.00$              
32 6010-H-0 Remove Intake EA 8 800.00$           6,400.00$            1,000.00$        8,000.00$           1,000.00$        8,000.00$           500.00$           4,000.00$           750.00$           6,000.00$            812.50$           6,500.00$              
33 7010-A-0 Pavement, PCC, 9" SY 10821 60.00$             649,260.00$        56.50$             611,386.50$       56.10$             607,058.10$       60.00$             649,260.00$       56.50$             611,386.50$        57.28$             619,772.78$          
34 7010-I-0 PCC Pavement Samples and Testing LS 1 3,500.00$        3,500.00$            4,000.00$        4,000.00$           4,000.00$        4,000.00$           5,000.00$        5,000.00$           3,000.00$        3,000.00$            4,000.00$        4,000.00$              
35 7020-B-0 Temporary Pavement SY 540 50.00$             27,000.00$          67.50$             36,450.00$         67.00$             36,180.00$         60.00$             32,400.00$         70.00$             37,800.00$          66.13$             35,707.50$            
36 7030-A-0 Removal of Sidewalk / Shared Use Path SY 1824 14.00$             25,536.00$          5.50$               10,032.00$         5.50$               10,032.00$         6.00$               10,944.00$         10.00$             18,240.00$          6.75$               12,312.00$            
37 7030-A-0 Removal of Driveway SY 151 9.00$               1,359.00$            5.50$               830.50$              5.50$               830.50$              10.00$             1,510.00$           11.50$             1,736.50$            8.13$               1,226.88$              
38 7030-C-0 Shared Use Path, PCC, 6" SY 1276.8 45.00$             57,456.00$          41.00$             52,348.80$         41.00$             52,348.80$         50.00$             63,840.00$         46.50$             59,371.20$          44.63$             56,977.20$            
39 7030-D-0 Special Subgrade Preparation for Shared Use Path SY 2464.2 3.00$               7,392.60$            3.00$               7,392.60$           3.00$               7,392.60$           3.00$               7,392.60$           4.00$               9,856.80$            3.25$               8,008.65$              
40 7030-E-0 Sidewalk, PCC, 5" SY 413.8 52.00$             21,517.60$          45.50$             18,827.90$         45.50$             18,827.90$         52.00$             21,517.60$         55.00$             22,759.00$          49.50$             20,483.10$            
41 7030-F-0 Unit Pavers with Bituminous Setting Bed SF 4045 25.00$             101,125.00$        25.00$             101,125.00$       24.60$             99,507.00$         31.00$             125,395.00$       31.50$             127,417.50$        28.03$             113,361.13$          
42 7030-F-0 Unit Pavers with Granular Base SF 4260 18.00$             76,680.00$          15.50$             66,030.00$         15.00$             63,900.00$         14.00$             59,640.00$         21.50$             91,590.00$          16.50$             70,290.00$            
43 7030-G-0 Detectable Warning SF 360 45.00$             16,200.00$          45.00$             16,200.00$         45.00$             16,200.00$         50.00$             18,000.00$         48.50$             17,460.00$          47.13$             16,965.00$            
44 7030-H-1 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 6" SY 140 59.00$             8,260.00$            65.00$             9,100.00$           64.00$             8,960.00$           64.00$             8,960.00$           80.00$             11,200.00$          68.25$             9,555.00$              
45 7040-H-0 Pavement Removal SY 9470 8.00$               75,760.00$          7.50$               71,025.00$         8.75$               82,862.50$         8.00$               75,760.00$         6.00$               56,820.00$          7.56$               71,616.88$            
46 7040-I-0 Curb and Gutter Removal LF 250 8.00$               2,000.00$            7.50$               1,875.00$           7.50$               1,875.00$           20.00$             5,000.00$           20.00$             5,000.00$            13.75$             3,437.50$              
47 8020-F-0 Temporary Pavement Markings STA 77.6 105.00$           8,148.00$            65.00$             5,044.00$           65.00$             5,044.00$           125.00$           9,700.00$           130.00$           10,088.00$          96.25$             7,469.00$              
48 8020-C-0 Painted Pavement Markings, Durable STA 150.5 85.00$             12,792.50$          160.00$           24,080.00$         160.00$           24,080.00$         100.00$           15,050.00$         105.00$           15,802.50$          131.25$           19,753.13$            
49 8020-G-0 Painted Symbols and Legends EA 20 220.00$           4,400.00$            400.00$           8,000.00$           400.00$           8,000.00$           225.00$           4,500.00$           235.00$           4,700.00$            315.00$           6,300.00$              
50 8020-K-0 Pavement Markings Removed STA 51.1 40.00$             2,044.00$            85.00$             4,343.50$           85.00$             4,343.50$           85.00$             4,343.50$           90.00$             4,599.00$            86.25$             4,407.38$              
51 8020-M-0 Grooves Cut for Pavement Markings STA 150.5 85.00$             12,792.50$          100.00$           15,050.00$         100.00$           15,050.00$         100.00$           15,050.00$         105.00$           15,802.50$          101.25$           15,238.13$            
52 8020-N-0 Grooves Cut for Symbols and Legends EA 20 150.00$           3,000.00$            175.00$           3,500.00$           175.00$           3,500.00$           125.00$           2,500.00$           135.00$           2,700.00$            152.50$           3,050.00$              
53 8030-A-0 Temporary Traffic Control LS 1 50,000.00$      50,000.00$          25,000.00$      25,000.00$         56,000.00$      56,000.00$         20,000.00$      20,000.00$         30,000.00$      30,000.00$          32,750.00$      32,750.00$            
54 8030-B-0 Portable Dynamic Message Signs (PDMS) DAY 70 50.00$             3,500.00$            75.00$             5,250.00$           75.00$             5,250.00$           65.00$             4,550.00$           70.00$             4,900.00$            71.25$             4,987.50$              
55 8030-C-0 Flaggers DAY 80 550.00$           44,000.00$          450.00$           36,000.00$         560.00$           44,800.00$         450.00$           36,000.00$         500.00$           40,000.00$          490.00$           39,200.00$            
56 8040-SP-1 Type A Sign, Sheet Aluminum SF 219.3 25.00$             5,482.50$            25.00$             5,482.50$           29.00$             6,359.70$           24.00$             5,263.20$           25.00$             5,482.50$            25.75$             5,646.98$              
57 8040-SP-2 Steel 2" X 2" Perforated 14-Gauge Square Tubing Post LF 723 12.00$             8,676.00$            15.00$             10,845.00$         20.00$             14,460.00$         14.00$             10,122.00$         15.00$             10,845.00$          16.00$             11,568.00$            
58 8040-SP-3 Removal of Signs and Posts EA 20 75.00$             1,500.00$            50.00$             1,000.00$           125.00$           2,500.00$           75.00$             1,500.00$           80.00$             1,600.00$            82.50$             1,650.00$              
59 9010-B-0 Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching AC 1.8 4,000.00$        7,200.00$            4,250.00$        7,650.00$           5,800.00$        10,440.00$         6,000.00$        10,800.00$         3,250.00$        5,850.00$            4,825.00$        8,685.00$              
60 9030-B-0 Trees with Warranty, Deciduous EA 3 500.00$           1,500.00$            700.00$           2,100.00$           480.00$           1,440.00$           650.00$           1,950.00$           625.00$           1,875.00$            613.75$           1,841.25$              
61 9030-B-0 Trees with Warranty, Evergreen EA 3 500.00$           1,500.00$            700.00$           2,100.00$           635.00$           1,905.00$           820.00$           2,460.00$           800.00$           2,400.00$            738.75$           2,216.25$              
62 9030-B-0 Plants with Warranty, Shrub EA 20 50.00$             1,000.00$            75.00$             1,500.00$           35.00$             700.00$              46.00$             920.00$              45.00$             900.00$               50.25$             1,005.00$              
63 9030-B-0 Plants with Warranty, Ornamental Grass EA 777 30.00$             23,310.00$          15.00$             11,655.00$         22.00$             17,094.00$         16.50$             12,820.50$         16.00$             12,432.00$          17.38$             13,500.38$            
64 9030-B-0 Plants with Warranty, Perennial EA 134 15.00$             2,010.00$            12.00$             1,608.00$           14.50$             1,943.00$           16.00$             2,144.00$           15.50$             2,077.00$            14.50$             1,943.00$              
65 9035-SP-1 River Rock Mulch CY 51 100.00$           5,100.00$            75.00$             3,825.00$           125.00$           6,375.00$           110.00$           5,610.00$           105.00$           5,355.00$            103.75$           5,291.25$              
66 9035-SP-2 Shredded Hardwood Mulch CY 75 45.00$             3,375.00$            50.00$             3,750.00$           43.00$             3,225.00$           100.00$           7,500.00$           98.00$             7,350.00$            72.75$             5,456.25$              
67 9035-SP-3 Metal Edging LF 100 10.00$             1,000.00$            8.00$               800.00$              6.40$               640.00$              10.00$             1,000.00$           12.00$             1,200.00$            9.10$               910.00$                 
68 9035-SP-4 Limestone Edging LF 115 15.00$             1,725.00$            75.00$             8,625.00$           17.00$             1,955.00$           18.00$             2,070.00$           28.00$             3,220.00$            34.50$             3,967.50$              
69 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, Compost, 12" LF 3018 3.50$               10,563.00$          2.50$               7,545.00$           3.50$               10,563.00$         3.50$               10,563.00$         3.25$               9,808.50$            3.19$               9,619.88$              
70 9040-D-2 Removal of Filter Sock, Compost, 12" LF 3018 1.00$               3,018.00$            0.50$               1,509.00$           0.50$               1,509.00$           1.00$               3,018.00$           0.50$               1,509.00$            0.63$               1,886.25$              
71 9040-E-0 Temporary RECP, Type 2 SY 1643 15.00$             24,645.00$          1.75$               2,875.25$           3.15$               5,175.45$           1.80$               2,957.40$           1.35$               2,218.05$            2.01$               3,306.54$              

November 19, 2021 

at 2:00 PM
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Peterson Contractors Inc Owen Contracting, Inc. Boomerang Pirc-Tobin Construction Inc BID AVERAGE

1 2 3 4

894

Item 24.



City of Cedar Falls - Project Number RC-173-3228

BASE BID

ITEM ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

November 19, 2021 

at 2:00 PM
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Peterson Contractors Inc Owen Contracting, Inc. Boomerang Pirc-Tobin Construction Inc BID AVERAGE

1 2 3 4

72 9040-J-0 Rip Rap, Class D, 24" Thickness TON 30 50.00$             1,500.00$            75.00$             2,250.00$           75.00$             2,250.00$           70.00$             2,100.00$           60.00$             1,800.00$            70.00$             2,100.00$              
73 9040-N-1 Silt Fence LF 1117 2.00$               2,234.00$            1.75$               1,954.75$           2.30$               2,569.10$           1.70$               1,898.90$           2.00$               2,234.00$            1.94$               2,164.19$              
74 9040-N-2 Silt Fence, Removal of Sediment LF 1117 2.00$               2,234.00$            0.05$               55.85$                1.25$               1,396.25$           0.50$               558.50$              0.50$               558.50$               0.58$               642.28$                 
75 9040-N-3 Silt Fence, Removal of Device LF 1117 1.00$               1,117.00$            0.05$               55.85$                1.00$               1,117.00$           0.50$               558.50$              0.10$               111.70$               0.41$               460.76$                 
76 9040-T-1 Inlet Protection Device, Filter Sock EA 18 125.00$           2,250.00$            60.00$             1,080.00$           91.00$             1,638.00$           80.00$             1,440.00$           80.00$             1,440.00$            77.75$             1,399.50$              
77 9040-T-2 Inlet Protection Device, Maintenance EA 36 300.00$           10,800.00$          25.00$             900.00$              67.00$             2,412.00$           10.00$             360.00$              10.00$             360.00$               28.00$             1,008.00$              
78 9060-A-0 Chain Link Fence, Metal, 4' LF 12 50.00$             600.00$               170.00$           2,040.00$           158.34$           1,900.08$           50.00$             600.00$              175.00$           2,100.00$            138.34$           1,660.02$              
79 9060-A-1 Screen Fence, Vinyl, 8' LF 1843 157.00$           289,351.00$        170.00$           313,310.00$       163.00$           300,409.00$       136.00$           250,648.00$       175.00$           322,525.00$        161.00$           296,723.00$          
80 9060-E-0 Removal of Chain Link Fence LF 148 5.00$               740.00$               4.00$               592.00$              3.74$               553.52$              15.00$             2,220.00$           15.00$             2,220.00$            9.44$               1,396.38$              
81 9060-E-0 Removal of Wood Fence LF 1594 5.00$               7,970.00$            4.00$               6,376.00$           3.74$               5,961.56$           25.00$             39,850.00$         8.00$               12,752.00$          10.19$             16,234.89$            
82 9070-SP-1 Cast Stone Walls LS 1 70,000.00$      70,000.00$          165,000.00$    165,000.00$       167,000.00$    167,000.00$       225,000.00$    225,000.00$       175,000.00$    175,000.00$        183,000.00$    183,000.00$          
83 9070-SP-2 Limestone Columns LS 1 45,000.00$      45,000.00$          70,000.00$      70,000.00$         66,295.00$      66,295.00$         60,000.00$      60,000.00$         80,000.00$      80,000.00$          69,073.75$      69,073.75$            
84 9072-A-0 Combined Concrete Sidewalk and Retaining Wall CY 150 1,950.00$        292,500.00$        2,000.00$        300,000.00$       2,050.00$        307,500.00$       600.00$           90,000.00$         2,300.00$        345,000.00$        1,737.50$        260,625.00$          
85 9085-SP-1 Removal and Reinstallation of Bench LS 1 3,000.00$        3,000.00$            1,000.00$        1,000.00$           2,850.00$        2,850.00$           2,000.00$        2,000.00$           750.00$           750.00$               1,650.00$        1,650.00$              
86 9090-SP-1 Roadway Lighting LS 1 115,000.00$    115,000.00$        140,000.00$    140,000.00$       135,000.00$    135,000.00$       130,000.00$    130,000.00$       140,000.00$    140,000.00$        136,250.00$    136,250.00$          
87 10,010-A Removal of Traffic Signal LS 1 25,000.00$      25,000.00$          8,500.00$        8,500.00$           13,500.00$      13,500.00$         6,000.00$        6,000.00$           7,500.00$        7,500.00$            8,875.00$        8,875.00$              
88 11,010-A Construction Survey LS 1 20,000.00$      20,000.00$          50,000.00$      50,000.00$         28,000.00$      28,000.00$         38,000.00$      38,000.00$         45,000.00$      45,000.00$          40,250.00$      40,250.00$            
89 11,020-A Mobilization LS 1 150,000.00$    150,000.00$        200,000.00$    200,000.00$       275,000.00$    275,000.00$       495,000.00$    495,000.00$       214,000.00$    214,000.00$        296,000.00$    296,000.00$          
90 11,030-A-0 Maintenance of Postal Service LS 1 1,500.00$        1,500.00$            2,500.00$        2,500.00$           3,000.00$        3,000.00$           500.00$           500.00$              500.00$           500.00$               1,625.00$        1,625.00$              
91 11,030-B-0 Maintenance of Solid Waste Collection LS 1 1,500.00$        1,500.00$            6,000.00$        6,000.00$           3,000.00$        3,000.00$           500.00$           500.00$              5,000.00$        5,000.00$            3,625.00$        3,625.00$              
92 11,050-A-0 Concrete Washout LS 1 4,000.00$        4,000.00$            5,000.00$        5,000.00$           7,500.00$        7,500.00$           2,000.00$        2,000.00$           2,000.00$        2,000.00$            4,125.00$        4,125.00$              
93 11,010-B Monument Preservation and Replacement LS 1 5,000.00$        5,000.00$            15,000.00$      15,000.00$         2,100.00$        2,100.00$           500.00$           500.00$              1,000.00$        1,000.00$            4,650.00$        4,650.00$              

BASE BID: 3,197,587.20$     3,329,289.25$    3,431,691.81$    3,487,710.70$    3,555,906.50$     3,451,149.57$       
CONTINGENCY (5%): 159,879.36$        NA NA NA NA

BID SECURITY: - 10% 10% 10% 10%
TOTAL BASE BID: 3,357,466.56$     3,329,289.25$    3,431,691.81$    3,487,710.70$    3,555,906.50$     3,451,149.57$       

Addenda 1 x x x x

Addenda 2 x x x x

Bid Security x x x x

x x x x

x x x x

x x x x

Non-Collusion Affidavit

TSB Pre-Bid Contact

Bidder Status Form

895

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: November 29, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Greenhill Road & South Main Street Intersection Improvements  
  City Project Number RC-173-3228 
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to construct a roundabout at the intersection of 
Greenhill Road & South Main Street including new pavement, sidewalk/trail, retaining 
wall and fencing, storm sewer, watermain, landscaping, and roadway lighting.  The 
project will require the acquisition of temporary and permanent easements from four (4) 
properties to complete construction. The owners of the following three properties have 
accepted our offer, with the fourth property also accepting our offer, but still returning all 
necessary documents. 
 
Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

1 Lillian Jean Sesma 8914-25-126-068 Permanent Easement/Temporary Easement 

2 Gary Wilson 8914-24-376-012 Temporary Easement 

5 Michael W Wheaton 8914-24-451-021 Permanent Easement/Temporary Easement 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties.  
 
The City will use General Obligation Funds for the design and right of way portion of this 
project. The City entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Shive-Hattery, 
Inc., of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, on March 16, 2020 for property acquisition and design 
services. Funds for this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements 
Program in FY21, FY22 and FY23 under item number 122. If approved, the City 
Attorney will prepare the necessary closing documents and staff will complete the 
acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
approving the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the 
Greenhill Road & South Main Street Intersection Improvements project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

896

Item 25.



SESMA,LILLIAN JEAN

113 BALBOA AVE

891425126050

MIKLO,ERIC J

119  BALBOA AVE

891425126003

SESMA,LILLIAN JEAN &
KALKWARF,MORGAN J

125 BALBOA AVE

891425126004

SUND,DAVID W &
SUND,PENNY S

201 BALBOA AVE

891425126005

GREEN,JANET W &
OSTBY,RANDY R

207 BALBOA AVE

891425126006

TREMBLY,SCOTT E JR &
TREMBLY,MEGAN R

213 BALBOA AVE

891425126007

FOSTER,RICHARD L

221 BALBOA AVE

891425126008

HETH,GARY L &
HETH,JANICE E

227 BALBOA AVE

891425126009

SCHICK,TROY &
SCHICK,JULIE

303 BALBOA AVE

891425126010

108 A BALBOA AVE

891425127000

108 B BALBOA AVE

891425127000

108 C BALBOA AVE

120 A BALBOA AVE

891425127000

FAREWAY STORES INC

4500 S MAIN ST

891425202006 FAREWAY STORES INC

4500 S MAIN ST

891425202006

4515 CONEFLOWER PKWY

891425202008

WILSON,GARY L &WILSON,JILL S

4319 S MAIN ST

891424376012

TILKES,ANDREW M

891424376017

TILKES,ANDREW M

4309 S MAIN ST

891424376011

KELLY,STEVEN E

223 SPRUCE HILLS DR

891424455027

WAGNER,MICHAEL D TRUST &
WAGNER,COLEEN M TRUST

217 SPRUCE HILLS DR

891424451020

SCHMIDT,KENT J &
SCHMIDT,MELISSA L

211 SPRUCE HILLS DR

891424451019

ANHALT,JOSEPH L &
ANHALT,KRISTI K

205 SPRUCE HILLS DR

891424451018

FAUCHER,ADAM &
ANDERSON,CHELSEA L
201 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451017

MC CORMACK,GARY A TRUST &
MC CORMACK,LINDA K TRUST
123 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451016

WHEATON,MICHAEL W
119 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451021

MC ELHOSE,BRIAN K &
MC ELHOSE,MELANIE J
4309 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451014

FERGUSON,STEVEN R &
FERGUSON,SANDRA E
4303 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451013

RINEHART,RONALD W &
RINEHART,REBECCA W
4227 SPRUCE HILLS DR
891424451012

SESMA,LILLIAN JEAN

891425126068

106+00 107+00 108+00
109+00

110+00

111+00

112+00

113+00

114+00

115+00

116+00

117+00

118+00

119+00

20
5+

00
20

6+
00

20
7+

00
20

8+
00

20
9+

00
21

0+
00

21
1+

00
21

2+
00

SCALE

EXHIBIT:  

GREENHILL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS
FROM S MAIN STREET TO CONEFLOWER PKWY

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
06/11/2020

RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION

S.
 M

AI
N

 S
TR

EE
T

GREENHILL ROAD

BALBOA AVENUE

SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE

09/03/2020

LEGEND

PROPOSED PROPERTY
ACQUISITION (FEE TITLE)

PROPOSED TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

897

Item 25.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
60



898

Item 25.



899

Item 25.



900

Item 25.



901

Item 25.



902

Item 25.



903

Item 25.



904

Item 25.



905

Item 25.



906

Item 25.



907

Item 25.



908

Item 25.



909

Item 25.



910

Item 25.



911

Item 25.



912

Item 25.



913

Item 25.



914

Item 25.



915

Item 25.



916

Item 25.



917

Item 25.



918

Item 25.



919

Item 25.



920

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Cory Hines, GIS Analyst 

 DATE: December 1, 2021 

 SUBJECT: Proposed ordinance establishing new wards and precincts 
 
 
Staff would like to request that City Council set a date of public hearing for the proposed 
ward and precinct boundaries.  The results of the 2020 census combined with Iowa 
State Code requirements have prompted these changes.  Additional information 
regarding the ordinance language and associated documents will be provided to City 
Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 

921

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO:   Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM:  Luke Andreasen, PE, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE:  November 30, 2021 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th Street to University Avenue)   
    Public Hearing 
    Project Number RC-000-3283 
     
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to 
University Avenue. The intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street and 
possibly 6th Street will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall 
traffic safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include 
improvements to the water main, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer and other 
miscellaneous roadway items. Right-of-Way acquired for the project will be used for 
roadway alignment and utility relocations. Plans for the project show the need for fee 
title and/or easement acquisitions from approximately nine (9) properties.  
 
The nine (9) property acquisitions include two (2) total takes at the northeast and 
northwest corners of the Main/12th intersection. In addition, temporary construction 
easements will be necessary for almost every property on both sides of Main Street 
from 6th Street to University.  
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right-of-way.  The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the fee title and easement 
acquisition will be purchased, to comment on the project. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends setting Monday, December 20, 2021 at 7:00 
p.m. as the date and time for the public hearing on this project. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

922

Item 27.



p
w

:/
/P

W
-A

P
S

1
.f

o
th

.c
o

m
:P

W
_

IE
/D

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Main Street Reconstruction
Cedar Falls, Iowa

Conceptual Layout - ROW Impacts

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H
 S

T
 E

 7
T

H
 S

T

 W
 9

T
H
 S

T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H
 S

T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

Permanent Acquisition 
Parcels Impacted 13 (19,432 Sq ft)

Temporary Easement 
Parcels Impacted 145 (155,204 Sq ft)

City Property
Parcels Impacted 10 (3,993 Sq ft)

923

Item 27.



924

Item 28.



925

Item 28.



926

Item 28.



927

Item 28.



928

Item 28.



929

Item 28.



930

Item 28.



931

Item 28.



932

Item 28.



933

Item 28.



934

Item 28.



935

Item 28.



936

Item 28.



937

Item 28.



938

Item 28.



939

Item 28.



940

Item 28.



941

Item 28.



942

Item 28.



943

Item 28.



944

Item 28.



945

Item 28.



946

Item 28.



947

Item 28.



948

Item 28.



949

Item 28.



950

Item 28.



951

Item 28.



952

Item 28.



953

Item 28.



954

Item 28.



955

Item 28.



956

Item 28.



957

Item 28.



958

Item 28.



959

Item 28.



960

Item 28.



961

Item 28.



962

Item 28.



963

Item 28.



964

Item 28.



965

Item 28.



966

Item 28.



967

Item 28.



968

Item 28.



969

Item 28.



970

Item 28.



971

Item 28.



972

Item 28.



973

Item 28.



974

Item 28.



975

Item 28.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

And  

 

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 238 

(Public Works) 

November 9, 2021 

 

The parties agree to recommend the following contract modifications to the City Council and 

Union Membership for ratification: 

 

 

1) Remove the following prohibited subjects of bargaining: 

 

a) Insurance 

b) Transfer Procedures  

c) Evaluation Procedures 

d) Staff Reduction Procedures  

e) Dues Deduction  

f) Supplemental Pay  

g) Subcontracting Procedures 

h) Political Payroll Deductions 

i) Leaves of Absence for Political Activities 

 

2) Article 5.2 Rest and Meal Periods 

Modify this Article to reflect the following:  “There shall be one unpaid meal period in 

each regular work day which shall be not less than thirty (30) minutes in length and two 

(2) fifteen (15) minute paid rest periods that shall not be scheduled at the end of the 

shift.” 

 

3) Article 5.3 Shift Assignments 

Add the following sentence at the end of this paragraph:  ”If requested by the Union, the 

City will meet and discuss any proposed schedule change.  This does not prevent the City 

from implementing the proposed schedule change.” 

 

4) Article 6.1 Overtime/Work Day 

Modify this Article to read: “Time and one-half (1 1/2) for hours worked beyond the 

regularly scheduled hours in a workday, except as otherwise prescribed.” 

 

5) Modify the Vacation (Article 7) and Sick Leave (Article 9) to reflect hours instead of 

days.   

 

 

 

 

6) Article 7.1 Vacation Time Earned 

976

Item 30.



Add the following language:  “Permanent Part-Time employees, as designated by the 

City, shall receive pro-rated vacation.  Such vacation accrual shall not exceed a 

maximum of 58 hours.” 

 

7) Article 9.10 Sick Leave Casual Day 

Add language that reflects a casual day shall be equal to the number of hours of the shift 

when the casual day is used.   

        

8) Article 16.2 Safety Shoes/Boots  

 Increase boot allowance from $160 to $175 

 

9) Article 16.7 Hard Hats, Vests/Shirts 

Add the following language:  “Each employee shall be provided his/her own personal 

protective equipment and will not be required to share this equipment with other 

employees.  The City reserves the right to determine what personal protective equipment 

is governed by this section.”   

  

10) Article 25 and Exhibit A Wages  

 

 7/1/22 – 3.00% 

 7/1/23 – 3.00% 

 

7/1/24, 7/1/25, 7/1/26:  “Employees shall receive an across the board wage increase 

equal to the CPI-U +.75%.  CPI-U shall be calculated as the average from the 12 months 

preceding April 1st of each year.  The wage increase for this period cannot be less than 

2.50% and cannot exceed 3.50%.  This provision shall be removed from the contract 

effective 12/31/26.” 

 

11) Article 28 General Provisions  

 Section (a) (Term of Agreement) shall be modified to reflect a five (5) year contract. 

 

 

977

Item 30.



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A TENTATIVE AGREEMENT WITH TEAMSTERS 
UNION LOCAL NO. 238, PARKS & PUBLIC WORKS, AND AUTHORIZING 

EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered 

approving a tentative agreement with Teamsters Union Local No. 238, Parks & Public 

Works for the period June 25, 2022  - July 2, 2027 (FY23 – FY27), and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve the tentative agreement and 

authorize execution of the contract. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that said Agreement is hereby approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 

authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

ADOPTED this 6th day of December, 2021. 

                                                                                                                                            
_________________________ 

                                                                                      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                                         

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 

978

Item 30.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

And 

 

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 238 (PSO) 

November 9, 2021 

 

The parties agree to recommend the following contract modifications to the City Council and 

Union member ship for ratification: 

        

 

1) ARTICLE  13.1 Insurance – Modify this Article to reflect the following plan design and 

contribution rates: 

 

Contribution Rates: 

a) 7/1/22 -- Current Contract 

b) 7/1/23 – Current Contract  

c) 7/1/24 – 9% Contribution Family; 11% Single Contribution 

d) 7/1/25 – 10% Contribution Family; 11% Single Contribution 

e) 7/1/26 – 11% Contribution Family; 11% Single Contribution 

 

Plan Design: 

a) Commencing July 1, 2024 through July 1, 2026, the health insurance plan design 

shall be the same as all other City employees.  During this time frame, the 

Deductible shall not increase to more than $1000 (S) and $2,000 (F), and the 

OPM shall not increase to more than $2,000 (S) and $4,000 (F).  Any increase in 

the above reference plan design shall result in a pro-rata increase in the Section 

105 Plan benefit.  As an example, if the plan design become a $750/$1500 

Deductible plan, then  the Section 105 Plan shall increase to an employee benefit 

of $150 applied to the deductible and $750 applied to the OPM.    

  

2) Article 15 and Exhibit A Wages  

 

a) 7/1/22 – $.50 Mkt Adjustment for each step plus 3.5% ATB. 

b) 7/1/23 -- $.50 Mkt Adjustment for each step plus 3.5% ATB. 

c) 7/1/24, 7/1/25, 7/1/26:  “Employees shall receive an across the board wage 

increase equal to the CPI-U +.75%.  CPI-U shall be calculated as the average 

from the 12 months preceding April 1st of each year.  The wage increase for this 

period cannot be less than 3.50% and cannot exceed 4.50%.  This provision shall 

be removed from the contract effective 12/31/26.” 

 

3) Article 17 General Provisions  

 

a) Section 17.12 (Duration) shall be modified to reflect a five (5) year contract. 

 

4) Investigators shall be treated as shift employees for purposes of their lunch period. 

979

Item 31.



 

5) PSO’s assigned to a 24-hour shift shall receive an additional six (6) hours of pay at the 24  

 hour shift rate or compensatory time for hours worked on a holiday. 

 

6) Delete the Dues Deduction Article. 

980

Item 31.



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A TENTATIVE AGREEMENT WITH TEAMSTERS 
UNION LOCAL NO. 238, PUBLIC SAFETY, AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION  

OF A CONTRACT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has considered 

approving a tentative agreement with Teamsters Union Local No. 238, Public Safety for 

the period June 25, 2022  - July 2, 2027 (FY23 – FY27), and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best 

interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve the tentative agreement and 

authorize execution of the contract. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that said Agreement is hereby approved, and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby 

authorized to execute the contract on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  

 

ADOPTED this 6th day of December, 2021. 

                                                                                                                                            
_________________________ 

                                                                                      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                                         

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 

981

Item 31.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular Meeting of November 15, 2021
	211115MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-Pearl Harbor Remembrance Day
	2021-12-07_PearlHarborRemembranceDay

	Item 3.	Proclamation-International Human Rights Day
	2021-12-10_InternationalHumanRightsDay

	Item 4.	PH-DT SSMID 2022
	1 - Council Memo for 2022 Downtown SSMID renewal 11-15-21
	2- CMS Submission-SSMID Packet for City
	3 - CF DT SSMID EVALUATION
	4 - SSMID Map
	5-Harting Communication-516 Bluff St
	Ord-DT SSMID-2022

	Item 5.	3000-The Vault, LLC
	1_Council Memo for Tax Exemption 11-15-21
	2_The Vault, LLC Site Map
	3_PPTE Ordinance - The Vault, LLC

	Item 6.	3001-Sewer Rate Increase
	1-council sewer increases.mem
	2-Article II Sewer Ordinance Nov. 2021 redlined (6)
	3-Ord-Sewer Increase

	Item 7.	Appointment-Boards and Commissions
	2021-11-18_HTF_CurtisAppoint
	Health Trust Fund - Curtis 8-13-21

	Item 8.	Committee of the Whole Minutes-11-15-21
	11-15-21 Committee of the Whole Minutes-final

	Item 9.	Departmental Monthly Report
	10 - October 21 Monthly Report

	Item 10.	Liquor Beer 12-6-21
	Liquor Beer 12-06-21

	Item 11.	HPC Application for the Honor Cottage
	2021-11-30_HPCApplication
	PreservationIowaForm2022
	4773_001

	Item 12.	Job Classification-PSS Captain
	job class revision memo
	Tice letter to council
	PSS-Captain Job Classification Redline 11-21
	PSS-Captain Job Classification11-21

	Item 13.	Job Classification-PSS Lieutenant
	PSS-Lieutenant Job Classification Redline 11-21
	PSS-Lieutenant Job Classification11-21

	Item 14.	Main Street Iowa Program Agreement
	1. Council memo-CMS Agreement 11-29-21
	2. Agreement signed by CMS

	Item 15.	Housing Choice Voucher Program-Updated Administrative Plan
	HCV Admin Plan Update Memo - Council.12.6.21
	Cedar Falls HCV Admin Plan.condensed

	Item 16.	City Hall Remodel Contract & Bond
	1 - memo City Hall Construction Contract
	2 -Contract Signed by PCC
	3 - A101-2017 - Additions and Deletions Report
	4 - A201-2017 - General Conditions of the Contract for Construction
	5 - COI PCC
	6 - Perf and Payment Bond Fully Executed

	Item 17.	Rental to Owner Conversion-610 W 28th Street
	1. Memo to Council - 610 W 28th Street
	2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for 610 W 28th Street
	3. CF application LOI
	4. House Inspection Report
	5. Gutter estmate
	6. Spahn &amp; Rose estimate
	7 Sides &amp; Bown estimate 1

	Item 18.	Starbeck's-6607 University-Site Plan
	1. CC staff report for Starbeck Smokehouse Update
	2. Starbeck&#39;s Night 11x17

	Item 19.	Creekside Condos-Preliminary Plat
	1_CC staff report Creekside Condos Preliminary and Final Plats  10.20.2021
	2_Preliminary Plat - Creekside Luxury Condos

	Item 20.	Creekside Luxury Condos-Final Plat
	3_Final Plat - Creekside Luxury Condos
	4_signed DOD

	Item 21.	Creekside Condos Site Plan  (SP21-010)
	1_CC staff Report Creekside Condos
	2_ Site Plan Documents
	3_Grading Phasing Plan
	4_Landscape Plan
	5_Renderings
	6_Public Comment Filed
	7_Pictures filed - pictures of flooding issues to the west

	Item 22.	Compost Facility Management Contract Extension
	compost contract extension 11 29 21

	Item 23.	Final Acceptance-Greenhill Village Estates
	1. Memo-Final Acceptance of Greenhill Village Estates
	2. Final Plat - 2019-11-07
	3. Maintenance Bond - Greenhill Village Estates

	Item 24.	Bids-Greenhill Rd/S. Main-Intersection Improvement Project
	1. Memo - Greenhill Road and South Main Street Intersection Improvements
	2. Bid Tab

	Item 25.	ROW Acquisitions-Greenhill Rd/S Main-Intersection Improvement
	1 Memo Revised
	2. ROW Acquisition Map
	3. Sesma Agreement
	4. Wilson Agreement
	5. Wheaton Agreement

	Item 26.	Set PH-Precinct Boundaries
	1-Memo to Council Setting PH on Elections Ordinance

	Item 27.	Set PH-Main Street Reconstruction
	1. Memo - ROW Acquisition Setting of Public Hearing
	CF Main St Letter Map

	Item 28.	Bills and Claims 12/6/21
	1 Daily Invoices 120621
	2 Council Invoices 120621

	Item 30.	Tentative Agreement-Parks/Public Works Union
	Teamsters PPW Tentative Agreement
	Teamsters PPW TA ResolutionV2

	Item 31.	Tentative Agreement-Public Safety
	Teamsters PS Tentative Agreement
	Teamsters PS TA ResolutionV2 (2)

	Bottom

